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In the District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Di-
vision.

No. 4354.

PACIFIC CREOSOTING CO:\IPANY, a Corpora-

tion,

Libelant,

vs.

THAMES A^^D MERSEY MARiINE INSUR-
ANCE COMPANY, LTD.,

Respondent.

Names and Addresses of Counsel.

EDMUND B. McCLANAHAN, Esq., 1101 Mer-

chants Exchange Building, San Francisco, Cali-

fornia
;

S. HASKET DERBY, Esq., 1101 Merchants Ex-

change Building, San Francisco, California

;

EDWARD BRADY, Esq., 1308 Alaska Building,

Seattle, Washington;

GEORGE H. RUMMENS, Esq., 1308 Alaska Build-

ing, Seattle, Washington

;

Proctors for Respondent and Appellant.

W. H. BOGLE, Esq., 610 Central Building, Seattle,

Washington

;

CARROLL B. GRAVES, Esq., 610 Central Build-

ing, Seattle, Washington

;
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E. T. MERRITT, Esq., 610 Central Building,

Seattle, Washington;

LAWRENCE BOGLE, Esq., 610 Central Building,

Seattle, Washington

;

Proctors for Libelant and Appellee. [1*]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Statement.

TIME OF COMMENCEMENT OF SUIT.

August 10, 1910.

NAMES OF PARTIES TO SUIT.

Libelant: Pacific Creosoting Company, a corpora-

tion.

Respondent : Thames and Mersey Marine Insurance

Company, Ltd.

DATE OF FILING RESPECTIVE PLEAD-
INGS.

Libel filed August 10, 1910.

Exceptions to Libel filed October 22, 1910.

Answer of respondent to Interrogatories filed Janu-

ary 31, 1911.

Exceptions to Answer and Interrogatories filed

February 16, 1911.

Answer of libelant to Interrogatories filed May 16,

1911.

Amended Answer to Fifth Interrogatory filed May
26, 1911.

Defendant in above cause has not been arrested, bail

has not been taken, nor property attached.

Time of trial March 5, 1913.

*Fage-number appearing at foot of page of original certified Record.
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Judge: Honorable Jeremiah Neterer.

Final Decree by Honorable Jeremiah Neterer, filed

February 26, 1914.

Notice of Appeal with Admission of Service filed

February 27, 1914. [ly^]

In the District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 4354—IN ADMIRALTY.
PACIFIC CREOSOTING COMPANY (a Corpora-

tion),

Libellant,

vs.

THAMES & MERSEY MARINE INSURANCE
COMPANY, LTD.,

Respondent.

Libel.

To the Judges of said Court

:

The Libel and Complaint of PACIFIC CREO-
SOTING COMPANY, a corporation, organized

under the laws of the State of AVashington, and hav-

ing its principal place of business in Seattle, in said

District, against the THAMES & MERSEY
MARINE INSURANCE COMPANY, LTD., a cor-

poration, organized under the laws of Great Britain,

and doing business in the State of Washington, in

said District, in a cause of contract, civil and mari-

time, alleges as follows

:

I.

That the libellant, being owner of a cargo of creo-
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sote on or about the second day of June, 1908, caused

tE6 same to be shipped on the British bark "Sard-

hana," then Ijdng at London, England, to be therein

carried to Eagle Harbor, in the State of Washing-

ton, there to be delivered to this libellant, it paying

freight for the same.

11.

On the second day of June, 1908, the libellant, in

London, [2] England, through its agents, effected

an insurance with the respondent on said cargo of

creosote in drums, including packages and freight

advanced, valued at Seven Thousand Four Hundred

Fifty Pounds, in the sum of Nine Hundred Thirty-

two Pounds, and on the same day through its said

agents paid respondent the premium on said risk,

to wit: Forty-four Pounds, Eighteen Shillings and

Ten Pence, which sum was accepted by the respond-

ent, and a policy of insurance issued and delivered to

libellant, a copy whereof is hereto annexed marked

''A" and made a part of this libel.

III.

On or about the last mentioned date the said bark

''Sardhana," with said cargo on board, set sail upon

her said voyage, and while in the course thereof, high

gales and heavy seas were encountered, in which the

ship rolled and labored heavily, and to such an ex-

tent that the cargo worked and became adrift, and

many of the drums containing said creosote were

damaged and a large quantity of said creosote es-

caped in the hold of the ship and was lost. That

said ship arrived at the port of Eagle Harbor with

her cargo badly damaged by the perils of the sea en-
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countered on said voyage, and on November 18th,

while lying in said port of Eagle Harbor and before

discharging said cargo, a fire broke out in the after-

'tween-decks of said ship, and burned the bulkhead

forward of the lazaretto, the door thereof and a con-

siderable portion of dunnage and other parts of said

ship ; that outside assistance was procured, and, after

considerable difficulty the fire was extinguished.

That on November 21, while discharging said cargo

from said vessel, a lighter alongside of the ship,

which was being used in discharging said cargo, and

which was then loaded with 272 drums of said creo-

sote, was capsized during a heavy gale, and the [3]

said cargo on board the said lighter was precipitated

into the sea; and heavy expenses were incurred by

libellant in salving said cargo so lost from said

lighter; that 268 drums thereof were recovered by

said salvage operations, and the other four drums

were lost. That the master caused said ship and

cargo to be surveyed, and it was found that Til

drums were damaged and worthless; that 56,267.2

gallons of creosote were found to have been lost, and

four additional drums filled with creosote were also

found to be lost, all of the value of One Thousand

Six Hundred Eighty-five Pounds, Twelve Pence;

that libellant, in laboring to save said cargo lost from

said capsized lighter, expended and paid out the sum

of $1377.95, making a total loss and damage to said

cargo, including said salvage expenses, of One Thou-

sand Nine Hundred Sixty-nine Pounds, Two Shil-

lings, Seven Pence—equivalent to $9,570 in gold coin

of the United States.
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IV.

The said damage to the cargo was caused entirely

by the tempestuous weather aforesaid, and is not in

any wise attributable to any unseaworthiness of the

vessel. The damage to said cargo and the expenses

incurred by libellant in salving same were such as

are contemplated in and insured by the policy afore-

said.

V.

By reason of the premises, a general average ad-

justment was made, of which the respondents had

notice, under which the respondent is liable to pay

the libellant $1,197.20, being the insurance due upon

the part of the cargo lost as aforesaid, and the sue

and labor expenses incurred by libellant as afore-

said.

A copy of the said general average adjustment is

hereto [4] annexed marked "B" and made a

part of this libel.

VI.

The libellant has demanded of the respondent the

said sum of $1,197.20, but respondent has refused to

pay the same, or any part thereof, and the whole

amount thereof is still due.

All and singular the premises are true, and within

the admiralty and maritime jurisdiction of the

United States, and of this court.

WHEREFORE, the libellant prays that a cita-

tion, according to the course and practise of this

Honorable Court, in causes of admiralty and mari-

time jurisdiction, may issue to the said Thames &
Mersey Insurance Company, Ltd., citing and admon-
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ishing it to appear and answer all and singular the

matters aforesaid; and that the Court will award

judgment in favor of lihellant for the sum of $1,19'7.-

2D aforesaid, with interest and costs, and will give

to the libellant such other and further relief as in

law and justice it is entitled to receive.

PACIFIC CREOSOTING COMPANY,
By H. R. ROOD,

Vice-Pres.

BOGLE & SPOONER,
Proctors.

United States of America,

Western District of Washington.

H. R. Rood, being sworn, states that he is Vice-

pres't of Pacific Creosoting Company, the libellant

in the above and foregoing libel; that he has read

the foregoing libel, knows the contents thereof and

believes [5] the same to be true.

H. R. ROOD.

SAvorn to and subscribed before me this 10th day

of August, A. D. 1910.

[Seal] H. E. STEVENS,
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing in Seattle. [6]

Exhibit "A" [to Libel—Policy of Insurance].

No. 72^.

£ 932.

THAMES and MERSEY MARINE INSURANCE
COMPANY, LIMITED.

WHEREAS, W. R. Lyon Lohr & Co. &/or

as agents have represented to the THAMES and
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MERSEY MARINE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Limited, that they are interested in or duly author-

ized as Owner, Agent or otherwise to make the In-

surance hereinafter mentioned and described with

the said Company and have promised or otherwise

obliged themselves to pay forthwith for the use of

the said Company at the Office of the said Company
the sum of Forty-four pounds eighteen shillings and

ten pence, as a premium or consideration at and

after the rate of Ninety Shillings per cent for such

Insurance.

NOW THIS POLICY OF INSURANCE WIT-
NES'SETH That in consideration of the premises

and of the said sum of Forty-four pounds eighteen

shillings and ten pence the said Company promises

and agrees with the said Co. their Executors, Ad-

ministrators and Assigns that the said Company will

pay and make good all such Losses and Damages

hereinafter expressed as may happen to the subject

matter of this Policy and may attach to this Pol-

icy in respect of the sum of NINE HUNDRED and

THIRTY-TWO Pounds hereby insured which in-

surance is hereby declared to be upon CREOSOTE
in drums including packages and FREIGHT AD-
VANCED valued at £7450 in the ship or vessel

called the ''Sardhana" whereof is at

present Master or whoever shall go for Master of

the said ship or vessel lost or not lost at and from

LONDON to EAGLE HARBOR, PUGET SOUND,
or held covered at a premium to be arranged.

WARRANTED free from particular average, un-

less the vessel or craft or the interest insured be
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stranded, sunk or on fire, or in collision with ice

or any si.ibstanre other than water (floating or non-

floatincj), the collision to be of such a nature as may

reasonably be supposed to have caused or lead to

damage of cargo, or vessel put into a port of refuge

or distress and discharge part or whole cargo, each

craft or lighter to deemed a separate insurance, but

to pay warehousing, forwarding and special charges

if incurred, as well as partial loss arising from tran-

shipment.

General average and salvage charges payable ac-

cording to foreign statement or York-Antwerp rules,

or 1890 Rules, if in accordance with the contract of

affreightment. Including all risks of craft and

boats. Including negligence and all liberties as per

bill of lading and/or Charter Party.

Including all risks of transhipment and of craft,

lighterage and/or any other conveyances, from the

warehouse until on board the vessel, and from the

vessel until safely delivered into warehouse, or des-

tination in the interior, or of fire while awaiting

shipment.

In case of deviation, change of voyage, or addi-

tional risk not specified, to be held covered upon

terms to be arranged.

Including the Risk of craft, and/or raft to and

from the vessel.

WARRANTED free of capture, seizure and de-

tention and the consequences thereof, or any attempt

thereat, piracy excepted, and also from all conse-

quences of hostilities or warlike operations, whether

before or after declaration of War. [7]
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AND the said Company promises and agrees that

the insurance aforesaid shall commence upon the

freight and goods or merchandize aforesaid from the

loading of the said goods or merchandize on board

the said ship or vessel at as above and continue until

the said goods or merchandize be discharged and

safely landed at as above.

AND that it shall be lawful for the said ship or

vessel to proceed and sail to and touch and stay at

any ports or places whatsoever in the course of her

said voyage for all necessary purposes without

prejudice to this insurance.

AND touching the adventures and perils which the

capital stock and funds of the said company are made
liable unto or are intended to be made liable unto

by this insurance they are of the seas men of war

fire enemies pirates rovers thieves jettisons letters of

mart and counter-mart surprizals takings at sea ar-

rests restraints and detainments of all Kings,

Princes and people of what Nation condition or qual-

ity soever barratry of the Master and Mariners and

of all other perils losses and misfortunes that have

or shall come to the hurt detriment or damage of

the aforesaid subject matter of this insurance or any

part thereof. AND in case of any loss or misfor-

tune it shall be lawful to the insured their factors

servants and assigns to sue labor and travel for in

and about the defence safeguard and recovery of the

aforesaid subject matter of this insurance or any

part thereof without prejudice to this insurance the

charges whereof the said company will bear in pro-

portion to the sum hereby insured. AND it is ex-
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pressly declared and agreed that no acts of the in-

surer or insured in recovering saving or preserving

the property insured shall be considered as a waiver

or acceptance of abandonment. AND it is declared

and agreed that corn fish salt fruit flour and seed

are warranted free from average unless general or

the ship be stranded sunk or burnt, and that sugar

tobacco hemp flax hides and skins are warranted

free from average under five pounds per centum

unless general or the ship be stranded sunk or burnt

and that all other goods also freight are warranted

free from average under three pounds per centum

unless general or the ship be stranded sunk or burnt.

IN AVITNESS WHEREOF the undersigned on

behalf of the said company have hereunto set their

hands in London, the second day of June, 1908.

Examined W— E. S. GEDZ,
for Director.

Countersigned— C. E. DICKINSON,
for Secretary. [8]

Exhibit "B" [to Libel—Statement of Particular

Average on Creosote Oil in Drums, etc.].

STATEMENT
of

PARTICULAR AVERAGE
on

CREOSOTE OIL in DRUMS.

CASE of the BRITISH BARK "SARDHANA"
from LONDON May 30th, 1908, to EAGLE
HARBOR.

1908.

May 30th: This ship sailed from London with a
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cargo of creosote in drums, bound to Eagle Har-

bor. High gales and heavy seas were en-

countered in which the ship rolled and labored

heavily and to such an extent that the cargo

worked and became adrift. Some of the drums

were damaged and the creosote escaped into the

hold of the ship.

November 9th : The ship arrived at Eagle Harbor.

November 18th: After part of the cargo had been

discharged a fire broke out in the after 'tween-

decks. An alarm was given. Outside assist-

ance was procured and after considerable diffi-

culty the fire was extinguished. Upon examina-

tion it was found that the bulkhead forward of

the lazarette, the door thereof and considerable

dunnage, were burned.

November 21st: A lighter alongside of the ship,

loaded with 272 drums of creosote, was capsized

during a heavy gale and the drums precipitated

into about 6 fathoms of water.

A survey was called and recommendations were

made to ascertain the number of damaged drums, the

loss in weight of oil and the recovery of the 272

drums lost from the lighter. These recommenda-

tions were carried out with the following results:

741 drums were found damaged and worthless; 56,-

267.2 gallons of oil were found to have been lost from

these drums and all but 4 drums of the lighter load

of 272 were recovered. The adjusters are advised

that there is no ordinary loss in measurement of

creosote in iron drums and that the 741 drums dam-
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aged, for which claim is made, were all on board at

the time of the fire.

EXTACT from PROTEST.
1908.

May 30th: This vessel sailed from London with a

cargo of creosote in iron drums, bound for Eagle

Harbor.

Nothing to be noted here occurred until

June 6th: When it w^as discovered that the car-

penter's sounding rod was very slightly colored

with creosote.

July 11th : The crew were employed placing extra

checks amongst the cargo. [9]

July 15th: The moderate breeze that had been ex-

perienced freshened and the light sails were

stowed away.

July 16th : A heavy squall struck the vessel and car-

ried away the after leech of the inner jib. The

upper and middle spanker brails were carried

away while the sail was being taken in. New
spanker brails were rove in.

July 18th : A strong breeze accompanied by a moder-

ate sea and occasional heavy squalls, was en-

countered. Later in the day the ship rolled

heavily in a high southwesterly swell.

July 20th: A heavy southwesterly swell w^as en-

countered in which the ship rolled severely.

There w^as no wind at the time and the vessel

would not steer.

July 28th : The strong breeze increased to a gale ac-

companied by a high sea in which the ship

pitched heavily and shipped occasional heavy
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seas on deck. Heavy seas smashed the star-

board side light. Later the wind increased to

a fresh gale accompanied by hard squalls of hail

and rain. The ship pitched and rolled heavily.

July 29th: The gale continued as before; likewise

the sea. The vessel again rolled heavily and

pitched badly. Later the squalls blew with hur-

ricane force. The ship rolled and pitched badly

in a high confused sea and much water was

shipped on deck. Towards night it was discov-

ered that the cargo in the hold had commenced

to work. The crew entered the hold from the

lazarette and secured it as well as possible.

July 30th : The gale still continued. The ship rolled

and pitched heavily and took much water on
"^

deck fore and aft. The cargo worked as before

and the crew again entered the hold to secure it.

July 31st : The gale moderated the first part of the

day but increased again later. Much water was

shipped on deck. The cargo worked as before

and the crew entered the hold through the ven-

tilator hatch and secured it as well as possible.

August 1st: A fresh gale was experienced and the

ship rolled and pitched heavily in a high beam

sea. Again the cargo worked.

August 2nd: The wind constantly shifted in light

squalls and the ship was frequently caught

aback. No. 1 foot rope carried away and the

main topgallant sail was sent down and No. 2

topgallant sail was bent.

August 4:th : A high westerly swell was experienced

in which the vessel rolled and pitched. An old
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spanker boom was cut and used to chock oif the

cargo. This date the weather moderated and

from this date until

August 7th: The crew were employed securing

cargo.

August 9th: A moderate gale was encountered, ac-

companied by a high sea. The vessel rolled and

pitched heavily.

August 11th: A strong gale w^as experienced, ac-

companied by hard squalls. Large quantities of

water were shipped over all. [10]

August 12th: Similar conditions were encountered.

The vessel continued to roll, labor and strain and

ship large quantities of water on deck.

August 13th: The gale continued and was accom-

panied by a high confused sea.

August 18th : The barometer fell rapidly.

August 19th : Another gale was encountered accom-

panied by a high confused sea. The vessel

labored and pitched heavily. The main topmast

staysail burst while set.

August 25th: A hard gale was encountered accom-

panied by a heavy sea. Much water was shipped

on deck. The cargo worked again badly.

August 26th : Similar conditions were experienced.

August 27th: A moderate gale was experienced in

which the vessel rolled heavily. Again the

barometer fell rapidly.

August 28th : The gale continued. The vessel rolled

and strained.

August 30th: A high sea was experienced in which
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the vessel labored heavily. The decks were con-

stantly awash.

August S'lst: A moderate gale was experienced.

The decks were frequently awash and the cabin

and deck houses were flooded. The cargo

worked heavily.

September 1st: A moderate gale with hard squalls

was experienced. The vessel shipped large

quantities of water over all. The cargo worked

heavily.

September 2nd: Similar conditions were encount-

ered.

September 4th: A strong gale was experienced ac-

companied by a high sea in which the vessel la-

bored and strained badly. The cargo worked as

before. The hold was entered through the main

ventilator and the drums were found to be adrift

and were rolling about in all directions. It was

impossible to secure the cargo until the weather

moderated.

September 7th: A heavy sea struck the vessel and

smashed the lighthouse on the starboard side.

September 14th : The crew were employed cutting up

spare spars and blocking off the cargo with

them.

September 26th : It was noticed by the soundings in

the pump well that there was an increase of

liquid which appeared to be mostly creosote.

October 12th: The foot rope of the foretopgallant

sail carried away.

November 2nd : A strong gale accompanied by a high

sea was encountered. The ship labored heavily
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and shipped much water on deck.

November 3rd : Simihir conditions were encountered

and the cargo again worked badly, [11]

November 6th : The ship was taken in tow by the tug

''Wyadda."

November 9th : She arrived at Eagle Harbor.

November 17th : Stevedores commenced to discharge

the cargo and they discharged 136 drums.

November 18th: Stevedores continued to discharge

the cargo and at 5 :00 P. M. finished for the day.

291 further drums were discharged. About 9 :30

P. M. smoke was discovered issuing from the

after hatch, by one of the crew who immediately

notified the master and then gave the alarm.

This alarm was responded to by the crews of the

ship "Jupiter," the SS. "Hornelen," and the

emploj'ees of the Pacific Creosoting Company
who brought with them several chemical fire ex-

tinguishers. The master w^ent below through

the lazarette and saw the reflection of the fire

over the top of the bulkhead between the after

'tween-decks and the lazarette. The after

'tween-decks were still full of cargo. After con-

siderable trouble the fire was extinguished and

it was then discovered that the aforesaid bulk-

head, together with the door thereof (the bulk-

head was built in the vessel) and the dunnage in

the after 'tween-decks were burned, and some of

the ship's stores in the lazarette were damaged

by water and chemicals. The origin of the fire

was not discovered.
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AFFIDAVIT EE CAPSIZING OF LIGHTER.

State of Washington,

City of Seattle,—ss.

Frank D. Beal, being duly sworn, deposes and

says

:

That he is superintendent of the Pacii&c Creosot-

ing Company's plant at Eagle Harbor; that on

November 21, 1908, Pacific Barge Company's Scow

#2 was lying moored to the British Bark ^'Sard-

hana," in the harbor opposite to the plant, and that

there were Two Hundred and Seventy Two drums

of creosote oil (272) upon this scow which had been

discharged during the day.

That during the night of the 21st and 22nd a heavy

gale sprang up, during which time the scow filled

with water and capsized, precipitating all the drums

into about six fathoms of water.

That fifteen of these drums were later recovered

being evidently but partly filled with oil, and that the

balance of the load, Two Hundred and Fifty-seven

(257) filled drums are now lying on the bottom of the

harbor alongside the ''Sardhana."

(Signed) F. D. BEAL,

Subscribed and sworn to before me this second day

of December, A. D. 1908.

(Signed) H. E. STEVENS,
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Seattle, Wash.

REPORT OF SURVEY.
On Barge P. B. No. 2 of Seattle, Washington.

: At the request of the Pacific Creosoting Company,
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I, the undersigned did hold survey upon the above

described barge, November 23rd, 1908, and subse-

quent dates, for the purpose of ascertaining the cause

of the capsizing of same, and the damage resulting to

272 drums of creosote oil, which formed the cargo of

[12] said barge at the time of the accident.

By report obtained from the manager of the

Creosoting Works and from officers of the Bark

*'Sardhana" it appears that the barge P. B. #2 was

placed alongside the above named vessel, which ves-

sel was moored in a sheltered part of Eagle Harbor,

Wash., to receive a cargo of drums of creosote oil

for transportation to the works, and that on the

evening of November 21st, when the work w^as fin-

ished for the day 272 drums had been loaded on to

said barge ; and as is customary the barge left safely

moored alongside the Bark to complete loading the

next day, but during the night an unexpected gale

sprang up, and before a tug could be obtained to

move the barge, she collided heavily with the Bark

which contact shifted the drums to one side, and

caused the barge to capsize, thus spilling the whole

of the 272 drums into the bay and leaving the barge

bottom up.

RECOMMENDATIONS.
I recommended that bids be obtained from the local

divers and a contract let for the recovery of the drums

which recommendation was carried into effect with

the following results

:

253 drums recovered by divers.

15 light drums that floated, recovered by the launch

and crew of the Pacific Creosoting Company.
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268 Forward.

4' lost entirely, could not be located.

272 total number of drums that were on board the

barge.

I further recommended that the barge be towed to

some safe place, righted and put on the gridiron for

examination.

This recommendation was carried out, and upon

making a careful examination of said barge I found

her to be undamaged, and making no water.

In my opinion the cause of the accident was en-

tirely due to the part cargo of drums shifting on the

deck of the barge, the harbor in which the ship and

barge were moored is considered perfectly safe and

protected from wind, but on this occasion an excep-

tionally heavy ground swell swept in.

Respectfully submitted

(Signed) F. WALKER,
Marine Surveyor.

Seattle, Washington, November 23rd to December

12th, 1908.

REPORT OF SURVEY.
On Cargo of Creosote Oil ex British Bark "Sard-

hana. '

'

At the request of the Pacific Creosoting Company,

I, the undersigned, did hold survey upon the above

described cargo, previous to its removal from the ves-

sel, on the 17th of November, 1908, and on subsequent

dates, as same was being discharged, for the purpose

of ascertaining the extent of damage alleged to have

been sustained during the voyage from London,

England, to Eagle Harbor, Wash.
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By abstracts obtained from the vessel's log, it ap-

pears that she sailed from London on May 30th, 1908

;

that nothing worthy of note occurred until June 6th

when it was noticed by the carpenter in taking sound-

ings that traces of creosote appeared on the sounding

rod. Various weather was encountered and on July

29th during a heavy gale and towards night it was

discovered that the cargo had commenced to work.

The crew entered the hold and [IZ] secured it as

much as possible. July 30th, 31st and August 1st

gale continued as before and cargo again worked.

Crew did their best to secure same. From August

4th to August 7th the crew were employed securing

cargo. From this date to August 25th various

weather was encountered, and from the latter date to

November 3rd a series of more or less severe gales

were encountered, the cargo working more or less and

an increase of liquid, which appeared to be creosote,

was noticed at time of sounding the pump well. On
November 6th the ship was taken in tow by the tug

"Wyadda," and on November 9th she arrived at

Eagle Harbor. November 17th commenced to dis-

charge cargo, and on this date discharged 136 drums.

On November 18th continued to discharge, and at

5 P. M. finished for the day, at which time 291 further

drums were discharged. At about 9:30 P. M. smoke

was discovered issuing from the after hatch by one of

the crew who at once gave the alarm which was re-

sponded to by the crews of the ship "Jupiter," the

SS. "Hornelen," and the employees of the Pacific

Creosoting Company, who brought with them several

chemical fire extinguishers. The master went below
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through the lazarette and located the fire at the bulk-

head separating the after 'tween-deck from the laz-

arette. The after 'tween-decks were still full of

cargo, but after considerable trouble the fire was ex-

tinguished, and it was then discovered that the

wooden bulkhead and door to same, together with a

quantity of dunnage in the after 'tween-decks were

burned, and some of the ship's stores in the lazarette

were damaged by water and chemicals. The origin

of the fire was not discovered. For further partic-

ulars of the voyage, see ship's log and protest.

Upon making a careful examination of the cargo on

November 17th, previous to commencing discharge,

and at various dates during the discharge of same,

;I found the drums to be well stowed and dunnaged.

The cargo consisted of 2,75'3 drums of creosote, of

which 2,012 drums were discharged in good condition,

the remaining 741 drums were more or less dented,

damaged, and in a leaky condition, 25 being entirely

empty.

2,012 Drums full and in good order

716 " damaged and partly empty

25 '
' damaged and entirely empty

2,753 total.

After vessel was discharged the officials of the

Creosoting Company emptied the 741 damaged drums

and measured the amount obtained from same, which

proved to be 23,650 galls., and as these drums when

full contained 109 2/10 galls, each, which equals

80,917.2 galls., the loss is shown as follows:
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80,917.2 galls, when shipped

23,650 *' discharged

56,267.2 " total loss

The 741 damaged drums are entirely unfit for fur-

ther use and have no salable value.

The loss of 56,267.2 galls, of creosote does not in-

clude the 4 drums lost by the capsizing of barge P. B.

No. 2 on the night of November 21st, and reported on

in separate report. These, however, are included in

the 2,012 drums discharged in good condition.

Respectfully submitted,

(Signed) F. WALKER,
Marine Surveyor.

Seattle, Wash., November 17th—December 28th,

1908.

ADJUSTERS' NOTE:

United States gallon8=46889-l/3 Imperial Galls. [14]

Mark. Mark.
B D
O C

ENG. ENG.
Drums. Contents. Drums. Contents.

Bare invoice cost at Works. £309-3-9 £206-9-8 £2786-6-5 £2507-13-9

Cost of filling drums 12-1-0 118-14-11

Cost of putting on board

and advanced freight 25-8-11 111-13-0 133-9-9 572-17-7

Insurance premium 15-2-5 14-18-4 130-17-11 143-8-6

Cost of Consular Invoice.. 2-7 2-7 2-7 2-7

Total invoice cost and ad-

vanced freight £349-17-8 £345-4-7 £3050-16-8 £3342-17-4
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Or. Mark
B D

Invoice Value
Merchandise &
Shipped. Advanced Frt.

Insured
Value.

Insured
Value of
Each Drum

&Gal.

255 Drums £ 349-17-8 £ 367-14-3 £1-8-10

ENG. 23142 Gals. Creosote £ 345- 4-7 £ 362-16-5 £0-0-3.763

C 2498 Drums £3050-16-8 £3206- 5-7 £1-5-8

ENG. 227992 Gals. Creosote £3342-17-4 £3513- 3-9 £0-0-3.698

£7088-16-3 £7450- 0-0

Mark.
B D Drums

SHIPMENT & OUT-TURN.
Shipped. Delivered.

737 Pkgs.

46748.19 gals.

Short
255 pkgs. 247 pkgs. 8 pkgs.

O

ENG. Creosote 23142 Gals. 22635.78 gals. 506.22 gals.

Note: If 741 drums lost 46889-1/3 gallons, then 8 drums lost in pro-

portion 506.22 gallons. No record was secured of the contents short on

each mark.

C Drums. 2498 Pkgs. 1761 Pkgs.

Eng. Creosote 227992 gals. 181243.81 gals.

Imperial gallons.

INSURED WITH THE CLAUSES:

"Warranted free from Particular Average, unless the vessel or craft

or the interest insured be stranded, sunk, or on fire, or in collision with

ice or any substance other than water (floating or non-floating), the

collision to be of such a nature as may reasonably be supposed to have

caused or led to damage of cargo, or vessel put into a port of refuge

or distress and discharge part or whole cargo, each craft or lighter

to be deemed a separate insurance, but to pay warehousing, forward-

ing and special charges, if incurred, as well as partial loss arising

from transhipment. [15]

"Including all risks of transhipment and of craft, lighterage and/or any

other conveyances, from the warehouse until on board the vessel, and

from the vessel until safely delivered into warehouse, or destination

in the interior, or of fire while waiting shipment.

8 Drums of the Mark B. D. at £1-8-10 per drum £ 11-10-8

506.22 Gals. " " " B. D. " £0-0-3.763 per gal. £ 7-18-9

737 Drums " " " C. " £1-5- 8 per drum £ 945-16-4

46748.19 Gals. " " " C. " £0-0-3.698 per gal. £ 720- 6-3

£1685-12-0
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SUE &. LABOR CHARGES:
Henry Finch,

For professional services iu raising creo-

sote tanks at Eagle Harbor, Wash,

as per memo, agreement dated Dec.

Ist., 1908, 253 Drums raised at $4,

each $1012.00

J. N. Bogart,

To 4V-! days with driver hoisting sub-

merged drums from Harbor bottom.. . 45.00

Pacific Creosoting Company,

To launch 2 hours at $2.50, and one

man at 25<^, towing scows from diving

outfit to gridirons and return $5.50

To launch 5 hours at $2.50 and 3 men

at 25<J each, picking up drums adrift

in Harbor 16 . 25

To launch 5 hours at $2.50 and 2 men

5 hours each at 25f picking up drums

in Harbor as above 15.00 36.75

Pacific Creosoting Company,

Blacksmith 3 hrs. fixing hoisting gear,

3 laborers 3 days each handling

drums on scow 19 . 20

Rent of launch and man tending scow

and driver while recovering sunken

drums, 4-^8 days $10 45.00 64.20

$1157.95 £1685-12-0

[16]
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60.00

75.00
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Forward $1157.95 £1685-12-0

Crosby Tow Boat Co.,

To towing scow from Seattle to Eagle

Harbor $10.00

To rent of scow 5 days at $10. per

day 50 . 00

Frank Walker,

To survey report on cargo of Br. B'k.

"Sardhana" dated November 17th

—

December 28th, 1908

Frank Walker,

To survey and report on scow P. B.

No. 2 dated November 23rd to De-

cember 12th, together with consul-

tations at various dates

For extended protest

For professional services and advice

including consultations with con-

signees and surveyor, and for this

statement

25.00

25.00

35.00

$1377.95 £1685-12-0

283-10-7

£1969- 2-7

VALUATION IN POLICIES £7450.

Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Co. Ltd., £ 932. pays £ 246- 6-9

Underwriters at Lloyds £1291 " £ 341- 4-7

Underwriters at Lloyds £5227 " £1381-11-3

Seattle, Washington, May 18th, 1909. £7450. £1969- 2-7

Per pro. JOHNSON & HIGGINS,

GERRARD CREWE,
Atty.,

Average Adjusters.

[Indorsed]: Libel. Filed in the U. S. District

Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Aug. 10, 1910.

R. M. Hopkins, Clerk. [17]
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[Title of Court and Cause]

Answer of Respondent.

Comes now the Thames & Mersey Marine Insur-

ance Company, Ltd., respondent herein, and for an-

swer to the libel of the Pacific Creosoting Company

on file herein alleges

:

I.

That it admits the allegations contained in para-

graph I of said libel,

II.

That it admits the allegations contained in para-

graph II of said libel except that it does not admit

that Exhibit ''A" is a true copy of the policy of in-

surance mentioned in said paragraph, in that said

policy as executed contained various interlineations

and erasures and clauses in different types which,

respondent alleges, are material in enabling the Court

to construe such policy, and it, therefore, prays for

the production of the original policy of insurance

upon the trial of this cause. Subject to these limita-

tions, however, it admits the verity of said Exhibit

''A." [18]

III.

Answering the allegations contained in paragraph

III of said libel, respondent is ignorant as to the mat-

ters and things therein contained and can, therefore,

neither admit nor deny the same, and on this ground

it calls for proof thereof.

IV.

Answering the allegations contained in paragraph

IV of said libel respondent denies that the damage
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to said cargo, or the expenses incurred by libelant in

salving the same, were such as were contemplated in

or insured by the policy aforesaid. It is ignorant as

to the remaining matters and things in said para-

graph contained and can, therefore, neither admit nor

deny the same, and on this ground it calls for proof

thereof.

V.

Answering the allegations contained in paragraph

V of said libel respondent denies that under the aver-

age adjustment therein mentioned, or otherwise or at

all, it is liable to pay the libelant the sum of $1,197.20,

or any sum whatever. It also denies that the adjust-

ment therein mentioned was a general average ad-

justment. It is ignorant as to the allegation that the

adjustment therein alleged was made, and as to

whether Exhibit "B " attached to said libel is a true

copy of said adjustment and can, therefore, neither

admit nor deny the same, on which ground it calls for

proof thereof.

VI.

Answering the allegations contained in paragraph

VI of said libel respondent denies that the sum of

$1,197.20, or any sum, is due from it to the libelant,

and denies that all and singular the premises are true.

Otherwise it admits the allegations of said paragraph

VI. [19]

VII.

And as a further and separate defense to said libel

respondent alleges

:

That by the terms of the aforesaid policy of insur-

ance, the same was warranted free from particular
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average, subject to certain exceptions, that libelant's

loss, if such loss there was, was a particular average

loss, and that the same was not within any of the

aforesaid exceptions.

VIII.

And as a further and separate defense to said libel

respondent alleges

:

That the aforesaid policy of insurance was a policy

made and entered into in the city of London, in the

Kingdom of Great Britain, and was and is governed

by the law of that Kingdom ; that under the law of

said Kingdom a ship must be "on fire" as a whole, in

order to delete the F. P. A. (free from particular

average) warranty in policies like that now sued on

under the "on fire" clause therein contained ; that the

British bark "Sardhana" was not on November 18th,

1908, or at any other time, on fire as a whole, and

hence was not "on fire" under the terms of the policy

in suit, and that hence respondent is not liable under

the terms of said policy for the particular average

losses alleged to have been suffered by the libelant.

IX.

And as a further and separate defense to said libel

respondent alleges

:

That the aforesaid policy of insurance was a policy

made and entered into in the city of London, in the

Kingdom of Great Britain, and was and is governed

by the law of that Kingdom; that under the law of

said Kingdom, the British bark "Sardhana" was not

on November 18th, 1908, or at any other time, [20]

"on fire" under the terms of the policy in suit, and

hence respondent is not liable under the terms of said



30 Thames & Mersey Marine vs. Co., Ltd.,

policy for the particular avei .ge losses alleged to

have been suffered by the libelant.

WHEREFORE, respondent prays that said libel

may be dismissed with costs.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent.

McCLANAHAN & DERBY,
Of Counsel.

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco,—ss.

Louis Rosenthal, being first duly sworn, on oath

deposes and says : That he is the Pacific Coast Agent

of the Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Company,

Ltd., respondent herein, and has general charge of

its business on all parts of the Pacific Coast.

That he has read the foregoing answer and knows

the contents thereof and that the same is true to the

best of his knowledge, information and belief. That

he makes this verification upon the information re-

ceived from his agents in Seattle, Washington, and

from the home offices of the respondent in London,

England, and that he makes the same on behalf of

said respondent having due authority so to do.

LOUIS ROSENTHAL.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25th day of

January, 1911.

[Seal] M. V. KIRKETERP,
Notary Public in and for the City and County of San

Francisco, State of California. [21]
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Interrogatories Prop junded to Libelant by Answer.

The rcspoudeiit, in pursuaiKr of Admiralty I^ulo

32 in such cases made and provided, propounds the

following interrogatories to the libelant herein:

1. Please state what * * the other parts of the ship,
'

'

alleged to have been burned in paragraph III of the

libel, were.

2. Was the whole of **the bulkhead forward of the

lazarette," referred to in said paragraph, burned,

and, if not, state how much of it was burned ?

3. Was the whole of the door of said bulkhead

burned, and, if not, state how much of it was burned ?

4. How much dunnage referred to in said para-

graph III was burned ?

5. Was there a survey for fire damage on said

ship held because of the fire referred to in said para-

graph III, and, if so, please state when it was made,

by w^hom, and attach a copy of the report of survey ?

6. Was the damage caused by said fire such as to

require any repairs, and, if so, state what they wxre,

who made the repairs, and the cost thereof *?

7. State in detail what "outside assistance" was

procured to extinguish the fire referred to in said

paragraph III.

8. State in detail the difficulties encountered in ex-

tinguishing the fire referred to in said paragraph III.

9. State the names and addresses of the men who

extinguished the said fire so far as known to you.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent.

McCLANAHAN & DERBY,
Of Counsel. [22]
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Due and full service of within Answer and Inter-

rogatories acknowledged this 30th day of Jan., 1911.

BOGLE, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant.

[Indorsed] : Answer of Respondent and Inter-

rogatories. Filed in the U. S. District Court, West-

ern Dist. of Washington. Jan. 31, 1911. R. M.

Hopkins, Clerk. [23]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Answers of Pacific Creosoting Company, a Corpora-

tion, to the Interrogatories Propounded to It in

This Cause.

1. To the first interrogatory libelant says: That

the ''other parts of the ship" which were burned, as

alleged in paragraph III of the libel, were the floors

and ceiling of said ship near said bulkhead.

2. To the second interrogatory libelant says : That

about two-thirds of the said bulkhead was burned and

charred.

3. To the fifth interrogatory libelant says: That

no survey for such fire damage was held to its knowl-

edge.

4. To the sixth interrogatory libelant says : That

the damage caused by said fire to the said ship, was

such as to require repairs ; that such repairs consisted

of removing the burned bulkhead and building a new

one in its place. These repairs were made by the

ship 's carpenter. Libelant is unable to state the cost

of such repairs.

5. To the seventh interrogatory libelant says:
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That the ''outside assistance" which was procured to

extinguish the fire was [24] a portion of the crew

of the steamer ''Hornelon," and also certain em-

ployees of the libelant working at its plant at Eagle

Harbor.

6. To the eighth interrogatory libelant says : That

the difficulties encountered in extinguishing the fire

were that stores were piled on one side of the bulk-

head, and drums of creosote, dunnage, etc., on the

other, and that the lumber was saturated with creo-

sote, making the same very inflammable, and that it

required hard work on the part of the crew of the

''Sardhana" and the persons so assisting them to ex-

tinguish the fire.

PACIFIC CREOSOTING CO.,

By its H. E. STEVENS,
Secy.

BOGLE, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant. [25]

United States of America,

Western District of Washington,—ss.

H. E. Stevens, being first duly sworn, on oath, says

:

That he is the secretary of the Pacific Creosoting

Company, a corporation, libelant herein, and makes

this verification of the foregoing Answers to the in-

terrogatories in behalf of said libelant ; that he has

read the foregoing answers to interrogatories, and

the same are true.

H. E. STEVENS,
Secy.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 15th day of

May, A. D. 1911.

[Notarial Seal] F. T. MERRITT,
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Seattle.

Service of within Answers to Interrogatories this

15th day of May, 1911, and receipt of a copy thereof,

admitted.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent.

[Indorsed] : Answers of Libelant to the Inter-

rogatories Propounded by Respondent. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washington.

May 16, 1911. R. M. Hopkins, Clerk. [26]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Amended Answer of Libelant to the Fifth

Interrogatory Propounded to It in This Cause.

For its Amended Answer to the fifth interrogatory

propounded to libelant in this cause, it says : A sur-

vey for said fire damage on said ship was held because

of the fire referred to in Paragraph 3 of the libel

herein ; such survey was made November 20, 1008, by

one Frank Walker, a marine surveyor of Seattle,

State of Washington.

PACIFIC CREOSOTING COMPANY.
By H. E. STEVENS,

Its Secretary.

BOGLE, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant. [27]
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United States of America,

Western District of Washinj^ton,—ss.

H. E. Stevens, being first duly sworn on oath, de-

poses and says : That he is the secretary of the Pacific

Creosoting Company, a corporation, libelant herein,

and makes this verification of the foregoing Amended
Answer to the fifth interrogatory in behalf of said

libelant ; that he has read the foregoing Amended An-

swer to said fifth interrogatory, and the same is true

;

affiant further says that this Amended Answer to said

fifth interrogatory is made for the reason that at the

time of making the original answer to said inter-

rogatory, he did not know and had never been in-

formed that any such survey had been made, but that

on this 26th day of May, 1911, affiant was informed

by said Frank Walker that he had made such survey

at the time above stated, which was the first knowl-

edge or information affiant had of said fact, and as he

verily believes, is the first that any officer of said

corporation knew of such survey.

H. E. STEVENS.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20th day of

May, A. D. 1911.

[Notarial Seal] F. T. MERRITT,
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Seattle. [28]

Service of within Amended Answer to inter-

rogatory this 26th day of May, 1911, and receipt of a

copy thereof, admitted.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent.
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[Indorsed] : Amended Answer of Libelant to the

Fifth Interrogatory Propounded to It in this Cause.

Filed in the U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of

Washington. May 26, 1911. R. M. Hopkins, Clerk.

[29]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Exceptions to Libel.

Comes now the Thames & Mersey Marine Insur-

ance Company, Ltd., respondent herein, and excepts

to the libel of the Pacific Creosoting Company,

libelant herein, upon the following grounds

:

1. In that it appears from said libel that the

loss and damage for which recovery is sought con-

stitute a particular average loss, and it does not

sufficiently appear from the facts alleged in said

libel that the loss and damage was covered by the

policy of insurance annexed to said libel and

marked Exhibit '

' A.

"

2. In that it does not sufficiently appear from

said libel what part, if any, of said loss and damage

was covered by the terms of said policy.

3. In that the insurance affected by said policy

is warranted free from particular average, subject

to certain exceptions, and that it does not suffi-

ciently appear from said libel that the cause of

action is within said exceptions. [30]

WHEREFORE, respondent prays that said libel

may be dismissed with costs.

Dated October— , 1910.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent.
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Due and full service of within Exceptions to Libel

acknowledged this 22d day of Oct., 1910.

BOGLE, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Attorneys for Libelant.

[Indorsed]: Exceptions to Libel. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washington.

Oct. 22, 1910. R. M. Hopkins, Clerk. [31]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Exceptions to Interrogatories [Addressed to

Libelant].

EXCEPTIONS TO THE INTERROGATORIES
ADDRESSED TO THE LIBELLANT BY
THE RESPONDENT HEREIN.

I.

The said libellant hereby excepts to the first

interrogatory for the reason that said interrogatory

does not call for evidence in support of respond-

ent's defense, but calls for libellant 's evidence in

support of its libel herein; and said interrogatory is

an attempt on the part of respondent to find out in

advance what libellant 's evidence will be.

II.

The libellant hereby excepts to the second inter-

rogatory for the reason that said interrogatory does

not call for evidence in support of respondent's de-

fense, but calls for Ubellant's evidence in support

of its libel herein; and the same is an attempt on the

part of respondent to find out in advance what
libellant 's evidence will be.
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III.

The libellant hereby excepts to the third inter-

rogatory for the reason that said interrogatory does

not call for evidence in support of respondent's

defense, but calls for libellant 's evidence [32]

in support of its libel herein; and the same is an

attempt on the part of respondent to find out in

advance what libellant 's evidence will be.

IV.

The libellant hereby excepts to the fourth inter-

rogatory for the reason that said interrogatory does

not call for evidence in support of respondent's

defense, but calls for libellant 's evidence in support

of its libel herein; and the same is an attempt on

the part of the respondent to find out in advance

what libellant 's evidence will be. And also upon

the further ground that it is irrelevant and im-

material as to how much dunnage was burned.

V.

The said libellant hereby excepts to the fifth in-

terrogatory for the reason that said interrogatory

does not call for evidence in support of respondent's

defense, but calls for libellant 's evidence in support

of its libel herein, and also upon the further ground

that the said interrogatory calls for the names of

libellant 's witnesses herein and for a copy of docu-

ments not in issue and which under the rules of

this court libellant cannot be required to produce

in answer to interrogatories, and upon the further

ground that the said interrogatory is an attempt on

the part of respondent to find out in advance what

libellant 's evidence will be.
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VI.

The said libellant excepts to the sixth interroga-

tory for the reason that the same does not call for

evidence in support of respondent's defense, but

calls for the names of libellant 's witnesses and evi-

dence in support of the libel herein, and is an at-

tempt on the part of respondent to find out in

advance what libellant 's evidence will be.

VII.

Libellant excepts to the seventh interrogatory for

the reason [33] that the same does not call for

evidence in support of respondent's defense, but

calls for the names of libellant 's witnesses and the

evidence in support of its libel herein, and is an

attempt on the part of respondent to find out in

advance w^hat libellant 's evidence will be and who

its witnesses will be.

vin.
Libellant excepts to the eighth interrogatory for

the reason that the same does not call for evidence

in support of respondent's defense, but calls for

libellant 's evidence in support of its libel herein and

is an attempt on the part of respondent to find out

in advance what libellant 's evidence will be.

IX.

Libellant excepts to the ninth interrogatory for

the reason that the same calls for the names and

addresses of libellant 's witnesses, and is an attempt

on the part of respondent to find out in advance the

names of libellant 's witnesses and what its evidence

will be.

In all of which particulars the libellant insists
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that the said interrogatories are improper to be pro-

pounded to the libellant herein and that the libellant

should not be required to answer either of said in-

terrogatories, and that each and all thereof should

be stricken out.

BOOLE, MEERITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant.

Service of within exceptions this 15th day of Feby.,

1911, and receipt of a copy thereof, admitted.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent.

[Lidorsed] : Exceptions to Interrogatories. Filed

in the U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Wash-

ington. Feb. 16, 1911. R. M. Hopkins, Clerk.

[34]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Exceptions to Answer.

L
The libellant excepts to the further and separate

defense set forth in Article 7 of respondent's an-

swer herein, upon the grounds that the same does

not allege facts sufficient to constitute a defense to

the libel herein, but the same is a mere conclusion

and is impertinent, the Court having already in this

cause decided adversely to respondent's contention

in said Article.

n.

The libellant excepts to the further and separate

defense set forth in Article 8 of respondent's an-

swer herein, upon the grounds that the same does
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not allo^o facts suffiriciit to constitute a defense to

the lihel herein, but tlie same is a mere conchision

and is impertinent, tlie Court having already in

this cause decided adversely to respondent's con-

tention in said Article.

HI.

The libellant excepts to the further and separate

defense set forth in Article 9 of respondent's an-

swer herein, upon the grounds that the same does

not allec^e facts sufficient to constitute a defense to

the libel herein, but the same is a mere conclusion

and is impertinent, the Court having already in this

cause decided [35] adversely to respondent's

contention in said Article.

In which particulars the libellant insists that the

respondent's said answer is irrelevant, insufficient,

imperfect and impertinent;

WHEREFORE, the libellant excepts to and

prays that the said allegations of said answer ex-

cepted to as aforesaid may be expunged with costs.

BOGLE, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libellant.

Service of within Exceptions this 15th day of

Feby., 1911, and receipt of a copy thereof, admitted.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent.

[Indorsed] : Exceptions to Answer. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washington.

Feb. 16, 1911. R. M. Hopkins, Clerk. [36]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

Order on Exceptions to Answer and to Inter-

rogatories.

The above-entitled matter having been duly sub-

mitted to the Court upon the exceptions of the said

libellant to paragraphs 7, 8 and 9 of the answer of

respondent herein, and upon the exceptions of said

libellant to the interrogatories heretofore pro-

pounded and filed by the said respondent, and the

Court having duly considered the said exceptions,

and having heretofore filed its memorandum de-

cision upon the said exceptions,

NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with said

memorandum decision, IT IS HEREBY OR-

DERED that the said exceptions of said libellant

to paragraphs 7 and 9 of the said answer be and

the same are hereby sustained, and that the said

exceptions to paragraph 8 of said answer be and the

same are hereby overruled.

IT IS FURTHER HEREBY ORDERED, AD-
JUDGED and DECREED that the said exceptions to

interrogatories numbers 3, 4 and 9 propounded by said

respondent be and the same are hereby sustained, and

that the said exceptions to interrogatory number 5^

in so far as the same calls for the production of a

copy of the report of any survey which may have

been made, be and the same is hereby sustained, but

otherwise said exceptions are overruled as to said

Interrogatory 5. [37]

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED and

DECREED that the said exceptions to interroga-
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tories, 1. 2, 6, 7 and 8 bo and the same are hereby

overruled.

The said libellant excepts to that portion of the

foresjoing order overruling its said exceptions, and

the said respondent hereby excepts to that portion

of the foregoing order sustaininc^ the said excep-

tions, which exceptions of the respective parties are

hereby allowed,

DONE in open court this 29th day of April, 1911.

GEOROE DONWORTH,
Judge.

0. K. as to forai.

BRADY & RUMMENS.
NOTE: The above order was signed in order to

carry out Memorandum Decision filed by Judge

Hanford.

GEORGE DONWORTH,
Judge.

[Indorsed] : Order on Exceptions to Answer and

to Interrogatories. Filed in the U. S. District

Court, Western Dist. of Washington. Apr. 29,

1911. R. M. Hopkins, Clerk. [38]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Order to Transmit Original Exhibits.

Now, on this 5th day of August, 1014, upon

motion of Messrs. Brady & Rummens, Edmund B.

MeClanahan and S. Hasket Derby, proctors for

respondent and appellant, and for sufficient cause

appearing, it is ordered that the Libelant's Ex-

hibits ''A," "B," "C," '^D," ''E," "El," "E2,"



44 Thames & Mersey Marine Ins. Co., Ltd.,

^'E3," ^^F,'^ *^G," ^*H," "I," ''J," "K," ^'L," and

''M," and Respondent's Exhibits 1, 2 and 3, filed

and introduced as evidence upon the trial of this

cause, be by the Clerk of this Court forwarded

to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Judicial Circuit, there to be inspected

and considered together with the transcript of the

record on appeal in this cause.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
District Judge.

[Indorsed] : Order to Transmit Original Exhibits.

Filed in the U. S. District Court, Western Dist of

Washington. August 5, 1914. Frank L. Crosby,

Clerk. Ed M. Lakin, Deputy. [39]

[Titi^ of Court and Cause.]

Direct Interrogatories to be Propounded to M. I,

Helman.

Direct interrogatories to be propounded to M. I.

Helman, at Wenatchee, Washington, a witness to

be produced, sworn and examined in a certain cause

of admiralty and maritime jurisdiction now pend-

ing in the District Court of the United States, for

the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division, wherein Pacific Creosoting Company, a

corporation, is libelant, against the Thames and

Mersey Marine Insurance Company, Ltd., respond-

ent, on behalf of said Kbelant, in accordance with

the stipulation hereto annexed:

Direct Interrogatory No. 1:

State your name, age, residence and occupation.
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Direct Interrogatory No. 2:

What was your occupation in the month of No-

vember, 1908?

Direct Interrogatory No. 3:

If your answer to Interrogatory No. 2 is that you

were the chief engineer at the plant of the Pacific

Creosoting Company, a corporation, libelant herein,

state how" long you had been in the employ of the

Pacific Creosoting Company, and how long you

remained in their employ after November, 1908.

[40]

Direct Interrogatory No. 4:

State where you were on the evening of Novem-

ber 18, 1908, at about 9:30 o'clock.

Direct Interrogatory No. 5:

State whether or not the British bark "Sard-

hana" was anchored in Eagle Harbor on November

18, 1908, and if so, state where the said ship was

anchored, and what she was engaged in doing on

said date.

Direct Interrogatory No. 6:

Did you hear a fire-alarm sounded from the

British bark "Sardhana" at about 9:30 o'clock on

said November 18, 1908?

Direct Interrogatory No. 7:

If you answer Interrogatory No. 6 in the affirma-

tive, state just where you were located when you

heard said fire-alarm.

Direct Interrogatory No. 8:

If you answer Direct Interrogatory No. 6 in the

affirmative, state, as near as you can, the distance

from the place where you were located at the time
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you heard the said fire-alarm to the place where the

said Bark was anchored on said night.

Direct Interrogatory No. 9:

If you answer Interrogatory No. 6 in the affirma-

tive, state just what you did after hearing the said

fire-alarm.

Direct Interrogatory No. 10:

State whether or not you went aboard the said

bark on the evening of November 18, 1909, after

hearing the said fire-alarm.

Direct Interrogatory No. 11:

If you answer Interrogatory No. 10 in the affirma-

tive, state how you got aboard the bark, and the

approximate time which elapsed from the time you

heard the fire-alarm until you were aboard the said

bark. [41]

Direct Interrogatory No. 12:

If in answer to Interrogatory No. 10 you state that

you went aboard the said bark, state just what evi-

dence there was of a fire aboard when you arrived,

and also state what efforts were being made to

extinguish the fire, the number of men engaged, and

the means employed in said work.

Direct Interrogatory No. 13

:

State, if you know, what portions of the ship

were burned by said fire.

Direct Interrogatory No. 14:

State whether or not any outside assistance from

other ships in Eagle Harbor was offered or used in

extinguishing the said fire.

Direct Interrogatory No. 15:

If you answer the preceding interrogatory in the



vs. Pacific Creosoting Company. 47

affirmative, state what other ships offered assist-

ance, and the approximate number of men from the

crews of said ships who assisted in putting out the

fire.

Direct Interrogatory No. 16:

If you answer Interrogatory No. 14 in the affirma-

tive, state where the other ships were anchored

with reference to the position of the **Sardhana."

BOGLE, GRAVES, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant. [42]

[Cross-interrogatories to be Propounded to M. I.

Helman.]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Cross-interrogatories to be propounded to M. I.

Helman, at Wenatchee, Washington, a witness to be

produced, sworn and examined in a certain cause of

admiralty and maritime jurisdiction now pending in

the District Court of the United States, for the

Western District of Washingion, Northern Divi-

sion, wherein Pacific Creosoting Company, a corpo-

ration, is libelant, against the Thames and Mersey

Marine Insurance Company, Ltd., respondent, on

behalf of said respondent, in accordance with the

stipulation hereto annexed:

Cross-interrogatory No. 1: If in answer to direct

interrogatory 13 you have stated that any part

of the bark ''Sardhana" was burned by said

fire, please state when it was that you first saw-

such burned portions of said ship.
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Cross-interrogatory No. 2: If in answer to direct

interrogatory 13 you have stated that any part

of said bark "Sardhana" was burned by fire,

please give your present judgment of the area

so burned, that is, if you have answered that

the bulkhead was burned, state the width of

the burned area and the height, and also if you

have answered that the ceiling and floor was

burned, state your judgment of the extent

thereof in square feet. [43]

Cross-interrogatory No. 3: If in answer to direct

interrogatory 13 you have stated that the bulk-

head door was a part of said bark burned by

said fire, please state if the entire door was

burned or, if not, just how much was burned,

and state in this connection whether the burn-

ing of the door was such as to destroy its use

as such.

Cross-interrogatory No. 4: If in answer to direct

interrogatory 13 you have named some portion

of the bark known by you personally to have

been burned by said fire, please state whether

or not you have received from anyone connected

with this case, or with this deposition, any

word or statement apprising you of any matter

or thing connected with or concerning the ex-

tent or area of the burning done by said fire,

either to the floor, ceiling, bulkhead or bulkhead

door of said bark.

Cross-interrogatory No. 5: Have you at any time

learned by word of mouth or by writing of any

kind that the bulkhead door of the "Sardhana"
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is now ill the city of Seattle? If so, please

state all that you have so learned and, if the

knowledge came to you through written com-

munication, please attach same hereto as part

of your deposition, or give your reason for an

inability to do so.

Cross-interrogatory No. 6: If in answer to direct

interrogatory 10 you have stated that you saw

smoke coming from the cabin, please state

whether you went below^ at any time during the

progress of the fire or whether you remained

on deck.

Cross-interrogatory No. 7 : Is it true that there was

a good deal of excitement on board the bark

**Sardhana" at the time of the fire'? [44]

Cross-interrogatory No. 8: If in answer to direct

interrogatory 10 you have made statements

with reference to the said fire, and the efforts

made to extinguish the same, is it not a fact

that your observations of the matters testified

to were obtained w^hile you were on the deck

of the "Sardhana" and not while you were

below'?

Cross-interrogatory No. 9: If in answer to direct

interrogatory 14 you have stated that outside

assistance from other ships was offered or used,

please state from your personal knowledge all

that you saw done by such outside assistance

in the actual extinguishment of said fire.

Cross-interrogatory No 10: If in answer to direct

inten*ogatory 11 you have stated how you got
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aboard the bark, please state who accompanied

you at that time.

BEADY & RUMMENS,
McCLANAHAN & DERBY,
Proctors for Respondent. [45]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Answers of Witness M. I. Helman to Direct and

Cross-interrogatories Hereto Attached.

M. I, Helman, a witness for libelant in the above-

entitled cause, being first duly sworn to testify the

truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth

relative to said cause, made answer to the said re-

spective Direct Interrogatories and Cross-interroga-

tories, as follows

:

Answering Direct Interrogation No. 1, witness

says: M. I. Helman; age 58; Wenatchee, Washing-

ton; Engineer City Pumping Plant.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 2, witness

says: Chief Engineer of the Pacific Creosoting Com-

pany.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 3, witness

says: About two or three years prior to 1908, and

remained until February, 1911.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 4, witness

says: I was living in one of the company cottages,

and was at home at that time.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 5, witness

says : It was. I should say it was about six hundred

feet from, and parallel with the loading dock. [46]

Unloading a cargo of creosote.
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Answeriiis: Diroet Interrogatory No. 6, witness

says: I did.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 7, witness

says: I was at home.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 8, witness

says: I think that it was about eight hundred yards,

in a direct line.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 9, witness

says: Several of us secured a rowboat, and went

aboard the "Sardhana."

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 10, witness

says: Yes.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 11, witness

says: Went up the side of the bark. I do not re-

member whether by means of a rope-ladder or

stairs. Probably one-half hour.

Answ^ering Direct Interrogatory No. 12, witness

says: When I reached the deck I saw smoke issuing

from the after-hatch. Efforts were being made to

extinguish the fire by the use of fire-extinguishers.

Also men were using buckets with rope attached to

them, hauling water over the side of the bark.

Probably twenty or twenty-five men.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 13, witness

says : It has been so long since the fire that I do not

remember.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 14, witness

says: I was told that the S. S. ^^Horlmclon^^ was

rendering assistance.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 15, witness

says : I do not know.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 16, witness
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says: I do not know.

Answering Oross-interrogatory No. 1, witness

says: I did not state that any particular part was

burned.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 2, witness

says: I do not know.

Answering C!ross-interrogatory No. 3, witness

says: For answer to this I refer to answer ^ 1 in

cross-interrogatory. [47}

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 4, witness

says: Siee answer to cross-interrogatory #1.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 5, witness

says : I have not.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 6, witness

says : I did go below during the progress of the fire.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 7, witness

says: I do not think that there was more than or-

dinary excitement on an occasion of that kind.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 8, witness

says : As stated before, I saw smoke issuing from the

after-hatch, and when I went below I saw smoke in

the cabin. I saw no other evidence of fire, and im-

mediately returned to the deck.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 9, witness

says : I have no personal knowledge of any assistance.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 10, witness

says : There was one by the name of A. O. Powell, Jr.,

and another by the name of Frank Kesce. I am not

certain whether there were any others accompanying

me or not.

M. I. HELMAN.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 12th day of

March, A. D. 1913.

[Seal] W. W. GRAY,
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Wenatchee, in said State. [48]

[Indorsed] : Filed in the U. S. District Court,

Western Dist. of Washington. Mar. 17, 1913.

Frank L. Crosby, Clerk, By E. M. L., Deputy.

[49]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Direct Interrogatories to be Propounded to Fred N.

Beal.

Direct Interrogatories to be propounded to Fred

N. Beal, at Portland, Oregon, a witness to be pro-

duced, sworn and examined in a certain cause of

admiralty and maritime jurisdiction now pending in

the District Court of the United States, for the West-

ern District of Washington, Northern Division,

wherein Pacific Creosoting Company, a corporation,

is libelant, against the Thames and Mersey Marine

Insurance Company, Ltd., respondent, on behalf of

said libelant, in accordance with the stipulation here-

to annexed

:

Direct Interrogatory No. 1

:

State your name, age, residence and occupation.

Direct Interrogatory No. 2

:

What was your occupation in the month of Novem-

ber, 1908?

Direct Interrogatory No. 3:

If your answer to Interrogatory No. 2 is that you



54 Thames & Mersey Marine Ins. Co., Ltd.,

were the storekeeper at the plant of the Pacific

Creosoting Company, a corporation, libelant herein,

state how long you had been in the employ of the

Pacific Creosoting Company, and how long you re-

mained in their employ after November, 1908.

Direct Interrogatory No. 4:

State where you were on the evening of November

18, 1908, at about 9:30 o'clock. [50]

Direct Interrogatory No. 5

:

State whether or not the British bark '^Sardhana"

was anchored in Eagle Harbor on November 18, 1908,

and if so, state where the said ship was anchored, and

what she was engaged in doing on said date.

Direct Interrogatory No. 6:

Did you hear a fire-alarm sounded from the British

bark "Sardhana" at about 9:30 o'clock P. M. on said

November 18, 1908?

Direct Interrogatory No. 7

:

If you answer Interrogatory No. 6 in the affirm-

ative, state just where you were located when you

heard said fire-alarm.

Direct Interrogatory No. 8

:

If you answer Direct Interrogatory No. 6 in the

affirmative, state, as near as you can, the distance

from the place where you were located at the time

you heard the said fire-alarm to the place where the

said bark was anchored on said night.

Direct Interrogatory No. 9

:

If you answer Interrogatory No. 6 in the affirma-

tive, state just what you did after hearing the said

fire-alarm.

Direct Interrogatory No. 10:

State whether or not you went aboard the said bark
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on the evening; of November 18, 1908, after hearing

the said fire-alarm.

Direct Interrogatory No. 11

:

If you answer Interrogatory No. 10 in the affirma-

tive, state how you got aboard the bark, and the ap-

proximate time which elapsed from the time you

heard the fire-alarm until you were aboard the said

bark.

Direct Interrogatory No. 12

:

If in answer to Interrogatory No. 10 you state that

you w^ent aboard the said bark, state just w'hat evi-

dence there was of a fire aboard when you arrived,

and also state what efforts [51] were being made

to extinguish the fire, the number of men engaged,

and the means employed in said work.

Direct Interrogatory No. 13

:

State, if you know, w^hat portions of the ship were

burned by said fire.

Direct Interrogatory No. 14

:

State whether or not any outside assistance from

other ships in Eagle Harbor was offered or used in

extinguishing the said fire.

Direct Interrogatory No. 15

:

If you answer the preceding interrogatory in the

affirmative, state what other ships offered assistance,

and the approximate number of men from the crews

of said ships who assisted in putting out the fire.

Direct Interrogatory No. 16:

If you answer Interrogatory No. 14 in the affirma-

tive, state where the other ships were anchored with

reference to the position of the "Sardhana."

BOGLE, GRAVES, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant. [52]
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[Cross-interrogatories to be Propounded to Fred N.

Beal.]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Cross-Interrogatories to be propounded to Fred N.

Beal, at Walville, Wash., a witness to be produced,

sworn and examined in a certain cause of admiralty

and maritime jurisdiction now pending in the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the Western Dis-

trict of Washington, Northern Division, wherein

Pacific Creosoting Company, a corporation, is libel-

ant, against Thames and Mersey Marine Insurance

Company, Ltd., on behalf of said respondent, in ac-

cordance with the stipulation hereto annexed

:

Cross-Interrogatory No. 1 : If in answer to direct in-

terrogatory 13 you have stated that any part of

the bark ^'Sardhana" was burned by said fire,

please state when it was that you first saw such

burned portions of said ship.

Cross-Interrogatory No. 2 : If in answer to direct in-

terrogatory 13 you have stated that any part of

said bark " Sardhana" w^as burned by fire, please

give your present judgment of the area so

burned, that is, if you have answered that the

bulkhead was burned, state the width of the

burned area and the height, and also if you have

answered that the ceiling and floor was burned,

state your judgment of the extent thereof in

square feet. [53]

Cross-Interrogatory No. 3 : If in answer to direct in-

terrogatory 13 you have stated that the bulkhead

door was a part of said bark burned by said fire,

please state if the entire door was burned, or, if
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not, just how much was burnod, and state in this

connection whether the burning of the door was

such as to destroy its use as such.

Cross-Interrogatory No. 4 : If in answer to direct in-

terrogatory 13 you have named some portion of

the bark known by you personally to have been

burned by said fire, please state whether or not

you have received from any one connected with

this case, or with this deposition, any word or

statement apprising you of any matter or thing

connected with or concerning the extent or area

of the burning done by said fire, cither to the

floor, ceiling, bulkhead or bulkhead door of said

bark.

Cross-Interrogatory No. 5: Have you at any time

learned by word of mouth of any kind that the

bulkhead door of the "Sardhana" is now in the

city of Seattle ? If so, please state all that you

have so learned and, if the knowledge came to

you through written communication, please at-

tach same hereto as part of your deposition, or

give your reason for an inability to do so.

Cross-Interrogatory No. 6 : If in answer to direct in-

terrogatory 10 you have stated that you saw

smoke coming from the cabin, please state

whether you went below at any time during the

progress of the fire or whether you remained on

deck.

Cross-Interrogatory No. 7 : Is it true that there was a

good deal of excitement on board the bark

"Sardhana" at the time of the fire?
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Cross-Interrogatory No. 8: If in answer to direct

interrogatory 10 you have made statements with

reference to the said fire, and the efforts made to

extinguish the same, is it not a fact [54] that

your observations of the matters testified to were

obtained while you were on the deck of the
'

' Sardhana, '

' and not while you were below ?

Cross-Interrogatory No. 9 : If in answer to direct in-

terrogatory 14 you have stated that outside as-

sistance from other ships was offered or used,

please state from your personal knowledge all

that you saw done by such outside assistance in

the actual extinguishment of said fire.

Cross-Interrogatory No. 10: If in answer to direct

interrogatory 11 you have stated how you got

aboard the bark, please state who accompanied

you at that time.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
McCLANAHAN & DERBY,

Proctors for Respondent. [55]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Answers of Witness Fred N. Beal, to Direct and

Cross Interrogatories Hereto Attached.

Fred N. Beal, a witness for libelant in the above-

entitled cause, being first duly sworn to testify the

truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth

relative to said cause, made answer to the said re-

spective Direct Interrogatories and Cross-interroga-

tories, as follows

:

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 1, witness
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says: My name is Fred N. Beal ; age 35; a resident

of Walville, Washington, and Storekeeper by occu-

pation.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 2, witness

says: I was Storekeeper at the plant of the Pacific

Creosoting Company.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 3, witness

says: In November, 1908, I had been in the em})loy

of the Pacific Creosoting Company about two years,

and I remained with them two years and one month

after that date.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 4, witness

says : I was at the residence of M. I. Helman, Chief

Engineer.

Answ^ering Direct Interrogatory No. 5, witness

says : She was ready to discharge cargo, but had not

started to do so, in Eagle Harbor, and was lying

about one hundred yards off the wharf. [56]

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 6, witness

says: Yes.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 7, witness

says : I was at the residence of M. I. Helman.

Answ^ering Direct Interrogatory No. 8, witness

saj's: On a direct line I was about four hundred

yards from where the bark was anchored.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 9, wdtness

says: I helped collect the fire-entinguishers from

several places about the plant, placed them in a row-

boat and proceeded to the vessel.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 10, witness

says: Yes.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 11, witness
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says : We climbed over the side of the bark. It was

about ten or twelve minutes after I heard the fire-

alarm until I reached the vessel.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 12, witness

says : When I went aboard the boat there was a good

deal of smoke, and several men with buckets were

carrying water from the sides.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 13, witness

says : The bulkhead between the cabin and after-hold

was burned by the fire.

Answering Direct Interrogatory No. 14, witness

says : Not to my knowledge.

Direct Interrogatories No. 15 and No. 16 witness

is unable to answer. [57]

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 1, witness

says : Immediately after the fire was extinguished.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 2, witness

says: Owing to the amount of smoke that was still

in the vessel it is impossible for me to say as to the

area burned.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 3, witness

says : I don 't know the extent of damage.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 4, witness

says: I have never had any communication with

anyone connected with this case regarding said fire.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 5, witness

says: No.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 6, witness

says : I went below.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 7, witness

says: There was naturally considerable excitement

on board.
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Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 8, witness

says: No.

Answering Cross-interrogatory No. 10, witness

says: There were several other employees of the

Pacific Creosoting Company with me when I went

aboard, but cannot remember who they were.

FRED N. BEAL.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 10th day

of March, 1913.

CLAUDE L. CAVERLEY,
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Walville. [58]

[Indorsed] : Filed in the U. S. District Court,

Western Dist. of Washington. Mar. 17, 1913.

Frank L. Crosby, Clerk. By E. M. L., Deputy.

[60]

[Deposition of F. D. Beal.]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

BE IT REMEMBERED that at this time, to wit,

February 22, 1913, pursuant to the stipulation here-

unto attached and made a part hereof, the interested

parties to the foregoing case met at room 903 Yeon

Building, in Portland, Oregon, the libelant was

represented by L. Bogle, Esq., proctor, and the re-

spondent was represented by E. B. McClanahan,

Esq., proctor. The witness, Mr. F. D. BEAL, being

present, was sworn by me to tell the truth, the whole

truth and nothing but the truth, thereupon was

examined and testified as follows

:
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Direct Interrogatories by Mr. BOGLE

.

Q. State your name, residence and occupation.

A. F. D. Beal ; residence, Portland, Oregon ; occu-

pation, manager of tlie St. Helens Creosoting Com-

pany.

Q. How long have you been the manager of that

company? A. One year. [61]

Q. What was your business prior to that time ?

A. For one year prior to that I was consulting

engineer, and prior to that I was superintendent for

the Pacific Creosoting Company for a little over four

years.

Q. How long have you been in the creosoting busi-

ness 1 A. For 24 years.

Q. Were you in the employ of the Pacific Creosot-

ing Company in November, 1908? A. I was.

Q. Do you remember the British bark '*Sard-

hana," being anchored in Eagle Harbor, Washing-

ton, in November, 1908? A. I do.

Q. The plant of the Pacific Creosoting Company

is located at Eagle Harbor ? A. It is.

Q. The said bark was engaged at that time in un-

loading creosote in drums? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the incident of the fire

aboard that bark on or about November 18, 1908 ?

A. Yes.

Q. What directed your attention to that fire ?

A. The sounding of the alarm of fire aboard the

"Sardhana."

Q. Where were you at the time you heard this

alarm ?
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A. I was ill the house of Chief Engineer M. S.

Helhnan.

Q. What did you do on hearing this alarm sound-

ing?

A. I immediately went to the works, secured fire-

extinguishers and placed them in a boat and went

aboard the vessel wath the fire-extinguishers. [62]

Q. About what length of time elapsed from the

time you heard the fire-alarm until you w^re aboard

the British bark "Sardhana" while you were en-

gaged in getting the fire-extinguishers and going

aboard? A. Ten to 20 minutes.

Q. Did you see any evidence of fire aboard the

**Sardhana" when you arrived aboard? A. I did.

Q. State what you saw in the way of evidence of

tire.

A. On first going aboard I was told the fire w^as

aft underneath the cabin deck. I went right back

into the place indicated and saw the cabin was full

of smoke which was coming out of the little hatchway

of the dining-room of the cabin which had been

opened, the smoke was coming from the lazaret or

storeroom below.

Q. Did you have any fire-extinguishers with you?

A. I did.

Q. How^ many men went aboard with you?

A. From six to ten. Mr. Douglas and Fred Beal

and myself collected the men around the plant and

gathered up the fire-extinguishers.

Q. Do you remember how many fire-extinguishers

you had with you ?
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A. We must have had eight to ten. We grabbed

everything in sight. We had them distributed

around the plant and we took every one in sight.

Q. What were the crew of the ''Sardhana" doing

when you got aboard ?

A. They were carrying water down in there, pass-

ing it down [63] from hand to hand.

Q. About how many men were engaged in that

work?

A. I should judge we had eight to ten men and he

had all his own crew ; they were strung out from the

cabin out to the rail dipping the water over the side

and passing it in in buckets.

Q. You immediately went below to the scene of the

fire'? A. I did.

Q. Just what evidences were there of a fire at the

time you got below ?

A. The fire was still burning on. this bulkhead. It

had been partly extinguished but there was some fire

there still.

Q. Were the fire-extinguishers used in extin-

guishing the fire % A. They were.

Q. About how long after your arrival did it take

to put the fire out %

A. At the time it was entirely out I should judge

it was about 30 minutes from the time I arrived on

board.

Q. How many men were below in the immediate

vicinity of the fire engaged in trying to extinguish it %

A. I should judge about four men.

Q. What were they doing when you arrived?
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A. Some of them were pouriug water on and

others were pulling out the dunnage, clearing it out

of the way to get the fire extinguished.

Q. After your arrival did you assist in putting out

the fire? A. I did.

Q. Were any of the other men from the creosoting

company [64] below with you assisting in putting

out the firef A. Yes.

Q. You and other men from the creosoting com-

pany were using fire-extinguishers, were you %

A. Yes.

Q. After your arrival did the crew of the "Sard-

hana" use any more water in trying to put out the

fire?

A. My recollection is that they did not. They may
have passed down a few^ buckets but I believe we

completed putting out the fire with the extinguishers.

Q. Approximately how many buckets of water

were used in putting out that fire before the fire-

extinguishers were used, if you know ?

A. I don't know.

Q. State if you know how many buckets of water

were used after you got there.

A. Approximately from six to ten.

Q. After your arrival ?

A. Yes, the use of the buckets was discontinued

after we arrived with the extinguishers.

Q. Mr. Beal, was there any other outside assist-

ance offered and used in extinguishing this fire out-

side of the employees of the creosoting company ?

A. Yes, some of the crew of the steamer
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''Hornelen" came aboard and were assisting.

Q. Did any of the crew of the ''Jupiter" come

aboard to your knowledge ?

A. No, I could not say to my knowledge that they

did or did not. They might have been there ; I don't

remember. [65]

Q. Did you on that night see the extent of the fire

and the amount of damage, that is, the portions

burned of the door and the bulkhead ?

A. As to seeing the extent of the damage that

night, I did not on account of it being dark and con-

gested down there.

Q. Did you afterwards make an examination of

the portions burned I A. Yes.

Q. State what portions of the ship were burned.

A. The portion that was burned was that bulk-

head.

Q. Was the door in the bulkhead burned to any

extent?

A. The grating door was burned to a slight extent.

Q. To what extent was the bulkhead below outside

of the portion of the door that was burned ?

A. I don't know that I could say positively now;

it has been so long ago, just to what extent the bulk-

head was burned. It was burned quite a little bit

and was spread out from the door; just to what ex-

tent along there I am unable to say at the present

tfme.

Q. Do you know or remember now whether or not

any of the dunnage was burned or scorched?

A. Yes, it was.
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Q. Do you remember whether any portion of the

ceiling was burned or smoked, and blistered?

A. It was smoked and blistered, but I can't say

now if the ceiling was burned.

Q. Do you remember any portion of the ceiling

was scorched?

A. I cannot remember how much of the ceiling was

burned.

Q. That is, you don't remember if it was actually

on fire? [66] A. No.

Q. Did you see it was damaged to any extent?

A. No, I should say the ceiling was not damaged

to any extent.

Q. Beyond being blistered ?

A. Beyond being blistered and smoked up.

Q. Mr. Beal, do you know^ at what point, or do

you know the fire point or temperature at which

creosote is inflammable?

A. That depends; anywhere from 700 to 900 de-

grees Fahrenheit, depending on the creosote.

Q. Was this bulkhead which you have testified was

burned to some extent a permanent part of the ship ?

A. It was.

Q. The door which you said was burned was built

in the bulkhead ? A. Yes.

Q. Did the fire-extinguishers assist to any great

extent in putting out this fire ? A. They did.

Q. In your opinion, Mr. Beal, would the fire have

been a larger fire and done greater damage if the

fire-extinguishers had not been furnished and they

had depended absolutely on the use of water in put-
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ting out the fire ?

Objected to by counsel for respondent as imma-

terial.

A. Yes, I think the probabilities are the fire would

have been of much greater extent had the fire-extin-

guishers not been used. [67]

Q. Do you remember the incident of a lighter

loaded with creosote in drums capsizing in the

harbor? A. I do.

Q. Do you remember at this time approximately

the number of drums on that lighter or scow ?

A. No, I don't. I should judge from my recollec-

tion that there were from 150 to 200 drums. My
recollection is it was only partially loaded.

Q. Do you remember the condition of the weather

upon the night this scow capsized 1

A. Yes, my recollection is it was a clear night.

Q. I mean as to the weather on the night the scow

capsized . A. It was not raining.

Q. I refer to the state of the wind.

A. Practically no wind that night.

Q Is your recollection of that very clear ?

A. Yes.

Q. I will hand you this paper and ask you if that

is your affidavit. A. Yes.

Q. I will ask you to examine that paper and say if

that will refresh your recollection of the incident.

A. Oh, you refer to the weather the night the scow

capsized ?

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, there was a gale that night. I thought
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you referred to the night of the fire.

Q. No, the night the scow capsized.

A. There was a gale that night. [68]

Q. The statement which I have handed to you was

made by you at about what date?

A. About December 2d, 1908.

Q. That was very shortly after the incident of the

scow capsizing?

A. Yes, a week or ten days. The scow capsized on

November 21st and this was on December 2d.

Q. Your recollection of the facts would be much

clearer at that time than at the present date ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you make any examination of the scow

subsequent to the time she was capsized ?

A. Not a critical examination, other than it was

customary in getting scows for that work to look

them over as to condition to see whether they were

suitable for the purpose.

Q. Do you remember at this time whether any re-

pairs were made to that scow ?

A. I have no recollection of any repairs having

been made to the scow.

Q. Who was the owner of the scow, or did it belong

to your own company ? A. No.

Q. Did it belong to the stevedores ?

A. No, it belonged to one of those small companies

in Seattle; it was not Drummond's; it was one of the

small independent companies out there. I did know

the name of the company at that time but have for-

gotten it now.
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Q. Do you remember how this scow was moored to

the^'Sardhana"?

A. It was tied with lines alongside the vessel.

[69]

Q. Was the side of the scow flush up to the side of

the vessel ? A. Yes, right alongside the vessel.

Q. Do you remember the direction of the wind on

that night ?

A. My recollection is it was a southeast wind.

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge what

caused the scow to capsize ?

A. Yes, I know what caused it to capsize. The

real cause of the scow capsizing, it got water in it and

the water ran to one side of the scow, putting it on

an uneven keel and the weight carried it over.

Q. Did she have water in her the night she cap-

sized before sending her out ?

A. No, we examined those scows every night, and

sounded them for water to see that they .were on an

even keel.

Q. Did you sound her on this night ?

A. Yes, we did every night.

Q. Was there any water in her then ?

A. Practically none to speak of. There is always

more or less water in the bottom of these scows but

there was no water that we would consider as a dan-

gerous proposition to the scow if she had remained

as she was.

Q. How did the water have anything to do with

her sinking ?
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A. Additional water got into the scow during the

niji^ht.

Q. How did that water get in?

A. Supposedly on account of the storm.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I don't care for supposi-

tions.

A. Well, this has to be more of a supposition than

anything else because I could not swear to that, that

water got into [70] her on account of the wind,

possibly because of the rolling of the scow but of

course that is my supposition.

Proctor for respondent moves to strike out the

supposition of the witness.

Q. As' a matter of fact, your entire statement as to

water having gotten into her at all is a supposition ?

A. That is true.

Mr. BOGLE.—I ask that all that testimony be

stricken out.

A. We judged that from the condition of the scow

and the amount of water that was in her.

Q. You have no personal knowledge of whether or

not that was what caused her to sink ?

A. No, not personal knowledge.

Q. Was not the scow afterwards examined and

surveyed by Mr. Frank Walker, marine surveyor?

A. I would not say positively. My recollection is

it was. Whether he came there and made the exami-

nation of that scow I would not say positively at this

time.

Q. I hand you a paper with a letter I on it, being

respondent's one in this case, and ask you what that

is.
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A. That is a statement covering the cargo of the

''Sardhana."

Q. Is that your signature ? A. It is.

Q. I wish you would explain if you now remember

how that statement was compiled.

A. These figures were taken from an examination

and inspection of the drums at the time of being dis-

charged from the '^Sardhana," immediately on com-

pletion of the cargo, or soon thereafter.

Q. Does that statement correctly show the number

of drums [71] discharged in good condition and

the number of drums damaged, and the number of

drums which were empty ? A. It does.

Q. I hand you this paper, being Respondent 's Ex-

hibit Two, and ask you if you have any knowledge of

that exhibit.

A. I can't say that I have of that particular paper.

These figures were evidently—they correspond with

those figures, it is evidently a copy taken from that.

I remember we gave Mr. Walker a statement, and

from my recollection I should judge that is their

copy of the original we gave him. I won't say posi-

tively that was the statement I handed him.

(Q. Statement of what?

A. Statement of the damaged fronts on the "Sard-

hana. '

'

Q. The statement, Respondent's Exhibit Two, re-

fers to gallons and not drums % A. Yes.

Q. Is that a statement of the contents of the dam-

aged drums?

A. So far as the number of drums concerned, yes.
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As to tlie number of p^allons I could not say from the

data I have at the present time that that is.

Q. Where would that information be secured—in

other words, where would the measurement of the

number of gallons be made ?

A. They would be made at the Pacific Creosoting

Company plant, at Eagle Harbor.

Q. You were the superintendent of that plant at

that time, were you? A. I was.

Q. Would these measurements be made under

your direction? [72] A. Yes.

IQ. Do you remember whether Mr. Frank Walker

made a survey of the damaged cargo, drums and

creosote lost ex the "Sardhana"?

A. He made a survey of the condition of the

drums. The statement that he made in regard to

the number of gallons I think was taken from our

records. I don't think he personally measured the

oil that came out of these particular drums.

Q. What is the usual method of measuring the oil

in damaged di*ums to ascertain the amount in the

drums and to get at the amount which was missing ?

A. The oil was measured in square tanks into

which these particular drums were dumped.

Q. Do you know whether or not that was done in

this instant? A. It was.

Q. That would be the only way you could ascertain

the number of gallons that were missing from those

drums? A. Yes.

Q. At this time you don't remember the exact

figures, do you?
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A. No. There is one item there of 171 drums,

amounting to about 8,458 gallons that I can locate in

my records covering that. The other two drums

were separated out from other figures in some way.

Q. Do you swear positively that the first item on

Respondent's Exhibit Two was correct and corres-

ponds with your figures?

A. Yes, that it corresponds with my original fig-

ures as made.

Q. Is there any other source from which other

items could be obtained, except from your figures'?

A. Yes, that should be obtained from copies and

from records [73] and reports in the Pacific

Creosoting Company's office.

Q. They were compiled from your figures?

A. Yes.

Q. The only way that could be obtained was from

that original measurement made under your direc-

tion? A. Yes.

Q. You furnished Mr. Walker with copies of your

reports, didn't you?

A. Yes, I ibelieve this is a copy of the record we

furnished him.

Q. You are now referring to Respondent 's Exhibit

Two?

A. Yes, that is my recollection that this is a copy

of the report given him, and is compiled or was com-

piled from our record and figures.

Q. Do you know how many gallons of creosote

were taken out of the hold of the "Sardhana," that

is, loose gallons?
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A. From my records I am able to locate a little

over 4,000 gallons, about 4,200; whether there are

more that came from the "Sardhana," I can't just

now state. There are some other notations there,

but it is not stated specifically.

Q. Can you find a record of any more than 4,200

gallons having been taken out of the hold ?

A. All that I have an exact record of is the 4,200

gallons.

Q. The book to which you are referring, is that

your original record made by you, or by someone of

your clerks under your direction ?

A. It was made by my inspector under my super-

vision.

Q. Were the entries made by you? [74]

A. No, the entries w^ere made by my inspector.

Q. Who Avas your inspector at that time ^

A. A. O. Powell, Jr.

Q. Have you any independent recollection at this

time of the approximate number of gallons of creo-

sote lost in this shipment •? A. No, I have not.

Cross-examination by Mr. McCLANAHAN.
'Q. Was any meter used in the measurement of the

creosote from the damaged drums? A. No.

Q. It was simply dumped or poured from the

drums into a receptacle known to contain so many

gallons and measured in that way? A. Yes.

Q. And this statement contained on Respondent's

Exhibit Two is the statement of the creosote so

dumped from the partially damaged or partially

emptied drums and measured in this receptacle ?
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A. Yes.

Q. Referring to Respondent's Exhibit One, what

did you mean by this expression therein: "As to the

quantity of oil received in this cargo we can't even

hazard a guess as it is practically impossible to give

anything within reach of what she brought."

A. That would be as to the contents of the drums,

and that was before the time the drums were dumped

and therefore it would have been impossible at the

time of making that statement to make a statement

other than as to the condition of the drums before

being dumped. We had no knowledge of the amount

of oil contained [75] in the drums until after

dumping them and measuring the contents in this

tank after they were dumped.

iQ. When were these damaged drimas dumped?

A. Approximately some time between the latter

part of December and along up to the first of March.

This statement was made on March 8th. We have

records of dumping there on the "Sardhana" from

December 1st—prior to December 1st. I have a

record of 24,572 along the latter part of November

and up until March.

iQ. What date in March?

A. I should judge from this up to the first of

March.

Q. From the latter part of November up to the

first of March?

A. Here is 197 from the '^Sardhana" on March

5th. It extended along into March. That is the

last I have any record of here, March 5th. That is



vs. Pacific Creosoting Company. TJ

(Deposition of F. D. Beal.)

the only thing I have to show the dumping of the

damaged drums and March 5th is the last.

Q. You have a record, then, of the measuring of

the creosote in the damaged drimis extending from

the latter part of November to the 5th of March?

A. No, I have notations of the dumping from the

damaged drums from the latter part of November

to March.

Q. Does this notation or the notations you have

enable you to testify that during that period at dif-

ferent intervals the drums were dumped and meas-

ured?

A. Not as they stand now. The only thing I have

to go by is this statement on the number of drums

here corresponding with this, this being made March

8th. I would testify these drums were dumped prior

to March 8th or we would not have been able to make

up that statement. [76]

Q. You are referring to Respondent's Exhibit

One?

A. Yes. This corresponds to Respondent's Ex-

hibit Two and this was made March 8th.

,Q. I don't quite follow you. You mean you have

nothing to enable you to testify when these drums

were measured other than Respondent's Exhibit

Two?
A. That is all I could possibly swear to.

Q. You would not want to say that the drums were

measured out much before March 8, 1909 ?

A. No, not positively, I could not state that.

Q. Where were these drums during all this period,
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from the date of their discharge up to March 8, 1909?

A. They were on the ground near our dumping
plant at Eagle Harbor in the yards.

Q. Do you know why they were not measured

sooner than that?

A. My recollection was that our storage capacity

in the tanks was pretty well taken and we only

dumped the drums as we had room in the tanks for

them.

Q. That refers to full drums ; did you dump them

at any time and measure them?

A. Yes, the drums received were dumped and

measured.

jQ. Do you remember when you measured the full

drums ?

A. My notations here on the figures extend from

that time over into May, 1908—May 13th, 1909, is the

last one I have.

Q. Have you any means of ascertaining the

amount of creosote from the full drums received by

youoff the"Sardhana"?

A. No. Those records would be with the Pacific

Creosoting Company. I have none here. [77]

Q. Were those full drums measured in the same

way that the creosote in the partially damaged drums

were measured ? A. Yes.

Q. No meter was used? A. No.

Q. Have you a meter there for the purpose of

measuring creosote?

A. We did not at the time I was there.

Q. Yiou were there and would know if they had
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one? A. I would have known it.

Q. Did you have any knowledge at the time of the

time that the lighter capsized?

A. No, not of my own personal knowledge. I

knew it capsized some time between six o'clock at

night and six o'clock in the morning is all.

Q. You say that the wind blowing that night was a

southeast gale? A. That is my recollection.

Q. Do you remember your little jetty or wharf

running out into the harbor—was it a dock?

A. Yes, I remember that.

Q. That would be struck on the right-hand side

facing north by this southeast gale ? A. Yes.

Q. When did you retire that night, do you remem-

ber the hour approximately?

A. No, I remember it was Saturday night, I think

it was.

'Q. How do you remember there was a wind blow-

ing that night ?

A. I remember it weakened me up during the night.

[78]

Q. Did you get up ?

A. No, I don't think I did.

Q. Did you look at the time? A. No.

Q. I presume, Mr. Beal, that your statement with

reference to the barge capsizing through filling with

w^ater was made because that would be the only

means that would capsize the barge?

Objected to by counsel for libelant because there is

no testimony in this case to that effect and nothing

to show such a fact.
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A. That would be my judgment, that would be the

only thing that could capsize the barge—her filling

with water.

Q. On the night of the fire there was a good deal

of excitement, was there not? A. Yes.

Q. Caused by the inflammability of the cargo of

the '^Sardhana"? A. Yes.

Q. How large was the lazaret that you entered

through the hold in the cabin floor?

A. It was approximately the width of the vessel

in the stern, and I should judge in length approxi-

mately 15 or 20 feet.

Q. Just room there to get down there.

A. Just down the ladder there.

Q. Did you go down a ladder or stairs?

A. Down a ladder.

Q. Were these stores piled between the ladder and

the bulkhead where the fire was? [79]

A. Not at the time I went down. They possibly

had been piled there but had been cleared away to

make room to get to the fire.

Q. Were indications such as to denote that they

had been cleared away? A. Yes.

Q. So you had a free passage ?

A. So they could carry and pass the water down;

they were using buckets of water.

Q. If these buckets were filled by means of a pump

operated on the ship did you see how they handled

the buckets after they were filled—were they passed

from man to man ?

A. Passed from man to man and down through
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this little hatchway.

Q. From man to man? A. Yes.

Q. How Ions: a distance was it from the fore part

of the ship to this cabin manhole that you entered to

go into the lazaret?

A. You mean from the bow of the ship ?

Q. Yes, to the peak.

A. Yes—I judge it was all of three-fourths of the

distance from the fire, of the entire length of the

ship.

Q. Can you approximately state what that dis-

tance was? I don't remember the distance of the

length of the ship.

A. I should approximate 125 to 150 feet. That

would be only an approximation.

Q. If that pumping was done from the fore part

of the ship, then those buckets were passed from man
to man to this hatchway ?

A. I don't recollect any pumping being done.

[80]

Q. I say if it was done .

A. If it was done
;
yes.

Q. That was rather a slow process, was it not?

A. That is my recollection, that the water was

dipped over the sides with buckets and the men were

strung along from the cabin down to the hatch.

Q. We had a witness on the stand yesterday who

said there was pumping done.

A. It might possibly have been, I won't say there

was no pumping. I don 't recollect it.
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Mr. BOGLE.—I don't think he said they were
pumping.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—His testimony would
show. He said it was pumped from the fore part of

the ship.

Q. You said you saw evidence of some of the dun-

nage having been effected by the fire ? A. Yes.

Q. That was loose dunnage which was lying on

the 'tween-decks ?

A. No, it was dunnage that was sticking out from

underneath the drums, that the drmns were piled on,

and also there were some loose down in there, that

had dropped down in there evidently.

Q. Did you examine that dunnage to see if it was

saturated with creosote or not ?

A. It would not be saturated. Some of the sur-

face of it might have had some on it, but it was not

saturated.

Q. Now, Mr. Beal, a number of witnesses have

testified to having inspected that fire. The bulkhead

door of the [81] "Sardhana" has been brought

from England and was also seen by these witnesses

that I refer to. I think there were five who testified

that the bulkhead door was all that was burned.

Mr. BOGLE.—I object to the form of the question.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I have not finished.

Mr. BOGLE.—I don't think there were five wit-

nesses.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I don't think it is fair to

object in the middle of the question. You know very

well in this proceeding I am going to finish my

question.
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Mr. BOGLE.—I want my objection to go to the

form of the question as far as you have proceeded.

Question read as follows: "Now, Mr. Beal, a num-

ber of witnesses have testified to having inspected

that fire. The bulkhead door of the 'Sardhana' has

been brought from EngUmd and was also seen by

these witnesses that I refer to. I think there were

five who testified that the bulkhead door was all that

was burned."

Q. (Continued.) Some times our memory is

effected by the judgment and memory of others. I

am simply making this statement of giving you some

idea of the memory of others and to see how dis-

tinctly your memory of that fire w^as. Are you per-

fectly clear, in the light of my statements, and if that

refreshes your memory any, and if it is refreshed,

that there was any appreciable burning of the wood-

work outside of the door itself—the door was six

feet wide, as you remember it, and was a sliding

door with slats in the top, if you remember that ?

A. I remember that the door was a kind of a

slatted grate door but as to whether it was a sliding

door or not, I don't remember. [82] My impression

now, since you spoke of it, I think it was a sliding

door. According to my recollction the fire extended

beyond the door and through a portion of the bulk-

head. A lot of these things come back to me now

since you have brought them up. From my recollec-

tion I would state the bulkhead was burned as well as

the door, but to what extent in measurement besides

that I would be unable to state.
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Q. Do you remember, Mr. Beal, that the whole

bulkhead was slatted in the same way the door was

slatted?

A. My impression from recollection was it was.

I don't know either positively as to that, all the way
across the ship.

Q. If that is your impression isn't it quite likely

you may be confused as to the extent of the fire

beyond the door, the door and the bulkhead being

somewhat of the same subscription?

A. No, I don't think so. I am quite clear in my
recollection that some of these slats were burned as

well as the slats on the door, especially to the right

of the door facing the stem of the ship, that is the

forward side of the bulkhead facing the side of the

ship toward the door, and some of the slats were

burned outside of the door.

Q. Were there any indications of separate seats

of the fire? If I do not make myself clear tell me
and I will try to do so. A. No.

Q. The fire seemed to have been located in one

place and from that spread?

A. From what I saw of it I considered the fire

started in one place. It was narrowing down from

that bulkhead going along here, as I recollect it, the

door coming in here somewhere. [83]

Q. Will you please draw a sketch of the way you

remember it and we will introduce that sketch in

evidence.

The witness makes a sketch which he uses with

his answer.
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A. The door was nearer one side of the ship than

it was to the other. From what I recollect the seat

of the fire seemed to be along in this position some-

where. The fire seemed to crawl up here and to

spread both ways from the seat of the fire, extending

across the door in this way and extending somewhat

to the right of the door from this point as it came

up. The portion on my sketch marked X is the lo-

cation of the door (X door). A, B, C and D w^ould

represent the 'tw^een-deck. F would represent the

slatted bulkhead.

Q. Will you on that place the position of the seat

of the fire as you remember it and your recollection

of how^ it spread .

A. The X in a circle represents the seat of the

fire, as near as I can recollect it.

Q. Will you please place from the X in a circle

something to indicate your best recollection of how
the fire spread? Make it wdth dotted lines.

A. I don't recollect how it went up. This is my
recollection as near as I can place it now\ It spread

from the seat and seemed to widen out as it came up.

Q. You have no recollection of how high it went?

A. On the door itself—my remembrance of it is

that the door itself as well as some of this along in

here was burned.

Q. You mean the door itself was, from your recol-

lection, [84] burned up to this point?

A. That will show within ten to twelve inches of

the top.

Q. Don't you remember, Mr. Beal, that the door
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was of the same construction of the bulkhead?

A. Yes.

Q. So that on your diagram here when you left out

the slat construction seemingly that was done sim-

ply to indicate in the diagram the place where the

door was located? A. Yes.

Q. I will ask you to sign your name to that and the

same will be introduced in evidence.

The same sketch was signed by the witness and

offered in evidence and marked "Beal's Exhibit

One, J. K. S. Feb. 22, 1913. F. D. Beal," and the

same is returned herewith, and made a part hereof.

Q. Did you actually see any water thrown on the

fire? A. Yes.

Q. Then they had gone from the lazaret on to the

'tween-decks and were fighting the fire from that

side.

A. No, this lazaret, you might say, was in the

'tween-decks; it was a continuation of the 'tween-

decks back in the cabin floor.

Q. Had the}^ passed through the door?

A. Yes, they had to pass through the door; they

came down to the little hatchway, and passed

through here, through the door to the front of the

bulkhead itself, through the door.

Q. And next beyond the bulkhead the drums were

stored? A. Yes.

Q. And there is a little alley-way between the

bulkhead and the drums ?

A. Yes, a small space, just space enough so that a

man could [85] barely crowd along here between
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the bulkhead and next to the drums.

Q. And they had freed that place of the fire before

you got there? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember who was in that little space

fighting the fire when you got there with your ex-

tinguishers? A. The captain was there.

Q. Was he not in charge of the operations?

A. Yes, he was directing the operations.

Q. Did he give way to you when you came in, Mr.

Beal, or did the water still continue to flow?

A. My recollection is that as soon as we got down

there with the extinguishers we put out the fire with

the extinguishers and the use of the water w^as dis-

continued.

Q. What made that fire spread, in your opinion?

It required a number of buckets of water and fire-

extinguishers to extinguish it; was it because of the

creosote?

A. Well, to a certain extent, yes. The smoke

was very dense down in there and coming off the

creosote it was hard to get right at the seat of the

fire there on account of the smoke and the limited

amount of space they had for working in there. It

was a kind of a smoldering fire and on account of the

thick smoke it was kind of a hard proposition to

locate very quickly the exact seat of the fire. It was

a question of kind of working to it as you w^ent along.

Q- It w'as dark smoke, was it not?

A. It was pitch dark dow^n in there and smoky.

[86]

Q. What was your purpose in visiting the seat of
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the fire after extinguishing it—I understand you vis-

ited it two or three days afterwards? A. Yes.

Q. What was the object of doing that?

A. As far as I was personally concerned, it was

more out of curiosity than anything else, to see the

exact location, and how it looked in there in day-

light. More or less curious as to how a fire could

get started down in a place of that kind. I think

that was it more than anything else that prompted

me to go down there and examine it.

Q. Did you have anything to do with furnishing

the facts as to the extent of this fire to your com-

pany?

A. Nothing further than what is embodied in my
statement as sworn to here before the notary public.

Q. What statement is that, please? Please pro-

duce it.

A paper is handed the witness by his counsel, Mr.

Bogle.

A. That is the only recollection I have of furnish-

ing any statement, that statement there is the only

one I can recall, outside of various conversations,

but as to just what they were I could not say now.

Q. In this case, the respondent has asked a num-

ber of interrogatories of the libelant; the libelant

says the bulkhead was burned, together with other

parts of the ship, and the respondent asked the

libelant what other parts of the ship were burned,

and the libelant said the floor and ceiling. Did you

furnish them with any such information as that?
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A. I have no recollection of furnishing that infor-

mation. [87]

Q. We asked them if any repairs were made to the

ship and they said, yes, the bulkhead was replaced

by a new one; did you furnish that information?

A. No, I don't remember of furnishing that in-

fonnation.

Q. We asked them how much of the bulkhead was

burned and they said about two-thirds of it; did you

furnish that information?

A. I have no recollection of doing so.

Q. You have no recollection?

Mr. BOOLE.—The witness has testified that all

the information he furnished is contained in a state-

ment which he has produced and we are willing to

offer the statement in evidence.

Q. Did you furnish the Creosoting Company with

any facts with reference to the capsizing of the

lighter, Mr. Beal?

A. Yes, my recollection is that I did.

Q. What were those facts?

A. They are embodied in that statement I re-

ferred to a moment ago.

Q. Have you another statement?

A. This one. (Witness exhibits the statement to

counsel.)

Redirect Examination by Mr. BOGLE.
Q. What is the construction of this creosoting

tank—how is it constructed so that you can measure

creosote if there is no meter?

A. It was a square tank of which we knew the
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dimensions and the cubical contents were figured out

so we could measure the creosote gallons by the

depth of oil in the tank. [88]

Q. How could you tell, Mr. Beal, from the height

of oil in this tank the depth it was in the tank f

A. We usually, or in fact always, measured it by

taking a stick and measuring the distance down from

the top.

Q. How did you make the measurements'?

A. Ordinarily by placing down a stick at the side

of the tank from this given point into the oil and

measuring the distance from this given point to the

surface of the oil.

Q. And in that way you could calculate the num-

ber of gallons of oil in the tank?

A. Yes, to the dot.

Q. You testified there was no meter on this tank;

you meant no regular constructed mechanical device

which would tell you the number of gallons by plac-

ing it in the oil or pouring the oil through it?

A. That is what I meant.

Q. The tank was so constructed that you could

calculate the number of gallons just as accurately by

your method? A. Yes.

Q. That is what you meant when you said there

was no meter?

A. Yes. My inception of a meter is a mechanical

device used to pour the oil through and which regis-

ters the amount of oil which goes through it.

Q. You had no such device as that?

A. No, we had none.
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Q. Do your records there show the dates this

creosote from the damaged drums were dumped and

measured? A. No. [89]

Q. You testified they were dumped somewhere

from the latter part of November to the 8th of

March; do you know upon what dates during that

period they were dumped?

A. No, I could not tell from this record. These

notations just show that they were dumped between

those dates.

Q. Where were these damaged drums stored from

the time they were taken off the ship until they were

dumped in the tank and measured?

A. In the yards near the dumping tank of the

creosoting plant.

Q. Were these drums examined by yourself or un-

der your direction to see whether they were leaking

or not?

A. They were examined by me personally.

Q. How^ were they placed then?

A. They were laying down on small bearing cases

we had on the ground for rolling them on.

Q. Do you know whether any appreciable amount

of creosote leaked from these drums from the time

they were taken from the ship until dumped into the

tank?

A. No, the drums that we left in the yard that

were taken from the ship were not leaking; those

that were we dumped at once. The ones that were

left there were sound and not leaking.

Q. You testified in answer to one of counsel's
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questions, or rather he asked you if there was any

way for this scow to capsize if she had no water in

her. I believe you answered that was your opinion

that that was the only way she could capsize.

A. This is my judgment. [90]

Q. Mr. Beal, if this cargo of creosote drums had

shifted to one side of the barge wouldn't that make

the barge capsize?

A. That is true if they shifted to one side.

Q. If the barge collided during this gale with the

''Sardhana," causing the drums to all shift to one

side of the barge, would not that probably cause the

barge to capsize?

A. Yes, if it were possible for the drums to shift

to one side of the scow, that is true.

Q. If water got into the hold of this barge and she

listed to one side the drums would shift before she

capsized, wouldn't they?

A. In my judgment, no. I don't think it was pos-

sible for the drums to shift on the scow until the

scow was in the attitude of capsizing, then they

would shift and go over with her.

Q. In the attitude of capsizing, you mean with a

heavy list, don't you?

A. Yes, when she commenced to capsize she

would go all at once.

Q. How were these drums loaded?

A. They were laid down in the scow and well

loaded.

Q. Were they loaded in tiers? A. Yes.

Q. Were the upper tiers fastened in any way?
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A. It is my recollection that there was only one

tier, the lower tier, on the scow at the time.

Q. If the testimony of the stevedores with refer-

ence to the loadinj^ of this scow was that there were

two tiers of drums, with one above the other, would

it not be possible for this upper tier to shift in heavy

weather? A. Not in my judgment. [91]

Q. What would prevent the upper tier from shift-

ing if the barge collided with a scow or something

else during the night during a heavy swell ?

A. The bands on the drums would prevent them

from sliding. The whole thing would have to move

at once.

Q. If she bumped very severely and took a severe

list would the drums shift ?

A. No, I don't think that possible; I don't think

it possible for these drums to shift only on the cap-

sizing of the scow.

Q. Only on the capsizing of the scow?

A. No, I don't think it possible.

Q. What do you base your notion on—your opin-

ion on—^have you had any experience in loading,

such as would enable you to give such an opinion on

that subject?

A. Yes, I have had a great deal of experience in

loading and handling scows.

Q. If this scow was afterwards surveyed by a com-

petent surveyor and it was found she was perfectly

tight and not leaking or making any water, how could

you say she could possibly capsize ?

Objected to by counsel for respondent unless it be
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stated to the witness the character of the survey that

was made.

Question read.

A. I don't believe it would be possible for that

scow to capsize unless she did have water in her.

Q. Is it your opinion the water came from the top

of the scow in order to get into the scow %

A. Yes, that is my opinion.

Q. With your dotted lines you have indicated on

your Exhibit [92] One the lines or direction of

the fire ?

A. As near as my recollection goes it was some-

thing of that character.

Q. And then is it your testimony the fire extended

on the right as indicated by the dotted line to the

right of this exhibit across the bulkhead ?

A. Yes, as far as my recollection goes now. I

have no recollection of the fire extending to the left

of the door, and my recollection is it did extend some

little distance to the right of the bulkhead.

Q. Is that your recollection, the place I am indi-

cating here ?

A. No, just in there, where it is dotted.

Q. Here you don't recollect?

A. I have no recollection of that. The fire at the

bottom was confined to one point. It was very

smoky and very dark down there, and the smoke

spread as it arose, and the fire also had a tendency

to spread and did spread as I have indicated it there

on my sketch.

Q. Mr. A. O. Powell, Jr., was your inspector ?
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A. Yes.

Q. Did you make these entries in this book from

which you have been testifying ? A.I did.

Excused.

IT WAS STIPULATED that the witness need

not sign his deposition but that the certificate of the

notary taking the deposition would be accepted by

counsel the same as if the. witness had signed the

same.

JULIA KIRKER SAYRE, (Seal)

Notary Public. [93]
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[Indorsed]: Filed in the U. S. District Court,

Western Dist. of Washington. Mar. 17, 1913.

Frank L. Crosby, Clerk. By E. M. L., Deputy.

[95]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

[Direct Interrogatories to be Propounded to

Alexander Wallace.]

Direct interrogatories to be propounded to Alex-

ander Wallace at London, England, a witness to be

produced, sworn and examined in a certain cause of

admiralty and maritime jurisdiction now pending

in the District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern Division,

wherein Pacific Creosoting Company, a corporation,

is libelant, against Thames & Mersey Marine Insur-

ance Company, Limited, respondent, on behalf of

said respondent in accordance with the commission

hereto annexed.

1st Interrogatory : State your name, age, residence

and occupation.

2d Interrogatory: What was your occupation in

the month of November, 1908?

3d Interrogatory : If your answer to the 2d inter-

rogatory is that you were master of the British bark

"Sardhana," state how long you had been such mas-

ter and how long you remained such after November,

1908. [96]

4th Interrogatory: When were you last on board

the bark ''Sardhana" and where was she at the time?

5th Interrogatory: Where was said bark on No-
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vember 18th, 1908, and were you then on board of

said bark ?

6th Interrogatory: Did anything unusual happen

on said bark on said day and, if so, what was it %

7th Interrogatory : If your answer to the 6th inter-

rogatory is that there was a fire on board said bark

on said day, state in detail the nature and extent of

said fire, the parts of the ship damaged by it and the

nature and amount of said damage.

8th Interrogatory : State in detail the means used

and the length of time it took to extinguish said fire.

9th Interrogatory: In the work of actually extin-

guishing said fire was any outside assistance ren-

dered ?

10th Interrogatory : Was a survey held on account

of said fire ?

11th Interrogatory: Were any repairs made to

your ship on account of said fire ?

12th Interrogatory : Were any repairs made neces-

sary thereby ?

13th Interrogatory : If your answer to the 11th in-

terrogatory is that no repairs were made on account

of said fire, state, if you know, what would have been

the approximate cost of such repairs, if they had

been made.

14th Interrogatory: If you state in answer to the

7th interrogatory that the door of the wooden bulk-

head separating the lazarette from the after 'tween-

decks was damaged by said fire, state whether you

can produce said door at the present time.

15th Interrogatory : If your answer to the 14th

interrogatory is in the affirmative, please produce
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said door and have the same marked as an exhibit

of this your deposition.

16th Interrogatory: Is said door as produced by

you in exactly the same condition as it was imme-

diately after said fire? If not state what is the

difference in condition. [97]

17th Interrogatory : Did you make an extended

protest at any time after said fire ?

18th Interrogatory: If your answer to the 17th

interrogatory is in the affirmative, state when and

where said protest was made, at whose request and

under what circumstances and where the same now is.

19th Interrogatory: If said protest contains sub-

stantialy the following statement, and the same is

not in accordance with your present testimony, ex-

plain, if you can, any inconsistencies between the

two. The statement referred to is as follows:

'^After considerable trouble the fire was extin-

guished, and it was then discovered that the afore-

said bulkhead together with the door thereof (the

bulkhead was built in the vessel), and the dunnage

in the after 'tween-decks, were burnt and some of

the shij)'s stores in the lazarette were damaged by

water and chemicals."

20th Interrogatory: The Pacific Creosoting Com-
pany, libelant in this case, has been asked certain

questions in regard to the nature and extent of the

fire on board the "Sardhana," to which you have tes-

tified, and in answering one of the interrogatories

propounded to it said libelant says that the floors

and ceiling of the "Sardhana" near the bulkhead

were burnt by the said fire. Is that statement true or

false?
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21st Interrogatory: Further answering another

interrogatory propounded to it with reference to said

fire, said libelant says that two-thirds of the said

bulkhead was burnt and charred by the said fire. Is

that statement true or false %

22d Interrogatory: Further answering another

interrogatory propounded to it with reference to said

fire, said libelant says that the damage caused to the

*'Sardhana" by said fire was such as to require re-

pairs, and that the repairs were made by the ship's

[98] carpenter and consisted of removing the burnt

bulkhead and building a new one in its place. Is

that statement true or false?

23d Interrogatory: Further answering another

interrogatory propounded to it with reference to the

difficulties encountered in extinguishing said fire,

libelant says: ''That the difficulties encountered in

extinguishing the fire were that stores were piled on

one side of the bulkhead and drums of creosote,

dunnage, etc., on the other, and that the lumber was

saturated with creosote making the same very in-

flammable, and that it required hard work on the

part of the crew of the 'Sardhana' and the persons

so assisting them to extinguish the fire." Is this

statement with reference to the difficulties encount-

ered in extinguishing the said fire true or false ?

24th Interrogatory: What cargo was the ''Sard-

hana" carrying in November, 1908?

25th Interrogatory : Where was said cargo stowed

on said vessel?

26th Interrogatory: Where was said cargo being

carried to and to whom was it consigned ?
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27th IntoiTop^atory : Was said cargo, or any part

thereof, lost during the voyage to the port of Eagle

Harbor and, if so, state the details of how sueh loss

occurred and the amount of such loss.

28th Interrogatory: If in answer to the 27th in-

terrogatory you say, inter alia, that there was a leak-

age of certain creosote in drums on board said bark,

state in what part of the ship said leaJiage took

place.

29th Interrogatory: Wliat, if anything, was done

with the creosote which had leaked out of the drums'?

Give full details.

30th Interrogatory: State if you can approxi-

mately how much of said creosote which so leaked

out of the drums was lost.

31st Interrogatory: Did the Pacific Creosoting

Company have [99] anything to do with the creo-

sote that had leaked from the drums into the ship's

hold? If so, give details.

32d Interrogatory: Did you cause your ship and

cargo to be surveyed in the said month of November.

1908?

33d Interrogatory : If it should be said that as a

result of a survey, or at all, 741 drums of creosote

carried on board your ship on said voyage were

found damaged or worthless, and that 56,267 gal-

lons of creosote were found to have been lost, what

have you to say as to the truth or falsity of such

statements ?

34th Interrogatory : If your answer to the 33d In-

terrogatory is that such statements are false, please

state in detail your reason for so testifying.
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35th Interrogatory: Do you know or can you set

forth any other matter or thing which may be of

benefit or advantage to the parties at issue in this

case, or either of them, or that may be material to

the subject of this your examination or the matters

in question in this cause. If so, set forth the same
fully and at large in your answer.

McCLANAHAN & DERBY,
Proctors for Respondent. [100]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Cross-interrogatories to be Administered to Alex-

ander Wallace.

Cross-interrogatories to be administered to Alex-

ander Wallace, a witness to be produced, sworn and

examined in a certain cause of admiralty and mari-

time jurisdiction, now pending in the District Court

of the United States for the Western District of

Washington, Northern Division, wherein Pacific

Creosoting Company, a corporation, is libelant, and

Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Company, Ltd.,

is respondent, on the part and behalf of libelant in

said cause.

1. Cross-interrogatory No. 1 : Did you not make

an extended protest as master of the bark "Sard-

hana," on December 28, 1908?

2. Cross-interrogatory No. 2 : Did not George W.
Wylie, as mate of said bark "Sardhana" at that

time, and three seamen on said bark, join with you

in such protest?

3. Cross-interrogatory No. 3: Did not you and
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said Wylic and said sranion swear to such protest

at Mukiltco, State of Washington, before one Wm.
W. 01 well, a Notary Public?

4. Cross-interrogatory No. 4 : Did not such pro-

test contain true copies of entries [101] in the

log-book of said bark "Sardhana"?

5. Cross-interrogatory No. 5 : Were not such en-

tries in said log-book and such statements in said

protest, true as made ?

B. Cross-interrogatory No. 6: Did you not state

in such protest as follows:

Nov. 18th: "Stevedores continued to dis-

charge the cargo and at 5 :(X) P. M. finished for

the day. 291 further drums were discharged.

About 9 :30 P. M. smoke was discovered issuing

from the after hatch, by one of the crew, who

immediately notified the master and then gave

the alarm. This alarm was responded to by the

crews of the ship 'Jupiter,' the S. S. 'Hornelen'

and the employees of the Pacific Creosoting

Company who brought with them several chemi-

cal fire-extinguishers. The master went below

through the lazarette and saw the reflection of

the fire over the top of the bulkhead between

the after 'tween-decks and the lazarette. The

after 'tween-decks were still full of cargo.

After considerable trouble the fire was ex-

tinguished and it was then discovered that the

aforesaid bulkhead, together with the door

thereof (the bulkhead was built in the vessel)

and the dunnage in the after 'tween-decks were

burned, and some of the ship's stores in the
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lazarette were damaged by water and eheini-

cals. The origin of the fire was not discov-

ered.
'

'

7. Cross-interrogatory No. 7 : If your answers to

any of the direct interrogatories propounded to you

herein, are not in accordance with said statements

in your said protest, or in accordance with the en-

tries in said log-book, or if you now say that [102]

the statements in said protest, or any of them, are

not true, do you mean to have the Court understand

that you swore falsely in making such protest ?

8. Cross-interrogatory No. 8: Did you not tes-

tify as a witness in behalf of the Pacific Creosoting

Company, libelant herein, in a cause pending in the

above mentioned Court, in which Knohr & Burchard,

Nfl., owners of the Danish ship ''Jupiter," were

libelants, and said Pacific Creosoting Company was

respondent, being cause No. 3837 of said court,

which had reference to a shipment of creosote from

Liverpool to Eagle Harbor, on said Danish ship

"Jupiter," during the year 1908?

9. Cross-interrogatory No. 9: Were you not ex-

amined as such witness in said last mentioned cause

by one Ira A. Campbell, proctor for respondent and

cross-libelant in said last mentioned suit?

10. Cross-interrogatory No. 10: Did you not tes-

tify as such witness in said last mentioned suit on

January 18, 1909, at Seattle, Washington, in an-

swer to the following questions, as follows

:

"Q. I will hand you this document and ask

you what it is.

A. This is an extended protest.
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Q. Sworn to by you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Before whom?
A. Before the notary public at Mukilteo.

Q. Just give us his name.

A. William W. Olwell.

Q. Is that your signature attached to that?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What date did you swear to that?

A. On the 28th day of December, 1908.

Q. Does this extended protest refer to the

matters concerning the present voyage from

London to Puget Sound?

A. Yes, sir, from London to Puget Sound.

Q. Did you swear to any other extended pro-

test? A. No.

Q. I will ask you whether or not the statement

of facts contained in this protest relating to

the weather which you encountered on your voy-

age, are true. [103]

A. That is quite true.

Q. I wall ask you whether or not the statement

of facts contained in this extended protest is a

true copy of the entries in your log.

A. Quite true.

Q. You mean by quite true, entirely true?

A. Entirely true. The weather as it was re-

corded in the log-book is experienced; this is a

copy of the original log."

11. Cross-interrogator}' No. 11: Did you not

testify truthfully as such witness?

12. Cross-interrogatory No. 12: If any of your

answers to the direct interrogatories propounded to
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you by respondent herein, or your answers to any of

the cross-interrogatories propounded to you by

libelant herein, are inconsistent with your testimony

as such witness, do you now mean to have the Court

understand that you testified falsely as such witness ?

13. Cross-interrogatory No. 13: When was your

attention called for the first time, to the matter of

said fire, after you made said protest and gave your

testimony as such witness ?

14. Cross-interrogatory No. 14: How often and

when has your attention been called to the matter of

said fire since said time, and by whom, and how

often have you thought of said matter since said

time?

15. Cross-interrogatory No. 15: If you now tes-

tify differently from your said protest, or differently

from your testimony as such witness, who suggested

such change in your testimony, and when was such

suggestion made?

16. Cross-interrogatory No. 16 : Is it not true that

when said fire was discovered on the *^Sardhana"

on November 18, 1909, a fire-alarm was sounded on

said ship?

17. Cross-interrogatory No. 17 : [104] Did not

the members of the crew of the steamship "Horn-

elen" and/or the employees of the Pacific Creosoting

Company respond to such alarm?

18. Cross-interrogatory No. 18 : Is it not true that

you had only commenced to unload the ''Sardhana"

the day before the fire, as stated in said protest ? Is

it not true that stores were piled on one side of the

bulkhead which was burned, and that drums of creo-
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soto, dunnage, etc., wore piled on the other side*?

19. Cross-interro.e:atorv No. 19: Ts it not true

that the lumher and dunnage, and the lower decks

of the "Sardhana" near «aid })nlkhead, were satur-

ated with creosote ^

20. Cross-interrogatorv No. 20: Did you not also

make the following statements in said protest:

''1908.

^lay 30th: This vessel sailed from London with a

cargo of creosote in iron drums bound

for Eagle Harbor. Nothing to be

noted here occurred until

June 6th : When it was discovered that the carpen-

ter's sounding rod was very slightly

colored with creosote.

July 11th : The crew were employed placing extra

chocks amongst the cargo.

July 29th: The gale continued as before; likewise

the sea. The vessel again rolled heav-

ily and pitched badly. Later the

squalls blew with hurricane force.

The ship rolled and pitched badly in

a high confused sea and much water

was shipped on deck. Towards night

it was discovered that the cargo in the

hold had commenced to work. The

crew entered the hold from the laza-

rette and secured it as well as possible.

July 30th : The gale still continued. The ship rolled

and pitched heavily and took much

water on deck, fore and aft. The

cargo worked as before and the crew
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again entered the hold to secure it.

[105]

July 31st: The gale moderated the first part of the

day but increased again later. Much
water was shipped on deck. The cargo

worked as before and the crew entered

the hold through the ventilator hatch

and secured it as well as possible.

Aug. 1st: A fresh gale was experienced and the

ship rolled and pitched heavily in a

high beam sea. Again the cargo

worked.

Aug. 7th: The crew were employed securing the

cargo.

Aug. 25th: A hard gale was encountered accom-

panied by a heavy sea. Much water

was shipped on deck. The cargo

worked again badly.

Aug. 26th: Similar conditions were experienced.

Aug. 31st. A moderate gale was experienced. The

decks were frequently awash and the

cabin and deck houses were flooded.

The cargo worked heavily.

Sept. 1st: A moderate gale with hard squalls was

experienced. The vessel shipped large

quantities of water over all. The

cargo worked heavily.

Sept. 4th: A strong gale was experienced accom-

panied by a high sea in which the ves-

sel labored and strained badly. The

cargo worked as before. The hold

was entered through the main ven-
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tilator and the (Iriims were found to

be adrift and were rolling about in all

directions. It was impossible to se-

cure the cargo until the weather mod-

erated.

Sept. 14th : The crew were employed cutting up spare

spars and blocking off the cargo with

them.

Sept. 28th: It was noticed by the soundings in the

pump well that there was an increase

of liquid which appeared to be mostly

creosote.

Nov. 3d: Similar conditions were encountered

and the cargo again worked badly.

Nov. 17th: Stevedores commenced to discharge the

cargo and they discharged 136 drums."

21. Cross-interrogatory No. 21: Did you person-

ally have charge of the discharge of the cargo of

creosote from the "Sardana"?

22. Cross-interrogatory No. 22 : Did you person-

ally count damaged driuns of the cargo delivered to

the Pacific Creosoting Company from the ''Sar-

dana"? [106]

23. Cross-interrogatory No. 28: Did you per-

sonally measure any creosote of this cargo not in

drums, which was delivered to the Pacific Creosoting

Company ?

24. Cross-interrogatory No. 24: Did not one

Frank Walker, a marine surveyor of Seattle, Wash-

ington, survey said bark "Sardana" for said fire

loss?

25. Cross-interrogatory No. 25: Did not said
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Frank Walker also survey said bark "Sardana" and

cargo, for loss of or damage to cargo during said

voj^age %

26. Cross-interrogatory No. 26: Did not said

Frank Walker also make a survey for the loss of

cargo from the barge which was overturned in the

bay, while the ''Sardana" was being unloaded?

2i7. Cross-interrogatory No. 27: If you say that

the report of either of such surveys made by said

Frank Walker is untrue in any particular, state

whether or not you so testify of your own personal

knowledge, or from what others have told you.

28. Cross-interrogatory No. 28: Is it not a fact

that you had extremely severe weather on the said

voyage from London to Eagle Harbor %

29. Cross-interrogatory No. 29: Is it not a fact

that the cargo of drums Avorked on said voyage, and

that some of said drums were damaged?

30. Cross-interrogatory No. 30: Did you not, in

giving your testimony as a witness as above referred

to, state as follows: "A damaged drum, in my opin-

ion, would be one that was a detriment to the con-

tents." [107]

31. Cross-interrogatory No. 31 : In answering the

direct interrogatories here propounded to you, did

you not mean by "damaged drums" those which were

so damaged as to be a detriment to the contents?

32. Cross-interrogatory No. 32 : Did not some 6*f

the creosote of said cargo escape into the hold of said

vessel, because of the very severe weather encoun-

tered on the said voyage ? ,

33. Cross-interrogatory No. 33 : Was not some of
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said cargo of creosote lost because of such severe

weather ?

34. Cross-interrogatory No. 34: Was not said

bark ''Sardana," in your o})ini()n, seaworthy and

properly manned, equipped and provisioned in all

respects, when she left London on said voyage, for

the said voyage?

35. Cross-interrogatory No. 35. Was not said

cargo, in your opinion, then properly stowed for the

voyage you were then about to make %

36. Cross-interrogatory No. 36: Was not all

damage to and loss of drums and/or creosote of said

cargo, except the loss from the barge or lighter in the

bay at Eagle Harbor, due to the severe weather en-

countered on said voyage ?

37. Cross-interrogatory No. 37 : Did you not tes-

tify as a witness, as aforesaid, as follows

:

"Considerable of your cargo or some of your

cargo was damaged, was it not*?

A. Yes, there was.

jQ. Some of the cargo worked on the voyage?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was caused by stress of weather,

was it not ?

A. Yes, by stress of weather." [108]

38. Cross-interrogatory No. 38: Did not you also

testify as such witness as follows

:

''Q. And some of the time you were unable

to get down into the hold to look after the cargo

at all? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And it was during that time that the cargo

worked loose?
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A. Well, it was working loose all the time dur-

ing the bad weather ; that was the first start of it.

Q. Now, you consider your cargo stowed prop-

erly to weather any kind of ordinary weather

that you would anticipate on that voyage, didn't

you? A. Yes.

Q. The way that cargo was stowed it would

not have worked loose had you experienced ordi-

nary weather, which you do experience at that

time of year in that latitude and longitude;

would it?

A. Well, moderate weather it would have been

all right.

Q. Any weather that you Nvould have expected ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. It would have stood? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Without working loose ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You say some of it did work loose, some of

the drums were broken so that the creosote

leaked out into the hold of your vessel?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And some of the drums were dented?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. And otherwise injured? You say much

water was shipped on deck?

A. Yes, she took quite a lot of water at times.

Q. The fact is that the weather you experi-

enced in rounding the Horn on this voyage was

exceptionally severe weather, was it not?

A. Yes, it was the worst weather I ever had

coming around.

Q. And continued for an exceptionally long

time. A. Yes.
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Q. Can you tell about how long it took you

to get around the Horn from the time you first

struck the bad weather until you got around the

other side?

A. I believe it was the best part of six weeks.

Q. Can you tell what the ordinary sailing time

for a vessel like yours was to make that same

voyage ?

A. Well, we ought to have done it in about two

weeks less, any way.

Q. You ought to have made it in four weeks'?

A. Yes, we ought to."

39. Cross-interrogatory No. 39: Did not you and/

or the ship's agent at Seattle have some trouble with

the Pacific Creosoting Company, libelant in this case,

relative to the payment of freight on the *'Sard-

hana's" cargo [109]

40. Cross-interrogatory No. 40: Was not all of

said cargo in apparent good order and condition

when received on said ship ?

BOGLE, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant.

[Indorsed] : Filed in the U. S. District Court,

Western Dist. of Washington. Sep. 12, 1912. Frank

L. Crosby, Clerk. By , Deputy. [110]

[Deposition of Alexander Wallace.]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

New York, 4 October, 1911.

Deposition of ALEXANDER WALLACE, taken

under direct interrogatories and cross-interroga-
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(Deposition of Alexander Wallace.)

tories propounded to said witness by me, Adeline Ses-

sions, a notary public at the city of New York, State

of New York, pursuant to stipulation for the taking

of said deposition dated August 26, 1911, and signed

by the proctors for the respective parties in the

above-entitled suit.

The witness, ALEXANDER WALLACE, being

by me duly sworn, deposes as follows

:

To the 1st interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. Alexander Wallace; age, 35; my home address

is Elizabeth Street, Tayport, Fifeshire, Scotland.

To the 2d interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. I was master of the British bark "Sardhana."

To the 3d interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. I was master from the 9th of August, 1907, to

the 3d of May, 1911. [Ill]

To the 4th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. On the 2d of May, 1911, at Dunkirk, in France.

To the 5th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. At Eagle Harbor, Washington. I was on

board on that day.

To the 6th interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. There was a small fire broke out in the after

between-decks ; it was a piece of bagging stuff, bur-

lap, that caught fire in the between-decks.

To the 7th interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. The nature of the fire—as regards the nature

of the fire, I would say it was a very trifling affair

;

the damage to the ship was practically nothing. The

lazarette door was slightly charred and blistered, a

very small part of it. As far as I can remember,
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(Deposition of Alexander Wallace.)

there were only about two feet or 21^ feet of it from

the bottom of the door up that was blackened by the

fire and a little bit charred.

To the 8th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Tlie fire was put out in about three minutes;

not more than five minutes, anyway, by about half

a dozen buckets of water being thrown on it.

To the 9th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Absolutely none; there was an offer of outside

assistance, but it was after the fire had been extin-

guished.

To the 10th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. No. [112]

To the 11th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. No, abolutely none at all.

To the 12th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. No.

To the 13th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. The only repairs that could have been done to

the door was to give it a coat of new paint, and that

would have been done in any case; I would say that

there was no cost at all. The door would have been

painted in any case, whether it had been burned

or not.

To the 14th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I understand that the door is on board the

"Majestic," which is due to arrive here to-morrow,

and I would recognize the door if it were here; but

my vessel is in Philadelphia and I expect to sail

thence to-morrow and it will not be possible for me

to attend here to-morrow.
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(Deposition of Alexander Wallace.)

To the IStk interrogatory the witness answers:

A. This can be done if it can be arranged that the

door and I could be in the same port.

To the 16th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I can tell you one difference without seeing it,

and that is the marks that we put on it; we branded

it with the branding irons, so that we would know it,

with the ship's name on it.

To the 17th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Yes.

To the 18th interrogatory the witness answers:

[113]

A. It was made at Mulkiteo, State of Washington,

near Seattle on the 28th day of December, 1908; that

was made at the request of the Pacific Creosoting

Company, Eagle Harbor, before William W. Olwell;

the Pacific Creosoting Company asked me for the

mate 's log-book and I gave it to them, and thereafter

they presented to me the extended protest for signa-

ture. I don't know where it is now.

To the 19th interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. The trouble we had in extinguishing the fire

was to get to where the fire was, as it had to be

approached through the lazarette, and the floor

space in the lazarette was occupied with the ship's

stores, and we had to carry the buckets of water

over the top of the stores, and the difficulty experi-

enced was walking over barrels, getting over the

obstructions. The bulkhead itself was not burned;

it was the door that was burned, or charred, rather;

if you are going to distinguish the door from the
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))ulkliead T consider that the door is the bulkhead,

or part of the bulkhead; and if you are going to

mention the door and the ])nlkhead, I would say it

was only the door that was burned. I was not

responsible for the language of the extended protest

or the entries in the mate's log. The fact is that

only the door was scorched and slightly charred, in

part, and I did not see and do not see any use in dis-

tinguishing between door and bulkhead, as I con-

sider the door a part of the bulkhead.

To the 20th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I would say it was false; the floor was not

burned. [114]

To the 21st interrogatory the witness answers:

A. That is false, too.

To the 22d interrogatory the witness answers:

A. That is absolutely false.

To the 23d interrogatory the witness answers:

A. One part of it is true in so much that the stores

were in the way and that the cargo was stored on

the opposite side of the bulkhead; but the lumber

was not saturated with creosote, and it was not hard

work on the part of the crew of the steamer to ex-

tinguish the fire, except as I have explained above,

and no outside assistance was rendered at all.

To the 24th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Creosote in iron drums.

To the 25th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. In the lower hold and between-decks.

To the 26th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. It was being carried to Eagle Harbor and con-
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signed to the Pacific Creosoting Company.

To the 27th interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. There was a small loss owing to leakage; the

only loss is what we couldn't gather up again; bale

up out of the bottom of the ship, out of the limbers;

and the loss was what would stick to the bottom of

the ship—you could hardly consider it as a loss.

[115]

To the 28th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. There was a small leakage all over the cargo,

but the biggest leakage was in the fore lower hold,

and amidships abreast of the main ventilator where

several drums broke adrift and were found to be

cut.

To the 29th interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. The creosote which leaked out of the drum was

pumped out of the ship by the ship's crew into bar-

rels supplied by the Pacific Creosoting Company.

What couldn't be pumped out of the ship was baled

out and put into the barrels; the Pacific Creosoting

Company took delivery of that.

To the 30th interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. I suppose there would be about two or three

drums lost; it would take that much to wet the bot-

tom of the ship all over.

To the 31st interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Yes; they took delivery of it; they received it

as part of the cargo; they furnished the barrels to

receive it in.

To the 32d interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Nothing further than the usual survey on the
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ship's arrival at any port; the hatches and the stow-

age of the ship was surveyed as usual. [116]

To the 33d interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I would say it was false.

To the 34th interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. My reason for saying that is that the Pacific

Creosoting Company took delivery of the cargo and

never made any claims against the ship for damages

to the cargo, or for shortage; the same as they did

in the case of the "Jupiter"; the "Jupiter" was

discharging the same time as we were. And further

from verbal reports from the manager of the Pacific

Creosoting Company's plant at Eagle Harbor, made

to myself, that the cargo had burned out in good

condition; also from my own knowledge as to the

extent of the leakage and the way in which the creo-

sote came out in the pumps and in the buckets.

To the 35th interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I can say that I think that part of the leakage

was due to the drums not being strong enough, be-

cause we observed creosote in the limbers before

we cleared the English Channel, so that all the leak-

age wasn't due to the drums that were damaged on

the passage. As matter of fact I had rejected quite

a number of drums in London of this same shipment,

and all the drums were of the same general char-

acter. [117]

To the 1st cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Yes.

To the 2d cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Yes.
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To the 3d cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Yes.

To the 4th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I believe so; I did not make the entries in the

log-book, but I believe the entries were true in

general.

To the 5th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. The entries in the log-book were not made by

me ; but on analyzing the entries and making a care-

ful or a minute examination of the parts of the ship

said to be damaged, I find that several corrections

should be made.

To the 6th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Yes.

To the 7th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I do not mean the Court to understand that I

swore falsely in making the protest; but I mean the

Court to understand that certain corrections should

be made, and perhaps some of the language used in

the protest is misleading because the fact is that

although the alarm was responded to by the crews

of the ships "Jupiter" and the steamship "Horn-

elen," and that some employees of the Pacific Cre-

osoting Company brought with them chemical fire-

extinguishers, the fire, as matter of fact, was put

out, as I have testified, by the use of about half a

dozen buckets of water, and the only difficulty was

in getting to the fire [118] because of the obstruc-

tions I have mentioned; I went below into the laza-

rette and saw the glare of the fire through venti-

lation holes near the top of the bulkhead; the bulk-
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head reaches from one deck to the other and it would

be impossible to see over it. I did not regard this

statement, however, as of any importance and there-

fore did not correct it, the extended protest having

been already prepared for my signature. As to the

dunnage in the after between-decks, one or two small

pieces in the immediate vicinity of the fire may
have been charred in a way similar to the door. The

ship's stores were damaged through the water being

spilled on them. The chemical fire-extinguishers

were used after the fire was put out, as a matter of

precaution, and the stores were possibl}^ damaged

with chemicals also.

To the 8th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I answered certain questions before a court

stenographer, in some court; but I do not remember

the title of the action or who w^ere the parties to it.

To the 9th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I believe that there was a Mr. Campbell who

was one of the attorneys, but who he was attorney

for and what was the name of the case I do not

remember.

To the 10th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I do not remember in what suit it was, but the

testimony quoted is in substance as I remember it.

[119]

To the 11th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I certainly intended to do so.

To the 12th cross-interrogator}^ the witness answers:

A. Certainly not.

To the 13th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:
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A. It was some time early in April this year; I

don't remember the exact date.

To the 14th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. I never heard of it again until my arrival in

New York, and I have not thought of it very often;

I have been busy with my other duties.

To the 15th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. Nobody suggested any changes.

To' the 16th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

There was no fire on November 18th, 1909. I pre-

sume that the question refers to the fire of November

18th, 1908, and there was a fire-alarm sounded on

the ship; but at the time the alarm was sounded it

wasn't known whether the fire was serious or not;

we never take any chances.

To the 17th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. They responded, but the fire was out before

they got there.

To the 18th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. We started to discharge cargo a day or two

days before the fire; I can't exactly say which; I

don't think it is right to say that the stores were

piled on one side of the bulkhead, or that the bulk-

head was burned; they [120] were stowed there;

the drums of creosote were stowed on the other side

of the bulkhead.

To the 19th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. Is not true.

To the 20th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. I did; but the dates in the question in several

instances skip intervening entries on other days not
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referred to in the question, and I wish to call atten-

tion to the fact that the "similar conditions" re-

ferred to in the entry of November 13th refer to

weather experienced on November 2d as copied into

the protest.

To the 21st cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. No; the cargo was discharged by stevedores

who were under mv supervision.

To the 22d cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. No; the damaged drums were counted by the

mate.

To the 23d cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I did not personally measure any cargo, not in

drums; but I am satisfied myself that all of the creo-

sote that had leaked out of the drums was delivered

to the Pacific Creosoting Company. I was an eye-

witness.

To the 24th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Certainly not, to my knowledge.

To the 25th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Frank Walker was not the man that I knew to

be the surveyor for the Pacific Creosoting Company;

it was another man altogether; I never saw Frank

Walker on board [121] the ship at i:Z; I know

him well.

To the 26th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I don't know whether he did or not; I had de-

livered that cargo and got receipt for it.

To the 27th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. My testimony is all of my own personal knowl-

edge, and where the report of Mr. Walker is incon-
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sistent with my testimony his report is wrong.

To the 28th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. We had bad weather, yes.

To the 29th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. Some of the drums worked and some of the

drums were damaged on that account.

To the 30th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. Yes ; by " detriment to the contents '

' I mean so

that the contents could leak out.

To the 31st cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. Yes.

To the 32d cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. Some of it did ; not all of it. We knew that there

was creosote in the limbers before we encountered

any bad weather at all; the entry of June 9th covers

that.

To the 33d cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. I didn't consider that any creosote was lost

at all; it was all delivered to the Pacific Creosoting

Company and they made no claim for lost creosote

at all. [122]

To the 34th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. Yes, she was seaworthy in all respects.

To the 35th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. It was properly stowed.

To the 36th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. The damage to the drums was due to the bad

weather encountered, except such of the drums as

were inherently defective, and permitted the leak-

age which we found before the rough weather came

on: there was no loss of drums.
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To the 37th cross-interrogatory the witness answers

:

A. Yes.

To the 38th cross-interrogatory the witness answers:

A. In substance it seems to me what I testified to.

To the 39th cross-interrogatory the witness answ^ers:

A. No, there was no question of payment of the

freight at all; it was paid in full.

To the 40th cross-interrogatory. the witness answers:

A. Yes; I rejected what we considered bad drums.

ALEXANDER WALLACE.
ADELINE SESSIONS. [123]

[Indorsed] : Deposition of Alexander Wallace,

taken under direct interrogatories and cross-inter-

rogatories. New^ York, October 4, 1911. Filed in

the U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Wash-

ington. Sept. 12, 1912. Frank L. Crosby, Clerk.

By , Deputy. [124]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Direct Interrogatories to be Propounded to E. D.

Rood.

Direct interrogatories to be propounded to E. D.

Rood at Los Angeles, California, a witness produced,

sworn and examined in a certain cause of admiralty

and maritime jurisdiction, now pending in the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the Western

District of Washington, Northern Division, wherein

Pacific Creosoting Company, a corporation, is libel-

lant, against Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance

Company, Ltd., respondent, on behalf of said libel-
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lant, in accordance with the stipulation hereto an-

nexed :

Interrogatory No. 1: State your name, age, resi-

dence and occupation.

Interrogatory No. 2: What was your occupation

in the month of November, 1908?

Interrogatory No. 3: If your answer to Interro-

gatory No. 2 is that you were Assistant Manager of

the Pacific Creosoting Company, a corporation, libel-

lant herein, state how long you had been such officer,

and how long you remained such after November,

1908.

Interrogatory No. 4 : Were you on board the bark

**Sardhana," after she arrived at the plant of libel-

lant in Eagle Harbor, on November 9, 1908?

Interrogatory No. 5: If you state that you were

on board said vessel after her said arrival, state

when you first went on board her, and how often

you were aboard said vessel thereafter.

Interrogatory No. 6 : Did you see the condition of

the cargo on said vessel before and/or at the time

the same was discharged therefrom? [125]

Interrogatory No. 7 : If you answer the last inter-

rogatory in the affirmative, state fully in what con-

dition you found said cargo of said vessel.

Interrogatory No. 8 : If you say that any part of

the iron drums composing said cargo were damaged,

state the number of such damaged drums, as near as

you can, and the extent of the injury thereto.

Interrogatory No. 9 : Had any part of said cargo

escaped into the hold of said vessel %

Interrogatory No. 10; Was all of the creosote of
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said oargo delivered to the Pacific Creosoting Com-
pany, libellant herein, and if not, state if you know,

the amount of such short delivery.

Interrogatory No. 11: Did you know of a fire oc-

curring on board said bark ''Sardhana" on Novem-

ber 18, 1906?

Interrogatory No. 12: Were you on board said

vessel at the time of said fire, and/or at any time

thereafter?

Interrogatory No. 13: State fully all you know of

your own knowledge concerning said fire, the nature

and extent thereof, the parts of the ship damaged

thereby, the nature and amount of damage to said

ship and cargo, and what difficulties, if any, were

encountered in extinguishing said fire.

Interrogatory No. 14 : State, if you know, what if

any cargo was piled on the 'tween-decks of said ship,

at or near the bulkhead where said fire occurred, and

what if any, stores were in the lazarette at or near the

said bulkhead.

Interrogatory No. 15: Was or was not the dun-

nage and lumber near said bulkhead more or less

covered with creosote, and if so, was or was not such

dunnage and lumber more inflammable because of

such fact?

Interrogatory No. 16: State, if you know, whether

or not any repairs were made on said ship on account

of said fire, and if such repairs were so made, by

whom were they made

.

Interrogatory No. 17 : State, if you know, whether

or not a lighter alongside said vessel, loaded with

drums of creosote from said vessel, capsized on
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November 21, 1908 ; and if you say that it did, state

fully the circumstances connected therewith, the

amount of cargo thereon, and what became of such

cargo.

Interrogatory No. 18 : If you say said lighter did

capsize and drums of creosote from said cargo were

thereby precipitated into the sea, state fully what

was afterwards done to recover the same, how many,

if 8inj, were recovered, how many, if any, were not

recovered, and what if any expense was incurred in

recovering said lost cargo. [126]

Interrogatory No. 19: Do you know, or can you

set forth any other matter or thing which may be of

benefit or advantage to the parties at issue in this

case, or either of them, or that may be material to

the subject of this your examination, on the matters

in question in this cause. If so, set forth the same

fully and at large in your answer.

BOGLE, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant. [127]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Cross-interrogatories to be Propounded to E. D.

Rood.

Cross-interrogatories to be propounded to E. D.

Rood at Los Angeles, California, a witness produced,

sworn and examined in a certain cause of admiralty

and maritime jurisdiction now pending in the Dis-

trict Court of the United States for the Western

District of Washington, Northern Division, wherein

Pacific Creosoting Company, a corporation, is libel-
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ant, against Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance

Company, Ltd., respondent, on behalf of said re-

spondent, in accordance with the stipulation hereto

annexed

:

Cross-interrogatory No. 1 : Did one Frank Walker

make a survey of the cargo of creosote on board the

''Sardhana" to determine how much creosote was

lost?

Cross-interrogatory No. 2 : Who employed him to

make such survey?

Cross-interrogatory No. 3: State in detail how he

ascertained the amount of creosote lost. [128]

Cross-interrogatory No. 4: Upon how much creo-

sote did the Pacific Creosoting Company pay freight

to the owners of the '^Sardhana"?

Cross-interrogatory No. 5: State upon exactly

what data you base your estimate of the amount of

creosote lost.

Cross-interrogatory No. 6: If in answer to the last

cross-interrogatory you say that said data includes

certain documents, please produce such documents,

state when and by whom each one was made and at-

tach the same to your deposition.

Cross-interrogatory No. 7: State in detail the

nature of the examination which you personally

made to ascertain the condition of the '*Sardhana's"

cargo and the amount of creosote lost.

Cross-interrogatory No. 8: Do you know from

personal observation or measurement how much
creosote had escaped from the drums and was awash

in the hold of the vessel upon her arrival at Eagle

Harbor?
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Cross-interrogatory No. 9: Do you know from

personal knowledge what was done with said creo-

sote that was so awash in the hold of the vessel ? If

so, state in detail what was done with it.

Cross-interrogatory No. 10 : Was not some of said

creosote which was awash in the hold of the vessel

pumped or baled into barrels and/or other recep-

tacles provided by the Pacific Creosoting Company

and, if so, how many barrels and/or other receptacles

were so provided, and how much creosote was so

pumped or baled into them? [129]

Cross-interrogatory No. 11: Was Mr. Walker in-

formed as to the amount of creosote so saved that

had been awash in the hold of the "Sardhana"?

Cross-interrogatory No. 12 : Do you know of your

own personal knowledge as distinguished from hear-

say how long it took to put out the fire which oc-

curred on the "Sardhana" on November 18, 1908,

or the means used in extinguishing it ? If so, state

from such personal knowledge how long the fire

burned and the means used in its extinguishment.

Please give only facts known ta you personally in

answering the above.

Cross-interrogatory No. 13: Was any creosote

burned in said fire %

Cross-interrogatory No. 14': If the creosote was

stowed near the bulkhead where .said fire occurred,

how can you explain the fact that it did not take

fire?

Cross-interrogatory No. 15: State from your per-

sonal knowledge and not from hearsay whether the

crews of the "Jupiter" and "Hornelin" did any
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work in the actual oxtinejuishmont of the tire and,

if so, state just what you know from personal obser-

vation said work consisted of.

Cross-interrogatory No. 16: Do you know from

personal knowledge whether the entire bulkhead for-

ward of the lazarette was burned in said fire and, if

you know it was not entirely burned, state if you can

from personal knowledge how much of it was

burned. [130]

Cross-interrogatory No. 17: Do you know from

personal knowledge whether the entire door of said

bulkhead was burned in said fire and, if you know^ it

was not entirely burned, state if you can from per-

sonal knowledge how much of it was burned.

Cross-interrogatory No. 18: Do you know from

personal knowledge if there was any dunnage burned

in said fire and, if your answ^er is in the affirmative,

state if you can from personal knowledge how much

was burned and where said dunnage which was

burned was located.

Cross-interrogatory No. 19 : Do you know from

personal knowledge if the floors and ceilings of fhe

ship near said bulkhead were burned and, if so, state

from your personal knowledge the extent to which

the floor and/or ceiling was burned.

Cross-interrogatory No. 20: Do you know from

personal know^ledge as distinguished from hearsay

that repairs were made on the "Sardliana" as a con-

sequence of said fire? If so, state from such per-

sonal knowledge and in detail the location and extent

of any such repairs, at whose order they were made

and by whom they were made.
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Cross-interrogatory No. 21: State upon exactly

what data you based your estimate as to the amount

of creosote capsized on the lighter, the amount saved

thereafter and the expenses incurred in saving the

same.

Cross-interrogatory No. 22: If, in answer to the

last cross-interrogatory, you state that said data in-

cludes certain documents, please [131] produce

such documents, state when and by whom the same

were made and attach the same to your deposition.

Proctors for Eespondent. [132]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Deposition of E. D. Rood.

ANSWERS OF WITNESS, E. D. ROOD, TO
DIRECT AND CROSS INTERROGATO-
RIES HERETO ATTACHED.

E. D. ROOD, a witness for libellant in the above-

entitled cause, being first duly sworn to testify the

truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth re-

lative to said cause, made answer to the said respec-

tive direct interrogatories and cross-interrogatories

as follows:

Answering Direct Interrogatory 1, witness says

:

My name is Edson Dudley Rood; age thirty-four

years; residence, Los Angeles, California; no occu-

pation.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 2, witness says

:

Assistant Manager of the Pacific Creosoting Com-

pany.
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Answering Direct Tiiterrofratorv 3, witness says:

About a year and a lialf })efore November, 1908,

and up to April 1909, afterwards.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 4, witness says

:

I was.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 5, witness says:

I went on board the vessel the day after she ar-

rived for the first time, and was on board a number

of times afterwards. I do not remember exactly

how many.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 6, witness says:

I saw the cargo before same was discharged and

at different times while it was being discharged.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 7, witness says:

The first time I looked at the cargo we w^nt down

into No. 1 hatch before the cargo was broken loose.

It appeared to be well stowed and in fairly good con-

dition. As I saw the cargo at different times while

it was being discharged I observed a number of

damaged drums.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 8, witness says:

To the best of my recollection there were about

seven hundred and fifty or eight hundred damaged

drums. These were dented on the ends; the chimes

were badly bent; some of them had holes in them

—

in the sides, and they were all leaky, and a number

were empty. [133]

Answering Direct Interrogatory 9, witness says

:

To the best of my knowledge and belief some of

the cargo was in the bottom of the hold.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 10, witness says

:
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It was not all delivered. My recollection is that

about fifty thousand or sixty thousand gallons were

short.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 11, witness says

:

I did.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 12, witness says

:

I was on board at the time of the fire from the

time the alarm was turned in until the fire was ex-

tinguished.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 13, witness says

:

My first knowledge of the fire was when the alarm

was turned in. I got aboard as quickly as I could

and found a large niunber of men aboard working

on the fire with chemical fire extinguishers. A large

quantity of smoke was coming out of the lazarette

into the cabin. This was quite stifling, and as there

were men down in there handling extinguishers, I

did not go down into the lazarette to see the fire my-

self, but stayed on deck and helped pass fire-ex-

tinguishers and water down below. I do not know

the extent of damage, nor I do not know the nature

or amount of damage done. The fire appeared to be

quite stubborn, and a great deal of difficulty was

found in putting it out. To my best recollection

from the time the fire alarm was turned in until the

fire was put out was about an hour.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 14, witness says

:

Well, I was not down there, so I do not know

whether there was any cargo stowed between-decks

at the time of the fire or not, nor do I know what

stores were in the lazarette.
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Answering Diroft Interrogatory 15, witness says

:

The dunnage in hetween-decks was covered with

creosote from the leaky drums. This made it more

inflammable.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 16, witness says

:

I do not know of any repairs.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 17, witness says

:

There was a lighter of drums of creosote alongside

the vessel that capsized on November 21, 1908.

This lighter wais capsized on account of the unusu-

ally heavy weather at this time. The seas and

swells rolled in and it was impossible for the lighter

to weather the storm. My recollection is that there

were about two hundred and sixty drums aboard

the scow or lighter when it capsized. These drums

sank to the bottom. [134]

Answering Direct Interrogatory 18, witness says

:

As soon as it was learned that the scow- of drums

had capsized, the launch "Pacific," owned by the

Pacific Creosoting Company, was set to work and re-

covered about fifteen drums on the beach opposite

the plant of said company. These floated to the

beach because they were light being empty or only

partially filled with creosote. About two hundred

and fifty drums, from my best recollection, were re-

covered by a diver named Finch. There were four

drums that were not recovered at all. The expense

incurred in recovering these drums was made up as

follows: The use of the launch "Pacific" and men
of the Pacific Creosoting Company for about three

hours time; contract with the diver, Finch, at four
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dollars per drum for each drum recovered; the use

of the scow at ten dollars per day, upon which were

placed the drums recovered by Finch ; delivering the

scow from Eagle Harbor ; the use of the pile driver

grappling the drmns recovered by Finch and plac-

ing them on the scow. I do not remember the differ-

ent amount of these charges.

Answering Direct Interrogatory 19, witness says:

I remember nothing further.

ANSWERS TO CROSS-INTERROGATORIES:
Answering Cross-interrogatory 1, witness says

:

Mr. Frank Walker made a survey of the cargo of

the "Sardhana" to determine the loss and condition

of the cargo.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 2, witness says

:

I did.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 3, witness says

:

I do not know how he ascertained the amount of

creosote lost.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 4, witness says

:

I do not remember.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 5, witness says

:

At the time this loss was estimated I looked over

the damaged drums myself, and was given figures

by employees of the Pacific Creosoting Company

showing the amount of creosote dumped from the

damaged drums and the shortage. These figures

were made up by the men who dumped the drums,

and were made at the same time the drums were

emptied.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 6, witness says

:
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My estimate is from personal reeolleetion from the

data given me at that time. I have no data with

me now, or in my possession.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 7, witness says

:

My first examination of the cargo was through No.

1 hatch before same was broken loose and before

they had commenced to discharge. I examined the

cargo at different times thereafter as it was brought

ashore on the scows and rolled off on to the landing

of the Pacific Creosoting Company. I saw some of

the damaged drums dumped, and I know there was

a loss because they were only partially filled. The

loss determined by employees of the Pacific Creosot-

ing Company measuring the creosote which was

dumped from the damaged drums into a receptacle

with a capacity for a fixed quantity of creosote.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 8, witness says

:

I do not know that there was any creosote awash

in the hold of the vessel. [135]

Answering Cross-interrogatory 9, witness says

:

As I stated in answer to cross-interrogatory 8, I

do not know of any creosote awash in the hold of the

vessel.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 10, witness says

:

I know of no such circumstance.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 11, witness says

:

I do not know.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 12, witness says

:

From the time the alarm was turned in until the

fire w^as put out I recollect was about an hour. The

means used in extinguishing the fire were chemical
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extinguishers and water.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 13, witness says

:

No.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 14, witness says

:

I do not know that the creosote was stowed near

the bulkhead at the time of the fire.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 15, witness says

:

I saw men aboard the "Sardhana" working to put

out the fire whom I recognized as belonging to the

crews of the "Jupiter" and "Hornelin." They

were passing extinguishers and working with the

rest of us to put out the fire.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 16, witness says

:

I did not see the bulkhead forward of the lazarette

after the fire.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 17, witness says

:

I did not see it.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 18, witness says

:

I was not down in between-decks at the time of

the fire, so did not see any dunnage burning.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 19, witness says

:

Ko, I do not know whether they were burned or

not.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 20, witness says

:

I have no knowledge of the facts called for in that

question or anything about it.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 21, witness says

:

I base my estimate of the amount of creosote on

the lighter upon personal recollection from data that

I saw at the time of the loss. This data was pre-

pared by the men who checked the loading of the
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lighter. The amount saved thereafter I estimate

from reeolleetion of having made the contract with

the diver and paid his bill for the work, and other

minor charges that came up with rescuing the cargo,

the bills for which I paid at the time, but I do not

recall what amounts they were.

Answering Cross-interrogatory 22, witness says:

I have no documents or data. My estimate is

from personal recollection.

[Seal] E. D. ROOD.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day

of July, A. D. 1911.

O. P. LOOKHART,
Notary Public in and for the State of California,

Residing at Los Angeles. [136]

[Indorsed] : Deposition of E. D. Rood. Taken at

Los Angeles, Cal., July 17, 1911, Before O. P. Lock-

hart, Notary Public, Pursuant to Stipulation There-

to Attached. Filed in the U. S. District Court,

Western Dist. of Washington. July 24, 1911. R.

M. Hopkins, Clerk. [138]

[Deposition of G-eorge H. Wylie.]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

The deposition of GEORGE H. WYLIE, taken on

the 28th day of Juno, A. D. 1911, at the Chambers

of J. Burke Hendry, the Commissioner, 7 New
Square, Lincoln's Inn, London, W. C, County of

Middlesex, United Kingdom of Great Britain and

Ireland, and to be read as evidence in behalf of the
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respondent in the above-entitled action pending in

the District Court of the United States, Western

District of Washington, Northern Division.

Percival C. Hollis of 36 Jersey Road, Ilford, a

stenographer and disinterested person, is appointed

by the Commissioner to take down the deposition in

shorthand, he being duly sworn to take correct notes

of the deposition in shorthand and make a faithful

transcript thereof into typewriting.

GEORGE H. WYLIE, of 43 Eaton Terrace, Lon-

don, S. W., a certificated master mariner, aged 27

years and upwards, being duly and publicly sworn

pursuant to the directions hereunto annexed, and ex-

amined on the part of the respondent, doth depose

and say as follows

:

1st 'Interrogatory: State your name, age, residence

and occupation.

Answer: George Henry Wylie; aged 27; residence

43 Eaton Terrace, London, S. W. ; occupation

Certificated Master Mariner.

2d Interrogatory : What was your occupation in the

month of November, 1908 ?

Answer: First mate to the "Sardhana." [139]

3d Interrogatory: If your answer to the 2d Inter-

rogatory is that you were mate of the British

bark '^Sardhana," state how long you had been

such mate and how long you remained such after

November, 1908.

Answer: I was mate of the "Sardhana" from the

4th April, 1908, to the 3d May, 1911.

4th Interrogatory : When were you last on board the
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bark "Sardhana" and where was she at the

time?

Answer: 3d May, 1911, at Dunkirk.

5th Interrogatory : Where was said bark on Novem-
ber 18, lf)08. and were you then on board of

said bark f

Answer: Eagle Harbor, Washington; 1 was on

board for the greater part of the day—all the

day except a few minutes.

6th Interrogatory : Did anything unusual happen on

said bark on said day, and, if so, what was it?

Answer: A fire broke out in the after 'tween-decks.

7th Interrogatory : If your answer to the 6th Inter-

rogatory is that there was a fire on board said

bark on said day, state in detail the nature and

extent of said fire, the parts of the ship dam-

aged by it and the nature and amount of said

damage.

Answer: The extent of the fire was very slight; no

part of the ship was damaged to any extent. The

parts were, the door of the lazarette bulkhead

was affected by the fire, that is, it was scorched

and a small portion was slightly more than

scorched, perhaps slightly charred by the fiames.

There was no damage to the bulkhead bar, a very

slight blistering of a small portion of the paint.

8th Interrogatory: State in detail the means used

and the length of time it took to extinguish said

fire.

Answer: The means used were half a dozen buckets

of water; the time was less than five minutes.

[140]



142 Thames & Mersey Marine Ins. Co., Ltd.,

(Deposition of George H. Wylie.)

9th Interrogatory: In the work of actually extin-

guishing said fire, was any outside assistance

rendered ?

Answer : No, the outside assistance arrived after the

fire was extinguished.

10th Interrogatory : Was a survey held on account of

said fire ?

Answer: No.

11th Interrogatory : Were any repairs made to your

ship on account of said fire f

Answer: No.

12th Interrogatory: Were any repairs made neces-

sary thereby!

Answer: No.

13th Interrogatory : If your answer to the 11th Inter-

rogatory is that no repairs were made on ac-

count of said fire, state, if you know, what would

have been the approximate cost of such repairs

if they had been made.

Answer: All the repairs that were rendered neces-

sary were simply a rub with a paint brush;

the approximate cost would be Id. or 2d.—the

cost of a brush full of paint.

14th Interrogatory: If in answer to the 7th Inter-

rogatory you state that the door of the wooden

bulkhead separating the lazarette from the after

'tween-decks was damaged by said fire, state

whether you can identify said door at the present

time.

Answer: Yes, I can.

15th Interrogatory: If your answer to the 14th In-
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terrog^atory is in the affirmative, please state

wliether or not the door now before the Com-

missioner and introduced as a part of the deposi-

tion of Alexander Wallace is said door.

Answer: It is the said door, and is branded in 7

places with the word ''Sardhana." This brand-

ing was done by me on the date of the [141]

shipment of the door from Dunkirk, which was

at the end of April, 1911, at which time I de-

tached the door from the bulkhead of the "Sard-

hana."

DOOR PRODUCED TO WITNESS; IDEN-
TIFIED BY HIM; MARKED "EXHIBIT G.

H. W. 1"; SIGNED BY WITNESS AND COM-
MISSIONER AND FORMALLY PUT IN EVI-

DENCE.
16th Interrogatory: If your answer to the 15th In-

terrogatory is in the affirmative, please state

whether said door at this time is in the exact

condition as it was immediately after said fire.

If not, state what is the difference in condition.

Answer : There is no difference ; it is in exactly the

same condition.

17th Interrogatory: The Pacific Creosoting Com-

pany, libelant in this case, has been asked cer-

tain questions in regard to the nature and ex-

tent of the fire on board the "Sardhana," to

which you have testified, and in answering one of

the interrogatories propounded to it, said libel-

ant says that the floors and ceiling of the "Sard-

hana," near the bulkhead, were burnt by the said
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fire. Is that statement true or false'?

Answer: False.

ISth Interrogatory: Further answering another in-

terrogatory propounded to it with reference to

said fire, said libelant says that two-thirds of the

said bulkhead were burnt and charred by the

said fire. Is that statement true or false?

Answer : That is also false.

19th Interrogatory: Further answering another in-

terrogatory propounded to it with reference to

said fire said libelant says that the damage

caused to the "Sardhana" by said fire was such

as to require repairs, and that the repairs were

made by the ship's carpenter and consisted of

removing the burnt bulkhead and building a

new one in its place. Is that statement true or

false?

Answer : Absolutely false.

20th Interrogatory: Further answering another in-

terrogatory propounded to it with reference to

the difficulties encountered in extinguishing the

fire, libelant says: "That the difficulties en-

countered in extinguishing the fire were that

stores were [142] piled on one side of the

bulkhead and drums of creosote, dunnage, etc.,

on the other, and that the lumber was saturated

with creosote making the same very inflammable,

and that it required hard work on the part of

the crew of the ' Sardhana ' and the persons so as-

sisting them to extinguish the fire." Is this

statement with reference to the difficulties en-
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countered in extinguishing the said fire true or

false ?

Answer: The dififirulties encountered in extinguish-

ing the fire were the diffieulties that a man en-

counters in trying to walk over barrels, some

full, some empty and some half full, and cases of

various other stores that were piled in the way.

The difficulty was really to approach the fire,

not to actually jjut it out. Once it was ap-

proached, it was extinguished in a few minutes.

21st Interrogatory: What cargo was the "Sard-

hana" carrying in November, 1908?

Answer: Creosote in drums.

22d Interrogatory: Where was said cargo stowed

on said vessel ?

Answer: In the hold and 'tween-decks.

23d Interrogatory : Where was said cargo being car-

ried to, and to whom was it consigned?

Answer: It was being carried to Eagle Harbour,

Washington, and it was consigned to the Pacific

Creosoting Company.

24:th Interrogatory: Was said cargo, or any part

thereof, lost during the voyage to the port of

Eagle Harbor, and, if so, state the details of

how such loss occurred and the amount of such

loss.

Answer: There was no loss.

25th Interrogatory: If in answer to the 27th In-

terrogatory you say, inter alia, that there was a

leakage of certain creosote in drums on board

said bark, state in what part of the ship said

leakage took place. [143]
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Answer: I have not yet answered the 27th Inter-

rogatory. When I have heard that inter-

rogatory I will answer the 25th and 27th inter-

rogatories together.

26th Interrogatory: What, if anything, was done

with the creosote which had leaked out of the

drums? Give full details.

Answer: The creosote which had leaked out of the

drums remained in the ship until it was pumped

out by the ship's pump through the hose pur-

chased for the purpose into empty barrels sup-

plied by the Pacific Creosoting Company. We
pumped down to 3 or 4 inches, until the pumps

refused to draw any more, and the remainder

was baled out and passed up in buckets, etc., and

poured into the empty barrels. They got every

drop it was possible to bail out, and then, of

course, we had to wash out. That is all the

creosote that was lost.

27th Interrogatory : State, if you can, approximately

how much of said creosote which so leaked out of

the drums was lost.

Answer : Nothing, but what we could wash out of the

limbers. It is really as much as you could wash

off the sides of a cement lined chamber,—in-

finitesimal.

28th Interrogatory : Did the Pacific Creosoting Com-

pany have anything to do with the creosote that

had leaked from the drmns into the ship 's hold ?

If so, give details.

Answer : I have already given the details in my an-
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swer to Interrogatory 20th. They received it

as set forth fully therein,

29th Interrogatory: Did the master of the "Sard-

hana" cause the ship and cargo to be surveyed in

the said month of November, 1908?

Answer: No other survey than the ordinaiy one of

hatches at the termination of the voyage.

30th Interrogatory : If it should be said that as a re-

sult of a survey, or at all, 741 drums or creosote

carried on board your ship [144] on said

voyage were found damaged or worthless, and

that 56,267 gallons of creosote were found to

have been lost, what have you to say as to the

truth or falsity of such statements?

Answer : The number I cannot state, but the number

of damaged drums certainly did not amount to

anything like 741 ; the statement that 56,267 gal-

lons of creosote were lost is absolutely false.

31st Interrogatory: If your answ^er to the 30th In-

terrogatory is that such statements are false,

please state in detail your reason for so testify-

ing.

Answer: As to the damaged drums there was a

United States Custom-house Officer on board

tallying the drums for the customs dues; I tallied

the drums for the ship, and a tally clerk for the

Pacific Creosoting Company. Any drum that

was damaged, even to the extent of being slightly

dented, he called damaged. The drums I and

the Custom-house Officer termed damaged were

drums that were holed or so badly dented as to
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be unfit to carry liquids in future, and those did

not amount to anything like that number of 741.

The exact number I cannot say even approxi-

mately now. As to the loss of fifty-six thousand

odd gallons, that is absolutely false. My reason

for stating that there were not fifty-six thousand

odd gallons of creosote lost is that I was on

board the ship the whole time, and I know the

creosote was loaded in the ship in London and

was delivered in Eagle Harbor to the last drop,

bar what we washed off the limbers. No creo-

sote could have gone over the side without my
knowledge. There was no water in the ship, nor

any leakage of the ship. The creosote that

leaked went into the limbers of the ship and

could not possibly get out of the ship. There

was 13 inches of creosote in the well on arrival

in Eagle Harbour. That remained until

pumped out as before stated. [145]

32d Interrogatory: Do you know, or can you set

forth any other matter or thing which may be

of benefit or advantage to the parties at issue in

this case, or either of them, or that may be ma-

terial to the subject of this your examination or

the matters in question in this cause? If so,

set forth the same fully and at large in your an-

swer.

Answer: I can state that to my knowledge Captain

Wallace, at that time Master of the *' Sardhana,"

wrote to the owners of the ship on November 23d,

1908, that the fire was of a very trivial nature, in
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the following words: "However, we managed to

get it extinguished before any damage was done

to the ship." I will hand in as evidence a letter

written by Captain Alexander Wallace in Dun-
kirk on April 19th and 20th, 1911, to Messrs.

Andrew Weir & Co., which was also signed by

me. This will avoid repetition and the reading of

the contents of the letter, as all I could say in

addition is contained in that letter.

LETTER PRODUCED BY WITNESS;
MARKED ''EXHIBIT G. H. W. 2"; SIGNED
BY WITNESS AND COMMISSIONER AND
FORMALLY PUT IN EVIDENCE.

Cross-interrogatory No. 1: Did you not join with

Alexander Wallace, then master of the bark

"Sardhana," in an extended protest on Decem-

ber 28, 1908?

Answer: Yes, I did.

Cross-interrogatory No. 2 : Did not three seamen of

said bark also join with you and said Master in

said extended protest?

Answer : Yes, they did.

Cross-interrogatory No. 3: Did you not swear to

such protest at Mukilteo, State of Washington,

before one Wm. W. Olwell, a Notary Public?

Answer: Yes. [146]

Cross-interrogatory No. 4: Did not such protest con-

tain true copies of entries in the log-book of said

bark ''Sardhana"?

Answer : Yes, it did.

Cross-interrogatory No. 5 : Were not such entries in



150 Thames d Mersey Marine Ins. Co., Ltd.,

(Deposition of George H. Wylie.)

said log-book and such statements in said pro-

test, true as made ?

Answer : Yes, they were.

Cross-interrogatory No. 6 : Did not such protest con-

tain the following statement : ''Nov. 18th: Steve-

dores continued to discharge the cargo and at

5 :(X) P. M. finished for the day. 291 further

drums were discharged. About 9:30 P. M.

smoke was discovered issuing from the after-

hatch, by one of the crew, who immedi-

ately notified the master and then gave the

alarm. This alarm was responded to by the

crews of the ship 'Jupiter,' the S. S. 'Hornelen'

and the employees of the Pacific Creosoting

Company who brought with them several chem-

ical fire-extinguishers. The master went be-

low through the lazarette and saw che reflection

of the fire over the top of the bulkhead between

the after 'tween-decks and the lazarette. The

after 'tween-decks were still full of cargo. After

considerable trouble the fire was extinguished

and it was then discovered that the aforesaid

bulkhead, together with the door thereof (the

bulkhead was built in the vessel) and the dun-

nage in the after 'tween-decks were burned, and

some of the ship's stores in the lazarette were

damaged by water and chemicals. The origin

of the fire was not discovered."

Answer: The protest contained that statement.

Cross-interrogatory No. 7 : If any of your answers to

the foregoing cross-interrogatories or to the di-
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reet interrogatories propounded to you by

respondent herein, are inconsistent or different

from the statements in said protest, do you now
mean to have the Court understand that you

swore falsely to said protest?

Answer: No, but I think I might explain one state-

ment of that protest. [147] It states there

that the captain saw the reflection of the flames

over the top of the bulkhead. That is an imjios-

sibility. The bulkhead extended up to the

upper deck. Where the captain saw the reflec-

tion of the flames was through ventilation holes

cut into the bulkhead. That is the only part of

the statement with which I can find fault. The

ventilation holes were a few inches from the top

of the bulkhead. By the word "burned" in

that protest I mean "scorched" or to a slight ex-

tent affected by fire.

Cross-interrogatory No. 8 : On the evening of Novem-

ber 18, 1908, didn't you go to the home of M.

I. Helman, Chief Engineer of the Pacific Creo-

soting Company 's plant at Eagle Harbor ?

Answer: Yes.

Cross-interrogatory No. 9 : While you were so at the

home of said Helman, did you not hear a fire-

alann from aboard the "Sardhana"?

Answer: Yes.

Cross-interrogatory 10: Did not you, together with

others then present at said place, go immedi-

ately to the said ship?

Answer : No, I did not go with others ; they stopped
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to do something. I immediately went up myself.

I was aboard the ship in less than 5 minutes

from the time the alarm bell was rung. I did

not stop to do anything. I took myself off in a

boat.

Cross-interrogatory 11: Didn't you and others pro-

cure fire-extinguishers from the said plant and

take them to said ship, for the purpose of using

the same for extinguishing the fire on board said

ship?

Answer: I did not; others did. I made my way

direct on board.

Cross-interrogatory No. 12: Didn't you then find

smoke issuing from the after-cabin and after-

hold of said ship?

Answer: Yes, to a certain extent there was smoke

issuing, but the smoke was not dense. As a mat-

ter of fact I went on board [148] the ship

and went inunediately down below and was

down % of an hour without going up so the

smoke was not dense, not so dense as to prevent

me from staying down for % of an hour. Of

course, there was smoke, but not to any extent.

Cross-interrogatory No. 13 : Did not members of the

crew of the steamship "Hornelen" lying near,

also respond to said fire-alarm?

Answer: Yes, they answered the fire-bell and came.

Cross-interrogatory No. 14 : Did not members of the

crew of the ship "Jupiter" lying near, also re-

spond to said fire-alarm?

Answer : The crews of both ships responded to the
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fire-alarm but before tlieir arrival the fire was
out.

Cross-interrogatory No. 15 : Is it not tnie that the

after 'tween-decks near the l)u]khead, where said

fire started, were then full or partly full of

cargo ?

Answer: Partly full.

Cross-interrogatory No. 16: Is it not true that the

lazarette of said ship near said bulkhead, then

contained ship's stores?

Answer : Quite true.

Cross-interrogatory No. 17: Is it not true that the

dunnage and lumber in the after 'tween-decks

near said bulkhead, were more or less covered

with creosote?

Answer: Yes.

Cross-interrogatory No. 18 : Is it not true that more

or less difficulty was encountered in extinguish-

ing said fire?

Answer: The difficulty encountered was not in ex-

tinguishing the fire but in approaching the fire

as I have already described.

Cross-interrogatory No. 19: When was your atten-

tion for the first time called to the matter of said

fire, after you made said protest ?

Answer: In April, 1911, at Dunkirk. I refer to the

letter I have produced ''Exhibit G. H. W. 2,"

in reply to Interrogatory 32. [149]

Cross-interrogatory No. 20 : How often and when has

your attention been called to the matter of said

fire since said time, and by whom ; and how often
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have you through of said matter since said

time ?

Answer: Until that date, the 19th of April, 1911, my
attention had never been called to the fire at all

since extending the protest, and not since that

date until yesterday, the 27th June, 1911, when

arrangements were made with me for this exami-

nation by the representatives of the Thames

and Mersey Marine Insurance Company, Lim-

ited. I have practically never thought of it ex-

cepting yesterday and the day in question in

April.

Cross-interrogatory No. 21: If you now testify

differently from the said protest, who suggested

such change in your testimony, and when was

such suggestion made ?

Answer : I do not testify differently, bar explaining

one clause that I think is not very fully ex-

plained.

Cross-interrogatory No. 22: Were not the following

statements made in your protest:

**1908.

May 30th: This vessel sailed from London with a

cargo of creosote in iron drums bound

for Eagle Harbor.

Nothing to be noted here occurred until

June 6th: When it was discovered that the car-

penter's sounding rod was very slight

colored with creosote.

July 11th: The crew were employed placing extra

chocks amongst the cargo.
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July 29th: The gale continued as before; likewise

the sea. The vessel again rolled heav-

ily and pitched badly. Later the

squalls blew with hurricane force.

The ship rolled and pitched badly in a

high confused sea and much water was

ship})ed on deck. Towards night it

was discovered that the cargo in the

hold had commenced to work. The

crew entered the hold from the lazar-

ette and secured it as well as possible.

July 30th: The gale still continued. The ship

rolled and pitched heavily and took

much water on deck fore and aft. The

cargo worked as before and the crew

again entered the hold to secure it.

July 31st: The gale moderated the first part of the

day but increased again later. Much
water was shipped on deck. The

cargo worked as before and the crew

entered the hold through the venti-

lator hatch and secured it as well as

possible. [150]

Aug. 1st: A fresh gale was experienced and the

ship rolled and pitched heavily in a

high beam sea. Again the cargo

worked.

Aug. 7th: The crew were employed securing the

cargo.

Aug. 25th: A hard gale w^as encountered accompa-

nied by a heavy sea. Much water
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was shipped on deck. The cargo worked

again badly.

Aug. 26th: Similar conditions were experienced.

Aug. 31.st: A moderate gale was experienced. The

decks were frequently awash and the

cabin and deck-houses were flooded.

The cargo worked heavily.

Sept. 1st: A moderate gale with hard squalls was

experienced. The vessel shipped

large quantities of water over all.

The cargo worked heavily.

Sept. 2nd: Similar conditions were encountered.

Sept. 4th: A strong gale was experienced accom-

panied by a high sea in which the ves-

sel labored and strained badly. The

cargo worked as before. The hold was

entered through the main ventilator

and the drums were found to be adrift

and were rolling about in all direc-

tions. It was impossible to secure

the cargo until the weather moderated.

Sept. 14th : The crew were employed cutting up

spare spars and blocking off the cargo

with them.

Sept. 28th : It was noticed by the soundings in the

pump well that there was an increase

of liquid which appeared to be mostly

creosote,

Nov. 3Td : Similar conditions were encountered and

the cargo again worked badly.

Nov. 17th : Stevedores commenced to discharge the
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viiY^o and they discharged 136

drums."

Answer: Yes.

Ci*oss-interrogatory No. 23 : Is it not a faet that you

had extremely severe weather on the said voy-

age from London to Eagle Harbor?

Answer: We had extremely severe weather but we

had no worse weather than is quite usual off

Cape Horn or off Cape Flattery, Washington;

we expect bad weather off both places. Flattery

is not a nice place in the winter time.

Cross-interrogatory No. 24 : Is it not a fact that the

<^argo of drums worked on said voyage, and that

some of said drums were damaged?

Answer: That is a fact. [151]

Cross-interrogatory No. 25: In giving your testi-

mony as to the number of the damaged drums of

the said cargo, did you not mean such drums as

were so damaged as to be a detriment to the con-

tents?

Answer: The drums were not damaged to the detri-

ment of the contents because the contents ran

into the limbers of the ship and were afterwards

pumped out into barrels as per my previous an-

swer.

Cross-interrogatory No. 26: Did not some of the

creosote of said cargo escape into the hold of

said vessel, because of the very severe weather

encountered on the said voyage?

Answer: The creosote escaped into the hold of the

vessel partly on account of the severe weather
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and partly on account of the original weakness
of the drums, and the leakage of creosote was
to some extent due to the screw bungs working
out.

Cross-interrogatory No. 27 : Was not some of said

cargo of creosote lost because of such severe

weather ?

Answer : None was lost ; it remained in the ship.

Cross-interrogatory No. 28: Was not said bark

"Sardhana" in your opinion, seaworthy and

properly manned, equipped and provisioned in

all respects, when she left London on said voy-

age, for the said voyage?

Answer: She was.

Cross-interrogatory No. 29: Was not said cargo, in

your opinion, then properly stowed for the voy-

age you were then about to make ?

Answer : It w^as properly stowed.

Cross-interrogatory No. 30: Was not all damage to

and loss of drums and/or creosote of said cargo,

except the loss from the barge or lighter in the

bay at Eagle Harbor, due to the severe weather

encountered on said voyage %

Answer : There was no loss of drums or creosote ; the

damage done to the drums was partly on ac-

count of the severe weather and partly [152]

on account of the original weakness of the

drums. The leakage of creosote was to some ex-

tent due to the screw bungs working out as well

as to the weakness of the drums and the severe

weather.
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Cross-inteiTogatorv No. 31: Was not all of said

cargo in apparent good order and condition

when received on said ship?

Answer: It was.

(Signed) GEORGE HENRY WYLIE,
Witness. [153]

[Exhibit G. H. W. No. 2.]

Bk. Sardhana,

Dunkirk, April 19th, 1911.

Messrs. Andrew Weir & Co.,

6 Lloyds Avenue,

London.

Dear Sirs:

In reply to your verbal inquiries I beg to give the

following details with regard to the fire on the

Sardhana at Eagle Harbor, Puget Sound, Nov. 18th,

1908.

I w^as in command of the vessel at the time and on

board when the fire occurred, my mate Mr. Wylie

was on shore but arrived very shorth' afterwards

and is fully acquainted with all the conditions and

with the facts. The fire was from first to last of a

very trivial nature though of course, wdth an inflam-

mable cargo like creosote there w^ere possibilities of

a serious extension. Fortunately, the fire was ex-

tinguished in about three minutes by some six buck-

ets of water being thrown down. The damage to the

ship was confined to a one inch sliding door of the

wooden bulkhead separating the Lazarette from the

Hold, and which for about four feet in height and

two feet five inches in width was licked by the flames,
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scorching the paint, and to a very slight extent here

and there a little more than scorched or slightly

charred the wood, there was no real damage to the

bulkhead consequently no survey was held and no re-

pairs of any kind have been done to the door, which

remains at the present time precisely as it was after

the fire in November, 1906. The entry in the Log-

Book referring to the fire being extinguished with

considerable difficulty, meant that owing to the posi-

tion of the fire, it having to be approached through

the Lazerette which was full of stores, all the floor

space being occupied, and therefore difficult to pass,

and still more so in a hurry, and to the smoke, it was

not easy to get at it, but when this [155] was done

the fire was promptly put out. The chemical fire-

extinguishers were used as a further measure of pre-

caution; the crew of a neighboring ship quite close

came on board to render assistance, but all danger

was over before they arrived, the fire was so very

trifling that I have attached little or no importance

to it. The stores were damaged by w^ater and chem-

icals and a few pieces of dunnage wood were scorched

like the door, they were not badly burnt.

The Protest was extended at the request of and at

the expense of the Pacific Creosoting Coy. There

was no claim for salvage of any kind.

I shall be prepared to give evidence if required in

confirmation of what I have stated above.

I am, Dear sirs.

Yours very truly,

ALEXANDER WALLACE,
MateBk. ''Sardhana."
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I concur in the above statement

:

GEORGE H. WYLTE,
Mate Bk. ''Sardhana."

P. S. Since writing the above, my attention has

been called to the following points. It is absolutely

incorrect to stiite that damage was caused by the tire

to other parts of the vessel than the bulkhead door,

nor was a considerable part of the dunnage burnt,

but only a very few pieces of loose wood scorched or

slightly charred.

As regards the origin of the fire, I have good rea-

son to believe it to be as follows : The vessel has one

clear hold, but with 'tween-deck beams about 7 feet

below the main deck, on the beams are laid, round

the sides, a deck of 4 or 5 feet wide on which cargo

was stowed. The lazerette is entered through a

hatch in the [156] Master's cabin and communi-

eates with the hold by a sliding door made of one inch

boards, in the wooden bulkhead and opens on the

'tween-deck. When the drums of creosote shifted at

sea, the hold was entered through the sliding door

and the drums chocked off, and the door remained

open afterwards, it being jammed by the creosote

drums. It is believed that some one or more of the

crew on the 18th of November got down in the main

hatch and over the cargo to the open door of the

Lazerette with the intention of stealing stores from

the Lazerette, but dropping a match on some burlap

which had got into the hold from the Lazerette

when chocking of the cargo, set fire to the burlap

which is very inflammable, flares up quickl}' and

gives off thick smoke, pieces of partially burnt bur-
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lap were found where the fire occurred. Of course,

if any part of the creosote had caught fire, the con-

flagration would have been very serious, and prob-

ably could not have been extinguished. The ac-

counts of the fire in the newspapers at the time were

absurdly exaggerated.

I am simply astounded to hear that it is claimed

there was a loss of 56,264 gallons of creosote through

leakage. The creosote when it leaked out of the

drums was not lost or pumped overboard, but re-

mained in the hold where there was no water or any-

thing to damage the creosote. On arrival at Eagle

Harbour, there were 13 inches of loose creosote in

the limbers and this was pumped by the ship's

pumps down to 3 or 4 inches into barrels provided

by the Pacific Creosoting Company and so far as I

know, was not damaged at all. The remainder of

the loose creosote was baled into barrels and only a

very small quantity was mopped up or put over-

board. The loss must have been infinitesimal. I do

not know what the ordinary leakage on creosote on a

long voyage would be ; at the time of the fire we had

discharged 427 drums some of which were no doubt

slightly damaged. The drums themselves, if un-

damaged, would have been bought by the Standard

Oil Co'y as usual, for exporting [157] oil, but

those that were dented were not of use to the Oil

Co'y. It might be useful to ascertain from the

Custom House how many drums were tallied by their

office as damaged, and on which duty was conse-

quently not paid.

The drums were 4 feet long and 2' 8'' Diameter,
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and made of sheet iron and were not very strong

and probably to same extent leaked in consequence

of their original weakness. Some were rejected in

London as obviously unfit.

Freight was collected by the agents, and so far as

I know, was paid in full on the intake weight.

ALEXANDER WALLACE,

April 20th, 1911.

I concur in the above statement.

GEORaE H. WYLIE,
Mate.

'* Exhibit G. H. W. 2." George Henry Wylie,

Witness. Jno. Burke Hendry, Commissioner.

[158]

[Testimony.]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

To the Honorable Judges of the Above-entitled

Court:

On this 20th day of February, 1913, the libelant

appeared by Mr. Lawrence Bogle, one of its proctors,

and the respondent appeared by Mr. McClanahan,

one of its proctors. Thereupon it was stipulated

that the testimony of the parties be taken before me
at this time, the same as if an order of reference had

been regularly entered in said cause.

LIBELANT'S TESTIMONY.
Mr. BOGLE.—It is stipulated that the policy pro-

duced at this time is the original policy of insurance

referred to in the libel. And I now offer it in evi-

dence.
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Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "A," filed and

returned herewith.

[Testimony of H. E. Stevens, for Libelant]

H. E. STEVENS, a witness called on behalf of the

libelant being duly sworn, testified as follows:

Q. (Mr. BOOLE.) What is your business?

A. Now general manager of the Pacific Creosoting

Company.

Q. How long have you been engaged in that busi-

ness? A. Since 1907. [172*—If]

Q. Holding the same office?

A. No. Only since Mr. Rood's death last year.

I have held various offices in the meantime.

Q. Where do you reside? A. Seattle.

Q. Were you connected with the Pacific Creosot-

ing Company the libelant in this case, in November

1908? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In what capacity?

A. I guess I was bookkeeper or chief clerk, I don't

just remember what it was, but at that time I was in

the office.

Q, What office? A. In the general office.

Q. It is located where?

A. Located in the Bailey building at that time;

now in the White building.

Q. Where is the plant of the Pacific Cfeosoting

Company ? A. At Eagle Harbor.

Q. Mr. Stevens, in your capacity as bookkeeper or

chief clerk, did you have any knowledge of the pur-

*Page-number appearing at foot of page of certified Apostles.

tOriginal page-number appearing at top of page of Testimony

same appears in Certified Apostles.

as
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chasing of creosote for that plant in England, to be

shipped to this country f A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you have any knowledge, or anything to do

with the purchasing of the creosote which was

shipped to this country on the British bark '*Sard-

hana" in November, 1908?

A. We handled the transaction in the office at that

time.

Q. Do you remember how many drums of creosote

were shipped aboard the '^Sardhana" consigned to

the Pacific Creosoting [173—2]

A. I think 2753.

Q. From whom was that creosote purchased?

A. I believe from the Blagden-Wah company.

Q. Where are they located?

A. They have a London office.

Q. Do you remember about what time it was

shipped from England?

A. In the early part of May, 1908.

Q. Mr. Stevens, I hand you this document and ask

you what it is.

A. That is the bill of lading for the ''Sardhana"

cargo, the original bill of lading.

Q. Covering the cargo aboard the "Sardhana"?

A. Covering the cargo aboard the ''Sardhana.'^

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer it in evidence.

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "B," filed and

returned herewith.

Q. This Libelant's Exhibit *'B" is endorsed by—
A. By the seller.

Q. And forwarded to you?
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A. And forwarded to us with the drafts.

Q. Mr. Stevens, do you know what the cost of this

creosote was?

A. I do not recollect just the dollars and cents,

but I know approximately what it was.

Q. Approximately what was it?

A. The cost of the cargo, something over thirty

thousand dollars, the entire cargo.

Q. Does that include the freight?

A. That includes the freight. [174^-3]

Q. Insurance? A. Delivered here.

Q. I hand you a document, Mr. Stevens, and ask

you what it is.

A. That is a copy of the Consular invoice ; British

Consular invoice.

Q. Does that show the cost of the shipment of

creosote ? A. That shows the cost of the cargo.

Q. Is that the amount that you paid for the cargo?

A. I think it is very close to it. I think it is

exactly the amount. We can verify it by the vouch-

ers.

Q. Have you the vouchers with you ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I wish you would verify it, unless counsel will

admit it.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—What is the materiality?

Mr. BOGrLE.—I want to prove the value of the

creosote—what they paid for it.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—All right.

A. Seven thousand seven hundred pounds—some-

thing over $35,000; a voucher for $24,000; ^another
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for $6,500 that would make $31,000. $508, $1750,

$1175. Totalinjr up something like $36,000 or

$37,000.

Q. In payment of this invoice?

A. In payment of this invoice and freight.

Mr. BOGLE.—If there is any dispute about that

invoice, the cost of that, Mr. McClanahan, T will put

in these vouchers.

I will offer in evidence this Consular invoice.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object on the ground that

it is hearsay; self-serving; incompetent and im-

material. And on the [175—4] further ground

that it show^s on its face to be a copy and has not been

verified.

Q. Where is the original invoice?

A. Filed with the Custom-house here.

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "C," filed and

returned herewith.

Mr. BOGLE.—Because of your last objection I

will ask leave to withdraw this exhibit *'C" and have

it certified by the proper Custom-house officer.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I would like to have you do

that. That would obviate a portion of my objec-

tions. But my objections will stand to the certified

copy when it is produced with the exception that my
objection as to it not being certified will be elimin-

ated.

Q. Mr. Stevens, referring to exhibit "C," state

exactly what that is.

A. That is a copy of the Consular invoice made be-

fore the American Consular office in London, sent to
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us with the goods, to turn over to the Custom-house

here before the delivery of the goods are received,

so that they may segregate, or charge duty on any

particular item that is dutiable.

Q. How are the figures arrived at there, as the cost

of drums, creosote, etc., who furnished these figures,

if you know ?

A. I do not know. The cost of drums is evidently

what they pay for them over there. They buy the

drums and simply put the receipt in there.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object to that as simply

an opinion. Unless you know, Mr. Stevens, do not

offer your opinion. [176—5]

A. I do not know.

Q. Mr. Stevens, did you, or your company, pay for

this creosote, upon the figures shown in this Consular

invoice ?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object as immaterial.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I hand you this document, Mr. Stevens, and

ask you what that is.
,

A. A part of the cost of the creosote.

Q. That shows a payment of that amount by you

on this shipment of creosote?

A. That is a part payment.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer this paper in evidence.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object as incompetent,

irrelevant and immaterial; not the best evidence.

And on the further ground that it contains state-

ments which are not properly a part of the cost of

said creosote material to this case.
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Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit *'D," filed and

returned herewith.

Q. Mr. Stevens, I hand you vouchers number 7857,

7785, 77^)0 and 8092, and ask you wliat these vouch-

ers cover.
,

A. Cover payment of freight of the "Sardhana"

cargo.

Q. Does that cover the payment of all the freight?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. "Was any portion of this freight advanced be-

fore the cargo was shipped? A. One half of it.

Q. Does this cover all the freight or the balance

of it? A. This covers all the freight.

^fr. BOGLE.—I offer these vouchers in evidence.

[177—6]

Papers marked Libelant's Exhibits "E," "El,"

*'E2" and "E3," filed and returned herewith.

Q. Examine voucher 7082 and state what that is.

A. Part of the cost of the freight on the cargo of

creosote.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer that in evidence.

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "F," filed and

returned herewith.

Q. Mr. Stevens, Exhibits '^D," "E" and "F" cover

the entire amount paid by you for this shipment of

creosote? A. That covers all; yes.

Q. Are there any items in these vouchers which

are not show^n upon the Consular invoice which has

been introduced as exhibit "C"?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I w^ish you would point out the items there
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which are not included in that invoice?

A. Interest on drafts while in transit, and com-

mission charged in London, and banks commission,

a quarter of one per cent on the draft.

Q. Then the balance of the payments on the vouch-

ers is the price paid by you for the cresote, Mr.

Stevens'?

A. Yes, there is interest on this voucher 7082, ex-

change of a quarter of one per cent, bank interest.

Q. That is not included in the Consular invoice ?

A. No, sir.

Q. With the exception of these items, the balance

of the vouchers show what you paid for this creo-

sote. A. Yes, sir.

Q. State if you know when the freight was paid

upon this [178—7] shipment of creosote.

A. One-half of it was paid in London; the other

half paid at several times while the cargo was being

discharged here.

Q. Mr. Stevens, state if you know whether any

claim was made against the ship for shortage, short

delivery of this shipment.

A. We protested against payment of freight but

the charter party was made out and the number of

drums being delivered, that we were to pay on the

number of drums delivered. We were compelled to

pay the freight.

Q. Who were the agents of the owners?

A. Frank Waterhouse & Company, Seattle.

IQ. Mr. Stevens, I hand you these bills, and ask you

to state what they cover.
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A. Bill of Henry Finch of $1012 is for recovery of

drums of creosote in the bottom of the bay.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer that bill in evidence.

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "G," filed and

returned herewith.

Q. State if yon know the circumstances in connec-

tion with that bill. Why was it necessary to employ

this expense to recover these drums of creosote?

A. A scow while alongside the ship capsized and

the drums sank?

Q. Do you know, of your own knowledge, how

many drums were thrown off the scow into the bay?

A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know" how many drums were recovered

by Mr. Finch? A. 253. [179—8]

Q. Do you know who employed Mr. Finch to do

this work? A. I think Mr. H. R. Rood did.

Q. Do you know whether survey was called and

made after the capsizing of this scow, and if so, who

made the survey?

A. Frank Walker made the survey.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—Let me interrupt you right

here. We had some sort of an understanding about

that Finch bill. Let us have it clear. I do not ob-

ject to it now, because of that understanding.

Mr. BOGLE.—That is what I do not know just

exactly what our understanding was about it. What
we wanted to arrive at was the number of drums

which were capsized from this scow, and the number

of drums recovered by Finch, and that the amount

paid him was a reasonable amount for the work done.
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Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I will agree to all that. It

is a little broader than the statement yesterday.

This is simply to obviate the calling of Mr. Finch, as

I understand it.

Mr. BOGLE.—Yes.
Q. What do the balance of these bills cover ?

A. A bill of the Pacific Creosoting Company for

launch hire, $36.75.

Q. In connection with what was that 1

A. Raising these drums up and getting them off

the bottom during the diving operations.

Q. It was in connection and in conjunction with

the Finch work ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What amount was paid? [180—9]

A. Yes. A bill of $64.20, Pacific Creosote Com-
pany, was for the same service in connection with

that, launch hire and labor. The next bill of the

Crosby Towboat Company, towing and rent of scow

and towing it over to Eagle Harbor, in that connec-

tion.

Qi. For what purpose?

A. In connection with getting the drums off the

bottom ; it was while they were working on the bot-

tom. Bill of Frank Walker, survey report, $75.

Q. That was surveying the scow?

A. Surveyor's report on the cargo.

Q. Which portion of the cargo, Mr. Stevens ?

A. This does not say. Entire cargo on the bill.

There is a survey report for the scow, $25. The bill

of Johnson-Higgins, extending protest and for pro-

fessional services, $60.
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Q. These bills have all been paid, have they?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer these bills in evidence.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object as incompetent,

immaterial and hearsay. It is a self-serving state-

ment, and containing items for which the respondent

is not responsible.

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "H," filed and
returned herewith.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.)—I refer you, Mr.

Stevens, to the bill of the Crosby Towboat Company,

being part of exhibit "H," and ask you if you know

anything about that bill other than that it was paid

by the Pacific Creosoting Company. Please [181

—

10] examine it.

A. Other than that the services were performed.

The services were performed and the bill paid.

Q. You know the bill was paid and the services

were performed? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was that service ?

A. They had to have a scow and take the drums as

they were brought off the bottom, and have the tug

take it over. And they had to have a tug take it over

from here.

Q. To take the scow over to the scene of the ac-

cident? A. Yes.

Q. I refer to the bill in the same connection, of Mr.

Frank Walker, for $25. I will ask you if you know

anything about that bill, other than the fact that it

was paid.
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A. It was for services on the scow that capsized.

Q. You know that, do you ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what work was done?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How do you know it?

A. We have his report.

Q. That is all you know of it?

A. I have seen him over there.

Q. Did you see him working on the scow?

A. I saw him around it.

Q. Surveying it? A. Surveying it.

Q. Where was the scow when it was being sur-

veyed? A. Eagle Harbor. [182—11]

Q. Whereabouts?

A. West of our dock ; in our boom ground, loading

ground.

Q. Was it in the water, or out of the water ?

A. In the water.

Q. When Walker was surveying it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was it still capsized or righted ?

A. I cannot recollect now. I think it was righted.

Q. Did you go on the scow at that time?

A. I was on the scow. I was not there with

Walker. I was on the scow after, or about the time

it was

—

Q. Being surveyed. You were at the scow on or

about the time it was surveyed ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. It was then righted ? A. When I was on it.

Q. When you say "about the time," do you mean

the same day?
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A. No, a few days; the next day, or shortly after

that time.

Q. What I asked first was, whether you saw Mr.

Walker making his examination of the scow.

A. Yes, I did.

Q. And then it was in the water f

A. It was in the water.

Q. And it was righted ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he make more than one examination, to

your knowledge ? A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. And this is the bill for the only examination

that he made? A. Yes. [183—12]

Q. What did this examination consist of?

A. Seeing the condition of the scow.

Q. By what means—looking at it?

A. Well, getting down below, and looking at every-

thing.

Q. Walked along the deck of the scow, did he ?

A. I cannot say as to that.

Q. How large was that scow, approximately?

A. Oh, I suppose it must have been in the neigh-

borhood of 28 or 30 by 80 or 90 feet long.

Q. That was the scow that you say the drums were

on that capsized into the bay ?

A. That capsized into the bay.

Q. Did you speak advisedly when you said the

scow was capsized ?

A. What do you mean by capsized ? Do you mean

clear up-side down?

Q. Turned right over.
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A. No, sir ; I did not. It went over and the stuff

slid right off.

Q. The scow was not capsized?

A. Not at the time I seen it.

Q. No, but at the time of the accident, did it cap-

size ? A. I cannot say, I was not there.

Q. Have you seen the libel in this case, Mr.

Stevens %

A. I cannot say. I would have to see the original.

Q. If this libel was signed in August, 1910, what

was your position then?

A. Secretary of the company then.

Q. You then had knowledge of this libel, didn't

you? A. Indirectly, yes. [184—13]

Q,. Do you know where the company got its infor-

mation that this lighter containing the creosote

driuns capsized?

A. From the superintendent and employees in

charge at the works.

Q. That is where the information came from ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The libel states that the lighter itself capsized.

That information was correct, was it, when you re-

ceived it ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How it capsized you do not know ? A. No.

Q. Are you the same gentleman who answered the

interrogatories filed with the answer in this case ?

A. I think not. I do not think I have been on

before. I do not recollect.

Q. Your name is H. E. Stevens ?

A. Yes, sir. If I seen them I could tell you.
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Q. If you please, look over the interrogatories re-

ferred to and the answers thereto, filed by your com-

pany, and see if you can recognize now whether you

are the man that answered these interrogatories?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You are the man, are you ?

A. Yes, sir. I am.

Q. You knew about this case somewhat, didn't

you f A. Yes, sir ; somewhat.

Q. Will you be the only officer of the company that

will be examined as a witness, present officer ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where, Mr. Stevens, did you get your informa-

tion on which [185—14] the answ^ers to the inter-

rogatories was made?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object. Mr. Stevens does not

know what officers we may call to be examined.

A. From reports made by our employees at the

works.

Q. From who did you get your information that

the various ceilings of the ship near the bulkhead had

been burned ?

A. From Mr. Beal and Mr. Walker.

Q. Give the initials of Mr. Beal. A. F. D. Beal.

Q. Who was he? A. Superintendent.

Q. Who is Mr. Walker? A. Marine surveyor.

Q. You got your information from these two men ?

A. Yes, and possibly others. I do not recollect

now.

Q. You recollect these two.

A. Yes. They were in charge. They were the
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ones. Beal is the man who would naturally give the

Information.

Q. Where did you get the information that about

two-thirds of the bulkhead was burned and charred %

A. From the same sources.

Q. These two gentlemen. Where did you get the

information contained in your answer to the sixth

interrogatory to the effect that the damage on that

ship caused by the fire was such as to require repairs?

A. From the same sources that I got all of it.

Q. Where did you get your information that

formed the basis of the answer to the same sixth

interrogatory that the repairs consisted in the re-

moval of the burned bulkhead and replacing with a

new one? [186—15] A. The same source.

Q. Where did you get your information in answer

to the eighth interrogatory that the lumber on the

*'Sardhana" which was burned was saturated with

creosote ? A. The same sources.

Q. In fact all your information was hearsay ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And came from the gentlemen that you have

named? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know whether either Mr. Beals or Mr.

Walker were present at the fire ? A. I do not.

Q, While the ^'Sardhana" was discharging at

Eagle Harbor, did you have anything to do with the

discharging? A. No, sir.

Q. I thought when you were examined on your

direct examination that you said that you had the

handling of the '' Sardhana's" cargo ?
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A. Simply paying the bills. I had nothing to do

with the actual work over there; simply paid the

bills.

Q. Have you any stock books, I do not mean stock

certificates books, but stock books belonging to the

Pacific Creosoting Company, that would show the

amount of creosote taken from the *'Sardhana'"?

A. I do not know whether they can be found or

not. They were in existence, but I do not know
whether they can be located. They are books that

we have been keeping at the w^orks. There have

been two or three changes of operating forces since

that time.

Q. Well was there not a transcript made from

these books to [187—16] some permanent books

of the company? A. Nothing of that kind.

Q. How do you take stock then, at the end of the

year?

A. We take actual stock at the end of the year.

Q. That includes all your stock. But you have no

books now that would show the amount of the creo-

sote received from the "Sardhana"?

A. Nothing on the books.

Q. Do you know anything about that ?

A. Well, I know about the receipt of the cargo, yes.

Q. Do you know anything about the receipt of the

drums of creosote ? A. Yes.

Q. How do you know^ that ?

A. We got a ship in there. We know she is dis-

charging. We get a report of the discharge, the

number of barrels she discharges and the quantities
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that are in the drums.

Q. You make a record of that? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where is that record ?

A. We have it here, Mr. Bogle has it.

Mr. BOGLE.—I have one record here.

Q. That would be the record of the receipt by you

of creosote by you from the ship % A. Yes, sir.

Q. Produce it if you have it.

Mr. BOGLE.—I produce it under protest, because

it is not proper cross-examination of this witness.

I did not go into that on direct examination.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I do this because of the

witness' statement [188—17] that he would be the

only officer of the company that I would have an

opportunity of examining.

(Paper handed to Mr. McClanahan.)

Q. You have handed me, through your counsel, a

letter signed by F. D. Beale, dated Eagle Harbor,

December 26, 1908, and addressed to the Pacific

Creosoting company as being the data which I called

for. Is that correct % A. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I offer the letter in evi-

dence.

Paper marked Respondent's Exhibit 1, filed and

returned herewith.

Q. Was there any doubt at the time of the receipt

of this letter as to the amount of creosote which had

been received in this cargo "?

A. The exact quantity, yes; the exact number of

gallons.

Q. Was that uncertain quantity ever cleared up ?
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where is the result of that clearing up?

(Witness hands counsel paper.)

Q. You are referring now to another paper, a

yellow sheet of paper, dated March 8th, 1909?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I offer this paper in evi-

dence.

Paper marked Respondent's Exhibit 2, filed and

returned herewith.

Q. This last sheet introduced in evidence purports,

does it not, Mr. Stevens, to be the result of measuring

the creosote left in the damaged drums of the *'Sard-

hana," and nothing more?

A. That is all. [189—18]

Q. Now, will you please answer my former ques-

tion : Did you ever definitely ascertain the amount of

creosote received from the "Sardhana"?

A. We ascertained it by taking the full quantity

which should have been shipped and deducting the

difference between what was in these damaged drums

—what should be in the damaged drums and what

was originally in the damaged drums.

Q. That is how you ascertained the amount of the

cargo. I am referring specifically to the damaged

drums now. You ascertained the amount of creosote

lost by deducting the amount which you measured

from the damaged drums, from the amount which

should have been in the drums if they had been full ?

Mr. BOGLE.—The witness testified that he had

nothing whatever to do with the measuring of this
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creosote or examination of the drums. The only in-

formation he has is the exhibits here which speak for

themselves. How they were made out he does not

know.

A. Yes, sir. I simply, as bookkeeper, entered

them as the record.

Q. You do not know what was in originally the

drums that became damaged. What was the original

quantity or contents of the drums originally 1

A. No, I don't know.

Q. So then your complete record of what was re-

ceived from the "Sardhana" is made up of a com-

pilation of the creosote understood to be in good

drums that did not leak, plus that which was meas-

ured by you from the damaged drums'?

Mr. BOGLE.—I renew my last objection. This

witness had [190—19] nothing to do with the

actual measuring of any creosote and was not present

at the time.

Q. This exhibit 2 is from the files of your office ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And was compiled by your own superintend-

ent ? A. Or some of the clerks in the office.

Q. And sanctioned by him at the time ?

A. Yes, presumably so. He turned it in as a

report.

Q. And as far as you know, as far as the records

of your office show, the creosote received from the

''Sardhana" by you is represented by exhibits 1

and 2? A. Yes, sir. .
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Redirect Examination.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Mr. Stevens, referring to

Respondent's Exhibit 2, I will ask you if you have

any knowledge of the items on there outside of the

exhibits themselves ? A. No, sir.

Q. Were you present at the time the creosote was

measured? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know whether any creosote was pumped
out of the ship and included in this measurement?

A. No, sir.

Q. Or how the measurement was made ?

A. I do not know how it was made.

Q. Do you know whether four drums which were

lost from the scow capsized were included in this?

A. No.

Q. You have no information except as shown here ?

A. No, sir. [191—20]

Q. Counsel asked you if this is the complete file

of your office covering this matter of lost creosote,

lost drums. In making your answer did you refer

to your city office or to your office at the plant?

A. The city office.

Q. Do you know whether there is any other data at

the plant of the Pacific Creosote company, at Eagle

Harbor?

A. Not without making search, I do not know. It

has been so long and so many papers taken out that I

do not know whether it is there or not.

Q. Is it a fact that you are having a search made

for it over there at your plant? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that the place where the data would be?
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A. That is where it would originate. .

Q. This creosote was measured when, how manj-

years ago?

A. 1906 or 1909. Latter part of 1908 and the first

part of 1909.

Q. Mr. Beale was employed at that time in what

capacity? A. Superintendent.

Q. He would have knowledge of these facts'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Upon which counsel has examined you?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. BOGrLE.—I move to strike the cross-examina-

tion of the witness for the reason that it is not proper

cross-examination.

(Testimony of witness closed.) [192—^21]

Seattle, Washington, Feb. 21, 1913.

PRESENT: Mr. BOGLE, for the Libelant.

Mr. McCLANAHAN, for the Respond-

ent.

[Testimony of Roy E. Douglas, for Libelant]

ROY E. DOUGLAS, a witness called on behalf of

the libelant, being first duly sworn, testified as fol-

lows:

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) What is your business?

A. Salmon cannery.

Q. What was your business in the month of No-

vember, 1908?

A. Assistant superintendent of the Pacific Creosote

Company.

Q. How long were you engaged in that capacity

with the company?
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A. In that capacity about two years and a half.

Q. You were assistant superintendent on the 18th

of November, 1908? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Douglas, do you remember the incident of

the fire aboard the ''Sardhana" in November, 1908?

A. I do.

Q. About what way did this fire occur, and what

called your attention to it?

A. As I recollect it occurred about 8:30 P. M.

My attention was called by either the fire-alarm or

cries of fire that apparently came from the British

bark ''Sardhana."

Q. Where were you, Mr. Douglas, w^hen you heard

this fire alarm?

A. We were attending a religious service at a pri-

vate house.

Q. At the house of Mr. Hellman?

A. Yes, sir. [19^—22]

Q. Where is the house situated with reference to

the place where the *'Sardhana" was anchored in

the harbor?

A. Why, about 600 feet in a northern direction

from the house, and moored to the dolphins.

Q. What did you do, Mr. Douglas, when you heard

this fire-alarm?

A. I went to my house and changed my clothes.

Q. Where was your house with reference to the

house of Mr. Hellman ? A. Two doors.

Q. Then what did you do?

A. After changing my clothes I went out aboard

the ship.
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Q. How did you get aboard the ship, did you have

to take a boat? A. No, I walked on the logs.

Q. Out to the ship?

A. Out to the ship.

Q. Was there any evidence of fire when you
arrived aboard the ship. A. Yes, sir.

Q. Just what did you see of the fire aboard?

A. On arrival the sailors were passing water

through the companionway and down through the

captain's cabin and on in towards the fire. And con-

siderable quantities of smoke were issuing from the

companionway. After looking in the companionway

and seeing that it was crowded, I merely remained

out on deck.

Q. Mr. Douglas, how long did it take you from the

time you heard the fire-alarm until you were aboard

the"Sardhana"?

A. My recollection is that it was about 15 min-

utes that had [194—23] elapsed.

Q. Do you know when the fire was finally put out

on board the "Sardhana"?

A. I should judge that the captain was satisfied

the fire was out inside of fifty minutes after I heard

the first alarm given.

Q. Mr. Douglas, were there any fire-extinguishers

used in extinguishing this fire ?

A. Yes, there were.

Q. Where were these fire-extinguishers secured?

A. They were secured on the docks of the creosote

company.

Q. Mr. Douglas, were there any of the employees
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of the creosote company, or crews of any other ves-

sels lying in the harbor assisting in putting out this

fire?

A. I have no recollection of the other crews, but a

number of employees of the company assisted.

Q. Would you have recognized the crews from the

other ships'?

A. No, I would not have recognized them in the

dark.

Q. Did you examine the location of the fire on the

night of November 18th, the night that it occurred,

did you go below?

A. I went only as far as the captain's cabin and

accepted his explanation of the extent and the loca-

tion of the fire that evening.

Q. Did 3'ou at any subsequent time see the location

of the fire and the damage caused by it?

A. I did.

Q. What was the extent of the damage, Mr. Doug-

las?

A. Why, the extent of the damage, as I remember

it, was very small. There was a sort of partition or

[195—24] open framework separating the cargo

from the lazarett, and the lumber of which this par-

tition was constructed was charred quite heavily at

the bottom, but only blackened at the top.

Q. What was the height of that partition?

A. As I recollect it, it was about five feet.

Q. What was the extent of the burning across the

ship ?

A. It was rather dark in that lazarette and I ex-
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amined the thing none too closely, but as I remem-
ber it, the fire extended athwartships probably eight

or ten feet, but it is possible that it ran further, be-

cause I did not crawl over that way to see.

Q. What was the extent of the fire in height, how
far did it burn up this partition.

A. Actually burned, as I remember it, about three

feet; above that it was merely blackened by the

heavy smoke that arose.

Q. Was this entire area of about 8 or 10 feet by

about three feet burned to about the same extent *?

A. No, it was higher in places and lower in others,

as a small fire would run higher in one place than

another.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Did you see the door

of the bulkhead that is in the courthouse?

A. I did not.

Q. Do you know that it was here?

A. I learned it about an hour ago.

Q. (Mr. BOOLE.) You arrived home this morn-

ing, didn 't you ! [196—25]

A. Yes, sir, just arrived at 9 o'clock this morning.

(Testimony of witness closed.) [197—^26]

[Testimony of Frank Walker, for Libelant.]

FRANK WALKER, a witness called on behalf of

the libelant, being duly sworn, testified as follows:

Q. (Mr. BOOLE.) State your name, occupation

and residence, Mr. Walker.

A. Frank Walker. Marine surveyor; naval archi-

tect. Residing at Seattle.
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Q. How long have you been engaged in that busi-

ness, Mr. Walker? A. About fifteen years.

Q. How long have you been engaged in that busi-

ness in the city of Seattle?

A. About that length of time. I cannot say

exactly.

Q. Mr. Walker, did you on or about the 17th day

of November, 1908, and prior thereto and subsequent

dates, make survej- of the cargo over at Eagle Har-

bor which was at that time being unloaded from the

British bark "Sardhana"?

A. Yes, I attended the discharging of the ship.

Q. I hand you this paper, Mr. Walker, and ask you

if that is your report of that survey.

A. Yes, that is one of my reports of the survey of

that cargo.

Q. Did you make more than one survey on the

cargo to ascertain the damage to the cargo and the

loss of creosote?

A. Well, I attended that at various dates, and I

think this runs from November 17th to December

28th.

Q. Does that report of* survey cover the entire

damage to and loss of drums?

A. Yes, this covers all the cargo that was dis-

charged from the ship, the number of gallons dis-

charged, and number [198—27] of gallons sup-

posed to be there.

Mr. BOGrLE.—I offer this paper in evidence.

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "I," filed and

returned herewith.
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Q. Mr. Walker, the recitals on the first page of

that—where did you obtain that information?

A. I obtained it from the vessel's log.

Q. Ship's log? A. Ship's log.

Q. Mr. Walker, I wish you would explain how you

arrived at the figures on page 2, showing the number

of drums that were damaged and lost.

A. I arrived at the number of drums by actual

tally.

Q. How was that tally taken, Mr. Walker, how did

you segregate the damaged ?

A. Well, as the drums came out of the vessel the

good ones were placed in one pile and the damaged

drums were placed in another pile.

Q. Did you afterwards inspect the damaged

drums ? A. I went over every drum.

Q. How many damaged drums were there ?

A. Just as this survey says. I have no other rec-

ollection than the survey.

Q. That survey was taken from your actual ob-

servation and count 1 A. There was 741 damaged.

Q. That is from your actual count?

A. Yes, from my actual count.

Q. What was the extent of the damage, Mr.

Walker. Was the market value of the drums in-

jured or destroyed? [199—^28]

A. The drums were useless. They were stove in

and bulged and dented and leaking; 25 of them were

entirely empty.

Q. Explain how you arrived at the number of gal-

lons of creosote which were lost.
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A. The way we arrived at the loss, we took the in-

voice number of drums and what each should have

contained.

Q. That gave the total nunil)er of gallons.

A. Yes, that should have been there. And as the

drums were emptied into a tank, an empty tank, and

as the dnims were emptied the amount was shown by

the meter reading.

Q. Were these readings taken under your super-

vision? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know whether they were correct?

A. I am satisfied they were correct when I made

that survey.

Q. Do you know whether any lost creosote was

pumped out of the hold of the ship?

A. There was a small quantity pumped out and

dumped into this empty tank.

Q. Do you know in what condition that creosote

was?

A. It was dirty. It had been among the ballast.

Q. Have you any idea now, at this time, approxi-

mately how many gallons were pumped out of the

hold?

A. I could not tell you exactly; three or four thou-

sand gallons.

Q. This report shows a loss here of 56,267.2 gal-

lons. Have you any knowledge as to how that loss

occurred?

A. Well, I know that the creosote was not there.

That the drums were leaky, and in my investigation I

understood it was pumped overboard at sea. [200

—

29]
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iQ. Would that be an ordinary precaution, if

tliere was any great amount of creosote in the hold

in rough weather?

A. Any great amount loose liquid in the hold of a

ship in rough weather would be a damage to the

vessel.

Q. This report of survey showing loss of creosote

and damaged drums, does not show the loss which

occurred by the capsizing of the scow?

A. I made a separate report on that.

Q. I hand you this paper, Mr. Walker, and ask

you if that is your report.

A. Yes, that is my report on that.

Q. The report shows the number of drums on the

scow at the time it capsized?

A. Yes, and shows a report of the number recov-

ered by the divers.

Q. And the number lost.

A. 34 lost; 15 light ones picked up floating, these

were secured, partly empty ones.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer this survey report in evi-

dence.

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "J," filed anH

returned herewith.

Q. Mr. Walker, what was the condition of this

scow at the time you made this examination and sur-

vey?

A. I think it says in there that she was bottom up.

Q. Did you examine to see whether she had made

any water or leaked ?
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A. I cannot say; I cannot remember. (Examines

Exhi]»it 'M.") She was tight. There was nothing

the matter with the barge. I examined her after-

wards.

Q. She conld get no water in her? [201—30]

A. No, she was not leaking.

Q. When did you examine her, how long after she

capsized ?

A. I cannot say. I cannot remember exactly.

When I examined the barge she was righted up on

the gridiron.

Q. Mr. Walker, do you remember making a sur-

vey of the ''Sardhana" to ascertain the extent of the

fire which occurred on board of her on November

18, 1908 '^ A. I do.

Q. I hand you this report of survey and ask you if

that is your report made from that examination"?

A. Yes, sir, that is my report on that.

Q. Do you remember when you made that exam-

ination, Mr. Walker?

A. I made that examination on the 20th day of

November.

Q. This report was made from personal investi-

gation and inspection of the fire as to the amount of

damage ?

A. Yes, sir. The report distinctly states what I

found and the exact date of it.

Q. Mr. Walker, do you remember now the extent

of the burning of the bulkhead and the door?

A. I remember that the bulkhead was consider-

ably charred more or less all along the forward pai*t
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of it, including the door.

Q. What was the width of the bulkhead?

A. Ran right across the ship.

Q. Do you have any idea how far it was across the

ship?

A. I do not know. The beam of the ship prob-

ably forty feet. Entirely across the aft between-

decks.

Q. It was burned more or less all the way across ?

A. Yes, more or less all the way across—no, not

all the [202—31] way across, about the center of

the bulkhead, and I would say there was some 25 feet

charred and burned.

Q. Was the nature of the burning about the same

all along?

A. Yes. It varied ; it went up and down. Varied

on the bulkhead, but distinctly showed the fire, it was

charred.

Q. Was there any cargo or stores in the immediate

vicinity of this fire?

A. Yes, creosote drums in the immediate vicinity,

forward of it.

Q. Was there any dunnage?

A. Yes, dunnage where the fire originated in the

dunnage lying at the bottom of the bulkhead on the

between-decks.

Q. Was this the dunnage that had been used in

stowing the creosote?

A. Yes, there was more or less of it.

Q. Was there any burning or charring of the ceil-

ing of the vessel?



V8. Pacific Creosoting Company. 195

(Testimony of Frank Walker.)

A. Let me see my i-eport. (Examines repoi-t.)

There was none to the ceiling of the vessel. She had

no ceiling. She had battens on her sides. On the

between-decks there was no ceiling.

Q. AVas there any portion of the dunnage on fire

burned?

A. Yes, there was a lot of the dunnage burned and

charred.

Q. Was the flooring damaged to any extent?

A. You mean the deck?

Q. Yes.

A. No. There was quite a good deal of this dun-

nage had run up two or three feet high just where

they had thrown the dunnage after removing some

of the drums. That dunnage was all distributed

across the forward part of [203—32] the bulk-

head. The tire did not get down to the deck.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Mr. Walker, where

did you obtain your information, other than that

which have personal knowledge of, in regard to the

fire? A. From the master of the vessel.

Q. Did you know at the time of the fire how the

discharging of the drums had progressed?

A. Did I know at the time of the fire?

Q. Yes, how much had been discharged?

A. I cannot remember now.

Q. Who was it did the tallying of the drums as

they were discharged?

A. I cannot tell you who they were now. They

were tallymen employed by the Pacific Creosote
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Company, I believe.

Q. What was your particular employment at that

time?

A. My emploj-ment was to watch that cargo as i^

was discharged from the vessel and report on the

same what I found.

Q. Report on its condition 1

A. 'On its condition and the quantity discharged

and the condition of the drums as they came out.

Q. You do not now know how far the discharging

had progressed at that time?

A. No, I do not remember.

Q. You do not know then whether the drums

immediately forward of the bulkhead had been

reached in the discharging or not?

A. Well, some of the drums had been taken out,

but the [204—33] majority of the drums in the

between-deck

—

iQ. I do not think you understand me. There

were drums piled in front of the bulkhead?

A. Yes.

Q. Stood there. A. Yes, sir.

Q. In the between-decks ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You do not know whether these drums or any

part of them had been discharged at the time of the

fire?

A. I do not recollect. I know I went over the top.

of the drums to get to where the fire was.

Q. So that they had not been discharged?

A. No, sir.

Q. Then where did this dunnage come from that
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you say was thrown forward of the bulkliead?

A. I cannot tell you where the dunnage came from

exactly, because the cargo had shifted at sea, and

there was a lot of dunnage scattered all over. They

had been restowing it at sea.

Q. How do you know that there was dunnage

there? A. Because I saw it.

Q. Saw what, the remains of the dunnage?

A. The dunnage was not all burned up, yes.

Q. Did you see any charred dunnage?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was it loose? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there any charred dunnage in front of the

bulkhead at the time?

A. There was dunnage at the forward side of the

bulkhead more or less scattered all over. [205—S4]

Q. Answer my question directly.

A. There would be some forward in the way of the

door.

iQ. You remember distinctly that there was

charred dunnage in front of the bulkhead door?

A. No, I do not, immediately in front of it.

Q. Was there dunnage in the drums themselves?

A. Between the drums.

Q. In front of the bulkhead door. A. Yes, sir.

Q. You saw that, did you ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that charred? A. No, sir.

Q. How far was that dunnage and the ends of the

drums from the bulkhead door?

A. Oh, I could not tell you ; some little distance.

Q. Give us your best estimate.
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A. I could not tell you. Probably five or six feet.

Q. That is your best recollection.

A. Y/es, I could not recollect.

Q. You might be mistaken about that?

A. I would not swear to the distance the drums

were from the bulkhead.

Q. Might be 18 inches.

A. No, it might be more than that. You could

walk between them.

Q. It might be two feet. A. More than that.

Q. Mr. Walker, was your report of survey on this

fire assisted in any way by an examination of the

ship's [206—3.5] log?

A. Not the fire report, not that I recollect. The

master's statement. He had his log-book in the

cabin, and had his entry in the log-book of the fire*,,

I remember reading that.

iQ. If there is a similarity between the language

of the log and the language of your fire report, how

do you account for that?

A. Because the master had a written report which

he gave me to read.

Q. So, then, your report was assisted by some in-

formation that you received from the master?

A. Yes, regarding the origin of the fire and what

took place.

Q. And the fire itself?

A. And the fire itself. I was not present when the

fire was burning.

Q. So that your report then in part is assisted?
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A. It says exactly what it says.

Q. Assisted by some information that you received

from the master, either written report or an exam-

ination of his log? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, is your testimony at all assisted by this

report from the master?

A. No, I cannot say that my testimony is.

iQ. Have you an independent recollection now of

the fire, as you saw it, the effects of it?

A. I have an independent recollection after four

or five years. [207—36]

Q. Is that a very strong oj^inion or memory ?

A. I have a strong recollection after reading my
repoi*ts on that of the fire, yes, I have a good recol-

lection.

Q. Now, you have made a statement that that fire

extended athwartships? A. Yes, sir.

Q. For some 25 feet.

A. I said maybe twenty feet.

iQ. It might be less than that?

A. I did not measure it.

Q. Now, as a matter of fact, Mr. Walker, don't

you remember that the bulkhead door was the seat of

the fire?

A. No. I remember the bulkhead was burned in

a similar manner to the door in numerous places.

Q. Numerous places? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How would you account for a fire that had that

kind of an origin, what is your opinion ?

A. I did not attempt to arrive at any.

Q. Well, it would indicate, from your testimony,
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would it not, that that fire had been set in several

different places along the bulkhead?

A. I should not hazard an opinion on it. The

fire was there, I was positive of that, and there was

more of it than the door.

Q. And you think, as you remember it now

—

A. It might have run along on inflammable ma-

terial, you could not tell.

Q. There were several distinct sets of fire, original

fire, as you remember ? [208—37]

A. Not several distinct sets. I remember the fire

went up and down as a fire will go.

Q. Do you know the character with reference to

inflammability of saturated or dunnage saturated

with creosote as to inflammability ?

A. I have not gone deeply into that.

Q. Did you assist in the preparation of an ex-

tended protest for the master to sign?

A. Not that I am aware of.

Q. Did you assist in the preparation of any papers

for the Pacific Creosote Company?

A. I have no recollection of that in any way at all.

Q. Did you at the request of the Pacific Creosote

Company furnish them with any information?

A. I furnished the Pacific Creosote all the infor-

mation contained in these reports. That is my busi-

ness, I was employed by them to do it.

Q. Did they, as far as you know, receive from you

the data upon which they formed their libel ?

A. I know nothing about their libel at all. All the

data they ever received that I have any recollection
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of is in these reports.

Q. In this case we ijropounded to the libelant cer-

tain (questions which they have answered, and I

would like to ask you, Mr. Walker, if you had any-

thing to do with furnishing the data on which the

answers were based in their liljel. They say that the

bulkhead together with the bulkhead door was

burned. They further say that other parts of the

ship were burned, and we asked them the question,

what were these other parts of the [209—38] ship

that had been burned. Did you furnish them the

data for the answer to that ?

A. All I recollect furnishing them is the reports

I have given, that you have a copy of there. I talked

them over with them, but I do not recollect furnish-

ing any information.

Q. Their answer was that the floors and ceiling of

the ship near said bulkhead were burned. Did you

furnish them with that information?

A. No, not that I am aware of.

Q. Is that true, that the floors and ceilings were

burned near the bulkhead'?

A. There are no floors there. The report covers

all there was of the fire.

Q. You mean by saiding there is no floor there

there is the between-decks ?

A. That is not a floor, that is a deck.

Q. That might be a floor to a man who is not

versed in marine matters, and the underneath of the

deck might be the ceiling, and that is evidently what

the Pacific Creosote Company meant when it said
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that the ceiling and the floors were burned. That is

not in accordance with the facts?

A. We speak of the ceiling down below.

Q. That is not in accordance with the fact, is it ?

A. There was no deck burned.

Q. Now, we ask them another question. We ask

them if the whole of the bulkhead forward of the

lazarette was burned, and if it was nut, how much

of it was burned, and they reply that about two-

thirds of it was burned [210—39] and charred.

Did you furnish them with that information %

A. I cannot say. I may have done so.

Q. How high was the bulkhead?

A. The bulkhead ran from deck to deck.

Q. How high would that be ?

A. I should say the deck was about seven feet six.

Q. Your estimate of the beam of the ship was

forty feet? A. Not the beam of the ship

—

Q. I do not mean the beam technically speaking,

but the athwartship there.

A. The beam of the ship would be about forty feet

forward and the ship would decrease going aft, but

I could not say.

Q. Give your best estimate what the athwartships

would be there.

A. That is easily obtained from Lloyd's Register.

I cannot give you her beam. She is a small bark, if

I remember right.

Q. Suppose I assume the beam of the ship was 35

feet, cannot you give an estimate of the width of that

bulkhead?
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A. Estiniatin^i: the beam of the ship at 35 feet, she

^vould run in there to al)out 30 or 31 feet.

Q. Was it correct, then, for the Pacific Creosoting

Company to si\y that two-thirds of this bulkhead,

seven feet high by thirty feet wide was burned and

charred?

A. Well, assuming that she is about thirty feet

wide there, there would be about twenty feet of the

bulkhead burned, that would be true.

Q. Was there 20 feet burned? [211—40]

A. I estimate that.

Q. That is your judgment? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you seen the door?

A. Not since it was in the ship when I examined it.

Q. You have not seen it since it was brought here ?

A. No, sir. I have never seen the door since it

was removed.

Q. You knew it was here ? A. I heard it was.

Q. You have been in the city, have you, all the

time?

A. Not all the time. My home is in the city.

Q. When did you first hear that the door was here ?

A. That I could not say ; a few days ago.

Q. Have you any objection to stating why you did

not want to see it, did not see it?

A. I have never been asked to see it. I certainly

am not going to take a trip to the courthouse just to

pass the time.

Q. By the way, did you make a survey of this fire ?

A. I was requested to make a survey as the survey

report calls for.
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Q. There was no cargo burned ?

A. Well, at that time I was informed that there

had been a fire on the ship and they would like me
to make a survey and report what the damage was.

That is all I know about it.

Q. Something unusual, was it not ?

A. No, not in that line of business.

Q. I mean the circumstances.

A. They did not know themselves whether there

was any [212—41] cargo damaged, I don't sup-

pose. Anything that happened at that time I was

asked to report on.

Q. Now, going back to these questions again. We
asked them whether the damage caused by the fire

was such as needed repairing, such as required re-

pairing, and their reply was that the damage was

such as it required repairs, and that the repairs were

made and consisted of removing the burned bulkhead

and building a new one in its place. Did you furnish

them with that information f

A. No, I had nothing to do with that.

Q. Do you know whether that is true or not ?

A. No, the bulkhead was not renewed while the

cargo was coming out of the ship. It was after I

finished with the ship.

Q. Did they require renewing ?

A. Oh, yes, it required renewing.

Q. Did you know^ that the ship was owned by

Andrew AVeir & Co. %

A. Oh, yes, I did, casually.

Q. Who was their surveyor, their personal sur-
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veyor here at the time f

A. I believe Captain Panton was their surveyor.

Q. Was there not Captain Baird ?

A. No, he was their superintendent. I think Cap-

tain Panton was surveying; the cargo for them.

Q. He surveyed the cargo f

A. I believe so. I know he was over there on some

ships.

Q. He is dead now ?

A. Yes. We used to go over together. [213—42]

Q. You saw nothing yourself of the fire ?

A. Oh, no, I was not there until two days after.

Q. Did you make more than one examination %

A. I went over and examined the fire, made my
notes and went back and made my report. I do not

think I ever took any more notice of it.

Q. What do you mean by notes ?

A. My notes that I made in my book, regarding the

damage and entered it in the report.

Q. Where is that note-book ?

A. Oh, Lord ! That is in the files of the past.

Q. You did not keep them ?

A. No, they are no use.

Q. It is a good practice to keep your note-books.

A. I keep some of them if there is any interest in

them.

Q. I understand from your testimony that you

considered fire quite an important fire %

A. I considered that the vessel had a very narrow

escape.

Q. Because of the possibilities or the actualities?
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A. Because of the actualities.

Q. You think it was from your examination actu-

ally a material fire ? Materially important ?

A. There was the marks of a good fire.

Q. You are now touching on possibilities. Was
there actually a good fire ?

A. Yes, sir, there was a fire, a good fire there. Of

course, if the creosote once got to going there would

have been something doing.

Q. But in your judgment there was actually a

material fire ? [214^-43]

A. There was actually a material fire there.

Q. What, in your opinion, was the value of the

damage done there %

A. Oh, the value of the damage I should say was

$150 to $200.

Q. This bulkhead was so damaged that you con-

sidered that it was proper and necessary that it

should be removed and repaired ?

A. If it had been mine I should have renewed it.

Q. For what purposes, for performing the duty

for which it was originally intended?

A. The bulkhead was intended to divide off the

lazarette from the cargo slips and from the stores;

that is where all the ship 's stores are.

Q. The repairs were necessary for that purpose ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. So that the fire had materially weakened and

injured this partition?

A. Yes, sir, it certainly had.

Q. You have in your experience since then been
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pretty busy haven't you, making surveys of ships'?

A. Yes, busy all the time, practically speaking.

Q. You are not very zealous to retain these little

matters of detail in your mind for any considerable

time, are you f

A. No, after I report on matters, as a rule they

pass from my sight.

Q. You rely on your reports to refresh your
memory ?

A. Yes, sir, otherwise I would get them mixed.

Q. So that your reports, where they contain in-

formation at first hand, are more apt to be reliable

now than [215—44] your recollection ?

A. Yes, the report is more apt to be reliable than

my recollection.

Q. Now, I want to call your attention to your sur-

vey of the barge or lighter, that was capsized. Will

you state when it was, after the capsizing of the

barge, assuming that the capsizing of the barge was

on the 21st of November, how long after that was it

that you saw the barge yourself?

A. I stated in the report that I examined the barge,

I examined the barge the same date.

Q. You examined the barge the same day it was

capsized? A. She was bottom up, rather.

Q. Where was she when you examined her?

A. If I remember rightly, she was still made fast

alongside the ship.

Q. Is that where you made your survey of her ?

A. Where I made my first examination of her.

Q. What did that examination consist of ?
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A. Simply looking at the barge as she lay cap-

sized.

Q. You did not get much information ?

A. No, none.

Q. Of course, a man in your profession is so used

to noting and finding out the cause of things and

ordinary matters in your line, that sometimes you

come to conclusions, do you not, without investiga-

tion and an investigation may prove it to be true,

but you sometimes reach conclusions on a cursory

examination, don't you?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object as incompetent and imma-

terial.

A. Sometimes I hazard an opinion to myself.

[216—45]

Q. Did you hazard an opinion to yourself when

you first saw this capsized lighter, as to the cause of

its capsizing?

A. No, I took the statements of the people, and be-

lieved it was correct that the cargo shifted on the

barge and caused her to capsize.

Q. What people made you that statement ?

A. I think it was the master, the master and mates.

Q. And before that you had not hazarded an opin-

ion yourself ?

A. No, I asked the reason for it,, to start with, what

caused it.

Q. Did not there appeal to your mind a reason, at

once?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object as incompetent.

A. Well, I cannot say so. A barge is very apt to

capsize. _ ,..
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Q. Don't they capsize for one well known reason?

A. They capsize for various reasons. Improperly

loaded. Water in them. Shifting cargo. It is very

easy for them. In towing a barge of gravel or sand

or brick or anything of that kind, get into a seaway

and shifting it over, in nearly every case the barge

will go right over.

Q. Did you ever know of a barge to capsize from

stress of sea or wind, and nothing else ?

A. Yes, I have known them to capsize from stress

of weather combined with shifting of cargoes or leak-

age.

Q. Now, you are getting on to something that seems

to me is the true reason for the capsizing of the

barge, and that is leakage. Is not that the only thing

that will cause them to capsize ?

A. Oh, no. Not in that case, where the barge had

no water [217—46] in it when I examined it.

Q. Now, let us assume that we are loading a barge

with creosote drums. A. Yes.

Q. Do you know who loaded them and how they

were loaded in this instance ?

A. I don't know how they were loaded.

Q. Well, assume then that barge was loaded with

drums athwartships lying on their sides ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you remember the way these iron drums

had iron rims around them projecting over the sides,

and they were built up as a pyramid, three tiers high,

so that if that barge capsized she must have capsized

athwartships ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, how could that barge so loaded capsize
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athwartships unless she is leaking ?

A. Oh, very easily.

Q. Just explain it.

A. By the shifting of the cargo on the deck of the

barge.

Q. How could that cargo shift ?

A. There was a swell, and the vessel bumped into

the barge or the barge bumped into the vessel and

caused it to shift. I was satisfied of that.

Q. If it shifted you mean the barge must list?

A. Yes.

Q. If it listed to one side what would be the result

on the cargo ?

A. Result in the cargo sliding overboard and over

would go the barge. [218—47]

Q. As soon as the drums slid overboard, either port

or starboard side, would not the barge right itself on

the other side ?

A. The barge would go down on the heavy side.

Q. When that was released from the weight

though she would right herself?

A. No, she would go over again.

Q. Right herself and go to port, if the load had

gone over the starboard side ?

A. If the barge was to tip again over to this side,

if there was some cargo aboard, it would come on the

other side.

Q. And throw over something there.

A. We can tip a barge over with a few tons of

gravel. They frequently do it, to turn it upside

down to cork them.
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Q. If a barge is leaking and has water in it there

would be a permanent list, increasing all the time,

would there not? A. Yes, a gradual list.

Q. That would absolutely necessitate the capsizing

of the barge ?

A. No, that would speak for itself and ])e looked

after by the people in time.

Q. Suppose that the barge was listing gradually

at night time, leaking, that would be a permanent list

that eventually w^ould capsize the barge ?

A. Yes, eventually capsize the barge.

Q. Do you know which way this barge capsized ?

A. No, I do not.

Q. Where did you get, or did you get any informa-

tion as to the cause of the capsizing? [219—48]

A. I got my inforaiation from the crew of the ship.

Q. What was said to you ?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object as immaterial and hearsay.

A. Just what it states in the report.

Q. Do you know^ now what it says in the report

without refreshing your recollection ?

A. No. I think it says a heavy gale sprang up,

an unusually heavy gale for that harbor, southwest-

erly, and that she bumped into the "Sardhana" and

caused the cargo to shift and the barge capsized. I

think something to that elfect.

Q. The report says :
" In my opinion the cause of

the accident was entirely due to the part cargo of

drums shifting on the deck of the barge, the harbor

in which the ship and barge were moored is con-

sidered perfectly safe, and protected from wind, but
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on this occasion an exceptionally heavy ground swell

swept in."

A. The first part of the report, will you read that ?

Q. That is the report obtained, you say, from the

manager of the creosote works and from the officers

of the bark "Sardhana"?

A. Yes, sir, that is right.

Q. Did you give your opinion in your own way

—

where did you get your

—

A. I gave my opinion from the information I

received.

Q. So that your opinion and the information you

received in regard to the capsizing of the lighter are

supposed to be identical ?

A. This states here '^ Before a tug could be ob-

tained to move the barge she collided heavily with the

bark which [220—49] contact shifted the drums

to one side, and caused the barge to capsize.
'

'

(Previous question read to witness.)

A. Well, I formed my opinion from the informa-

tion I received from the facts that I saw.

Q. Now, after this first visit to the barge, I under-

stand you saw it again *?

A. I saw the barge again, yes.

Q. Where was it then?

A. I think the barge was at West Seattle at that

time. I would not swear it was.

Q. Was righted when you saw it ?

A. The second time, yes.

Q. How long afterwards 1 A. I could not say.

Q. A number of days ? A. I could not say.
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Q. What does the report say ?

A. I do not pretend to remember five or six years.

Yes, the report shows it was some days after. The

report covers from November 23 to December 12.

Q. So that it was probably around December 12th

that you made this further examination?

A. No, I could not say the date of it ; I would not

attempt to say.

Q. It was some days after you first saw it ?

A. Yes, they towed her away and righted her and

she was on the gridiron.

Q. What was the examination and survey you

made then, do you remember? [221—50]

A. Well, I walked around the barge and examined

her. There was nothing done to the barge, and she

was not leaking.

Q. That is the extent of your examination, walk-

ing around the barge ?

A. That was all that was necessary. There was

nothing done to her. She was on the gridiron.

Q. You mean she was out of water?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not do any corking ?

A. I did not have anything done at all.

Q. That examination formed the basis of your

report?

A. That examination was sufficiently close to be

sure of the condition of the barge.

Q. It formed the basis of your report ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, the next matter that I wiU ask you about
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is the report on the damaged creosote. I believe you

have already said that statements of facts contained

in your report are more apt to be correct than your

recollection now? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Because they were made at the time ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who was it that emptied these 741 damaged

drums and measured the creosote contained in them?

A. It was done under the superintendent of the

Pacific Creosoting Company.

Q. You had nothing to do with that?

A. Oh, no.

Q. They simply reported to you that they had

emptied these [222—51] drums and measured the

contents ?

A. I saw quite a number emptied.

Q. They reported to you that they had measured

the contents of the damaged drums ?

A. They gave me the meter readings.

Q. Then they contained how many gallons ?

A. They gave the meter reading as it was dis-

charged, as it was emptied.

Q. Did you have anything to do with the compila-

tion of the aggregate number of gallons ?

A. I took the meter readings and made my own
deductions.

Q. What was it you did in the way of figuring,

actually ?

A. The superintendent would give me the reading

of the meter each day.

Q. Each day? A. Each day. -
'
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Q. It took more than one day to empty these?

A. I mean the whole cargo.

Q. I speak of the damaged drums. Did not you

treat this separately from the other drums'?

A. The damaged dinims were all put to one side

and were last emptied.

Q. When you took these up and began to empty

the damaged drums, was the meter reading made to

you as a finality or was it made piece-meal?

A. Made to me in piece-meal. This is the final

entry.

Q. It was your mental calculations that arrived at

this result that there was so many gallons of creo-

sote?

A. It was arrived at jointly between the super-

intendent of the creosote company and myself. [223

Q. Did you see them in the process of emptying

the drums ? A. Yes, a great number of them.

,Q. Then from the contents of the damaged drums

you proceeded to take that amount from the amount

you supposed the drums should have contained, if

full? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And the result was the lost creosote.

A. The creosote that was missing.

Q. When you first went on board the "Sardhana,"

did you make any examination of the hold of the

vessel to find out how much creosote was in it?

A. No, I did at the last. You could not tell at the

first.

Q. At the last you did? A. Yes, sir.



216 Thames & Mersey Marine Ins. Co., Ltd.,

(Testimony of Frank Walker.)

Q. What did you find?

A. I found there was a little creosote in the bilges.

Q. How many inches'? A. I could not say.

Q. You did not make any soundings'?

A. I went down in the hold with the superintend-

ent and that creosote was taken out of the bilges and

sent ashore.

Q. You saw it taken out. How was it taken out"?

A. In barrels, if I remember right.

Q. Pumped out by the crew?

A. I don't know who pumped it out.

Q. You saw it being put in barrels, did you?

A. I saw it in barrels.

Q. Do you know what became of it afterwards?

A. Put in the tank with the rest. [224—53]

Q. Did you see it?

A. I did not stand by watching it go into the tanks.

Q. How do you know it went into the tank?

A. I am satisfied it did; they would not throw it

away.

Q. Do you have a record of the amount of creosote

put in barrels ?

A. No, not separately, because I had the final

meter reading, that was dumped with the rest of the

damaged stuff.

Q. Your final meter readings shown by your re-

port, do not show a statement of the creosote from

the barrels ?

A. No, because they treated that the same as the

rest of the cargo. It was just the final clean-up.

Q. The creosote from the barrels went into the
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general tank with the balance of the creosote, did it?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And treated as good creosote?

A. I don't know anything about that how they

treated it. That is what they gave me as good

creosote.

Q. Gave credit. A. In the figures.

Q. What became of the 56,000 gallons that were

missing?

A. I don't know. All I can tell you is what the

crew told me, that it was pumped overboard.

Q. What member of the crew told you it was

pumped overboard?

A. I think several of them. The captain did not,

but the mates did.

Q. The mates. That is the only way that it could

be accounted for?

A. That is the only way; it was not in the bark.

Q. Could not get out of the ship? [225—54]

Q. Do you know how much was finally pumped out

of all the limbers?

A. Three or four thousand gallons.

Q. How do you know?

A. Well, I recollect that is about what we esti-

mated it.

Q. How much would that be in barrels?

A. I could not tell you.

Q. Could you give an estimate?

A. No, I could not.

Q. Do you know^ anything about how long it took

to pump it? A. No.
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Q. Did you see them pumping on more than one

occasion? A. No.

Redirect Examination.

Q. (Mr. BOGrLE.) Do you know the nimiber of

gallons contained in a drum of creosote ?

A. I do not recollect. I did know at the time but

it has gone from my mind.

Q. Do you remember whether the gallons con-

tained in your report referred to Imperial gallons or

United States gallons ?

A. I could not swear to that. I think it was Im-

perial gallons all of it.

Q. I call your attention to a note at the bottom of

Exhibit "I," and ask you if that is your note, in

pencil?

A. No, I did not make that. That is not my writ-

ing.

Q. It is ''56,267.2 United States gallons equals

46,889 1/3 Imperial gallons."

A. I don't know who made that note. I don't

know anything [226—55] about it.

Q. Did you check any of the meter readings of the

creosote that was emptied into this tank that were

made from day to day at the plant of the creosote

company, as to the number of gallons that were

dumped into the tank?

A. Yes. I checked them and satisfied myself that

they were correct.

Q. Counsel has examined you upon your survey of

the fire damage. You stated that some of the infor-

mation contained in that survey was taken from an
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abstract of the vessel's log. Was there any state-

ment contained in that survey as to the extent of the

damage, extent of the fire obtained from any other

source than your own inspection?

A. No, not the extent of the damage.

Q. That was from your own inspection ?

A. There was some stores damaged that I did not

take any note of at all.

Q. Do you know at what temperature creosote is

inflammable? A. No, I do not.

Q. Mr. Walker, when was this matter first taken

up with you by the libelant in this case as to the

question of getting your testimony in this case, do

you remember?

A. No, as near as I can recollect just a few days

ago.

Q. Do you remember whether or not you were

leaving town and were unable to attend at the hear-

ing yesterday ? A. Yes, I do.

Q. When did you return ? A. This morning.

Q. And you testified here this morning and you

would not have had an opportunity to examine that

door, would you? [227—56]

A. No, I had no opportunity to examine that door

this morning.

Q. Mr. Walker, the libelant's answer to interroga-

tories which counsel has referred to. The answer to

the 6th interrogatory states that the damage was
such as to require repairs, and goes on to say what
the repairs would be. Subsequently that the repairs

were made by the ship's carpenter. Have you any
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information about that? A. No, none at all.

Q. Do you know whether they made the repairs

here or not?

A. I do not know who made the repairs.

Q. Mr. Walker, from your examination of this

barge do you state positively there was no water in

her at the time she capsized?

A. There was no water in her at the time.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—^I object as calling for a

conclusion. He made no examination of the barge

at the time.

Q. I will ask you whether there was any water in

her.

A. There was no water, the barge capsized. No
water in her when I examined her, on the gridiron.

Q. Was it necessary to pump any water out of her

before she could be towed to West Seattle before

putting her on the gridiron?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. If she had been full of water and leaking, could

you easily tell whether she had water in her?

A. When she was capsized?

Q. If this barge had no water in her at the time she

capsized ^vas there any way, any cause, anything

which would cause her to capsize on the shifting of

the cargo? [228—57]

A. Not that I could see; the heavy swell would

shift the cargo.

Q. This report upon this damage to the barge, was

that made from one inspection that you made of the

barge when she was on the gridiron, or from all your
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inspections at various times?

A. I inspected her when she was bottom up and

when she was on the j^ridiron.

Q. And your report w^as made from these inspec-

tions? A. Yes, sir.

(Testimon}^ of witness closed.)

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer in evidence the survey report

identified by the witness relating to the fire on board

the"Sardhana."

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit *'K," filed and

returned herewith. [229—58]

[Testimony of Joseph Robert Bamaby, for

Libelant.]

JOSEPH ROBERT BARNABY, a witness called

on behalf of the libelant, being dul}^ sworn, testified

as follows:

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) What is your business?

A. Importing creosote.

Q. Where do you reside? A. Seattle.

Q. Do you import creosote on your own account or

represent some firm or corporation?

A. I import on my own account. Previously I

acted as agent of Blagden, Waugh & Company, of

London.

Q. Were you acting as their agent in the year

1908?

A. Yes, sir. I was their agent in the year 1908.

Q. Mr. Barnaby, do you know whether or not the

firm represented by you, sold any creosote to the

Pacific Creosote Company in the year 1908, which
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was shipped from England to Eagle Harbor by the

British bark ^'Sardhana'"?

A. Yes, sir, I sold that cargo myself to the Pacific

Creosote Company.

Q. The negotiations were made through you, were

they ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know how many drums of creosote were

shipped in that consignment?

A. As far as my recollection, about 2700.

Q. Do you know what price the Pacific Cfeosote

Company paid you, or your comany?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object as immaterial.

A. Yes, I do know the price by looking up my
records. I think I recollect the price.

Q. Mr. Barnaby, I hand you a document marked

exhibit "C," and ask you if you know, of your own

knowledge, what that [230—59] document is?

A. Yes. That is the Consular invoice for that par-

ticular cargo.

Q. And the different items on there represent the

cost to the creosote company of the different items

there shown, and the aggregate sum is the sum paid

by the creosote company for that cargo?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object as immaterial.

A. Yes, sir, that is the amount.

Q. Is that the reasonable market value of that, do

you remember?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object on the ground that

the witness is not qualified to testify.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you been engaged in the creo-
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sote business? A. Seven years.

Q. During that time had you been selling creosote

to any great extent?

A. Oh, yes, quite a large extent.

Q. And do you know, among the sales that you

have made, that the price paid for this creosote was

the reasonable price for the amount of creosote in

drums, contained in this consignment?

A. Yes. I recollect now that the price of that

cargo was sixpence and nine-sixteenths, c. i. f.

Seattle.

Q. Per gallon? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I call your attention to the different items.

A. I remember the amount now which I sold the

cargo at to the Pacific Creosoting Company. [231

—

60]

Q. I call your attention to the different items in

the Consular invoice, and ask you if the amounts

shown opposite the different items, the total of which

make up the aggregate sum which was paid for the

creosote, were the reasonable value of the different

items of drums, creosote, etc., as shown?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object, the witness is not

qualified.

A. Yes, these are the reasonable figures. These

figures are correct; I know them to be.

Q. As agent of the shipper of this creosote, did

you attend at Eagle Harbor at the time this creosote

was being unloaded, to see the condition of the creo-

sote? A. I did.

Q. And were you there at all times when the creo-
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sote was being unloaded*?

A. No, I was not. I was there several times.

Q. Will you state to the Court, Mr. Barnaby,

whether or not any of the drums containing this creo-

sote were damaged ?

A. A great number were damaged.

Q. Could you give us an estimate of the number of

drums which were damaged?

A. Well, from my observation about 25% of the

whole cargo was damaged.

Q. About what would that be, providing the cargo

was 2753 drums ?

A. There was about 700 drums damaged according

to m}^ recollection.

Q. What was the extent of the damage to these

drums ?

A. Why, the drum, the packages were unmerchant-

able, they were in such a bad state. [232—61]

Q. That is, the drums themselves? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What about the contents of the drums, did you

make an examination of that % A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. What could you say as to the contents of these

drums?

A. Well, they were pretty well emptied; very

little creosote in the drums.

Q. You have no idea as to the amount of loss of

creosote from these drums, have you?

A. No, except that I opened the bungs of many
of them. I looked in and I could see that many of

them were only a third full; some were half full.
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I do not think that there were any that I saw more

than half full.

Q. Mr. Barnaby, do you know the number of gal-

lons contained in a full drum of creosote?

A. Yes, sir; 90 Imperial gallons.

Q. What would that be in United States gallons'?

A. About 109 to no.

Q. Do you know the reasonable cost or value of

a drum of creosote delivered at Eagle Harbor, that

is the empty drum itself?

Mr, McCLANAHAN.—I object on the ground

that the witness is not qualified.

A. Yes, because I do a considerable business in

the sale of empty drums.

Q. What would be the value of an empty drum

delivered at Eagle Harbor?

A. Six to seven dollars apiece.

Q. What is the value of the creosote per gallon

delivered [233—62] to Eagle Harbor, taking

into consideration the freight, insurance, etc., of car-

rying the creosote from your plant in England to

Eagle Harbor?

A. Do you refer to this particular cargo ?

Q. This particular cargo, yes.

A. Eight pence and nine-sixteenths to one penny,

English gallon.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Mr. Barnaby, what

was the c. i. f. value of the drums of creosote in

November, 1908, here ?

A. That is the same question?
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Q. The same.

A. Eight pence nine-sixteenths to one penny, Im-

perial gallon.

Q. Will you give me the c. i. f . value of the entire

package ? A. If you multiply by ninety

—

Q. Please do so. Give it to us in American money.

A. That will take some figuring.

Q. I will give you paper and lots of time. You

can do that, can you not ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do so.

A. If my recollection is correct that would be

$13.72.

Q. $13.72 represents the price of one drum of

creosote including the package.

A. No, it would be more than that.

Q. Delivered in Seattle. A. $15.72.

Q. Then I repeat my question. $15.72 represents

the price [23.4—63] of the drums of creosote,

including the package delivered in Seattle in Novem-

ber, 1908?

A. Yes, sir. That is the c. i. f. price, sold in

London.

Q. You deal in creosote drums'? A. Yes, sir.

iQ. What are they used for*?

A. They are used for varied purposes. They are

used for shipping whale oil back to Europe. For
taking distillate from Seattle to Alaska, engine dis-

tillate. For taking fuel oil up to Alaskan points,

and as containers for carrying oil all over the north-

west.

Q. There is a market here for them?
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A. Yes, there is a good market for them.

Q. Do you know what became of these 700-odd

drmns that were taken out of the "Sardhana" dam-

aged ?

A. I do not know what became of them. I do not

think anyone would buy them.

Q. I did not ask you that question. You do not

know what became of them? A. No.

Q. Do not know^ where they are now ? A. No.

Redirect Examination.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) In testifying as to the c. i. f.

value, were you testifying as the value of this par-

ticular shipment?

A. Yes, sir, of that particular shipment sold in

London at the time.

(Testimony of witness closed.) [235—64]

Afternoon session, Feb. 21, 1913.

PRESENT: Mr. BOGLE, for the Libelant.

Mr. McCLANAHAN, for the Respond-

ent.

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer in evidence a certified copy

of the protest.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—We will admit it is a certi-

fied copy.

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "L," filed and

returned herewith.

[Testimony of A. M. Beckett, for Libelant.]

A. M. BECKETT, a witness called on behalf of

the libelant, being duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) What is your business?

A. Average adjuster.
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Q. How long have you been engaged in that busi-

ness? A. Since 1807.

Q. With what firm are you at present connected?

A. Johnson & Higgins, of Washington.

Q. How long have you been connected with them?

A. With Johnson & Higgins and Johnson-Higgins

of Washington, since September, 1911.

Q. Johnson & Higgins of Washington is the suc-

cessor of the partnership of Johnson & Higgins?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Practically the same firm. Prior to that time

what business were you engaged in?

A. Average adjusting.

'Q. And with what firms were you connected and

where ?

A. F. C. Dawson & Co. of Liverpool, England, and

Manley Hopkins' Son & Corliss of London and

Liverpool, England, [236—G5]

Q. Mr. Beckett, in your experience as an average

adjuster, have you adjusted any cases where the

policy of insurance reads as follows or substantially

as follows: ''Warranted free from particular aver-

age, unless the vessel or craft or the interest insured

be stranded, sunk or on fire"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Beckett, I wish you would state what the

practice of English and American adjusters is as to

that clause contained in a policy of marine insur-

ance, what construction they place upon that clause ?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object as immaterial.

Q. That is, what loss would open up that war-

ranty ?
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Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I objeot as immaterial and

on the ground that the question calls for a conclu-

sion of law, and the witness is not qualified.

A. Under clauses such as you have read, contain-

ing the words *'on fire," it is the practice of the

adjusters in England to consider the warranty open,

if some structural part of the vessel has been actu-

ally on fire.

Q. Does it depend upon the extent of the fire, or

the fact that some part of the structure has been on

fire?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I renew my last objection.

A. It depends on the fact that the structure has

been on fire, but not the extent of the fire.

Q. Mr. Beckett, can you give us any idea of the

number of cases that you have adjusted with that

clause in the insurance policy?

A. It is impossible, but a considerable amount.

Q. Has that construction of that policy, as far as

you know, coming within your own personal knowl-

edge, ever been contested [23^7—66] by the

marine insurance underwriters?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object as immaterial.

A. As far as I know^ it never has.

Q. Mr. Beckett, do the English adjusters place

any different construction upon a warranty which

contains the word "burned" alone than they do that

contains in the warranty the words "burned or on

fire"?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I renew my last objection.

A. The construction placed is that the "on fire,"
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the opening of the warranty where the words "on

fire" that is not a fire loss—than where the words

"burned" only are used.

Q. Do you know when the words "on fire" were

first added to these warranties in marine insurance

policies in England?

A. Subsequent to the Glenlivet case, which was

decided about 1893.

Q. Mr. Beckett, under the practice of the English

adjusters, according to your testimony, not con-

tested, or has not been contested to your knowledge

by marine underwriters, would you consider that the

burning of the door which was built into the bulk-

head of the vessel, would be a burning of the

structure ?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object on the same

grounds.

A. I consider that would open the warranty.

(Question read to witness.)

A. Yes, sir.

Cross-examination.

fQ. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Mr. Beckett, you say

that the use of the words "on fire" first occurred

after the decision in the Glenlivet case % [238—67]

A. To the best of my knowledge and belief that is

so.

Q. Where were you when the Glenlivet case was

decided %

A. I was at school, unconnected with average

adjusting.

Q. What did you know about the Glenlivet case
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at the time of its derision? A. Nothing.

Q. What did you know at the time of the decision

of the Glenlivet ease about the practice of under-

writers being controlh'd or regulated or governed

by the Glenlivet case?

A. Nothing; but these things are covered by text-

books.

'Q. So your knowledge comes from text-books, does

it? A. Prior to 1897.

Q. Your knowledge as to the substitution of the

words "on fire" for the word ''burned," does that

come from the text-books?

A. Yes, that is covered by the text-books and also

from common knowledge common to adjusting

offices.

Q. Know^ledge of insurance policies ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have such knowledge, have you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with Gow on insurance ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is a text-book, is it not ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Well recognized? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are you familiar with Mr. Gow's construction

of the expression "on fire" as contradistinguished

from the expression "burned"? [239—68]

A. I think he says as I have given in my previous

testimony.

Q. Gow, then, agrees with you, that the two terms

are different.

A. Yes, I think Gow says that they are different.
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Q. That this expression "on fire" in modern poli-

cies is substituted for the expression ** burned'"?

A. No, it is included that way. **Burned" has

not been left out of the clause, but ''on fire" has

been added.

Q. Have not you found policies with both ** burned"

and *'on fire" in them?

A. Nearly all that have '*on fire" have "burned"

in as well.

Q. How would the f. p. a. clause read?

A. Warranted f. p. a. unless stranded, sunk,

burned, on fire, or in collision.

Q. Have you seen the policies in suit in this case ?

A. No.

Q. I hand you exhibit "A" of the libelant. Please

examine that and you will see that the memorandum
attached to the side of the policy has the expression

"on fire" and nothing more, and that the body has

the expression "burnt," and nothing more?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, will you please tell me, Mr. Beckett, who

does that placing on the margin of the policy of

the memorandum that you find there? As a rule,

does not the broker place it there?

A. The broker or the company.

Q. If that was placed there by the company, their

printed forms have "burnt" in the body of the pol-

icy, don't you [240—69] think they would still

place on the memorandum pasted on the side a

clause that was harmonious with the body of the

policy?
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A. No, sir, hocauso the assured would not ac-

cept it.

Q. Tlie assured would not accept it?

A. No, sir.

Q. You mean to say, then, that the assured has

forced the insurance companies to the use of the ex-

pression **on fire"?

A. That is rather strong wording to use. It has

become the general practice to put it in. I w^ould

not say that the assured has forced them to.

Q. Well, it is against the interest of the company,

is it not, to use the expression "on fire," rather than

** burnt," since the decision in the Glenlivet case?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you explain how^, then, a company w^ould

in the body of their policy use the expression

** burnt," and then on that printed pasted slip use

the expression "on fire"?

A. The printing in the body of the policy is an

old form. If the assured w^ants better risks that are

not covered in the body of the policy, they are given

him by attaching the slip.

Q. Does he pay an additional premium where he

has this slip pasted on the side, where the expres-

sion is "on fire," than if he had the expression in

it "burnt"?

A. That is a matter which is purely a matter of

arrangement between him and the company, about

which I do not know, as an adjuster I would not

know that.

Q. Have you in mind any particular adjustment



234 Thames & Mersey Marine Ins. Co., Ltd.,

(Testimony of A. M. Beckett.)

that you [241—70] have made where there was

a fire, which opened the policy, and there was no

contest over it, and where the expression was "on

fire" in the policy?

A. Yes, one I made up here recently.

Q. On this coast?

A. Yes, sir. Claims were paid according to the

English law and practice, that was the condition of

the policy.

Q. Suppose there should be a blaze in the struc-

ture of a ship, that was extinguished with a thimble-

full of water, would you say the ship was on fire

within the meaning and practice of adjusters'?

A. I think that is a rather hypothetical question.

A. It is a hypothetical question.

Q. To what extent, might I ask the question, sir,

to what extent was the vessel on fire?

A. To no material extent. Absolutely no damage,

and yet there was a blaze in the structure of the

ship that could be extinguished with a thimble-full

of water.

Mr. BOGLE.—I object; there is no testimony like

that in this case.

Q. In your opinion, would the ship be on fire

within the meaning of that warranty?

A. It depends entirely, the question being the

structure of the ship itself, if the ship itself, if the

structure of the ship itself was on fire.

Q. That is included in my hypothetical question,

the structure.
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A. It could not be put out witli a tliiin})lcfull of

water.

Q. Why not? A. How could it be? [242—71]

Q. If I should lifi^ht a match to a beam of a ship,

that would be a part of the stiTicture, would it not?

A. Well—

Q. That happened to be saturated with creosote

to the extent of a drop, the beam would be on fire

when I lit it, would it not?

A. No, the creosote would be on fire. The beam
would not burn for some appreciable time.

Q. Let us confine it so that the beam is on fire

within an area that could be extinguished by a thim-

ble-full of water, is the ship on fire?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object to this line of examina-

tion on the ground that it is not based on any facts

in this case.

A. That is a case that we never met, to my knowl-

edge.

Q. I am trying to find out the limit. You say

that any structural part of the ship being on fire

opens the warrant}'; is that correct?

A. As far as I know, that every case where the

structural part of the vessel has been on fire, the

warrant has been considered open.

Q. Now, is not this the better practice, the prac-

tice which prevails, that where there has been ma-

terial damage to the ship, say the structural part

of the ship, by the fire, the warranty is open?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object to the form of the question.

This witness is not testifying as to what would be
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the better practice. He is testifying what the prac-

tice is which is accepted and acknowledged by the

English adjusters and underwriters. It is imma-

terial.

A. I do not think it is for me to decide which is

the [24a—72] better practice.

Q. Is not that the practice ? A. No.

Q. Do you mean to say that any fire of any ma-

terial part of the ship opens the warranty, no matter

how minute the fire is ?

A. The practice is defined to the structural part

of the vessel being on fire.

Q. Can you answer my question yes or no, and

then make your explanation. Do you mean to say

that it is the practice that the warranty is opened

where any part of the structural part of the ship is

on fire, no matter how minute the fire is 1

A. To the best of my knowledge and belief, yes.

Q. Now, will you tell me a case that has come

within your knowledge, where there has been a tri-

fling fire, doing absolutely no damage to the structu-

ral part of the ship, and yet the structural part of

the ship has been on fire, where the warranty has

been opened by the adjuster"?

A. That is impossible. If the structural part of

the ship has been on fire there must have been dam-

age to it.

Q. Then your understanding is that there must

be damage before the warranty can be opened by a

fire^ A. There cannot be a fire without damage.

Q. That is your understanding, then, that there
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must be damage before the warranty is opened?

A. I said the structural part of the ship must be

on fire.

Q. That is true. Now, I ask you if you do not

mean that [244—73] there must be damage?

A. I conchide if there is a fire there must be dam-

age.

Q. And if there is no damage and yet there is a

fire, then the warranty is not opened ?

A. No, that is impossible.

Q. It is impossible. What ?

A. To have something on fire and not be damaged.

Q. It is impossible, is it ? What do you mean by

damage as used in that connection ?

A. Wood charred.

Q. Damage is something that lessens the efficiency

or use of a thing, is it not ? A. Well

—

Q. You do not mean damaged ethically, do you,

the beauty of it sjjoiled, you mean the use, don't you?

A. Yes, or anything that needed repainting, pos-

sibly that might be.

Q. Repainting, would that cover it?

A. If the paint was blistered off.

Q. Would you say that the practice is, that if there

is blistered paint, that the warranty is opened?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object to this. I think the wit-

ness stated very clearly what the practice is.

A. Mere blistering of paint I should not consider

the warranty opened.

Q. So that your illustration was not apt, was it?

You gave that as an illustration, as some damage
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caused by fire which would require repair. Suppose

that one of the timbers of a ship be charred within

the radius of a foot, just charred, so that you could

take a [245—74] knife and scrape the charred

embers off very easily, would you consider that that

ship was damaged by fire ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You would. This question has never been de-

cided, to your knowledge, by any court of law ?

A. No.

Q. And you think after the decision of the Glen-

livet case the Insurance Companies immediately

changed their policies do you to "on fire"?

A. Yes, because the assured wanted better protec-

tion.

Q. You have never been in the insurance business ?

A. Not until I was connected with Johnson & Hig-

gins.

Q. How long have you been connected with them %

A. Eighteen months.

jQ. Has your knowledge of Marine insurance been

acquired since then ? A. What I have.

Q. Practical knowledge.

A. It is very superficial, though.

Q. And has your knowledge of the dealings be-

tween the assured and the Insurance company been

acquired since then? A. In what way?

Q. In any way. You said that the assured was

the man that wanted better protection was the

reason the expression was changed. Now, I say, has

your knowledge of that been acquired since you have

been with Johnson & Higgins?
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A. I don't quite get your question.

(Question read to witness.)

A. In this particular, do you mean? [246—75]

Q. Yes, sir.

A. It is common knowledge that it is the assured

that wants it, not the company, and he is willing to

pay for it.

Q. I am not asking you about that.

A. About the change "on fire"?

Q. I ask you about when you acquired this knowl-

edge. A. About the change of "on fire"?

Q. About this requirement of the assured that he

be given a policy with "on fire" in it rather than
*

' burnt.
'

' When did you acquire that knowledge ?

A. I cannot state the year and month I acquired

it.

Q. Have you acquired it since you were with John-

son & Higgins ?

A. It is common knowledge to anybody in busi-

ness.

Q. It is not common knowledge, if you will allow

me to contradict you, because I am in the Marine

Insurance business in a way, and I never heard of it

before, and I have been in it a good many years, so

it is not common knowledge. Now, when did you

acquire it ? A. Oh, several years ago, anyhow.

Q. Before you went with Johnson & Higgins ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. In what way did you acquire it, what was your

business? A. As an average adjuster.

Q. How did you acquire it and from where?
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A. As I say it is common knowledge.

Q. I would like to have, Mr. Beckett, some special,

particular case in which you have been interested,

where there was a trifling fire, that was conceded by

both the Insurance company and the assured, to open

that [247—76] warranty. A fire that did no

material damage to the structure of the ship ?

A. What do you call a material damage %

Q. Well, I will leave that out. You think that a

material damage is anything that requires a dab of

paint. I don't agree with you. We will leave that

out. Give me the most trifling fire, in your own ex-

perience, that would open that warranty by the com-

mon consent of the assured and the underwriter.

And I am going to ask for the details of it, if you

will please give them.

A. It is hard to remember them.

Q. Take your time, we have all of that that we

need.

A. I cannot remember back over thirteen years.

The most trifling that I can at the moment think of,

was the one I referred to a few minutes ago as being

adjusted here.

Q. How long ago ?

A. The fire occurred in January, 1912.

Q. What was the name of the ship ?

A. The "Watson."

Q. What was the fire f

A. A fire in the linen locker.

Q. What was the extent of it %

A. I think about between three and four hundred
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dollars to the structure of the ship, and alwut four

hundred dollars worth of linen burned.

Q. What insurance companies was that in f

A. In some American companies and some Ens^lish

companies. I cannot remember without the adjust-

ment schedule what they were. [248—77]

Q. That is the most trivial fire that you can recol-

lect! A. At the moment, yes.

Q. I want you to take plenty of time. You think

with time that 3'ou could refresh your memory ?

A. No, because it is of no interest to me at the time,

after the case is once done and adjusted, whether the

fire is big or small.

Q. Let it stand, then, that that is the most trivial

fire that you recollect that opened the warranty. Is

that all right ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you have had how much experience, Imw

many years 1 A. Thirteen years.

Q. Now, aside from your owti experience, will you

give us a case of the most trivial fire that ever opened

a warranty where the expression in the policy was

**on fire," and was conceded by both parties to have

opened the warranty"? I am not speaking of your

own experience, but of your knowledge as an ad-

juster ?

A. That is more or less confined to the adjust-

ments that I have made up.

Q. So that you have no knowledge of any other fire

that might be called a trivial fire, that has opened the

warranty, than that which you have just stated?

A. No, I have no means of hearing of them.
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Q. Well, let us go a step farther. Give me another

illustration of the next most trivial fire that has come

within your own experience that has by consent

opened the warranty where the expression was "on
fire"?

A. I cannot quote you chapter and verse. [249

—

78]

Q'. Haven't you any recollection of any adjust-

ments made on fire losses on ships %

A. Yes, on damage.

Q. Where it is a particular average claim?

A. Yes, damage to cargo, but I cannot give you the

names of the vessels, for I have adjusted many of

them.

Q. Of course, in all these cases the fire has been

quite considerable, has it not?

A. The fire itself in the cotton. Very often the

damage to the ship is very trivial.

Q. I want an illustration other than the one given,

where there has been a trivial fire to the ship.

A. I cannot get the names of the vessels, but I

have adjusted a number in years past.

Q. Leave out the names of the vessels and tell me
the circumstances of one adjustment where the struc-

tural loss was trivial.

A. If I could tell you the exact circumstances I

could tell you the names.

Q. So you are unable then to give any other case

where there was a trivial fire that opened the f . p. a.

warranty %

A. I say I cannot give the chapter and verse, but
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I have adjusted several, I mitcht say many, in dam-

aged cotton.

Q. What has that to do witli tlic f. ]). a. clause?

A. That is insured.

Q. But the fire nuist be in the ship itself, not in

the cotton?

A. But a majority of the cotton fires tlic fire is in

the cotton and the cotton is in the ship. [250—79]

Q. But the warranty is not opened unless the struc-

ture of the ship is on fire ? A. Sure.

Q. Cannot you remember any cases where the

structure of the ship was on fire ?

A. I cannot quote you the exact circumstance of

the damage but there are—the '^Mechanicien" was

one.

Q. Is that the name of the ship? A. Yes, sir.

Q. AVhat was the damage to the ship in that case?

A. As far as I remember, it was principally con-

sisted of paint blistered off the inside of the hull.

Q. Paint blistered off the inside of the hull.

A. Yes, through the plates having been red hot.

Q. Is that all? And in your judgment that was

fire in the structure of the ship?

A. Yes, sir, and the underwriters paid the loss.

Q. What was the damage resulting from that fire

to the structure of the ship, how much damage?

A. I haven't any knowledge. I was not adjusting

the loss of the ship, I was adjusting the loss on cer-

tain cotton.

Q. You haven't any knowledge of the damage

done to the ship ?
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A. It was immaterial to my adjustment.

Q. You haven't any knowledge of it. It was con-

siderable was it not ? A. I should say not.

Q. What did it consist of, simply the paint?

A. As far as I know. Might not have been.

[251—80]

Q. Mr. Beckett, this Watson case was a fire dam-

age, was it not, the entire damage %

A. No—that does not matter.

Q. Answer the question. It was simply a fire

damage? A. Fire damage.

Q. No question of cargo insurance ? A. No.

Redirect Examination.

iQ. (Mr. BOGLE.) Does the fact that it was

purely a fire damage make any difference in the con-

struction of this clause ?

A. Absolutely none under the policies.

Q. Mr. Beckett, in the case to which you refer,

where the sole damage to the structure was the heat-

ing of the iron, could that have caused any consider-

able damage to the iron structure ?

A. It might or might not buckle the plates. De-

pends on the amount of heat.

Q. The greatest damage that it could do would be

to buckle the plates ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. In your business of adjuster, has it been con-

fined to Marine adjusting? A. Entirely.

Q. Is it not true that the business of marine ad-

justing requires more or less knowledge of marine

insurance? Are you not brought in contact with
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marine insurance in making up adjustments and

losses^ A. Yes, sir. [252—81]

Q. And are brought more or less in contact with

underwriters and cargo owners'? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where you would have an opportunity to gain

a knowledge of the facts of which you testified as be-

ing facts'? A. Yes, sir.

Air. McCLANAHAN.—I object to this line of re-

direct examination as being leading and not proper

redirect examination.

Q. Mr. Beckett, in the construction of this clause,

is it material as to what the extent of damage is, or

is the material point in opening up the policy the fact

there was a fire in the structure of the vessel ?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I object as not proper re-

direct examination.

A. The point is w^hether the structure has been on

fire.

Q. Counsel has refeiTed you to Gow on insurance,

maiine insurance. Do you know who Mr. William

Gow is, the author of that work f A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who is he?

A. He is now secretary of the British Foreign

Marine Insurance company of Liverpool.

Q. He is a representative of the underwi-iters?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) What was he when

he wrote his book ?

A. An underwriter of the London Marine Insur-

ance company of Liverpool.

Q. He is considered an authority, is he nott
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. On marine insurance %

A. Elementary authority, that is as far as the ele-

mentary [253—82] text-books go. He does not

rank with McArthur and some authorities.

Q. (Mr. BOGrLE.) I hand you this document, and

ask you if that is the signature of Mr. Gerald Low ?

A. To the best of my knowledge and belief it is.

!Q. Have you had an opportunity of seeing any

nmnber of his signatures so that 3^ou would know if

that was his signature ?

A. Yes, there are many of his signatures on our

office files.

Q. I will ask you to look over that document and

tell me what it is.

A. That is an adjustment for loss and damage to

creosote.

Q. What vessel? A. By the "Sardhana."

Mr. BOGLE.—I offer this paper in evidence.

Paper marked Libelant's Exhibit "M," filed and

returned herewith.

(Testimony of witness closed.)

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—It is stipulated by the par-

ties to this action that the Court may take judicial

notice of the case of the Glenlevit, reported in 7 As-

pinwall, pp. 342 and S'^S, as being the law of England

governing the facts presented in that case. The lat-

ter case being the decision of the Court of Appeal of

England.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I understand, Mr. Bogel,

that your case is now closed, with the exception of
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the depositions of Fred D. Beale and M. I. Helman.
The deposition of [254—83] M r. Beale to be taken

in Poilland.

Mr. BDCJLE.—That is our case unless wc find it

necessary to tiike some rebuttal testimony.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—That can be determined to-

day.

Mr. BOGLE.—I think so. [255—84]

Seattle, February 20, 1913.

PRESENT : Mr. BOGLE, for the Libelant.

Mr. McCLANAHAN, for the Respond-

ent.

RESPONDENT'S TESTIMONY.

i[Testimony of H. C. H. Tuttle, for Respondent.]

H. C. H. TUTTLE, a witness, called on behalf of

the respondent, being duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) You live in Seattle?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was your occupation in November, 1908?

A. Running a donkey-engine for the Washington

Stevedoring Company at Eagle Harbor at that time.

Q. Do you remember at that time working on the

bark ''Sardhana"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was she lying at that time ?

A. Well, she was lying

—

Q. At Eagle Harbor?

A. In Eagle Harbor, yes, sir.

Q. Where was your donkey-engine ?

A. Tied alongside of the ship.

Q. On what side ?
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A. On the offshore side, the way the ship laid.

Q. Would that be to port or starboard side ?

A. That part I don't remember so well.

Q. It would be the offshore side, the weather side ?

A. I could always look right out and see Magnolia

bluff.

Q. Do you remember at the time of working out

there, the incident of the capsizing of the lighter of

creosote drums ? Do you remember the fact of such

capsizing taking [256—85] place ?

A. I remember seeing the scow turned upside

down.

Q. You were working there, were you t

A. Yes, sir.

Q. On what side of the ship was that scow which

capsized, moored? On the side you were on or on

the other side? A. On the opposite side.

Q. That would be the lee side, would it ?

A. I am not much of a mariner.

Q. It is the inshore side ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is between the exposed bay, the way the

ship lay, the ship and you were between the scow and

the weather ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When you saw the scow was it upright in the

water or capsized, turned over?

A. It was turned over, yes.

Q. Do you know what capsized that scow ?

A. Well, no, I cannot say that I know that any

more than we left it loaded with drums, that is all I

know.

Q. On the occasion of the scow capsizing, did any
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mishap haj)pcn to your scow on whicli the donkey-

engine was? A. No, sir.

Q. How large was your donkey-engine scow ?

A. Well, I could not say the nuniher of feet, I

never measured it. Jt probably would be twenty feet

wide and 28 or 29 feet long.

Q. What freeboard would it have ?

A. Oh, it would have all the way from 22 to 26

inches.

Q. What was on the scow^ that you operated?

[257—86]

A. An ordinary donkey-engine and a few tools,

and had two side bins for coal.

Q. You had a boiler on there ?

A. Oh, yes, of course,

Q. How high did the boiler and engine extend

above the deck of the scow ?

A. Well, the ordinary boiler itself runs, when it

sets on skids, runs about seven feet above, maybe an

inch one way or the other.

Q. Mr. Tuttle, as the lighter lay on which the

creosote was loaded on the occasion when the scow

capsized, was that lighter exposed to any wind or sea ?

A. You mean the one with the drums on ?

Q. Yes.

A. No. It was not exposed near as much as the

scow I had. It was out of the weather, the weather

had to hit the ship first.

Q. Do you remember at this time when a fire

occurred aboard the "Sardhana"?
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A. I remember of a fire occurring on there, yes,

sir.

Q. Did you at the time or subsequently have occa-

sion to visit the scene of the fire on the ship ?

A. Why, the next noon; me running the donkey,

of course I did not run up there in the morning. But

at noon I went and took an observation. It didn't

look to me as though

—

Mr. BOGLE.—I object, you have answered the

question.

A. I saw it the next noon.

Q. What was the character of the fire as you saw

it, or the results of it ?

A. It looked to me very slight. I only saw a door

and saw [258—87] the timbers smudged a little,

that is all.

Q. Where were the timbers'?

A. Just the ordinary props, that props the ship

up. I don 't know ; I never worked aboard a ship and

I cannot tell exactly.

Q. Mr. Tuttle, have you recently seen this door

which you say was burned as the result of the fire ?

A. I saw a door that looks very much similar to it

;

I would pretty near swear it was the same door.

'Q. When did you see that door *?

A. Up in the postoffice basement.

Q. When ? A. This noon.

Mr. BOGLE.—We will not dispute but what that

is the door.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—It is admitted that the

witness has seen the door.
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Q. Have you ever had ofoasion, in tirinj^ your

donkey-engine, to use dunnage from a vessel tliat has

carried creosote ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is the nature of such wood when used as

fuel, how inflammatory is it f

A. Very inflammatory, carries a great many units

of heat. We can only use one stick at a tune if the

steam is up. If you put in two sticks it will just

tear things. Two ordinary cordwood chunks will

make the pop go and you will have to have the in-

jector going and the door wide open and run the

engine to beat the band. Never was able to use but

one ordinary stick at a time, and that would last

when you were hoisting every minute, for 15 or 20

minutes. [259—88]

Q. Would it be long or a short time in catching

fire ? A. Oh, instantly.

Q. That has been your experience, has it ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. With dunnage saturated with creosote?

A. Yes, sir.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) What do you mean by dun-

nage, Mr. Tuttle?

A. Well, dunnage is anything they put in between

the cargo. As I have had occasion to use it as it

was taken out. They used it to put in between to

keep the cargo from getting bruised or spoiled, and

they put dunnage underneath. They had dunnage

between the drums to hold it in position so that they

did not get damaged.
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Q:. Do you know at what temperature—or what do

you know of creosote as combustible ?

A. Well, no, I don't, I never had that analyzed or

anything like that, but I know you just take the ordi-

nary stick with creosote and it goes just like that

when you lay it on a fire.

Q. (McCLANAHAN.) You are speaking of dun-

nage?

A. Yes, that that is soaked with creosote from the

ordinary voyage.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Do you know anything about

this fire? Do you know that it occurred?

A. When the fire occurred?

Q. YeSj^ir.

A. At the time the fire occurred I was abed, in

Newlin's house, probably 1600 feet from there. It

was around 9 [260—89] o'clock, along there, be-

tween half-past eight and nine. 1 heard the holler-

ing going on down there on the bay, and heard the

bell ringing, and we w^ent down and got in a boat to

go over and then I heard them say, no use, it is all

out. So the next day at noon time I had occasion to

notice it, is all.

Mr. BOGLE.—I move to strike that portion of the

answer as hearsay, where he states, "No use, it is all

out."

Q. You did not go down to the fire that night ?

A. No, sir.

Q. What was this bell you heard ringing?

A. It was the ordinary bell they ring for the time

aboard ship.
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Q. Did yon know what the hell was, when you

heard it, what it was rinc^inn: for?

A. I think there is a bell around the ereosote plant.

1 think, if I remember right, they were ringing that

to attract attention. There were two bells going.

I remember that distinctly; one was louder than the

other.

Q. Do you know when the second bell started to

ring, how long after the first one?

A. I just had time

—

Q. About how long?

A. It did not seem to me as though it was over

—

I could not say; it might be forty-five seconds or it

might be a minute and a half,

Q. You think then forty-five seconds or a minute

and a half after the bell rang on the ship, that the

bell of the creosote plant was ringing?

A. There was another bell ringing right away

afterwards. [261—90]

Q. What time of night was this, Mr. Tuttle?

A. Well, I should judge half-past eight or nine,

somewhere in there; I had just got into bed.

Q. Did you get out of bed? A. Oh, yes.

Q. Did you get dressed?

A. Yes, and came down to the water's edge going

to take a rowboat.

Q. Did you get the rowboat?

A. We got to the rowboat.

Q. Where was the rowboat ?

A. Tied up to a little float that is there. There

is a float back there where there is a road that goes
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back into the country, I don't know just what dock

they call it, but it is about the only floating dock

there is over there, it runs up by Yuen's house to-

wards the Blakely road.

Q. You untied the rope, did you ?

A. No, I don't know whether I untied the rope.

I know we were ready to get in the boat.

Q. Did you get the oars ?

A. We always had the oars ; we used to cache them

under some willows. Joe went up to get them.

Q. Had you gotten in the boat and started off ?

A. No.

Q. Did he return with the oars ?

A. I don't remember that part of it so much. I

know we were satisfied and remarked about it and

started back.

Q. Quite a little comimotion around was there ?

A. Well, of course I could hear noise and one

thing or other [262—91] aboard ship and people

away over along the shore. I could not tell exactly

the words.

Q. Do you know whether any one went aboard

ship to assist them in putting out the fire 1

A. I don't know exactly about that any more than

I heard remarks afterwards, you know.

Q. Do you know whether any chemical fire-ex-

tinguishers that belonged to the company were used

to assist in putting out the fire ?

A. I don't know about that.

Q. Where was the '^Sardhana" anchored?

A. She was anchored not very far from the dock.
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Q. About how far?

A. "Well, I don't know; alxuit lu'twocn thrcr and

four hundred feet, somewhere around there. I don't

remember the number of feet. It was only a little

bit to row, did not amount to anything.

Q. How far was the house where you were sleep-

ing from the ship ?

A. From the house to the ship, I don't know. It

might be probably 1600 or 1800 feet.

Q. How far was it from the house to the place

Where the rowboat was tied up?

A. Well, that is a different line. I was figuring

on an air line to the ship.

Q. I want to find how far from the house the row-

boat was that you went to ?

A. I don't know, just an ordinary block from

there, two or three hundred feet.

Q. From there to the rowboat? [263—92]

A. Yes, sir. It is right along the bank, the house

only sets back up a little ways.

Q. Mr. Tuttle, where was this door located which

was burned on the ship, I mean ?

A. It was down in underneath, some door, I be-

lieve, they used for stowing some ship's goods or

something; I don't know exactly. There was a door

there, I know that.

Q. You did not see it until the next noon.

A. No, I just took an ordinary glance at it. The

fire didn't look only slight to me.

Q. Did the door go into the wall, the bulkhead of

the ship ?
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A. It looked to me as though, standing up this

way.

Q. Was it not built into the bulkhead the same as

an ordinary door built into the side of this wall ?

A. If I remember right, hanging in the same way,

something like that ; I am not sure.

Q. Was there anything else burned beside the

door?

A. Well, there was just the ordinary frame around

there scorched something like the door.

Q. You mean the sides of the wall?

A. Yes, sir, the sides of the bulkhead, whatever it

was there.

Q. For how great a distance was it burned, Mr.

Tuttle ?

A. Well, that part of it I did not take such awful

good observation of it.

Q. Was the ceiling scorched or burned?

A. The ceiling looked more smoked to me than

scorched.

Q. Did you examine it?

A. With my hands, no. It just looked ordinarily

dirty and smoked. [264—93]

Q. You have seen this door and know the extent of

the burning ? A. Yes, I saw that.

Q. And the bulkhead was about the same?

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Tuttle, what was the size of the scow upon

which the drums of creosote were loaded, the scow

which capsized?

A. I don't know exactly. I should judge it was
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about, if I remember rightly, it was 32 to 36 feet

wide and maybe about 60 feet long, something like

that.

Q. And you were engaged in luiloading these

drums over the side of the ship on to this scow.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who had charge of the loading on this scow?

A. Well, the foreman was taking out the drums.

Q. Who was that ? A. Joe Preece.

Q. Did the Washington Stevedoring Company

have a contract to unload them?

A. He was working for them.

Q. Did they furnish the scow?

A. I don't think so.

Q. How^ many days had they been working unload-

ing the cargo before this 18th of November, the day

on which this scow^ capsized?

A. I don't remember that so well, but it seemed to

me toward the middle of the unloading of it, if I

remember right.

Q. Do you know how many drums of creosote were

upon the scow at the time of the capsizing? [265

—

94]

A. I don't remember that precisely, but I think it

was very close to being loaded.

Q. Did they tow her to the dock of the creosote

company that night? A. No.

Q. Would they not have done that if she had been

fully loaded?

A. There is lots of times they left the scows there

loaded for a day or two.
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Q. Fully loaded? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Out in the bay?

A. They would move them up sometimes alongside

the ship forward and move them around and moor

them.

Q. Loading more than one scow at a time %

A. No, only one scow at a time is all they handled

loading.

Q. When did you leave the ship on the night the

scow capsized? A. I ordinarily left

—

Q. When, what time?

A. Just as it was getting dark, you know, we used

to quit.

Q. Did the scow capsize during the night or day?

A. During the night.

Q. How was the "Sardhana" anchored in the har-

bor on this night?

A. If I remember right, she was anchored for-

ward.

Q. Are you sure she was moored aft?

A. I feel pretty sure, but my memory is not so

clear on it. I think she was moored aft and an-

chored forward.

Q. You don't know that. You don't want to swear

to that?

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I think he has made it

clear.

A. That is as far as I remember. [266—95]

Q. I think you stated that you did not know.

A. I feel pretty sure that is the way it was, but

I would not swear to it.



vs. Pacific Creosoting Company. 259

(Testimony of H. C. H. Tiittle.)

Q. Which way was the '*Sardhana" lying

f

A. She was lying on the north side but in the bay.

Q. In the bay. A. Well, she was

—

Q. Was the bark headed out toward tlic mouth of

the bay?

A. Her nose was pointing toward Winslow, and as

she lay there I am pretty sure her aft end was moored

in order to hold her tight.

Q. Did you keep a watchman aboard the scow?

A. We gave the watchman on the ship an extra

compensation when she is tied that w^ay, to watch the

donkey scow\

Q. Both scows were lashed to the ship, were they?

A. Oh, yes.

Q. You do not know anything about the condition

of the weather on that night, do you, the night the

scow capsized?

A. I don't exactly knoAv, but I think it was pretty

windy, pretty rough, if I remember right ; it has been

so long ago. 1 think it was pretty windy.

Q. Did you testify as to why she capsized ?

A. No, I cannot do that.

Redirect Examination.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Do you know what

a bulkhead is?

A. A bulkhead in a ship, as I understand, is a big

frame proposition, that is all I know about it.

Q. Do you know where it is located in the ship, or

where it [267—96] can be located?

A. No, I don't say that I can, exactly.

Q. You said on cross-examination that the bulk-
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head had been burned the same as this door that you

saw downstairs ?

A. This framework around the door, whatever it

was, if I remember right, was scorched in a similar

condition to the door.

Q. Do you draw a distinction between scorching

and burning?

A. Some of it just ordinary as if the heat was

strong on it, that is all ; it was not cleanly put out of

commission entirely—plenty of strength left in the

wood.

Q. If the bulkhead that was referred to by counsel

extended from one side of the ship to the other, do

you mean to convey the idea that all that space of

wood had been burned as the door was?

A. Oh, no, a little ways, just a little bit, mostly on

the right hand looking to the door.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) What do you mean by a little

bit?

A. The heat seemed to be more to that side of the

door like than it was to the other side, that is all.

It seemed to be one little spot. Knowing the way

the dunnage lights up in the boiler. I never gave it

a second look, for if it had got in the dunnage they

never would have had any ship—that would have

been all there was to it.

Q. If this fire had reached the creosote there would

have been a very serious conflagration ?

A. I guess there would.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) You were describ-

ing the extent or area [268—^97] of the fire under
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your recross-exaniiiiation, and you gave your arms a

space of two and a lialf or three feet. Was that in-

tended to indicate the area of the fire'?

A. The way it looked to me as though it did not

amount to only a little bit.

Q. Is that the idea of th(» extent of the fire, two

or three feet f

A. Just a little small space, that is the way it

looked to me.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE). Do you mean to swear, Mr.

Tuttle, that the fire did not extend more than three

feet in length along the bulkhead?

A. That is the way it looked to me.

Q. Is that both sides or one side?

A. It seemed to be most on one side of the door.

Q. How about the left-hand side—what was the

extent of the fire on that side of the bulkhead?

A. Did not seem to be any to amount to anything.

Q. Do you intend to swear there was no burning

on the left side of the door ?

A. I did not notice any.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Do you mean to say

there was any burning on the right-hand side of the

door? A. It looked that way.

Q. You have seen the door, have you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember, when you, looked at the door,

that there was an unburued space on the right-hand

side of the door ? [269—98]

Mr. BOGLE.—I object to counsel leading the wit-

ness.
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A. Well, there is a burned space there somewhere,

but I don't remember.

Q. Let me ask you this : If this fire was indicated

as having burned in more than one place?

A. Did not look that way to me.

(Testimony of witness closed.) [270
—

^99]

[Testimony of Capt. David Baird, for Respondent.]

Capt. DAVID BAIRD, a witness, called on behalf

of the respondent, being duly sworn, testified as fol-

lows :

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Have you ever been

a seafaring man, Captain ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long have you seen sea service *?

A. Thirty-three years.

Q. What was your occupation in November, 1908^?

A. I was Marine Superintendent in Seattle for

Andrew Weir & Co.

Q. Who was the owner at that time of the bark

"Sardhana"? A. Andrew Weir & Company.

Q. What were your duties with reference to the

"Sardhana" when she was loading here in Novem-

ber, 1908?

A. My duty was to see the ship discharged and

loaded properly and fitted for her voyage.

Q. Did you have any other conduct of the affairs

of the ship within these limits?

A. I had a free hand.

Q. Where was the ship discharging her cargo at

that time ? A. At Eagle Harbor.

Q. What was the cargo ?

A. Creosote in drums.
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Q. What kind of drums were these, Captain ?

A. Iron drimis.

Q. Can you desoriho thom nioro sj)ociHfally?

A. About ninety ^alh)n cacli, T sliould judc^e,

riveted drums with iron bands.

Q. Were they cylindrical in shape?

A. Yes, sir. [271—100]

Q. The diameter being the same throughout?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Flat top and bottom?

A. Yes, sir, the ends were flat.

Q. You speak of bands; what were they?

A. Each side of the bunghole, I suppose about

eight inches from it, two iron bands, go completely

around the drum about three-quarters wide and

about an inch and a half high.

Q. That is they projected beyond the surface of

the drum an inch and a half or an inch and a quarter ?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. McCLANAHAN.—I would like to introduce,

with your consent, Mr. Bogle, a chart showing the

exact location of Eagle Harbor, a chart issued by the

Coast and Geodetic survey.

Chart marked Respondent's Exhibit "3," filed and

returned herewith.

Q. Captain, will you mark with a cross the ap-

proximate place where the "Sardhana" was lying in

Eagle Harbor?

(Witness does so.)

Now, then, on the margin of the map will you

duplicate the cross and put your initials?
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(Witness does so.)

Which way was the bow pointed?

A. The vessel was moored with her head to the

westerly.

Q. Westerly magnetic ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How were the mooring lines run?

A. She had two anchors out ahead ; she had moor-

ing lines to a dolphin over each quarter aft.

Q. How far did she lie, approximately, from the

slip of [272—101] the wharf of the Pacific Creo-

soting Company ?

A. Anything from 50 to 100 feet.

Q. In what general direction was the Pacific Creo-

soting Company 's wharf, as it lay there ?

A. On the starboard quarter.

Q. On what side of the ship was the donkey-engine

used to discharge the ship?

A. Starboard side.

Q. Where were the lighters used?

A. On the port side.

Q. Were they or were they not the lighters that

were used for discharging, moored to the ship ?

A. Yes, they were moored to the ship.

Q. What was the size of these lighters ? Approxi-

mately ? A. About 60x30, no less.

Q. What freeboard would they have light, in your

opinion ? A. Three feet.

Q. What would they have loaded ?

A. 18 inches.

Q. Do you remember the occasion of one of these

lighters capsizing? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Did you see the capsized lij^hter'? A. No.

Q. Just remember that there was a lighter cap-

sized.

A. It was no interest to me, ])ecause the cargo

had been delivered as far as the ship was concerned,

we were finished.

Mr. BOGLE.—I move to strike the answer as not

responsive to the question. [273—102]

Q. How often have you had occasion in your ex-

perience, to visit Eagle Harbor?

A. I visited two ships there.

Q. Two ships ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. AVhat can you say wdth reference to its situa-

tion regarding sea and weather?

A. Oh, it is a landlocked harbor, perfectly safe, I

should say.

Q. On what side of the vessel, lee or weather, did

the lighters lie that were being loaded with creosote?

A. That depended on the direction of the wind.

Q. Do you know the general direction of the wind

there ?

A. Well, of course, if the wind was from the south,

in this case the starboard side would be the lee, if

the wind was from the northerly quarter, the op-

posite side would be.

Q. Then there is no prevailing wind that you know

of there?

A. Westerly winds prevail at that time of the

year.

Q. Do you know the prevailing currents, if any?

A. No current there.
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Q. Did you have occasion to see how these scows

were being loaded ? A. Oh, yes, I saw the scows.

Q. How were they loaded?

A. They put a tier of drums on end across the

ends of the scow, then the rest of the drums were

stowed athwartships in tiers.

Q. By the ends of the scows you mean what would

correspond [274—103] to the bow and stern of

the ship ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. On these ends of the scow were placed tiers of

drums upright % A. Yes, sir.

Q. From that I understand the tiers are then laid

on their side athwartship ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Are they built up solidly that way or pyramid-

ial?

A. They put one complete tier down. The next

tier is brought in half the width of the drum and goes

into the cont-line between the two drums below it.

Q. Goes into the cont-line between the two drums %

A. Yes, sir, and the tier comes in, the third tier

comes in another lot of drums.

Q. Would it have been possible, in your opinion,

for a scow so loaded, to have capsized fore and aft?

A. Impossible.

Q. So that if this scow did capsize it must have

capsized athwartships? A. Yes.

Q. In your opinion would it have been possible for

that scow to have capsized athwartships through

such stress of weather as might have been possible

where it lay on the port side of the "Sardhana" in

Eagle Harbor? A. No.
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Q. If the seow did capsize, what in your opinion,

then, was the eause of its eapsizinp:'? A. Watei-.

q. Water where? [275—104]

A. In the hold.

Q. You have stated in your o])inion it would W
impossible for that scow to liave (•a})siz('d athwart-

ships through such weather as might be possible

where she lay, through the cause of weather alone or

sea, why ?

A. Never any sea in there, and besides I suppose

the scow could stand up in there until the bottom

drops out.

Q. Well, is there any reason why it would be im-

possible for the scow to capsize under these circum-

stances? A. No, I cannot say there is.

Q. Would the rings around the drums have any

effect upon the matter? A. No.

Q. Would it be easier or harder for the drums to

leave the scow and slide off into the sea because of

these rings?

A. The rings would obviate them sliding off until

the scow^ went to a certain angle, and the whole would

come off.

Q. How would the water inside of the scow bring

about its capsizing.

A. Give her a list, which would go as the water

increased.

Q. Do you remember, Captain, the fact of a fire

having broken out on the "Sardhana" at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you at any time after the fire have occasion

to see it ?
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A. The captain came over here and reported to

me there had been a fire on board. I went to Eagle

Harbor the next day with him.

Q. What for?

A. To see if any damage had been done to the

ship. [276—105]

Q. What did you find?

A. I found there was no damage that required re-

pairing.

Q. What was it exactly that you found ?

A. I found that the fire apparently had taken

place at the outside of the lazaret door, and the door

was scorched and the underside of the deck above

it was smoke-stained.

Q. Was the ceiling above burned at all ?

A. The under side of the deck?

Q. Yes. A. No.

Q. Was the floor of the upward deck burned at

ail? A. No.

Q. Was the bulkhead, aside from the door burned ?

A. No.

Q. Did you make an examination to ascertain that

fact? A. I did.

Q. Have you seen the door recently ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not the door, as you saw it,

did or did not represent the extent of the fire ?

A. That represented the extent of it.

Q. Did you see on the floor of the between-decks

anything ?

A. I saw a piece of burned gunny-bag there and a



vs. Pacific Creosotitiy Company. 269

(Testimony of Capt. David I^aird.)

lot of water sloj)ped about.

Q. How far from the door was the stowage of the

creosote drums? A. About two feet.

Q. Was there any dunnage in that locality f

A. There was no dunnage particularly at the door,

but [277—106] further in to the wing some loose

wood had been thrown from the end of the drums

and was lying on the between-decks.

Q. Was there any dunnage between the drums

themselves? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was there any dunnage between the drums im-

mediately in front of the fire ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What business had you in connection with the

investigation of this fire ?

A. Well, it was my business to see that the vessel

was—if she was damaged, to see that she was re-

paired—to report to the underwriters of the vessel

and have it repaired.

Q. Did you make any such report ? A. No.

~^. Did you make a report of any kind ? A. No.

Q. Why not?

A. Nothing to report of any importance.

Q. Now, what service did that bulkhead door per-

form?

A. It was an entrance from the hold into the ship's

storeroom.

Q. State whether it was as efficient to perform

that service after the fire as before. A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were any other parts of the ship burned ?

A. No.

Q. Aside from the bulkhead door?
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A. No. [278—107]

Q. You have already stated that the door was the

only part burned? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How often did you visit the ship while she was

there ?

A. I was over three or four times. I had other

ships here, of course, and I was over there to see that

things were going all right.

Q. Did you at any time see the crew of the "Sard-

hana" pumping creosote out of the hold?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know how much creosote was in the hold

of the^'Sardhana"?

A. The captain reported 13 inches.

Mr. BOGLE.—I object as hearsay.

Q. But you saw the crew pumping creosote ?

A. Yes, sir.

. Q. Where was it being pumped to %

A. It was being pumped into barrels on a scow

alongside.

Q. You distinguished barrels from drums %

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know what became of that creosote

afterwards? A. No.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Do you know of your own

knowledge. Captain, how much creosote was in the

hold of this vessel when she arrived at Eagle Har-

bor—^loose creosote, of your own knowledge?

A. No. The captain officially reported to me 13

inches.
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Q. I ask you if you know of your own knowledge.

[279—108]

A. No, I do not. T did not sound the well.

Q. Do you know how many barrels were tilled with

this creosote from the hold ? A. No, I do not.

Q. Do you know how many gallons of creosote

were in the hold? A. I do not.

Q. Do you know whether all the barrels which were

filled with creosote and whether the creosote in these

barrels was in fit condition for use, or whether any

of it was thrown away % A. I do not.

Q. Captain, you of course did not see this fire

aboard the ''Sardhana"?

A. I was at home ; it occurred during the night.

Q. You saw it next day, about what time?

A. I went over, I should imagine, on the 10 o'clock

boat.

Q. Had the crew cleaned up the results of the

fire, the water, etc. ?

A. There was some water laying around the

place ; it was wet around there.

Q. Do you know^ whether they had removed any

of the dunnage or stores or anything that was de-

stroyed in the fire? A. I do not.

Q. I understood you to say. Captain, that the creo-

sote drums w^re about two feet away from the fire ?

A. From the bulkhead.

Q. On each side ? A. On the foreside.

Q. That is the side away from the side on which

the fire [280—109] occurred?

A. No^ that is the side on which the fire occurred.
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Q. How far were these creosote drums away from

the fire itself ? A. I don't know.

Q. You do not know whether any had been re-

moved ?

A. They had not been moved; they were still in

the position they were when the vessel arrived.

Q. Do you know at what temperature creosote is

combustible? A. No, sir.

:Q. This creosote was in drums ; there was no loose

creosote near the fire ? A. No.

Q. Was there any dunnage near the bulkhead

where the fire occurred?

A. Yes, there was some dunnage between the ends

of the drums and bulkhead at the sides.

Q. Was there any creosote upon this dunnage ?

A. I did not see any.

Q. Now, as I understand, you testify that this

door was scorched, is that correct ?

A. I said the ceiling was smoke-stained and the

door was scorched.

Q. You have seen the door, have you not?

A. Yes, sir.

, Q. You call that a scorched door?

- A. Pretty well scorched.

Q. Pretty well scorched. You would say it was

burned, would you not? A. I don't know.

Q, Is not that burned a quarter or half an inch

deep? [281—110]

A. What is a burn? Is a burn a scorch or what

is it?

Q. That is what we are trying to find out. You
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say none of the Ijiilklicad was burned. A. No.

Q. Was tliere any of it scorched within youi' mean-

ing of that word ?

A. No, it was not; tlie paint was not even blistered.

Q. All just as it was ])efore? A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Tuttle is mistaken if he says any of the

bulkhead was burned? A. If he said so he is.

Q. You heard him say so, didn't you?

A. I did not pay much attention. I was looking

out of the window.

Q. He was there next day and he saw it?

A. Yes, so was I.

Q. You represented the owners of this ship, didn't

you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Captain, you testified as to the contents of these

drums, you testified tliere was 90 gallons, that is.

Imperial gallons? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What would they contain of United States gal-

lons?

A. I suppose a fifth more. In American gallons

it would be a little more than a hundred.

Q. Did you make any survey of the fire damage,

or just a casual inspection?

A. Oh, I went and surveyed it on my own account

to see if anything was required. [282—111]

Q. Did you make any written report of that sur-

vey? A. No.

Q. No written report at all.

A. No. I wrote to the owners and told them.

Q. Was it within your duty to see that the freight
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due the ship was collected from the creosote com-

pany?

A. I suggested that it was time that they were col-

lected, some of it.

Q. There was quite a little unpleasantness about

collecting the freight, was there not, between your

office and the creosote company %

A. Well, I don't know. I simply suggested that

it be collected and I believe it was collected. The

unpleasantness did not touch me, if there was any.

Q. You had nothing to do with that ? A. No.

Q. Captain, these lighters were fastened to the

ship, were they ? Lashed tight to the ship with lines,

were they f A. You could not lash a lighter.

Q. How fastened ?

A. On the inside corner of the lighter they have a

line fore and aft, and out to the two outside corners

they have a line out to the lighter.

Q. Do you know how many drums of creosote

would constitute a load on one of these lighters'?

A. No.

Q. Do you know how many drums were on this

lighter the night it capsized % A. No.

Q. Did you survey the lighter after it capsized?

[283—112] A. Never saw it.

Q. You do not know whether there was any water

in that lighter or not ? A. I do not.

Q. You do not know anything about the condition

of the weather that night ? A. No.

Q. Don't know which direction the wind was blow-

ing over there ? A. No.
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Q. What did you iiioau, ra])tain, when you stated

in answer to eounsel in your direct examination,

that the lighter could uot have capsized under any

conditions of weather over there ?

A. Well, lying alongside the sliij) she could not.

Q. She could not? A. No.

Q. Under any conditions of weather. A. No.

Q. You mean any (M)nditions of weather that you

think might occur there, or any conditions of weather

that might occur any place?

A. Oh, well, a typhoon might come in and blow

her ashore.

Q. She would capsize with a good deal less than a

typhoon, if heavily loaded? A. I judge not.

Q. You do not know how stable she was when

loaded?

A. Well, it takes a good deal to capsize them, let

me tell you.

Q. She could not possibly have turned down and

listed [284—113] so as to have thrown the creo-

sote overboard without having water in her, that is

your opinion? A. That is my opinion.

Q. Do you know^ whether there was a westerly

wind on the night of this accident ? A. No.

Q. You had only been over there twice, Captain?

A. I might have been there three times.

Q. What do you base your statement on that a

westerly wind is the prevailing wind in that harbor ?

A. The prevailing winds on Puget Sound are west-

erly winds.

Q. You say in the harbor. Does not the shore line
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affect the direction of the wind somewhat in this

harbor ?

A. Sure, it does, it is open to the westward and it

blows either up or down.

Q. There is no condition of weather which would

cause the ship to have considerable motion over side-

ways, is there % A. No.

Q. Could not have any motion sideways ?

A. Not with that wind.

Q. Not enough to cause this scow to capsize %

A. No.

Q. Now, if it appears from examination that this

scow had no water in her, then how did she capsize ?

A. I cannot tell you how she capsized.

Q. What was the proper method of loading, in

your opinion, a scow with creosote driuns ?

A. The way she was loaded.

Q. It was properly loaded then, was it? [285

—

114] A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know who furnished the scows ?

A. No.

Q. Captain, do you know what the conditions of

this charter were with reference to delivery of cargo ?

A. Well, it is a good long time ago. I have had

many things on my hands since.

Q. Do you know whether the ship was free from

all liability after the cargo left her tackle ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You know that ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How do you know that, Captain?

A. I know that—that was in the charter-party;
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that was the usual clause in every ease.

Q. That is the usual clause, but do you know that

was in this charter-party f

A. I would not swear at present that it was.

Q. If it had not been in the charter-party then

there would have been some responsibility on the

part of the ship, might have been for the loss of this

creosote ?

A. Well, I don't know; I would not admit that.

(Testimony of witness closed.)

Hearing adjourned until Feb. 21, 1913, 10 A. M.

[286—115]

Seattle, February 21, 1913.

PRESENT: Mr. BOGLE, for the Libelant.

Mr. McCLANAHAN, for the Respond-

ent.

[Testimony of J. J. Preece, for Respondent.]

J. J. PREECE, a witness called on behalf of the

respondent, being duly sworn, testified as follows:

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Mr. Preece, you live

in Seattle f A. Yes, sir.

Q. You lived here in November, 1908?

A. Yes, sir; I don't live in Seattle; 1 live in Kirk-

land, at present.

Q. Where were you living in November, 1908?

A. Living in Seattle.

Q. What was your business in November, 1908?

A. Stevedore foreman.

Q. How long has that been your business?

A. Been that on and off since 1886.
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Q. And you are now engaged in that business?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember stevedoring the bark ''Sard-

hana" in November, 1908? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where was she then? A. Eagle Harbor.

Q. You were foreman of the stevedores unloading

her? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was she loaded with ?

A. Creosote in drums.

Q. Do you remember, Mr. Preece, the incident of

a lighter of drums being capsized on that occasion?

[287—116] A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who loaded that lighter? A. I did.

Q. Do you remember what day of the week it was ?

A. Well, if I remember rightly, and I am pretty

sure I am right, it was on Saturday.

Q. Was the barge completely loaded or not?

A. Just finished.

Q. Completely loaded? A. Yes.

Q. You refer to the barge that capsized ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Will you tell how that barge was loaded ?

A. She was loaded with drums; on the end stood

up one tier, if I remember rightly, then the re-

mainder were stowed athwartships, three tiers, one

on top of the other. The first tier laid on the bottom

and the next tier drawn in half a drum on each side

and then the third tier was the same, to keep them

from shifting.

Q. They were laid athwartships on their sides?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. How far fioni the side of the })ar^e did the

athwartship tier of drums commence, that is, how

much margin was there of tlie harge?

A. About 18 inches on the lower tier.

Q. That is, there was a free deck space of IS inches

before you commenced to lay ?

A. Yes, on both sides.

Q. What was the character of the flooring of the

barge—smooth or rough ? [288—117]

A. Well, it would not be very smooth. I could

not tell you exactly w'hether they had a good deck

on it or not.

Q. You don't remember that?

A. It would not be very smooth, anyway. As a

rule, these scow decks are pretty rough.

Q. At what time in the afternoon did you finish

the loading of the barge ?

A. If I remember rightly, it was between four and

five o'clock in the afternoon; somewhere around

there.

Q. What was the custom of the creosote people

with reference to the treatment of loaded barges,

what did they do wdth them?

A. Took a tug and towed them, away.

Q. Did they tow this barge away ? A. No.

Q. How was this barge attached to the ship?

A. With lines.

Q. How were these lines fastened and where were

they fastened to ?

A. Two lines, breast lines to hold it into the ship

and a head line and a stern line to keep her from
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going fore and aft, attached to the ship.

Q. How long was that barge ?

A. The barge would be 76 or 80 feet, I should

judge.

Q. What was the beam?

A. I could not tell you exactly how long but some-

wheres about that. The beam would be about thirty

feet.

Q. What part of the bark was she attached to ?

A. Right at her main hatch, about amidships.

Q. How high would the deck of the bark be above

the deck of [289—118] the lighter?

A. Well, I do not remember at what stage of the

discharging we were on when that barge capsized.

Q. I do not care to have you give it exact, but just

approximately.

A. You mean the deck of the bark under the rail?

Q. How high was the deck above the deck of the

lighter, approximately? A. At that time?

Q. Yes.

A. Seven or eight or nine or fen feet.

Q. How high would the three tiers of loaded

drums on the lighter bring that ?

A. Fetch it pretty well up—pretty well up to the

rail.

Q. Pretty well up to the rail of the bark?

A. If I remember rightly, that particular scow

itself was pretty well up. I think we could step

right from the rail and jump on the loaded barge, but

I will not swear to that.

Q. You did not see this lighter capsize, did you?
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A. No, sir.

Q. When did you first Icaiii oi itf

A. I learned of it Monday morning when i went

baek to Eagle Harbor.

Q. At which side of the bark was she moored when

you left Saturday night ?

A. She was moored on the port side.

Q. Where did you have your donkey-engine ?

A. On the starboard side.

Q. Did you see the capsized lighter the next

morning, [290—119] Monday morning, and were

the lines still attached to her?

A. I have been thinking this thing over about that

capsizing of the barge, and it seems to me, as I see

it now, that the barge had been towed away from the

ship and tied up to the end of the dock.

Q. When you saw^ it.

Q. I am pretty sure that is w^here I saw it. I have

been trying to think where that barge was, and I

am pretty certain she was tied at the end of the dock,

tow^ed out of the way, so that we could go to work

Monday morning. I am pretty certain she was tied

up to the end of the dock.

Q. You have had considerable experience loading

barges? A. I have loaded quite a few of them.

Q. How great has been your experience?

A. I discharged four cargos of creosote right in

Eagle Harbor, one after the other, and I have loaded

barges alongside vessels here for years.

Q. In your opinion, would it be possible for that

barge to capsize fore and aft? A. No.



282 Thames d Mersey Marine Ins. Co., Ltd.,

(Testimony of J. J. Preece.)

Q. In your opinion, considering the situation of

the bark and the lighter in Eagle Harbor at the time,

would it have been possible for that lighter to have

capsized through any stress of wind or sea?

Mr. BOGLE.—I object as calling for an opinion

of the witness, and the witness is not qualified.

A. If there was sea enough came in there, she

might capsize, but the way the vessel was lying and

the way the barge was alongside, I don't believe any

sea ever came [291—120] in there that would

capsize that barge, provided that there was no water

in her, she was not leaking.

Q. Did you, Mr. Preece, know of a fire that took

place on board of the bark while you were there dis-

charging her? A. I knew of it, yes, sir.

Q. You were not present at the time of the fire,

were you? A. No.

Q. Where were you—on shore?

A. I was ashore in my room
;
gone to bed.

Q. Did you subsequently see the extent of the fire?

A. Yes, I saw where the fire had burned.

Q. Where was it?

A. Right aft, forward of the lazarette, between

the creosote tanks and the bulkhead of the lazarette,

in the between-decks.

Q. At the time of the fire had any of the creosote

drums adjacent to the bulkhead been discharged?

A. No, sir.

Q. What was the distance from the ends or sides

of the drums to the bulkhead?

A. I should judge about two feet.
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Q. Not more than that?

A. I hardly tliink it would bo more.

Q. And you discharged these drums eventually,

did you? A. I discharged them.

Q. When you saw the effects of the fire, what

was if?

A. Well, the door was burned, charred about that

width. (Showing.)

Q. You are stretching your hands now.

A. About three feet, three feet six or four feet at

[292—121] the most. That was charred pretty

heavy at the bottom, and as it went up higher it was

little; it went up about five feet. Then the deck

above was all blackened with smoke, and the paint

work was blistered, but there was nothing there.

Q. Was the floor burned? A. No.

Q. Have you seen the door of the "Sardhana" in

the courthouse in this city 1

A. I have seen a door they say is the door of the

*'Sardhana." It looks like the one burned. I could

not swear to it, because I do not know that it is. It

is identical with it, if it is not. It looks like it to me.

Q. When you inspected that door, did you recog-

nize the extent of the fire that you had seen on the

**Sardhana'"?

A. Just the same. I am satisfied in my mind that

is the door of the "Sardhana."

Q. Are j^ou satisfied in your owm mind that repre-

sents the extent of the fire?

A. Yes. That represents the extent of the fire.

But the bulkhead, there is more smoke and blisters
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around on the deck above, that was blistered, the

paint work was blistered.

Q. But the fire is represented by that door?

A. Yes, sir. That is all that was burned.

Q. Who are you employed by now ?

A. The Washington Stevedoring Company, Cap-

tain Gribson.

Q. You have no interest in this litigation?

A. No. [293—122]

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) When did you inspect this

door? A. I have seen it this morning.

Q. When did this fire occur on board the "Sard-

hana"? A. The date of it?

Q. The date of it. A. I cannot give the date.

Q. Can you give the month and year?

A. They have the records when that happened. I

haven't got the dates.

Q. Do you remember the year?

A. About four years ago, as near as I can remem-

ber. I do not keep dates in my head.

Q. Mr. Preece, have you a very clear recollection

at this time as to the extent of the damage done

aboard the ''Sardhana" by this fire? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Very clear? A. Very clear, yes, sir.

Q. Still, you do not remember the month or the

year in which the fire occurred?

A. No, I cannot say that I remember the year or

the month. I am going around the Sound here from

one place to another discharging ships, and I do not

keep it in my memory.
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Q. Been pretty busy in the last four or five years!

A. Yes, pretty busy.

Q. How does it happen that your roPoUeetion of

this fire and the damaf!:e it done is so clear?

A. -Well. T happened to know that T disehare:ed the

"Sardhana" [294—123] there, and I know that

the fire was there, because I saw it, and I heard the

alann given in the first place from my room. And
when I got aboard the ship the next morning they

told me the fire had been there, and I looked at the

bulkhead, and when the cargo was discharged from

the between-decks I had as good opportunity as any-

body to examine that ])ulkhead, because it was all

open to me then. Before that a man had to crawl in

there for practically 25 or 30 feet on his belly on top

of the dirty creosote drums, and a man is not apt to

do that. I saw it after it was discharged.

Q. What was the extent of the damage to the bulk-

head? A. To the bulkhead?

Q. Yes. The bulkhead itself.

A. No damage at all.

Q. No damage whatever to the bulkhead?

A. No, none at all.

Q. You will swear to that, will you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. But the door you will admit was burned, having

seen it this morning?

A. I knew that the door was burned then.

Q. Don't you testify now largely from the inspec-

tion of the door this morning and not from your rec-

ollection of the fire ?
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A. No, I testify from my recollection of the fire.

Q. Do you know that this fire occurred in Novem-

ber, 1908?

A. I know that I have not got the dates, as I tell

you, but I know that the fire occurred aboard the

*'Sardhana" when she was lying in Eagle Harbor

discharging. [295—124]

Q. And that the bulkhead was not burned?

A. Not at all.

Q. Was it charred?

A. Well, blackened around there, that is all.

Probably smoked. Youmust understand creosote will

cause quite a lot of smoke, and black smoke at that,

and the deck and the paint work around there was

blistered. There was only that much space between

the drums and the bulkhead where the fire was,

about 2 feet. There was room enough for a man to

go down in there.

Q. You say the distance you are measuring off

there?

A. As near as I can remember it was very little

over two feet. That is as near as I remember, and

I discharged the ship.

Q. Mr. Preece, is it not possible to have gotten

from the lazarette door, in forward from the lazarette

door to this fire? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You would not have to do any crawling on your

belly to do that?

A. Not if you went through the lazarette. I did

not have a key to the captain's cabin. I did not
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IJ^o throunh that way. Tt was pretty dark in there

then.

Q. Yon did not sjjo aboard when yon heard the

ahirm that ni,ii:ht? A. No.

Q. Did not get up at all ?

A. T got np; in faet, I had not gone to bed, but I

was just going to bed when I heard the bells ringing

and heard them singing out. [296—125]

Q. Quite a little eommotion ai-ound there.

A. There was for a few minutes; yes.

Q. You mean a few minutes?

A, The noise, as far as I could hear it, was over in

a few minutes.

Q. What do you mean by a few^ minutes?

A. The first thing I heard was ])ells, fire-bells,

ringing, and then I heard some people calling out,

and I was under the impression that the steamship

''Cornelian," which was lying off the shore, I seem

to remember that I could hear the rattling of the

windlass, and I was under the impression that the

longshoremen or someone went from the "Cor-

nelian" to the ''Sardhana."

Q. For what purpose?

A. I supposed to put out the fire, whatever tHe

trouble was. I did not know what the trouble was.

Q. How far was the ''Cornelian" lying from the

"Sardhana"?

A. Oh, she might be a couple of hundred yards. T

do not think it would ])e any more.

Q. In order to get from one ship to the other they

would have to lower the boats and row over?
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A. They might have had a boat overboard for all

I know.

Q. There was no way of getting along the dock;

neither vessel was at the dock!

A. There was no way of getting from the ''Cor-

nelian" to the "Sardhana" without a boat or some

raft or something. They always had a boat lowered.

Q. Did you personally inspect the loading of this

barge on Saturday 1 A. I loaded her. [297—126]

Q. How many drums of creosote did she have fully

loaded?

A, Well, I could not tell you to the drum; we

loaded them to orders from the creosote company.

They told me to put on so many drums. To them

the drums three tiers high. Put them on providing

she was not getting too deep. Mr. Beale was the

superintendent, and when they brought it out they

would tell so many tiers, and I would put them on.

Q. When this scow was completely loaded on this

night, when you had finished, did you know how

much water she was drawing? Did you know how

far her deck was above the water?

A. I know she had all the way from a foot to 18

inches of freeboard, when I left her.

Q. Was she moored alongside, close to the "Sard-

hana"? A. Right close up; yes.

Q. So that she was touching the hull of the vessel?

A. She was alongside the yard-arm here; this

swung out right over the scow.

Q. Would the edge of the barge be under the curve

of the vessel's hull? A. The deck of the barge?
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Q. Yes, sir.

A. Some of that inijj:lit Ix' and some mii^^lit not.

Q. Was this owQi

A. I eould not sa\' that it was. I could not say

that it was not, but I don't think it was.

Q. You do not know, then?

A. I know that they build barges that way. I

cannot swear wliether that barge was curved or not

or straight. [298—127]

Q. I say, was the deck of the barge under the curve

of the counter of the vessel?

A. No, she was not under the counter at all.

Q. You are sure of that, are you?

A. I am sure of that, yes.

Q. Mr. Preece, in unloading these numerous other

vessels at Eagle Harbor that you have spoken of, did

you use these same barges in unloading these

vessels?

A. Yes ; I guess they might have been the same

barges. They were hired barges. I did not have to

keep track of the barges. All I done was to load

them. Probably the same barges.

Q. When you knocked off work that Saturday

night, did you notice whether that barge was leak-

ing?

A. No, I left the barge; she was right up—upright

on an even keel.

Q. Was she deeper in the water than barges usu-

ally are when loaded to that extent ?

A. Not necessarily so.

Q. So if leaking was the cause of the barge sink-
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ing she must have sprung a leak during the night?

A. Not necessarily. She might have been taking

water when we got her down so far. It might have

been up pretty well and when we got her loaded down

to the mark she would begin to leak and the water

run in.

Q. You are not testifying that she was leaking, are

you"?

A. I am not testifying that she was leaking; no.

Q'. When you saw her the next morning—or Mon-

day morning? A. It was Monday morning,

Q. You think she was moored, then, to the dockf

[299—128]

A. I think she was moored to the dock. I will not

swear to it.

Q. Was she upright?

A. No, she was bottom up.

Q. Was she standing high out of the water?

A. No, she was low in the water.

Q. Very low in the water?

A. Very low in the water.

Q. Any indications of any water being in her?

A. To me she looked full.

Q. She would be very low in the water if she was

full? A. She was low in the water.

Q. What do you mean by low in the water? How
high was she out of the water?

A. The bottom of her might have been a little more

than flush with the water, very little more.

Q. You are sure of that, are you?

A. I am sure of that; yes.
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Q. Of course, Mr. Preece, you do not know about

the sinking of this barge?

A. I don't know jinything about it. Only T left on

Saturday night and the barge was all right, and when

I came back Monday morning the creosote was in the

bottom of the bay. That is all I know about it.

Q. You are familiar with the construction of these

barges, are you? A. Some, yes.

Q. Were there any holes on the barges that would

let water in if she was upside down ? A. Yes, sir.

[300—129]

Q. If she was capsized she would take water then ?

A. I don't say she would not. I said she was full

of water.

Q. That is really all that you know about it, as she

was moored to the dock on Monday morning.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And your other testimony here is mere specula-

tion. You do not know know anything about what

caused her to capsize, do you ?

A. I do not know what caused her to capsize.

Q. Do you know what the weather was on the night

she capsized?

A. I know how the weather was in Seattle
;
yes.

Q. You were in Seattle that night, were you?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know how the weather was in Eagle

Harbor?

A. I do not know how the weather was in Eagle

Harbor.

Q. Where were you in Seattle that night?
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A. Home.

Q. Where is that ? A. On Queen Anne Hill.

Q. You do not know how the weather was on the

bay that night, do you ?

A. No, but I know it was rough that night here in

Seattle on this waterfront here.

Q. Do you know from which direction the wind

was coming?

A. No. I know that it damaged vessels and scows

lying alongside the docks in Seattle on the water-

front.

Q. Some extremely heavy weather, was there not?

A. Quite a little blow on that night.

(Testimony of witness closed.) [301—130]

[Testimony of C. R. Yeaton, for Respondent.]

C. R. YEATON, a witness called on behalf of the

respondent, being duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Mr. Yeaton, you are

an Englishman, are you ? A. Scotch.

Q. What is your business or occupation?

A. Second mate.

Q. Of what?

A. Of the British steamer "Oteric."

Q. Where is the steamer now? A. Pier 5.

Q. In this city? A. Yes.

Q. When did you arrive here?

A. I have forgotten that—Tuesday.

Q. Of this week? A. Yes.

Q. Were you ever connected with the bark ''Sard-

hana"? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was your position on the bark "Sard-
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hana"? A. Apprpnti(»e.

Q. Were you an apprentice on the "Sanlhana"
at the time she was at this ])(.rt, in Ni.vcniljtr. lfM)S?

A. In Eagle Harbor, yes.

Q. At Eagle Harbor f A. Yes.

Q, Did you make the voyage from London on her?

A. I did.

Q. What was her eargo at that time?

A. Creosote, in drums. [302—131]

Q. During the voyage from Lrondon to Eagle Har-

bor, was there any creosote pumped out of the hold

or limbers of the ship, into the sea? A. None.

Q. After arrival at Eagle Harbor, was there any

creosote in the hold of the vessel ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How much?

A. I could not tell you for certain, but I believe

about a foot.

Q. Did you have anything to do with pumping that

creosote out? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you have to do ?

A. Pumped it.

Q. You, yourself? A. Personally.

Q. State how much of that creosote was pumped

out.

A. The only way I could state was giving you the

approximate number of days we pumped.

Q. I don't mean that. Was it all or less than all

pumped out?

A. Until the pmnps sucked; they would not draw

any more.

Q. Was there anything done after that to what re-
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mained? A. I could not say for certain.

Q. How many days, do you recollect pumping

creosote out of the hold ? A. At least four.

Q. Was this pumping done after the discharge of

the drums, or during the discharge of the drums'?

[303—132]

A. Towards the latter part of the discharging.

Q. Where w^as that pumped to ?

A. Into empty barrels on the scow.

Q. Where did these barrels come from?

A. From the creosote company, to the best of my
knowledge.

Q. Where was the scow taken after that, after the

barrels were filled ?

A. To the customary place of discharge, as far as

T know.

Q. Have you any idea of the number of barrels

that were pumped out ?

A. No, I haven't—I know from seeing, but I did

not count them.

Q. Were there many or few? A. Many.

Q. Mr. Yeaton, do you remember the occasion of

a lighter on which were creosote drums, capsizing?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where were you on the night that the lighter

capsized? A. Onboard.

Q. Do you know when she capsized?

A. Early in the morning ; that is all I know.

Q. How did you have knowledge of her capsizing ?

A. I heard it go.

Q. You heard what ?
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A. I lioard her turn, wliat 1 supposed to 1m' her

turn.

Q. What was the noise like?

A. It sounded to me like drums hitting the ship.

Q. How long did the noise last?

A. A few seconds.

Q. Was the ship in any stress of weather at the

time? [304—133]

A. Not that 1 could see ; not that I remem])er.

Q. W'hat kind of a harhor was this where the

*'Sardhana" lay, exposed or protected?

A. There is quite a little hay, but it is quite

sheltered from the Sound itself, only a narrow en-

trance.

Q. Was this lighter which was capsized in an ex-

posed or a protected position?

A. Well, from anything coming in from the Sound

she was sheltered.

Q. AVas it exposed to anything else, was it exposed

to any sea or wind ?

A. Just the amount of sea that could get up in the

bay, that is in Eagle Harbor.

Q. Was the lighter lying close to the "Sardhana"?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know how she was fastened to the ship ?

A. I could not give you the exact

—

Q. Was the barge fastened to the ship?

A. She,was fastened.

Q. With w^hat? A. Eopes.

Q. Lines run out? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see the capsized lighter the next morn-
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ing? A. I did.

Q. Were these lines still to her 1 A. Still to her.

Q. Can you tell from the fact which you have just

stated which way the lighter capsized?

A. Well, I should imagine towards the ship.

[305—134]

Q. Were the lines intact when you saw" them ?

A. When I got out in the morning they were still

intact.

Q. If she had capsized over from the ship, how

would the lines have been? A. Probably broken.

Q. Do you remember the incident of the fire on

board the ''Sardhana"? A. Well.

Q. Did you have anything to do with the fire ?

A. Yes, I did some work about it.

Q. What was the work ?

A. Passing water to put it out.

Q. Where /was this water passed from?

A. Ship pump.

Q. Where was the ship's pump located?

A. On the forward end of the ship.

Q. Where was the water passed to ?

A. Through the saloon down into the lazarette.

Q. Through the saloon down into the lazarette ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you subsequently find out where the fire

was? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you saw it, did you ? A. And saw it.

Q. During the progress of the fire, did you see the

fire? A. No.

Q. What was it that you did see ?
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A. Smoke coniinii^ out from the saloon.

Q. Do you icmemhor tlic oocasion of fire-oxtin-

jruishors heing broui^^ht alxtard the slii])? [306

—

135] A. I do.

Q. Did you have anything to do with thorn?

A. I heli)ed a man to ix^t them over the rail.

Q. Did you do any work with your water buckets

after that ? A. I eould not say.

Q. From the time of the alarm to the time when

you eeased work on the fire, how long was it?

A. I eould not exactly say.

Q. Do you know whether these extinguishers were

used on the fire itself?

A. I did not see them after coming over the rail.

Q. You did not see them after they came over the

rail. Was it a dark night? A. Yes, fairly dark.

Q. When did you see the fire itself?

A. Well, I could not say that I saw the fire myself.

Q. When did you see the result of the fire ?

A. That night I went down in the lazarette, but I

did not see much of it then, it was too dark.

Q. When did you actually see the result ?

A. Oh, frequently afterw^ards.

Q. Frequently after that? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see it after that when the cargo was

out? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was the extent of the fire as you saw it ^

A. Merely the door charred.

Q. You have seen the door, have you, Mr. Yeaton ?

A. I have.

Q. In the courthouse in this city? [307—136]
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. Is that the ''Sardhana's" door?

A. To the best of my knowledge, yes.

Q. Does or does that not represent the extent of

the fire ? A. As far as I ever saw it, yes.

Q. Was the ceiling or the under part of the deck

burned at all? A. No.

Q. Was the floor of the between-decks burned at

all? A. No.

Q. Was the bulwark burned at all other than the

door? A. The bulkhead?

Q. The bulkhead, I mean.

A. No, not that I saw.

Q. How many times did you see that after the fire

itself?

A. I should say daily for quite a long time. My
work took me down there practically every day.

Q. Were there any repairs ever made to the fire

damage? A. None.

Q. Were any repairs ever needed?

A. Well, I should say no, because if there had been

any they would have had them done to save the ship 's

stores.

Q. This door protected the stores from pilferage?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When do you sail from here, Mr. Yeaton ?

A. To-night.

Q. Until ypu arrived here, you had not heard of

this litigation, had you ? A. No, not at all.

Q. How long were you on the "Sardhana" after

she left Eagle [308—137] Harbor?
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A. About two years, I should think.

Q. When you left hci\ there had been no repairs

made of the fire damaj^e ? A. None.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Mr. Yeaton, state if you kni.w

when this door was removed from the "Sardhana."

A. I beg your pardon?

Q. When was this door whieh was at the Federal

building removed from the "Sardhana"?

A. I do not know ; I did not know it was removed

until I saw it here.

Q. It was still on the "Sardhana" when you left?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. In the same condition as it was after the tire?

A. Exactly.

Q. Is it not a fact that a good portion of the

charred portion of that door had been scraped off?

Cannot you tell that from an inspection of the door

itself? A. I did not notice that.

Q. You did not notice that any charred portion

had been scraped off ? A. I did not notice it.

Q. Did you make a careful examination of that

door this morning?

A. I went to look at it, and I chietly looked at

it to see if it was the door.

Q. Where did these tire-extinguishers come from,

where were [309—138] they obtained?

A. They were brought by the creosote people.

Q. From the creosote company's plant?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. At the time these fire-extinguishers were
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brought aboard, was the smoke still coming out of the

ship? A. Probably, I think.

Q. How long after the fire-alarm was sounded was

it before you went below to see the fire ?

A. I did not go below until it had been extin-

guished.

Q. How long was that after the fire began?

A. That would be some time.

Q. Do you know who discovered the fire?

A. I believe the watchman of the ship.

Q. This fire was below-decks, was it not?

A. Between-decks.

Q. The watchman's duty is principally on the

main-deck, is it not? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you know how he discovered this fire?

A. Probably saw smoke come floating up the

ventilators.

Q. You do not know how long this fire had been

burning when it was discovered by the watchman, do

you? A. No.

Q. The watchman discovered the fire and im-

mediately gave the alarm, did he? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was that alarm responded to by any outside

persons? A. Yes, subsequently.

Q. Well, naturally, it would be subsequently.

[310—139] Who responded, what persons re-

sponded to this fire-alarm, if you know? I do not

want you to give the names of the persons, but where

did they come from, if you know?

A. There were several ships lying in the bay, laid

up for the winter.
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Q. Do you remember how the ships laid f

A. T know one that was there loading. That was

the "Cornelian.*'

Q. Was the "Jupiter" lying in the harbor at that

time?

A. The "Jupiter" was there. I know there were

some of the "Jupiter's" men aboard.

Q. They came aboard and assisted in putting out

the fire?

A. Yes. I think their work consisted mainly in

passing water. I do not know whether they were

down below or not.

Q. Did any of the crew of the "Hornelia" come

aboard to assist? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And they assisted in some manner, did they ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. I understood you to say some of the employees

of the creosoting company came aboard with the five-

extinguishers. A. Yes, sir.

Q. Could you tell me approximately the number

of men who were engaged in extinguishing this fire ?

A. Well, probably around about a dozen, possibly

more.

Q. How many were below, do you know ?

A. I could not say. I was not below myself.

Probably four or five.

Q. Do you know how long they were engaged in

passing water down to put out this fire, before the

extinguishers arrived? [311—140]

A. No, I could not say any nearer than probably

the time it would take for to go to the plant and get
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the extinguishers and take them down the wharf and

get a boat and fetch them out.

Q. Cannot you give us an approximate amount of

time it would take ? You say there were 12 men en-

gaged in passing this water ? A. Not all the time.

Q. Did the crew of the "Jupiter" get aboard be-

fore the fire-extinguishers arrived?

A. I could not say as to that.

Q. Where was the '

' Jupiter '

' lying with reference

to the place that the "Sardhana" was lying?

A. Astern of us.

Q. Approximately how far distant?

A. Three hundred feet, perhaps.

Q. Do you know how they reached the "Sard-

hana"? Was it necessary for them to lower a boat

and row over ? A. They always had a boat down.

Q. It was necessary for them to come over by

boat?

A. You could probably come by logs, if you were

good at it.

Q. Have to be pretty good at it, at night, would

you not? Do you inow how they did come?

A. I should say by boat.

Q. Where was this other ship, the "Hornelian,"

lying in the harbor with respect to the place the

"Sardhana" was anchored?

A. Nearer the entrance to the harbor.

Q. I mean about how far distant? • ^

A. Probably about as far as the "Jupiter."

Q. The crew from that vessel would also have to

take a boat [312—141] to get to the "Sardhana,"
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would they notf A. Yes.

Q. Have you any idea how long it took the crews

of these two vessels to get the boats and row over to

the '*Sardhana" and get aboard?

A. No, I could not say.

Q. How many men were engaged passing water,

prior to the time that the crew^s of these other vessels

arrived to assist f

A. Well, all our crew was on board; probaljly

would be a dozen.

Q. In passing water ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And I understood you to say these other crews

assisted you in passing water w^hen they came

aboard f A. Yes.

Q. How^ many were there from these other two ves-

sels? A. About a dozen.

Q. So that there would be about 24 men passing

water after the crews arrived ?

A. There would be 24 on board. I do not know

whether they were all doing what they came to do.

Q. They were all assisting in the general work try-

ing to extinguish the fire?

A. They were aboard with that intention.

Q. Have you any idea how- many buckets of water

were passed down into the "Sardhana" for the pur-

pose of extinguishing this fire ?

A. No, I could not say. It is quite a slow process

passing it along the deck and down. [313—142]

Q. Would you say forty or fifty buckets?

A. I would not like to say. It would take a long

time to pass fifty buckets along and pump it.
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Q. I just want to get at it approximately, say

forty buckets.

A. Probably forty. I would not say. That is,

passed down. I don't know what they did with it

when they got it below.

Q. Was the smoke still coming out of this vessel

when the fire-extinguishers arrived?

A. Probably, I should think ; but I could not say.

Q. These fire-extinguishers were immediately sent

down below, were they 1

A. I presume so, although I did not see them go.

Q. Mr. Yeaton, was there not a considerable

amount of dunnage from the "Sardhana" along the

bulkhead door, in the immediate vicinity of this fire *?

A. I cannot say that I know. There might have

been some, but that door was a solid door, and had

there been much dunnage there, it would have got

jammed and would not slide.

Q. I do not quite follow that.

A. The door slides.

Q. But the burned side of the door would not pre-

vent it sliding ?

A. The dunnage would have prevented that.

Q. Mr. Yeaton, did you mean to testify that there

was no damage whatever to the bulkhead?

A. I never saw it.

Q. I say, do you swear that there was no damage

to the bulldiead'?

A. It might have been smoked, but I never saw

any trace of [314—143] burning on the bulkhead.

Q. Was it smoked?



vs. Pacific Creosofing Cow patty. 305

(Testimony of O. R. Yeaton.)

A. It mi^lit have been. T could not swonr that it

was or that it was not.

Q. Is it not a fact, Mr. Yeaton, tliat tliat tire was

approximately four years ago? Now, have you a

clear recollection of the damage that was done?

A. Oh, I think so.

Q. Of course, your recollection is very clear he-

cause you inspected the door this morning^

A. No, but the fire in down there was very clear.

It was the only fire that I had ever come in contact

with at sea, so I remembered it.

'Q. It is very vivid in your recollection, is it ?

A. Yes, it is vivid.

Q. Considerable danger to the ship at the time,

was there?

A. Well, anything like that aboard ship, getting

along without much ado, generally causes excitement,

of course.

Q. Your recollection is not clear enough to state

whether the bulkhead was even smoked or not?

A. No. It might have been smoked more or less

;

but probably I would not take any notice of it there.

Q. But you think it was not burned?

A. I certainly remember clearly that the door was

burned.

Q. There is no dispute about that.

A. But I mean to say I have been so all along;

had the bulkhead been burned I would have remem-

bered that too.

Q. That is what you are basing your testimony on

at this time, is it? A. On what? [315—144]
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<3. The fact that you remembered that the door

was burned, you think that you would have remem-

bered that the other was burned if it had been %

A. Well, we w^ere down there. Of course, we
could get in there any time and ascertain what the

damage was out of curiosity.

Q. Can you swear at this time that the bulkhead

was not burned to any extent ? Can you swear that

at this time?

A. Well, I would not like to swear that there was

no damage done to the bullihead.

Q. Would you swear that the ceiling was not

smoked and blistered?

A. No, I would not swear that the ceiling was not

smoked.

Q. Would you swear it was not blistered from the

flames and the heat of the fire ?

A. No, I would not swear to that.

Q. Do you know what was done with this creosote

when it was pumped out of the ship into barrels?

A. No. I presume they took it to the customary

place where they took all the scows and discharged

it there.

Q. You do not know what was done with it ?

A. Oh, no.

Q. Approximately how many barrels were filled

with this creosote from the hold of the ship?

A. I don't know.

Q. Haven't you any idea at all?

A. No. I just used to look over the side and see

how they were getting along with our pumping, etc.
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My position then entailed no r('s])onsil)iIity as to

l)rire or quantities. [316—145] All we had to do

was to pump. When I was told to stop I stop])ed.

Q. Have you any idea how many «;allons you

pumped out of the holdf A. No.

i}. Did you state that there were more or less than

four thousand gallons })umped out of the hold of

that ship? A. No. I could not say.

Q. Did you have charge of the pumps on the en-

tire voyage across? A. No.

Q. Was the pump used at all on the voyage across?

A. Not at all.

Q. You are positive of that, are you?

A. Except that probably the carpenter turned it

over to oil it.

Q. But you are sure that no water or creosote was

pumped out of it during the voyage across ?

A. Yes.

Q. You had pretty rough weather on that voy-

age?

A. We generally do on a voyage of that length.

Q. Shipped considerable water aboard, didn't

you?

A. You cannot very well go to sea without getting

it. 1 would not say there was any especially heavy

weather that I remember of. Not any worse than

any other voyage.

Q. There was enough rough weather to break the

cargo loose in the hold ? A. Yes, certainly.

Q. So that it worked pretty heavily ?

A. All I could say about it was that it is the ordi-
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nary [317—146] Cape Horn voyage.

,Q. Would the fact that the cargo was broken loose

in the hold of the vessel

—

A. It certainly worked a little.

Q. Did it break loose and work so that it had to be

restowed and dunnaged?

A. We certainly dropped dunnage down; we did

not do any restowing, we could not restow.

Q. Mr. Yeaton, how was this scow fastened along-

side % Was the side of the scow up against the hull

of the vessel?

A. Just what you would call alongside.

Q. Was it touching the vessel?

A. Not all the time, I should imagine. Just the

way a scow lies to a ship—sometimes alongside and

sometimes a little bit off.

Q. What was the condition of the weather on the

night this scow capsized?

A. I have no particular recollection of it being

either very bad or very fine.

Q. Have you any particular recollection at all

what the weather was? A. No.

Q. You do not remember?

A. No. Had it been bad I should think I would

remember it, because we probably would have had

trouble with our own mooring.

Q. Do you know which way this scow capsized, be-

yond the fact that you heard something hitting the

side of the vessel ? A. No.

Q. Do you know whether or not this scow itself

was bumping [318—147] into the vessel on that
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night ( A. No, 1 could not say.

Q. If tlu* scow was moored alongside the vessel

and there had been any considerable swell, she would

naturally bump the vessel, would she not?

A. Quite probably.

Q. Do you know whether this scow took any water

before she capsized? A. I could not say.

Q. Did you make any examination of the scow

afterwards? A. No, mereh' looked at it.

Q. Do you know whether any repairs wore made

to this scow to her bottom? A. No.

Redirect Examination.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) What would have

been your duty that night of the capsizing of the

scow had the weather been bad ?

A. In regard to the ship or scow?

Q. In regard to the ship.

A. Well, had the ship been ranging at all, we

might have had to tighten up some of our moorings.

Q. You would not have been in your berth, would

you ?

A. Oh, well, of course it all depends on how the

ship behaved. If she showed any signs of I'anging

—

Q. Suppose there had been a heavy gale and a

heavy sea, what would have been the situation on

board the "Sardhana" that night?

A. It would have been just the same unless she

started to [319—148] range.

Q. In your judgment, was it possible to have a

heavy sea such as would affect that lighter as she lay

there that night?
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A. Personally, I did not see any heavy sea any-

where around.

Q. That is all you can say? A. That is all.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Mr. Yeaton, the extended

protest. Libelant's Exhibit "L," which is signed by

the master and first mate, under oath, appears this

entry: "June 6th. Nothing to be noted here oc-

curred until when it was discovered that the carpen-

ter's sounding rod was very slightly colored with

creosote." Do you remember that incident?

A. No.

Q. Have no knowledge of it?

A. No. That would not come under my notice at

all.

Q. Do you know whether or not there was any

creosote in the hold of the ship at that time, June

6th, 1908?

A. I probably heard it around the ship ; that would

be all.

Q. That creosote was allowed to remain in the

hold of the ship for the entire voyage, was it?

A. It must have been. It certainly did not come

from the pumps.

Q. What does the entry mean "that she had

pumps, lights and lookout carefully attended to"?

A. The carpenter would attend to the pumps, turn

them over and oil them.

Q. That is what the entry means, that he turns

the pumps over every day to oil them? [320—149]

A. Not every day.

Q. Every time ?
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(Testimony of C. R. Yeaton.)

A. Once a week, and attend to the neces5«iry parts

of it.

Q. AVas it your custom to turn them over more

than once a week? A. I don't think so.

Q. If that entry appears in the h)g from day to

day, would you say it had the same meaning?

A. I should say so, yes.

Q. And if that entry appears from day to day it

means that he turned the pump over and oiled it on

each one of these days? A. I suppose so.

Q. Is it not customary to pump a vessel on a long

voyage, the length of the voyage taken by the "Sard-

hana" on this occasion?

A. If it is necessary.

Q. According to your testimony, it was not on this

occasion, is that it?

A. Well, it was never my position to decide when

it was necessary or when it was not.

Q. Do you think you are in a position to testify

that it was not done ?

A. Well, I know it was not done.

Q. You know that no pumps were used on this

voyage? A. I know that.

Q. If the mate stated differently he is wrong?

A. I should say so, yes, sir.

(Testimony of witness closed.) [321—150]

[Testimony of S. B. Gibbs, for Respondent.]

S. B. GIBBS, a witness called on behalf of the re-

spondent, being duly sworn, testified as follows:

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Captain, w^hat is

your profession?
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(Testimony of S. B. Gibbs.)

A. Agent and surveyor for the San Francisco

Board of Marine Underwriters.

Q. What is your profession?

A. Shipmaster.

Q. Have you seen sea service? A. I have.

Q. How much ? A. About 26 years.

Q. The respondent in this case is a member of this

Marine Underwriters of San Francisco?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember the fire in question in this

case? A. I do.

Q. Did you ever have occasion, after the fire, to

investigate it ?

A. I went aboard several days after the fire out

of curiosity not know at the time that our under-

writers were interested. I went aboard out of curi-

osity to see what the fire was.

Q. Who was with you ? A. Mr. Walker.

Q. Frank Walker? A. Frank Walker.

Q. Have you seen the door that purports to be the

door of the "Sardhana" in the courthouse in this

city? A. I have.

Q. Does it assist any, seeing the door, does that

assist [322—151] your recollection in regard to

the fire, or have you an independent recollection?

A. Well, I think I have an independent recollection

as regards the fire.

Q. What did you find to have been the damage

caused by the fire, the extent of the fire damage ?

A. When I looked at it, the bulkhead appeared to

be scorched or charred for a distance of about—that
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is, the door. The np])er pctrtioii of the l)iilkhe«id

was smoked to the (h'ck and the iron beam overhead

was smoked, that is all tlic daniaj^e that I saw.

Q. How often have you Ix-cn to Eaijjle Hprbor?

A. I ii^o there on an average of about twice a

month.

Q. How long have you been going there on an aver-

age of twice a month? A. Eleven years.

Q. You remember, do you, distinctly where the

''Sardhana" was moored? A. I do.

Q. Did you see any of the scows that were being

loaded with drums of creosote ?

A. I saw them as I passed by on the steamer.

Q. Did you notice the method of stowage?

A. I did not notice that particularly.

Q. Have you heard the method of stowage de-

scribed by Mr. Preece, the stevedore, in this case ?

A. I have.

Q. Have you heard the evidence as to the location

of the lighter that was capsized?

A. I have. [323—152]

Q. State whether the harbor of Eagle Harbor is

protected or unprotected.

A. We look upon it as a protected harbor.

Q. Are there any winds or is there any sea, that

would have affected this lighter, as she lay alongside

the ''Sardhana"?

A. I do not think she would have been affected by

any wind or sea in that position in which the ship

was moored, and the barge moored on the inshore

side.
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Q. Why, Captain?

A. Because it is close in to land on one side and

the ship on the outside, and the creosote works on the

other side, and it seems to me pretty hard for the

wind to get up any sea that would affect the barge.

Q. What, in your opinion, would cause the capsiz-

ing of that barge %

A. I should say it must be water in it.

Q. That is the barge must have had water ?

A. The barge must have had water, must have

been leaking.

Q. Were you present at any time during the dis-

charge of the "Sardhana'"?

A. Only the day that I went on board.

Q. Were they discharging then? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember whether they were pumping

creosote ?

A. No, I did not see them pump any creosote.

Cross-examination.

Q. (Mr. BOGLE.) Captain, at the time you went

aboard the "Sardhana" with Mr. Walker, was he

making a survey of the [324r—153] fire damage?

A. I think he had already made his survey. I

believe he had been on board before, because he did

not make any notes the day I was aboard. I think

his survey had been made previously to our going

aboard.

Q. At that time you had no particular interest in

the matter beyond mere curiosity?

A. That is all.

Q. Did not make a minute examination, as if you
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were making a survey f

A. No. I do not suppose I did. I did not look

quite as closely.

Q. You do not know, Captain, anything about the

condition of the weather on the night this barge cap-

sized?

A. No, I do not recollect anything about it.

Q. Captain, in extreme heavy weather outside of

the harbor would not there be considerable ground

swell get in and reach the vessels inside of the

harbor?

A. I never seen much ground swell outside of the

harbor, not enough to come in there. I do not know

that I have ever seen any ground swell in Eagle

Harbor. I cannot recollect that I ever saw any in

there.

Q. If there was such a ground swell, Captain, even

though the barge was moored on the inshore side of

the *'Sardhana," it might affect her, if the barge

and "Sardhana" were moored together—in other

words, it would reach the barge?

A. A heavy ground swell might possibly affect the

barge, if there had been any.

Q. You did not examine the barge to see if she had

been leaking. Do you know whether or not any

repairs were [325—154] made to the barge?

A. No, I do not.

Q. You heard Captain Walker's testimony this

morning of the survey he made of this barge, and the

fact that she was making no water?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. In this particular suit, Captain, you represent

the respondent in this case, don't you, that is, they

are members of the board that you represent?

A. Yes, sir.

Redirect Examination.

Q. (Mr. McCLANAHAN.) Would it have been

possible for Mr. Walker to have ascertained whether

that barge was leaking or not by the inspection and

survey which you heard him testify to this morning?

A. It would be rather difficult to find out if the

vessel was leaking, the way he stated the survey was

made. It would be rather hard work.

Q'. What would be the proper method of ascer-

taining whether that barge leaked or not?

A. Well, our method, if there is a leak and if we

cannot locate the leak after looking at the vessel all

over, is to put water into the vessel, pump water in

and See where the water comes out.

Q. Fill her up.

A. Yes, fill her up as much as is necessary. We
frequently do that where we are unable to determine

where the leak was.

Q. If the leak is not obvious from inspection, do

you know any other method by which it can be de-

termined? [326—155] A. No, I do not.

Q. Are all leaks patent to the eye, in barges?

A. No.

Q. (Mr. BOOLE.) Captain, do you know that

Mr. Walker did not use that method to ascertain that

fact?

A. No, I do not know, only just what he stated.
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Q. You do not know whether or not the barp^e had

water in lier when she was taken out on the gridiron?

A. No, I do not.

(Testimony of witness elosed.)

It is admitted that the statements of faet con-

tained in the extended protest are taken from the

logof the"Sardhana."

Testimony elosed. [327—156]

United States of America,

Western District of Washington,

County of King,—ss.

I, A. C. Bowman, a Commissioner of the United

States District Court for the Western District of

Washington, residing at Seattle in said District, do

hereby certify, that

The foregoing transcript from page 1 to page 156,

both inclusive, contains all of the testimony offered

before me by the parties to said cause.

The several witnesses, before examination, were

duly sworn to testify the truth, the whole truth and

nothing but the truth.

The testimony was reduced to writing by me on

the dates shown in said transcript. The exhibits

referred to in the transcript and shown in the index

are returned herewith.

Proctors for the parties stipulated waiving the

reading and signing of the testimony given by the

witnesses.

It was also stipulated that the testimony be taken

before me as United States Commissioner and re-

turned by me into Court, the same as if an order of
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reference had been regularly entered in said cause.

The taxable costs incurred before me are shown in

the statement following this certificate.

I further certify that I am not of counsel nor in

anyway interested in the result of this suit.

Witness my hand and official seal this 26th day of

February, 1913.

A. O. BOWMAN,
United States Commissioner. [328]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Final Decree.

This cause having been duly referred to a Com-

missioner, and testimony having been taken by the

Commissioner and returned to this Court, and the

said cause having come on regularly to be heard upon

the pleadings and proofs, and counsel for the respect-

ive parties having been heard, and the Court having,

after due deliberation had in the premises, filed its

memorandum decision herein on January , 1914,

in which the Court found and now finds that the re-

spondent, Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Com-

pany, Ltd., is liable to libelant for the total amount

of damage claimed in the libel herein;

NOW, THEREFOEE, IT IS HEREBY OR-

DERED, ADJUDGED AND DECREED that the

above-named libelant. Pacific Creosoting Company,

do have and recover from the above-named respond-

ent, Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Company,

Ltd., the sum of Eleven Hundred Ninety-seven and

20/100 Dollars ($1197.20), together with interest on
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said sum from the 10th day of August, 1910, at tho

rate of six per cent (6^; ) per annum, amountinej in

all to tho sum of Fourteen Hundred and Fifty-one

and 56/100 Dollai-s ($1451.56), together witli its

costs lierein to be taxed.

Dated at Seattle, Wasliington, this 26th day of

February, 1914.

JEREMTAH XETERER,
'

Judge. [330]

[Indorsed]: Final Decree. Filed in the U. S.

District Court, Western Dist. of Washington, North-

ern Division. Feb. 26. 1914. Frank L. Crosby,

Clerk. By E. M. Lakin, Deputy. [331]

[Opinion on Exceptions to Libel.]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

IN ADMIRALTY. Libel in personam, to recover

for partial loss on a policy of marine insurance.

Exceptions to libel overruled.

BOGLE, MERRITT and BOOLE, for Libelant.

BRADY & RUMMENS, for Claimant.

HANFORD, District Judge:

This suit is founded on a marine policy insuring a

cargo of iron drums containing creosote oil shipped

from London, England, to Eagle Harbor in Puget

Sound by the British ship "Sardhana." In storms

encountered during the voyage, the cargo was

battered and damaged and after the arrival at her

port of discharge, a gale of wind caused a barge used

for lightering the cargo from the ship to land, having

a load of 272 drums, to be capsized and by that casu-
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alty, four drums were lost and a large salvage ex-

pense was incurred. The losses from the causes

indicated amount in the aggregate to more than 20%
of the total value of the cargo and by a marine sur-

vey and report of average adjusters, the respondent's

liability was fixed at $1197.20, which is the amount of

insurance on that part of the cargo lost, added to

expenses incurred under the sue and labor clause of

the policy. [332]

The respondent claims exemption from liability on

a condition of the contract known in the insurance

business as the "F. P. A. Clause," which reads as fol-

lows: "WARRANTED free from particular aver-

age, unless the vessel or craft or the interest insured

be stranded, sunk or on fire, * * * ." In

marine insurance law the phrase "Warranted free

from particular average" means that the insurer

does not assume liability for a partial loss, and the

controverted question in this case is whether the

conditional liability in this case became absolute by

reason of a fire in the ship after her arrival at her

port of discharge. In the libel it is averred that

:

" * * * On November 18th, while lying in

said Port of Eagle Harbor, and before discharg-

ing said cargo, a fire broke out in the after

'tween-decks of said ship, and burned the bulk-

head forward of the lazarette, the door thereof

and a considerable portion of dunnage and other

parts of said ship * * * ."

And in an exhibit attached to the libel there is

quoted from the ship 's protest, a statement concern-

ing the fire as follows:
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''November 18th: Stevodoros continued to

diseharjre the cargo and at 5:00 P. M. finished

for the day. 291 further drums were dis-

charged. About 9:30 P. M. smoke was dis-

covered issuing from the after hatch, by one of

the crew w^ho inunediately notified the master

and then gave the alarm. This alarm was re-

sponded to by the crews of the ship 'Jupiter,'

the SS. 'Hornelen,' and the employees of the

Pacific Creosoting Company who brought with

them several chemical fire-extinguishers. The
Master went below through the lazarette

and saw the reflection of the fire over the

top of the bulkhead between the after-

'tween decks and the lazarette. The after

'tween-decks were still full of cargo. After

considerable trouble the fire was extinguished

and it was then discovered that the aforesaid

bulkhead, together with the door thereof (the

bulkhead was built in the vessel) and the dun-

nage in the after 'tween-decks were burned, and

some of the ship's stores in the lazarette were

damaged by water and chemicals. Tlie origin

of the fire was not discovered."

In their argument in support of exceptions to the

libel, proctors for the respondent urge that the

libelant's claim is based upon a bare technicality.

If so, the claim is nevertheless the assertion of a sub-

stantial and legal right, by the contract insurance

was paid for and wTitten, the "F. P. A. Clause"

makes an exception to the liability of the insurer

and [333] is to be construed strictly. 19 Am. &
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Eng. Enc. of Law (2d. ed.), 1065; Canton Insurance

Office V. Woodside, 90 Fed. 301. The proctors on

both sides of the case have informed the Court that

after diligent search they have been unable to find

any adjudicated case, English or American, giving

an interpretation of the "F. P. A. Clause" since the

words "on fire" came into use as a substitute for

the word "burnt" in the forms of policy used pre-

vious to the decision in the Grienlivet case, VII As-

pinwall Mar. Cases, N. S., 342, 395; 19 Am. & Eng.

Enc. of Law (2d ed.), 1070. The words "on fire"

are not synonymous with the word "burnt," and

the change of phraseology, manifestly, was not made

without a purpose. Having no precedent to follow

this case must be decided according to reason and

good sense. The words "on fire" in connection with

a ship, do not comprehend, necessarily, every fire

that may be on board of the ship, nor do they have

the same meaning as "consumed by fire" or "de-

stroyed by burning." They are indicative of a

happening whereby the ship is endangered by actual

fire burning some part of it and necessitating ex-

traordinary efforts to prevent serious damage. A
bulkhead between decks is part of a ship, as an inner

partition wall is part of a house. A fire in that part

of a ship would justify an alarm and if not properly

subdued would certainly be destructive and such a

happening would be truthfully described by saying

that the ship was "on fire."

It is the opinion of the Court that the libel tenders

an issue as to whether the ship was in fact on fire

within the meaning of the clause of the policy relied
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upon to exempt the respondent from lia))ility, there-

fore the exceptions must be overruled.

C. H. HANFORI),
United States District Judge. [334]

[Indorsed]: Opinion. Filed in the U. 8. District

Court. AVestem Dist. of Washington. Jan. 16,

15)11. R. M. Hopkins, Clerk. [335]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Memorandum Decision on Exceptions to the Answer

and on Exceptions to Interrogatories Pro-

pounded by the Respondent.

It is the opinion of the Court that paragraphs 7

and 9, containing the first and third alleged affirma-

tive defenses, if considered as allegations of facts

and not bare legal conclusions, are insufficient to

raise any distinct issue, but merely reiterate in an

affirmative form, matter contained in a preceding

part of the answer in the form of denials of the aver-

ments of the libel. As to said matters, the denials

complete the joinder of issues and are sufficient to

support evidence rebutting evidence which the libel-

ant will be required to introduce in support of the

cause of action alleged.

The policy of insurance sued upon is an English

policy, and the respondent has a right to plead the

English law applicable thereto, and thereby assume

the burden of proving as a fact by competent evi-

dence, that according to English law the contract

must be intei'preted in a way to preclude the right

claimed by the libelant to delete the F. P. A. clause
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of the policy, by reason of such, facts and circum-

stances as may be proved by the evidence to be in-

troduced.

It will be ordered that the exceptions to para-

graphs 7 and 9 of the answer be sustained ; and that

the exceptions to [336] paragraph 8 of the answer

be overruled.

It is the opinion of the Court that interrogatories

3, 4 and 9 attached to the answer are either super-

fluous or immaterial, and the exceptions to the same

are sustained.

The respondent is not entitled to require the ex-

hibition of documentary evidence, therefore the ex-

ception to interrogatory 5 is sustained in so far as it

calls for the production of a copy of the report of

any survey which may have been made, otherwise

said exception is overruled.

The Court overrules the exceptions to inter-

rogatories 1, 2, 6, 7 and 8.

C. H. HANFORD,
Judge.

[Indorsed] : Memorandum Decision on Excep-

tions. Filed in the U. S. District Court, Western

Dist. of Washington. April 20, 1911. R. M. Hop-

kins, Clerk. [337]



r.s. Pacific Crcosotiuq Cotn/xntif. 325

[Opinion on Final Hearing.]

[Titlo of Court and Cause]

Lilu'l i)i PcrsoiKun to Recover for I*artial Loss on a

Policy of ^^al•ino Insurance. Opinion on Fin:il

Hearing.

BOGLE, MERRITT and BOGLE, for Libe-

lant.

BRADY & RUMMENS, for Claimant.

NETERER, District Judge.

This action is founded on a marine policy insuring

a cargo, 2,753 drums of creosote oil in the British

ship '*Sardhana," shipped from London, England,

to Eagle Harbor in Puget Sound, Washington, "in-

cluding the risk of craft, and/or raft to and from the

vessel." There is also incorporated in the policy by

attaching to the margin a printed slip, which is not

a part of the printed form, the following: "War-

ranted free from particular average, unless the ves-

sel or craft or the interest insured be stranded, sunk

or on fire. ..." General average and salvage

charges payable according to Foreign statement or

York-Antwerp Rules, or 1890 Rules, if in accordance

with the contract of affreightment. Including all

risks of craft and boats. ..." "Including all

risks of transhipment and of craft, lighterage and/or

any other conveyances . . . from the vessel until

safely delivered in the warehouse. ..." In the

body of the printed form of the policy: "It is de-

clared and agreed that Corn Fish Salt and Fruit

Flour and Seed are warranted free from average
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unless general or the ship be stranded, sunk or

burnt. '

'

It is alleged that by reason of storms encountered

on the voyage the cargo was battered and damage

resulted by loss of creosote oil, and after arriving at

the port of discharge a gale caused [338] the

barge used for lightering the cargo to capsize, and

thereby four drums were lost and a large salvage

expense incurred. On November 18, a fire broke

out in the after 'tween-decks of the ship while lying

in the port of Oak Harbor, behind the bulkhead for-

ward of lazarette. The following was entered in the

log of the ship, and is sustained by the evidence

:

*'November 18th. Stevedores continued to

discharge the cargo and at 5 P. M. finished for

the day. 291 further drums were discharged.

About 9 :30 P. M. smoke was discovered issuing

from the after hatch, by one of the crew, who

immediately notified the master and then gave

the alarm. This alarm was responded to by

the crews of the ship 'Jupiter,' the S. S. 'Horn-

elen,' and the employees of the Pacific Creosot-

ing Company, who brought with them several

chemical fire-extinguishers. The master went be-

low through the lazarette and saw the reflection of

the fire over the top of the bulkhead between the

after 'tween-decks and the lazarette. The after

'tween-decks were still full of cargo. After con-

siderable trouble the fire was extinguished, and

it was then discovered that the aforesaid bulk-

head, together with the door thereof (the bulk-

head was built in the vessel), and the dunnage
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in the aftrr 'tvvecii-decks, were hiirncd, and sonic

of the ship's stores in the hizarette were dania^'ed

l)y water and fhoniicals. The ori^nn of tlic Hie

was not discovered."

The respondent chiinis exeni})tion from Iial)ility on

aeconnt of the Free from Particular Avcra.i^c war-

ranty; that the '\Sardhana" was not ''on fire"; that

no recovery from the four drums lost on the lighter

or for the salvage expenses can be had, because the

lighter in question was unseaworthy; that no recov-

ery can be had in any event, it not being shown that

any creosote was lost ; and that, if lost, it was not on

the ship at the time of the fire, and the F. P. A. clause

does not apply; and that it is not shown what loss

occurred because of perils insured against.

It is strenuously urged that the fire was not suffi-

cient to delete the "F. P. A." warranty, and reliance

is placed on the Gleulivet, Prob. p. 48, decided in

1893, and cited by the Supreme Court of the United

States in London Insurance v. Camponhia, etc., 167

U. S. 149, 156. In the form of policy previous to

the Glenlivet case the word "burned" was used in

the "F. P. A." clause. After this case was decided

the words "on fire" were substituted for the word

"burned." No case has been suggested where the

[339] words "on fire" has ever been before the

courts in the same relation in any other case. The

change of the words must have been made for a pur-

pose. These words, as stated by Judge Hanford in

passing upon the exceptions to the libel in this case

in 184 Fed. 949, are not synonymous. The policy

sued on in the body thereof with relation to "Col'n,"
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etc., uses the terms "sunk" or "burned," and in the

margin, with relation to the cargo, especially pro-

vides sunk or "on fire," clearly evidencing a pur-

pose in the minds of the parties to distinguish from

the former term and construction. The testimony of

Mr. Beckett, an Average Adjuster of London, Eng-

land, shows that "under clauses . . . containing the

words 'on fire,' it is the practice of the adjusters in

England to consider the warranty open if some

structural part of the vessel has been actually on

fire." It is clear that "on fire" used in the policy

was not to be considered as was "burned" in the

Glenlivet case. The warranty is drawn in the nature

of an exception to the liability of the insurer, and is

strictly construed against him. Judge Morrow, Cir-

cuit Judge, in Canton Ins. Offices v. Woodside, 90

Fed. 301, 305, said:

'

' In the case at bar the intention of the parties

is not expressed as clearly as it might be, and

hence any doubt that there may be is to be re-

solved in favor of the insured and against the

insurer. A policy of insurance is a contract of

indemnity, and is to be liberally construed in

favor of the insured. Yeaton v. Fry, 5 Cranch

335; National Bank v. Insurance Co., 9'5 U. S.

673, 679; Steel v. Insurance Co., 2 C. C. A. 463;

51 F. 715, 723 ; and cases there cited ; 1 Arn. Ins.

(6th ed.) Sec. 295. If the policy will fairly ad-

mit of two constructions, that one should be

adopted which will indemnify the insured."

"The company cannot justly complain of such

a rule. Its attorneys, officers, or agents pre-
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pared the policy for tlie purpose, we shall as-

sume, hotli of protectinpf the (•oinj)any aejainst

fraud, and of securing the just rights of the as-

sured under a valid contract of insurance. Tt

is its language which the Court is invited to in-

terpret, and it is l)oth reasona))le and just that

its own words should be construed most strongly

against itself."

National Bank v. Insurance Co., 95 U. S. 673.

"If the company l)y the use of the expression

found in the policy leaves it a matter of doubt

as to the construction to be given to the language,

the Court should lean against the construc-

tion [340] which would limit the lial)ility of

the company."

London Assurance v. Camponhia, etc., 167

U. S. 149.

The fire as shown by the evidence was on some

structural part of the ship, and endangered the ship

by actually burning some part of it, and this was suffi-

cient to open the warranty clause.

The contention that the lighter in question was un-

seaworthy cannot be sustained. The provisions of

the policy include "the risk of craft and/or raft to

and from the vessel."

"The warrant of seaworthiness which is im-

plied as to the ship does not extend to lighters

employed to land the cargo."

Arnold on Marine Insurance (8th ed.), sec.

689;

19 Am. & Eng. Encyc. of Law (2d ed.), 1002;

25 Cyc. 645

;

Lane v. Niekerson, L. R. 1 C. P. 412.
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The burden to show unseaworthiness, if that were

material, is upon the respondents.

Nome Beach, etc. v. Munich Assurance Co.,

123 Fed. 820.

There is no testimony before the Court to establish

such condition.

The bill of lading or shipping receipt for the cargo

recites ''shipped in good order and well-conditioned

by Blagden, Waugh & Company, in and upon the

good ship called the 'Sardhana' . . . 2753 drums of

creosote oil." The captain of the ship was asked,

''Was not all of the cargo in apparent good order

and condition when received on said ship ?" "Yes, I

rejected what we considered bad drums." The

ship's log recites, and these facts are in evidence:

"Sept. 26. It was noticed that by the sound-

ings in the pump well that there was an increase

of liquid which appeared to be mostly creosote."

"Nov. 3. Similar conditions were encount-

ered, and the cargo again worked badly."

The witness Wylie testified:

"The creosote escaped into the hold of the

vessel partly on account of the severe weather

and partly on account of the original weakness

of the drums, and the leakage of creosote was to

some extent due to the screw bungs working

out."

On the arrival of the ship at its port of discharge,

it was found that there had been lost during the voy-

age the difference [341] between the cargo re-

ceived and that delivered, which is claimed in the

libel.
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** There is no implied warranty in a policy on

goods that the goods are seaworthy for the voy-

age."

2 Arnold on Marine Insurance (8th cd.), sec

689.

The ship "Sardhana" being seaworthy when she

left London, the cargo in good order and condition

when received on the ship, the damage to the drums

being external, and it conclusively appearing that

there was a loss of cargo, the libellant is entitled to

recover his damage.

The Peter der Grosse, 1 P. D. 414;

Nome Beach, etc. v. Munich Insurance Co.,

123 Fed. 827.

Under the terms of the policy, and the warranty

being open by reason of the ship being "on fire," the

respondents are liable for the total damage claimed.

26 Cyc. 682;

London Assurance Co. v. Camponhia, 167

U.S. 149;

1 Cyc. 8&4A;

Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Co. v.

Pitts, 7 Aspinwall's Maritime Cases (U.

S.) 302.

A decree may be entered accordingly.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
Judge.

[Indorsed] : Opinion on Final Hearing. Filed in

the U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washing-

ton, Northern Division. Jan. 19, 1914. Frank L.

Crosby, Clerk. By E. M. L., Deputy. [342]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

Notice of Appeal.

To Pacific Creosoting Company, Libelant Herein,

and to Messrs. Bogle, Graves, Merritt & Bogle,

Proctors for said Libelant:

Please take notice that the Thames & Mersey

Marine Insurance Company, Ltd., respondent herein,

hereby appeals to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, from the final decree

of the United States District Court for the Western

District of Washington, Northern Division, dated,

filed and entered in the above-entitled cause on the

26th day of February, 1914, and from the whole of

said decree.

Dated February 27, 1914.

EDWARD BRADY and

GEO. H. RUMMENS,
McCLANAHAN & DERBY,

Proctors for Respondent.

Due and full service of within Notice of Appeal

acknowledged this 27th day of February, 1914, simul-

taneous with filing thereof.

BOGLE, GRAVES, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant.

[Indorsed] : Notice of Appeal. Filed in the U. S.

District Court, Western Dist. of Washington, North-

ern Division, Feb. 27, 1914. Frank L. Crosby, Clerk.

By Ed M. Lakin, Deputy. [344]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

Stipulation Extending Time to July 15, 1914, to File

Apostles.

It is hereby stipulated and agreed by and between

the parties in the above-entitled eause that the

Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Company, ap-

pellant herein, may have to and including the 15th

day of July, 1914, within which to procure to be filed

in the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, the apostles on appeal in the above-

entitled cause certified by the clerk of the above-

named court.

Dated at Seattle, Washington, this 7th day of May,

1914.

BOGLE, GRAVES, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant.

McCLANAHAN & DERBY,
BRADY & RUMMENS,

Proctors for Respondent.

[Indorsed] : Stipulation Extending Time to July

15, 1914, to File Apostles on Appeal. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washington.

May, 8, 1914. Frank L. Crosby, Clerk. By E. M. L.,

Deputy. [348]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Assignment of Errors.

Now comes the Thames k Mersey Marine Insur-

ance Company, Limited, respondent in the above-

entitled cause and appellant herein, and says that in



334 Thames <& Mersey Marine Ins. Co., Ltd.,

the record, opinions, decisions, decree and proceed-

ings in the above cause there is manifest and material

error, and said appellant now makes, files and pre-

sents the following assignment of errors on which it

relies, to wit

:

1. That the Court erred in overruling appellant's

exceptions to the libel herein.

2. That the Court erred in holding and deciding

on said exceptions that under the facts stated in said

libel the fire on the ''Sardhana" was sufficient to

delete the F. P. A. warranty in the policy of marine

insurance sued on herein.

3. That the Court erred in holding and deciding

on said exceptions that the words "on fire" were not

synonymous with the word '*burnt" under the facts

as stated in the said libel.

4. That the Court erred in holding and deciding

on the evidence herein that the fire onthe"Sard-

hana" was sufficient to delete the F. P. A. warranty

aforesaid. [349]

5. That the Court erred in holding and deciding

on the evidence herein that the words '

' on fire
'

' were

not synonymous with the word "burnt" under the

circumstances of this case.

6. That the Court erred in holding and deciding

on the evidence that as said fire was on some struc-

tural part of the ship, and endangered the ship by

actually burning some part of it, the said F. P. A.

warranty was opened, and it also erred in holding

that the "Sardhana" was in fact endangered or that

any part of her was burnt.

7. That the Court erred in not applying the de-
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eisions in the English case of The Glenlivet, 7 Aspin-

wiiW Mar. Oases, N. S., 345, 395, to this ease, and in

not hokling tliat nn(h'r tlic i-ulings in said ease of The
Gk^nlivet the '*Sardhana" was not "on tire" within

the meaning of the i)oliey sued on.

8. That the Court erred in Ik )1 ding and deciding

that under the jjrovisions of the policy in suit the

lighter employed to land cargo, which capsized, was

not warranted seaworthy, and also in holding that

the said lighter was not shown by the evidence to have

been unseaworthy.

9. That the Court erred in allowing any recovery

either for the goods actually lost from said lighter

or for the expenses incurred in salving part of the

goods which capsized therefrom.

10. That the Court erred in holding and deciding

that under the evidence all of the cargo was in good

order and condition when received on board the

*'Sardhana," and in not holding and deciding that

many of the drums of creosote so shipped were in a

defective condition causing the creosote therein to

leak therefrom. [350]

11. That the Court erred in not holding and de-

ciding that it was not shown by the evidence that any

creosote was lost, and in holding and deciding that

as much creosote was lost as was claimed by the

libelant.

12. That the Court erred in not holding and de-

ciding that the creosote lost (if any), or at least a

very large part thereof, was not on board the "Sard-

hana" at the time of the fire, and that hence the F.
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P. A. warranty of the policy was not opened as to

such creosote.

13. That the Court erred in not holding and de-

ciding that it was not shown by the evidence how
much, if any, creosote was lost because of perils

insured against.

14. That the Court erred in not holding and de-

ciding that, as regards the damaged drums, it was

not shown by the evidence that any of such drums

damaged by perils insured against were on board tKe

^'Sardhana" at the time of the fire, and also in not

holding and deciding that libelant had not shown

the quantum of loss, if any, caused by perils insured

against.

15. That the Court erred in attempting to apply

to this case rules solely applicable to carriers by

water and in assimilating the liability of appellant

to that of the "Sardhana" and her owners.

16. That the Court erred in awarding to the libel-

ant herein the sum of $1197.20 with interest and

costs, in that said award was not warranted by the

evidence herein and was and is excessive and

erroneous.

17. That the Court erred in holding and deciding

that as the F. P. A. warranty was opened by reason

of the "Sardhana" being ''on fire," the appellant

was liable for the full damages claimed. [351]

18. That the Court erred in making and entering

its final decree in favor of libelant for said full

damages claimed, with interest and costs, and in not

making and entering its final decree in favor of ap-

pellant with costs.
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In order that the foregoing assignment of errors

may be and appear of record, said ap])ellant files and

presents the same, and prays that sueli disposition be

made thereof as is in accordance with law and tlfc

statutes of the United States in such cases made and

provided, and said ap})ellant prays a reversal of the

decree herein heretofore made and entered in the

above cause and appealed from.

Dated March 7, 1914.

EDWARD BRADY and

GEO. H. RUMMENS, and

McCLANAHAN & DERBY,
Proctors for Appellant.

Due and full service of copy of with Assignments

of Error acknowledged this 7th day of March, 1914.

BOGLE, GRAVES, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Attorneys for Libelant.

[Indorsed] : Assignment of Errors. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washington,

Northern Division. Mar. 7, 1914. Frank L. Crosby,

Clerk. By Ed M. Lakin, Deputy. [352]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Stipulation [Re Depositions, etc.].

It is hereby stipulated and agreed between the

parties hereto that in all depositions where the tes-

timony as returned by the certifying officer discloses

the question and answer and the same interroga-

tories are separately attached to the deposition and

stipulations, that the duplicate interrogatories,

whether direct or cross, may be omitted from the
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transcript, and also all stipulations to take deposi-

tions may be omitted and all testimony certified shall

be considered by the Court of Appeals subject only

to the objections noted at the time of taking deposi-

tions or hearing of the cause.

It is further stipulated that the ship's door which

was introduced in evidence is too cumbersome to be

transmitted with the remaining portion of this rec-*

ord, and to that end it is agreed that respondent and

appellant Thames & Mersey Marine Ins. Co. will

produce the same in the Circuit Court of Appeals at

the time of the hearing of this cause.

It is further stipulated that the time for perfecting

the record herein for use in the Circuit Court of Ap-

peals, be and the same is hereby extended until the

15th day of August, 1914.

Dated at iSeattle, Washington, this 25th day of

June, 1914.

BOGLE, GRAVES, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent. [353]

[Indorsed] : Stipulation. Filed in the U. S. Dis-

trict Court, Western Dist. of Washington. June 25,

1914. Frank L. Crosby, Clerk. By E. M. L.,

Deputy. [354]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

Order Extending Time for Procuring Apostles to be

Filed on Appeal.

In pursuance to stipulation of the parties hereto

and good cause appealing therefor:

It is ordered that the Thames and Mei^sey Marine

Insurance Company, a])]iollant in the above cause

may have to and including the 15th day of August,

1914, within which to procure to be filed in the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, the Apostles on Appeal in the above-entitled

cause certified by the Clerk of the above-named

court.

Done in open court this 25th day of June, 1914.

JEREMIAH NETERER,
Judge.

O.K.—BOGLE, GRAVES, MERRITT &

BOGLE,
Proctors for Libelant.

O.K.—BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent.

[Indorsed] : Order Extending Time for Procuring

Apostles to be Filed on Appeal. Filed in the U. S.

District Court, Western Dist. of Washington, June

25, 1914. Frank L. Crosby, Clerk. By E. M. L.,

Deputy. [355]
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

Praecipe for Apostles.

To the Clerk of the United States District Court

:

Please prepare typewritten apostles to the Circuit

Court of Appeals, agreeable to Rules of Ninth Cir-

cuit (October 1900, No. 4), in which have it appear:

1. A caption exhibiting the proper style of the

court and the title of the cause.

2. Statement showing the time of the commence-

ment of suit (August 12, 1910).

3. The names of the parties.

4. The several dates when the respective pleadings

were filed.

5. Statement that the defendant has not been ar-

rested, or bail taken nor property attached.

6. The time the trial was had, and date of Final

Decree, to wit : February 26, 1914.

7. The name of the Judges hearing the same.

8. All the pleadings.

9. All the testimony and other proofs, viz.

:

Libel filed August 10, 1910.

Answer of respondent, filed January 31,

1911.

Answer of Pacific Creosoting Company to

Interrogatories filed May 16, 1911.

Amended Answer of Libellant to 5th Inter-

rogatory, filed May 26, 1911. [356]

10. Exceptions to Libel, October 2l2, 1910.

Exceptions to Interrogatories of Libellant,

filed 2/16/11.
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Exceptions to Answer, filed February 1(),

1911.

Order on Exceptions to Answers and to In-

terrogatories, filed A] nil 29, 1911.

11. All Exhibits, viz.: Libellant's Exhibits "A,"
*'B/' **C," "D," "El," '*E2," *'E3," "F,''

**G," **H," *'I," '*J," ''K," ''L," "M."
Respondent's Exhibits, viz.: 1, 2, 3.

12. All depositions, stipujlatious and interrogato-

ries concerning witnesses and evidence, viz.

:

Depositions and Stipulations M. I. Holman.

Depositions and Stipulations Fred M. Beal.

Depositions and Stipulations F. D. Beal.

Depositions and Stipulations and Interroga-

tories, Alexander Wallace.

Depositions and Stipulations and Interroga-

tories, E. D. Rood.

Depositions and Stipulations and Inter-

rogatories, Geo. H. Wylie.

13. Testimony reported by A. C. Bowman, U. S.

Commissioner.

14. Final Decree, filed February 26, 1914.

15. All opinions of Court, viz. : Opinion or Memo-

randa, filed January 16, 1911, and April 20,

1911, and January 19, 1914.

16. Order fixing amount of stay bond, filed Febru-

ary 26, 1914.

17. Notice of Appeal and admission of service, filed

Feb. 27, 1914.

18. Bond on Appeal and Supersedeas, filed Febru-

ary 27, 1914.
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19. Order extending time to July 15, 1914. Filed

May 8, 1914.

20. Assignment of Errors.

21. Stipulation and Order of June 25, 1914.

Dated this 25tli day of June, 1914.

BRADY & RUMMENS,
Proctors for Respondent. [357]

[Indorsed] : Praecipe for Apostles. Filed in the

U. S. District Court, Western Dist. of Washington,

June 25, 1914. Frank L. Croshy, Clerk. By E. M.

L., Deputy. [358]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

Certificate of Clerk U. S. District Court to Apostles,

etc.

United States of America,

Western District of Washington,—ss.

I, Frank L. Crosby, Clerk of the United States

District Court, for the Western District of Wash-

ington, do hereby certify the foregoing 358 typewrit-

ten pages, numbered from 1 to 358, inclusive, to be

a full, true, correct and complete copy of so much of

the record, papers, depositions and other proceedings

in the above and foregoing entitled cause as are

necessary to the hearing of said cause in the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, and as is called for by counsel of record herein,

as the same remain of record and on file in the office

of the Clerk of said District Court, and that the same

constitutes the record on appeal to the said Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the
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District Court of the United States for the Western

District of Washinj^oii.

I further certify the following to be a full, true

and correct stiitenient of all expenses, costs, fees and

charges incurred and paid in my office by or on 1k'-

half of the a])pellant for making record, certificate or

return to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit in the above-entitled cause, to

wit: [359]

Clerk's fee (Sec. 828 R. S. U. S. as amended

by Sec. 6, Act of March 2, 1905) for mak-

ing record, certificate or return—806

folios at 30c per folio $241.80

Certificate of Clerk to transcript of record

—

3 folios at 30c 90

Seal to said Certificate .40

Certificate of Clerk to original Exhibits

—

3 folios at 30c 90

Seal to said Certificate. . . .40

$244.40

I hereby certify that the above cost for preparing

and certifying record amounting to $244.40 has been

paid to me by Proctors for Appellant, Messrs. Brady

& Rummens and Messrs. McClanahan & Derby.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF I have hereto set my
hand and affixed the seal of said District Court at

Seattle, in said District, this 6th day of August, 1914.

[Seal] FRANK L. CROSBY,
Clerk.

By Ed M. Lakin,

Deputy. [360]
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[Endorsed]: No. 2459. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Thames &
Mersey Marine Insurance Company, Limited, a

Corporation, Appellant, vs. Pacific Creosoting Com-
pany, a Corporation, Appellee. Apostles. Upon
Appeal from the United States District Court for

the Western District of Washington, Northern Divi-

sion.

Received and filed August 10, 1914.

F. D. MONCKTON,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

By Meredith Sawyer,

Deputy Clerk.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

No. 2459.

THAMES & MERSEY MARINE INSURANCE
COMPANY, LIMITED,

Appellant,

vs.

PACIFIC CREOSOTING COMPANY,
Appellee.

Notice of Filing Apostles on Appeal and Designation

of Parts of Record to be Printed.

To the Pacific Creosoting Company, Appellee

Herein, and Messrs. Bogle, Graves, Merritt &

Bogle, Its Proctors:

Please take notice that the apostles on appeal in
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tlie above cause were filed in the abovc-Jiititlcd court

on the 10th day of August, 1914.

You are further notified that appeUant intends

to rely upon all of the assignments of error in said

reeord and considers all of said record necessary for

the consideration of its said assignments of error,

with the exception of the following pages of the

record and the following exhibits which appellant

does not consider necessary to be printed in said

record and desires to have omitted from said record

as printed:

P. 49—Certificate to deposition of M. I. Helmau.

P. 59—Certificate to deposition of Fred N. Beal.

P. 95—Certificate to deposition of F. D. Beal.

P. 124—Certificate to deposition of Alexander

Wallace.

P. 137—Certificate to deposition of E. D. Rood.

Middle of p. 153 and p. 154—Certificate to deposition

of G. H. Wylie.

P. 159 to 170, inclusive—Direct and cross-inter-

rogatories to G. H. Wylie in that said direct and

cross-interrogatories also appear in the deposi-

tion of said witness.

P. 171—Index to transcript of testimony in lower

court.

P. 329—Statement of commissioner's costs.

P. 343—Order fixing amount of bond on appeal.

P. 345 to 347, inclusive—Bond on appeal.

All original exhibits sent up by the lower court for

perusal by the Circuit Court of Appeals, which ex-

hibits under Rule 14, Subdivision 4, of the Circuit

Court of Appeals are not required to be printed, and
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which may be considerd as original exhibits even

though not printed.

Omit also the extended title of court and cauF

except on the first page and in the original libel, and

insert in place thereof the words ''Title of Court and

Cause."

Dated August 11th, 1914.

E. B. McCLANAHAN,
S. H. DERBY,
Proctors for Appellant.

Receipt of a copy of the within Notice, etc., is

hereby admitted this 18th day of August, 1914.

BOGLE, GRAVES, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Appellee.

[Endorsed] : No. 2459. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. Thames & Mersey

Marine Ins. Co., Ltd., Appellant, vs. Pacific Creo-

soting Co., Appellee. Notice of Filing Apostles on

Appeal and Designation of Parts of Record to be

Printed. Filed Aug. 24, 1914. F. D. Monckton,

Clerk.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

No. 2459.

THAMES & MERSEY MARINE INSURANCE
COMPANY, LIMITED,

Appellant,

vs.

PACIFIC CREOSOTING COMPANY,
Appellee.
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Stipulation Waiving Printing of Original Exhibits.

WIIKREAS, there are considerable number of

exhibits in the above eause sent up to the above-

entitled eourt as original exhibits, and it is deemed

unnecessary by the parties hereto that the siime

should be printed in that those referred to, if any,

can be fully described in the briefs therein; now,

therefore,

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED AND
AOREED that none of said exhibits so sent up to

the above-entitled court as original exhibits need be

printed, but that the same may be considered by the

Court as original exhibits even though not printed.

Dated August 18th, 1914.

E. B. McCLANAHAN,
S. H. DERBY,

Proctors for Appellant.

BOGLE, GRAVES, MERRITT & BOGLE,
Proctors for Appellee.

Order Waiving Printing of Original Exhibits.

Pursuant to the foregoing stipulation IT IS

HEREBY ORDERED that none of the original

exhibits sent up as such in the above cause need be

printed, but the same may be considered as original

exhibits even though not printed.

Dated August 24, 1914.

WM. W. MORROW,
Circuit Judge.
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[Endorsed] : No. 2450. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals, Ninth Circuit. Thames & Mer-

sey Marine Ins. Co., Ltd., Appellant, vs. Pacific Creo-

soting Co., Appellee. Stipulation Waiving Print-

ing of Original Exhibits and Order Thereon. Filed

Aug. 24, 1914. F. D. Monckton, Clerk.



No. 2459

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Company,

Ltd. (a corporation),

vs.

Appellant,
>

Pacific Creosoting Company (a corporation),

Appellee.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT.

E. B. McClanAHAN,
S. H. Derby,

Proctors for Appellant.

Filed this ^..day of October, 1914.

FRANK D. MONOETON, Clerk.

By.

PEBNAD rUBLISniNQ COMTANT

J

—

Deputy Clerk.

OCT J)
- 1914

F. D. Monckton,
Clerk.





No. 24')!)

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Thames & Mersey Marine Insurance Companv,

Ltd. (a coqioration),

Apprllnuf

,

vs.

Pacific Creosotino Company (a oorporation),

Appellee.

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT.

This is an appeal from a judgment of the District

Court for the Western District of Wasliington awarding

to appellee $1197.20, with interest (Record, 318), as the

full amount claimed (Id. 6) as a partial loss under a

marine insurance policy indemnifying against total

loss onlif, except the ship be ''stranded, sunk or on

^yf, * * *"
(!(] 9)_ The policy covers a cargo of iron

drums containing creosote shipped on the British ship

''Sardhana" from London to Eagle Harbor, Puget

Sound, Washington.

The "memorandum'' clause in tlio i)iintcd body of

the policy contains the usual expression ''stranded,

sunk or burnt'* (Id. 11), but a printed slip, attached

to the margin of the policy, contains (inter alia): "War-



ranted free from particular average, unless the vessel

or craft or the interest insured he stranded, sunk or

on fire * * *" (Original, Libelant's Exh. "A".

See also Record, 8 and 9).

The contract dated June 2d, 1908, is that of an Eng-

lish insurance company executed in England, and

covers goods which had then been shipped in an Eng-

lish bottom. The vessel sailed from London May

30th, 1908 (Record, 13), and arrived and anchored off

the assured 's dock at Eagle Harbor November 9th,

1908 (Id. 17), where it was then discovered that some

of the creosote containers, or drums, had been dented

or damaged by reason of storms encountered on the

voyage. After a partial discharge and delivery to the

assured, and on November 18th (Id. 17), without dam-

age to the undischarged cargo, a night fire of mys-

terious origin broke out on the ship in the vicinity

of the bulkhead separating the after 'tween decks from

the lazarette; and though the vessel had at the time

completed her voyage, without any liability attach-

ing to the insurer, nevertheless it is claimed that now,

a fire having appeared some nine days after the ship's

safe arrival, and after the assured had taken into its

warehouse part, and was engaged in discharging and

receiving the balance, of the cargo; the particular

average warranty of the policy is deleted, and an obli-

gation is thereby created to pay for a prior partial

loss caused by sea perils, for which there was insurance

against total loss only. If, as we shall show, the

"fire" was a trivial one,—it is apparent that the claim



is imroly technical, and arises under circumstances

temj)ting, at least, to fraudulent imposition, with

chances of discoveiy by the insurer reduced to a

minimum.

Furthermore, a claim is made for the loss of four

creosote drums with their contents, and salvage ex-

penses, resulting from the subsequent capsizing at night

of a completely loaded, but unattended, barge, left

moored by the assured alongside the vessel, and fur-

nished and used by it (Id. 61)) in lij^htering the cargo

from the vessel to the dock.

Furthermore, although the "Sardhana" was tight,

staunch and strong, and in every respect seaworthy for

the voyage, a/nd did not leak, the appellee's claim in-

cludes damages for a short delivery by the ship of

56267.2 gallons of creosote (Id. 5),—this latter claim

being based upon the difference between the number of

gallons of creosote the damaged and leaking drums

were assumed to contain at the time of shipment, and

the number of gallons claimed to be shown by the

assured 's ex parte measurement of the drums' con-

tents, lo'ng after delivery. Instead of attempting to

enforce this latter claim against the ship itself, and

at the time of discharge, when the facts would have

been fresh in mind, the assured remains silent and

inactive, allows the vessel to depart without notice of

any such claim (Id. 119; 124), and then, nearly two

years after, proceeds to enforce it against a foreign

insurance comjiany which had no control over the

"Rardhnna", or her world-wide scattered officers and



crew, the only possible witnesses having knowledge

of the facts necessary to refute a short delivery claim.

The foregoing uncontrovertible facts are thus stated

that the court may, in some measure, view this liti-

gation from the insurer's perspective, and thereby gain

an appreciation of its motive in carrying to final de-

termination this controversy, even at a cost so large

that it would have been a financial saving to have

settled the claim without protest. It is not improper

to assume that reputable insurance companies gladly

pay their just obligations, and often, as a matter of

business policy, pay claims which might be success-

fully resisted on technical but legal grounds; there

are circumstances, however, where continued quiescence

ceases to be a virtue, and such the insurer feels to be

the nature of the claims made at bar.

Assignment of Errors.

These are to be found at pp. 334 to 336 of the record,

and we do not deem it expedient to set them forth

here, for the reason that our contentions fully disclose

what they are and we seek, therefore, to avoid an

unnecessary enumeration.

Appellant's Contentions.

As to Damages Claimed for Damaged Drums and Short

Delivery of Creosote:

I.

In legal construction a ship must be on fire as a

whale to delete the F. P. A. warranty.



IT.

Under the facts sliown in this ease, the "Sardliana"

was not on fire witliin the nionniiip: of tlie V. P. A.

warranty of the })olic'y.

As to Damages Claimed for the Four Drums Lost From

the Lighter, and Salvage Expenses:

III.

This claim cannot ])revail liecause (a) tlie lighter in

question was furnished by the assured and was unsea-

worthy, and (b) the assured was negligent in leaving

it over night alongside the vessel fully loaded and

unattended.

As to Damages Claimed for Short Delivery of Creosote:

IV.

The assured cannot recover, even if the ship was

legally "an. fire", because it has proven no damages.

(a) It has not shown that any creosote was lost;

(b) If any creosote was lost, it was not on board

the ship at the time of the fire, and hence the F. P. A.

warranty is inapplicable;

(c) It has not shown how much creosote was lost

because of perils insured against, it appearing that

many of the containers were defective when shipped.

The burden to show the quantum of loss caused by

perils insured against has not been even attempted by

the assured.



As to Damages Claimed for Damaged Drums:

V.

The assured has not even attempted to prove the

number of these which were on the ship at the time

of the fire, nor the number which were defective and

leaking before the vessel encountered any of the perils

insured against.

I.

Argument.

IJf LEGAL CONSTRUCTION A SHIP MUST BE ON FIRE AS A

WHOLE TO DELETE THE F. P. A. WARRANTY.

The history of this clause is briefly but accurately

stated in Gow's work on Marine Insurance (3 Ed., pp.

183-187 ) . There it will be found that the clause originally

read: ''Warranted free fro^n average, unless general, or

the ship he stranded." It is not, however, any mere

touching of the ground that is held to be a stranding,

but a substantial grounding of the ship lasting for an

appreciable period (Id. 174-175). Later the words

"simk ar burnt" were added to the clause, and these

words were construed in pari materia with the word

"stranded", and together with it. This is the view

taken by both Barnes, J., in the trial court, and by the

court of appeal, in construing the word "burnt" m
the case of The Glenlivet, 7 Asp. Mar. Cas. (N. S.)

395. In that case (which, by stipulation, this court

may take judicial notice of, as stating the law of Eng-

land under the facts there presented. Record, 246),



there wore four separate fires in the ship's ooal bunkers,

involving also damage to the ship's plating, brick

and wood casing and liatclics. We (]Uote the following

extracts from the opinion of P>arncs, .1., in the lower

court, holding that the shij) was not *'hunit" within

the meaning of the exception:

"The memorandum itself was framed to protect

the underwriters from frivolous demands in re-

spect of small losses which are most likely to have
arisen from natural deterioration or wear and
tear, and the original excei)tion of stranding tends

to show that this was the scope of the memoran-
dum. The framers had })robal)ly in view a cas-

ualty of so serious a nature as to be akin to wreck

—that is, such a loss as makes it j^robablo that the

damage, though under the given percentage, might
reasonably be attributed thereto and not to the

l^erishable nature of the subject matter of the

insurance. * * *

**Tjiere have been a large number of decisions

upon the word 'stranding', and in these various

definitions of the word may be found, but, in my
opinion, there runs through them all, in a greater

or less degree, the idea which was probably present

to the minds of the framers of the memoran<lum
of a serious casualty to the shij) alTecting her safe-

ty and navigation, even though, as a matter of

fact, the amount of damage sustained is unim-

portant. * * * From the collocation of the

words 'sunk or burnt' with the word 'stranded'

and from the ]n"imaiy ini]uvssion jiroduced by

reading these words 'sunk or burnt', it is natural

and reasonable to construe them ui>on the i^rin-

ciple a])iilied, and with the idea ])revailing in

arriving at the jiroper meaning of the word
'stranded'. * * * There are no decisions u]ion

the word 'burnt' in the memorandum in the policy,

and it is a remarkable fact if, as Mr. Aspinall

contended, the momentarj^ setting fire to any jiart
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of a vessel—such, for instance, as cabin curtains

or fittings—is enough to cause the vessel to be a
'burnt' ship, and thereby destroy the warranty,
that the present contention has never been brought

before the courts since the introduction of the

words 'sunk or burnt', though one would think

that slight damage by fire was not infrequent on
vessels, especially large passenger vessels. * * *

I cannot bring myself to think that it would be
a reasonable or businesslike construction of the

word 'burnt' to hold that the ship is burnt if any
part of her or her stores or fittings is slightly

injured by fire, whether that fire is one which ex-

hausts itself .without danger to the vessel, or,

as was also suggested by the plaintiffs, is one
which unless promptly extinguished would cause

danger to the vessel. In my opinion the more reas-

onable and businesslike construction is that the

ship is 'burnt' whenever the injury by fire is

sufficient to cause some interruption of the voyage,

so that the vessel is pro tempore incapable of being

properly used for the purposes of her voyage. This

may be expressed by the term 'temporarily unnavi-

gable'. In the present case, on the first voyage, the

coals heated slightly, and water being poured on

them, whatever fire existed was extinguished. Even
assuming that coals are to be treated as included in

the word 'ship', which the plaintiffs alleged and the

defendants did not deny, there was no interruption

of the voyage, nor any interference in any way
with the safety or navigation of the vessel. On
the second and fourth voyages the heating of the

coals caused some damage to the structure of the

vessel, but again, there was no interruption of

the voyage, or any interference with the vessel's

safety or navigation. I am of opinion that upon

none of the voyages was the ship burnt within the

meaning of the policy, and that the defendants are

entitled to judgment with costs."

7 Asp. 342, 343, 344.
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The case went to tlie Court of ApponI and there the

respective judges went even further than Barnes, .1.,

in their holdings as to wiicn a ship is "burnt".

Lindiey, L. ,1., says:

"Now, the facts so Tar as they are material,

are not in dispute at all. There was a fire on
board this ship in one of the coal l)unkers, and
the fire was so severe that some damage was
done to the stnicture of the shij); it is unnecessary

to particularize it, but a plate got cracked and
some angle irons got burnt. The sliij) was an iron

shii); how much wood was on board I do not know,

but it is sufficient to say that the fire clearly in-

jured the ship. Now comes the question whether

this ship was 'burnt' within the meaning of that

expression. Barnes, J., has held not, and, in my
opinion, that is obviously right. I say 'obviously',

because we must look at this word 'burnt' in ref-

erence to the context, it is part of a phrase 'unless

the ship is stranded, sunk or Inirnt'. What does

that mean! I take it the context shows that what

is meant is that the ship as a whole must be

stranded, sunk, or burnt, and I cannot accejit Mr.

Aspinall's construction or suggestion that any fire

on board a ship, doing a little structural damage
to the ship itself, is a burning in ordinary language.

It appears to me it is not so."

(Id., p. 395.)

Smith, L. J., says:

"Now I come to the suggestion of Mr. Aspinall,

that it means the initiation of such a fire that, un-

less it were put out, it would consume the shij).

I cannot think that can be the meaning of this,

for there never could be a fire which, if not ]>ut

out, might not consume a shi]). If the cabin cur-

tain caught fire and was not put out, that might

end in the destruction of the ship. Therefore,
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that will not do. Then I come to the suggestion of

my brother Barnes, which is, that it must be a

burning such as to render the ship temporarily
unnavigable. I do not think that is right, if I

may say so, because, supposing there was such a
burning as only to stop the ship half an hour

—

suppose a ship was steered by rudder-cords in-

stead of by chains; suppose the rudder-band was
burnt, and stopped the ship for half an hour

—

would you call that a burnt ship? I should not;

but that would come within my brother Barnes's

definition if she was temporarily unnavigable

whilst the rudder-band was being adjusted. I do

not think that is right. My own view is you would
have to tell the jury what I have already said about

partial burning (that the other was not the correct

direction), and then you would have to tell the

jury that a partial burning may, under some cir-

cumstances constitute a burning ship, and may not

under other circumstances, and having given that

direction you would have to ask them: Has the

fire been such as to bring the ship to such a con-

dition that you consider the ship a burnt ship?

Then the jury would decide whether the facts

brought it up to what you had laid down as the

question for them to decide. I think my brother

Barnes put too narrow a construction upon the

words 'burnt ship', but otherwise I agree with his

judgment. '

'

(Id., p. 396.)

It is clear from these opinions that a mere injury

to the ship by fire does not constitute a '^burning",

but that "the ship as a whole must he stranded, stink

or burnt" to bring it within the warranty, and that the

words "sunk or burnt'' must be used in collocation

with the word "stranded".
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In the case at l)ar the words used in tlie policy are

"on fire" and not "burnt*'. We suhniit, however,

that the clauses are substantially the same, for in

either case the words must be construed in collocation

with the words "stranded" and "sunk", "the ship

as a whole must be stranded, svmk or (cy>i fire)". On

this subject we quote frankly from Mr. Gow*8 work

at page 181

:

**The judgment in the Glenlivet has excited con-

siderable attention, as it takes away on princi])le

what was long granted without question. But
indeed it is not easy to see why a fire in a ship's

bunkers or cabin should be enough to establish a

claim for damage to cargo arising from some other

peril barred by the memorandum, when a touch-

and-go graze on a rock, even if actually causing

damage, is not enough. Since the issue of the

decision some slips have had the words 'on fire*

added to 'burnt', confessedly in the hope and
expectation of thus restoring to the assured what
has been taken from him by the decision."

In a note to this passage the learned author further

says:

"But will not exactly the same i)riiiciple that

was applied in the inter]iretation of 'bumf be

applied to that of 'on fire'? For it is not a ques-

tion of the extent of the effect of ignition; if igni-

tion results in the total loss of the property in-

sured, then the loss is claimable as a total loss

and not under the momorandnm or any other clause

referring to partial loss; if it does not result in

a total loss, then, as far as the memorandum is

concerned, is it not all the samo whether you sav

'burnt' or 'on fire' so long as the ]irinciple of

'substantial burning of the ship as a whole' is

applicable? This is the princi]ile stated by Tiord

Justice Lindley in the Glenlivet decision, Court of
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Appeal, 1894, 1 Q. B. D. 48: 'I take it the context

shows what is meant is that the ship as a whole
must be stranded, sunk or burnt; and I cannot

accept the suggestion of the plaintiff's counsel that

any fire on board a ship doing little structural

damage to the ship itself is a burning in ordinary

language. * * * Qf course, in one sense it is

burnt; anything that bums any part of a ship

is a burning of the ship, but I cannot think that

that is the meaning of it here.' "

Opposing counsel takes the position that any burning

of the ship itself constitutes the ship a "burnt" ship,

and in the lower court they referred to Mr. Gow as

laying down that rule and to a certain opinion by

Mr. Walton and Mr. Barnes given before the Glenlivet

case was decided. They also contended that such was

the understanding of the contracting parties. That may

have been true before the decision in the Glenlivet case

;

it certainly is not true now, and Mr. Gow recognizes

this when he says:

"As it was decided by Lord Ellenborough that

a mere touching of the ground was not sufficient

to make a strand, so it is now decided in the

Glenlivet case that a mere burning is not sufficient

to take the exception out of the memorandum; it

must be such a burning as to constitute a sub-

stantial burning of the ship as a whole."

(Id., 181.)

In view, therefore, of the Glenlivet case, it is clearly

the English law that it is insufficient to show that

"a part of the fabric of the ship" was on fire, there

must be a substantial burning of the ship as a whole;

not, of course, that the ship must be on fire in every
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part, but simj)!}' tli:it tlie lire must be sueli as to enable

the court to say that the ship as a tvhole was on fire.

Such must now be held to be the understanding of

parties to policies in which the word "burnt" is used,

whatever the understanding may have been before the

Glenlivet decision.

Let us now refer to the contention that in the sub-

stitution of the words "o;^ fire" for the word "burnt"

the law of the Glenlivet case is avoided. Conceding,

for the purpose of this argument, that this substitution

was made at the instance of the assured in the hope

of getting back what had been taken away by the

Glenlivet decision, the substituted words do not accom-

plish the result hoped for, for, if the ship as a whole

must be "burnt", obviously the ship as a whole must be

"on fire". We say obviously, for we believe that this

court, in construing this English policy, will follow

the principle laid down by the English courts, and hold

that "there must be a substantial burning of the ship

as a ivhole" in order to delete the F. P. A. warranty

of the contract sued on.

The Glenlivet case was cited with approval in London

Assurance v. Companhie de Moagcns do Barreiro, 167

U. S. 149; 156, 157, and in the same case in the lower

court, where the F. P. A. warranty was construed, the

court says, quoting from an opinion by l\fr. Justice

Gray:

"A diversity in the law, as administered on the

two sides of the Atlantic, concerning the interjiro-
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tation and effect of commercial contracts of this

kind, is greatly to be deprecated."

*(68 Fed., at p. 250.)

Undoubtedly this court will be asked by the appellee

to ignore the principle of the Glenlivet case, and apply

instead the rule that a doubtful intention appearing

in an insurance policy must be resolved in favor of the

assured, on the theory that all contracts of indemnity

are to be liberally construed to that end. While we

recognize this general rule, we submit that it is subject

to another specifically applicable to the facts of the

case at bar, namely: That words of exception in a

policy, if doubtful, are to be construed most strongly

against the party for whose benefit they are intended.

This latter rule of construction is recognized but applied

agamst the assured by the trial court on a superficial

conception of the facts. While it may be admitted, as

held by the court, that ordinarily the F. P. A. warranty

is an exception to the underwriters' liability, and in its

interpretation must be read most strongly against him

in cases of doubt as to its meaning, still, in the case

at bar, it is obvious that the contention and necessary

argument of the appellee, if it is to avoid the principle

of the Glenlivet case, is that the original clause in favor

of the underwriter, by way of exception to liability,

is changed by the substitution of words intended to

* Note. By the averac^e statement shown at p. 26 of the printed
record, the court will see that the two larger policies covering the
"Sardhana's" cargo were underwritten at Lloyds, and it will not be
denied that at this time suit has been brought in the English courts
on these Lloyd policies. It is to be hoped, therefore, that irrespective

of how the?e cases may be decided by the respective courts, there will

be no di\'ersity in the construction of the "on fire" clause of the
policies.
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increase liis liability. In tlio (jlonlivot case, the courts

gave to the word "burnt" a meaning and scope un-

favorable to the contention of the assured, and the as-

sured in the case at bar, charged with knowledge of

this construction, attempts to so cliange the clause

as to enl<irgc the liability of the underwriter, and the

protection of the assured, over that laid (h)wn by the

court, by having the words ''on fire" su])stituted for

the word "burnt".

We submit, therefore, that under sucli circumstances,

in construing the substituted words of exception, the

rule, in case of doubt as to the meaning, should be

applied against the assured, and not in his favor, as

was done by the trial court.

Canton Ins. Office v. Waodsirle, 90 Fed. ^01,

306, citing:

Palmar v. Ins. Co., Fed. Cas. No. 10098;

Donnell v. Ins. Co., Fed. Cas. No. 3987;

Yeaton v. Fry, 5 Cranch 335.

In the Palmer case, the head note reads:

** Words of exception in any instrument are to be

construed most strongly against the ])arty for whose
benefit they are intended, and this rule is ai)|)lied

to words of exception in ]iolicies of insurance."

While the substituted words "on fire", when inserted

in the clause, become the words of the underwriter

and binding on him, still, as they are shown in this

case to have been substituted at the instance of the as-

sured, and for his benefit, we submit that, if in their use

there be ambiguity, the rule of construction, admittedly
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against the underwriter when applied to the exceptive

clause as a whole, should when applied to the substi-

tuted words, be against the assured. We can see no

logical reason why, even in the construction of a policy

of marine insurance, the rule as to exceptions should

not be applied against the assured, if it be clear that

the exceptive words were intended for his benefit.

Q. Now, will you please tell me, Mr. Beckett,

who does that placing on the margin of the policy

of the memorandum that you find there? As a

rule, does not the broker place it there?

A. The broker or the company.

Q. If that was placed there by the company,
their printed forms have ''burnt" in the body of

the policy, don't you think they would still place

on the memorandum pasted on the side a clause

that was harmonious with the body of the policy?

A. No, sir, because the assured would not accept

it.

Q. The assured would not accept it?

A. No, sir.*****
Q. Well, it is against the interest of the com-

pany, is it not, to use the expression ''on fire"

rather than ''burnt", since the decision in the

Glenlivet case?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you explain how, then, a company would
in the body of their policy use the expression

"burnt", and then on that printed pasted slip use

the expression "on fire"?

A. The printing in the body of the policy is an
old form. If the assured wants better risks that

are not covered in the body of the policy, they

are given him by attaching the slip.

(Beckett Record, 232, 233.)
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Q. • • * Vou saiil tliat the assured was tlie

man that wanted better protection was the reason

the expression was changed. • • •

• • • • •

A. It is common knowledge that it is the as-

sured that wants it, not the company. • • •

(Id., 238, 239.)

In the Glenlivet case, the trial court construed the

exception in favor of the insurer despite the fact that

it recognized it as "framed to protect the underwriter",

and was, therefore, an exception in his favor. If, there-

fore, it be clear that the substituted words in the policy

in suit were hoped by the assured to enlarge the in-

surer's liability, and his protection,—if there be ambi-

guity in the substituted words, why does not the rule

and the equities call for a strict construction against

the assured?

We pass now to an examination of the facts relative

to the extent of the fire in the case at bar.

II.

UNDEIJ THE FACTS SHOWN IN THIS CASE, THE "SARDHANA"

WAS NOT "ON FIRE" WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE F. P.

A. WARRANTY OF THE POLICY.

Eliminating from the record all matter of undue

excitement and properly disregarding the precautionary

measures naturally taken upon the outbreak of a fire

on board a vessel laden with a cargo as inflammable as

creosote (Record, 80; 305), there is left, as shown by

a preponderance of disinterested evidence, the single
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fact that the fire consisted solely of a partial burning,

or ^'charring", as some of the witnesses termed it, of a

sliding battened door forming part of the bulkhead

separating the ship's storeroom from the 'tween deck

cargo space (Baird, 268; Preece, 283, 284; Yeaton, 297,

298),—a fire so trivial that, when subsequently viewed

dispassionately by the man most interested in knowing

and determining the damage wrought, it was consid-

ered unworthy even of reporting to his principal.

Q. What was your occupation in November,
1908?

A. I was marine superintendent in Seattle for

Andrew Weir & Co.

Q. Who was the owner at that time of the bark

Sardhana?
A. Andrew Weir & Co.

(Baird, 262.)

Q. Do you remember, captain, the fact of a fire

having broken out on the Sardhana at that time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you at any time after the fire have
occasion to see it?

A. The captain come over here and reported

to me there had been a fire on board; I went to

•Eagle Harbor the next day with him.

Q. What for?

A. To see if any damage had been done to

the ship.

Q. What did you find?

A. I found there was no damage that required

repairing.

Q. What was it exactly that you found?

A. I found that the fire apparently had taken

place at the outside of the laearet door, and the

door was scorched, and the underside of the deck

above it was smoke stained.
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Q. Was tlie coiling above burned n1 all.'

A. Tlie underside of the deckt

Q. Yes.

A. No.

Q. Was tlic floor of tlie upward deck burned

at allt

A. No.

Q. Was the bulkhead, aside from the door,

burned?
A. No.

Q. Did you make an examination to ascertain

that fact?

A. I did.

Q. Have you seen the door recently?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. State whether or not the door as you saw
it did or did not represent tlie extent of the fire?

A. That represented the extent of it.

(Id., 267, 268.)

Q. What business had you in connection with

the investigation of this fire?

A. Well, it was my business to see that the

vessel was—if she was damaged, to see that she

was repaired, to rei)ort to the underwriters of the

vessel and have it repaired.

Q. Did vou make anv such report?

A. No.
'

0. Did vou make a report of any kind?

A. No.
"

Q. Why not?

A. Nothing to report of any importance.

(Id., 269.)

This, we properly assume, to be the testimony of

an impartial witness, entirely disinterested in the out-

come of this case, but who was vitally concerned at

the time in the question of the extent of this fire.

As illustrative, however, of the eager concern of the
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appellee to establish a case of more than a trivial fire,

we here add to Capt. Baird's testimony on the subject

of repairs some further disinterested evidence, which

we will then parallel with appellee's sworn statement

on the subject.

Capt. Wallace of the "Sardhana", testifying in New

York, says:

11th Interrogatory (Record, 98). Were any re-

pairs made to your ship on account of said fire?

A. (Record, 115). No, absolutely none at all.

12th Interrogatory. Were any repairs made neces-

sary thereby?

A. No.

13th Interrogatory. If your answer to the 11th

interrogatory is that no repairs were made on
account of said fire, state if you know what would
have been the approximate cost of such repairs

if they had been made?
A. The only repairs that could have been done

to the door was to give it a coat of new paint,

and that would have been done in any case; I

would say that there was no cost at all. The door

would have been painted in any case, whether it

had been burnt or not.

(See also answer to 22d Interrogatory, Record 100,

117.)

Capt. Wylie, the first officer of the ''Sardhana",

testifying in London, says:

11th Interrogatory. Were any repairs made to

your ship on account of said fire?

Answer. No.

12th Interrogatory. Were any repairs made
necessary thereby?

Answer. No.

13th Interrogatory. If your answer to the 11th

Interrogatory is that no repairs were made on



21

account of said fire, state, if you know, what would

have been the approxinuite cost of such repairs

if they had Ix'cii made.

Answer. All tlie repairs tliat were rendered

necessary were simply a rub with a ])aint brush;

the a]>pr()xiniato cost would be Id or 2d—the cost

of a brush lull of paint.

(Record, 142.)

C. R. Yeaton, second officer of the British steamer

"Oteric" (which, by chance, arrived in Seattle at the

time of the hearing of this case), who was an appren-

tice on the **Sardhana" on the voyage in question,

and remained on the bark for about two years there-

after, testifies before a commissioner:

Q. Were there any repairs ever made to the

fire damage?
A. None.

Q. Were any repairs ever needed?

A. Well, I should say no, because if there had
been any they would have had them done to save

the ship's stores.

Q. This door protected the stores from i)il-

ferage?

A. Yes, sir.

(Record, 298.)

Q. When you left her (the Sardhana, two years

after) there had been no repairs made to the fire

damage?
A. None.

(Id., 299.)

We will now parallel the foregoing testimony, with

the swoiTi statement of appellee, referring to this mat-

ter of repairs, as the same is found in the interrogatory
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annexed to appellant's answer and appellee's reply

thereto

:

6tli Interrogatory. Was the damage caused by
said fire such as to require any repairs, and, if

so, state what they were, who made the repairs

and the cost thereof.

(Record, 31.)

To the sixth interrogatory libelant says: That
the damage caused by said fire to the said ship, was
such as to require repairs; that such repairs con-

sisted of remomng the burned bulkhead and build-

ing a new one in its place. These repairs were
made by the ship's carpenter. Libelant is unable to

state the cost of such repairs. (Italics ours.)

(Record, 32.)

The unqualified oath, under which this deliberately

considered and written statement is made, is given a

more remarkable color in view of an entire absence of

even an attempt to substantiate it. Furthermore, on

cross-examination by the appellant, the officer of the

appellee who made this statement, and swore to its

truth, says that he got his information from Mr. Frank

Walker, appellee's surveyor, and from Mr. F. D. Beal,

appellee's superintendent (Stevens, 177). Here, how-

ever, is Mr. Walker's testimony on this point, also

brought out on cross-examiination:

Q. Now going back to these questions again (the

interrogatories attached to appellant's answer).

We asked them (the appellee) whether the damage
caused by the fire was such as needed repairing,

such as required repairing, and their reply was that

the damage was such as it required repairs, and

that the repairs were made and consisted of remov-
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ing tlie burned hulklioad and l)uilding a now ono in

its place. Did you furnish tlicni witii tliat int'or-

niation .'

A. No. 1 had nothing to do with that.

(Record, 204.)

Sui)eriutendeut Beal, on cruss-cxainination, testifies:

Q. We asked them if any repairs were made to

the ship and they said, yes, tlie bulkhead was re-

placed by a new one; did you furnish that infor-

mation?

A. No, I don't remember of furnishing that

information.

(Record, 89.)

In the face of a record such as this, we reach the

unpleasant conclusion that appellee, after deliberate

consideration, has permitted a misstatement of a very

material matter. The company against which this suit

is brought has no control of the "Sardhana"; the suit

was not brought when the evidence was easily available

to establish the material facts. Appellee borrows the

ship's log, copies the entry as to the fire into a protest

prepared for the master to sign (Record, 121; 160),

hires a surveyor to look at the place of the fire, surveys

the capsized lighter, ascertains the claimed amount of

creosote short delivered, and then, a year and eight

months from the date of the fire, when the "Sardhana"

is in distant seas, and her officers and crew scattered,

brings this suit. Perhaps the circumstances made it

safe to concoct, out of whole cloth, this repair story in

the belief of appellant's inability to disprove it. The

program failed, however, for although forced to seek
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far, appellant not only proves by the ship's officers the

falsity of the statement, but concludes the refutation by

securing, from out the ship, the unrepaired door and

bringing it, in the condition it has remained since the fire

(Yeaton, 299), thousands of miles to the scene of trial.

And not only this, but during the hearing before the

commissioner, a ship from foreign shores sails into the

jurisdiction of the trial court, bringing one of the

*'Sardhana's" scattered crew, who appears and testi-

fies in the case (Record, 292). The undoing of appellee

on this point is thoroughly accomplished, though at

considerable expense, and we believe that the reckless-

ness shown in the attempt to make good this very mate-

rial matter, casts a doubt on its entire proof, which this

court will find it difficult to ignore.

Returning now to our presentation of the evidence of

the fire's extent, we call the court's attention to the

further testimony of Captains Wallace and Wylie. As

has been stated, the former's deposition was taken in

New York and the latter 's in London. Both of these

men remained with the ''Sardhana" until May, 1911

(Wallace, 114; Wylie, 140), and both were disinterested

observers of the extent of the fire from its inception

until this latter date. Capt. Wallace says:

The nature of the fire—as regards the nature of

the fire, I would say it was a very trifling affair ; the

damage to the ship was practically nothing. The
lazarette door was slightly charred and blistered,

a very small part of it. As far as I can remember,
there were only about two feet or 214 feet of it from
the bottom of the door up that was blackened by the

fire and a little bit charred.
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The fire was [)iit out in about three minutes; not

more tlian five ininutes, anyway, by about halt* a

dozen buckets of water being tlirown ou it.

(Record, 114, 115.)

Captain Wyiie says:

Tlio extent of tlio fire was very slight; no part of

the shii) was damaged to any extent. Tiie parts

were, the door of the lazarette bulkhead was afTeeted

by the fire, that is, it was scorelied and a small

l)ortion was slightly more than seorelied, i>erhai)s,

slightly charred by the flames. There was no dam-
age to the bulkhead l)ar, a veiy slight blistering of

a small portion of the paint.

The means used (to extinguish the fire) were half

a dozen buckets of water; the time was less than

five minutes.

(Record, 141.)

We cannot too strongly emphasize the value of this

testimony, coming as it does from disinterested parties

who actually saw the fire, and iiarticipated in its extin-

guishment, and who, because of their relation to the

owner, would have been derelict in duty to have passed

unnoticed a material damage to the ship. There is much

in the pleadings and in the record about the dense smoke,

the bucket line, the ringing of bells and other excite-

ment; but we have here the word of men whose duty

and interest called for the trutii, and who were on the

spot, saw the fire and did the work necessary for its

extinguishment. No doubt there was excitement, no

doubt unnecessary water was passed down into the

lazarette after the fire was out, no doubt fire extin-

guisliers were used, but both Wallace and Wylie say



26

that, in the work of actuaUy extmguisJung the fire, there

ivas no outside assistance rendered (Wallace, direct

inter. 9. Record, 98, Answer, 115; Wylie, Record, 142).

The fire was evidently started among gunning sacking

lying on the 'tween decks floor, and the smudge of the

burning cloth had much to do with the quantity of smoke

which passed up into and through the cabin. For some

time after the flame was extinguished, in the nature of

things, smoke was still coming up through the cabin

from the extinguished blaze. It is, of course, common

knowledge that wood will smoke after fire in it has been

extinguished with water, and this probably accounts for

statements made by some of the witnesses as to the

length of time the fire burned ; on deck, seeing the smoke,

they assumed there was still fire below.

Another disinterested witness, who had full and re-

peated opportunity to know the extent of the fire, is

Yeaton, the ''Sardhana's" apprentice:

Q. Was the ceiling or the under part of the deck
burned at all?

A. No.

Q. Was the floor of the between decks burned at

all?

A. No.

Q. Was the bulwark burned at all other than the

door?

A. The bulkhead?

Q. The bulkhead, I mean.
A. No, not that I saw.

Q. How many times did you see that after the

fire itself?

A. I should say daily for quite a long time. My
work took me down there practically every day.

(Record, 298.)
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And again on cross-examination:

Q. Mr. Yeaton, did you mean to testify tliat there

was no damage whatever to the hulkliead?

A. I never saw it.

Q. I say, do you swear that tiiere was no damage
to the bulkhead?

A. It might liave been smoked, l)ut I never saw
any trace of l)iiniing on the bulkhead.

(Id., 304.)

We submit that this evidence is strong and convincing

and, coupled with the testimony already referred to of

Captains Baird, W.^llace and Wylie, and also the testi-

mony of Preece, the boss stevedore, clearly shown to

be disinterested, who subsequently unloaded the cargo

at the very place of the fire (Record, 283, 285), proves

conclusively that the full extent of the fire is shown by

the batten door in evidence (Baird, 2G8; Preece, 283,

284; Yeaton, 297, 298).

Appellee relies upon the extended protest of the mas-

ter, admittedly copied from the ship's log (Wylie, 149),

as showing the bulkhead of the ship was burned. Both

Captains Wallace and Wylie explained fully and clearly

the statements contained in this protest (Wallace, Cross

Inter. 7, Record, 104; Answer, 120; Wylie, 150, 151. See

also Capt. "Wallace's" letter to his owners dated April

19, 1911, Record, 159, IGO), and we submit that their

explanations are satisfactory. When the circumstances

are considered, under which the signatures of these men

were secured to this protest, and when it be considered

that it was prepared for use against the appellant m
this case (although it cannot he legally so used, 17 Cyc.
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405, 406J,—we believe it will be given heed only as pre-

senting a possible explanation of Survej^or Walker's

extravagant statements as to the extent of the fire.

Walker's survey report, in the exact words ot tlie

protest (Survey, Record, 22; Protest, 103), contains the

statement that the hvlkhead was burned, and, as this

statement was taken from the ship's log (Record, 198,

199), it is altogether possible that the oral testimony of

a busy man, such as Mr. Walker undoubtedly is, would

be affected, if not entirely controlled, after the length

of four or five years, by the statement contained in his

survey, even though he states that an independent survey

was made. He says

:

I have a strong recollection after reading my
reports on that of the fire, yes, I have a good recol-

lection.

(Record, 199.)

And again:

Q. You- have in your experience since then been
pretty busy haven't you, making surveys of ships'?

A. Yes, busy all the time, practically speaking.

Q. You are not very zealous to retain these little

matters of detail in your mind for any considerable

time, are you 1

A. No, after I report on matters, as a rule they

pass from my sight.

Q. You rely on your reports to refresh your
memory?

A. Yes, sir, otherwise I would get them mixed.

(Id., 206, 207.)

And right here we call attention to one matter where

the witness, because of the lack of a report to assist
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his memor>', did get " mixed' \ In regard to the method

of aseertaining tlie amount of creosote lost, he says:

Q. Explain how you arrive<l at the numher of

gallons of creosote which were lost.

A. The way wo arrived at the loss, we took the

invoice numher of drums and what each should have

contained.

Q. That gave the total numher of gallons?

A. Yes, that should have heen there. And as

the drums were emptied into a tank, an empty tank,

and as the drums were emptied the amount was
shown by the meter reading.

Q. Were these readings taken under your super-

vision?

A. Yes, sir.

(Record, 190, 191; see also 214.)

Appellee's superintendent, on cross-examination, says:

Q. Was any meter used in the measurement of

the creosote from the damaged drums?
A. No.

Q. It was simply dumped or poured from the

drums into a receptacle known to contain so many
gallons and measured in that way?

A. Yes.

(Beal, 75.)

And again:

Q. Were those full drums measured in the same
way that the creosote in the jiartiaily damaged
drums were measured?

A. Yes.

Q. No meter was used?

A. No.

Q. Have you a meter there for the pur])ose of
measuring creosote?

A. We did not at the time I was there.
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Q. You were there and would know if they had
one?

A. I would have known it.

(Id., 78, 79.)

In view of all the circumstances, it is evident, that,

on the question of the extent of the fire, Walker was

testifying, not from a remembrance of his inspection

of it, but from the statement embodied in his survey,

which statement was copied from the ship's log. If the

court takes our view, and holds that a preponderance

of the evidence shows that the '

' Sardhana 's
'

' door repre-

sents the extent of the fire, then, of course. Walker's

further statement, that the repair value of the damage

done amounts to one hundred and fifty or two hundred

dollars (Record, 206), cannot be credited.

Appellee also relies upon the evidence of F. D. Beal

that the bulkhead was burned (Record, 66). It will be

seen that this witness is not very positive in his state-

ment as to the extent of the fire. He is, however, posi-

tive in his opinion that the fire started in but one place,

that is, that there, was but one seat of fire (Id., 84);

and he makes a rough sketch to illustrate his remem-

brance of its extent. Bearing in mind that the fire had

but one place of origin, if the court compares Beal's

exhibit (Id., 96) with the physical evidence as repre-

sented by the door itself, it will be apparent that the

witness is mistaken in saying that any of the bulkhead

was burned. If there was but one seat of fire, the door

clearly shows ivhere it was, as well as the impossibility

of its having extended to the bulkhead. If Beal 's sketch
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illustrates his testimony, the door itself refutes both

sketch ami testimony as to the fire having reached any

part of the batten bulkhead.

The entire situation resolves itself into the following:

A fire took place on the "Sardhana" which burned or

charred a batten door leading from the 'tween decks

into the lazarette, but only to such an extent that it was

not considered worth repairing, and never was repaired.

Was it within the contemplation of the parties, in view

of the law of the Glenlivet case, that such a trivial fire,

happening nine days after the voyage of the vessel had

been completed, should open the warranty of the F. P. A.

clause?

As has been shown in the opening of this brief, under

what is agreed to be the law of England, the expression

"burnt" must be construed in pari materia with the

word "stranded," and the words "stranded, sunk or

burnt," when used in collocation, require that there

should be a substantial burning of the vessel as a whole.

However, the claim here is made that, because of this

condition of the law, and in order to avoid its effect, the

expression was changed from "burnt" to "on fire."

Assuming, therefore, for the purpose of this argument,

that such was the fact,—in view of the clear expression

of the judges in the Glenlivet case that the exceptive

words of the memorandum must be read in collocation

with each other,—we reiterate that the purpose sought

to be accomplished by the change fails. The change

should and could have been made so clear as to leave no

ambiguity as to its purpose to override the princij)le
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which had been laid down in the Glenlivet decision. It

is one matter to agree that a particular average loss will

be paid if the vessel as a whole is on fire, but quite a

different matter to say that it will be paid if any kind of

a fire occurs, even one so trivial as to be considered by

the vessel's owners undeserving of repairs, though the

cost of such repairs is covered by hull insurance.

We beg to again repeat the opinion of Mr. Gow on this

point

:

Since the issue of the (Glenlivet) decision some
slips have had the words "on fire" added to

"burnt", confessedly in the hope and expectation of

thus restoring to the assured what has been taken

from him by the decision. (Italics ours.)

But will not exactly the same principle that was
applied in the interpretation of "burnt" be applied

to that of "on fire"? For it is not a question of

the extent of the effect of ignition * * * as far

as the memorandum is concerned, is it not all the

same whether you say "burnt" or "on fire" so long

as the principle of "substantial burning of the ship

as a whole" is applicable?

(Gow, p. 181.)

It will be noted that Mr. Gow's opinion is based upon

slips having the word "on fire" added to "burnt", so

that the clause reads: "Warranted free from partic-

ular average unless the vessel be stranded, sunk, burnt,

on fire, or in collision" (See Beckett,- Record, 232). If,

changed to read as above, Mr. Gow's opinion is that

the construction would still fall within the principle of

the Glenlivet case, then, a fortiori, that principle con-

trols if the word "burnt" is omitted, and the clause
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reads simply "on fire". Leaving in tlie word "burnt",

and adding the words "on fire**, would bear some slight

inference tliat the former exception was intended to be

modified by the addition, hut when the words "on fire'*

substitute the word "burnt" no such inference is j)os-

sible, if the principle of the Glenlivet case be adhered to.

Nothing could have been easier than for the ap})licant

for insurance to have relieved the situation from all

chance of ambiguity by saying to the underwriter: *' Vou

pay for a particular average loss if the ship be stranded,

sunk or on fire, the fire to be of such a character as to

work substantial damage to the structural part of the

ship." Or, if he wanted even better protection than

such a clause could give him, as in the case at bar, he

could have added: "The fire to be of any character,

whether substantial or trivial", or "The extent of the

fire to be immaterial.'*

We find in the very policy sued on, and in the F. P. A.

clause, a similar limitation affecting the word "colli-

sion": Warranted free from particular average unless

the vessel be in collision * * * "the collision to be of

such a character as m^y reasonably be supposed to have

caused or led to damage of cargo.** This j)articular

limitation is in the interest of the insurer, but it is sub-

mitted that, if the assured was seeking an amplification

of the "burnt** exception of the clause, it was equally

incumbent that such intention should be made clear.

In the Glenlivet case the English courts resolved the

ambi.guity found in the use of the word "burnt" in favor

of the underwriter, and held that the shij) must have
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been on fire as a whole, thereby excluding from the

meaning of the word total destruction of the whole. Is

it not, therefore, obvious, in view of the principle laid

down, that the expression ''on fire," when used alone,

should receive the same construction? When the idea

of total destruction is excluded from its meaning, the

word "burnt" is no more than the past expression of the

same fact or idea expressed by the words "on fire". In

this view, to say that a vessel is burnt means that the

vessel has been on fire, and nothing more.

From the decision of Judge Hanford in this case on

exceptions (184 Fed. 949), as also from Judge Netter-

er's decision, it is apparent that both overlooked the

narrow meaning given to the word "burnt" by the Glen-

livet decision, for otherwise they could not have said

that the words "on fire" are not synonymous with the

word "burnt". Judge Hanford, however, is entirely

correct in his statement if, to the word "burnt", is

given the definition of total destruction. However, this

decision, given on exceptions, is of little value at this

time. It goes no further than would a decision on de-

murrer at law. and is based upon the uncontradicted,

extravagant allegations of the libel, wherein it is alleged

that, in addition to the bulkhead and door, other parts

of the ship were burned (Record, 5).

Before leaving this subject, we wish briefly to com-

ment on the testimony given before the commissioner in

this case by Mr. Beckett of Seattle, who is referred to

by the trial court as "an average adjuster of London,

England" (Record, 328). This young man gives testi-
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mony on direct examination whicli runs as smoothly aa

a well ordered watcii. His (lualifieation as an average

adjuster consists of a connection witli the firm of ,)ohn-

son & Iliggins since September, 1911, and before that

for a i)eriod not revealed with two English concerns.

Based on this experience of unrevealed duration, desj)ite

objection of counsel that he is not qualified, the witness

proceeds to say that it is the practice of English adjust-

ers to consider the warranty in the F. P. A. clause

opened if a structural part of the ship is on fire, and

that it does not depend on the extent of the fire at all.

When asked as to the number of cases adjusted by him

with the F. P. A. clause in the policy, he says it would

be impossible to state, but that there have been a con-

siderable number (Record, 229) ; that never to his knowl-

edge has his view of the matter been contested by

underwriters (Id., 229) ; that to his knowledge the words

**on fire" were added to the policies after the decision

in the Glenlivet case in 1893 (Id., 230) ; and finally, that

he considers the warranty open in the present case if

the bulkhead door was burned (Id.). At the very begin-

ning of his cross-examination his qualification as an

expert receives a rude shock, when it turns out that at

the time of the first use of the words "on fire", after

the decision in the Glenlivet case in 1893, he was at

school, unconnected with average adjusting and knew

nothing ^bout the Glenlivet case (Id., 231). By way of

apolog\% however, he says that these matters are cov-

ered by text books (Id.). He then testifies that his and

Mr. Gow's construction of the expression *'on fire", as
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contradistinguished from the expression "burnt", are

alike, and that Gow agrees with him that the two expres-

sions should be given different constructions (Id.). The

substance of the witness' testimony may be summed up

in the following:

Q. * * * Do you mean to say that it is the

practice that the warranty is opened where any
part of the structural part of the ship is on fire,

no matter how minute the fire is?

A. To the best of my knowledge and belief, yes.

(Record, 236.)

Testing his own experience in the matter, the most

trifling fire with which he has been connected, and

where, by the common consent of both the assured and

the underwriter, the warranty was opened, occurred in

January, 1912, on the ship ''Watson", and the fire loss

totaled from $700 to $800 (Record, 240, 241). In at-

tempting to test his knowledge of the matter as an

expert, aside from personal experience, the witness

becomes increasingly unsatisfactory, for he says his

knowledge "is more or less confined, to the adjustments

I have made", "I ha^e no means of hearing of them"

(referring to trivial fire losses which, by common con-

sent of the assured and underwriter, opens the war-

ranty) (Id., 241).

A careful reading of Mr. Beckett's testimony seems

clearly to indicate an entire lack of knowledge or expe-

rience, which could fairly be held applicable to the facts

of the case at bar. The opinion which he expresses, and

which he assumes to be in harmony with Mr. Gow's, but
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is not, refers to policies where the words "on fire"

have not been substituted for *' burnt", as in the present

case, but have been abided to it

Q. That this expression *'on fire" in modem
policies is substituted for the expression '* burned"?

A. No, it is included that way. "Burned" has
not been left out of the clause, but "on fire" has
been added.

• • • • •

Q. How would the F. P. A. clause read?

A. Warranted F. P. A. unless stranded, sunk,

burned, on fire or in collision.

(Record, 232.)

Here, then, is the situation: The Glenlivet decision

establishes the principle that where the word "burnt"

is used in collocation with the word "stranded", then,

the ship must be on fire as a whole. This because of

the established construction of the meaning of the word

"stranded", as formerly used alone in the warranty.

If the assured then is looking for a fuller protection

than that given by the ])rinciple of the Glenlivet deci-

sion, it possibly might be successfully contended that

such hope and expectation is realized by addiup to the

expression "burnt" the words, "on fire", but when

the word "burnt" is not so attempted to be enlarged,

but is substituted by words of exact analog}^ (when

the idea of something less than total destruction is

intended to be expressed), then, we submit there can

be no possible ground for holding that the substituted

words, read in collocation with the word "stranded",

mean anything more or less than did the word "burnt".
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III.

THE CLAIM FOR THE VALUE OF THE FOUR DRUMS LOST AND

SALVAGE EXPENSES CANNOT BE SUSTAINED BECAUSE

(a) THE LIGHTER IN QUESTION WAS FURNISHED BY THE

ASSURED AND WAS UNSEAWORTHY, AND (b) THE ASSURED

WAS NEGLIGENT IN LEAVING IT OVER NIGHT ALONGSIDE

THE VESSEL, FULLY LOADED AND UNATTENDED.

During the course of discharge, and on the night of

Saturday, November 22nd, a fully loaded barge, moored

alongside the "Sardhana" (Preece, 278), capsized com-

pletely, precipitating its load into the bay. Although

appellee's libel is framed to cover the loss of four drums

and salvage expenses, as a particular average loss, made

possible by the fire, and the trial court seems to follow

that lead, still, we contend, that appellee's sole ground

for recovery of these particular damages rests in the

provision of the F, P. A. clause reading: ''Each craft

or lighter to he deemed a separate insurance" (see pol-

icy, original. Libelant's Exh. "A", also printed record,

9). Were it not for this clause, and if appellee were

confined to the contention shown by the libel that the

fire of November 18th deletes the warranty, so as to

let in this particular average loss, its case on this

claim would be desperate, for the reason that the ex-

ception extends to cover only goods on board the ship

at the time the fire occurs,—a point which we will take

up more fully later on.

In Thames S Mersey MaHne Ins. Co. v. Pitts, 7 Asp.

(N. S.) 302, we find a policy, issued by the appellant

in the case at bar, construed, where the question was,
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whether the F. P. A. warranty was opened by a. strand-

ing as to goods not on the vessel at the time of strand-

ing, although at risk under the policy on a lighter, from

which they were subsequently loaded on the ship. The

policy contained the usual warranty against particular

average losses, with the exception "unless the ship or

craft be stranded". It further contained the clause,

"Each craft * * * to he considered as if separately

insured" (Id. p. 306). Day, J., says:

"The goods are insured in the craft while in the

craft; and they are insured in the ship while in

the ship, and not in the craft. To my mind, the

insurance while in the craft is covered by the pol-

icy, and it is by the policy ai)])lical)le to the craft,

and (lU the incidents of the risk, and- (ill the inci^

dents of the insurance are applicable to tlie craft.

(Italics ours.)

<<* * * when the ship was stranded the Gfoods

were in the craft and the only stranding for which

the underwriters would be responsible would be for

stranding in the craft." (Id. 30G.)

The trial court cites this case against the appellant

(Record, 331), but it is difficult to determine, from the

decision, what point its citation is intended to cover.

As it was one of the cases on which we depended at

the trial, perhaps its use against us was an inadvert-

ence. At any rate, the case, we submit, establishes two

or three very material points:

1. That the exceptive words of the F. P. A. warranty

only affect goods on board at the time the warranty

is opened;
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2. That under the terms of the policy in suit the

exceptive words of the F. P. A. warranty apply to the

lighter separately, and that the stranding or sinking or

burning, as the case may be, must be of the lighter,

and that otherwise the loss of the goods on the lighter

must be total or there is no liability.

As we have intimated, this latter was not the theory

on which appellee's claim is based, but we submit it is

clearly the only theory upon which it can recover for

the four lost drums and salvage expenses.

The court in the Pitts case, in holding that the con-

tract of insurance was separate as to the goods while

on the lighter, very properly says, that '^all the inci-

dents of the risk and all the incidents of the insurance

are applicable to the craft". One of the very material

incidents of the contract is the implied warranty of

seaworthiness for which we contend. Instead, however,

of recognizing the express provision of the policy in

suit, making each craft or lighter a separate insurance,

to which all the incidents of the contract are applicable,

the trial court, on the sole authority of Lane v. Nixon,

an English case decided in 1866, and cited by text

books, holds that the implied warranty as to seaworthi-

ness does not extend to lighters.

In Lane v. Nixon, decided on demurrer, there is no

evidence to show that the policy contained the con-

trolling provision found in the contract in suit, namely:

"Each craft or lighter to he deemed a separate insur-

amce"; therefore, no reason for the construction that

"all the incidents of the insurcmee" were applicable to

the lighter. Furthermore, it will be seen that the
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reason for the rule laid down in this old case is not

present in the case at bar. Tliere it was said: "The

owner of the goods has no nieans of knowing anything

about tJie lighters or other craft to be employed, • • • ";

while here the owner was the receiver of the goods at

the place of the termination of the insurer's liability,

and received them from the ship's tackles on to the

lighters, which it furnished and controlled in the loading

and transporting from ship to shore. Appellee's con-

duct, in having a survey made of the particular lighter

in question, is clearly a recognition of its obligation

to furnish one fit for the inirpose to which it was put.

An American case, cited in the text books on this

subject of implied warranty of seaworthiness covering

lighters, is tlie old case of Van Valkenburgh v. Astor

Mutual Ins. Co., 1 Bosw. (N. Y.) 61, in which it was

held that the assured coidd not recover for losses caused

by the unseaworthiness of flat boats used on a portion

of the voyage.

In a recent English case, involving a contract of

affreightment, where Lane v. Nixon was expressly relied

on by counsel, the court held squarely that the implied

warranty of seaworthiness did extend to the lighters

used in the course of transshipment of the cargo, and

this irrespective of whether the lighters are funiished

by the shipper or not, and irrespective of whether the

contract of shipment contains the clause that the car-

riage of the goods in such lighters is to be "at the risk

of the owner of the goods".

The GaliUo, XVIII Com. Cas., Part III, p. 146

(Advance Sheets).
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This case, decided in February, 1913, is the last word

on the subject and, although it involves a contract of

affreightment, we submit, that the implied warranty of

seaworthiness in such a contract is no different from

that in a policy of marine insurance.

The Voriigern, VIII Asp. M. C. 523.

Before going into the facts, we call the court's atten-

tion to the point that, irrespective of the question of an

implied warranty of seaworthiness, the appellee cannot

recover unless it shows that the lighter capsized because

of a peril of the sea, because otherwise the loss did not

occur through a peril insured against, and the burden

of proof on this point lies with appellee.

If we are right in contending that the assured 's claim

must be based on the separate insurance lighter clause,

then, the sole ground on which this lighter liability rests

is that the loss, under this separate risk, was (1) total,

and (2) caused by a peril insured against. These two facts

must be affirmatively shown by appellee, and when this

showing has been made then appellant's defenses, which

must also be affirmatively shown, are unseaworthiness

and,/or negligence.

As to the obligation of appellee to show a total loss of

the lighter load,—we admit, that, irrespective of the

result of the salvage efforts, it has made this showing.

As to its obligation to prove that the loss was caused by

a peril insured against, we submit that it has failed.

The libel alleges that the barge was "capsized during

a heavy gale" (Record, 5). With reference to this alle-

gation, found on the first page of the average statement
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(original exhibit, Lihelaut's Exh. "M"), it is undoubt-

edly taken from a copy of superintendent Beal's al!i-

davit incori:)orated into the average statement at p. 4.

Of course, neither the statement in the pleading, nor

Mr. Beal's affidavit, is evidence and we, therefore, pro-

pose to refer the court to the evidence offered to estab-

lish the fact alleged, and necessary of proof, that the loss

occurred through the capsizing of the barge during a

]ieav>^ gale.

Appellee's superintendent, Beal, who was on sliore,

on direct examination says: "There was a gale that

night" (Record, 69). ''My recollection is that it was a

southeast wind" (Id. 70). Appellee's assistant man-

ager, E. D. Rood, in answering a direct interrogatory,

says

:

This lighter was capsized on account of the un-

usually heavy weather at this time. The seas and

swells rolled in and it was impossible for the lighter

to weather the storm.

(Record, 135.)

The 17th interrogatory, to which the foregoing is an

answer, was so general in its character on this point

(Record, 127, 128) that it gave no notice whatever of

the answer which it was intended to elicit, and as a

consequence no direct interrogatory was directed to

meet the undisclosed question of a sea peril. In view of

the circumstances we believe the court will give but little

weight to the statement, as it must appear from all the

evidence in the case, touching the subject, that the wit-

ness was not testifying to his own knowledge when he
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said, ''The seas and swells rolled in and it was impos-

sible for the lighter to weather the storm".

The evidence of Mr. Beal given at Portland, and the

evidence of E. D. Rood given at Los Angeles, is the

only affirmative evidence produced by the appellee to

establish that the accident to the lighter was caused by

a peril of the sea. On cross-examination of appellant's

witness, Preece, it is shown that at Seattle on the night

in question there was "quite a little blow" (Record,

292) (see also cross-examination of appellant's wit-

ness, Tuttle, Record, 259).

This is the evidence of the case which is offered to

prove a total loss through a peril of the sea
;
giving to it

the fullest possible interpretation, we submit that no loss

through a sea peril has been shown. Neither Beal nor

Rood were on the ''Sardhana" that night, nor on the

lighter, and neither of them could have known anything

about the conditions as they existed in Eagle Harbor,

where the ''Sardhana" and lighter were moored. It is

not a necessary inference that, because there is wind on

shore, or in Seattle, there must have been one on the

water at Eagle Harbor, a fortiori, one affecting this

lighter lying inshore alongside the "Sardhana", nor is

it a necessary inference that the gale, witness Beal

speaks of, capsized the lighter. The only witness in the

case who occupied a position which would enable him to

give evidence of value as to the weather that night was

Yeaton, the apprentice, for he alone of those who testi-

fied on the subject was on board the vessel, and would

have known of any storm or gale or wind, if there had
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boon any, afToetin^i: tlie liirhtor. Ycaton knew nothing of

any such weather.

This naturally brinpfs us to a consideration of appel-

lant's proof of unseaworthiness.

Were it not for the lower court's decision, we would

say that, under the terms of such a policy as the one in

suit, the proposition would be elementary that the war-

ranty of seaworthiness extends to the lighter. .Judge

Netterer, it is true, held that "there is no testimony be-

fore the court to establish" unseaworthiness (Record,

330), but such finding being unnecessary, after holding

as matter of law that the warranty does not extend to

lighters, we conclude it was based on a superficial exam-

ination of the record,—no testimony having been taken

before the court.

As the contract of affreightment, between the appellee

and the carrier, evidently reciuired delivery to be taken

at the ship's tackles (Baird, 276), and as the inference

to be drawn from the bills of lading, issued by the ship,

clearly points to the same thing, and as the appellee

undertook the cargo's transportation from ship to shore

(Record, 69); it was clearly its duty to furnish only

such lighters for this purpose as were reasonably fitted

to withstand the ordinary vicissitudes of the place and

use to which they were to be put. They must be tight,

staunch and strong so that, when loaded, they would

safely bear their l)urdcns. They must not only be free

from leakage and tight in their seams, when the dis-

placement is light before loading, but also after load-

ing, when the displacement would be greater, and if,
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when loaded, they were to be temporarily left over night

and used as unattended store houses, they must be fitted

so as to withstand such winds or sea as were likely to

be expected in Eagle Harborw

It is our contention, even assuming that the lighter

in question did not seem to leak when unloaded,—as she

became submerged by the weight of cargo, the water

slowly passed into her hold through newly submerged

and leaking seams in her sides (Preece, 290); that the

water thus coming in gradually gathered on one side,

causing a list that increased during the night to a point

where barge and cargo turned turtle. We contend, and

the evidence is clear, that in no other way could the

barge have capsized, and there could not have been a

shifting of the cargo, to cause capsizing, because of the

peculiar construction of the drums and the method of

loading them.

Witness Preece, the foreman stevedore, loaded the

barge on Saturday (Record, 278, 288), and testifies as

to the manner in which the drums were placed on the

lighter ''to keep them from shifting" (Id.). The load-

ing was finished between 4 and 5 o'clock in the after-

noon (Record, 279) and, although it was the custom of

the creosote company to tow their lighters away from

the ship after they were loaded (Id.), on this particular

occasion it was not done, but she was left for the night

fastened to the vessel's side with the ordinary mooring

lines (Id.). The lighter in question was moored and

left on the port side of the ''Sardhana", and the donkey

engine used in unloading the drums from the ship, on

the starboard side (Record, 281).
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When asked his opinion as to the likelihood of stress

of wind or son caiisizing the lighter, Preece says:

A. If there was soa enough came in there she

might capsize, hut the way tlie vessel was lying, and

the way the barge was alongside, I don't believe

any sea ever came in there that would capsize that

barge, provided that there was no water in her,

she was not leaking.

(Record, 282.)

On cross-examination the witness testifies that when

fully loaded the barge had from a foot to eighteen

inches of freeboard (Record, 288), and that when he left

her that night she was upright, and on an even keel

(Id., 289). When he saw her next she was bottom up

and full of water (Id., 290).

As we have stated, the witness who had the most in-

timate connection with the actual capsizing of the

lighter, because he was the only witness on board the

"Sardhana" at the time, was Yeaton. He says:

Q. Do you know when she capsized?

A. Early in the morning, that is all I know.

Q. How did you have knowledge of her capsiz-

ing?

A. I heard it go.

Q. You heard what?

A. I heard her turn, what I sui)i)osed to be her

turn.

Q. What was the noise like?

A. It sounded to me like drums hitting the ship.

Q. How long did the noise last?

A. A few seconds.

Q. Was the ship in any stress of weather at the

time?

A. Not that I could see, not that I remember.
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Q. What kind of a harbor was this where the

Sardhana lay—exposed or protected?

A. There is quite a little bay, but it is quite

sheltered from the Sound itself, only a narrow en-

trance.

Q. "Was this lighter which was capsized in an

exposed or a protected position?

A. Well, from anything coming in from the

Sound she was well sheltered.

Q. Was it exposed to anything else, was it ex-

posed to any sea or wind?

A. Just the amount of sea that could get up in

the bay, that is in Eagle Harbor.

(Record, 294, 295.)

Cross-Examination

:

Q. What was the condition of the weather on

the night this scow capsized?

A. I have no particular recollection of it being

very bad or very fine.

Q. Have you any particular recollection at all

what the weather was. A. No.

Q. You do not remember?
A. No. Had it been bad I should think I would

remember it because we probably would have had

trouble with our own mooring.

(Id., 308.)

Another disinterested witness whose testimony rebuts

the contention of loss from a sea peril, and tends to

establish unseaworthiness, is H. C. H. Tuttle, the engi-

neer for the Washington Stevedoring Co., whose barge,

with the donkey engine on it, was moored on the star-

board side of the "Sardhana". He testifies as follows:

Q. On the occasion of the scow capsizing, did

any mishap happen to your scow on which the

donkey engine was? A. No, sir.
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(^. Mr. TuttU', as the liglitcr lay on wliicli llie

creosote was loaded on the occasion when the scow
capsized, was that lighter exposed to any wind or

sea?

A. You mean the one with the drums on!

Q. Yes.

A. No. It was not exposed near as nnich as the

scow I had. It was out of tiie weather. The
weather had to hit the ship first.

(Record, 248, 249.)

Capt. David Baird, after testifying tliat the "Sard-

luina" was anchored from 50 to 100 feet from appellee's

dock, and that the donkey engine was moored to the

starboard and the lighter to the port side (Record, 2G4),

says:

Q. What can you say with reference to its

(Eagle Harbor) situation regarding sea and
weather ?

A. Oh, it is a landlocked harbor, perfectly safe,

I should say.

(Record, 265.)

After testifying to the manner in which the drums

were loaded on the scow, he says:

Q. "Would it have been possible in your opinion

for a scow so loaded to have cai)sized fore and aft I

A. Impossible.

Q. So that if this scow did capsize it must have
capsized athwartships? A. Yes.

Q. In your opinion would it have been possible

for this scow to have capsized athwartships through

such stress of weather as might have been jiossible

where it lay on the i^ort side of the Sardhana in

Eagle Harbor? A. No.

Q. If the scow did cn])size what in your opinion

then was the cause of its capsizing? A. Water.

Q. Water where? A. In the hold.
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Q. You have stated in your opinion it would be

impossible for that scow to have capsized athwart-

ships through such weather as might be possible

where she lay, through the cause of weather alone

or sea, why?
A. Never any sea in there, and besides I sup-

pose the scow could stand up in there until the

bottom drops out.

(Record, 266, 267.)

Cross-Examination

:

Q. What did you mean, captain, when you stated

in answer to counsel in your direct examination that

the lighter could not have capsized under any con-

ditions of weather over there?

A. Well, lying alongside the ship she could not.

Q. She could not? A. No.

Q. Under any conditions of weather? A. No.*****
Q. There is no condition of weather which would

cause the ship to have considerable motion over

sideways, is there? A. No.

Q. Could not have any motion sideways?

A. Not with that wind.

Q. Not enough to cause this scow to capsize?

A. No..

(Id., 275, 276.)

Appellant's next witness on the subject was Capt.

S. B. Gibbs, agent and surveyor for the San Francisco

Board of Marine Underwriters. He gaid that for 11

years he had been going over to Eagle Harbor on the

average of about twice a month (Record, 313). He then

testifies as follows:

Q. State whether the harbor of Eagle Harbor is

protected or unprotected?

A. We look upon it as a protected harbor.
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Q. Arc tlu'io any winds, or is there any sea,

that would have alYectod this lighter as she lay

ah)ngsi<le the Sardhana.'

A, I do not think she would liave heen al't'ected

by any wind or sea in that position in which the

ship was moored, and the i)arge moored on the

insliore side.

Q. Why, captain!

A. Because it is close into land on one side,

and tlie ship on the outside, and the creosote works

on the other side, and it seems to me pretty hard

for the wind to get up any sea that would affect

the barge.

Q. What in your opinion would cause the cap-

sizing of that barge?

A. T should say it must be water in it.

Q. That is, the barge must have had water?

A. The barge must have had water, must have

been leaking.

(Record, 313, 314.)

The contention is made that tbis barge was surveyed

by Mr. Walker after its capsizing, for the puqiose of

ascertaining its seaworthiness, and that as a result of

such survey Mr. Walker found that the barge did not

leak. Our contention is that it is i)erfectly clear, from

W^alker's evidence, that the alleged survey was made a

number of days after the capsizing, when the barge had

been towed to another location, and had been righted

and placed on the gridiron. Even had the survey, which

was then made, been a ])ro])er one, we submit, that the

time elapsing between the capsizing and the date of the

survey, destroys the value of the sun-ey, in the absence

of evidence showing what bad been done with the barge

in the meantime (see North American Dredging Co. v.

Pacific Mail S. S. Co., 185 Fed. at p. 703). However
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this may be, it is perfectly clear that Capt. Gibbs' cri-

ticism of Mr. Walker's survey is well taken (Record,

155, 156). We give here the evidence of what it con-

sisted, and it should be borne in mind that the evidence

refers to two alleged surveys,—one made immediately

after the capsizing, and one made days after that, when

the scow was on the gridiron:

Q. Mr. Walker, what was the condition of this

scow at the time you made this examination and
survey 1

A. I think it says in there (referring to his

report) that she was bottom up.

Q. Did you examine to see whether she made
any water or leaked?

A. I cannot say, I cannot remember. (Examines
Exh. ''J"). She was tight. There was nothing

the matter with the barge. I examined her after-

wards.

Q. She could get no water in her?

A. No, she was not leaking.

Q. When did you examine her, how long after

she capsized?

A. I cannot say. I cannot remember exactly.

When I examined the barge she was righted up on

the gridiron.

(Record, 192, 193.)

Cross-Examination

:

Q. Now, I want to call your attention to your
survey of the barge or lighter that was capsized,

will you state when it was after the capsizing of

the barge, assuming that the capsizing of the barge

was on the 21st of November, how long after that

was it that you saw the barge yourself?

A. I stated in the report that I examined the

barge. I examined the barge the same date.

Q. You examined the barge the same day it was
capsized?
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A. She was hottdin up ratiicr.

Q. WIr'iv was slic wluMi you examined liert

A. If I reniemher rightly she was still made fast

alonp:si<lo the sliij).

Q. Is that where you made your survey of her?

A. Where I made my first examination of her.

Q. Wliat (lid that exaiuinalion consist of?

A. Sinii)ly looking at the harge as she lay cap-

sized.

Q. You did not get much information?

A. No, none.

(Record, 207, 208.)

Q. Now, after this first visit to the harge I

understand you saw it again?

A. I saw the harge again, yes.

Q. Where was it then?

A. I think the harge was at West Seattle at that

time. I would not swear it was.

Q. Was (it) righted when you saw it?

A. Tlie second time, yes.

Q. How long afterwards? A. I could not say.

Q. A numhor of days? A. I could not say.

Q. 'VMiat does the report say?

A. I do not pretend to rememher five or six

years. Yes, the report shows it was some days

after. The report covers from November 23rd to

December 12th.

Q. So that it was probably around December
12th that you made this further examination?

A. No, I could not say the date of it. T would

not attempt to say it.

Q. It was some days after you first saw it?

A. Yes, they towed her away and righted hor

and she was on the gridiron.

Q. Wliat was the examination and survey you

made then, do you remember?

A. Well, T walked around the barge and ex-

amined her. There was nothing done to the barge

and she was not leaking.
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Q. That was the extent of your examination,

walking around the barge?

A. That was all that was necessary. There was
nothing done to her. She was on the gridiron.

Q. You mean she was out of the water?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You did not do any corking f (caulking)

A. I did not have anything done at all.

Q. That examination formed the basis of your

report!

A. That examination was sufficiently close to be

sure of the condition of the barge.

Q. It formed the basis of your report?

A. Yes, sir.

(Id., 212, 213.)

Q. This report upon this damage to the barge,

was that made from one inspection that you made
of the barge when she was on the gridiron, or from
all your inspections at various times?

A. I inspected her when she was bottom up and
when she was on the gridiron.

Q. And your report was made from these in-

spections! A. Yes, sir.

(Id., 220, 221.)

If the record shows that the barge was full of water

when she was lying in the bay, bottom up, and this

water was not pumped out of her, how can it be ex-

plained she had no water in her when Walker in-

spected her on the gridiron, except that after being

placed there, the water in her leaked out!

A careful examination of Mr. Walker's testimony

will show that he puts no credence in the contention of

"a heavy gale" affecting the lighter. It is his opinion

that ''the hathor in ti.hich the ship and barge tvere

moored is considered perfectly safe and protected from
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nimi, I lit on this occasion an except ionallij heavy (jround

sit ell .<'n'cpt in". Tliere is no word in the record to

substantiate Mr. Walker's opinion toueliing a *' heavy

ufround swell", to wiiicli ho attributes the capsizing:,

in spite of the faet that his only information on the

subject refers to the springing up of "a h^^avy gale".

"We now ])ass to an exaniinati')n ol" the testimony of

the last witness on this subject, a witness produced by

and testifying on behalf of the appellee, Mr. Fred D.

Beal, appellee's former sui)erintendent. Mr. Beal tes-

tifies at Portland, and on direct examination says:

Q. Do you know of your own knowledge what
caused the scow to capsize?

A. Yes, I know what caused it to capsize. The
real cause of the scow cai)sizing, it got water in it

and the water ran to one side of the scow putting

it on an uneven keel, and the weight carried it over.

Q. Did she have water in her the night she cap-

sized before sending her outf

A. No, we examined those scows every night

and sounded them for water to see that they were

on an even keel.

Q. Did you sound her on this night.

A. Yes, we did every night.

Q. Was there any water in her then?

A. Practically none to speak of. There is al-

ways more or less water in the bottom of these

scows, but there was no water that we would con-

sider as a dangerous proposition to the scow if

she had remained as she was.

Q. How did the water have anything to do with

her sinking?

A. Additional water got into the scow during

the night.

(Record, 70, 71.)
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Cross-Examination

:

Q. I presume, Mr. Beal, that your statement

with reference to the barge capsizing through filling

with water was made because that would be the

only means that would capsize the barge? * * *

A. That would be my judgment; that would be

the only thing that could capsize the barge—^lier

filling with water.

(Id., 79, 80.)

Eedirect Examination.

Q. You testified in answer to one of counsel's

questions, or rather he asked you if there was any
way for this scow to capsize if she had no water in

her. I believe you answered that was your opinion

that that was the only way she could capsize.

A. This is my judgment.

Q. Mr. Beal, if this cargo of creosote drums had
shifted to one side of the barge, wouldn't that make
the barge capsize?

A. That is true, if they shifted to one side.

Q. If the barge collided during this gale with

the Sardhana causing the drums to all shift to one

side of the barge, would not that probably cause

the barge to capsize?

A. Yes, if it were possible for the drums to

shift to one side of the scow, that it true.

Q. If water got into the hold of this barge, and
she listed to one side, the drums would shift before

she capsized wouldn't they?

A. In my judgment, no. I don't think it was
possible for the drums to shift on the scow until the

scow was in the attitude of capsizing, then they

would shift and go over with her.

Q. In the attitude of capsizing, you mean with

a heavy list don't you?
A. Yes, when she commenced to capsize she

would go all at once.

(Id., 91, 92.)
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Q. li' the testimony of I lie stevedores witli ref-

ereuce to the loading of this seow was that there

were two liei's oi' drums, with one above the other,

would it not be i)ossii)le for this U])per tier to shift

in heavy weather?

A. Not in my judgment.

Q. ^\'hat would i)revent the upper tier from
shifting if the barge collided with a scow or some-

thing e.se during the night during a heavy swell!

A. The bands on the drums would prevent them
from sliding. The wliole thing would have to

move at once.

Q. If she bumped very severely and took a

severe list, would the drums shift t

A. No, I don't think that possible; I don't think

it possible for these drums to shift only on the cap-

sizing of the scow.

Q. Only on the capsizing of the scow?

A. No, I don't think it possible.

Q. What do you base your notion on—your

opinion on—have you had any experience in loading

such as would enable you to give such an opinion

on that subject?

A. Yes, 1 have had a great deal of experience in

loading and handling scows.

Q. If this scow was afterwards sun'eyed by a

competent surveyor, and it was found she was j)er-

fectly tif^lit and not leaking or making any water,

how could you say she could i)ossibly capsize?

A. I don't believe it would be possible for that

scow to capsize unless she did have water in her.

(Id., 93, 94.)

Summed up, the clear preponderance of the evidence

m this case points to the fact that the ca])sizing of this

lighter resulted, not from a peril insured against, but

solely from its unseaworthy condition. There- was no

possil)ility of the cargo shifting, because of the peculiar
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construction of the drams and the manner of their

loading. The barge's position on the lee side of the

''Sardhana", within a protected nearly landlocked har-

bor, was peculiarly free from the little wind or sea that

was possible, and the fact that the donkey engine's scow,

less favorably situated, was unhurt, is all convincing

evidence to support the contention that the accident was

not caused by stress of weather. The surveys testified

to are of no value, while the opinion of such disinter-

ested men as Preece, Baird and Gibbs, called by ap-

pellant, and Beal, called by appellee, clearly shows that

the capsizing was caused by a slow leak which developed

after loading. We submit that the record cannot be said

to point to any other reason for the accident. Further-

more, the fact that this barge, seemingly tight, staunch

and strong, should, without known cause, capsize under

the circumstances, raises in itself a presumption of

unseaworthiness.

The Southwarh, 191 U. S. 1 (48 L. Ed. 65)

;

The Arctic Bird, 109 Fed. 167;

The Aggi, 93 Fed. 484, 491;

Dupont Nemours v. Vance, 19 How. 162 (15 L.

Ed. 584)

;

Oregon Round Lumber Co. v. Portland S Asiatic

S. S. Co., 162 Fed. 912, 920, 921;

Forbes et al. v. Merchants Exp. & Transp. Co.,

Ill Fed. 796.

Insurance Co. of North America v. North German

Lloyd Co., 106 Fed. 973, is a case peculiarly in point on

this subject, of a presumption of unseaworthiness, be-
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cause it is one involving goods lost from a lighter held

to have hocn unsoaworthy, bocaiiso of ('ai)sizing without

an apparent cause.

In voyage ])olieies of marine insurance, one of the

assured 's most inii)ortant warranties is that of sea-

worthiness, and in the case at bar this implied warranty

applies, for the contract of the parties is "Each craft

or lighter to be deemed a separate insurance", and, of

course, the further point is obvious that, if the court

finds that the capsizing of the barge was not caused by

wind or sea, or stress of weather, then there can be no

recovery; and on either alternative, therefore, the value

of the four drums lost and the salvage expenses are not

recoverable, for the reason that in the one case the in-

surance never attached, and in the other the loss was

not occasioned by a peril insured against.

The remaining defense which we make to this claim

is that appellee was negligent in leaving this scow un-

attended by any watchman, after it was loaded. From

the fact that this loss occurred on Saturday night, or

early Sunday morning, it is apparent that it was the

intention of the appellee to leave the lighter where it

was until the next Monday morning, although the fore-

man stevedore, Preece, says that it was appellee's cus-

tom to tow the lighters away as soon as they were

loaded (Record, 279). If, therefore, it was the inten-

tion to leave this fully loaded barge (Preece, 278)

moored alongside the **Sardhana" from 5 o'clock Sat-

urday afternoon (Id., 279) until the following Monday

morning, where it was subject to heavy gales, aecording
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to appellee's contention; then it was gross negligence to

have left it unattended. It is one thing for the lighter

to be used in receiving and immediately transporting

cargo from ship to shore, and it is quite a different

thing to use it as an unattended store house in a place

subject to heavy weather. Had it been attended, the

water which got into her hold, whether it came from

newly submerged seams or from the deck or hatches,

would have been taken care of.

In the course of the cross examination of Walker it

was suggested that a leak into the lighter's hold, caus-

ing a gradual list, would necessitate the capsizing of the

barge. His reply is: "No, that would speak for itself

and he looked after hy the people in time" (Record,

211). The witness states an obvious truth, although it

is an unfortunate one for appellee. The negligence in

using and leaving this lighter, when and where it was

used and left, relieves the appellant from liability.

The Galilio, supra.

In view of the law of the Pitts case (supra), holding

that all the incidents of marine insurance attach to a

lighter, where the policy makes each craft or lighter

a separate insurance, and in view of the uncontra-

dicted fact that this lighter was left exposed to what-

ever weather was possible in the locality where she was

moored, and that she was left unattended, and capsized

by reason of water getting into the hold; we express

our total inability to account for the trial court's opin-

ion that the appellee was not obligated to furnish a

lighter fit for the service, and furthermore, that the



61

record shows uo evideuce tliat it was unlit. Our conten-

tion of negligence, by reason of the Uick of a watchman,

it will be noted, is ignored by the court.

We pass now to our next contention as to the dam-

ages claimed for short delivery of creosote.

IV.

THE ASSrUEI) (A>NOT KECOVEK EVEN IF THE SHIP >VAS

LEGALLY ON FIKE BECAUSE IT HAS PROVEN NO DAMAGES.

(a). It has not shown that any creosote was lost;

(b). If any creosote was lost, it was not on board the

ship at the time of the fire, and hence the F. P. A. war-

ranty is inapplicable;

(c). It has not shown how much creosote was lost

because of perils insured against, it appearing that many

of the containers were defective when shipped. The

burden of proving the quantum of loss caused by perils

insured against has not been even attempted by the

assured.

We will take up the discussion of the above three sub-

headings in order:

(a) The Appellee Has Not Shown That Any Creosote

Was Lost.

It will be noted that the allegation of the libel on this

head is **that the master caused said ship and cargo to

be surveyed and it was found that * • • 50207.2

gallons of creosote were found to have been lost" (Rec-
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ord, 5). This statement, denied by the answer, remains

nnproven. No such survey was made by the "Sard-

hana's" master, and the method by which the alleged

loss of 56267.2 gallons of creosote is arrived at is shown,

first, in the report of Mr. Walker, where it is said

:

After vessel was discharged the officials of the

Creosoting Company emptied the 741 damaged
drums and measured the amount obtained from

same, which proved to be 23650 galls., and as these

drums when full contained 109.2 galls, each, which

equals 80917.2 galls., the loss is shown as follows

:

80917.2 gals, when shipped

23650 gals, discharged

56267.2 gals, total loss.

(Record, 22, 23.)

As the evidence shows that the ship was seaworthey in

all respects (Wallace 34 cross inter.. Ill, answer 124)

when the voyage commenced, and ''there was no water

m the ship nor any leakage of the ship" (Wylie 31 inter.,

147, 148), and as the creosote that had leaked into the

limbers ^' could not possibly get out of the ship" (Id.),

and as all the creosote was delivered to the appellee

which was in the ship at the end of the voyage; we

contend that because of these incontrovertible facts there

could not possibly have been a loss of creosote. There is

no suggestion on the part of appellee that the creosote

which entered the ship's hold from the damaged drums

leaked out of the ship. In fact, the direct positive evi-

dence is that it did not:

24th Interrogatory. Was said cargo, or any part
thereof, lost during the voyage to the port of Eagle
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Ilarlioi". and, il" so, stale llic details of liow sucli

loss oeeiirrod and the amount of such loss.

Answer. There was no loss.

(Wylie, 145.)

• • • My reason lor stating that there were
not fifty-six thousand odd gallons of creosote lost

is that I was on board the ship the whole time,

and I know the creosote was loaded in the ship

in London and was delivered in Eagle Harbor to

the last droj), bar what we washed off the limbers.

No creosote could have gone over the side without

my knowledge. There was no water in the ship,

nor any leakage of the ship. The creosote that

leaked went into the limbers of the ship and could

not possibly get out of the ship. There was 13

inches of creosote in the well on arrival at Eagle

Harbor. That remained until i)umped out as before

stated.

(Id., 148.)

(See also Wallace, 27 Inter., Record, 101, Answer,

118.)

The uncontradicted evidence is that none of the

creosote, which leaked into the hold of the ship, was

pumped overboard during the voyage.

Q. During the voyage from London to Eagle

Harbor, was there any creosote ]iumpcd out of the

hold or limbers of the ship into the sea.

A. None.

(Yeaton, 293.)

In fact, the pumi)s were not used on the voyage

at any time. (Id., 307.) And yet, if there was loss

of creosote from this seaworthy ship, it must have

been pumped out of the hold and thrown overboard.
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Walker's testimony makes this necessary conclusion

quite clear (Record, 217).

There having been no leakage in the hull of the

vessel, and none of the creosote having been pumped

out at sea, the next matter for investigation is,

—

What became of the loose creosote in the "Sardhana's"

hold after arrival at Eagle Harbor? The evidence on

this point is perfectly clear and uncontradicted:

Q. After arrival at Eagle Harbor, was there

any creosote in the hold of the vessel 1 A. Yes, sir.

Q. How much?
A. I could not tell you for certain, but I believe

about a foot.

Q. Did you havfe anything to do with pump-
ing that creosote out? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you have to do? A. Pumped it.

Q. You yourself? A. Personally.

Q. State how much of that creosote was pumped
out.

A. The only way I could state was giving you

the approximate number of days we pumped.

Q. I don't mean that. Was it all or less than

all pumped out?

A. Until the pumps sucked; they would not

draw any more.

Q. Was there anything done after that to what
remained? A. I could not say for certain.

Q. How many days do you recollect pumping
creosote out of the hold? A. At least four.

(Yeaton, 293, 294.)

Q. Where was that pumped to?

A. Into empty barrels on the scow.

Q. Where did these barrels come from?
A. From the creosote company, to the best of

my knowledge.

(Id., 294.)
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Wylie, the "Sardhana's" mate, answering the 2ni]i

direct interrogatory, says:

The creosote wliicli liad leaked out of the drums
remained in the ship until it was })umi)ed out hy

the ship's pump through the hose purchased for

the ])urpose into empty barrels su])plied by the

Pacific Creosoting Co. We pumped down to three

or four inches, until the pumps refused to draw
any more, and the remainder was bailed out and
passed up in buckets, etc., and poured into the

empty barrels. They got every drop it was pos-

sible to bail out, and then, of course, we had to

wash out. That is all the creosote that was lost.

27th Interrogatory: State, if you can, approxi-

mately how much of said creosote which so leaked

out of the drums was lost.

Answer : Nothing, but what we could wash out of

the limbers. It is really as much as you could

wash off the sides of a cement lined chamber,

—

infinitesimal.

(Record, 146.)

In answer to the 29th direct interrogatory Capt. Wal-

lace of the "Sardhana" testifies to the same effect

(Record, 118), and there is not a word of contradiction

to be found in the record. As before intimated, even

appellee's . witness Walker, confirms it (Record, 215,

216). Both Wallace and Wylie were asked their rea-

sons for stating that the claim of the libel is false in

stating that 56,267.2 gallons of creosote were lost (Wylie,

31 Inter., 147, 148; Wallace, 34 Inter., 101, Answer,

119), and Cni)t. Wallace's reason for so stating is as

follows

:

My reason for saying that is that the Pacific Creo-

soting Company took delivery of the cargo and
never made any claims against the ship for dam-
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ages to the cargo, or for shortage; the same as

they did in the case of the "Jupiter"; the "Jupiter"

was discharging the same time as we were. And
further from verbal reports from the manager of

the Pacific Creosoting Company's plant at Eagle

Harbor, made to myself, that the cargo had burned

(turned) out in good condition; also from my own
knowledge as to the extent of the leakage and the

way in which the creosote came out in the pumps
and in the buckets.

This evidence of the report made to Capt. Wallace by

the manager of the Pacific Creosoting Co. was not

contradicted, and finds verification in the fact that no

claim was made against the ship for short delivery, as

there certainly would have been if fifty-six odd thousand

gallons of the creosote had been missing. The evidence

seems to point clearly to the conclusion that, at the

time the vessel had completed her discharge, there was

no thought or suggestion on the part of the receiver of

the cargo that there was any shortage, and that the

shortage, if any, was discovered long afterwards, and

at a time when the entire cargo had been in the posses-

sion and control of the appellee for some consider-

able length of time unmeasured, and the loss of 56,267.2

gallons was evidently figured out by Mr. Walker, to

whom was furnished the measurement of the whole

cargo from day to day (Walker, 214, 215).

Q. The creosote from the barrels went into the

general tank with the balance of the creosote, did it?

A. Yes, sir.

(Id., 216, 217.)
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In testifying on tlio snl)ject of measuring the creo-

sote, appellee's sujjerintendent, on direct examination,

says :

Q. Is that a statement of the contents of the

damaged drums? (Referring to Respondent's Ex-
hibit Two.)

A. So far as the number of drums concerned,

yes. As to the number of gallons I could not say

from tlio data I have at the i)rosont time that that is.

Q. Where would that information be secured

—in other words, where would the measurement of

the number of gallons be made?
A. Hhey would be made at the Pacific Creosoting

Company plant, at Eagle Harbor.

Q. You were the superintendent of that plant

at that time, were you? A. I was.

Q. AVould these measurements be made under
your direction? A. Yes.

(Record, 72, 73.)

Cross-examination

:

Q. When were these damaged drums dumped ?

A. Approximately some time between the latter

part of December and along up to the first of

^farch. This statement was made on March 8th.

We have records of dumjiing there on the **Sard-

hana" from December 1st—prior to December 1st.

I have a record of 24,572 along the latter part of

November and u[) until March.

(Id., 76.)

Q. You would not want to say that the drums
were measured out much before March 8, 19()9?

A. No, not positively, I could not state that.

(Id., 77.)

(See also Walker, 214.)

It will be noted that Mr. Walker's report of survey

on the cargo loss of 56,267.2 gallons bears date Seattle,
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"November 17th-December 28th, 1908", and contains

this statement:

After vessel was discharged the officials of the

Creosoting Company emptied the 741 damaged
drums and measured the amount obtained from
same, * * *

.

(Eecord, 22.)

This would indicate, that prior to December 28th,

1908, these damaged drums had all been emptied

and measured, but we submit that Mr. Beal's testi-

mony, just quoted, refutes any such contention. Fur-

thermore, Mr. Beat's letter to his company, dated

Eagle Harbor, December 26th, 1908, contains this state-

ment:

As to the quantity of oil received in this cargo

we cannot even hazard a guess, as it is practically

impossible to give anything within reach of what
she brought.

When this letter (Original, Eespondent's Exh. 1) was

introduced in evidence, Mr. Stevens, the company's

secretary, then under cross-examination, testified as

follows

:

Q. Was there any doubt at the time of the

receipt of this letter as to the amount of creosote

which had been received in this cargo?

A. The exact quantity, yes; the exact number
of gallons.

Q. Was that uncertain quantity ever cleared

up? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where is the result of that clearing up?
(Witness hands counsel paper.)

Q. You are referring now to another paper, a

yellow sheet of paper, dated March 8th, 1909?

A. Yes, sir.
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(Papor introdiuod in evidence and marked Re-

spondent's Exhibit Xo. 2.)

Q. This last sheet introduced in evidence pur-

IK)rts, does it not, Mr. Stevens, to be the result

of measuring the creosote left in the damaged drums

of the "Sardhana", and nothing more!

A. That is all.

(Record, l&O, 181.)

Q. This exhibit 2 is from the files of your

office! A. Yes, sir.

(Id., 182.)

On redirect examination the witness was asked when

this creosote was measured, and answered:

A. 1908 or 1909. Latter i)art of 1908 and the

first part of 1909.

(Id., 184.)

Bearing in mind that Mr. Walker's survey, which

purports to set forth the loss of 56,267.2 gallons, ascer-

tained as the result of measuring by meter the con-

tents of the damaged drums, a process which he says

was carried on under his personal supervision, was

dated December 28th, 1908; it is interesting to note

that Mr. Beal says: "I don't think he personally mea-

sured the oil that came out of these particular drums."

(Record, 73), but that his information on the subject

was derived from the statement dated March 8th,

1909, and marked Respondent's Exhibit 2.

Q. You furnished Mr. Walker with copies of

your reports, didn't you?

A. Yes, I believe this is a copy of the record

we furnished him.

Q. You are now referring to Respondent's Ex-

hibit Two?
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A. Yes, that is my recollection that this is a copy
of the report given him, and is compiled or was
compiled from our record and figures.

(Beal, 74.)

This evidence is of importance as showing, beyond

question, that the figures contained in Mr. Walker's

report of December 28th, 1908, showing the claimed

shortage of 56,267.2 gallons were compiled before the

leaky drums had been measured, and for that reason,

are unreliable and worthless. The report is also unre-

liable in that it does not purport to set forth the num-

ber of gallons of loose creosote which were pumped

from the hold of the "Sardhana" and delivered to the

appellee. Walker says there was a small quantity

pumped out and dumped into this same tank (referring

to the tank into which the creosote from the damaged

drums was measured). He also says that the exact

amount of this creosote he cannot tell, and then adds

:

''Three or four thousand gallons. * * * tJiat is about

what we estimated it.'' (Record, 217.) Mr. Beal

says he has no independent recollection of the num-

ber of gallons of loose creosote pumped from the hold

of the ship (Record, 75), but from his records he is

able to locate about 4200 gallons

:

* * * about 4200; whether there are more
that came from the ''Sardhana", I can't just now
state. There are some other notations there, but

it is not stated specifically.

(Record, 75.)

The whole matter, we submit, resolves itself into this

situation: The loose creosote in the bottom of the
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vessel was all tinned over to the appellee, together

with the drums from whieh it had leaktHl. These

latter, partiuUy filled, were taken to the yard of the

a})pellee, where they remaineil, in their leaking con-

dition, until emi)tied some time in March, li)09, and

the reason for not measuring their contents sooner, is

suggested by the evidence:

Q. "Where were these drums during all this

period, from the date of their discharge up to

March 8, 1909?

A. They were on the ground near our dumping
l)lant at Eagle Harbor in the yards.

Q. Do you know why they were not measured
sooner than that?

A. My recollection was that our storage capacity

in the tanks was pretty well taken and we only

dumped the drums as w^e had room in the tanks

for them.*******
Q. Do you remember when you measured the

full drums?
A. My notations here on the figures extend

from thai time over into May, 1908—May 13th, 1909,

is the last one I have.

(Beal, Record, 77," 78.)

Under these most remarkable circumstances, appellee

is attempting to hold appellant to a liability for a loss,

which the record does not show existed at tJie period

of time at which all liabiliti/ ceased under the police/,—
a loss which occurred, in an unascertained part at least,

while the drums were lying, in their leaky condition,

for six or eight weeks, on the ground in the yards of

the appellee. We submit that, under such circumstances,

neither in law or equity can appellant be held respon-
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sible for the loss, even if it be conceded that there was

one.

This brings us to our next point.

(b) // An2/ Creosote Was Lost it Was Not on Bourd

the Ship at the Time of the Fire and Hence the

F. P. A. Warranty is Inapplicable.

If Walker's compilation, showing a shortage of

56,267.2 gallons, be accepted without contradiction, it

was obviously brought about by wantonly pumping

the loose creosote from the hold of the ship into the

sea, or in some other inexplicable way, before the fire

took place. It is well settled, however, that in order

to recover under the F. P. A. warranty, it must be

shown that, at the time of the fire, the goods were at

risk on the ship.

26 Cifc, 683;

2 Arnould Marine Insurance, § 887

;

2 Phillips Insurance, ^ 1762

;

Gow, Mar. Ins., p. 178;

Roux V. Salvador, 1 Bing. N. C. 526

;

Thames & Mersey M. I. Co. v. Pitts, 7 Asp. 302;

The Alsace Lorraine, Id., 362.

It is undoubtedly true, as held in Lomdon Assurance

Co. V. Companhia de Moagens, 167 U. S. 149, and numer-

ous other cases, that the event mentioned in the memo-

randum need not be the cause of the loss, but the

memorandum clearly is not opened as to any goods not

on board when the event took place. Thus in The Alsace

Lorraine, supra, a part of a cargo of rice, duly

insured, was jettisoned owing to severe weather. The
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ship then put into Mauritius for repairs, where part

of the remaining rice was sold and part held in port

for reshipnient after the repairs were completed. While

being repaired, the vessel stranded. The court held

that as the stranding occurred when the goods were

not on board the vessel, the F. P. A. warranty re-

mained good and the insurers were not liable. In

Thames d Mersey M. I. Co. v. Pitts, supra (already-

referred to in another connection), cargoes of maize were

insured. One cargo was shipped at San Nicholas and

the other was in lighters at Buenos Ayres awaiting

shipment,—the policy, however, covering all risk in

craft and hence such lighter loads at Buenos Ayres.

The vessel stranded while on her way down the river

to Buenos Ayres. The court held that, as this latter

cargo was not on the ship at the time of the stranding,

the F. P. A. warranty was not deleted as to it and the

insurer was not liable. These two cases make it

clearly apparent that the appellant is not liable for the

loss of any creosote on the voyage, nor for damage to

any drums unloaded before the fire.

Although the trial court recognizes in its decision that

this is one of our contentions (Record, 327), and al-

though appellee's libel recognizes the principle by alleg-

ing that the fire took place before the discharge of

the cargo (Record, 5) ; no further reference is made

to it or to the authorities cited in its support, except

the citation of the Pitts case at the end of the deci-

sion,—a citation exactly contrary to the ruling it is

cited to su]i])ort. It is also to be remembered that the
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principle contended for, but wholly ignored, is applicable

also to the 427 drums discharged, and in the possession

of appellee, before the fire occurred.

If appellant could have established that over fifty

thousand gallons of creosote were pumped from the

hold of a seaworthy ship into the sea, without neces-

sity therefor, its recourse would properly seem to be

against the ship for unlawful conversion, or short

delivery, and not against this appellant. In fact,

appellee's case on this claim, as well as the court's

decision, seems to proceed on the theory of a rela-

tion existing between the carrier and itself, under the

contract of affreightment, rather than on the contractual

obligations created under a total loss policy of insur-

ance with an F. P. A. clause.

This point has needed but brief treatment, yet

we submit that it is conclusive, and relieves appellant

from the payment of most of the damages claimed.

Our next point can also be briefly discussed:

(c) The Appellee Has Not Shown How Much Creosote

Was Lost Because of Perils Insured Against, it

Appearing that Many of the Containers Were

Defective When Shipped. The Burden to Show

the Quantum of Loss Caused by Perils Insured

Against Has Not Been Even Attempted by tlie

Assured.

The only consideration given to this contention by the

trial court, is to be found in its reference to the mas-

ter's statement as to the apparent condition of the
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drums wlien received on the ship, and the application

of the i)rinciple, governing the statement, found in

the bill of lading: "Shipped in good order and well

conditioned". It will be seen, that the question now

under discussion does not relate to any implied war-

ranty that the goods shipped are seaworthy for the

voyage, as is intimated by the trial court (Record,

331), but solely to the question of appellee's obliga-

tion to show the qvantum of loss caused by perils insured

against.

Of course, it will be conceded, that the opening of the

F. P. A. warranty only admits liability for partial loss

caused by perils insured against, and where there are

losses from perils not insured against, as well as from

perils that are, it is unquestionably the law that

the burden is upon the assured to show the quantum

of loss caused by the latter. So that, as the assured

in this case has made no attempt at a segregation

of losses, if it appears some of the creosote drums

were defective, and there was a leakage therefrom before

the vessel encountered any of the perils insured against

;

then there can be no recovery. We submit, that the uncon-

tradicted and sole evidence in this case, points conclu-

sively to the fact that there was a leakage from defective

drums into the hold of the ship before a peril of tlie

sea was encountered.

Capt. Wallace, in answer to the 35th direct inter-

rogatory (Record, 102), testifies as follows:

A. I can say that I think that part of the leak-

age was due to the drums not being strong enough,

because we observed creosote in the limbers before
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we cleared the English Channel, so that all the

leakage wasn't due to the drums that were dam-
aged on the passage. As matter of fact I had re-

jected quite a number of drums in London of this

same shipment, and all the drums were of the same
general character.

(Record, 119.)

Wylie, the "Sardhana's" mate, in answering cross

interrogatory 26 (Record, 157), says:

Answer: The creosote escaped into the hold of

the vessel partly on account of the severe weather

and partly on account of the original weakness

of the drums, and the leakage of creosote was to

some extent due to the screw bungs working out.

(Record, 157, 158.)

In answer to cross interrogatory 32 (Record, 110),

Capt. Wallace says:

A. Some of it did; not all of it. We knew that

there was creosote in the limbers before we en-

countered any bad weather at all; the entry of

June 9th covers that.

(Id., 124.)

The witness evidently referred to the log entry of

June 6th and not June 9th, for the entry of the former

date reads:

June 6th : When it was discovered that the

carpenter's sounding rod was very slightly colored

with creosote.

(Record, 13.)

Capt. Wallace also in answering the 26th cross inter-

rogatory (Record, 111), says:

A. The damage to the drums was due to the

bad weather encountered, except such of the drums
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as wore inherently defective, and permitted the

leakage which we found before tiie rough weather

came on; there was no loss of drums.

(Id, 124.)

In answering the same question on cross-examination

Wylie says:

Answer: There was no loss of drums or creosote;

the damage done to the drums was partly on account

of the severe weather and partly on account of the

original weakness of the drums. The leakage of

creosote was to some extent due to the screw bungs

working out as well as to the weakness of the

drums and the severe weather.

(Record, 158.)

We submit that this is all the evidence in the record

on the question of how the loss from the drums,

through leakage, was caused, and it convincingly shows

that there was a partial loss through perils insured

against and a partial loss through perils not insured

against. Furthermore, when coupled with the fore-

going evidence, showing the receipt of defective drums,

and a leakage from them before encountering any sea

peril, \xo liave the extended protest showing the discovery

of loose creosote in the vessel's hold seven days after

sailing; wo submit that the testimony establishes a

situation that precludes recovery, unless appellee can

show the quantum of loss of loose creosote caused by a

peril insured against. This it has not even attempted.

In 26 Cyc, 72fi, it is said:

"The burden is upon plaintiff to show the extent

of the loss; and where it ai)pears that the projierty

has sustained damage from perils insured against
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and from perils not insured against, it is incumbent
on the insured to distinguish the losses occasioned

by the several perils."

In Heebner v. Eagle Ins. Co., 10 Gray 131, the

policy exempted the insurers from loss caused by

breakage of machinery unless occasioned by strand-

ing. Losses occurred on the voyage both by perils

of the sea and by stranding, and it was held that

plaintiff could only recover for the loss which it could

''definitely" show was due to the stranding (see p.

143), although plaintiff claimed that this required an

impossibility.

In Paddock v. Com. Ins. Co., 104 Mass. 521, there

was a provision in the policy that the insurers should

not be liable for a partial loss unless it should amount

to five per cent. Partial losses amounting to slightly

over ten per cent occurred from two gales. It was

held that the burden of proof was on the insured to

show a partial loss of five per cent from each gale,

and, as the assured was unable to segregate the dam-

ages caused, it was allowed only one recovery of five

per cent, and this only on the* theory that at least

one of the gales must have caused this much damage

(see p. 535).

The Supreme Court lays down a similar principle,

though as to a different subject matter, in Marcardier

V. Chesapeake Ins. Co., 8 Cranch 39; 3 L. Ed. 481;

484; as does also this court in Soelherg v. W. Assurance

Co., 119 Fed. 23, 31, 33, the court there saying:

''There must be some testimony on which a jury
could act in fixing the amount of damages. There
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beinff none, the court did not err in directing

the jur>' to find for defendants."

See also,

Bacheldcr v. Ins. Co., 30 Fed. 459, 461.

We now discuss our concluding point on the subject

of the damngcd drums:

V.

THE ASSURED HAS NOT EVEN ATTEMPTED TO PROVE THE

NUMBER OF DAMAGED DRUMS WHICH WERE ON THE SHIP

AT THE TIME OF THE FIRE, NOR THE NUMBER WHICH

WERE DEFECTIVE AND LEAKING BEFORE THE VESSEL

ENCOUNTERED ANT OF THE PERILS INSURED AGAINST.

This subject can be briefly disposed of because it

involves evidence and principles of law already referred

to in our discussion of the question of damages applying

to the loose creosote.

The only evidence in the case showing the number

of drums discharged from the ship, prior to the fire,

is found in the extended protest. This shows that

the vessel commenced discharging on November 17th,

on which day 136 drums were unloaded (Record, 17).

On November 18th, up to 5 P. M., when the day's work

was finished, 291 further drums were discharged (Id.).

As the fire occurred somewhere around 9 o'clock that

night, it is evident that, before the fire, there had

been discharged 427 drums. As appellee offers abso-

lutely no ])roof as to how many of these drums, which

were thus discharged before the fire, were damaged,
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the court will be compelled to hold that they all were,

and that, therefore, there can be no recovery for

them, even though it be held that the fire opened

the F. P. A. warranty. Furthermore, in the average

statement (Record, 16), we find that the protest under

date of September 4th says: ''the drums were found

to be adrift and were rolling about in all directions".

Of course, these drums, in order to be seen adrift,

could only be in the top tiers, and it is a reasonable

presumption that these top tiers were discharged first.

Assuming for the present discussion that there

741 damaged drums in all, the failure of appellee,

just stated, leaves a possible 314 drums on the vessel

at the time of the fire. As to these, we submit there

can be no recovery because of the additional failure

of proof, which would show the number of these dam-

aged by perils insured against, as distinguished from

the number, which the evidence shows, were inherently

defective when shipped, and leaked before the ship

encountered any of the perils insured against. As to

the contention of appellee that the total nmnher of

defective drums was 741, we simply call the court's

attention to the evidence of the witness, Wylie, that

he tallied the damaged drums as they came from

the vessel, and, although he is unable at this time

to give the exact number, still, he is certain, they

did not equal 741 (Inter. 30 and 31; Record, 147, 148).

This inability of appellant to do more than secure this

general denial of appellee's claim, as to the number of

drums which were damaged, is but one of many examples

of the disadvantage to which the appellant is sub-
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jec'ted througli the long delay of appellee iu bringing its

suit.

It will be noted that the further. claim is made, that

"four additional f/r«//«,s filled with creosote were aiso

found to he lost" (Libel, Record, 5), these being exciii-

sive of the four drums lost from the lighter, and that

the average statement includes these four drums in the

claimed total liability of appellant (Record, 24). As to

these four drums, there can certainly be no recovery

for the reason that the record contains no proof of

their loss through any of the perils insured against. In

fact, as to them, the proof is ominously silent.

Before closing we cannot let pass unchallenged the

allegation of the libel, that ''a general average adjust-

ment was nmde, of which the respondents had notice"

(Libel, par. 5; Record, 6). lUiere is absolutely no

proof in the case to show that appellant had notice

of the average adjustment. The adjustment is, how-

ever, obviously not evidence against the appellant as

to the amount of damages, and we believe that we have

shown that it was based on erroneous data.

In conclusion we submit that appellee has not shown

that the **Sardhana" was on fire, and hence has not

brought itself within the F. P. A, clause of the policy.

If our contention as to this be not sustained, we think

it clear that no damages have been proved, except as

to the drums lost on the lighter and the salvage

charges, which last losses are not recoverable, both

because of appellee's negligence and the unseaworthiness

of the lighter. AVe also submit that this belated suit
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should not find favor with the court. Brought long

after the fire in question occurred, appellant has been

forced to an expense in defending the same which

will equal, if not exceed, the amount involved. This

is plain from the record. It would have been easier

for appellant to have paid this loss, but we believe that,

if the record does not show that the suit was an

afterthought, it clearly shows that appellee has grossly

exaggerated its damages, and appellant could not have

paid the claim without stultifying itself and inviting

similar impositions in the future.

We submit that the judgment of the lower court

should be reversed with costs.

Dated, San Francisco,

October 7, 1914.

Respectfully submitted,

E. B. McClanahan,

S. H. Derby,

Proctors for Appellant.
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STATEMENT.

This cause was a suit in personam brought by

the Pacific Creosoting Company against the Thames

& Mersey Marine Insurance Company, Limited, to

recover upon a policy of marine insurance covering



a shipment of creosote in iron drums from London,

England, to Eagle Harbor, Washington, on board

the British bark Sardhana. The shipment consisted

of 2,753 iron drnms containing 251,134 imperial gal-

lons of creosote, and was loaded aboard the bark

Sardhana in the month of May, 1908, at London,

England, the loading of the same having been com-

pleted on or about May 29, 1908, and the said bark

having sailed on her voyage to Eagle Harbor on or

about May 30, 1908. On or about the 2nd day of

June, 1908, the Pacific Creosoting Company, ap-

pellee herein, being the owner of the said cargo,

effected insurance with the Thames & Mersey

Marine Insurance Company, appellant herein, to

the extent of £931 upon the said cargo of creosote in

drums, including packages and advanced freight,

the total of which was valued at £7,450, and the said

appellee on the same day paid to the appellant the

sum of £44-18-10 as premium on said insurance,

which amount was accepted by appellant and its

policy issued and delivered to the appellee, which

policy is a part of the record in this case, marked

Libelant's Exhibit ''A." Said bark completed her

voyage and arrived at Eagle Harbor on the 9th

day of November, 1908, and on the 17th day of

November, 1908, commenced to discharge her cargo

into lighters which were brought alongside the ship.



Oil tlic ISth day of NovcMiibcr, 1908, while said

liaik was lyini!; at Ka^lc IfarlM)!- discliari^in^ her

cargo into liu^litcrs, a lire l)roko out in tlic after

twcen decks of tlie sliij), wliicli with the assistance

of the crews of tlie ship "Jupiter" and the ship

*'Hornelen," and with the assistance of the em-

ployees of tlie Pacific Creosoting Company, was

finally extinguished.

During the course of the discharging of said

hark, and on the night of November 25th, a barge

which was moored alongside and upon which 272

drums of creosote had been loaded, capsized, and

the contents of the barge ^vere thrown into the bay.

Subsequently 268 of the said drums were salved

by a diver, and four of the said drums, together

with their contents, were entirely lost. At the time

said bark commenced to unload her said cargo and

during the time of the discharging thereof, Mr.

Frank Walker, a marine surveyor, surveyed the said

cargo, and found that of the entire original ship-

ment of 2,753 drums, 2,012 drums were delivered

full and in good order and that 716 of said drums

were delivered in damaged condition and partially

empty, and that twenty-five of said drums were

delivered in a damaged condition and entirely

empty. Subsequently Mr. Walker, with the assist-



ance of the employees of the Pacific Creosoting

Company, emptied the contents of the said damaged

drums into the creosote tanli of the appellee com-

pany, and found that of their original contents,

said dam^aged drums containing 80,917 and 2/10

gallons when shipped, only 23,650 gallons were con-

tained in the said drums when delivered to the ap-

pellee company at Eagle Harbor and measured, leav-

ing a shortage of 56,267 and 2/10 gallons upon

delivery.

This suit is brought to recover from appellant

insurance company its proportion of the value of

the 741 drums which were delivered in a damaged

and worthless condition, and of the 56,267 and 2/10

gallons of creosote which were short upon delivery,

and for its proportion of the "sue and labor" ex-

penses incurred by the Pacific Creosoting Company

in salving the contents of the lighter which was

capsized on November 21. The amount claimed by

the insured being that apportioned against the ap-

pellant company in a particular average adjustment

which was made by Messrs. Johnson & Higgins,

average adjusters, and dated May 18, 1909, copy of

which adjustment appears on pages 23, 24 and 25

of the record, the said adjustment being in evidence

in this cause as Exhibit "B." Upon appellant's

refusal to pay its pro rata share of the loss, damage



and oxponscs inenricd l)y tlu^appcllco, this suit was

lU'OUjJjllt.

It is alk\u:cd in tlio li])(^l tliat the said bark

"Sardliana," with the said car^jjo of creosote and

drums aboard, in tho course of lier voyage en-

countered gales and heavy seas, causing her to roll

and la])or heavily and to such an extent that the

cargo worked and became adrift, and many of the

drums containing creosote were damaged, and that

a large quantity of the said creosote escaped into

the hold of the said ship, and was subsequently lost,

and that upon her arrival at Eagle Harbor the cargo

was in a badly damaged condition, caused by the

perils of the sea encountered on her voyage. It is

then alleged that on November 18, while lying in

said port of Eagle Harbor and before discharging

said cargo, a fire broke out in the after tween decks

of said ship, and burned the bulkhead forward

of the lazarette, the door thereof and a considerable

portion of dunnage and other parts of said ship;

that outside assistance was procured and after con-

siderable difficulty the fire was extinguished. It was

further alleged that libelant (appellee) by reason

of the said damage to and loss of cargo and ''sue

and labor" expenses incurred had been damaged in

the total amount of $9,570, of which amount re-



spondent (appellant) was liable, under its policy, to

the extent of $1,197.20. It is further alleged that

said damage to and loss of cargo was caused entirely

by tempestuous weather, and was not in any wise

attributable to any unseaworthiness of the vessel,

and that the damage to and loss of said cargo and

the expenses incurred by said libelant in salving

same were such as were contemplated in and insured

by the policy issued by the respondent (appellant)

company.

In its answer appellant herein admitted the

execution of the policy, the payment of the premi-

ums, etc., denied any knowledge as to the conditions

of the weather encountered on said voyage, the alle-

gations as to the fire on November 18, the allegation

as to the capsizing of the lighter on November 21,

and subsequent salvage expenses incurred, and gen-

erally denied any knowledge as to the extent of the

loss sustained by the appellee herein. Appellant

specifically denied that the said loss and damage

and expenses incurred by appellee were such as were

contemplated in and insured by its policy, and de-

nied that it is liable to appellee for any sum what-

ever.

Appellant affirmatively alleged that by the

terms of its policy of insurance, the cargo was war-

ranted free from particular average subject to cer-



tain exceptions, and tlint ap])elle(''s loss, if any, was

a particular loss and not within tlic exceptions.

Appellant further affirmatively alleged that said

policy was issued in the city of London, Kinjijdoni

of Great Britain, and is to be governed by the laws

of that kingdom, and that said bark Sardhana w\as

not on November 8, 1908, or at any other time "on

fire'* within the terms of the policy as construed

under the English law.

Upon the issues as thus presented, and the testi-

mony taken in support thereof, the low^er court

found in favor of the libelant, appellee herein, and

a decree was accordingly entered in favor of the

libelant, appellee herein, against the respondent,

appellant herein, for the full amount of damages as

claimed and alleged in the libel herein. From this

decree the appellant has appealed, and has filed

eighteen separate assignments of error. These va-

rious assignments of error, for the purpose of argu-

ment, may be grouped as follows:

1. Construction of the F. P. A. warranty in

the marine insurance policy sued on herein (Assign-

ments of Error 1-4).

2. Was the Sardhana ''on fire" within the con-

struction of the F. P. A. warranty (Assignments of

Error 5, 6,7).
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3. Sue and labor expenses (Assignments of Er-

ror 8, 9).

4. Extent and cause of loss and damage (which

covers the balance of the assignments of Error).

Before commencing our argument we wish to

state that we are at a disadvantage in writing this

brief, for the reason that appellant's brief in this

court has not yet been served upon us, and will not

be served in time to allow us to make a logical argu-

ment in answer to appellant's contentions. For that

reason we are compelled to make an independent

argument based upon the various assignments of

error which have been filed herein by appellant.

ARGUMENT.

I.

Construction of F. P. A. Warranty In Marine

Insurance Policy Sued On Herein.

The question to be argued under this heading

was first raised by respondent in the court below

(appellant herein) by its exceptions to the libel,

which exceptions were argued before Judge Han-

ford, and his decision thereon is found in volume

184 of the Federal Reporter, page 947. After re-

viewing the cases, Judge Hanford held:
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"The words Sm lire' nro not .syiioiiyirioiis

with the word 'hunit', and tlic change of

phraseology manifestly was not made withont

a pur})ose. Having no ])rer'edent to follow, this

ease must be decided according to reason and
good sense. The words *ou fire' in connection

with a ship do not conipreliend necessarily every

lire that may be on board of the ship, nor do

the}' have the same meaning as * consumed by
fire,' or 'destroyed by Ijurning.' They are in-

dicative of a ha])pening wliereby the ship is

endangered by actual fire Imrning some part

of it and necessitating extraordinary efforts

to prevent serious damage. A bulkhead l)etween

decks is ])art of the ship, as an inner partition

wall is part of a house. A fire in that part of

a shi]) would justify an alarm and if not

promptly su])dued would certaiiily be desti'uct-

ive, and such a happening would be truthfully

described bv saving the ship was *on fire.'
"

(Record, p. 322.)

The construction of this warranty was again

raised upon the final hearing in this case, and argued

before Judge Neterer, District Judge. His opinion

is found in 210 Fed. Eep., p. 958. Judge Neterer

on this point stated (p. 959) :

"It is strenuously nrged that the fire was
not sufficient to delete the 'F. P. A.' warranty
and reliance is placed on the Gleiilivct, Prob.,

p. 48, decided in 1893, and cited by the Supreme
Court of the United States in London Insuraucc
vs. Companhia, etc., 1()7 U. S. 149, 156; 17 Sup.
Ct., 785, 42 L. Ed. 113."

"In the form of the policy previous to the

GloiUvct case, the word 'l)urned' v.-as used in
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the 'F. P. A.' clause. After this case was de-

cided the words 'on fire' were substituted for

the word 'burned.' No case has been suggested
where the words 'on fire' have ever been before

the courts in the same relation in any other

case. The change of the words must have been
made for a purpose. These words, as stated by
Judge Hanford in passing upon the exceptions'

to the libel in this case in (D. C.) 184 Fed. 949,

are not synonjanous. The policy sued on, in the

body thereof in relation to 'corn,' etc., uses the

term 'sunk or burned,' and in the margin, with
relation to the cargo, especially provides sunk
or 'on fire,' clearly evidencing a purpose in the

minds of the parties to distinguish from the

former term and construction. The testimony
of Mr. Beckett, an average adjuster of London,
England, shows that 'under clauses * * *

containing the words 'on fire' it is the practice

of the adjusters in England to consider the war-
ranty open if some structural part of the vessel

has been actually on fire.' It is clear that 'on
fire' used in the policy was not to be considered
as was 'burnt' in the Glenlivet case. The war-
ranty is drawn in the nature of an exception to

the liabilit}^ of the insurer and is strictly con-

strued against him." Citing this court's deci-

sion in the case of Canton Insurance Office vs.

Woodside, 90 Fed., p. 301, opinion by Judge
Morrow. Judge Neterer in conclusion stated:

"The fire as shown by the evidence, was on
some structural part of the ship and endangered
the ship by actually burning some part of it,

and this was sufficient to open the warranty
clause." (Record, pp. 327-8-9.)

We thus have the decision of two district judges

construing this F. P. A. warranty, which decisions
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while not, oi' course, in any way conclusive upon

this court, arc entitled to great weight.

The F. P. A. warranty, so far as material upon

this phase of the case, is as follows:

WaiTaiited free from partieular aveiage
unless the vessel or craft or the interest insured

be stranded, sunk or on lire."

As stated by Judge Neterer in his decision in

tlie coui-t below, the body of the policy provides,

that it is agreed that the corn, etc., "are warranted

free from average unless general, or the slii]) be

stranded, sunk or burnt." There is no contention,

however, but that the F. P. A. warranty first above

quoted, which is attached to the policy in the form

of a rider, overrides and controls the provisions

in the body of the policy. In the absence of this

rider containing the F. P. A. warranty, this policy

of insurance, so far as this particular cargo of creo-

sote in drums is concei'ned is a particular average

policy, and covers both total or any partial loss of

cargo. This F. P. A. warranty, however, which

controls and overrides the other terms of the polic)%

changes the protection of the policy, so that instead

of covering partial losses to cargo, it onl}' covers

total loss of cargo, unless one of the excepted events

enumerated in the F. P. A. warranty should happen.
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Upon the happening of this excepted event the policy

is to be construed as though the F. P. A. warranty

had never attached, and the insured is entitled to

recover for any partial loss sustained.

London Assurance Co. vs. Companhia, etc.,

167 U. S. 149 and cases cited.

Unless, therefore, the Sardhana was "on fire"

within the meaning of this P. P. A. warranty, the

appellee is not entitled to recover under this policy,

as the loss sustained by it was only a partial loss.

A contract of insurance is a contract of indem-

nity, and the effect of a warranty such as the P. P.

A. warranty in this case, is to restrict the liability

of the insurer, or, as stated by Judge Hanford in

the opinion above quoted, it is in the nature of an

exception to the liability. This was clearly held by

this court in the case of Canton Insurance Office vs.

Woodside, 90 Fed. 301, where the cases are all cited

and reviewed. The form of the policy is furnished

by the insurance company. It is drawn by its of-

ficers, agents or attorneys, and presumably drawn in

such a manner as to leave no cause for ambiguity,

and of course is drawn primarily for its own pro-

tection and to evidence the intention of the parties

thereto. Under such circumstances it is only fair

and just that the policy or contract should be con-
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strued most strongly jinainst the insurance com-

pany, and in case of doubt any restriction upon its

liability sliould be construed in favor of the insured,

^vho, of course, takes the policy in the form in which

it is drawn and presented to it by the insurance

company.
"If the company by the use of the ex-

pression found in the policy leaves it a matter
of doubt as to the true construction to be given

the languac^e, the court should lean against the

construction which would limit the liability of

the company."

Loudon Insurance Co. vs. CompanJiia, 167

U. S. 149.

The Supreme Court, in the case above cited,

quoted with approval from the case of First Na-

tional Bank vs. Insurance Co., 95 U. S. 673, as fol-

lows:

"The company cannot justly complain of

such a rule. Its attorne3's, officers or agents
prepared the policy, for the purpose, we shall

assume, both of protecting the company against

fraud and of securing the just rights of the

assured under a valid contract of insurance. It

is its own language which the court is invited to

interpret, and it is both reasonable and just

that its own words should be construed most
strongly against itself."

"In the case at bar the intention of the

parties is not expressed as clearly as it might
be, and hence any doubt that there may be is to

be resolved in favor of the insured and against
the insurer. A policy of insurance is a contract
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of indemnity, and is to be liberally construed in

favor of the insured. Yeaton vs. Fry, 5 Crouch,
335 (3 L. Ed. 117) ; National Bank vs. Insur-

ance Co., 95 U. S. 673, 679 (24 L. Ed. 563) ;

Steel vs. Insurance Co., 2 C. C. A. 463, 51 Fed.

715, 723, and cases there cited; Am. Ins. (6th

Ed). Sec. 295. If the policy will admit of two
constructions, that one should be adopted which
will indemnify the insured."

Canton Ins. Office vs. Woodside, 90 Fed. 301,

p. 305.

In construing the contract of insurance, the

intention of the parties at the time of entering into

the same, the understanding of the parties and the

purpose of the contract as shown by the whole con-

tract will be considered and, if possible, be enforced

by the court in interpreting such contract.

In arriving at the understanding of the parties

and the purposes of this particular clause, it is im-

portant to consider the history of this F. P. A.

warranty, which is stated in Gow Marine Insurance,

3rd ed., pp. 183-187. This clause, as originally

worded, read as follows:

"Warranted free from average, unless gen-
eral, or the ship be stranded."

It was afterwards found necessary to permit the

occurrence of other casualties besides ** stranding"

to open up the exception, and the clause was then

worded "warranted free from average unless gen-
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vval or the ship be stiaiuhd, sunk oi- hiirnt" or some

such siinihir cause. Afterwards the words "in col-

lision" were added, usually f(>ll(>w('d ])y words of

limitation as to the extent of such collision or the

object collided with. The w^irranty was first used

about 1749 in the form as first above stated, and

about the year 1860 the words "sunk or burnt" were

added, and most marine policies issued in Enj^land

containing this F. P. A. clause have used the words

"sunk or burnt" since that date. It was evidently

the original purpose of this clause to limit liability

for partial loss to the damage caused by the particu-

lar exceptions enumerated in the F. P. A. warranty;

but the construction has beeri gradually broadened,

so that at the present time it is established that in

case of the happening of one of the excepted events

the insured is entitled to recover for any partial

loss sustained by him, irrespective of the fact of

whether the loss was caused l)y the excepted peril

or otherwise. London Insurance Co. vs. Companhin,

167 U. S. 149.

The case of the Glenlivct, Prob. p. 164, de-

cided by Judge Barnes in the admiralty division

of the High Court of Justice, in 18911, and affirmed

in 1894, Prob., p. 48, by the Court of Appeals, is

the only reported case in England or in the United
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States, construing the word "burnt" in this clause

which we have been able to find. The fact that this

is the only reported case construing the word

"burnt" seems to us an important point in con-

sidering the proper construction and understanding

of the parties as to the clause in question. As stated

by Mr. Gow, the word "burnt" was added to this

F. P. A. warranty in the year 1860, and from that

time up to the time of the decision in the Glenlivet

case in 1893, a period of thirty-three years during

which the word "burnt" was used in practically all

marine insurance policies, numerous cases must have

arisen in which it was necessary for the under-

writers to decide, in order to adjust such cases,

whether or not the ship was "burnt" within the

meaning of the policy. The fact that no case was

ever taken to the courts for a decision upon this

point would strongly indicate that there was a clear

and general understanding between the insurers and

the insured as to what facts would or would not

constitute a "burnt ship" within the meaning of this

policy. If such an understanding had been vague

and indefinite and the amount of burning necessary

to delete the F. P. A. warranty was more than ap-

pears in the present case but less than the burning

of the whole ship, there could have been no such
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coinniun i^ioniul of iiiidcistaiulinc: and ajT^'Coment

l)('t\v('('ii tlio insured and the insurers as would ])i'e-

\('nt in some cases a contest or dis]nite as to the

amount of burning; necessary to delete the warranty.

Necessarily, there must have l)cen sonic common

c:round of understandincr and agreement or some of

the innmnerable cases which must have been ad-

justed under this F. P. A. warranty would have

I'cached the courts for determination. On the other

hand, if there had been such a common understand-

ing]^ and agreement that any burning of the ship it-

self, that is, tJie structural part of the ship as dis-

tinguished from its cargo, dunnage or other ma-

terials aboard was sufficient, there would have been

no occasion for any dispute as to the liability in any

such case of partial loss, and the fact that there are

no reported cases construing the word *' burnt" ex-

cept the case of the Glenlivet, or any case up to the

present time construing the words "on fire" would

seem to us to clearly show a distinct understanding

between the insurers and the insured that any burn-

ing of the fabric or structure of the ship itself was

conceded to be sufficient in the first instance to satis-

fy the exception of "burnt" prior to the decision in

the Glenlivet case, and certainly to satisfy the excep-

tion of the words "on fire," which were inserted
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immediately after the decision in the Glenlivet case.

Mr. Gow, in his work on Marine Insurance, 3rd ed.,

p. 80, clearly sustains this contention.

"In the case of burning another difficulty

arises. If the property insured is a cargo of

flour, and if this interest takes fire and is burnt
without the ship being damaged by the fire, the

exception has not been taken out of the mem-
orandum, and the underwriter remains free of

claim for partial loss or damage of the flour.

It is the ship that must be burnt, say a beam
scorched, a floor charred, a ceiling burnt. Con-
sequently the destruction of a cabin by fire re-

moves the exception while a fire in the cargo

itself does not. Such was the view acted upon
almost universally until lately, but a recent de-

cision of Mr. Justice Barnes (the Glenlivet^

1893) has raised a new point."

After discussing this decision, Gow further

says:

"The judgment in the Glenlivet case has

excited considerable attention, as it takes away
on principle what was long granted without
question. * * * Since the issue of the de-

cision some slips have had the words 'on fire'

added to ' burnt, ' confessedly in the hope and ex-

pectation of thus restoring to the assured tvhat

has been taken from him hi/ the decision/'

(Italics ours.)

Here we have a direct authority for our con-

tention. Prior to the decision in the Glenlivet case

there had been a common and universal understand-

ing between the insurers and the insured that any
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huriiiiifij of tlic fdhiic or sfn(c/i(rc of the ship itself

wa^ conceded h// flic uiuh rii-rih r, and so iind^'rstood

and (ifjrccd to b// the insured, to he sufficient to

open up (Old delete fin's F. P. A. warrfuif //. This is

also direct authority for the contention wliich we

make and whicli we think will not ]je disputed, that

the words "on fire" were added to the F. P. A.

warranty innnediately after the decision in the Glen-

livet case for the sole purpose and expectation, as

stated ])y Mr. Gow, "of restorin^^ to the assured

what has been taken from him by the decision." In

other words, that the decision in the Glenlivet case

being contrary to common understanding and

agreement of the insured and the insurer as to the

extent of burning necessary to delete this warranty,

the words "on fire" were added so that there would

be no future question but that nuji burning of the

structure or fabric of the ship as distinguished from

the cargo, would delete this warranty, and aUow the

insured to recover for a partial loss; that is, re-

establish the common understanding which had been

in effect for over thirty years prior to this decision.

In the pi'esent case the word "burnt," as stated

above, is found in the body of the policy, which is

the old form, while the rider to the policy contains

the substituted words of "on fire" in place of
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"burnt." It was the contention of the appellant

in the court below, and we suppose will be its con-

tention in this court, that there is no difference

between the meaning of the two words, but as stated

by Judge Neterer, the substitution of the words

"on fire" in the rider clearly evidences the purpose

in the minds of the parties to distinguish between

the words "burnt" and "on fire." It is apparent

to anyone that this change was not made without

some purpose, and we think it clear that that pur-

pose is as stated by Mr. Gow. Certainly, such was

the intention of the parties, and the intention of the

parties in entering into a contract would control

if the contract as a whole can be reasonably con-

strued so as to carry out such intention.

On this point we would particularly direct the

court's attention to the testimony of Mr. A. M.

Becket, a witness produced on behalf of libelant

in the court below. Mr. Becket is an average ad-

juster, and has been engaged in that business since

the year 1897 or for a period of over seventeen

years. Prior to the year 1911 he was connected

with average adjusting firms in Liverpool and Lon-

don, England, and while connected with such firms

he adjusted many cases where an F. P. A. warranty

identical with the one attached to the policy of the
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appellant herein was iiividvcd. On ])agc 229 of the

reeord Mr. Beeket testilied that under an F. 1*. A.

warranty similar to the one in this suit ''it is the

praetice of the adjusters in Enjijland to consider the

warranty open, if some structural part of the vessel

has been actually on fire"; that the opening? of the

-warranty does not depend upon the extent of the

fire hut depends solely on the fact as to w^hether or

not the structure of the ship has been on fire, and

on page 230 Mr. Beckett testified that from his

experience as a practical English adjuster that such

a construction of this w^arranty had never been con-

tested by the English underwriters and further that

from his experience he w^ould consider that the

burning of a door tvhich ivas huilt into the bulkhead

of the ship ivould be a burning of the structure of

the ship sufficient to open up or delete the warranty

in this case.

There is no doubt but that the construction

placed on this clause by the English underwriters,

merchants and adjusters is the construction which

this court should place upon the same, provided the

wording of the clause would sustain such a construc-

tion. We understand this to be appellant's con-

tention. Appellant, however, contends that the

wording of the clause will not bear any such con-
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struction. The testimonj^ of Mr. Beckett as to the

practice of English underwriters, merchants and ad-

justers is uncontradicted. If this testimony had not

been correct it would have been a very simple thing

for the appellant to have secured testimony to con-

tradict the same. In the court below the respondent

(appellant herein) relied solely upon the decision in

the Glenlivet case to sustain its contention that there

was no difference between the words "burnt" and

"on fire." However, we do not think that the Glen^

livet case, when the same is carefully considered,

would sustain any such contention, nor do we think

that this case holds that such a burning as is alleged

and proven in the present case would not make the

ship "on fire" or a "burnt" ship within the mean-

ing of the F. P. A. clause. In the Glenlivet case

no part of the fabric or structure of the ship itself

was "burnt" or "on fire." The only thing "on

fire" was the coal in her bunkers, the slight injury

sustained by the ship herself being merely from the

heat of the fire in her coal bunkers. The ship was

an iron ship and did not or could not burn in any

sense of the word. While the appellate court ap-

proves the lov/er court's conclusion of the facts, the

appellate judges did not lay down any rule as to

what facts would or would not constitute a burnt
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ship, and Justice Smith cxpirssly disapproved tho

ruU' laid down by Justice Barnes that "the sliij)

is burned whenever the injury by fire is sufficient

to cause some interruption of tlie voyage, so tliat

the vessel is pro tempore incapable of being properly

used for the purpose of her voyage. That may be

expressed by the term temporarily innavigable."

"Then I come to the suggestion of my
brother Barnes, which is that it must be a Inirn-

ing, such as to render the sliij) * temporarily in-

navigable.' I do not think tliat this is right,

because, supposing there was such a burning as

only to st()]3 the ship half an hour—suppose the

ship was steered b}^ rudder cords instead of by
chains, su]:)pose the rudder cords were burnt

and the sliip stopped for half an hour, Vv'ould

you call that a burnt ship? I should not, l)ut

that would come within my brother Barnes'

definition of being 'temporarily innavigal)le'

whilst the rudder cords were being adjusted.

I cannot think that this direction is right.

"]\[y own view^ is that you would have to

tell the jury wdiat I have already said about

partial burning, and you w^ould have to tell

them that a partial burning may, imder some
circumstances, constitute a l)urnt ship, and may
not under other circumstances, and having given

that direction you would have to ask them, has

the fire been such as to luing the ship to such a
condition that you can consider her a burnt ship

within the meaning of the English language."

Justice "Oavey approved Justice Smith's opin-

ion, as follow^s:
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"I also agree that Gorrell Barnes, J.'s defi-

nition is open to criticism, but I think it is

really a question to be answered by the jury,

has the ship in the circumstances of this case

been burnt."

We say, therefore, that the decision in the Glen-

livet case was based entirely upon the particular

facts of that case and is not an authority against

our position in the present case.

The following statement by Judge Lindley on

appeal, would seem to indicate the basis of the ap-

pellate court's decision:

''Although it is extremely difficult to draw
the line, yet in ninety-nine times out of a hun-
dred you can see on which side of the line a case

falls. If you ask anybody to draw the line

between light and shade when they fade off from
one to the other, he cannot do it, but one can
often see plainly enough whether an object is

in light or shade, and many cases may be prac-

tically dealt with in that way.

"I do not pretend to draw the line, but I
can see as plainly as any juryman, or as any
ordinary man can see, that this ship has not been
burnt. That appears to me the true construc-

tion of this policy.
'

'

Judge Lindley could see that the facts in that

case made it fall on one side of this indefinite line

between "light and shade." And we think that the

facts in the present case just as clearly make this
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<'Ms<' fVill oil tlic other side uiidor the clear and well

understood ineaniii<^ of the words used. We also

think that it was tlie cIc-av intention of the parties

in this case by adding the rider with the words "on

fire," to remove any doubt as to where the line

should be drawn.

Construiujjj the case of Glenlivct, Arnould (Sec-

tion 891 on Marine Iiisurance, 7th ed.) says:

"In the Glenlivet, a fire broke out on board
the ship in one of the coal bunkers, severe

enouj^h to do some damage to the ])lating before

it was extinguished. The shipowner contended
that any tire doing any structural damage was
sufficient to constitute a burning of the ship.

The Court of Appeals, however, while agreeing
that a pai'tial burning might be sufficient, held

that the question as to whether, under all the

circumstances of the particular case, the vessel

was, within the ordinary meaning of the

English language, a 'burnt' ship, was one of

fact and that in this particular cane the vessel

had not been burned." (Italics ours.)

In London Insurance Co. vs. Companliia, 167 U.

S. 156, the court, in construing the words "in col-

lision" in a similar clause, states:

"It is impossible, as we think, to give a

certain and definite definition to the woi'ds 'in

collision' or to so limit their meaning as to

plainly describe in advance that which shall and
that which shall not amount to a collision within
the meaning of the policy. The difficulty of
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limitation or description is mucli the same as

that pertaining to another expression in the

same memorandum in regard to when a vessel

is burnt. It is, however, obvious that a vessel

would be said to have been in collision when
the effect upon the vessel or the evidence of

such a collision might be very much less than
would be necessary to exist in a case of a fire,

before one would describe a vessel as a burnt
vessel."

The court considered the case of the Glenlivet,

and after quoting extracts from the decision of

Justice Smith in the appellate court, quote the fol-

lowing extracts from Justice Davey's decision:

''Counsel for the plaintiff says that the

clause applies if a fire breaks out in any part
of a ship although it has gone under before any
great amount of damage is done to the ship.

I cannot bring myself to think that any person
would, either in the active use of language or in

ordinary parlance, say that in such a case as

that the ship has been burnt."

The learned judge also said:

"I think that it is really a question to be
answered by a jury, has the ship in the circum-
stances of this case been burnt."

The Supreme Court then places the following

interpretation upon the decision in the Glenlivet

case:
'

' The English court took the view that as to

a burnt vessel it must be such a burning as

would constitute the vessel a burnt vessel within
the ordinary meaning of the English language.
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The laii^ii.M<;o is used in rci^ard to the vessel as

a whole, 'the e()in])aii>' is to he free from average
unless the slii]) he hiiriit.' Tliat hiiij2jiiage would
seem to indicate some essential Ijurninuf of the

vessel itself and not such a case as, put hy one
of the judges, of the huvning of the cahin cur-

tains. The case is referred to for the ])urpose

of showing that the Englisli court held the ex-

pression was defined according to tlie ordinary
meaning of the English language. This leaves

each case to be decided according to its own
peculiar facts * * *

"And wc agree with those judges that the

words contained in the memorandum are in-

tended to be used as Davey, Lord Justice, said,

in accordance with the 'ordinary use of lan-

guage,' or, as said by Lord Justice Smith,
'within the ordinary meaning of the English
language.' "

In the case of the London Insurance Company

vs. Companhia, above cited, the court held, follow-

ing the interpretation which it placed upon the

Glenlivct case, that the vessel had been in collision,

although the vessel at the time was at anchoi* and

was struck a slight blow, not damaging her to ex-

ceed $250.

Under the criterion as laid down by tlie Su-

preme Court of the United States in the above case,

we think there can be no doulit but that the Sar-

danha was "on fire" within the meaning of the

English language. The word "fire" as defined in
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Webster 's Dictionary, is " a state of ignition or com-

bustion," and the words ''on fire" are defined as

"burning." Bouvier defines the words "on fire"

as the "effect of combustion" (p. 663). There can

be no doubt but that the bulkhead of the Sardanha

was "on fire," nor can there be any doubt but that

this was "in a state of ignition or combustion."

But if there remain any question as to whether

or not the Sardanha was "on fire," we think that an

opinion given by Mr. Walton, who was the solicitor

for the underwriters in the Glenlivet case, and by

Justice Barnes, who decided the Glenlivet case in

the lower court, given before he went on the bench

would finally dispel any such doubt. This opinion is

found in a note on page 51 of Owen's Marine Insur-

ance, Notes and Clauses, 3rd ed., referring to the

word "burnt" in the F. P. A. clause. This opinion

was given in 1886 prior to the decision in the Glen-

livet case and, of course, prior to the substitution of

the words '

' on fire
'

' for the word '

' burnt '

'. The note

reads as follows:

"The following was communicated by the

Institute of London Underwriters to the mem-
bers, December, 1886:

" 'Unless the ship be stranded, sunk or
burnt.' Efforts have recently been made to

show that the burning of ship's stores (such as
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polie}' on ship.

"The conii)any ha\in^- been J'avored witli a

e<»))y of the opinion of Mr. Walton, which is

snpi)()i'te(l by Mr. J. G. Barnes, have pleasure

in j;ivinj2j it publieitv:

"In reply to your incjuiry, the warranty
elearly is not deleted by the fire in the bunker
voi\\ which yon describe.

*'If the expression had been 'on fire' in-

stead of 'burnt,' there might have been sonic

doubt, but even in that case we should have said

that unless part of the fabric of the ship was on
fire, in the sense of itself supporting combustion
as distinguished from being scorched by the

heat from some other burning material, the war-
ranty would not be deleted."

Here we find the solicitor representing the un-

derwriters in the Glenlivet case, and the judge

deciding that case in favor of the underwriters,

advising the underwriters seven years before that

if the expression "on fire" instead of "burnt" had

been used there might have been some dou])t, if

even a fire in a bunker coal did not delete the war-

ranty, but that if a part of "the fabric of the ship

was on fire, in the sense of itself supporting com-

bustion as distinguished from being scorched by

the heat from some other burning material," then

the ship would be "burnt" or in anj^ event "on fire."
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We do not think that appellant will claim that

the bulkhead, or door built into the bulkhead, are

not parts of the fabric or structure of the ship. Nor

do we think it will claim that the structure of the

ship as distinguished from its cargo and dunnage,

supported combustion. The door of this bulkhead,

is in evidence in this case as an exhibit at-

tached the deposition of G. H. Wylie (Record, p.

159) and has been sent to this court as an original

exhibit for inspection. (Exhibit G. H. W. No. 2.)

An examination of this door will show conclusively

that it not only supported combustion but that it

was very badly burnt. This opinion of the solicitor

for the underwriters, in the Glenlivet case, com-

pletely negatives appellant 's contention that the ship

would have to be on fire as a whole in order to delete

this warranty, and it also negatives its contention

that the words ''on fire" are to be given no different

interpretation from the word ''burnt." This opinion

also clearly shows that the words "on fire" were

substituted for the word "burnt" after the decision

in the Glenlivet case, to restore to the insured what

might be construed as having been taken from him

by that decision, and that this was done upon the

opinion of the underwriters' legal advisers, so that

the previous understanding and agreement between



33

the insurers and insured i){' tlic hurninj^ of tlic fabric

of tho slii]) would o])('n u]) this warranty, would be

re-established by substituting the woi-ds "on tiic."

\Vv think it perfectly clear, both from the decision

and from the established ])ractice and understand-

lufr of the English underwriters, merchants and ad-

justei"S, that the words "on fire" as contained in

tlie F. P. A. warranty, are satisfied and this war-

I'anty deleted whenever any ]->ortion of the fa))ric

or structure of the ship as distinguished from its

cargo and dunnage is actually on fire or supports

combustion, no matter how trivial tlie damage sus-

tained by the ship.

II.

Was the Sardhana "On Fire" Within the Cox-

structiox of the "f. p. a." warranty.

If the Sardhana was "on fire" within the

court's construction of the F. P. A. warranty, then

appellee is entitled to recover its entire damage.

The question here is solely a question of fact. Judge

Hanford held, in deciding the appellant's (respond-

ents below) exceptions to the libel, that the words

"on fire" as used in the F. P. A. warranty "are in-

dicative of a happening whereby the ship is endan-

gered by actual fire burning some part of it and
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necessitating extraordinary efforts to prevent seri-

ous damage. A bulkhead between decks is a part

of a ship, as an inner partition wall is part of a

house. A fire in that part of a ship would justify

an alarm and if not promptly subdued would cer-

tainly be destructive and such a happening would

be truthfully described by saying that the ship was

'on fire.'
"

(Pacific Creosoting Co. vs. Thames <& Mersey,
etc., 184 Fed. 947-949.) (Record, p. 322.)

Judge Neterer in the court below followed the

practice of the English underwriters and average

adjusters as testified to by Mr. Beckett, in constru-

ing this clause.

"The testimony of Mr. Beckett, an aver-

age adjuster of London, England, shows that

'under clauses * * * containing the words
'on fire,' it is the practice of the adjusters in

England to consider the warranty open if some
structural part of the vessel has been actually

on fire.' * * * The fire as shown by the

evidence, was on some structural part of the

ship, and endangered the ship by actually burn-
ing some part of it, and this was sufficient to

open the warranty clause."

(Pacific Creosoting Co. vs. Thames & Mersey,
etc., 210 Fed., p. 960.) (Record, p. 328.)

In other words, both Judge Hanford and Judge

Neterer squarely decided that the criterion as to

whether or not the ship was "on fire" within the
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moaning of tliis F. 1*. A. wai TMiitx' was whcthci* or

not the lire was on some structural i)art of the

ship—as clistiu^uislied from her car^o, etc.—and

ondanu^en'd the ship by actually burning some of its

structural parts. The consequent damage is not

material. We submit that this construction is not

contrary to the decision in tlie Glcnlivet case—in

fact tliat it is in accordance with that decision in

that it gives these words "on fire" a reasonable con-

struction within the ''ordinary meaning of the

I{lnglish language," and that it is strictly in accord-

ance with the decision of the Supreme Court of the

United States in London Assurance vs. CowpanJiia,

167 U. S. at p. 158.

Following this construction of the F. P. A.

warranty there can be no dispute in this case but

that the Sardhana was "on fire" on November

18th, 1908. Appellant does not deny that the lazar-

ette door which was built into and a part of the

bulkhead w^as actually "on fire" and very badly

burned. Having brought this door in as a part of

the de])osition of its witness George PT. Wylie (Ex-

hibit G. H. W. No. 2) and the door ])eing Ix-forc

this court as an original ('xhil)it, appellant is hardly

in a position to deny that it was "on fiie." It is

quite evident, however, after reading tlie de]:>ositions
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of appellant's witnesses, Alexander Wallace and

George H. Wylie, that when appellant had this door

introduced as an exhibit in connection with Wylie *s

testimony, that appellant had never seen the door,

but had relied upon the statements of these wit-

nesses to the effect that the door was not hurned,

but was merely scorched. An examination of the

door will show that this is not true. Appellant, hav-

ing been placed in this uncomfortable position by

its reliance upon the statements of these witnesses,

and having found from an examination of this

door that it was badly burned, sought to prove that

the fire damage was confined entirely to this door.

Even if this were true, appellant could not escape

liability, as this door was built into and a part of the

bulkhead and was undoubtedly a structural part of

the ship. (Beckett, Record, p. 230.) But the over-

whelming weight of the testimony shows that not

only this door but that a considerable portion of the

bulkhead was burned, as well as a large amount of

dunnage and ship's stores which were stowed im-

mediately in front of this bulkhead.

The extended protest, a certified copy of which

is a part of the record in this case as Libelant's

Exhibit "L," contains the following statement with

reference to this fire

:
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**N()VCTiil)or ISth * * * About Ui'M) W
M. smoke was discovered issuing from the liatdi

l)y one of the crew, who innuediately notified

the master and then c^ave the alarm. Tliis ahirm
was res])onde(l to l)y the crews of the shi])

Mu])iter' and the S. S. 'Hornelen,' and the em-
ployees of the Pacific Creosoting Company, who
l)i-ou<2:ht with them several chemical fire ex-

tiuj»uishers. The master went below throuj^h

the lazarette, and saw the reflection of the fire

over the top of the bulkhead between the after

tween decks and the lazarette. The after tween
decks were still full of cargo. After consider-

able trouble the fire was extinguished, and it

was then discovered that the aforesaid l)ulkhead,

together with the door thereof (the bulkhead

was built in the vessel), and the dunnage in the

after tween decks were burned and some of the

ship's stores in the lazarette were damaged by
water and chemicals.

"The origin of the fire was not discovered."

(Quoted in Pacific Crrosofing Co. vs.

Thnnics cO Mcrficij, etc., 184 Fed. 947.) (Record,

p. 321.)

This protest, the statements of fact contained

in which it is admitted (Record, p. 120, pp. 149-150)

were copied from the ship's log (apparently having

been entered on the day of the fire), was signed and

sworn to before a notary public on the 2Rth day of

December, 1908, by the captain, first mate and three

sailors from the bark Sardhana. In view of the

statements in the depositions of the master and first

mate, we wish particularly to call the court's at-



38

tention to the fact that this entry was made in the

ship's log by the officers of the ship as a part of

their records immediately after the fire, and that

the protest was signed and sworn to by them before

a notary public a little over a month after the fire

occurred. While the ship's log is sometimes kept

and the entries therein made by the first mate, still

it is the master's duty to see that such entries are

correct. He is required by law to sign the log, and

the responsibility for any mistakes therein falls

upon him. The ship Sardhana is a British ship,

and the master is governed by the British laws and

regulations as to keeping his log. The British Mer-

chants' Shipping Act, 1894, 57 and 58 Vict. c. 60,

provides

:

"239— (1) An official log shall be kept in

every ship (except ships employed exclusively

in trading between ports on the coasts of Scot-

land) in the appropriate form for that ship,

approved by the Board of Trade.

(4) An entry required by this Act in an
official log book shall be made as soon as possi-

ble after the occurrence to which it relates, and
if not made on the same day as that occurrence
shall be made and dated so as to show the date
of occurrence and of the entry respecting it ;

* *

(5) Every entry in the official log book
shall be signed by the master, and by the mate,
or some other of the crew, * * *

(6) Every entry made in an official log
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book in mannov i^i'ovidcd l»y this Act shall he

admissihlc in evidence.

"LUl

—

{:]) If any ])eis(>n wiH'uily destroys

or nuitilates or renders illei-ihle any entry in an
official log book, or wilfidly makes or procnres

to he made or assists in makinc: a false or fi'and-

nlent entry in or omission from an official lo.i^

book, he. shall in respect of each offence he

guilty of a misdcMneanor."

Mdclachlau's Lrur of Merchant Shipjyinq, nth

¥A. p. 852.

This log book is the propertj^ of the ship, the

record of the events of its voyage. It is kept by or

under the direction of the master, in accordance

with the provisions of the Act above quoted. For

false entries therein, the master or the person mak-

ing the same is subject to punishment as for mis-

demeanor. Libelant in this case had nothing what-

ever to do with the entries made in this log book.

Is it unreasonable for libelant to rely upon the

entries made in this log book by the master and the

mate, freely and of their own accord, as a part of

the records of their ship?

In answer to the tenth cross-interrogatory, Cap-

tain Wallace admitted that he testified in another

suit which was pending in January, 1909, less than

two months after the fire, that the entries in this

protest were absolutely true. (Record p. 121.) The
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court will readily see by comparing the testimony

of these witnesses with the entry in the log book,

which was copied into the extended protest, that

same is directly contradictory. These witnesses

either swore falsely, or, to put it mildly, were mis-

taken when they testified in this case two and one-

half to three years after the fire, or else they made

a fraudulent entry in their log book and thus com-

mitted a misdemeanor, and further, swore falsely

before a notary public in signing the protest. To

give the witnesses the benefit of any doubt, is it not

more reasonable to suppose that under the circum-

stances, they made a correct entry in their log book

immedAately after the fire when the matter was fresh

in their minds, and that they were mistaken when

they testified in this case years after the fire? (17

Cifc. 781, and cases cited.) If the court does not

come to this conclusion, then it must conclude that

the testimony of these witnesses is absolutely un-

reliable and of no value whatever.

Appellant (respondent below) contended that

both Wylie and Wallace had fully explained in their

testimony the statements in the protest which were

contradictory to their testimony.

Mr. Wylie stated, in answer to cross-interroga-

tories 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6, that he signed this protest,
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that the protest eontaificd the entry of November

IStli, wliicli was copied i'roni the h)g, and that tlie

entries in the log and the statements in the i)rotest

were true. His explanation, however, comes in

answer to cross-interrogatory 7, where he states:

*'I think I might explain one statement of

that protest. It states there that the Cajitain

saw tlie retiet'tion of the Hanies over the top of

the bulkhead. That is an impossibility. The
bulkhead extended up to the ujjper deck. Where
the Captain saw the reflection of the flames was
through ventilation holes cut into the bulkhead.
That is the only part of the statement with
ichich I can -find fault. The ventilation holes

were a few inches from the top of the ])ulkhcad.

By the word 'burned' in that protest I mean
'scorched' or to a slight extent affected by tire."

That is the only explanation made by Mr.

Wylie, and we submit that it is far from satisfac-

tory. As this bulkhead was approximately 7 feet

high (Record p. 203), it must have been quite an

active fire if the master saw the reflection of the

flames through the ventilation holes at the top of

the bulkhead. This testimony of Mr. Wylie was

taken in London, June 28, 1911.

When it came to taking the testimony of Cap-

tain Wallace on August 26, 1911, we find that re-

spondent goes into the matter of this protest itself,

and asks the Captain to explain the entries therein.
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The Captain approaches his explanation with much

more assurance than the mate, possibly due to the

length of time which he had had to think it over.

The Captain admits the signing of this protest

which contained this entry of November 18th, that

it was copied from the log, and that he swore to the

same as being correct, and in answer to cross-

interrogatory 4, states that he believes the entries

were true, although he did not make them himself.

His explanation in answer to interrogatory No. 19,

is as follows:

"The bulkhead itself was not burned; it

was the door that was burned, or charred
rather; if you are going to distinguish the

door from the bulkhead, I consider that the

door is the bulkhead, or part of the bulkhead;
and if you are going to mention the door and
the bulkhead I would say it was only the door
that was burned. I was not responsible for

the language of the extended protest or the

entries in the mate's log. The fact is that only
the door was scorched and slightly charred, in

part, and I did not see and do not see any use
in distinguishing between door and bulkhead,
as I consider the door a part of the bulkhead."

This certainly bears out our contention that the

door was a part of the bulkhead, and if so, then the

ship was ''on fire" beyond any doubt within the

lower court's construction of this F. P. A. clause.
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The court will sec that the original cntrN' in

the log book was as follows:

*'It was then diseovorod that the aforesaid

huJIxhcdd, t<>(/('(Ji('r irHJt the door thereof, (the

bulkhead was built ill the vessel) * * * was
burned."

Here the distinction between the door and the

other portion of the l)ulkhead is clearly made, and

the Captain's attempted explanation becomes ab-

surd. AVe submit that the alleged explanation of

these witnesses makes their testimony a])solutely

unworthy of any credit or belief.

Appellant contended in the court below tliat

this protest was prepared under the direction of

appellee. We cannot sec that this affects the mat-

ter in any way, as it is admitted that the entries

in the protest were copied from the ship's log, and

there certainly can be no contention that the libelant

had anything to do with the preparation of the

ship's log. The consignee in the case of damage to

cargo has a right to demand a ])rotest from a ship-

master, or members of his crew, in making u]) his

proof of loss.

Ginshurg's L('(jal Duties of Ship))iasfrrs, 2nd
Ed. p'. 141.

'

Appellant knows, and this court knows that

this protest was not prepared for use against ap})el-
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lant in this case, but was prepared as a part of libel-

ant's (appellee's) proof of loss required by appel-

lant and other underwriters at the time of submit-

ting its claim for damage to cargo. This protest

being admittedly a copy of the ship's log, is cer-

tainly admissible as evidence in this case. It is

expressly provided in the Merchants' Shipping Act

of 1894 that the ship's log shall be admissible as

evidence. It would be admissible in rebuttal of the

master's and mate's testimony, if on no other

ground, it being admitted by them that they signed

this protest under oath.

American and English Ency. of Laiv, 2nd
Ed. Vol. 19, p. 1077.

Two days after the fire occurred, Mr. Frank

Walker, a marine surveyor, made a careful examina-

tion of the vessel and of the damage done by the

fire, the written report of which survey is a part

of the record in this case marked "Libelant's Ex-

hibit K". Mr. Walker found upon his examination

that the permanent wooden bulkhead which divides

the after 'tween decks from the lazarette was badly

burned and charred, together with the door to same.

Also that considerable dunnage in the after part of

the 'tween decks close to the said bulkhead was more

or less burned, and that the paint work in the after
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'tween decks and la'/aicttc was dainaji^od by fii'e and

smoke. Also that a (juantity of tlie ship's stores

had been dania.iijed ])y watei* and cheniieals, and that

at the time of liis examination, two days after the

fire, thei'e were siq;ns of considei'able water having

been played into the after 'tween decks.

Mr. Frank AValker made the only survey that

was ever made of this fire damage—he testified that

the fire extended from 20 to 25 feet athwartships,

including the door, and that the burning over the

entire area was approximately the same as the door.

(Record pp. 202-3.)

Fred 1). Beal, superintendent of the Pacific

Creosoting Company at the time of this fire, tes-

tified that a considerable portion of the bulkhead

was Imrned as well as the door (Deposition of F. D.

Beal, Record pp. 66-7.) Roy E. Douglas testified

to the same effect. (Record pp. 187-8.) Also Fred

N. Beal. (Record p. 60.) Respondent's witness

Tuttle testified that the bulkhead was burned the

same as the door. (Record p. 256.) We wish to

call tlie court's attention to the diagram or ex]iil)it

attached to the deposition of Fred D. Beal, and to

his testimony with reference to same (Recoi'd p. 9(5)

showing the point of origin of the fire and aiea

burned. There was in fact, a material fire on said
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bark, doing damage to the extent of $150.00 to

$200.00 to the door and bulkhead of said ship and

so materially weakened the structure thereof that

in the opinion of an experienced marine surveyor

it should have been renewed and repaired. (Record

p. 206.)

There can be no serious dispute but that the

ceiling was at least blistered and smoked, or that

a considerable portion of the dunnage in the after

'tween decks immediately in front of the bulkhead

was burned (Record pp. 272-313) ; deposition of F.

D. Beal. (Record p. 67.) We also wish to call the

court's attention to the fact that this dunnage and

the sacking, etc., immediately in front of the bulk-

head door in the vicinity of the fire were more or

less saturated with creosote, which is inflammable

(Record pp. 194, 206, 80, 135), and that the drums

of creosote were only a very short distance away

from the seat of the fire ; had this fire obtained good

headway there would have been a very serious con-

flagration, probably resulting in the loss of the ship.

(Record pp. 198, 206.) Extraordinary efforts were

necessary and they were used in extinguishing this

fire in order to save the ship. Immediately on dis-

covering the fire, the alarm was sounded, which was

responded to by the crew of the ship "Jupiter" and
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tile iS. 8. "llui'iit'U'ii", and hy tlic employes of tlio

Pacific Creosoting Company. The employes of the

Pacilic Creosotiug Compan}' ohtaincnl ciioniical lire

extinguishers and took same a))()a»cl the hark, aud

they were used in exting\iishing tliis lii-e. (I)e])o-

sition of F. 1). Heal, Kecord ])p. (JIM-f), (iT; l)e})()-

sitiou of M. I. llelman, Kecord p. 51; L)epositi(m

of Fred N. Beal, Record pp. r)9-()0.) (Lilu'lant's

Exhihit "L".)

Up to the time that the fii'o extinguishers ar-

rived, tlie crew and officers of the ])ark, a])out 12

men in all, were engaged in passing buckets of water

down to the 'tween decks to the seat of the fire, about

40 or 50 buckets being used. (Deposition of F. J).

Heal, Record pp. 64-5; Record p. 304.) After the

arrival of the crews of the "Jupiter" and tlie

"Hornellen" and employees of the Pacific Creosot-

iug Company, there were from 20 to 24 men engaged

in extinguishing this fire. (Record pp. 302-3; Depo-

sition of M. I. Helman, Record p. 51 ; Deposition of

F. D. Beal, Record p. 04.)

Despite all of these efforts, it took from 40

minutes to one hour to extinguish the i\]v from the

time that it was first discovered. (Deposition of F.

D. Beal, Record p. (U; Record p. 300, p. 134.)
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There is no dispute in this case but that a fire

alarm was sounded as soon as this fire was dis-

covered by the watchman on the ship. No one

knows how long this fire had been burning before

it was discovered by the watchman (Record p. 300).

The probabilities are that the fire had already gained

considerable headway. The court will keep in mind

the fact that this fire occurred in the after tween

decks of the said ship, and that the first intimation

to anyone that there was a fire was when the tween

decks were full of smoke and it was coming out

of the ventilators (Record p. 300; protest Ex. "L").

Appellee's witnesses testified, as stated above, that

the employees of the Pacific Creosoting Company re-

sponded to the fire alarm, bringing with them a

number of fire extinguishers, or that the crews

of the ship Jupiter and the S. S. Hornelen re-

sponded to the fire alarm, and that in all there were

twenty to twenty-four men on board the said ship

engaged in extinguishing this fire. This is con-

firmed by respondent's own witness Yeaton (Record,

pp. 500-1-2). Appellant claimed in the court below

that although these men responded to the fire alarm,

and that the employees of the Pacific Creosoting

Company brought fire extinguishers with them, still

that they did not assist in putting out the fire; the
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testimony, however, shows (Mnichisively tliat these

men did assist in inittini^ out the fire, and tliat the

lire extinguishers were used for this purpose. (Dep-

osition of F. I). Beal, Record pp 64, p. 87; deposi-

tion of Hehnan, Record p. 51; deposition Fred N.

Beal, Record pp. 59-60; T.il)ehant's E>:hihit "L";

Yeaton, Record pp. 300-1^)02.) We do not see how

there can he any dispute ])ut that the structural part

of the shi]) was ^Sm fire," and that the ship was in

imminent danj^er of heing consumed, and tliat ex-

traordinary efforts were necessary and were made

to extin^iish this fire. In this connection we wish

to again call the court's attention to the testimony

of Mr. A. M. Beckett, at pp. 229-30. Mr. Beckett

testified that he had adjusted many cases containing

F. P. A. warranties such as the one contained in

the policy in this case, and that in adjusting loss

or damage to cargo where the F. P. A. warranty

contained the words "on fire" it has always been

the practice of adjusters in England to consider

the warranty opened if some structural part of the

vessel had been actually on fire, and that the test

as to whether or not the warranty was deleted was

whether the structure of the ship had been on fire,

and that the extent of the fire and the damage caused

thereby were immaterial, and that in his long ex-
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perience such a construction of the F. P. A. war-

ranty containing the words "on fire" had never

been contested by the English marine insurance

underwriters. Mr. Beckett explains the reason for

the substitution of the words "on fire" for the word

"burnt," which was in common use prior to the

first decision in the Glenlivet case, decided in 1893,

reported in 7 Aspinal Cases, p. 342, the reason being

that the assured demanded better protection after

the decision in said case and would not consent to

the use of the word "burnt," and insisted upon the

insertion of the words "on fire." Mr. Beckett also

testified that under the practice of marine adjusters,

which has not been contested to his knowledge by

the English marine underwriters, he would consider

that the burning of the door which was built in the

bulkhead of the vessel would be a burning of the

structural part of the vessel sufficient to open up

the warranty (Record p. 230). This testimony be-

comes important in view of respondent's conten-

tion, which we do not dispute, that the construction

of this policy is to be determined by English law

and practice.

The only evidence introduced by appellant to

contradict the testimony of Mr. Walker, Mr. Beal,

Mr. Douglas and the other witnesses who testified
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on behair of lilu'lniit, is t\w tcstiinoiiy of Cai)tain

liaird, marine snpcnntc'ndont of the owners of llie

Sardliana; Cai)tain Wallace and ^Ir. Wylie, master

and first mate respeetively of the Sardhana; Mr.

Yeaton, an a])prenti('e on the Sardhana, and a Mr.

Preece, a stevedore. Respondent says that Baird,

Wallace and Wylie are disinterested witnesses. Pos-

sibly they are disinterested, ])ut they certainly are

not nnbiased. A possible explanation of their atti-

tude in this case mi2;ht be the fact that there was

considerable unpleasantness between the ship and

the Creosoting Company on account of payment of

freight on damaged and lost cargo. Mr. Stevens,-

manager of the Creosoting Company, testified: "We
protested against payment of freight, but the charter

party was made out and the number of drums being

delivered, that we were to pay on the number of

drums delivered. We were compelled to pay the

freight." X^^cord p. 170.)

Captain Baird was in Seattle at the time of the

fire, and on the day after the fire Captain Wallace

came over to Seattle and reported to him that there

had been a fire on board the ship (Record p. 2G8).

He went over to Eagle Harbor the next day, found

that the fire had taken place at the outside of the

lazarette door, and that the door was scorched and
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the under side of the deck stained (Record p. 268).

He took no notes and made no written report

(Record p. 273) , and testified in this case four years

after the fire occurred entirely from memory. On

pp. 272 and 273 of the record it appears that Cap-

tain Baird had a very confused idea as to the differ-

ence between a burn and a scorch.

Respondent relies strongly upon the testimony

of Captain Wallace and First Mate Wylie of the

Sardhana. The testimony of these witnesses was

taken upon written interrogatories in August and

June, 1911, respectively, which is a very unsatis-

factory manner of securing testimony upon so im-

portant a point, as there is no way of properly

cross examining the witnesses. We have shown,

moreover, that no reliance can be placed on the

testimony of these witnesses.

The other witnesses produced by appellant upon

this point, Yeaton and Preece, testified solely from

memory some four years and four months after the

fire. Mr. Yeaton, on cross examination, testified as

follows

:

"Q. Can you swear at this time that the

bulkhead was not burned to any extent? Can
you swear that at this time?

A. Well, I would not like to swear that

there was no damage done to the bulkhead.
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Q. Would you swear that tlic ccilini^ was
not sniokod and hlistcrcvl ?

A. No, I would not sw(>ar tliat the (-(Mlint;

was not smoked.

Q. Would you swear that it was not Idis-

tered from the flames and heat of the fire?

A. No, I wouldn't swear to that."

(Record, p. 30().)

This witness also testified tliat approximately

t'oity buckets of water were passed below to ])ut out

the fire (Record p. 304). Witnesses Wallace and

Wylie testified that there were only five buckets of

water passed. Witness Yeaton also testified that

there were twenty-four men on board passing water

(Record pp. 302-8), and that the crews of the Jupi-

ter and Hornelen and the employees of the Pacific

Creosoting Company came on board and assisted in

l)utting out the fire (Record pp. 303-4).

]\Ir. Preece testified that the door was charred,

that the deck al)ove was all blackened with smoke,

and that the paintwork was all ])listered (Record

p. 286).

Respondent also introduced another witness,

Tuttle, to prove the extent of the fire, but as the

witness testified that a portion of the bulkhead was

burned, no mention was made of his testimony in

appellant's argument below (Record p. 256).
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Before leaving this subject we wish to call the

court's attention to Mr. Beckett's reference on cross

examination to a fire aboard the steamship Watson,

which was adjusted under this same F. P. A. war-

ranty. The damage to the structure of the Watson

was between $300 and $400—which was deemed suf-

ficient to open this warranty (Eecord p. 240). In

the adjustment of the Mechanicien loss by Mr.

Beckett the damage was also trivial, but was con-

sidered sufficient under the English law and practice

to delete this F. P. A. warranty (Record p. 243).

Certainly under the Glenlivet case the underwriters

would not have considered this vessel ''burnt." This

shows conclusively that the English underwriters

and adjusters themselves place an entirely different

construction upon the words "burnt" and the Avords

"on fire."

We respectfully submit that the testimony of

Mr. Frank Walker, a disinterested witness who

made a careful examination and survey of this fire

damage immediately after the fire, in the regular

course of his business, corroborated as it is by the

testimony of appellee's other witnesses, is entitled

to more weight than the testimony of any of the

witnesses produced by respondent in this case, and

that the testimony herein shows conclusively that
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tho Sardliann was "on fiic" within the iiicanini; <>i'

this F. 1*. A. warranty. That is the sole (lucstion

here. It' the Sardhana was ''on liic," thcji this

warranty is immediately opened, irrespective of

whethei- the damaiie or loss resulted from the fire

or not.

26 Cue. 682.

Lo)ul()n Assurance Conipnnji vs. CfotipfDiliia,

etc., 167 U. S. 149.

It is immaterial whether repairs were made or

whether they were necessary. If the w^arranty has

l)een deleted, libelant is entitled to recover its entire

loss.

III.

Sue axi) liABOR Expenses.

There is no dispute in tliis case as to the fact

that the lighter alouGjside of the Sardhana, loaded

with 272 drums of creosote, capsized on the nisj^ht

of Novem])er 21, 1908, as a result of wliicli all of

said drums were thrown into tlie ])ay. There is

also no disi)ute l)ut that the appellee was diligent

in taking steps to save these drums and the creosote

contained in same, and to tlms minimize the loss.

The parties have heretofore agreed that the "sue

and labor" exi^enses incurred in saving these drums,

as shown in the particular average adjustment, were
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proper expenses, and that the same were paid by the

appellee herein. The only contention wliich appel-

lant makes in connection with the sue and labor

expenses is that the barge which capsized on the

night of November 21 was unseaworthy at the time

the drums were loaded aboard it, and that, there-

fore, its policy of insurance never attached to the

cargo aboard said lighter. In other words, that there

is an implied warranty of seaworthiness as to

lighters used in discharging cargo, and that this

warranty, having been broken, the policy never

attached, and that they are, therefore, not liable for

these sue and labor expenses.

Appellant admitted in the court below that

unless there was an implied warranty of seaworthi-

ness as to this lighter, and unless this warranty was

broken, they cannot escape liability for their pro-

portion of the "sue and labor" expenses.

In our opinion, appellant is liable for its pro-

portion of sue and labor expenses irrespective of its

liability for its proportion of the loss and damage

to the other cargo on the voyage from London to

Eagle Harbor.

Under the F. P. A. clause above quoted, it is

provided that ''each craft or lighter to be deemed
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<'(>V(M-s "all risk of traiisshipiucnt and of craft,

lii^litcrage and/ or any other conveyance from the

vvai'ehouse until on l)oard the vessel and from the

vessel until safely delivered into warehouse." ^\jid

in the body of the policy it is provided : '* Including;

the risk of craft and/or raft to and from the ves-

sel." The barpje or lighter which capsized on tlie

night of November 21st was moored alongside the

SardJiana during the day of November 21st, and

272 dioims containing creosote were loaded onto the

said lighter, tlie loading of the said drums having

been completed about 5 o'clock p. m., at which time

the longshoremen engaged in unloading the ])a]'k

quit for the day. This lighter was left moored

alongside as was customary so that her loading could

be comi^leted on the following day. During the night

an unexpectedly heavy wind sprang up, causing the

barge to capsize, throwing the 272 drums into the

bay. (Survey Report, Libelant's Exhibit "J.")

A survey was called for and, on the 23rd day of

November, 1908, Mr. Frank Walker held a survey

upon said lighter and recommended that bids for

salving and recovering the drums froin the bay ])e

obtained and that the barge be towed to a safe place

and put on the gridiron for examination. This was
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subsequently done and the surveyor found that the

barge was undamaged, was taking no water. Bids

were subsequently called for and a contract let for

the salving of the cargo. Certain expenses were

incurred in connection therewith, amounting in all

to $1,377.95 (Particular Average Adjustment, Libel-

ant's Exhibit ''M"; Libelant's Exhibit "G"; Stipu-

lation, Record pp. 171-2; Libelant's Exhibit *'H"

and Record pp. 172-3), as a result of which 268 of

said drums, together with their contents, of the

approximate value of $3,200, were recovered. Four

of said drums, together with their contents, of the

approximate value of $63, were entirely lost. (Li-

belant's Exhibit ''J.")

Under the clause above stated the insurance

policy of the appellant undoubtedly covered this

cargo which was loaded aboard the lighter, and, if

no steps had been taken and expenses incurred by

the appellee to recover the cargo, the appellant

would have been liable for its proportion of the

entire value of said cargo as a total loss. The clause

that '^each craft or lighter shall be deemed a sep-

arate insurance '

' means that a total loss of the cargo

upon any particular lighter would entitle the assured

to recover in full for said loss, although such cargo
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anioniitcd to (Hily a small pait <»1" the entire shij)-

nirnt.

As was said l)y tliis court in the case of 67. I*(Uil

Fire <('• Marinr lusurnurc Co. rs. Pacific Cold Sfor-

fif/c Co., Vfi Fed. 632:

''It seems to us that under the clause of

the policy that each craft or lii;htcr was deemed
a separate insuranee, the eorreet view would he

that a distinct lial^ility was assimied when tlie

g-oods wei-e reloaded at St. Michaels."

Til the above ease, the goods were removed from

the ocean steamer at St. Michaels to river steamers

and barges for transportation up the Yukon river.

In that ease it was held that each of the river

steamers and barges constituted a separate insurance

so that the assured could recover for a total loss of

any such steamer or barge, irrespective of the fact

that the proportion of the cargo on such steamer

or barge was only a small proportion of tlie entire

shipment covered by the policy.

Any sums paid out or expenses incurred for the

purpose of averting or minimizing a loss, which

if such expenses had not been incuired, would have

fallen u])on the underwriters, are regarded in the

nature of expenses of salvage, and are brought with-

in the meaning of the "sue and labor'' clauses of
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marine policies. The test of a "sue and labor"

expense is that it was incurred to avert a loss, or

probable loss, which the underwriters would have

been compelled to pay.

St. Paul Fire & Marine, etc., vs. Pacific Cold
Storage, supra.

Arnold on Marine Insurance, 7th ed.. Sec.

870.

Appellant's contention that this barge was un-

seaworthy is an affirmative allegation, and appellant

is required to prove it by preponderance of the

evidence.

Nome Beach, etc. vs. Munich Assurance Co.,

126 Fed. 827.

This burden the appellant has not met. On the

other hand, the testimony in this case shows con-

clusively that the lighter was seaworthy at the time

it was put into use.

No one saw the lighter capsize, as this happened

some time during the night. The testimony is un-

contradicted that there was a heavy gale during

this night. Mr. F. D. Beal says that there was a

southeast gale (Record, pp. 69-70). This scow was

examined and sounded for water on the night of

the capsizing, after she had been fully loaded, and

was found to be all right at that time (Record p. 70
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of F. 1). r.cal). 'IMiis liiihtrr was can'rully surveyed

l)v a marine surveyor wliile in tlie water, and aftn--

wards, when it liad been r(>ni()\('d frnin tlu- watci-

and placed on a ji^ridiron (liihelaut's Exhiliit "J.")

She was not leaking at that time and no repairs were

ordered ov made to tli(^ li^i^hter ])efore she was a<?ain

plaeed in conunission (Record ]). ^9?,, ]>. 21 r}). Tn

the face of this testimony, we fail to see how re-

spondent can contend that tlic lii^hter was nnsea-

worthy. These witnesses did not deny tlie heavy

weather on this night; some of tliem admitted it

and the balance of them did not remember whether

the v\Tather was bad or not. Their testimony as to

the unseaw^orthiness of the lighter is all supposition

based upon no facts whatever. Is this testimony

entitled to any weight as against the testimony of a

marine surveyor who carefully examined the lighter

in the ordinary and reguhir course of his business,

for the express purpose of ascertaining whether slu^

was seaworthy or not, and who again placed her in

conunission without ordering any repairs whatever?

It is possible that this lightei- did sink or ca])-

size because of waiter in it, but if tliis is trn(\ tlie

water did not leak in through open seams as con-

tended by appellant, but on account of the unusually

heavy sea, the waves washed ovei* tlie lighter and
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the water went through her hatches into the hold

(deposition of F. D. Beal, Record p. 94).

But even if appellant had met this burden and

had established by a preponderance of the evidence

that this lighter was unseaworthy, still we think that

this defense would not aid them in the present case.

The appellant contended throughout the trial

of this case in the court below that this policy was

to be governed by English law and practice, the

contract of insurance having been made and entered

into in the City of London, Kingdom of Great

Britain, ''and was and is governed by the law of

that kingdom." (Appellant's answer, paragraph

VIII). This contention of appellant's is not dis-

puted by the appellee in this case. Under the Eng-

lish law, the warranty of seaworthiness which is im-

plied at the time of making and entering into a

contract as to a ship does not extend to lighters

which are employed to land cargo from the ship,

where the insurance covers risks of craft from the

vessel until safely landed in the warehouse.

Arnold on Marine Insurance, 7th ed.. Sec. 689.

19 Am. & Eng. Ency. of Latv, 2nd Ed., p.

1002.

Lane vs. Nixon, L. R. 1, C. P. 412.

''Where the insurance is on goods 'until

safely landed' and the mode of landing is by
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liuhtcis, there is iio warranty that tlic lighters

will he seaworthy I'or that |)urp«)se."

I'd (\i)r. (i4r).

The reason for this rule is set out hy Justiec

Keating in the case of Lane vs. Xison, supra:

*'Tlie ini])lie(l warrant of seawortliiness is

here sought to be exteuded far beyond anything;-

to which it has ever yet been extended, llither-

to it has been always considered to a])|)ly to

the state of the vessel at the coniniencenient

of the voyage * * *. But here, the employ-
ment of lighters to land the goods seems to be

a nsual and ordinary incident of such a voyage,
and has no inference whatever to the implied
warranty of seaworthiness. I think it would be

a dangerous step to extend that warranty in the

manner contended for by the defendant's coun-

sel."

Montague Smith, J., in the same case, stated:

"The implied warranty of seaworthiness is

one which the law has engrafted upon the ex-

j)ress contract of insurance. 1 think we are not

warranted in extending it further than it has

already been carried, which we clearly should
be doing if we decided in favor of the under-
writer in this case. The contention on the part

of the defendant has been that the voyage con-

sists of various stages, and that the warranty of

seaworthiness ap])]ies to each of them. If the

landing of the goods by means of ligliters could

have been said to foi'm one of several stages

of the voyage, possibly the ])rinriple contended
for might have been extended to it. But I do
not think it can in any sense be said to ho a

stage of the voyage. It is ratlK^r an accessory
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or incident of the voyage. Not only is it implied
that the obligation of landing the goods is to

fall upon the shipowner, but the owner of the

goods has in distinct and express terms insured
himself against risk to and from the ship. This
particular risk was distinctly contemplated and
in terms provided against. The goods were lost

through a peril of the sea in being conveyed
from the ship to the shore in the ordinary and
accustomed manner. There is nothing to justify

the extension of the implied warrant}^ of sea-

worthiness to lighters so employed as in a fresh

stage of the voyage. It would, I think, be ex-

tremely inconvenient if it could be done. The
landing of goods in boats or lighters frequently

takes place on dangerous coasts; and, if the

master had to inquire in all cases into their suf-

ficiency or seaworthiness, much delay and risk

must necessarily arise. It would be making
the right of the assured to recover depend upon
the merest accident at a distant port. For these,

reasons, I am of the opinion that the implied

warranty of seaworthiness does not attach upon
lighters employed to land the cargo at the port

of discharge, and consequently that the sixth

plea is a bad one."

If the appellant in this case had been the owner

of these lighters and had furnished them in unload-

ing this vessel, there might possibly have been some

ground for their contention, but even in such a case

we do not think that there would be any implied

warranty of seaworthiness. The facts in this case,

however, show that the appellant did not own the

lighters and did not furnish them to the stevedores,

and had nothing to do with the loading of the
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lii^litcrs. (I)opi)sitii)ii l'\ l>. Ileal, Rccoi'd p. ()9.)

The lighters were luriiishcd by the W'ashinj^ton

8tevcdoriuj< Coin])anv, wlio were dischaigin^, under

the master's supervision, the Sardhaiia (Assn.

Cross-Iut. 21, Dep. A. Wallace, Record p. 123). Re-

spondent's witness Preece was head stevedore of the

Washington Stevedorinc^ Company (Record \). 278,

p. 257), and respondent's witness Tnttle was a

donkey-man for the same company (Record p. 247).

Tt was the common practice to unload such carc^o

at Eagle Harboi- by lighters (Record p. 257).

Counsel for the appellant in his argument in

the court below contended that the case of Lane vs.

Ni.ro)i, cited above, was not the law of England to-

day. Counsel cited two cases:

TJie Galileo, XVIII Commercial Cases, part

3, p. 146, advance sheets,

and
The Vortigcni, 8 Aspinall, i\I. C. 523,

which he claimed overruled the doctrine laid down

in the Nixon case. AYe have not been able to get a

copy of the decision in the Galileo case, but from

counsel's statement below we iniderstand that that

was a case of transshipment under a contract of

affreightment. If that is correct, then that case is

easily distinguished from the Nixon ease, which was

a case of delivery of eargo which was covered by
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a contract of marine insurance. Appellant con-

tended below that the warranty of seaworthiness

was the same in both cases, that is, under a contract

of affreightment and under a contract of marine in-

surance. It was in support of this contention that

it cited the case of The Vortigem. The latter case

merely holds that the implied warranty of sea-

worthiness which attaches at the commencement of a

voyage is the same in both cases.

"There is no difference between the implied
warranty of seaworthiness which attaches at the

commencement of the voyage in the case of an
assured shipowner and in the case of a ship-

owner under a contract of affreightment. In
each case the shipowner warrants that his ship
is seaworthy at the commencement of the voy-
age."

The Vortigem, supra, p. 527.

The doctrine of that case is undoubtedly cor-

rect. The implied warranty of seaworthiness in a

contract of marine insurance upon a vessel is a con-

dition precedent to the attaching of a policy. If

this condition is broken, the policy never attaches.

In a contract of affreightment the seaworthiness of

the carrying vessel is implied in the contract between

the carrier and the shipper, the breach of which

warranty makes the carrier liable for any loss oc-

casioned thereby. There is this difference, however,
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hotwccn a contract of m.-ninc insuiiuicc and a con-

tract of afTrci«;litnicnt : In a contract of marine in-

surance there is no hn])]ic(l warranty that the vessel

shall remain seaT\'ovthy dnrin«^ the entire voyacje.

Seaworthiness at the commencement of the voyacje

satisfies the implied warranty and, the policy havinc;

once attached, subsequent unseaworthiness will not

avoid it.

Arnold on Marine Insurance. 7th ed., Sec. flOl.

In a contract of affreightment, however, sea-

worthiness at the commencement of the voyage is

not all that is implied. The owner of the vessel must,

if it is possiljle to do so, keep the vessel seaworthy

rlurinc^ the entire voyage. The difference is clearly

stated in

McLachlan's Lair of Mfrrhants Shipping, 5th

ed., p. 467:

"There is that peculiar to this condition in

a ])olicy that if satisfied at the commencemenT.
of the risk the contract in respect of seawortlii-

ness on the part of the assured is performed
(except as regards voyages in stages requiring

different or further equipment). But in the

contract of the shipowner as carrier is im])lied

this vSti])ulation that should the vessel become
unseawcn-thy in the course of the voyage he nuist

make her seaworthy if tlieie be opportunity, or

he must not proceed further."

The case of Lane vs. Ni.ron clearly holds that

the unloading b}' lighters is an incident to or acces-
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sory of the voyage and not a new or separate stage

of the voyage, and that, therefore, the vessel being

seaworthy at the commencement of the voyage, there

is no liability warranting that the lighters used in

this incident of the voyage will be seaworthy.

In the case at bar it is admitted that the Sard-

hana was seaworthy at the commencement of the

voyage. Therefore, the warranty of seaworthiness

implied in the contract of insurance has been com-

plied with and there was no implied warranty that

the lighters used in unloading her at her port of

destination would be seaworthy.

The relation between shipper and carrier under

a contract of affreightment is entirely different from

the relation between the insurer and the insured in

a contract of marine insurance. The bill of lading

usually constitutes a contract between the shipper

and the carrier. In the absence of any express con-

tract, however, the carrier agrees to carry the goods

of the shipper and safely deliver the same to destina-

tion. For the purpose of this carriage and delivery

the carrier warrants, not only that the vessel itself

is seaworthy, but that all tackle, equipment, etc.,

necessary to carry and deliver the cargo are in a

proper and seaworthy condition for such service, and

failure to furnish such equipment would be such
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ncj^li^'ncc on tlio paif of ilic (nrrici- as would make

it liaMc for all loss occasioned tiicreby. It is ])rnl)-

al)iy under this priiici]ilc tliat the Galileo case was

derided. As in all cases of traiisshipinent of cargo,

the carrier warrants that the agencies of the ship

used in such service are proper, transshipment being

the act of transferring the goods from one vessel, m
which they have ])een carried, to another vessel, for

the c<)ni])letion of another stage of the voyage.

Gow on Marine Insurance, p. 187.

Where such transshipment is made by the use

of lighters or scows, the carrier warrants that such

lighters or scows, being an agency of the ship, are

seaworth}', and the furnishing of unseaworthy

ligliter would be such negligence on the part of the

carrier as would make it liable for loss occasioned

thereby.

In the case of carrier and shipper the goods are

entirely under the control of the carrier, after they

ai'c laden aboard the vessel, and the carrier is held

to a strict liability in carrying and delivering the

goods. In the case of insurer and insured, neither

of the parties has any control of the goods after

they are laden aboard the ship, and, if the ship is

seaworthy at the commencement of the voyage, the

law places no further burden upon the insured as
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the agencies of the ship in carrying and delivering

the cargo are not in any way under his control, any

more than they are under the control of the insurer.

If the case at bar was that of a loss by trans-

shipment, the Galileo case might possibly have some

bearing, as transshipment is sometimes held to be a

new stage of the voyage, and an implied warranty

of seaworthiness under the doctrine of a voyage in

stages would probably apply to the new stage. But

in the case at bar, the lighters were used as an acces-

sory to, or incident of, the voyage.

The case of Lane vs. Nixon, supra, is clearly

distinguished from the case of The Galileo, as we

understand the facts and decision of Tlie Galileo

case, and we submit that the Nixon case is con-

trolling in the case at bar. This case has been the

law of England for over fifty years. It is cited with

approval in

Arnold on Marine Insurance,
Cyc,

Am,. & Eng. Ency. of Law.

We have been unable to find any case, either

English or American, contrary to the Nixon case,

and we are satisfied that this case is the law of

England today.

\
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Extent and Oavsk <h' Los-s and Damage.

This slii})in('iit of iron dniiiis (•(nitaiiiinL;- creo-

sote oil was loaded ii])()n the l^ritisli l)ark "Sard-

liana" at L(m(h>n, England, in the month of May,

1908, the loading of the same having been completed

on the 29th day of May, 1908, upon whieh date the

said bark by its proper agents issued its shipping

receipt acknowledging receipt of 2,753 drums of

creosote oil in good order and condition, from Blag-

den, "Waugh & Company, wliich shipping receipt was

endorsed in blank and forwarded to the lil)elant

herein (Libelant's Exhibit "B"). Subsequently,

Messrs. Blagden, AVaugh & Company of London,

England, as shippers, made out a consular invoice

of said shipment, as required by \a\\, which invoice

shows the munber of drums shipped, the number

of gallons of creosote shipped in said drums, and

shows in detail the cost of said shipment, including

freight, insurance, etc., the aggregate of said de-

tailed items being the cost of said shipment at port

of destination. This consular invoice, a certified

copy of which is part of the record in this case as

Libelant's Exhibit "C", was made out before the

American Consul in London, England, signed by

the shipper, and sworn to by him as being correct,
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and the original invoice was then forwarded to the

United States Custom House at the nearest port of

entry of said shipment into the United States, and it

was upon this consular invoice that the duty was

charged upon the different items of said shipment

and paid by the libelant herein (Record pp. 147,

168). The shipping receipt (Libelant's Exhibit

**B"), and the consular invoice (Libelant's Exhibit

"C"), show that 2,753 drums of creosote, contain-

ing 251,134 imperial gallons of creosote, were loaded

upon and received by the British bark *'Sardhana"

in good order and condition at the port of London,

England, for shipment to Eagle Harbor, Washing-

ton.

After a tempestuous and rough voyage lasting

approximately five and one-half months, the British

bark "Sardhana" arrived at Eagle Harbor, Wash-

ington, with her cargo badly damaged, with the

drums in a leaky condition, and a portion of the

cargo loose in the hold of the ship. Mr. Frank

Walker, a marine surveyor, at the request of libel-

ant, on the 17th day of November, 1908, inspected

and surveyed the cargo aboard the said bark pre-

vious to its removal from said vessel, and inspected

and surveyed the said cargo on various dates as it

was being discharged from said vessel, for the pur-
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poso of ascertainiiii;- the nmoiint of (lainnujc, if any,

sustained ])v tho cargo dni-inii: tlic voyapjo. From tiic

said inspection, examination and survey, Mr.

Walker found that 2,012 drums were full and in

good order, tliat 741 drums were damaged, of whieli

num))er 71() drums were partly empty and 25 drums

were entirely empty, and that the damaged di'ums

were entirely untit for further use and liad no

salable value (Libelant's Exhibit "I"; Record p.

190). As the drums were discharged from the ves-

sel the good drums were placed in one pile, and

the damaged drums were placed in another and

separate pile. These damaged drums were care-

fully counted and examined by Mr. Frank Walker

personally, and the figures in his survey report of

741 damaged and unmerchantable dnims were com-

piled from his actual examination and count (Rec-

ord p. 190). Mr. Barnaby, agent of Blagden,

Waugh & Company, shippers of this shipment of

creosote, attended at the time this creosote was

being unloaded, as such agent, to see the condition

of the drums and creosote. While Mr. Barnaby

did not make as careful an examination and inspec-

tion of these drums as Mr. Walker made, and did

not actually count the number of damaged drums,

his estimate from his observation and examination



74

at that time was that about 700 drums were dam-

aged, to such an extent that they were unmerchant-

able and of no value (Record pp. 224, 227). Mr.

F. D. Beal, who was superintendent of the Creo-

soting Company in November, 1908, but who at the

time of testifying was the manager of another

creosoting company in Portland, Oregon, had an

examination and inspection made of the damaged

drums at the time they were discharged, and upon

completion of the discharge of the cargo, sent a

statement of the number of damaged drums to the

office of the Pacific Creosoting Company in Seattle,

Washington, which statement is in evidence in this

case at appellant's request as respondent's Exhibit

''I" (Deposition of F. D. Beal, Record p. 74). This

statement was signed by Mr. F. D. Beal, and Mr.

Beal swears positively that this statement was made

from the original records taken at the time and

correctly shows the number of drums damaged

(Deposition of F. D. Beal, Record pp. 71-72). This

statement corresponds with the number of damaged

drums shown by Mr. Frank Walker in his survey

report (Libelant's Exhibit "I"). Mr. E. D. Rood,

assistant manager of the Pacific Creosoting Com-

pany in November, 1908, inspected the cargo at dif-

ferent times while it was being discharged and testi-
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lied from his rcculiection, his tcstiniony having been

takon a])j)i'()xiniatoIy two aiul onc-lialf years after

dLscliarij^e of tliis vessel and lon^ after he had sev-

ered his conneetion witli the Creosotin.sj Company,

that between 750 and 800 drums were damaged,

dented on the ends, the cliinies being badly bent,

some of them had holes in tlieir sides, that they

were all leaky, and that a mnnber of theni wei-e

empty (Deposition of E. D. Rood, Record p. 133).

There is no evidence in this case to the contrary.

The contents of these damaged drnms were

emptied into the tank of the Pacific Creosoting

Cora]:)any and the amount of creosote obtained from

them was carefully measured, these measurements

being made under the supervision of Mr. Walker

and Mr. F. D. Beal, superintendent of the Creosot-

ing Company. Wlien the contents of all the dam-

aged drums and the three or four thousand gallons

taken from the hold of the ship had all been dumped

into the tank and measured, the total amount so ob-

tained from said drums was deducted from the

amount originally shipped in said drums, or the

amount in the drums when they were delivered to

thd "Sardhana" in London, as shown by consular

invoice (Libelant's Exhibit "C"), and it was found

that 56,267.2 gallons had been lost during said voj^-
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age, or that the libelant was short this amount upon

the outturn of this cargo. Mr. Walker checked

these measurements and was absolutely satisfied that

they were correct before making his report of sur-

vey (Record p. 191).

Mr. F. D. Beal made up a statement of the con-

tents received from the 741 damaged drums dis-

charged from the "Sardhana" and furnished the

same to Mr. Walker, a copy of said statement hav-

ing been furnished to the Pacific Creosoting Com-

pany's office in Seattle (Record pp. 71, 72, 74).

This copy is in evidence in this case at appellant's

request as respondent's Exhibit "2". Mr. F. D.

Beal at the time of giving his testimony in this

case, approximately four years after this statement

was made up, was then unable to testify positively

that the respondent's Exhibit ''2" was a copy of

the statement furnished by him to Mr. Walker, but

from some of the records of the Pacific Creosoting

Company which were in his possession at the time

he testified, he testified positively that the outturn

of 171 drums, being the first item shown on said

exhibit, being 8,458 gallons, was a correct statement

of the contents received from said 171 drums (Depo-

sition of F. D. Beal, Record p. 74) . This testimony

of Mr. Beal, taken in connection with the testimony
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of Mr. Walker, ])()siti\('ly itlciitiHcs this oxliiMt as

a (M)|)y of tlic statement tcstifiod to l>> Mr. Ilcil,

(.'Specially in view of the fact that the H*;nr('s of the

outturn of this cargo shown in surveyor's report

signed by Mr. Walker (Libelant's Exhibit 'T"),

are identically the same.

Mr. E. 1). Rood testified that his best recollec-

tion at the time of giving his testimony, not having

any records before him at the time, was that be-

tween fifty and sixty thousand gollons of creosote

were short in this shipment (Deposition of E. D.

Rood, Record pp. 134, 137). Mr. Barnaby, who

attended the discharge of this shipment as agent of

the shippers, testified that when he examined the

damaged drums, they were pretty well empty, and

very little creosote in them. That he opened the

bungs of many of the drums and found a good many

of them were only one-third full and some of them

were one-half full, biit that none of them were

more than one-half full (Record pp. 224-5).

Appellee has thus proven that 2,753 drums con-

taining 251,134 imperial gallons of creosote were

loaded on the bark "Sardhana" in good order and

condition by l^lagden, Waugli & Company (bills

of lading or shipping receipts Libelant's Exhibit
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'*B", consular invoice Libelant's Exhibit "C").

The consular invoice (Libelant's Exhibit "C") cer-

tified as being a copy of the original consular in-

voice by the collector of the United States customs,

signed and certified by the shipper and certified by

the Collector of Customs of the United Kingdom at

London, England, is proof of the cargo shipped

both the number of drums and the gallons of creo-

sote.

1 Cyc. 884 Sud-div. "A".

Arnoiild on Marine Insurance (7th Ed.), Sec.

1279.

Johnson vs. Ward, 6 E. S. p. 47.

Appellee has also proven by the direct and

positive testimony above referred to that 741 of

these iron drums were damaged and worthless on

delivery and that 56,267.2 gallons of creosote were

missing or short on delivery of this cargo at des-

tination.

Appellant 's contention below was that there was

no shortage of cargo on delivery—as to the damage

to 741, there seems to be no serious dispute.

This phase of the case presents a question of

fact to be decided by the court from the prepon-

derance of testimony and credit to be given to the

testimony of the different witnesses. The court
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holow licld tli.it appellee liad estal)lisho(l the entire^

luss clainieil hy it.

"The ship 'Sardhaiia' lu'iiii^ seaworthy
wheu she left London, the car^jjo in good oicUt

and condition wlien received hy the shi]), the

damage to the drums ])eing external, and it con-

clusively appearing that there was a loss of

cargo, the lilxdant is entitled to recover his

damage. The Peter der Grosse L. R. 1 P. D.

414; Nome Beach etc. vs. Miuiich Assurance
Co. (C. C), 123 Fed. 827."

Pacific Creosoting Co. vs. Thames cC- Mersey
Marine Ins. Co., 210 Fed. \\ 961.

We do not, of course, claim that this finding of

the lower court is in au)^ way controlling upon this

court, but it is undoubtedly the rule that this court

will not reverse a finding of fact made by the lower

court upon conflicting testimony unless it is clearly

against the weight of the evidence. Where the testi-

mony is taken in open court this rule is particularly

applicable—where it is taken before a commissioner,

or by depositions, as in this case the rule is not as

applicable. Just how much credit will be given to

the lower court's findings upon disputed facts de-

pends somewhat upon whether or not an a])peal in

admiralty is treated as a trial ''de novo" or a re-

view. Benedict holds that such appeals are in the

nature of a review. That no decree is entered in
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the Circuit Court of Appeals—the final judgment

being in the District Court.

Benedict's Admiralty (4th Ed.), Sec. 566.

This was the view of Judge Dietrich sitting

with this court in the recent case of Pacific Mail

S. S. Co. vs. Schmidt, 214 Fed. 513. If this court

acts as a court of review on appeals in admiralty,

it will not, of course, reverse the lower court's find-

ings unless they are clearly erroneous. But whether

or not appeals in admiralty are treated as trial ''de

novo" or as a "review" the rule is as stated in 1

Ruling Case Law, Sec. 42, p. 436.

"The conclusions of the District Court on
questions of fact will not be reversed unless the

appellate court can satisfy itself that it has

reached new conclusions which are better sup-

ported by the evidence." (Citing Steam Dredge
No. 1, 134 Fed. 161.)

There is certainly ample evidence in this case

to support the lower court's finding. In fact ap-

pellant introduced no positive evidence as to the

loss of creosote, but relies solely upon the negative

testimony of Captain Alexander Wallace, Mate

Wylie and Apprentice Yeaton of the "Sardhana",

who testified that there was no leakage of the ship,

and that the ship took no water during the entire

voyage. We have shown in connection with Cap-
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tain Wallace and Male \\'\ lie's testimony as to tlie

oxtoiit of tile tire on the "Sardhana", that tlioir

testimony is absolutely unreliable.

It is admitted that the "Sardhaua" eneountcred

very rough and tcmpostnons weather on the voyage,

that the cargo worked and broke hxise, and that she

shipped considerable water aboard, while these wit-

nesses state that during the entire voyage of six

months she took no water. Witnesses Wylie and

Yeaton testified that the pumps were not used once

during the entire voyage.

Witness Wallace testified that, in the "Jupiter"

case, heretofore referred to, which was pending in

January, 1909, and is reported in 181 Fed. 856, he

gave the following testimony:

"Q. You sav much water was shipped on
deck?

A. Yes. She took in a lot of water at

times.

Q. The fact is that the weather you experi-

enced in rounding the Horn on this voyage, was
exceptionally severe weather, was it not?

A. Yes. It was the worst weather I have
had coming around.

Q. And continued for an exceptionally long

time ?

A. Yes." (Record p. 121.)
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For further evidence on this point we refer the

court to the extended protest (Libelant's Exhibit

"L"), which shows that on numerous dates the ves-

sel shipped large quantities of water. It is incon-

ceivable that on a voyage of this length, and in view

of the weather encountered, and the admitted fact

that the ship took considerable water, that the

pumps were not used once during the entire voyage.

The entry,
'

' Pumps, lights and lookout carefully at-

tended to," appears in the log-book of the "Sard-

hana '

' practically every day during the rough weath-

er experienced by her. Mr. Yeaton claimed that this

entry meant that the carpenter merely turned over

the pumps and oiled them. He admits, however,

that it was customary on this ship to only turn the

pumps over and oil them once a week, and it is a

significant fact that this entry appears during rough

weather practically every day. (Record p. 311.)

First Mate Wylie testified that upon the ar-

rival of the ship at destination there was approxi-

mately one foot of creosote in the hold of the ves-

sel. It is shown by the testimony of Mr. Walker

and Mr. E. D. Beal that not more than 4,200 gal-

lons of creosote were pumped out of the hold of the

ship after her arrival. We have no way of figuring

just how many gallons one foot of creosote in the

i
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hold of the vessel would ht-. It certainly would not

he anything; approxiinatinjjj 5(),2()7.1! ,L;all(»iis, the

amount of lost creosote. 56,267.2 gallons is more

than one-fifth of the entire cargo. The ship was

fully loaded wheu she left Loudon. Certainly ap-

proximately (me-fifth of her cargo loose in tlie hold

of the ship •u'ould he more than one foot in depth.

Where did the halance of the creosote go?

"Q. Have you any knowledge as to how
that loss (56,267.2 gallons) occurred?

A. Well, I know that the creosote was not

there. That the druuis were leaky, and in my
investigation I understood it was pumped over-

board at sea.

Q. Would that be an ordinary precaution,

if thei'c was any great amount of creosote in

the hold in rough weather?

A. Any great amount loose liquid in the

hold of a ship in rough weather would be a

damage to the vessel.
'

'

(Testimony of Frank Walker, pp. 191-2 of

the Record.)

Cross-Exaimixation.

"Q. What became of the 56,000 gallons that

were missing?

A. I don't know. All I can tell you is what
the crew tgld me, that it was pumped overboard.

Q. What member of the crew told you it

was pumped overboard?
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A. I think several of them. The captain

did not, but the mates did.

Q. The mates. That is the only way that it

could be accounted for?

A. That is the only way; it was not in the

bark.

Q. Could not get out of the ship. Do you
know how much was finally pumped out of all

the limbers?

A. Three or four thousand gallons."

(Testimony same witness, Record p. 217.)

The ship "Jupiter" made practically the same

voyage as the "Sardhana". The two vessels arrived

at Eagle Harbor at about the same time and were

unloading at Eagle Hrbor at the sme time. (Deposi-

tion of Wallace, answer to 34th interrogatory, Rec-

ord p. 119.) The "Jupiter" carried the same cargo

as the "Sardhana", creosote in iron drums shipped

by Blagden, Waugh & Company, shippers of the

"Sardhana's " cargo, and arrived at Eagle Harbor

with a shortage of 51,321 imperial gallons of creo-

sote, and 1,220 damaged drums.

KnoJir d BurcJiard vs. Pacific Greosoting
Company, 181 Fed. 856.

In this case the court found

:

"In the vicinity of Cape Horn, the ship

encountered bad weather, and in a heavy gale

she was thrown on her beam ends, and part of
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the (•ai*j::() ]>('two('ii (leeks was disloil^cd, and a

miniher of the drums were so daiiiaiced as to

s))ill the oil, and othei's lost their contents by
{)1ujj:s workinji: loose. Most of the spillaii^e was
})uniped out of tlie ship and waste*!, so that,

when the eart^o was discharp^ed at Eau:le T [ar-

bor, there was a shortage of 51,321 im])erial

o-allons, worth Jp2,80().()(), and 1,220 drnnis wcM-e

damaged, and 272 drums were completely

ruined.'*

In the ''Jiipifcr" case the claim for damages,

damage to and shortage of cargo, was made against

the ship, o]i account of bad stowage, freight being

withheld, but on account of the wording of the

charter-party in this case consignee 2vas compelled

to pay freight on tlie number of drums delivered,

irrespective of their condition or contents (Record

p. 170). Furthermore, there is no claim of bad

stowage in tliis case, the damage being caused by

perils of the sea.

In view of the antagonistic attitude of the mas-

ter and mate of the "Sardhana", probably due to

the dispute between libelant and the shi]:> as to the

payment of freight on damaged and lost cargo, it

was impossible for us to ])i'ove directly that any

creosote was pumped overboard during the voyage.

(The master and mate would hardly admit such a

fact to the consignee of the cargo when they were

attempting to collect freight on the said cargo.)
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But we submit tliat this is the only reasonable ex-

planation as to the loss of his cargo. It is unbe-

lievable that on a voyage of this length, and in view

of the weather encountered, that the pumps were

not used once. Libelant having proven that this

cargo was loaded aboard the ^'Sardhana" in good

condition, that the ship encountered extremely

rough weather during which the cargo broke loose

and worked, and arrived in a damaged condition

and with a big loss, the damage to drums being

external, we submit that the burden was upon the

appellant to prove that there was no such loss. This

appellant has not done.

On the question of damage to drums, the only

testimony introduced by respondent is that of First

Mate Wylie. In answer to the 31st interrogatory

he stated:

"As to the damaged drums there was a
United States custom house officer on board
tallying the drums for the customs dues; I tal-

lied the drums for the ship and a tally clerk

for the Pacific Creosoting Company,'' etc. (Rec-
ord pp. 147-8).

If this witness tallied the drums and his tally

was less than that of appellee, why was he unable to

produce his tally or to testify positively as to the

number of damaged drums'? The records of the
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custom house wero ojx'ii tn a])i)('l!ant, and a])p('II('(*

paid diit\' on drums accordiuj^ to the custom house

tally. If this tally vaiicd from a])])ellce's, why did

not appellant produce the custom house tally'? The

j)ositive testimony of appellee's witnesses, suhstan-

tiated by written surveys and reports 7nadr at the

time, showinu; the amount of loss and damaj^e to

car^o, is entitled to more weiejht tlian the nec^ative

testimony of appellant's witnesses. These witnesses

admit that the vtxv^o was damaged, and that a large

portion of it leaked out of the drums into the liold

of the shij). Still they claim that there was no loss.

We submit that this testimony amply proves the

loss and damage claimed by appellee, and that the

decree of the District Court should be affirmed with

costs.

We do not understand that there is any dispute

in this case as to the correctness of the particular

average adjustment, provided, the loss and damage

to cargo is proven to be as sho^vn in said adjustment.

The adjustment is based u|)on the value as shown

in the consular invoice (Libelant's Exhibit "0"),

which is the amount paid by libelant for tliis cargo

(Record pp. 4, 5, 6, 7), as shown by vouchers (Libel-

ant's Exhibits "D", ''E", ''E'", ''E-", ''E"^" and

"F"). The value of the cargo is made up by taking
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cost at works of shipper, plus cost of filling drums,

loading same aboard ship, freight, insurance, etc;

We think that appellant will raise no objection to

this valuation.

Appellant contended in its argument below that

it was not shown by the evidence how much damage

and loss was occasioned by the perils insured

against, and will probably make the same conten-

tion in this court under Assig^nment of Error 13.

Appellee proved that this cargo was delivered

on board the "Sardhana" in good order and condi-

tion, that the ship encountered tempestuous weather

during which the cargo broke loose and worked, and

that the cargo was delivered in a damaged condition,

such damage to drums being external, and that a

large amount of creosote was short upon delivery.

This, we submit, is all that the insured is required

to prove. The burden is upon the insurance com-

pany of proving otherwise or that the loss or dam-

age comes within the exceptions of its policy.

Appellant contended that a part of the damage

was occasioned by the defective condition of the

drums when shipped. In support of this contention

it cites the testimony of Wallace and Wylie, master

and mate of the "Sardhana". These witnesses based
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their statrineiit tliat some of the dniiiis were defec-

tive solely u])()ii tlie u:r<>ini(l that ci-eosote \vas oh-

served in the linilu is of the ship hefore they cleared

the English Channel. The ship, however, receipted

for this cargo as follows:

"Shi])ped in good order and well condi-

tioned ])y Hlagden, WanL;h roni])any in and
n})on the good ship called the 'Sardhana' * * *

two thousand seven hundred and fifty-three

drums of creosote oil."

(Bill of lading. Libelant's Ex. "B".)

This bill of lading is certainly competent evi-

dence to contradict the testimony of the ship's mas-

ter. No exceptions as to the condition of the cargo

were noted on this bill of lading. Captain Wallace

further testified:

"Q. Was not a41 of said cargo in apparent
good order and condition when received on said

ship ?

A. Yes. I icjected what we considered bad
drums." (Record, cross-interrogatoi'v 40, p.

113; Answer p. 125.)

Wylie testified to the same effect. (Record ]).

159.)

Appellant admitted below tliat all of tlie dam-

age, except the damage which it claims was caused

by defective drums, was caused by "])erils of the

sea." The testimony clearly proves this. (Wallace,
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Record pp. Ill, 124, 125, cross-interrogatories 36

and 37 and answers thereto.)

It is admitted in this case that the "Sardhana"

was seaworthy when she left London, that the cargo

was properly stowed, and that the vessel met with

unusually heavy weather during the course of the

voyage, causing her cargo to work loose and become

damaged. The damage to the drums was all ex-

ternal damage, they were dented on the ends, chimes

were badly bent, they were stove in, and some of

them had holes in their sides and they were all leaky.

(Deposition of E. D. Rood p. 133; Libelant's Ex-

hibit ''I", Record p. 190.)

The clean bill of lading issued by the ship, and

the testimony of Wallace and Wylie referred to

above, are conclusive evidence that externally the

goods had been shipped in good order and condition,

and it being proved that the damage to the drums

resulted from some external source, respondent, in

order to free itself from liability, must prove that

the drums were damaged or defective when shipped.

Tlie Peter der Grosse, 1 P. D. 414.

Respondent's allegation, or rather contention,

that some of the drums were inherently defective

when delivered aboard the Sardhana, is an affirma-

tive allegation on its part, and, under the rules of
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evidonco, rospondciit is rciiiiiicd to prove siicli allc-

j^atinii hy a projiondoraiicc of the ovidcncc. We can

SCO no dilYcrcnee betwocn an allop;ati(»n of dofcctive

condition of cargo, and an allegation of defective

condition or unseaworthiness of a vessel, when it is

set up as a defense to a claim against an insurance

policy.

'^Tlie allegation in the defendant's answer
tliat the vessel was nnsoawortliy, was therefore

an afhi'niative allegation on their part, and
under the rules of evidence in such cases they

are reijuired to prove it by a pre]Jonderance
of the evidence, and, failing in this, plaintiff

was entitled to recover."

Nome Beach etc., Munich etc., 123 Fed. at p.

827.

But even if these drums were defective when

shipped, still appellant would he liable, for there is

no implied warranty in a policy on goods that the

goods are seaworthy for the voyage.

Arnoiild on Marine Insurance, 7th Ed., p. 785.

This is especially provided in the Marine Insur-

ance Act (1906), Sec. 40;

(1) (6 Edw. 7, Ch. 41, entitled an Act to codify

the law relating to Marine Insurance.)

''§40— (1) In a policy on goods or other

moveables, there is no implied warranty that the

goods or moveables are seaworthy."

Chalmers and Oivens Marine Insurance Act,

p. 61.
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If this case is to be decided according to English

law and practice, as contended by appellant, then

this act is binding.

Appellant will contend under Assignment 12

(as it did in the lower court) that before the appellee

can recover it must show that the creosote was on

hoard the Sardhana at the time the fire occurred on

Kovember 18th which deleted this warranty.

This contention, however, is not well taken.

When the F. P. A. warranty is opened by the hap-

pening of the excepted event (in this case the fire)

the warranty is deleted and the policy construed

as though the warranty was not, and had never

been, attached to the policy, that is, any loss under

the policy, whether partial or total, is adjusted ac-

cording to the general terms of the policy. There

is no doubt but that appellee is entitled to recover

this partial loss under the general terms of the

policy.

If the excepted event happened before the in-

sured goods were placed on board the ship, there

would, of course, be no liability for injury subse-

quently happening to the said goods, the policy not

having attached at the time of the happening of

the excepted event. On the other hand, if the fire
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tliere would ])c n<t liahility lor iiijin-^' oi- daiua;;!'

to the goods, sustained duriuL;- the course of the

voyage, the policy liaving expired at the tini(> of tlie

happening of the excepted event. If the goods,

however, are damaged or h)st during the conrse

of the adventure for which they are insured, and the

excepted event, in this case the fire, also happened

during the course of the adventure, it is immaterial

whether the goods were damaged or lost prioi* or

subsequent to tlie fire, the warranty being deleted,

the insurer is liable for all loss or damage to the

insured goods as though the F. P. A. warranty had

never attached. As we have said, the effect of the

F. P. A. warranty is to except the insurer from lia-

bility for any partial loss or damage to cargo during

the course of the adventure, while the goods are in-

sured, unless the ship be "stranded, sunk or on fire."

Upon the happening of the fire, in this case, the

F. P. A. warranty was completely effaced, and the

insurer is liable for all loss or damage to cargo,

whether partial or total, which happened during the

course of the adventure, in accordance with the gen-

eral terms of the policy. It will not be disputed that

the loss of a portion of the cargo during the course

of the voyage for which it is insured, is a partial or
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particular average loss, and by the terms of this

policy, in the absence of the F. P. A. warranty, the

insurer is liable for any partial or particular average

loss. "The 'stranding' (in this case fire) contem-

plated by the memorandum must be one which takes

place after the adventure on the memorandum ar-

ticles has commenced and before it has terminated."

Arnould on Marine Insurance, Sec. 887.

Thames and Mersey Marine Insurance Co. vs.

Pitts, 7 Aspinwall Maritime cases (N. S.),

302.

This question was considered in the case of

London Assurance vs. Companhia, 167 U. S. 149,

and all of the English cases reviewed. We quote

from this case as follows:

"Although the original language of the

memorandum confined the exception to a strand-

ing of the ship, it was afterwards extended so

as to read, 'free of particular average unless

the vessel be sunk, burned, stranded, or in col-

lision. ' The same rule applies to all, and if the

vessel be either sunk, burned, stranded or in col-

lision, it is sufficient to render the insurer liable,

although the loss does not result therefrom.

In Harman vs. Yaux, 3 Campb. 429, Lord
Ellenborough held that the stranding is a con-

dition precedent, and when that is fulfilled the

warranty against particular average ceased to

have operation.

In Barrow vs. Bell, 4 Barn. & C. 736, de-

cided in 1825, the insurer was held liable, al-



tli()U<;]i tlio caii^o was not injured by the strand-

ing^, the injury liavin^ rcsultcvl from sti-ikiui^

upon an anchor in tlic harb(>r. Al)l>ott, Ciiicf

Justice, liayley, llolroyd and Littledalo, Jus-

tices, lield the ease of Uunictt t's. Krnsiiif/fou,

above cited, as entirely controlling^-, and that the

insurers were liable.

In K'nifj.sford vs. Marshall, 8 Bin^. 458, de-

cided in 1S:V2, althou,i;h the court held that in

that case there was no stranding, yet Tindal,

Chief Justice, recognized the general rule, and
said: 'The question is wliethei*, as the goods in-

sured fall within those in the memorandum
enumerated, the present case is taken out of the

exception co]itained in such memorandum by
reason of the ship being stranded; inasnmcli

as it has long been settled that the words "if

the ship be stranded" are words of condition,

and that if such condition happens it destroys

the exception and lets in the general words of

the policy * * *. For if the ship w^as

stranded in Dunkirk harbor, an avei-age loss

upon the whole would be e(iually recoverable

though it had happened from perils of the sea

at any former time or any other ])lace in the

course of the voyage insured. ' And he I'eferred

to Burnett vs. Kensington as authority.

In Thames <£• M. Marine Ins. Co. vs. Pitts

(1893), 1 Q. B. 476, the court, in giving judg-

ment, said: 'It is clear law tliat it is inunaterial

whether the actual mischief can be traced to the

stranding * * *. If the stranding takes

place within the time contem])lated b}' the

parties, the insured can ] ecover in res])ect (^f a

particular average, whether the damage can be

traced to the particular stranding or not. This
proposition is not only in accordance with com-
mon sense, but it is al)undantly supported by



96

authority.' And he quotes from the judgment
of Tindal, Chief Justice, in Roux vs. Salvador,
1 Bing. N. C. 526, in which the Chief Justice

said :
' The general principle laid down in Bur-

nett vs. Kensington, that if the ship be stranded
the insurer is liable for any average damage,
though quite unconnected with the stranding,

is not disputed, the policy, after the stranding,

must be construed as if no such warranty had
been written on the face of it.'

In the Thames & M. Marine Ins. Co.'s case,

supra, however, the court decided that where
the stranding took place before the cargo was
laid and the risk commenced, and the loss oc-

curred after the loading, that the insurer was
not liable. In other words, the court held that

the stranding must take place in the course of
the adventure, and that where it occurred before

the goods were loaded and when the cargo was
not at risk in the ship, the insurer was not
liable. * * *

The English text-writers on marine insur-

ance recognize the rule to be as above stated.

See 1 Marshall, Ins., 2d Am. from 2d London,
ed., 222, 234; Lowndes, Marine Ins., Sections

317, 319; McArthur, Marine Ins., 245."

"From the review of the authorities in

England, there can be no doubt that if a ship

be once in collision during the adventure, after

the goods are on board, the insurers are by the

law of England liable for a loss covered by the

general words in the policy, although such loss

is not the result of the original collision, and
but for the collision would have been within the

exception contained in the memorandum, and
free from particular average as therein pro-
vided."
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111 tlu' case (»r liiumff rs. Kcnsinf/ton, 7 T. 1\.

1>24 (English Ruling Cases, vol. H, p. 1S7 .il \k IDS),

Justice Kcuyon, (Mi. J., states:

"'^riie words of tills ])()liev are in general

terms, ineluding all eases; then eonies this niein-

orandiiiii, S'orii fish * * * warranted free;

rroiu average unless general or the slii]) he

stranded.' This, therefore, lets in a general

average, and I do not know how to eonstrue the

^vords granunatically hut hy saying that if the

slii]) he stranded, then it destroys the exception

and lets in the general words of the policy. If

a general provision he made in any deed or

instrument and it is there said that certain

things shall he excepted imless another thing

ha])])eii which gives effect to the gtMieral o])era-

tion of the deed if that other tiling does hai)i)en

it destroys the exception altogether."

Justice Grose in the same case states:

'*0n the words no douht can he raised, they

are clear. The insurers engage that certain

articles, of which fruit is one, shall he free from
average except in two cases—one if it he a

general average, the other if the ship he strand-

ed, hut if either of these happen, then those

articles are not to be free from average."

In the case of Wells vs. Ilopiroocl, 3 Barn. &

Ad. 29 (English RuliBg Cases, Vol. 14 at p. 206),

Justice Parke states:

"In reading this memorandum two things

are clear, first, that according to its graniniatical

construction, the simple fact of 'stranding' de-

stroys the exception in favor of the enumerated
articles contained in the memorandum, and in-
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eludes them in the general operation of the

policy, though no damage is thereby done to

those articles."

Lord Tenterdon, Ch. J., in the same case states

the law to be:

*' According to the construction that has
been long put upon the memorandum, the words
* unless general or the ship be stranded' are to

be considered as an exception out of the excep-

tions as to the amount of an average or partial

loss provided for by the memorandum and, con-

sequently, to leave the matters at large accord-

ing to the contents of the policy."

Appellant in its argument below cited two

English cases as supporting its contention. Thames

(& Mersey vs. Pitts, 7 Asp. Mar. Cases (N. S.) 302,

and Alsace Lorraine id. 362. The first case is cited

in London Assurance Co. vs. Companhia, 167 U. S.

149, cited above, as being a case where the stranding

(the excepted event) *'took place before the cargo

was laid and the risk commenced." In the Alsace

Lorraine a portion of the cargo had been sold and

the balance had been forwarded by another ship at

the time of the happening of the excepted event.

These cases are not contrary to the rule as laid down

in the cases cited by us. In the first case the policy

had never attached, and in the second case, connec-

tion between the ship and her entire cargo had been
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severed ;it the time of tlie liapjx'iiini^ of the excepted

• •\('iit.

Appelhiiit contended in its argument below tliat

if 5(),2()7 <»allons of creosote were lost from the Sard-

hana, such loss must have occurred during the voy-

age, that is, this creosote nuist have been ])um])ed

overboard or ''Jettisoned.'* The i)()li('y in this case

covers both jettisons and general average losses. If

this cargo was jettisoned during the voyage then the

insured is entitled to recover irrespective of the F.

P. A. warranty or the fire which happened on No-

vember 18th. Jettison is a general average loss.

This policy covers all general average losses, and the

insured has a right to recover his entire general

average loss from his underwriter without seeking

compensation from the other contributing interests.

Phillips on Insurance (3rd ed.), Vol. 2, Sec.

1348.

Potter vs. Providence Washington Ins. Co.,

4 Mason 298.

19 Federal Cases, No. 11336.

Dickinson vs. Jardine, L. R. 3 C. P. 642

(English Ruling Cases, Vol. 14 at ]^]).

434-5).

Arnould on Marine Ins., 7th ed., p. 1023.

The only testimony as to this jettison of cargo

is found on p. 191 of the record:
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"Q. This report shows a loss here of 56,-

267.2 gallons. Have you any knowledge as to

how that loss occurred!

A. Well, I know that the creosote was not
there, that the drums were leaky, and in my in-

vestigation I understood it was pumped over-
board at sea.

Q. Would that be an ordinary precaution,
if there was any great amount of creosote in the
hold in rough weather?

A. Any great amount of loose liquid in the
hold of a ship in rough weather would be a
damage to the vessel."

And on page 217, on cross-examination:

'

' Q. What became of the 56,000 gallons that

were missing?

A. I don't know. All I can tell you is what
the crew told me, that it was pumped overboard.

Q. What member of the crew told you it

was pumped overboard?

A. I think several of them. The captam
did not, but the mates did.

Q. The mates. That is the only way that it

could be accounted for?

A. That is the only way. It was not in

the bark."

Naturally, if approximately one-fifth of the

ship's entire cargo was in the shape of loose liquid

in the ship's hold it would be dangerous to the ship

during the rough weather she encountered, and if

it was jettisoned for the safety of the ship, then it

was a general average loss.



101

Appellant's last ('(iiitciilinn in its aiij^ninciit Ix^-

|n\v was that tlic evidence sliowed tliat 1-7 (li'unis

had heeii deli\(red y>//o/- to tlie tire, and that in the

absenee of ])roof the presumption was that these

were all damaged drums, and that therefore the ereo-

soting company's claim should be reduced to this

extent.

As we have shown in our argmnent a))ove, the

happening of one of tlie excepted events in the F.

P. A. wan-anty during the course of the adventure,

opens u}) or deletes the warranty, and the insurer

then becomes liable, if at all, under the general terms

of the policy. If there is a particular average or

partial loss during the course of the adventure, and

the excepted event occurs during the course of the

adventure, then the insurer is liable for such particu-

lar average loss. In this case the damage to the

drums was admittedly caused by perils of the sea

occurring during the course of the voyage from

London to Eagle Harbor. The fire occurred during

the course of the adventure and immediately de-

leted the F. P. A. warranty, so that the insurer be-

came liable for all damage or loss to cargo occurring

during the course of the voyage, this being covered

))y the general terms of its policy.
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Apj)ellee proved that this cargo was shipped

aboard the Sardhana in good order and condition,

that it was damaged during the course of the voy-

age by perils insured against, and that the fire hap-

pened during the course of the adventure and while

the goods were still at risk. If respondent seeks to

avoid liability as to a portion of the cargo, upon the

ground that it had been delivered prior to the fire,

then the burden is upon respondent to prove that

fact, the presumption being that the cargo was still

at risk until the contrary is proven. This being an

affirmative defense raised by the insured to defeat

liability, it has the burden of establishing it. The

only evidence on this point is the entry in the ship's

log to the effect that 136 drums were discharged on

Kovember 17th and ''Nov. 18th: Stevedores con-

tinued to discharge the cargo, and at 5 P. M. finished

for the day. 291 further drums were discharged/^

This entry in the ship's log, if competent proof,

established the fact that the cargo had not been

delivered but had been discharged on to lighters

where it was still at risk. It does not show a de-

livery within the meaning of the policy of insurance.

A discharge from the ship merely means the loading

of said drums onto lighters alongside the ship. The

policy in this case covers "risk of craft and/or raft
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{() and from vessel," alsn "including all i-isks of

* * * craft, lis^literai^e, and/or otlier e(mveyaiice

* * * from the vessel niitil safcli/ delivered into

warehouse."

Respondent's witness Tnttlc, testifyiiiLi: witli re-

spect to the liirhter \vln<li capsized, ;^ave tlie follow-

inc: testimony:

"Q. Did tliey tow her to tlie dock of the

Creosote Company that night ^

A. No.

Q. Wonld they not liave done that if she
had been full.y loaded?

A. There is lots of times they left the seows
loaded for a day or two.

Q. Fully loaded?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Out on the bay?

A. They wonld move them np some times
alongside the ship forward, and move them
around and moor them."

(R. p. 95.)

The entry in the log book to wliich we ]iav(^ just

referred shows that the stevedores (]uit work at 5

o'clock, having unloaded 291 drums from the ship

into the lighter. The stevedores having quit work,

these 291 drums, of course, were not towed to the

Creosoting Company's plant and discharged into the
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warehouse on that night, and were still at risk and

covered by the policy. As to the 136 drums which

were discharged on November 17th, or the day before

the happening of the fire, we submit that the testi-

mony of Mr. Tuttle as to the practice of leaving

these scows moored in the bay, is at least prima facie

proof that these 136 drums were also aboard the

lighter at risk and covered by the policy.

There is ample evidence in this case, however,

to show that the drums unloaded from the ship into

the lighters before the happening of the fire were

not damaged drums.

In answer to the 25th interrogatory. Captain

Wallace stated that the cargo was loaded in the

lower hold and tween decks (Record, p. 117). In

unloading this ship it would, of course, be necessary

to unload the cargo from tween decks before the

cargo in the lower hold could be reached. The ship 's

log shows that at the time of the fire, the after tween

decks were still full of cargo. (Entry of November

18, 1908; Libelant's Exhibit "L.") The stevedores

commenced unloading cargo on November 17th, un-

loading 136 drums onto lighters on that day, and

continued to unload cargo on the following day, the

18th, unloading 291 drums onto lighters on that day.

It being necessary to unload the cargo from tween
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decks before the car^n> in the hold could he readied,

and the evidence in this case showing that at the

time of the fire ear^o had been ludoaded from the

after tween decks, the cargo which was uidoaded on

the 17th and 18th of November, must have been

uidoaded from the tween decks. Mate Wylie, in

answer to cross-interrogatory 15, testified that at the

time of the fire the after tween decks were only

jxirtl/f full of cargo (Record \). 153). (Kecord j).

195.)

In answer to the 28th interrogatory (Record, p.

118), Captain Wallace stated that there was a small

leakage all over the cargo, but that the ])iggest leak-

age was in the fore low^er hold and amidships,

abreast of the main ventilator, where creosote drums

broke adrift and were found to be cut. In the ship's

log, under date of July 29th, we find an entry

** Toward night it was discovered that the cargo in

the hold had commenced to work. The crew entered

the hold from the lazarette and secured it as well

as possible." In fact, in going through the entries

in the log book, we find that when the cargo broke

loose, the crew entered the hold to re-stow it, show-

ing conclusively that the damage to drums by work-

ing of cargo on account of heavy weather was all in

the hold of the ship, there not being a single entry
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in the entire log that any of the cargo in the tween

decks broke loose or was damaged.

The cargo discharged onto lighters on November

17th and 18th being taken from the tween decks,

where no cargo had broken loose or worked during

the voyage (this cargo being well stowed and in good

condition upon arrival) (Record, p ), did not in-

clude any of the drums which were damaged, these

drums being all in the lower hold.

As stated before in making our argument in

this case, we have been at a great disadvantage by

reason of the fact that we have not received a copy

of appellant's brief, and therefore have been unable

to answer appellant's argument in a logical manner.

We have acted upon the presumption that appellant

would raise the same contentions here as it did in

the court below (all such contentions being covered

by its Assignments of Error) and have endeavored

in this brief to answer all such contentions.
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Since writing tho t'orcmnni; l»ri( I', we have this

day, OctolxT 13, 1914, iccciNcd copy of apjx'llant's

brief. \\\' will not have lime to answer this brief

in any detail if we ('omi)ly with the rules uf this

court as to the time of filiui; and serving our ))jief.

We think, however, we liave fully covered the dif-

ferent contentions made by the appellant, l)eing

practically the same argument which appellant made

in the court below.

There are many statements in appellant's ])rief

which are manifestly unjust and unfair to the ap-

[)ellee herein, and whicdi are not sustained by any

testimony in this case. Such a statement is that

at the top of page 3, where appellant infers that

this fire was of fraudulent origin for the purpose of

opening up this F. P. A. Warrauty. There is

certainly no evidence of this fact, and we think

that counsel should be severely criticized for mak-

ing any such statement. The testimony does show

that there was no officer, agent or representative

of the appellee company on board the bark "Sard-

hana" on the night of the fire, but that she was

entirely in charge of her officers and crew% the fire

having occurred about 9:30 p. m. The attitude of

the officers and crew of the "Sardhana" has been

antagonistic toward this appellee throughout the
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trial of this case. Appellant states, on the same

page, that instead of attempting to enforce our

claim against the ship for this loss and damage at

a time when the matter was fresh in mind, the

appellee, without notice of any claim whatever,

waited for two years until the witnesses had become

scattered, and then started this suit. It is significant

that the appellant did not allege in this case as a

defense, or otherwise, that the appellee had never

given it notice of loss and proof of same, as required

by its policy, and had not made a demand upon it

for the amount of its loss prior to the bringing of

this suit. Counsel for appellant knows, and this

court knows, that, in accordance with the practice

of merchants and underwriters, where the merchant

is covered by insurance placed with several com-

panies, in case of a partial loss coming within the

terms of the various policies, it is necessary to

have a particular average adjustment made so as

to apportion the loss to the various insurance com-

panies in the proportion the amount of their policy

bears to the total insurance carried. This adjust-

ment was made and bears date of May 18, 1909.

Appellee alleged and the appellant admitted in the

court below that a demand had been made against

it for its proportion of this loss. Naturally, the
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appelhr, having sustained a loss and dainago of

aj)prc>xiniately $10,000, would not sit idly l)y Tor a

jx'iiod of two years without making any claim or

demand whatever, and then suddenly conunence this

expensive litigation to recovei- such loss and dam-

age without giving the various underwriters any

op])ortunity of paying their propoilion of such loss.

Appellant's statement, on ])age 2, with icfci-

ence to discharge of a portion of this cargo piior

to the fire of November 18th, that X)art of said

cargo had been "delivered" to the assured, and that

the assured had ''taken part of the cargo into its

warehouse and was engaged in discharging and re-

ceiving the balance," is not sustained by a particle

of evidence in this case. The only evidence on this

point is the entry, under date of November 18th, as

shown in the extended protest, to the effect that some

400 cases had been discharged into lighters, 291 of

which this statement clearly shows were in lighters

alongside the ship at the time of the fire.

Appellant's argument under subdivision 1 is,

in our opinion, based upon an erroneous construction

of the decision in the Glenlivct case. As the court

will see from our citations al)ove to Anionhl on

Marine Insurance, the London Assurance vs. Com-

panhia, 167 U. S. 149, the Glenlivct case does not
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decide that a vessel must be "burnt" as a whole in

order to delete this warranty. It merely decides

that the ultimate fact as to whether or not a ship is

a "burnt ship" within the meaning of this F. P. A.

warranty, is to be decided from the facts as they

appear in each case in accordance with the '^ordjinary

use of the English language/^ Manifestly, the word,

"burnt" as applied to a ship is not synonymous

with the words "on fire." It would require much

more burning of a ship to constitute her a "burnt

ship" than it would to enable one to say that a

ship was "on fire."

The appellant's contention under this heading

that the F. P. A. warranty is an exception to the

policy in favor of the assured and should, there-

fore, be construed most strongly against the assured,

is a novel proposition of law. This court has

squarely held in the case of

Canton Insurance Office vs. Woodside, 90
Fed. 301,

that this F. P. A. warranty is an exception in

favor of the insurance company and should be most

strongly construed against the insurance company

or insurer. The wording of the policy is entirely

that of the insurer. The body of the policy covers

any partial or particular average loss, while this
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I^\ I*. A. \varranty inakt's an cxeoption in favor of

the insurer so that the imlicy only covers tor a total

joss, unless one of the excepted events happens.

It is true tliat Mr. Beckett testified in this case

that the words "on fire" were added to this F. P. A.

warranty for the purpose of giving the insured

better protection, and that the insured demanded

this additional i)rotection. In giN'ing this testimony,

however, Mr. Beckett was referring to the substitu-

tion of the words "on fire" for the word "burnt" in

this F. P. A. warranty, subsequent to the decision

in the Glcnlivct case. This sustains our contention

that the words "on fire" were substituted for the

word "burnt" for this very purpose of giving the

insured better protection, or of giving him the same

protection as it w^as understood between the insurer

and the insured, prior to the Glenlivet case, was

given him by the word *

' burnt '

'. This, however, is far

from saying that the F. P. A. warranty was at-

tached to the policy for the benefit of the insured,

but even if it were true that this warranty was

attached so as to give the insured better protection,

this could only be done by agreement between the

insured and the insurer, for which protection tli(*

insured would have to pay additional ])remium.

The wording is that of the insurance company, and,
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in a case of any doubt or ambiguity, it is strongly

construed against it.

This is the principle decided in the cases cited

by appellant on page 15 of its brief.

As we have fully covered the testimony as to

the extent of the fire on the "Sardhana", we will

not take the court's time in reviewing that testi-

mony here. We would, however, call the court's at-

tention to the testimony of Captain Wallace and

First-Mate Wylie of the "Sardhana", quoted on

pages 20 and 21 of appellant's brief. Both of these

witnesses state that the only repair made necessary

by this fire was to give the burnt door *'a coat of

new paint," or as stated by witness Wylie "simply

a rub with a paint brush." An inspection of the

door, which is in evidence as an orginal exhibit in

this case, will clearly show that this testimony is

not true. Appellant's testimony in this case shows

that no repairs were made as the result of this fire.

But this is not a criterion as to whether or not the

vessel had been on fire. In the opinion of a dis-

interested marine surveyor, this vessel was damaged

to the extent of $150 to $200, and should have been

repaired. Whether she was or was not is imma-

terial.
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Oil \)H*J^v 27, apiK'Ihiiit Muaiii makes a statciiKMit.

tliat the cntiics in tlic ])r()test are (Mititlcd t<> no

<-nnsi(lerati(m whatever boeaiise, as it claiins, tins

protest was prepared for use against the appellant

in this case. In tlie first phice, this statement is

inconsistent with the other statements made by a))-

pelhnit to tlie eifeet that this suit was an after-

thouc:ht on the part of the ap])ellee, and that ik'

demand or claim was ever made ac^ainst tlie ai)i)el-

lant until two years after the fire. If this i)rotcst

was prepared for use against appellant it was not

prepared for use in this case, or in any case, hut

was prepared as a part of appellant's proof of loss,

which shows that immediately after the damage was

ascertained, appellee was diligent in securing its

proof of loss for the purpose of making its claim

against the underwriters. It is admitted, however,

that the entries in this protest are copied from the

ship's log, and as there is no contention that the

appellee in any way influenced the officers of this

ship in making up their log-book, and as the master

and mate both testify that the entries in the log-

book are correct, we can see no merit in appel-

lant's claim that the appellee in any way influenced

the officers in making out this protest.
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Appellant contends, on pages 28 and 29, that

Mr. Frank Walker's testimony is not to be believed

for the reason that he testified that the contents

of the damaged drums were taken by meter readings,

and that Mr. Beal, the superintendent, testified

that there was no meter on the tanks in which these

drums were emptied. Mr. Walker's testimony was

given some four or five years after the contents of

these drums had been measured, and naturally, the de-

tails of just exactly what manner of measurement

was made would not be clearly in his mind. His un-

derstanding of what a meter is might be di:fferent

from that of Mr. Beal, who testified that what he

meant by a meter was a device through which the

creosote was run and which registered the number

of gallons. What Mr. Walker meant by the word

"meter" is not shown, nor do we think it material.

He testified that he was in attendance for the pur-

pose of finding out the shortage, if any, and the

amount of damage to drums, and that at the time

he made his report, he satisfied himself that the

same was correct.

Appellant argues on page 33 that the appli-

cant for insurance should have made it clear to

the insurance company as to what protection he

desired, or rather, what he construed the words "on
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lire" ti) mean. The roiirt will ii(»ti<-e Hint l)utli the

pnliry and the warranty are in jjriiited f'ni-iii, and

it socins t«> us (dear that it was the (hilt/ of tin

insHrance company to liavc so ivonlid this jxdicij

and the warranty that there would he no cause for

anibiyuity. In other words, that if the insurance

company intended to limit its liability under the

words "on fire" beyond the ordinary meaning of

such words, it should have so inserted the limita-

tion in its policy. It will be noted in connection

with the words "in collision" that the insurance

company has noted such limitation. It is not the

duty of the insured to word the policy, nor would

the insurance company allow the insured to dictate

to it the wording of its own policies.

Appellant's statement on page 35, that Mr.

Beckett's (the average adjuster of London, Eng-

land, referred to by Judge Neterer in his decision

in the lower court) experience prior to 1911 as an

average adjuster is "not revealed," is an incorrect

statement of fact. The record in tliis case shows

that Mr. Beckett has been an average adjuster since

the year 1897, and previous to his connection with

Johnson & Higgins he was connected with the firms

of F. C. Dawson & Co., of Liverpool, England, and
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Manley, Hopkins' Son & Corliss, of London and

Liverpool, England. (Record p. 228.)

Appellant spends a large amount of time in

criticising the testimony of Mr. Beckett, but has

offered no testimony whatever to contradict Mr.

Beckett's testimony as to the practice of English

underwriters and adjusters, in construing this F.

P. A. warranty. If Mr. Beckett's testimony on

this point was not correct, appellant could very

easily have obtained competent testimony to con-

tradict it. Appellant did take testimony in London,

England, in this case, but it did not seek to take

any testimony on this particular point, although

contending throughout the trial of the case that this

policy was to be construed according to English law

and practice.

Under the next heading, appellant contends that

the lighter which capsized on November 21st was un-

seaworthy at the time the cargo was loaded aboard

her. As stated in our argument above, under this

head, there is no warranty of seaworthiness as to

such a lighter used in discharging cargo. The New

York case cited on page 41 of appellant's brief

was that of an instance where flat boats were used

upon a distinct stage of the voyage, and the war-

ranty of seaworthiness in that case would be a war-
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I'anty which is implied uiuhM- the doctrine of voyage

ill stages as to cacli se])arate stage.

Exaiiiiiiatioii of tlic testimony of Mr. Veaton,

referred to on i)ages 44 and 45, for the pnrjxjse

of showing that there was no nnnsnal weatlier on

the night that this lighter capsized, will show that

at the time Mr. Yeaton was not on watch, and knew

absolntely nothing abont the weather on the night

in qnestion antl was probably asleep nntil he was

awakened at the time the lighter capsized.

The testimony shows that Eagle Harl)()r was a

land-locked harbor and considered perfectly safe

(Record p. 265). While this lighter might not have

l)een seaworthy in the sense that it w^onld stand

weather which is ordinarily encountered in the open

sea, still there could be no doubt but that it was

seaworthy for a land-locked harlK)r. The term

*' seaworthy" is a relative term. What would con-

stitute seaworthiness under certain conditions would

not constitute seaworthiness under other conditions.

"It is obvious that there can be no fixed

and positive standard of seawoi-thincss, but that

it must vary with the varying exigencies of mer-
cantile enterprises. 'The ship,' said Lord
Cairns, 'should l)e in a condition to encounter

whatever perils of the sea a ship of that kind,

and laden in that way, may be fairly expected

to encounter' on the voyage. That state of re-
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pair and equipment which would constitute

seaworthiness for one description of voyage
might be wholly inadequate for another. * * *"

Arnould on Marine Insurance, Vol. 2, Sec-

tion 710.

Appellant's statement, on page 59, that it was

the custom of the creosoting company to tow these

lighters away from the ship as soon as they were

loaded, and that the creosoting company was negli-

gent in leaving this lighter alongside the ship

over night, is not borne out by the evidence, and

appellant's own witness Tuttle testified, as we have

stated above, that it was customary when a lighter

was loaded to either leave her alongside the ship,

or to tow her to a buoy in the harbor, sometimes

leaving her there for two or three days. The testi-

mony also shows, as we have stated above, that the

unloading of the "Sardhana" was entirely in the

hands of the Washington Stevedoring Company,

under the supervision of the master of the "Sard-

hana" (Record p. 123; Answer 21st Int.), and that

the appellee had nothing whatever to do with these

lighters. The testimony does not show that this

lighter was fully loaded. In fact, we think the

testimony shows to the contrary, as it is admitted

that this lighter had 272 drums on her at the time

the longshoremen quit work for the day, while the
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])r()tcst shows that tlic liuhtci- which was Icl't alon^-

idc of the haik "Sardhana" on the niixlil iA' thr

tire had 1^91 drums aboard.

Under the uext heading, on page (JT, apjx'liant

contends that as Mr. Walker's survey is dated De-

cember 28th, and as the testimony shows that the

contents of the drums discharged from the "8ard-

hana" were not all emptied until some time in

^laich, that this conclusively shows that Mr. Walker

made out his survey report before the drums were

discharged. Mr. Walker's survey report, however,

is not dated December 28th. It merely shows that

he was in attendance at Eagle Harbor from No-

vember 17th to December 28th, 1908. Mr. Walker

did not contend that he was in attendance at Eagle

Hai'bor during all the time that the entire cargo

discharged from the "Sardhana" was being emptied.

In making his survey, Mr. Walker merely measured

the contents from the 741 damaged drums which

were partially empty at the time of being discharged.

Mr. Beal, the superintendent, testified that these

damaged drums were emptied first, that the leaky

drums were emptied immediately upon being dis-

charged from the "Sardhana" (Record p. 91). Mr.

Walker w^ould, of course, have no interest in watch-
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ing the discharge or dumping of the drums which

turned out in good order and condition.

On page 88, appellant contends that the entries

in the protest show drums were found "adrift and

rolling about in all directions," that these drums

must have been on top tiers, and that, therefore,

these drums were discharged first, and from this

he concludes that of the 400, and some odd drums,

which were discharged on lighters previous to the

fire, they must have all been damaged drums. The

fallacy of this argument, however, is that the en-

tries in the protest show that the cargo which broke

loose during the voyage was all in the hold of the

ship. Before unloading this cargo, of course, it

would be necessary to unload the cargo of the 'tween

decks. The testimony of Mate Wylie shows that

at the time of the fire a portion of the cargo had

been discharged from the after 'tween decks, there

being no testimony to show that any of this cargo

ever broke loose or worked during the course of the

voyage, so that it was in any way damaged, the tes-

timony being that when the ship arrived at Eagle

Harbor the cargo on her 'tween decks was in good

condition and well stowed.

As we have answered the remaining portions of

appellant's brief rather fully, we will not take up
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the eoui-t's time in considering the ai)i)ellaiit's argii-

niciit ill detail.

Ill ei)neliisii)U, \vc vespectfully suhinil tlial the

appellee has proven l>y direct and positive testimony

tlie entire amount of loss claimed by it; that it has

])roven this loss was all occasioned by perils insured

against; and that it has proven that the *'Sardhana"

was "on fire," within the meaning of the F. P. A.

warranty, to an extent sufficient to delete the said

warranty and to entitle it to recover for the par-

ticular or partial loss as claimed.

These being all questions of fact decided l).y

the lower court, upon disputed testimony, and there

being ample and sufficient evidence in the case to

sustain the lower court 's conclusions, we respectfully

submit that the decree of that court should be af-

firmed and that the appellee should be allowed its

costs on its appeal.

Respectfully submitted,

W. H. BOGLE,

CARROLL B. GRAVES,

F. T. MERRTTT,

LAWRENCE BOGLE.
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APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF.

CONSTRUCTION OF F. P. A. CLAUSE (Appellee's Brief, 10-13).

Appellee seems to lay great stress on the fact that both

Judge Hanford on exceptions and Judge Neterer on

the trial took the view contended for by it, and says

that these two decisions are '^entitled to great iveight".

We have already shown, as to Judge Hanford 's deci-

sion, that it was rendered upon the exaggerated state-

ments of the libd as to the extent of the fire, namely:

that "the bulkhead forward of the lazarette, the door

thereof, a/nd a considerable portion of dunnage and

other parts" of the ship were burned (Libel, Record, 5)

;

and the decision expressly refers to the bulkhead as

being a part of the ship burned (Record, 322). As



to Judge Neterer's decision, it is clearly erroneous

because it holds that the allegations of the fire's extent,

as shown by the mate's log, are " sustained by the

evidence" (Record, 326), the said log reciting that

the "bulkhead, together with the door thereof, * * *

were burned" (Id., 326-327). Furthermore, Judge

Neterer's decision is based upon an erroneous concep-

tion as to what is shown by the evidence as being

the result of the Glenlivet decision, the court saying:

"After this case was decided the words 'on fire' were

substituted for the word 'burned'." The only evidence

in the case touching this matter is that of Mr, Beckett,

who testifies that " 'Burned' has not been left out of

the clause but 'on fire' has been added" (Record, 232).

And Gow confirms Mr. Beckett's statement when he

says: "Since the issue of the decision some slips have

had the words 'on fire' added to 'burnt' " (Gow, 181).

We submit that the construction may well be differ-

ent where, instead of an addition to the word 'burnt',

there is before the court a clause with no showing that

any part of it was intended to supplement anything.

The situation calls solely for a construction of the

clause reading: "stranded, sunk or on fire", and in

support of our contention as to its meaning we invoke

the principle upon which the clause "stranded, sunk

or burnt" was construed.

Judge Neterer's reference, by way of comparison, to

the memorandum in the body of the policy reading:

"sunk or burnt", and the slip reading: "sunk or on

fire", to the effect that the use of both expressions

clearly evidences a purpose in the minds of the parties



ti) innk(.' a clistinguislinient is far from coiivinciii^.

In fai't, it' the word **burnt" is given, as in tlie (Jlen-

livet ease, a meaning wliieli excludes the idea of total

destruction, then tlio two expressions are entirely

iiarmonious in tiieir meaning; wliilo on the otlier hand,

if the j)rincii)le of a substantial huming of the ship

as a whole is ai)plied to the exception in the memo-

randum and discarded as to the slip, the contract

])ecomes iniiarmonious and ambiguous. Such a con-

struction should bo avoided if i)ossible.

Assuming, as stated by counsel, that the form of

the policy is furnished by the insurance company, and

that it is drawn to evidence the intention of the i)arties

(Brief, 14), we submit that the proper and only con-

clusion arising from the construction of the contract

as a whole is, that the two exceptions,—''burnt" and

"on fire",—were used with the intention that they

should harmonize, and not that they should be read

so as to be applicable to radically different sets of

facts. From the underwriter' view there can be no

escape from the proposition that harmony and not

conflict was the intention. In view of the known con-

struction of the former expression, it is inconceivable

that the company, in framing the wording of the slip,

should have deliberately so framed it as to make it

ambiguous. No one, having in mind the Glenlivet

decision, could say that, in the use by the company of

the words of the slip, it was intended to destroy or

disturb the favorable construction which had been given

to the analogous subject matter expressed in the use

of the word *'hunit". Had such been the intention,



the ease with which it could have been shown is potent

evidence of the contention that the framer of the slip

had adopted the narrow meaning of the word ^' burnt",

and had expressed such meaning by using the analo-

gous words ''on fire".

We submit that the statement of counsel that the

use of the words ''on fire" was intended to reinstate

a situation which existed before the Glenlivet deci-

sion (Brief, 21), has no basis in fact, and to say that

it has, is no more proper than for us to state that

many policies before the Glenlivet decision used the

words "on fire" and not "burnt",—a statement which

can be verified we believe by an inspection of some

of the old forms.

As to Mr. Beckett's testimony that the burning of

the bulkhead door, in his opinion, would open the war-

ranty (Brief, 23), we submit that counsel need not stop

there. According to this witness any structural part

of the ship burned would delete the warranty, how-

ever trivial or to whatever extent the ship had been on

fire. Furthermore, Mr. Beckett's testimony all applies

to the warranty reading: "stranded, sunk, burnt, on

fire or in collision".

It is said that in the Glenlivet case "no part of the

fabric or structure of the ship itself was 'burnt' or

'on fire' " (Brief, 24). (Note the analogous use made

by counsel of the two expressions.) In this counsel

is mistaken. Lindley, L. J., says:

a * * * Q^^ gj,g ^g^g gQ severe that some
damage was done to the structure of the ship; it



is iiiHuvessary to particularize it, * * * l)ut it

is sullieient to say tiiat the lire clearly iujured the

ship".

7 Asp. (N. S.) 21)5.

Again, JSmith, L. .J., says of the fire:

"Au augle iron buckled down and the wood cas-

ing was destroyed".

(Id., 39G).

Again, in the statement of the facts preceding tho

tiial court's decision, we find:

"There was some damage to the ship's })lating,

brick and wood casing and hatches".

(Id., 342).

Counsel says that Bouvier defines the words "on

fire" as the "effect of combustion" (Brief, 30). This

is precisely the definition which makes those words

synonymous to the expression "burnt".

Again, counsel says at p. 32 of brief, that the opinion

of Mr. Walton, referred to at p. 31 of brief, clearly

shows that the word "on fire" were substituted for the

word "burnt" after the Glenlivet decision. In this, we

submit, counsel is in error, for in the opinion referred to,

the expression on fire, is used within quotation marks,

thereby showing that some policies before the Glenli-

vet decision contained the expression "on fire", althougli

the policy submitted to Mr. Walton contained tho

expression "burnt". Mr. Walton's opinion was directed

solely to the question of whether the warranty was

oi)ened or not in the case of ship's stores being burnt,

and he was of the opinion that, whether the expres-

sion was "o7i fire" or "burnt", the combustion must

be of some part of the fabric of the ship.



FACTS AS TO THE "SAEDHANA'S" FIRE.

Under this head the decision of Judge Hanford on

exceptions is quoted as showing that the words "on

fire" "are indicative of a happening whereby a ship

is endoAigered hy actual burning some pa<rt of it * * *

A fire in that part of a ship (bulkhead between decks)

* * *
if fi,ot promptly subdued, would certainly be

destructive and such a happening u?ould be truthfully

described by saying the ship was 'on fire' " (Brief,

34). This test, we submit, is as equally applicable to

the expression "burnt" as "on fire", and yet in the

Glenlivet case it was expressly rejected, Smith, L. J.,

saying:

''Now I come to the suggestion of Mr. Aspinall

that it (burnt) means the initiation of such a fire

that, unless it were put out, it would consume the

ship. I cannot think that can be the meaning of

this for there never could be a fire which, if not
put out, might not consume the ship."

7 Asp. (N. S.) 396.

Counsel is not accurate, therefore, in his contention

that Judge Hanford 's test is not contrary to the law

of the Glenlivet case, for we submit that it is in direct

contradiction of it.

The only remaining matter under this head which

requires further answer relates to the contention that

the entries of the ship's log are governed by the Eng-

lish Merchants Shipping Act of 1894 (Brief, 38). Coun-

sel again falls into error in supposing that the log in

question is the official log required by this act. Usually

there are on British ships a log kept by the mate, some-

times called the mate's log, and the official log required



by the Aft roforred to. Tlio former is a diary of

the ship's voyage, while the latter is in tlie form issued

by the Board of Trade, in which certain matters must

be entered as provided l)y section 240 and other sec-

tions of the act. These matters are convictions of

offenses l)y the crew, illness or injury of tlie crew,

marriages, births, deaths, names of seamen employed

and discharged, wages and collisions with otlier ships,

the amount of freeboard and various other matters

of a similar character. These are the things which

by section 240 of the act are made admissible as evi-

dence. The mate's log, which contains a statement of

the fire on the "Sardhana", is not an official log, and

the entries found in it are not evidence of the facts

enumerated, nor are they admissible against this

appellant. The only office of wliich they are susceptible

would be as an impeachment of the evidence of the wit-

nesses signing the same and, if used for such pur-

l)ose, are su])ject to rules applicable to the imjjeach-

ment of witnesses. Both Wallace and Wylie admitted

they signed the log, and that ends the matter. Under

the sanction of a judicial oath their evidence was taken,

and that evidence alone is the court's guide in this

case. The facts set forth in the mate's log are not

such as are required by the British Act iuid, therefore,

are not evidence against the ap])ellant of the facts

contained therein on any theor>^ known to us, and a

fortiori, the protest, admittedly copied from the log,

is not evidence against apjiellant of the facts stated

in it.

Counsel suggests that the log is admissible in rebuttal

of the master's and mate's testimony (Brief, 44). Here



8

again counsel is in error, for if it be admissible at

all to establish the facts it contains, it is admissible

for all purposes. But as we have said, its only legal

use would be, not to establish the truth of the facts

it contains, but to impeach or discredit the testimony

of Wallace and Wylie, and, when used for such pur-

pose, certain well known requisites must be complied

with, which it is sufficient to say were not complied

with here, even though it were admitted that there is

any material unexplained difference between the log

entries and the testimony. Of course, it is perfectly

clear that the entries in the protest were made from the

mate's log, for Capt. Wallace testifies that the appellee

asked him for the '^ mate's log book" and he gave it to

them (Record, 116).

Reference is also made to Mr. Walker's report of

survey of this fire (Brief, 44), which report, upon

examination and comparison, will be found to be a copy

of the entry of the log. Of course, this ex parte

report is not evidence, and yet we submit that it was

from the fact^ enumerated in this survey report that

the witness Walker testified (Opening Brief, 28). Much

is said of the excitement and the precautionary meas-

ures taken on the occasion of the fire, but such matters

are not necessarily evidence of the fire's extent, but

in this case simply show the caution used to prevent

what might have been a serious conflagration (see

Record, 159-160).

Superintendent F. D. Beal's testimony with reference

to the extent of the fire, illustrated by his diagram

(Record, 96), has already received attention (Opening

Brief, 30).



We admit dial it is ininiatorial whetlior repairs wcro

made or not (Brief, 55), but the fact tlmt no repairs

were considered necessary by the interested owners,

has some bearing ui)on the question of the fire's extent.

SUE AND LABOR EXPENSES.

Under this head there are several matters to which

l)rief replies should be made:

1. It is said that tlie lighter which capsized was but

partially loaded, and that in accordance with custom

it was left moored alongside the "Sardhana" for the

purpose of comjjleting the loading ''the folloiving day"

(Brief, 57). This statement, which bears on the ques-

tion of ai)pellee's negligence, is not sustained by the

record. Preece, the boss stevedore who loaded the

barge, says it was completely loaded:

Q. Was the barge completely loaded or not?

A. Just finished.

Q. Completely loaded? A. Yes.

Record, 278.

Furthermore, this witness says it was the custom of

the creosote people to tow these lighters when loaded

away from the ''Sardhana", but that in this j^articu-

lar instance it was not done (Id., 279). This evidence

also meets appellee's claim (Brief, pp. 102-103) that

the drums discharged before the fire were presumably

still in the lighters and therefore still at risk. No

such presumption can be indulged in and, moreover,

the drums, even if still in lighters, were covered by a

"separate insurance."
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2. Counsel refers to the evidence of Superintendent

Beal (Record, 69), as showing that the particular lighter

in question was examined on the night she 'capsized

''after she had been fully loaded" (a statement incon-

sistent with the contention that it was not fully loaded),

and found to be all right (Brief, 60). This testimony

of Mr. BeaPs (Record, 70) will be seen to refer to an

examination generally of the lighters made before send-

ing them out to be loaded, and not an examination made

after they were loaded. This evidence is further

referred to as showing ''conclusively that the lighter

was seaworthy at the time it was put into use" (Brief,

60). Beal simply says that every night before sending

the scows out they were sounded, and that, although

there is always some water in them, there was not

enough to be considered dangerous ''if she had remained

as she was" (Record, 70), but additional water got in

during the night (Id., 71), and, in his opinion, that

would be the only means of capsizing the lighter

(Id., 80).

3. Counsel next says that "it is possible that this

lighter did sink or capsize because of water in it", and

then makes the contention that the water did not come

through open seams but through open hatches (Brief,

61-62). Although no one knows whether the water

came in through the sides or from the top, it obviously

makes no difference on the question of the lighter's

fitness or seaworthiness. If her hatches permitted of

water passing down into her hold, so as to list her and

cause capsizing, the lighter was just as unseaworthy

as if the water came in through her seams and accom.

plished the same result.
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4. It is next said that if the appellee had furnished

the lighters tliere might have been some ground for

our contention of an ini[)lied warranty of seaworthuiess

(Hrief, 64), but the facts show, liowever, that "appel-

lant" (appellee) did not ovm or furnish the lighters

(Brief, 64), but that they were furnished by the Wash-

ington Stevedoring Co. (Id., 65). It is true that the

lighters were not owned by the appellee, and were

furnished by the Washington Stevedoring Co., and that

tlie master of the "Sardhana" su})erintcnded the dis-

charge of his ship into them; but the situation cannot

be thus technically met. Who furnished the Washing-

ton Stevedoring Co.? Surely not the owners of the

ship, for their liability ceased at the ship's tackles.

Surely not the Thames & ^lersey Marine Insurance

Co. It is futile for appellee to avoid responsibility

on this point. The use of these lighters was for

appellee's benefit; the appellee inspected them at night

before sending them out (Record, 70) ; when they were

loaded the appellee towed them away (Id., 279), and

when this particular scow capsized it was appellee's

surveyor who surveyed it for the purjjose of ascertain-

ing its condition.

Under these circumstances, the liability as matter

of law rests upon the appellee.

EXTENT AND CAUSE OF LOSS (Brief, 71).

Pages 71 to 78, inclusive, are devoted by counsel to

a statement tending to show a short delivery of 56,267.2

gallons of loose creosote. Even assuming the truth of
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every fact stated, there is still to be shown a loss of

creosote through a peril insured against. Such loss

has not been shown, for ''short delivery" is not one

of the enumerated perils of the policy. If it had been,

we hardly think the insurer would have been satisfied

with an ex parte measurement of the drums' contents

either at the port of shipment or the port of discharge.

On the other hand, all the facts of the case negative

the necessary claim of a loss through a peril insured

against,—the "Sardhana" was seaworthy, did not leak,

no creosote was pumped overboard and all loose creo-

sote was delivered. The trial court did not seem to

think it necessary, however, that it be shown that the

creosote loss was occasioned by a peril insured against,

for it says:

"The ship Sardhana being seaworthy when she
left London, the cargo in good order and condition

when received by the ship, the damage to the

drums being external, and it conclusively appear-
ing that there was a loss of cargo, the libelant is

entitled to recover his damage."

(Record, 331).

Counsel characterizes the evidence of Capt. Wallace,

Mate Wylie and Apprentice Yeaton to the effect that

the ''Sardhana" did not leak and took no water dur-

ing the voyage as negative testimony (Brief, 80), and,

in impeachment of Capt. Wallace, quotes testimony

he is said to have admitted giving in the case of the

"Jupiter", where he says the ''Sardhana" took in a lot

of water on deck at times (Brief, 81). Counsel says

that, in view of this admitted fact that the "Sardhana"
took considerable water, it is inconceivable that the
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pumps were not used once on the voyage as lestifieil

to by botli AVylio and Yeaton (Brief, 82), and that tlie

log entries: 'Tumps, lufhts, and lookout carefully

aiiended to'' are si^uilicant.

This court will clearly sec tliat counsel is led into

error when he assumes that, because a vessel ships

water during rough weather, it follows that water

passes into the hold, and as a consequence the pumps

are used to get rid of it Neither the deck nor hatehes

of a seaworthy ship permit of water passing into the

hold, and it is a conmion occurrence, known to all

seamen, to liave a ship take water on her decks in

rough weather. Such is always to be expectetl, even

of seaworthy vessels, but water so taken on board a

seaworthy ship does not i)ass into the hold, nor does

it necessitate the use of the pumps.

For counsel to refer to the finding of the court, in

the case of the "Jupiter", that "most of the spillage

was pumped out of the ship and wasted" (Brief, 85),

in support of a similar contention in this case, where

the proof is that none of the "spillage" was pumped

out of the ship or wasted, is, we submit, improj)er. We
are not familiar with the evidence given in the case of

the "Jupiter", but, if the court made the finding

referred to, there must have been pro]ier evidence to

support it; whereas, in the case at bar, the evidence is

the other way.

Ap})ellee's witness, Walker, it is true, when asked

what became of the 50,267.2 gallons of missing creosote,

says:

"I don't know. All I can tell you is what the

crew told me, that it was pumj^ed overbear*?."

(Record, 217).



14

But, of course, this hearsay of the witness will be

given no consideration.

Appellee's excuse for not libelling the "Sardhama"

for this claimed shortage of creosote, which nobody can

account for, is that because of the wording of the

charter party consignee was compelled to pay freight

on the number of drums delivered, irrespective of their

condition or contents (Brief, 85). What that situation

has to do with a claim for short delivery against the

ship, we are at a loss to understand. Counsel refers

to appellee's inability to prove directly that the creo-

sote was pumped overboard as arising through the

antagonistic attitude of the mate and master of the

" Sardhana'\ This is a remarkable contention. The

evidence of both these witnesses was taken by written

interrogatories, not one of which, propounded by the

appellee, was directed towards the ascertainment of the

fact of creosote being pumped overboard. And we

submit furthermore that the answers to all of appel-

lee's cross-interrogatories are fairly made, and show

no trace of an antagonistic attitude towards the appel-

lee. We presume that the dispute between the appellee

and the ship, referred to by counsel in this connection

(Brief, 85), is supposed to find support in the follow-

ing testimony of H. E. Stevens, appellee's bookkeeper:

Q. Mr. Stevens, state if you know whether any
claim was made against the ship for shortage, short
delivery of this shipment.

A. We protested against payment of freight, but
the charter party was made out and the number
of drums being delivered, that we were to pay on
the number of drums delivered. We were com-
pelled to pay the freight.

(Record, 170).
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We know of no other evidence on the sulgoitt that

counsel could point to, and we submit Uiat if tlie fore-

going is all, then to claim that it establishes a dispute

is preposterous.

At p. 86 of the brief we call the court's further atten-

tion to the assertion there made that the burden is on

the appellant to prove that there was no loss of creo-

sote. We deny any such obligation, and assert that,

not only is the burden on the a])i)ellee to show clearly

that tliere was a loss, but also, what is more to the

point, a loss arising through a peril insured against.

As to the damaged drums, and counsel's criticism of

appellant for its failure to i)roduce the tally sheet of

the witness Wylie (Brief, 86-87), we have already

referred to tliis matter in our opening brief as being

one of the results of this delayed litigation (Opening

Brief, 80). Wylie doubtless tallied the cargo so as to

check up the bills of lading. Finding no claim was

made against the ship for shortage, his tally sheets

would have no further value. But counsel further says

that "if this tally (Wylie's) varied from appellee's, why

did not appellant produce the custom house tailyf"

(Brief, 87). The reason that appellant did not produce

this tally is that there is no evidence of its existence,

and moreover we venture the opinion tliat, though

the tally of the customs authorities had been available,

it would not necessarily have shown the number of

damaged drums, for that the dnmis may have been

dented was of no concern on the question of duty to

be paid. Furthermore, as the burden of proving the

number of drums damaged was on the appellee, and
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as it produced no tally sheet of its own in support of

this burden, we assume that, had the proof been avail-

able from the customs authorities, appellee would have

seen to its production. While appellee has probably

shown damage to creosote containers, caused by perils

insured against, it fails utterly to answer our conten-

tion that, as the evidence shows a loss or damage before

the vessel encountered any of the perils insured against,

as well as a loss or damage from such perils, the

burden is on it to show the quantum of loss for which

appellant is liable.

As to counsel's attempted answer to the contention

that the F. P. A. warranty is only opened as to goods

on board at the time of the fire, we submit that it

fails. We do not controvert the principle of law that

the happening of the excepted event deletes the war-

ranty, even as to damage caused by some other peril.

What we do contend, however, is that the goods must

be at risk on board the ship, or craft, at the time of

the happening of the excepted event, and as to loss or

damage to goods not so on board the warranty is not

opened. This is clearly the law, as shown by the cases

cited by us. In attempting to meet this legal situation,

however, counsel contends that none of the damaged

drums had been discharged from the ship before the

fire, and bases such contention on the inference that

all the damaged drums must have been in the hold of

the vessel, and that the discharge of the first two days

preceding the fire must have been from the between decks,

where there was no damage. This is an unwarranted

•inference. No evidence is cited to directly sustain this
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view, and tlic inference is drawn from <'er1ain entries

in the mate's log. Let us briefly look into tliis matter.

It will be noted that tlie boss stevedore, Preeco, says

that the *tween deck cargo adjacent to the bulkhead,

wliere the fire occurreil, iiad not been discbarged at

the time of tlie fire (Record, 282). Furthermore, the

"Sardhana" had but one clear hold, but with 'tween

deck beams seven feet below the main deck, on which

beams, around the ship's sides, are laid a deck four

or five feet wide on which cargo was stowed. The lazar-

ette communicates with the hold through the sliding

door that was on fire, and when the drums shifted at

sea the hold was entered through the sliding door

(Record, 161). This description of the ship by Capt.

Wallace destroys the inference made by counsel from

the log entries, for clearly, when the use is made in

the log of the word "hold", there was no ])ur|)ose to

distinguish between the hold and the 'tween decks.

When the drums were chocked ofif at sea the sliding

door remained open, "it being jammed by the creosote

drums" (Id.). This jamming of the drums was between

decks, and clearly shows that the entry of September

4tli in the log: "The drums were found to be adrift

and were rolling about in all directions", alludes to the

'tween deck cargo as well as to the hold.

Furthermore, Capt. Wallace testifies that there were

damaged drums among the 427 discharged })rior to the

fire, for he says:

"At the time of the fire we had discharged 427

dnims, some of which were no doubt slightly dam-
aged."

(Id., 162).
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This shows that there were damaged drums dis-

charged before the fire and, if appellee has failed to

prove the exact number of them, it follows that it has

also failed to show the number remaining at risk on

board at the time of the fire.

Reference is made to the testimony of Mr. Beal

(Brief, 119) to meet our suggestion that the loss of

creosote probably resulted from appellee's delay in

measuring it (Opening Brief, 71). Despite Mr. Beal's

testimony that the damaged drums were not left in

the yards of appellee, but such as leaked were dumped

at once (Record, 91) ; we contend that the record abounds

with proof that this statement is not accurate. In the

first place, there is no proof showing a separate meas-

urement of leaking or damaged drums from undamaged

ones. If the two classes of drums had been separately

measured, there would certainly have remained some

evidence showing the quantity measured from the dam-

aged drums. Beal was expressly questioned on this

matter

:

Q. Do your records there show the dates this

creosote from the damaged drums were dumped and
measured?

A. No.

Q. You testified they were dumped somewhere
from the latter part of November to the 8th of

March; do you know upon what dates during that

period they were dumped?
A. No, I could not tell from this record. These

notations just show that they were dumped between
those dates.

(Record, 91).

The record is clear that all of the claimed 741 drums

were so damaged as to be unmerchantable (Barnaby,
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1224), and, it' so, tlioy iimsl all have hecn leaking, for

a dent without a leak would eertiiinly not make the

drums unmerchantable. Walker's survey report shows

that every one of the damaged drums leaked (llecord,

22). Barnal)y says: "/ dou*t think that there ivere any

that I saw more tJuin half full" (Record, 225).

If there was a shortage of 56,207.2 gallons, then, as

each drum contained about 109 gallons, there must have

been such a leakage as would empty 515 full drums.

However, the principle remains the same, no matter

whether they were damaged or undamaged drums which

were left from November to March unmeasurt^d. No

one knows what happened to the contents of even full

drums left unmeasured in appellee's yard duriug such

a length of time. The matter is not of special im-

portance, and was only referred to by us by way of

suggesting a reason for the shortage.

In the case of the "Jupiter", where the shortage

was 51,321 imperial gallons, approximating very closely

56,267.2 U. S. gallons, the reason for the shortage

appears while, in the case at bar, there is an entire

absence of evidence showing a shortage through a peril

insured against.

Dated, San Francisco,

November 5, 1914.

Respectfully submitted,

E. B. McClanahan,

S. IT. Derby,

Proctors for Appellant.
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In I he Dislrirf Conrl of tlu I'liihd States, in tuid

for the District of Moutitmi.

rXlTKD STATES OF AMERICA,

Coni })J(ii))(i))t,

vs. No. 94().

I^^RANK D. COOPER and CEORCE IIEATON,

J)ef('n<l<tnfs.

BE IT REMEMBERED, tliat on the 7tli day cf

Decombcr, 19()f), complainant filed its I>ill of Com-

plaint herein, in tlie words and fiiini-cs I'dilowing,

to-wit:
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In the Circuit Court of the United States, Ninth Cir-

cuit, District of Montana.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Complainant,

vs.

FRANK D. COOPER and GEORGE HEATON,
Defendants.

IN EQUITY.

BILL OF COMPLAINT.

To the Llonorable, the Circuit Court of the United

States, Ninth Circuit, in and for the District of

Montana :

—

The United States of America, by George W.
Wickersham, Attorney-General of the United

States, and James W. Freeman, United States At-

torney" for the District of Montana, brings this

bill of complaint against Frank D. Cooper, a re-

sident of the State of Montana, and George Heaton,

a resident of the Southern District of the State of

Iowa, the defendants herein, and thereupon your

orator complains and says

:

FIRST

:

That on and prior to the 19 day of June, A. D.

1902, your orator was the owner in fee simple of

those certain public lands situated in the state and

district of Montana and within the Helena Land

District, and now within the land district of which

the land office is at Great Falls, Montana, and more

particularly described as follows

:
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Tlic Soutlu'ast Quaitci- nl' tlie Soiitliwcst (Juartci-

of Section Eight (8), the east Half of the iKirthwcst

Quarter and the southwest quarter of the northwest

cpiarter of Section Seventeen (17), townsliip Nine-

teen (19) Nortli of range tliree (15) West, containing

one hundred and sixty (KiO) acres of land, situated,

lying and being in the county of (Cascade, state and

district of Montana, and within the jurisdiction of

this court.

That one Jay 0. Freeman, on tlie said 1!) da>- <»r

June, A. 1)., 1902, under and by Nii'tuc ni' tlic \)Vn-

visions of Section 2289 of tlie Revised Statutes of

the United States, made and filed in the local land

office of the United States, at Helena, in the State

and District of Montana, his application No. 1:)')()8,

to enter as a homestead the lands hereinabove de-

scri])ed.

SECOND:
That at the time of the filing by the said Ja\- C.

Freeman, of his said homestead applicati(»n No.

13568, to enter the above desci'ibed lands and prem-

ises, and contemporaneously therewith, lie likewise

filed in the said local land office of the United

States, as required by law, his affidavit and state-

ment in writing under oath, in which, among other

matters and things, he stated and deposed that his

said application to enter said land as a homestead

w\as honestly and in good faith made foi- the ])ur-

pose of actual settlement and cultivation and that

he would faithfully and honestly endeavor to com])ly

with all the requirements of law as to said land and
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the residence and cultivation necessary to acquire

the title to said land so applied for and had not and

did not apply to enter said lands for the purpose of

speculation, but in good faith to make a home for

himself. That thereupon the said Jay C. Freem,

then and there paid to the Receiver of the said

local land office of the United States, at Helena,

Montana, the sum of sixteen dollars, the same being

the proper and legal fee then and there due and

payable to the said Receiver upon the filing of said

application aforesaid. That thereafter on the second

day of July, A. D., 1902, and upon such payment

having been made as aforesaid, a receipt was then

and there issued and delivered by the said Receiver

of the said Helena Land Office to the said Jay C.

Freeman for said amount of money so paid by him

as aforesaid, and attached to an connected with said

receipt was and is a notation setting forth in detail

the requirements of the law to be observed and com-

plied with by the said Jay C. Freeman, in order to

obtain title to said lands so applied for by him as

aforesaid and to be entered by him, as follows, to-

wit: "Note.—It is required of the homestead set-

tler that he shall reside upon and cultivate the land

embraced in his homestead entry for a period of

five years from the time of filing the affidavit, be-

ing also the date of entry. An abandonment of the

land for more than six months works a forfeiture

of the claim. Further, within two years of the ex-

piration of the said five years, he must offer proof

of his actual settlement and cultivation, failing to
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(In wliicli, his entry will Ix' cancelled. If the settler

does n(»t wish t<t remain l"ivo years on his ti-aet. he

can, at any time after t'oni-teen months, i)ay Inr it

with cash oi- land warrants, \\\h\\\ makin-;- pi'oof <»1'

settlement and of residence and cultivation I'l-om the

(hite of filing affidavit to the time of ])ayiiient/'

THIRD:
That thereupon, in order to entitle the said Jay

(\ Freeman to obtain and procure from the said

Laiited States a patent for said tract of land under

the homestead laws of the United States, it was in-

cumbent upon him, and he was required to make,

actual settlement upon the said lands and reside

thereon and cultivate the same for a period of five

years from and after the time of the filing in said

local land office at Helena, Mcmtana, of his said aj)-

})lication and affidavit hereinbefcu-e set foi'th, or in

case, he did not desire to remain upon said land the

full period of five years to make payment for the

said land at the expiration of fourteen months frt>m

and after the filing of said ap})lication and affi-

davit, upon making proof before the Register and

Receiver of the said local land office of the United

States, at Helena, Montana, of settlement upon and

cultivation of said lands by the said Jay (\ Free-

man from the date of the filing of' said application

and affidavit down to the time of making such pay-

ment. That for the purpose of availing himself ot

the privilege afforded by law in such case made and

[)rovided, to puichase the said lands after the ex-

piration of fourteen uKniths frt)m and after the date
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of the filing by him of said application and affi-

davit, on or about the 19th day of June, A. D., 1902,

as aforesaid, the said Jay C. Freeman, on the 18

day of August, 1904, appeared before J. M. Burlin-

game, then and there the Register of the United

States Land Office at Great Falls, Montana, which

said land office was then and there the proper local

land office for making final proof upon said home-

stead entry hereinbefore mentioned, with his final

proof witnesses, William S. ? Kirkland and Richard

T. Loss, and offered proof before the said Register

and Receiver that he had settled upon said lands and

premises and actually resided thereon and cultivated

the same as required by, and within the meaning

and intent of, the said homestead laws of the said

United States; and then and there gave, made out

and signed his deposition and swore to the same be-

fore the said J. M. Burlingame, Register of the Un-

ited States Land Office as aforesaid, and at the

same time filed and caused to be filed said affi-

davit and deposition and sworn statement, in the

United States Land Office at Great Falls, Montana,

said land office then and there being the proper

United States Land office of the land district

wherein the said lands are situated, and then and

there offered, 'presented and delivered and filed

said affidavit, deposition and sworn statement so

made, signed and sworn to by the said Jay C. Free-

man, to and with the Register and Receiver of the

said United States Land Office, as proof of the

settlement and residence upon and the cultivation
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of the said lauds and pri-iiiiscs by the said day ('.

Frceinaii, as required by law aud tlie statute in sueb

ease made aud provided and tbe sauie were aceei)ted

by tbe said Rej;ister and Receiver ol' ibc said land

office.

FOURTH.
Aud your orator sbowetli uuto your lutuors tbat

the said Jay C. Freeman, in the said affidavit aud

depositiou aud sworn statement, made, sipied aud

sworn to by him, as aforesaid, aud offered, pre-

sented, delivered to, and filed with, the said Re-

gister aud Receiver, aud aeeei)ted by them as proof

of the settlement aud residence of the said day (\

Freeman upon said hinds and of the cultivation of

the same by the said Jay C. Freeman, among other

matters and things, testified and deposed that he

had actually resided upon said lands since July,

1902, and had resided on said lands cimtinuously

since July, 1902, except for a period of not to exceed

three months in any one year, and each time the

said Jay C. Freeman was absent, he had been awa>-

working for wages; that he had placed iuii)r()Ve-

meuts on said laud of the value of four Imndicd

dollars and had constructed a wire fence around

said property and had seeded ten acres of said land

aud had irrigated the same, and the said Jay (\

I^^reeman procured from each pf the said final inool'

witnesses, William S. Kirkland and Ixichard T.

Loss, affidavits, depositions and sworn statements

taken before the said J. M. Burliugame, as afore-

said, made, signed, and sworn to by the said final
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proof witnesses before the said Register as afore-

said, to the same effect and corroborative and in aid

of the said affidavit, deposition, and sworn state-

ment, made, signed and sworn to by the said Jay

C. Freeman, and filed the same, together with the

said Jay C. Freeman's own affidavit, deposition,

and sworn statement, in the local land office of the

United States at Great Falls, Montana, and offered,

presented, and delivered the same to the said Re-

gister and Receiver of the said land office, together

with his own affidavit, deposition and sworn state-

ment, as proof of the settlement and residence upon,

and cultivation of, the said lands by the said Jay

C. Freeman, as required by law, and all of the said

affidavits, depositions, testimony, and sworn state-

ments of the said Jay C. Freeman and his said final

proof witnesses, so made, signed and sworn to, as

aforesaid, and offered, presented and delivered to

the said Register and Receiver of the said land of-

fice, as aforesaid, were, and each of them was, then

and there taken and accepted by the said Register

and Receiver of the said land office as proof of the

settlement and residence of the said Ja}^ C. Freeman

upon the said premises. That on the said 23 day

of August, 1904, the said Jay C. Freeman paid to

the Receiver of the said United States Land Office

at Great Falls, Montana, the sum of $200, being pay-

ment for said land at the rate of $1.25 per acre, and

thereupon the said Receiver then and there issued

to the said Jay C Freeman, his final receipt No.

568 for the said monej^s so paid to him by the said



/'.S-. The I'iiiird States of Ann ricd. U

Jay ('. I'^rccnian, in payiiu'ut of said lands, as al'cu-c-

said, and tlic liciiistcr of the said land oiTice likc-

wiso then and tliciv issued to tlic said Jay C. Free-

man, his eertificate No. 51)8 I'm- said hinds, eertify-

ini»" that in pnrsuance ol* law the said Jay (\ h'l-ee-

mnn liad purehased said huids, and u]K)n presenta-

tion of said certificate to the (\nninissioner (d' tlie

(Jeneral Land Office, tlie said Jay (\ Fireman

slionhl he entith'd to receive a patent for said h\nds

hereinhefore more particularly mentioned and (h'-

scrihed; that thereafter such })roceedin<;s wei'c liad

that on the tenth day of Fehruary, A. I)., 190."). a

patent was issued by the said United States to the

said Jay C. Freeman for the said hinds, which patent

was duly delivered to the said Jay C. Freeman and

received by him.

FIFTPI:

And your orator further showeth unto youi- lutn-

oi's that th(^ said acceptance <d' the said affidavits,

depositions and testimony of the said Jay (
'. Free-

man, and of his final proof witnesses. William S.

Kirkland and Richard T. Loss, as proof of the set-

tlement and residence of the said Jay 0. Freeman

upon said lands and the cultivation of the same hy

him, as required by law, by the said Rejjjister and

l^eceiver^ and the issuance by the said Receiver of

the said final receipt and the issuance of the said

eertificate of purchase by the said Rei»ister, as here-

inabove mentioned and set f(nlh, and the issuance

of the said patent for the said tract of land by the

United States, were had and done l)v the said oi'-
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ficers of the said land office and the officers of your

orator, the United States, in reliance hj them and

each of them upon the truth of the testimony and

statements contained in the affidavits and deposi-

tions of said Jay C. Freeman, and in reliance by

them and each of them upon the truth of the testi-

mony and statements contained in the affidavits and

depositions of said final proof witnesses, William

S. Kirkland and Richard T. Loss, and in reliance

upon the good faith of the said Jay C. Freeman and

his final proof witnesses in the premises, and not

otherwise.

SIXTH

:

That the said affidavit and deposition of the said

Jay C. Freeman, and the affidavits and depositions

of the said final proof witnesses, William S. Kirk-

land and Richard T. Loss, were, and each of them

was, then and there false, fraudulent and untrue, as

was then and there well known to the said Jay C.

Freeman, and to each of his said final proof wit-

nesses, and made with intent to deceive the officers

of the United States and with intent to fraudulent-

l,y obtain patent to the said land hereinabove des-

cribed and by fraud and deceit to procure a patent

for the said lands by means of false and fraudulent

testimony and statements made and contained in

the said affidavits, depositions and testimony, in

this, to-wit : That the said Jay C. Freeman had not

and did not establish residence upon said lands or

any portion thereof during the month of Jul}'', 1902,

or at any time, or at all ; that the said Jay C. Free-
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man had not at the time ofmaking liis said pinnl

and the filing- ol' llic same in tlic said land ni'l'icc,

resided on said lands m- any part «»r jiurtion tliei-e(d',

continnonsly, (•!• in any dthci' manner, or at all,

since the month of duly, 1!)()2, oi- at any other time,

and had not then, or at any other time, huilt a frame

house sixteen ])y eighteen feet, with a shinj^le roof,

and that the said Jay C. Freeman had in»t enclosed

said lands with a three-wii*e fence, and that the said

Jay C. Freeman had not, at the time of the filing;- of

the said depositions and statements, sowed ten acres

of said lands in grasses or ^rass seed, or that any

part or portion of said lands had at any time been

irrigated by the said Jay 0. Freeman, and that the

said Jay C. Freeman did not then and there, or at

any other time, have improvements upon the said

hind of the value of four hundred dollars, oi- any

other value or amount whatsoever. That yoni"

orator alleges the fact to be that the said Jay

C. Freemaii never did make a settlement upon said

lands, or any part thereof, and did not esta])lish his

residence npon said lands, or any i)art thereof, and

never did cultivate any part or portion thereof, and

had no improvements thei'eon, and that each and

every of the statements so made by the said Jay C.

Freeman and his said final proof witnesses, as

hereinbefore specifically mentioned and set foi'th.

and which are contained in the said affidavits, de-

positicms and testimony to prove settlement and

residence by the said Jay C. Freeman npon said

lands and the cultivation bv the said Jav C. Free-
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man of the same, as required by the homestead laws

of the United States, are utterly false and fraudu-

lent and untrue, in every particular, as he, the said

Jay C. Freeman, then and there well knew.

SEVENTH:
And your orator further charges and alleges that

the said testimon}^ of the said Jay C. Freeman, as

contained in said affidavit and deposition of said

Jay C. Freeman, and the testimony of the said final

proof witnesses, William S. Kirkland and Richard

T. Loss, as contained in said affidavits and deposi-

tions, made by them, as aforesaid, was false, fraudu-

lent and untrue in the respects and in the several

particulars as hereinbefore set forth, and the same

were made, offered, presented and filed as proof of

the settlement and residence of the said Jay C. Free-

man, upon the said lands and the cultivation of the

same, as aforesaid, for the false and fraudulent pur-

pose of imposing upon and deceiving the Register

and Receiver of the said United States Land Office

at Great Falls, Montana, and to cause and induce

the said officers and agents of your orator to believe

that the said testimony contained in said affidavits

and depositions were true, and that the said Jay C.

Freeman, had, in fact, made and established a set-

tlement and resided upon said tract of land and had

cultivated the same as by law required, for the pur-

pose of obtaining and procuring b}^ means of fraud

and deceit the issuance to said Jay C. Freeman, of

a patent of the United States for the said lands

hereinbefore described.
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And your (H-ator I'urtlicr sh<»\V('tli uiitd ymu- lum-

ors that the said Jay (\ Fi-ccmaii, by means of tlic

said false and frauduk'nt d('i)()sitions and the false

and fraudulent statements and testimony therein

contained, <>iven under the sanction and oath (tf the

said Jay 0. Freeman, and his said witnesses, in>-

posed uj)(»n and deceived the said officers and agents

of the said United States and caused and induced

the said officers to believe that the testimony and

statements contained in said depositions were true,

and that the said Jay C. Freeman had actually set-

tled and resided upon said lands and cultivated the

same in the manner and to the extent as stated in

said depositions, and that the said officers of your

orator, the United States, supposing- and believini^

the said testimony and statements contained in

said depositions of said Jay C. Freeman and his

said final proof witnesses, to be true, and relying

up(tn the truth of the said testimony and statements,

so falsely and fraudulently given and made by the

s;ud Jay C. Freeman and his said final proof wit-

nesses, as aforesaid, and believing and supposing,

on the strength of said depositions and testimony

that the said Jay C. Freeman had actually made

settlement and established his residence u])(»n said

land and had cultivated the same in the mannei- and

for and during the period of time as therein stated

by him, the said Jay C Freeman, and his said final

proof witnesses, William S. Kirkland and Kichai'd

T. Loss, were wholly deceived and misled into allow-
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ing said proof to be filed and accepted and in per-

mitting the issuance of said final receipt and the is-

suance of said certificate of purchase of said land

and of the United States Patent therefor by the said

officers of the United States, as hereinbefore set

forth, and delivering the said patent to the said Jay

C. Freeman.

NINTH:
And your orator further showeth unto your hon-

ors that since the issuance of said final receipt and

certificate and patent for said lands to the said

Jay C. Freeman, the said Jay C. Freeman has here-

tofore, on the 18 day of August, 1904, deeded the said

lands to the said defendant, Frank D. Cooper, and

that the said Frank D. Cooper is now in the occu-

pancy, possession and enjoyment of the said lands

and premises, but your orator alleges that b}^ what-

ever pretended right or title the said Frank D.

Cooper now holds possession of or occupies said

land, the same is wholly void and ineffectual as

against the rights of your orator ; that the existance

of said patent so fraudulently obtained and pro-

cured by the said Jay C. Freeman, as hereinbefore

set forth, on its face entitled the said Jay C. Free-

man, and those claiming under him, to exercise the

right of absolute ownership on and over the said

lands, and assert a legal title to the same, to which

the defendant is not entitled ; that if the said patent

remains uncancelled and in force, the same may be

used in fraud of your orator and all persons relying

thereon, as a valid and substantial convevance of the
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l{\u:al title to said laiids and prciniscs.

TKXTH:
And your orator I'uiilicr .inci's and diaries that

the said defendant, l^'iank 1). (\m»|k'i\ was not a pui-

ehaser in good I'aitli and Ini- a \alid consideration

of tho hinds heroin involved: hut if he ])urchased at

all, purchased the same with full and conijdcte

knowledge that they wei-e entered in fraud and in

viohition of the laws of the United States hy his

said pretended grantor, Jay C. Freeman, against the

legal and equitahle rights of the coni])lainant ; that

said pretended purchase is void and should he so

decreed in equity in favor of this complainant and

against the said defendant, Fi'ank T^. ('o(»]ier.

KLKVENTH:
And ;»'our oratoi- fui'tlier showeth unto your hon-

ors that on or a))out the l:)th day of Deceniher. IDD!),

the said defendant h'l'ank 1). Coopei' and his wife.

Alic(> (i. (\)o])er executed and delixci-ed to the de-

i'endant (ieoi-ge lleaton theii* contract in wi'iting hy

which they agi'ced and hound themselves to conx'ey

to the said defendant (leoi'ge Heaton all of theii'

rights, titl(> and interest in and to the lands hei'ein

first ahove descrihed; and youi' orator further

showeth that the said defendant (leorge lleaton hy

reason of the execution of said coiiti'act now claims

S(»me right, title and interest in and to said lands ad-

x'ci'se to the I'ights of the complainant therein, hul

youi- oratoi' alleges that whatever intei-est the said

(leorji'e lleaton now claims to have in said lands was
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received and accepted by him with full knowledge of

the fraud so perpetrated upon this complainant in

the procurement of said patent, and that he is not a

bona fide purchaser for value without ngtice of

said fraud, and in equity and good conscience said

contract, insofar as it affects the lands herein in-

volved, should be cancelled and held for naught.

All of which actions, doings, and pretenses of the

defendants are contrary to equity and good con-

science, and tend to the manifest wrong, injury and

oppression of this complainant in the premises.

IN CONSIDERATION WHEREOF, and for as

much as the complainant is remediless in the prem-

ises at and by the strict rules of the common law,

and is relievable only in a court of equity where

matters of this nature are properly cognizable and

relievable, and,

TO THE END, THEREFORE, that the said de-

fendants, Frank D. Cooper and George Heaton,

may full, true, direct, and perfect answer make to

all and singular the matters hereinbefore stated and

charged but not under oath (an answer under oath

being hereby expressly waived) as fully and par-

ticularly qis if the same were hereinafter repeated

and _they thereunto distinctly interrogated ; and to

the end that the said defendants and all and singular

their agents, employes, and servants may be forth-

with and forever restrained and enjoined from set-

ting up and asserting or claiming any rights, privi-

leges, benefits, or advantages under and by reason
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n\' said })att'nt or said pretended deed (»!' eniivevanee.

Ml- said aiii'eeiiieiit to sell said lands. lici-ciii hcfnre

nieiitioiied ; and to the end that said pati'nt so issne(l

by the complainant to the said Jay C. Freeman may
l)e declared void and cancelled; and that said pre-

teiuh'd deed (d' eon\'eyance iroin the said day i\

{''reenian to the def(Midant, Frank 1). ('t»oi)ei*, may

he, hy decree of tins Honorable Court, treated as a

cloud upon the title of" complainant to all and sinjj^u-

lar the lands at Para,';raph I hei-ein described, and

the same removed as such; and that said aiii-eement

so entered ii ito ])etween th( ' del'eiuhmt Viank 1).

Co.. jxT and his ^vii*e and the ( lel'eiuh nit ( leori;"e

Ileait(.n, insoj'ar ,as the same afl'e(•ts the titl( ' t.. the

lan( Is herein involved. be cancel led and held for

naught

;

And that the legal and e(piitable title

thereto and the right of possession thereof be re-

stored and given to complainant; and that the

complainant have such other and further relief in

the premises as the circumstances of this cause may

require, and as to this Honorable Court may seem

meet and proper, and as shall be agreeable to equity

and good conscience.

May it ])l(»ase your Honors to grant unto the com-

l)lainant the Writ of Subpoena to be directed to the

said P'raid': I). Cooper, and ( ieorge Ileaton. thereby

commanding him at a certain time and under a cei--

taiu ])enalty, therein to be specified, jx'rsonally t<»

be and to appear before this Honorable Court, and

then and tliere to answer all and singular the jn-em-
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ises, and to stand to and abide such further order,

direction or decree therein as to this Honorable

Court may seem meet.

(Signed) GEORGE W. WICKERSHAM,
Attorney-General of the United States.

JAS. W. FREEMAN,
United States Attorne}^, District of Montana.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
District of Montana,—ss.

JAMES W. FREEMAN, being first duly sworn,

deposes and says that he is the regular^ appointed,

qualified, and acting United States Attorney for

the District of Montana; that he has read the fore-

going bill of complaint and knows the contents

thereof, and that the matters and facts therein

stated and alleged are true to the best of his knowl-

edge, information and belief.

JAMES W. FREEMAN.
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 7 day of

December, 1909.

GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk U. S. Circuit Court, District of Montana.

NOTE BY CLERK:
The parts underscored are amendments to the

original bill, allowed by the Court under order of

May 23rd, 1912, hereinafter set forth.)

(Endorsed: Filed December 7, 1909, Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk.)

Thereafter, on December 7, 1909, subpoena in

equity was duly issued herein as follows, to-wit

:
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UNITED STATES OK AMERICA.

Circiiil Cofirl of flu I'liihd Shifcs, Ninth JniUvinl

Circiiil, Pisfricf of MonhiiKi.

IN EQUITY.

TO THE PRESIDENT OE THE UNITED
STATES OF AMERICA, GREETINO:
TO,

FRANK D. rOOPER, Defendant:

YOU ARE HEREDY COMMANDED, That yon

1)(' and appear in said Circnit Coni't of the United

States aforesaid, at the Court Room in FEDERAL
BUILDING, HELENA, MONTANA, on the riid

day of JANUARY, A. D., 1910 to answer a Bill of

(^)mplaint exhibited auainst you in said Court hy

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, dmi-

})lainant, and to do and receive wliat the said Court

shall have considered in that behalf. And this you

are not to omit, under the penalty of FJVE THOU-
SAND DOLLARS.
WITNESS: The Honorable MELVILLE W.

FULLER, Chief Justice of the United States, this

7th day of Dec, in the yeai* oiir Lord one thousand

nine hundred and nine and of oui- Independence the

134.

GEO. W. SPROULE,
Clerk.

By , l)(i)uty Clerk.

IMemoranduni, pursuant to Rule 12, Supreme Court,

U. S.

YOU ARE HEREBY REQUIRED to enter your
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appearance in the above suit, on or before the first

Monday of January next, at the Clerk's Office of

said Court, pursuant to said Bill ; otherwise the said

Bill will be taken pro confesso.

GEO. W. SPROULE, Clerk.

Geo. W. Wickersham, U. S. Atty. Gen.,

Washington, D. C, J. W. Freeman,

U. S. Att}^, Solicitor for Complainant.

Helena, Montana.

(Service of within subpoena accepted by James

A. Walsh, attorney for defendant, December 18,

1909.)

(Endorsed, filed, December 20th, 1909, Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk.)

Thereafter, on March 29, 1910, defendant Cooper

filed his answer herein, as follows, to-wit

:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)
No. 946.

ANSWER TO BILL OF COMPLAINT.
This defendant, now and at all times hereinafter,

saving to himself, all, and all manner of benefit oi

advantage of exception, or otherwise, that can or

may be had or taken to the many errors, uncertain-

ties and imperfections, in the said Bill of Complaint

contained, for answer thereto, or to so much thereof

as this defendant is advised, it is material or neces-

sary for him to make answer to, answering says

:

I.

Admits that complainant was on the nineteenth

day of June, 1902, the owner of said lands men-

tioned and described in the complaint, and that Jay
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C. Freonian iiuulc and filed in the local land (d'fiee

his application to enter said lands as a iKnncstoad.

11.

Admits that the said Jay C. Froemaii filed an

ai'fi(hivit in tho local land office, setting forth the

matters and tilings reqnired by law to be set foi-th in

such cases made and provided ; and that he paid the

legal fee, required and that the Receiver of said land

offic(> issued to him a receipt in the form required

])}• law.

III.

Admits that it was incumbent upon said Jay C
Freeman to comply with the law, as to residence and

cultivatiou upon said land to acquire the title there-

to.

IV.

Admits that cm or about the 18th of August, li)()4,

the said Jay C. Freeman offered i)r()of of his set-

tlement and residence upon said lands, and present-

ed affidavit in compliance with the law, showing the

matters and things necessary to acquire title thereto.

V.

Admits that said Jay C. Freeman presented a

sworn statement that he had actually settled u])on

said land and resided thereon since Jnly, 15)02, with-

in the meaning and intent of the homestead laws,

'

and placed improvements upon said land to the value

(f Four Hundred Dollars, and constructed a frame

house sixteen by eighteen, and had constructed a

wire fence around said land, and had seeded ten

acres of said land and irrigated the same; and
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that said affidavit was also corroborated by the

affidavits of William S. Kirland and Richard T.

Loss; and that said proof was accepted by the

Register and Receiver of said land office, and that

said officers issued to him a certificate thereof, as

provided by law, which entitled said Jay C. Free-

man to receive a patent for said land; and there-

after such proceedings were had that on the 10th day

of February, 1905, a patent was issued and delivered

for said land, and denies all other matters and

things contained in paragraph Three of the Bill of

Complaint.

VI.

That whether or not the said officer of said land

office accepted or relied upon said affidavits of

saud Jay C. Freeman, William S. Kirkland and

Richard T. Loss, or relied upon any reports made

by the special agents of the Land Department, this

defendant denies that he had any knowledge or in-

formation thereof sufficient to form a belief; but

denies that the affidavits or depositions of said Jay

C. Freeman, William S. Kirkland, or Richard T.

Loss were false, fraudulent or untrue, or that the

matters and things stated in said affidavits were

known to be false, fraudulent or untrue by the said

Jay C. Freeman, William S. Kirkland or Richard

T. Loss, or that said affidavits were made with in-

tent to defraud said land office; or to procure

patent by means of false or fraudulent testimony

made or contained in said affidavits ; denies that the

said Jay C. Freeman had not established his resi-
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(IciU'c uiMdi said land, m- tliat he had not rcsidcil

iilM.n tlic sauK', <»r tliat he had n(»t hiiih a lioiisc

thereon ol' tlic size and dinu'Hsions stat('(l, or tliat

lie had not entdoscd the land with a wii-e fence to the

extent stated in said affidavit, or that lie had not

seeded ten acres of said land and irrigated the same;

and denies that the matters and things set forth in

the depositions of said Jay C. Freeman, William S.

Kirkland or Richard T. Loss were, or are, false oi-

untrue; and denies each and every other allegation

in paragraphs four, ii\-e and six of the Hill of

Complaint.

VII.

Denies that the matters and things set forth in

the affidavits and depositions of the said Jay C
Freeman, William S. Kirkland or Richard T. Loss

were false, fraudulent or untrue, in respect to the

several, or any of the matters therein stated, or

that the same w^as offered or presented for the jjur-

pose of deceiving the Register and Receiver of the

said land office, or to defraud the United States of

the said lands; and denies each and evei-y other alle-

gation in Paragraph seven in the Bill of Com])laint

contained.

VIII.

Admits that some time after the issuance of said

final receipt, the said Jay C. Freeman deeded and

conveyed the said lands to this defendant, and that

this defendant is now the owner and in ])ossessi()n

thereof; but denies that the right and title of this

defendant in and to said lands is wholly, in any
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manner, or at all void, or ineffectual, as against the

right of the complainant; and denies that the said

patent was fraudulently obtained.

IX.

Admits that said patent on its face entitled the

said Jay C. Freeman and those claiming under him

to exercise the right of absolute dominion and own-

ership over said lands and assert legal title to the

same; But denies that this defendant is not en-

titled to assert ownership and legal title to said

premises, and denies said patent is, or can be used

in fraud of any rights of the complainant; and de-

nies each and every other allegation in paragraph

nine of the Bill of Complaint.

X.

Denies that this defendant is not a purchaser in

good faith, for a valuable consideration of the lands

and premises described in the complaint; and de-

nies that he purchased the same with full, complete

or any knowledge that they were entered in fraud

or in violation of the laws of the United States by

said Jay C. Freeman ; and denies that the said pur-

chase is void, or that it should be so decreed, and

denies that said premises were entered, or patent

procured in fraud or violation of the laws of the

United States.

XI.

And defendant avers that he purchased said lands

in good faith and paid a valuable consideration

therefor, and at the time he purchased said lands

he believed and now believes that the said Jay C.
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Freonian cntcri'd said lands and in-ncuicd title tlicrc-

to in i^ood faith, and had in all thinj^^s cnniplicd with

the laws of the Tnitcd States; and defendant avers

that \w did not have any notice or ]vn(»wledii;e that

the said Jay C. Froonian had not, or that the com-

plainant heroin daimed that he had not, in all thinujs

and in i^ood faith complied with the laws of the

Tnited States, with reference to settling, residing

upon and acquiring title to said land.

XII.

And defendant further avers that all the acts and

deeds of the said Jay C. Freeman, wMth reference t(»

establishing residence, residing upon and making

improvements upon said land were such that the

C(»mplainant herein could, with ordinary diligence,

through its officers and agents, who were the em-

j>loyed in the business, and before the final proof

was made, or certificate issued, have ascertained

whether or not the said Jay C. Freeman had in all

things complied with the law, with reference to set-

tlement, residence, cultivation and ini])rovements

on said land necessary to acquire title thereto; and

if any matters or things stated in said affidavits or

depositions of said Jay C. Freeman or said witnesses

were not true, the officers of said land office could

have refused to accept final proof and to issue cer-

tificate therefor, or patent for said lands, and that

complainant by reason of the negligence and laches

of its officers is now estopped from asserting any

right, title, claim or interest in or to said lands

against this defendant.
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XIII.

And defendant avers that since he purchased said

land, and before the commencement of this suit, he

in good faith entered into a contract with George

Heaton, and in good faith sold said land to said

Heaton for a valuable consideration, and said

Heaton in good faith and for a valuable considera-

tion, and without any notice of the claim of the

complainant herein to said land, or any claim that

the said Freeman had not in all things complied with

the law in obtaining title to said land, and without

any knowledge of any wrong doing, or a claim of

wrong doing on the part of the said Jay C. Free-

man, purchased the said lands from this defendant.

XIV.

And this defendant denies all and all maner of

unlawful combination, confederacy and wrong doing

wherewith he is by the said Bill charged, without

this, that there is any other matter, cause or thing

in said complainant's Bill of Complaint contained,

material or necessary for this defendant to make

answer unto and not herein or hereby well and suf-

ficiently answered, confessed, traversed, avoided or

denied, is true to the best of the knowledge of this

defendant; all of which matters and things this de-

fendant is ready and willing to aver, maintain and

prove, as this honorable Court shall direct, and

humbly prays to be hence dismissed with his reason-

able costs and charges in this behalf most wrong-

fully sustained.

JAMES A. WALSH,
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Solicitni- I'dp Dcl'cndaiit.

Service ol' tlic rnrc^oiii^- admitted and ('''py rc-

(•('iv(>d tliis L>:) day of Maivli, lf)l().

J. w. i'MxM-:i':MAN,

rnitcd States Attoi'iiey.

(Kndc.rsed Filed March 21), 1910, (Jeo. W. Siiroule,

derk.)

Thereafter, on March l-.O, 1910, Replication was

tiled therein as follows, to-wit:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

REPLICATION.
This Replicant, saving and I'esei'ving to itself all

and all manner of advantage of exception which may

be had an taken to the manifold errors, uncertain-

ties, and insufficiencies of the answer of said de-

fendant, for replication thereunto sayeth that it does

and will ever maintain and prove its said bill to be

true, certain and sufficient in the law to be answered

unto by said defendant, and that the answer of

said defendant is very uncertain, evasive and insuf-

ficient in the law to be replied unto by this repli-

cant without that that any other matter or thing in

said answer contained material (»r effectual in tlie

law to be replied unto, confessed (r avoided, tra-

versed or denied, is true, all which matters and

things this replicant is ready to aver, maintain and

prove as this honorable court shall direct and humb-

ly as in and l)y its said bill, it has already prayed.

JAS. W. FREEMAN,
United States Att(n'nev.
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(Service accepted March 30, 1910, James A.

Walsh, Solicitor for Deft.)

(Endorsed, Filed March 30, 1910, Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk, by C. R. Garlow, Deputy.)

Thereafter, on May 23, 1912, an order allowing

amendments was duly made and entered herein, as

follows, to-wit ':

In the District Court of the United States in and for

the District of Montana,

Nos. 946, 947 and 948, United States vs. Frank D.

Cooper.

These causes, heretofore submitted to the Court,

came on regularly at this time for the decision of the

court ; whereupon it is ordered that the complainant

be allowed to amend its bill of complaint in each of

the above entitled causes by adding the name of

George Heaton as party defendant, by interlineation

as far as feasible, and by attaching a separate para-

graph to properly state the case as to him, and there-

upon complainant may have other subpoenas issued

and proceed to service thereof upon Heaton.

Thereafter the actions may proceed as the parties

are advised.

Entered, in open court. May 23, 1912.

GEO. W. SPROULE, Clerk.

Thereafter, on June 19, 1912, Notice and Amend-

ments were filed herein, being as follows: to-wit:
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(TITLK OF COURT, TITLK OF CAUSE.)

No. 94().

NOTICF AND AMKNDMFNTS .

TO .1. A. WALSH, KSQ., Attorney I'm- tlic aln.vc

iianuMl dofoiulaiit, and FRANK D. (Y)01*KR,

Defendant in tlie above entitled aetion:

You and (>aeli of yon will i)lease take notice that

the complainant in the alxive entitled aetion did on

the 14th day of June, 1912, amend its hill (»!' (Mtni-

plaint in accordance with an order of the Honora))le

George M. Bourquin filed and enteicd on May 2.3,

1912, by then and there makini;- the following inter-

lineations and insertions:

1. Page 1, lines 7 and 8, by adding "and (leorge

Heaton.''

2. Page 1, line 8 by adding the l(^tt(>r "s" to the

Word defendant.

\^. Page 1, line 16, after the word "Montana",

by adding "and George Heaton, a resident of the

Southern District of the State of Iowa."

4. Page 13, between lines 21 and 22, by insert-

ing Paragraph eleven which is as follows:

"ELEVENTH"
And your orator further showeth unto your hon-

ors that on or about the 13th day of December, 1909,

the said defendant, Frank I), (^)oper and his wife

Alice G. Cooper executed and delivered to the de-

fendant George Heaton their contract in writing by

wdiich they agreed and bound themselves to convi'v

to the said defendant George Heaton all of their
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right, title and interest in and to the said lands here-

in first above described; and your orator further

showeth that the said defendant George Heaton b}"

reason of the execution of said contract now claims

some right, title and interest in and to the said

lands adverse to the rights of the complainant there-

in, but your orator alleges that whatever interest the

said George Heaton now claims to have in said lands

was received and accepted by him with full knowl-

edge of the fraud so perpetrated upon this complain-

ant in the procurement of said patent, and that he

is srtiot a^ona fide purchaser for value without

notice of^iraud, and in equity and good conscience

said contract, insofar as it affects the lands herein

involved, should be cancelled and held for naught. '

'

5. Page 13, line 23, by adding the letter "s" to

the word "defendant."

6. Page 13, line 31, by adding the letter "s" to

the word 'defendant".

7. Page 13, line 32, by adding "and George

Heaton. '

'

8. Page 14, line 5, by striking out the word "he",

and inserting in lieu thereof the word "they."

9. Page 14, line 6, b}^ adding the letter "s" to

the word "defendant."

10. Page 14, line 7, by striking out the word

"his" and inserting in lieu thereof the word "their".

11. Page 14, line 11, by inserting after the word

"conveyance" the following, "or said agreement

to sell said lands, hereinbefore mentioned."

12. Page 14, line 19, after the word "such" by
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insortiii.u, '\iiul that said agivement so ciitcrrd iiit<i

l)ot\v(MMi tile (lidiMidaiit Frank I). Conpcr and liis

wife and the defendant (icorge Hcaton, ins(d'ar as

the same affects the titk' to the hinds hcicin in-

\(>lv('d, be cancelled and held f(H' naught.''

V.\. Page 14, line 29, hy adding "and (leorge

TIeaton."

All of which will more fully appear from the

original bill of com})laint on file in the office of the

Clerk of the United States District Court, District

of Montana, to which reference is hereby made.

Dated this 19tli day of June, 1912.

EDWARD A. LaBOSSIERE,
Assistant U. S. Attorney.

Due service of the within notice acknowledged and

true copy thereof received this 19th day of Jinie,

1912.

JA.A[ES A. WALSH,
Attorney for defendant.

(Endorsed filed, June 19, 1912. Geo. W. Sproule,

(Uerk, by C. R. Garlow, Deputy.)

Thei'cafter, on Sept. 17, 1912, an Order was duly

entered herein, as follows, to-wit:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

ORDER.
It having been made to appear in the above en-

titled action that the defendant (leorge Heaton is

not a resident of and within the state and district

of Montana, but that the said defendant is a resident
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and inhabitant of St. Paul, in the district of Minne-

sota, and that personal service of process of this

court cannot be had or obtained upon said afore-

mentioned defendant within the district of Montana,

and application having been made to this Court

pursuant to Section No. 8, of the Act of March, 3,

1875, for an order of this court requiring and di-

recting the said defendant to appear, plead, answer

or demur to said complainant's bill of complaint on

file herein by a day certain to be fixed and desig-

nated by this court

;

Now, therefore, it is ORDERED that said appli-

cation, be, and the same is, hereby granted, and you,

the said George Heaton, one of the defendants in

the above entitled cause, are hereby ordered and

required and directed to be and appear in the dis-

trict court of the United States, District of Mon-

tana, in the City of Helena, in the district of Mon-

tana, on the 4th day of November, 1912, and then

and there to plead, answer or demur to complain-

ant's bill of complaint exhibited against you in said

court by the said complainant, the United States of

America, to which said bill of complaint you are

hereby referred, and to receive what said court

shall have considered in that behalf.

Dated this 17th day of September, 1912.

FRANK S. DIETRICH,
Judge.

(Endorsed: Entered Sept. 17, 1912, Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk, By Harry Dunn, Deputy. Filed Oc-

tober 2nd, 1912, Geo. W. Sproule, Clerk, by C. R.
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(Jarlow, Deputy.)

RKTUKN OX SKRVTCK OF WHIT.
UNITED STATES OF AMFKK^A,
District of Miiniosota,—ss.

I hereby eertify niul return that 1 served the an-

nexed Order on tlie tlierein-named Oeor^e IIeat(Hi

by liandin<i; to and leaving a true and correct copy

thereof with liini, personally at St. Paul, in said

District on the day of September, A. D. 1912.

WIET.IAM N. GRIMSHAW,
U. S. Marshall.

By GEO. W. WELLS, Deputy.

Thereafter, on Dec. 2, 1912, the Answer of de-

fendant Heaton was filed herein, being as follows,

to-wit:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

IN EQUITY.
SEPARATE ANSWER OF DEFENDANT

GEORGE HEATON.
The answer of CJeorge Heaton, one of the defend-

ants to the bill of complain as amended of tlie ab(»ve

named complainant

:

This defendant, nojf and at all times hereinafter,

saving to himselfTana all manner of benefit or ad-

vantage of exception oi- otherwise that can or may

])e had or taken to the many errors, uncertainties

and imperfections in the said bill contained, for

answer thereto or to so nnich tluM'eof as this defend-

ant is advised it is material oi" necessary for him

to make answer to, answering says:
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1. This defendant admits the allegations con-

tained in paragraphs numbered First to Fifth, both

inclusive, of complainant's bill of complaint as

amended.

2. This defendant has no knowledge or inform-

ation as to the truth or falsity of any of the alle-

gations contained in paragraphs numbered Sixth,

Seventh and Eight of said bill of complaint as

amended, and can not set forth at to his belief or

otherwise, whether or not any of said allegations are

true, and calls for proof thereof.

3. This defendant has no knowledge or inform-

ation as to the truth of falsit}^ of any of the allega-

tions contained in paragraph Numbered Ninth of

said bill of complaint as amended, and cannot set

forth as to his belief or otherwise whether or not

any of said allegations are true, and calls for proof

thereof, except that this defendant admits that the

said J. C. Freeman, on the 18th day of August, 1904,

deeded the lands mentioned and described in para-

graph numbered First of the said bill of complaint

as amended, to the said defendant Frank D. Cooj)er

;

but this answering defendant says that the said

Frank D. Cooper is not now in the occupancy, pos-

session and enjoyment, or either thereof, of said

lands and premises; but that this defendant was

in the occupancy, possession and enjoyment of said

lands from the 1st day of August, 1910, until the

22nd day of April, 1911, under and by virtue of a

contract for the sale of said lands executed and de-

livered to this defendant on the 13th dav of De-
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C('ni])(M\ 1})()9, l)y said I*' rank I). (%)()})('!• and Alice (1.

Ooopci* liis wil'c: and thai ever sinei' tlie 2l2iid da\-

of A])ril, 11)11, the said lands hav(' and stdl are in
A

tile oeeiipane}', })(>ssessi(»n and enjoyment <d' the

(Jreat Falls Farm Land ('()m})any, a Montana eoi*-

poration, under and hy virtue of an assignment of

the eoutraet above mentioned, executed and (leli\-

oi'ed to the said (ireat Falls Farm Land (^^mpany

hy this defendant on the said 22nd day of >\pril,

1!)11; and that th(* right or titl(> hy which this said

defendant so hel;l ])()ssossion and occupied said

lands was, and the right to title hy which said < Ireat

Falls Farm Land Company now holds jx^ssession

and occupies said lands is, valid and effectual as

against the rights of complainant; and that this

defendant was, from the 1st day of August, 1910,

until the 22nd day of April, 1911, and the said

(Jreat Falls Farm Land Company now is entitled

to exercise the right of absolute ownei'shi]) on and

ovei- said lands, and to assort a legal title to the

same ; and that this defendant does not believe that,

if the said patent remains uncancelled and in force,

the same luay be used in fraud of the complainant

and all persons relying thereon, as a valid and sub-

stantial C(mveyance of the legal title to said lauds

and ]n'emises.

4. That this defendant has no knowledge or in-

formation as to the truth or falsity of any (•!' the

allegations contained in paragraph numbei-ed Tenth

of said bill of complaint as amended, and cannot

set forth as to his beliel* or otherwise, whethei- or
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not any of said allegations are true, and calls for

proof thereof, except tliat this defendant does not

believe that the said defendant Frank D. Cooper

was not a purchaser in good faith and for a valid

consideration of the lands, herein invilved; and

does not believe that the said defendant Frank D.

Cooper purchased the said lands with full and com-

plete knowledge, or any knowledge at all, that they

were entered in fraud or in violation of the laws of

the United States by the said J. C. Freeman, against

the legal and equitable rights of the complainant;

and does not believe that said purchase by said de-

fendant Frank D. Cooper is void and should be so

decreed in equity in favor of said complainant and

against the said defendant Frank D. Cooper, or

against this defendant or his successors in interest.

5. This defendant has.no knowledge or informa-

tion as to the truth or falsit}^ of any of the allega-

tions contained in paragraph numbered Eleventh

of said bill of complaint as amended, and cannot set

forth as to his belief or otherwise, whether or not

any of the said allegations are true, and calls for

proof thereof, except that this defendant admits

that on or about the 13th day of December, 1909,

the said defendant Frank D. Cooper and his wife,

Alice G. Cooper, executed and delivered to this de-

fendant their contract b}^ which they agreed and

bound theraselves yo convey to this defendant all

of their rights, title and interest in and to the lands

herein involved; and this defendant says that he

procured the execution and delivery of said contract
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in ji^ood faitli and I'oi- a Nalnahic (MMisidcratidn

;

and tlic lie, l)y i-cason (•!' the execution and delivei-y

(d* said contract, had, ironi tlic 1st day ol' i\u;i;ust,

1J)1(), until the 22nd day (d' Ai)iil, 11)11, and that the

said (Jreat Falls l'\n'in Land (\ini])any had, ever

since the said 22nd day (d* April, 11)11 and now has,

the ri<^ht of absolute ownershi[) (»ver, in and to said

lands; and that the interest hei'etofore asserted and

claimed by this defendant in said lands was ac-

([uircd by him undei' the contract hereinabove refer-

I'cd to, and without any knowledge ol' any I'l-nud in

any maner perpetrated u[)on said complainant in

the procurement of the said patent; and that this

(kd'endant was a bona fide purchaser for value with-

out notice of any fraud; and that this defendant

does not believe that, in equity and good conscience,

said Contract, in so far as it affects the lands herein

involved, should be cancelled and held for naught.

(). For further answer and defense to the said

bill of complaint as amendpd, this answering de-

fendant avers and says: "That (Hi the VMh day (d'

Decembei', 1909, this defendant made and entei'ed

into a contract in writing wich said defendant Frank

1). Cooper and Alice (}. Cooper, his wile, wherein

and whereby said Frank D. Cooper and Alice (i.

(\)oper, his wife, sold and agreed to convey, in fee

simple by warranty deed, to this defendant, the

southeast quarter of the southwest (piarter (d' sec-

tion eight (8), the east half (d' the northwest (juai'-

ter and the southwest quarter of the northwest (piar-

ter of section seventeen (17), township nineteen
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(19) north of range three (3) west of the Montana

principal meridian, containing one hundred and

sixty (160) acres, situate, lying and being in the

County of Cascade, State and District of Montana,

together with other lands situate in the counties of

Cascade and Lewis and Clark in said State and Dis-

trict of Montana; that in and by the said contract

this defendant agreed and bound himself to paj^ to

the said Frank D. Cooper and Alice G. Cooper, his

wife, the sum of five and 70/100 Dollars ($5.70) per

acre for all of said lands mentioned in said contract,

including the lands herein involved, in certain speci-

fied installments, which sum was the full vlaue of

the lands and premises by said contract agreed to be

convej^ed; that this defendant and his successor in

interest under said contract, the said Great Falls

Farm Land Company, have full}^ paid all the install-

ments due under said contract up to this time, and

are legally bound to paj^ the balance thereof; that,

under the terms and provisions of said contract,

possession of the lands herein involved was given

to this defendant on the 1st day of August, 1910,

and that upon said date this defendant entered into

the occupancy, possession and enjoyment of said

lands. And this defendant further ssijs that he did

not, at the time of the execution of the contract here-

inbefore mentioned, or at any other time, have any

knowledge, information or notice of any fraud or

improper conduct in reference to procuring a patent

to said lands; that under the terms and provisions

of said contract, and by virtue of the full perform-
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mice oil tile |)ait of this (Ict'ciid.nit uf all tli<' (!(»ve-

naiits tlici'ciii (M»iilaiii('(l l»\ him to lie kept and jxt-

fornied, up to the 22nd (hiy (d' i\i)iil, 1!)11, this de-

fendant became and was a h<»na I'iih' pmchascr id'

said hinds foi- a valuable consideration.

And this defendant rurther says that he did, on

the 22nd day of A])iil, 1911, for a valuable consid-

eration, sell, assii^n, transfer and set over to the

(Ireat Falls Land (Vanpany, a Montana cori)oratiuii,

the above mentioned contract and all of his rij^ht,

title and interest therein and thereunder.

7. And this defendant, in addition t<> the lore-

going answer avers that the cause of action, if any

there may l)e arising to the complainant on account

or l)v reason of the several allegations and com-

plaints in its said bill contained, did not accrue with-

in six years before the said ))ill was filed and sub-

poena thereunder served upon this defendant; and

this allegation defendant makes in bar of the c(»ni-

plainant's bill and prays that lie may have the

same benefit therefrom as if he had formally i)lead-

ed the sarne.

WHEREFORE, this defendant liaviii- Inlly an-

swered, confessed, traversed and avoided or denied

all the matters in the said l)ill of complaint as

amended material to be answered, according t(> his

best knowledge and belief, humbly prays this hon-

orable court to enter its decree that this defendant

be disinissed with his reasonable costs and charges

in his behalf most wrongfully sustained, and for

such other and furthei* relief in the ])remises as to
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this honorable court may seem meet and in accord-

ance with equity.

GEORGE HEATON.
By E. C. DAY,

His Solicitor.

DAY & MAPES,
Solicitors and of counsel for

the defendant George Heaton.

Helena, Montana, Dec. 1, 1912.

(Endorsed: Filed December 2nd, 1912, Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk, By C. R. Garlow, Deputy.)

Thereafter, on Dec. 23, 1912, Replication was filed

herein as follows, to-wit

:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

REPLICATION TO SEPARATE ANSWER OF
GEORGE HEATON.

This replicant, saving and reserving to itself all

and all manner of advantage of exception which may
be had and taken to the manifold errors, uncertain-

ties and insufficiencies of the answer of said defend-

ant, and for replication thereunto saj^eth that it

does and will ever maintain and prove its said bill

to be true, certain and sufficient in the law to be

answered unto by said defendant, and that the an-

swer of said defendant is very uncertain, evasive,

and insufficient in the law to be replied unto by this

replicant; without that that any other matter or

thing in the said answer contained material or ef-

fectual in the law to be replied unto, confessed or
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avoided, traversed, or denied is true; all wliicli mat-

ters and thini^s this replieaiit is ready to aver,

maintain and prove as this Honorahle Court sliall

direet, and huml)ly as in and hy its said hill it lias

alr(»ady prayed.

.1. W. FHKKMAN,
United State Attorney

District of Montana.

Due service ol' ilic wirliin replication acknowl-

ed^-ed and true coi)y thereof received this 2l]rd day

of December, 1912. Day & Mapes, Attorneys lor

1 )efendants.

(Endorsed: Filed Dec. 23, 1912, (ieo. W. Spronle.

Clerk, By (\ R. (Jarlow, Deputy.)

Thereafter, o\\ January 28th, 1914, Decree was

riled and entered herein, as follows, to-wit:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

DECREE.
This cause came on to he lieard at this term, to-

wit, on the loth day of January, 1914, u]»on the

pleadings and the proof, and was argued by counsel,

and

It appearing to the court that a hill in equity was

filed in this court on the 7th day of December, If )()!),

against the defendant, Frank D. Cooper, and that

subpoena was duly issued; that thereafter said de-

fendant filed his answer to said bill of c<mi])laint,

and

It further appearing that by an older of this
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court made on the 23rd day of May, 1912, the said

George Heaton was made a party to said suit; that

notice was duly issued and served upon said defend-

ant, George Heaton, and that thereafter, on the

2nd day of December, 1912, said George Heaton

filed his answer herein, and

It further appearing, and the court finds, that the

patent to the following described land, to-wit: The

southeast quarter of the southwest Quarter of Sec-

tion Eight (8) the east half of the northwest quarter

and the southwest quarter of the northwest quarter

of section seventeen (17), township nineteen (19)

north, range three (3) west, containing one hun-

dred and sixty (160) acres, situate, lying and being

in the county of Cascade, state and district of Mon-

tana, was fraudulently procured by Jay C. Free-

man ; that the said Frank D. Cooper is not and was

not a bona fide purchaser of said land for value

without notice of the fraud perpetrated upon com-

plainant, and.

It further appearing that by the terms of a cer-

tain contract in writing date December 13, 1910, the

said defendant, Frank D. Cooper, agreed to sell, and

the said defendant, George Heaton, agreed to buy,

said lands, the purchase price thereof to be paid in

installments covering some six years, and upon pay-

ment in full said Frank D. Cooper is to convey said

land by warranty deed to said defendant, George

He?,ton ; that more than six years has expired from

the date of the issuance of said patent to the date of

service of notice upon said George Heaton, and that
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tile cancellation »•!' said patent has heeanie iiii|n-ae-

tieahle since said suit has been hrouj^ht, and

It fui'ther apj)earini; that the value of said land,

at th(^ date of the execution of said contract, was

five and 70 100 dollars (^5.70) ])er acre, and that

conii)lainant is entitled to the value there(d', and the

court being fully advised in the premises;

IT IS ORDERED, ADJUD(JED and l)E(lxM:i:i)

that the said complainant, the United States of

America, do have and recover of and from the said

defendant, Frank D. Cooper, the sum of Nine hun-

dred twelve dollars ($912), with interest thereon

at the rate of eight i)er cent per amiu, liN-ni the

13th day of December, 1909, amounting to three

hundred and 96/100 dollars ($300.96), making a total

of twelve hundred twelve and 96/100 dollars

($1212.96), together with its costs incurred herein

taxed at , and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDCED
and DECREED that unless said amount is paid by

the defendant, Frank D. Cooper, the said defendant,

Ceorge Heaton, shall ])ay the same to c(»mplainant

from the unpaid purchase money owing by the said

George Heaton to the said defendant, Ei'ank 1).

Cooper, upon his said contract of purchase ol' said

lands, when said George Heaton was made a party

thereto and appeared herein, and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUlXiEI)

and DECREED that such payment, if made by the

said defendant, George Heaton, shall discharge said
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purchase price to the extent thereof, and

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED
and DECREED that complainant have a lien for

the sum of twelve hundred twelve and 96/100 dol-

lars ($1212.96), and its costs herein incurred taxed

in the amount of upon

the above described land as security and foreclosure

thereof.

GEO. M. BOURQUIN,
Judge.

(Endorsed: Filed January 28, 1914. Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk.)

WHEREUPON, said pleadings, process and final

degree are entered of final record herein, in accord-

ance with the law and the practice of this court.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said court at

Helena, Montana, this 28th day of January, A. D.

1914.

(SEAL) GEO. W. SPROULE,
By C. R. Garlow,

Deputy Clerk.

(Endorsed: Filed, January 28th, 1914. Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk, By: C. R. Garlow, Deputy Clerk.)

BE IT REMEMBERED That this cause came on

for hearing on the 30th day of June, 1910, before

Hon. O. T. Crane, Standing Examiner in Chancery,

at Helena, Montana, and the following proceedings

had:

Edgar S. Foley, being duly sworn, and interro-
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.i;at('(l by Mr. Skinner, (•••uiiscl Inr plaintiff, testified

as follows:

•'My name is Kdj;ar S. Foley. 1 am 159 years of

aj;"e; reside at Helena, M«tntana; oeeu])ation, Sjx'eial

A^-ent of the (Jeneral Land Offiee. Have oeeupied

that position for six years, and during all that time

was in .Montana. Prior to that 1 was stock breedinjj;

and ranching in North Dakota; went into that busi-

ness about the year 1888. 1 mach' an examniation

of the J. C. F'reeman entry, described as follows:

the southeast quarter of the southwest quarter of

section eight (8) and the east half of the northwest

quarter, and the southwest quarter of the northwest

quarter of Section seventeen (17), township nine-

teen (19) north, range three (3) West. 1 made the

examination about the 16th of September, 1901). 1

was instructed to do so by our Chief of Division, or

Si)ecial Agent in charge. I had occasion to examine

almost all of the land comprised within the limits of

Township 19, north of Range 3 West, and in so do-

ing I identified a great many section corners, and

identified this land by means of known corners

along fences, which was i)art of an enclosure that

tills entry lay in. The improvements I found at the

time I made this examination were, a frame cabin

a])ont 12xl() with a shingle i-oof ; there was no win-

dow in the cabin; no stove-pipe hole; a door frame

but no door. There were no other improvements in

the way of cultivation or i)l()wiim-. ] foinid that the

ch)()r fraine was absolutely unt()L'hed, or unmarred

bv screws or nails or hinges, or anything of that
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nature. It had never been used. I did not have any

talk with Mr. Freeman at that time. I was told that

he was not in the country. This land is within the

enclousure of Mr. Cooper. Mr. Cooper lived in the

township east of this township, and about seven

miles east I should judge. It was not fenced on the

line, or cross fenced, but was embraced within the

Cooper enclosure. There was no fence on the entry

proper, except that it was intersected by a piece of

fence, but the enclosure as a whole was not included

in a fence, that is, the lines of the entry were not

bounded by a fence. I did not look for any evidence

of an irrigation ditch on a homestead entry because

it was immaterial. Since I have been in Montana my
business as a Special Agent has been examining all

classes of entries under the Federal Land Laws.

CROSS-EXAMINATION BY MR. JAMES A.

WALSH:

I lived in North Dakota since 1878; on the Little

Missouri River and on the Big Missouri River. I

never took up any government land myself. Mr.

Kinsey pointed out this land to me. He was instru-

mental in bringing this case to the attention of the

Department. He met me when I went to examine

the land. I had made arrangements to meet him,

and I stopped at his place wheile out there. I can't

say whether he or his son Frank was with me. I

cannot say whether I had their team or not. I was

over these lands a number of different times ; some-

times I would use Mr. Kinsey 's team, and sometimes
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I w.tiild use a Cascade team. I am n<»t sure at this

time whctlu'i' I had his team or not. I niiulit have

had. I cannot say on wliat jM>rti(ni of the land llio

cahiii was. It was ri«;ht cdosc to the outer ed<;(' of

the Cooper eiKdosuro, and at that point, 1 tlnidv it

was on a sortion line. I know ahiiost evei'v corner

in that townsliip, 1 had to know them. 1 i"cc<»<^nize

the corners hy the way tliey are now marked; the

sections are marked on the west and east si(h's. A

section corner on a townshij) line miming; iioitii and

south is marked on the north and south sides, indi-

cating so many miles on the north and south sides oi'

the townsliip coriKMs, and on the east and west side

of the township line, they ai'e marked on the east

and west sides of the townshij) lines, they aic

marked on the east and west, indicating S(» many

miles to a township corner. I went into the cabin.

It was a good cabin, outside of my testim(>ny as re-

gards the door and wiu(h>w and no stove i)i])('

hole. It had a shingle roof, it had no chinmey and

there was no stove-pipe hole, through the roof or

through the side. The cabin was there the last

time I had occasion to go over the ground. It had

a gable roof, it is not what is called a shed riMtf. 1

just stepped the size of it. It was either 12x14 or

12x15. It would not have been material anyway

even if it had been bigger. There was no i)lowed

land around the cabin. There was some plowed land

on an adjacent claim. There was a desert claim of

Mr. Freeman's that lies not far from it, I think

there is some ])lowed laud on that. I didn't look for
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any irrigating ditches. I don't on a homestead. I

didn't go into any question of trying to distinguish

between the fences that belonged to Mr. Cooper and

Mr. Freeman. I said there was some fence inter-

secting a portion of this fence. I did not look where

each of the corners were.

I have no information as to the conditions that

existed there with reference to fences in August,

1904. Mr. Kinsey has been quite officious in assist-

ing me in work up there ; he has given me informa-

tion, and given the office more or less assistance.

I certainly know where the corners are ; I would not

report on it unless I knew; I was on the land. I

went all over the land. I did not go to the quarter

corners. There is very little level land there. All

of that country is rolling. I think I can stand at

one place and see all over the land. There had been

no cultivation. You could not stand in one place

and see whether or not there had been any cultiva-

tion. That would be a hard thing to determine after

a lapse of years, particularly after it had grown

back to grass. It is a pretty rocky piece of land;

more or less rocks on all of that land. There is a

spring close to the house. There is a little coulee in

there that has water in it.

William L. Kinsey, being duly sworn, and interro-

gated by Mr. Skinner, testified as follows

:

"My name is William L. Kinsey, fifty-three j^ears

old; my occupation is farmer. I live in Cascade

County, Township 19 No. Range Three West; have

lived there since April, 1904. I have known Mr.
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CoojXT the (Icfi'iulaiit in this case, for nearly twen-

ty-four years. IIi> was in tlie sheep l)usin('ss. I

lia\-e known him alxmt ever since 1 was in Montana.

1 am acquainted with Mi*. J, ('. Freeman. Have

known him probably ei^lit or nine years. I knew

him before I moved out there. He was working; for

Mr. Cooper. He was working for Cooper (hirinj;

the sunnner of 1904; he was workinu: for liim any-

way during a portion of it. 1 am acquainted with

the Freeman entry which is h)cated in Section 8 and

17, Township Nineteen North and Range Thi'ee

West. I first saw the entry in February or March,

1904. I was on the entry a number of times dui-ing

that summer. I remember the occasion of Freeman

making final proof. I can not say how many times

I had been over the entry prior to that time; prob-

ably five or six times. Prior to final proof there

w^as a house started there that had, if I rememliei*

right, the east and west sides were built up, and one

or two boards on the ends, and I think a i)air of

rafters on each end. I was right up to the house

wdiere I could see it. There w\as nothing in the

house; there w^asn't any floor in the house; there

was no roof on it at that time. There was some

Work done on it in June of that year by Mr. (lardi-

pee, the gentleman sitting next to me. He was

working, he finished up the roof, and i)ut the raft-

ers on, fihished up the ends; 1 saw him beginning

on it in June. I never saw Mr. Freeman there. I

was out there with Special Agent F(tl(\v when he

made the examination. I was at the ]>la('e with him.



50 Frank D. Cooper

The roof was on and a floor laid, and a hole left for

a door and window; there was no stove-pipe hole.

That was all the improvements I saw. I never saw

any land broken up, and there wasn't any of it

fenced, at the time he made the final proof. I never

saw Mr. Cooper on the Freeman Claim.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. WALSH:

I know nothing at all about the condition that ex-

isted in that country prior to April, February, or

March, 1904. That is the first time I went into that

locality. The occasion of my visiting the Freeman

claim was that I was looking for land through there.

There was a house started. I don't know anything

about the conditions , existing before I went to the

claim. All I know is what I saw there. I am ac-

quainted with Mr. Freeman. Later on the roof was

on and the floor laid. There were no other improve-

ments or buildings. I know about where the lines

are. I didn't go all over the land at that time, but

I was all over it during that summer and have been

over it several times since. I never took the corner

stones, but I was over it with Mr. Foley. I can lo-

cate the land by the section corners. Sometimes a

man might be mistaken where a stone had shelled

off or anything. I would not be certain, but I be-

lieve there is one forty in section eight and three in

seventeen.

Edwin R. Jones, being duly sworn, and interro-

gated by Mr. Skinner, testified as follows

:

''My name is Edwin R. Jones. I am twenty-four
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years old, niv residence is St. I*etei*, Mniitaiia; and

my (K*(Mi])ati(»n, stockraisini;. I liaxc lixcd tliere

since July, 1904. I*ii(»r t<» that time 1 lived at (ii-eat

Falls, Montana. 1 am ae(juainted with the {''rce-

man Entry. I saw the cabin on it. It wasn't fin-

ished when I saw it; it kicked a door and it lacked a

window. I didn't notice whether or not it had a

chinmey or a stove-pipe hole. The fii'st time I saw

the hind there was no fence there. Thnt was jxt-ssih-

ly in the spring of 1905, early. I knew Freeman;

met him once or twice. He w\as employed by Mr.

Cooper, as a sheep-herder oi- eamp tendei", I couldn't

say just what it was. Thei-e was no one li\in.L; on

the Freeman claim when I first knew it. 1 did

not o])serve any evidence of any cnie liaving lived

there. I was not over this chiim prior to 1904.

C^ROSS-EXAMINATION BY AIR. WALSH:

I know notliing a])out this claim ])rior to duly,

1904; never saw it before that date. 1 knew nothiui;

about Freeman prior to that time, nor for whom he

w^as working. When I say he was working for

Cooper, I mean after that date. I saw the Freeman

claim in 19().'). There was a house tm it, but it was

not finished. The house looked to me as if it had

just been built; it had nevei* been iidiabitated, I

don't think, hy the looks of the lumber on the

floor. That w^as in the s})rin,u of 190.'). The cabin

might have been there for a 3'ear, but no longer,

from my observation. T met Freeman fii'st in July.

1904.
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Frank J. Kinsey, being duly sworn, and interro-

gated by Mr. Skinner, testified as follows

:

"Frank J. Kinsey is my name; age is twenty-

seven; ranching is my occupation; Post Office ad-

dress, at Simms, Montana. I am the son of William

L. Kinsey who just testified. I have lived in Mon-

tana about twenty-four years, around St. Peters and

Cascade. I have a claim of my own in Section

twenty-one. Moved there in 1904, sometime in

April. I had been out there before in 1902, I was

riding after some horses. I am acquainted with the

J. C. Freeman entry. The first time I saw it was

in 1902. There wasn't anything on it at that time

in the way of improvements. The next time I saw

it, was in 1904, last of February, or First of March.

There was a house started on it at that time, and

no roof on it, and no ends in it at all
;
just the sides

propped up there. No furniture in it; no floor, nor

no cooking utensils of any kind. There was some

more work done on the house during the summer. I

couldn't say who did the work; I didn't see who did

the work on it. I saw the house several times after

that. After the new work had been put on it, it had

a shingle roof and the ends had been put in, and

the floor down, there was a hole cut for a door, but

there was no door and no place for a window, and

I don't think there wasj^tove-pipe, or a place for a

stove-pipe or chimney. There was nobody living on

the claim when I first saw it. There was no one

I ever saw live on it. There were no other improve -

ments on the claim. I knew Mr. Freeman wher. Le
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was workini; I'nr Mr. (NMjpci'. That was tlic last oi

.Iinic or rirst of .July, 1{)()4. That was the first

tiiiu' i bccamo acquainted witii him. That is the

fii-st time T ever knew liini; he tohl nic he was \V( I'U-

ing for Ml. Cooper. 1 saw .Mr. ('oopci- in .iud

around this chiim a ^reat many times.

TROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. WALSH :

I liave known the I^'reenian claim since 1!M)2. 'I'i'c

first time I saw it 1 was riding for horses. 1 did

not know the houndaries of the claim exactly at that

time. 1 did not examine to see whether or not there

were any improvements on it. I was camped close

there, and I wa's riding for the horses; I rode most

all over it. The next time I saw it was in 190+. I

couldn't say exactly just what time the woi-k was

done upon the house; sometime after June. 1 saw

it almost every day during the month of Api'il and

^lay up until the last of June. There was a part of

the house there in Aj)ril. I did not see any fence on

the claim at that time. Coui)le of years anyway,

later, before they had a fence on it. I first knew

Freeman the last of June or first of July, IDOI.

"From the time 1 went out thei-e in A\)v\\ 1!)()1,

he (Cooper) was uj) in that i)art (d' the country a

good many times; 1 know one time, 1 was building

a fence on my father's homestead, between thei'c and

the Carnell claim and he w^as talking about putting

in some of the fence around the (^ai'iiell claim, he

said it was his."

John Lavergure, being duly sworn, and interro-



54 Frank B. Cooper

gated by Mr. Skinner, testified as follows

:

''My name is John Lavergure. I am twenty-

seven years old and live at St. Peters, Montana.

Have lived there about nineteen years. Am a ranch

hand. I knew Mr. Cooper in 1904 or 1905. I knew

Mr. Freeman. I knew him before I went to work

for Mr. Cooper. I didn't know who he was working

for when I first knew him. Mr. Cooper had his

sheep branded, but I don't know his brand. I know

Mr. Freeman. He was working for Mr. Cooper

when I worked for him. I think I worked for him

about three months. I know where the Freeman

claim is located. I never saw anyone living on the

Freeman claim. I have been in the Freeman cabin.

At the tiu:ie I worked for Mr. Cooper there was no

door in the cabin ; as to the roof, I never took any

particular notice of it, nor the floor either. I don't

remember just the year that final proof was made

on this claim, but if I am not mistaken, that was the

same year I was working for Mr. Cooper.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. WALSH:

I do not know when Kinsey moved out from Cas-

cade. I was on the Freeman homestead when I was

working for Mr. Cooper. I don't know whether that

was in 1904 or 1905. I worked for Cooper along

about three months. I know Freeman. He was

working for Cooper the same time I was working

there. He was not at the Crown Butte Ranch. I

don't know what they call the place, but he was run-

ning the sheep, he was running a lambing camp.
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Tlioiiuis .]. Short, hc'iii^ duly swdin, and iiitcrrt)-

liatod by Mr. Skinner, testified as fnllnws:

'•.My name is 'IMionias J. Sliort. 1 am ril'ty-tliree

years nld, lixc in (Ireat Falls and am tcndini; bar

there. 1 nioxcd there in 1S!)1. 1 am ac(|iiainted

wiih Mr. C\)oper; haxc kii»»\vn him I'oi- about ei^ht

(»r nine years. I filed on a elaim in Townshij* 1!).

Q: How did you eome U) file on that elaim. Mi".

Short? Just tell the eireumstanees sui i-oundinj; it,

reason for it?

BY MR. WALSH : We o])jeet to tliat as iueom-

petent, irrelevant and immaterial, unt a matter in-

volved or any issue in this case, don't tend to i)rove

any of the issues in this case.

(Objection over-ruled to which defendant ex-

cepted.)

A. Mr. Cooper asked me if I had my i-inht to file

on land; I told him 1 did, and I filed (tii it that way.

1 guess there was something said about Imw much

I w^as to receive for using my filing right foi- Mr.

Cooper; I have forgotten; a hundred dollars, (»i'

something; 1 have forgotten now; but I think it was

in that neighborhoof. After the conversation with

Mr. Cooper, a certain attorney came up and we

went up to the Court house and filed on the land.

Mr. Cooper paid the filing fee. He did the same

tiling with reference to my daughter. I do not

know where the land was located. The deserii)tion

of the land I filed on was furnished by Mi-. Cooper.

1 never was to the land. I ne\'er got the chance to

go to the land.
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CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. WALSH

:

I had the conversation with Mr. Cooper at the

Grand Hotel. I think Mr. Cooper was to give me

One Hundred Dollars. Mr. Cooper made the same

arrangements with both of us. My daughter wasn't

there at the time, but she went to the Court house

with us. 1 just told her what Mr. Cooper told me,

and that's all that was said. I did not get anj^thing

out of it. I was supposed to when I proved up on

it in fourteen months. I never proved up on the

land. I signed the usual form of affidavit for home-

stead entry. I don't know what I signed exactly;

my daughter signed the same. I don't know why

we didn't make final proof.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION.

I don't remember whether I signed the papers

that Mr. Cooper and his attorney presented to me,

or if I had papers made out. I had no interest in

my daughter's claim.

John Gardipee, Sr. being duly sworn, and interro-

gated by Mr. Skinner, testified as follows

:

''My name is John Gardipee, Sr. I live at St.

Peter's Montana; lived there seven years. I know

Mr. Cooper ; have known him ten years. I know the

Freeman claim out there. It is about a mile from

my house. I moved out to my claim in 1903. When
I first saw the house on the Freeman claim there

were two sides and the rafters ; no roof and no floor

in. I am the Mr. Gardipee who afterwards com-

pleted the house, or put some more work on it. I put
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tli(» ends oil ;ni(l tlic laftiTs mi tlic rnnl". I first talked

witli Ml'. Cooper about doiii-;- the \voiI<, and settled

with ('()()i)ei- al'tei- tlie work was done. 'IMiere wasn't

any other ])nihlin,L's or iini)i'ovenients that I could

see, on the Freeman claim when I first saw it. At

the time 1 was there, besides the house thei'e was a

pile of lumber and shingles and some nails and a

stove, and that is the same shingles and nails that

I used in completing the house.

CROSS EXAMINATION P>V MIJ. WALSH:

I lived on my claim since 1903. I completed the

house on the Freeman claim in 1904, about August,

the latter ]>ai't of August, some time. I talked with

Mr. Cooper about rei)airing the house and settled

with him. It might liave becMi in August, or it might

have been in Septem])er; 1 can't remember. I did

other Work for Mr. Cooi)er. Tliese wei'e the oidy

improvements I could see on the land. 1 cannot say

where the lines of the land lie. J do not know where

the lines are.

KF-I)1RFCT EXAMINATION; BY MK.

SKINNER:

I did not see any improvements within three hun-

dred yards of the Freeman claim. I Just went out

there and worked on the house. That is all I know.

John B. (Jardipee, being duly sw(U'n, and interro-

gated by ]\Ir. Skinner, testified as follows:

"My name is John B. Oardipee; J am twenty-

seven years old; reside at St. Peters, Montana; have
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lived there since 1903 ; When I first went out there

I wasn't home all the time; I was single at the time

and worked out all the time, pretty near ; but the last

couple of years I have been home all the time. In

the spring of 1903 I was out there off and on.

Cooper traveled through that country in the years

1902, 1903 and 1904. That is as much as I know.

I never paid any attention to what he was doing.

I noticed that he was traveling there off and on. I

know w^here the Freeman claim is. I had been up

there before my father did some work on the house.

I first knew the Freeman claim in 1904. The cabin

had just two sides up then that I know of. There

was no roof, and no floor, and there was no fence

around it. I never saw any ditch on the land. I

worked for Cooper in 1905. I knew Freeman. He
worked for Cooper part of 1904, and I think all of

1902 and 1903.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. WALSH:

I know now where the lines of the Freeman claim

are. I didn't in 1904. I never saw any fence or

ditch on the Freeman homestead. I saw a ditch on

the desert claim adjoining the homestead. At that

time I didn't know where the lines were between the

homestead and the desert claim, but I do now.

William Belgrade, being duly sworn, and interro-

gated by Mr. Skinner, testified as follows

:

"My name is William M. Belgrade. I am twenty-

six years old, live at St. Peter's Mission, and have

lived there all my life. I know Mr. Cooper; have



rs. Tin VuH((l Sliihs of Ann lira. 50

known liini t'<»r ('i«;lit oi- ten years. I ;iin acciuaintcd

with .1. (\ FrociiKiii, and am a little l»it acijuaintcd

with the Freeman claim. I knew it wlicn I W(»i!ve(l

j'or Mr. Cnojx'i' alxnit \\)i)'\ I «;uess.

Q. W'liat was the condition of the ca))in when yon

first saw it as to beinii- eoni]»leted, tlie doois and

windows, in 1905?

UY MIR. WALSH: Olgeeted to as l)ein«; .ineom-

jx'tent, irrelevant, and relatinj;- to matters arising

afer the proof was made.

(Objection over-iailed and exce])tion noted.)

A. The door wasn't in when I seen it.

I didn't notice the window. There were nails

and Inmber inside of the honse. 1 am the same

Belgrade that took up a homestead ont in that sec-

tion of the country. My homestead was south of

the Freeman entr}'. I was out to Mr. Cooper's, and

he asked me wh}' I didn't take up a liomestead. lie

s1ioW(h1 m(» a piece of uround there, and 1 told him

that 1 would take it up. I went to (Jreat Falls to

make out the papers. Mr. Cooi)er went with me. I

don't remember who made out the pa])ers. I don't

recollect whether I signed any papers or not. No-

body gave me a description of the land. Mr. Cooper

just showed me the land wlicii we got there, but that

wasn't the laud that 1 filed on. It was another piece

of ground. I made just one filing. I was mistaken

in the land. That was on this open piece of laud

and that is what T intended to file on. I didn't

know it until I proved up. I guess Coojier gave the

Receiver of the land office the monev. 1 think he
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paid for making out the papers. I never paid out

anything. I have the papers. Cooper gave them

back to me when I made the relinquishment.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. WALSH:

I knew Freeman when I started to work for Mr.

Cooper in 1905, and I knew Mr. Cooper about the

same time. I first went to the Freeman cabin in

1905. There was no door there at that time. I did

not pay much attention as to whether or not the

door had been taken off, but I noticed there was no

door there. I don't know anything about the win-

dow. With reference to taking up a homestead,

Cooper asked me why I didn't use my rights and

pointed out a piece of land I could take, and I went

to Great Falls and filed on land, but I filed on

another piece of land and afterwards relinquished

it, and that is all there is about that homestead.

It was thereupon admitted that the notice of in-

tention to make final proof was published in the

usual form and for the usual period, and the affi-

davit of publication filed; that the patent had been

issued for the land in the usual form, on the date

mentioned, and that the usual affidavit of home-

stead entry had been made, and that the land was

thereafter purchased by and conveyed to the de-

fendant Cooper.

Thereupon plaintiff introduced in evidence the

testimony of Jacy C. Freeman and his witnesses,

Richard T. Loss and William S. Kirkland, in mak-

ing final proof, which testimony is as follows:
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TESTIMONY OF HIOHARl) T. LOSS. FINAL
PROOF WITNESS:

Riohard T. Loss, boin^ called ii])nn as a witness

of final ])r(K)f, testified as follows:

Q. L What is yoiii* name, ai^e and Post Office

address ?

A. TJicliard T. Loss, a.u:e 29 years, F. O. (\aseade,

^[oiitana.

Q. 2. Are you well aeciuainted with tlie claimant

in this case and the hind embraced in his claim?

A. Yes, with both.

Q. 3. Ls said tract within the limits (d* an incor-

porated town or selected site of a city or town, oi-

used in any way for trade or business?

A. No.

Q. 4. State specifically the character of this land

—whether it is timber, ])rairie, urazini;-, farmin<i:,

coal, or mineral land?

A. O razing only, cannot be cultivated.

Q. 5. When did claimant settle upon the home-

stead, and at w^hat date did he establish actual resi-

dence thereon?

A. July, 1902, settled, built house and established

residence.

Q. 6. Have claimant and family resided continu-

ously on the homestead since first establishing: resi-

dence thereon? (If settler is unmarried, state the

fact.)

A. Claimant has been there most of the time, he

is unmarried.

Q. 7. F(»r what period or ])eriods has the settler
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been absent from the land since making settlement,

and for what purpose; and if temporarily absent,

did claimant's family reside upon and cultivate the

land during such absence?

A. He has worked out some, his total absence

does not exceed three months in any one year since

entering the land.

Q. 8. How much of the homestead has the settler

cultivated, and for how many seasons did he raise

crops thereon?

A. None of the land has been broken up as it is

most valuable to claimant in its natural condition as

grazing land, the land is too rocky to admit of being

broken up and cultivated and has been used only

as grazing land, about 50 head of stock has been

grazed there.

Q. 9. What improvements are on the land, and

what is their value?

A. House 16x18, shingle roof, all fenced, post

and three wires, irrigation ditch through it. Im-

provements are worth $400.

Q. 10. Are there any indications of coal, salines,

or minerals of any kind on the homestead? (If so,

describe what they are, and state whether the land

is more valuable for agricultural than for mineral

purposes ?

A. No.

Q. 11. Has the claimant mortgaged, sold, or con-

tracted to sell, any portion of said homestead ?

A. Not that I know of, think not.

Q. 12. Are you interested in this claim; and do
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you think tlie settler lias acted in entile giMtd laitli

ill perfeetiiij; tliis entry?

A. Not interested; think claimant has acted in

good faith.

(Signed hy witness, and duly swoin to hcfdre the

Register of the United States Land (drice at <Ji-eat

Falls, Mont.)

TESTIMONY OF WILLIAM S. KIRKLAXI),
P^INAL jnn)()F WITNESS.)

(^. 1. What is ycmr name, age, and post office ad-

dress ?

A. William S. Kirkland, age 24 years, P. O.

Q. 2. Are you well acquainted with the claimant

in this case and the land embraced in his claim i

A. Yes, with both.

Q. 3. Is said tract within the limits ol' an incor-

porated town or selected site of a city or town, oi-

used in any way for trade or business^

A. No.

Q. 4. State specifically the character of this land

—whether it is timber, prairie, grazing, farming,

coal or mineral land.

A. Grazing.

Ques. 5. When did claimant settle upon the

homest.ead, and at what date did he establish actual

residence thereon ?

A. July 2, 1902, settled, built house and com-

menced residence.

Q. 6. Have claimant and family resided continu-
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ously on the homestead since first establishing resi-

dence thereon? (If settler is unmarried, state the

fact.)

A. Claimant has been there most of the time ; he

is unmarried.

Q. 7. For what period or periods has the settler

been absent from the land since making settlement,

and for what purpose; and if temporarily absent,

did claimant's family reside upon and cultivate the

land during such absence?

A. He has been working near there some, but

his absence does not aggregate three months in any

one year.

Q. 8. How much of the homestead has the settler

cultivated, and for how many seasons did he raise

crops thereon?

A. About 50 head of stock grazed on the land

all the time. None of it has been broken as it is

most valuable when not broken, it is too rough and

stony to break.

. Q. 9. What improvements are on the land, and

what is their value ?

A. Good house 16x18 feet, shingle roof, post and

three wire fence all around, irrigating ditch, w^orth

$400.00.

Q. 10. Are there any indications of coal, salines,

or minerals of any kind on the homestead? (If so,

describe what they are, and state whether the land

is more valuable for agricultural than for mineral

purposes).

A. No.
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Q. 11. Has tile claiiiiaiit iiiortjjja^tMl, stdd. <>i- (Mtn-

tractcd to sell, any pnrtion of said linmcstcad {

A. No.

(^. 12. Arc you iiitcrcstcd in tins claim; and do

you think tlic settler has acted in entile i^ood laith

in perfecting tliis entry?

A. No. Chiiuiant has acted in good faith.

(Signed hy witness, and duly sworn to hcl'orc the

Register of the United States Land Office, at (ii'cat

Falls, Montana.)

TESTIMONY OF J. C. FRFFMAN, CLAIMANT:

Q. 1. What is your name, ag(\ and ])ost office

address i

A. Jay C. Freeman, age oO years. Post Office,

Cascade, Cascade Count}', Montana.

Q. 2. Are you a Native Born citizen of the Un-

ited States, and if so, in what State or Tenitoiy

were you born?

A. Jjorn in Missouri, U. S. A. Now lixc on this

land in Cascade Count}^ Montana.

Q. 8. Are you th{> identifal person who made

homestead entry No. 13r)()8, at the Helena Land Of-

fice on the 2nd day of July, 1902, and what is the

true description of the land now claimed })y you !

A. Yes, and claim SE 4 S\V 4 Sec. 8, E 2 N \V 4,

SW 4 NW 4, See. 17, T. 19 No., R 8 West.

Q. 4. When was your house built on the land and

when did you establish actual I'csidence there? (De-

scribe said house and other im})ro\('ments which yon
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have placed on the land, giving total value thereof.)

A. July 1902, settled, built house and estab-

lished residence House 16x18 feet, frame house,

shingle roof, all fenced, 3 wire fence, posts of cedar

one rod apart, ten acres in grass seed, irrigated. To-

tal value of improvements $400.00.

Q. 5. Of whom does your family consist; and

have 3^ou and your family resided continuously on

said land since first establishing residence thereon?

(If unmarried, state the fact.)

A. Myself only. Have been away some working

for wages. My total absence will not aggregate

more than three months in any one year, since entry.

I am unmarried.

Q. 6. For what period or periods have you been

absent from the homestead since making final settle-

ment, and for what purpose ; and if temporarily ab-

sent, did your family reside upon and cultivate the

land during such absence?

A. Have worked out some, total absence will not

aggregate more than -three months in any one year.

Q. 7. How much of the land have you cultivated

each season, and for how many seasons have you

raised crops thereon ?

A. The land is not fit for cultivation, and is used

for grazing. None of it has been cultivated, most

valuable as grazing land. Grazed about 50 head of

stock on it each year.

Q. 8. Is 3^our present claim within the limits

of an incorporated town or selected site of city or

town, or used in any was for trade or business ?
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A. Nc.

Q. <). Wlmt is the chnractcr nj" tlic land/ Is it

timber, iiKniiitaiiioiis, i)rairi(', ^raziiij;, or ordinary

au:ri('ultiiral land ( State its kind and (jualitw and

for what i)Ui-i)<tse it is most valuable.

A. (Jrazini;' land only, and cannot be used ad-

vantageously i'or any other purpose owing to the

rolling condition of it, and rocky.

Q. 10. Are there any indications of coal, Salines,

or minerals of any kind on the land? (If so, de-

scribe what they are, and state whether the land is

more valuable for agricultural than loi- mineral

l)urposes.)

A. No.

Q. 11. Have you ever made any other homestead

entry? (If so describe the same) i

A. N(_>.

Q. 12. Have you sold, conveyed, or mortgaged

any portion of the land; and if so, to whom, and f(U*

what purpose?

A. No.

Q. D). Have you any personal property of any

kind elsewdiere than on this claim? (If so, describe

same, and state where the same is kept.)

A. No.

Q. 14. Describe by legal subdivisions, or by mun-

ber, kind of entry, and office where made, any (»ther

entry or filing (not mineral), made by you since

August 30, 1890.

A. D. L. E. 78()5, July 2, 1902, S 2 SW 4 Sec.

17, NE 4 NW 4, NW 4 NE 4 Sec. 20, T. 19 N., R. 3
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West.

(Signed by witness, and duly sworn to before the

Register of the United States Land Office at Great

Falls, Montana.)

FINAL AFFIDAVIT OF JAY C. FREEMAN:

I, Jay C. Freeman, having made a Homestead En-

try of the SE 4 SW 4 Sec. 8, E 2 NW 4, SW 4 NW
4 Section No. 17, in Township No. 19 N. of Range

No. 3 West, subject to entry at Helena, Montana

under Section No. 2289 of the Revised Statutes of

the United States, do now apply to perfect my claim

thereto by virtue of Section No. of the Re-

vised Statutes of the United States; and for that

purpose do solemnly swear that I am a Native born

Citizen of the United States ; that I have made actu-

al settlement upon and cultivated and resided upon

said land since the 2nd day of July 1902 to the pres-

ent time ; that no part of said land has been alienat-

ed, except as provided in Section 2288 of the Re-

vised Statutes, but that I am the sole Bona Fide

owner as an actual settler; that I will bear true al-

legience to the Government of the United States;

and further, that I have not heretofore perfected or

abandoned an entry made under the homestead laws

of the United States.

(Signed, Jay C. Freeman, and duly sworn to be-

fore the Register of the United States Land Office

at Great Falls, Montana.)
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KKPEIVKirS FINAL K^KCKIPT, and NON-
MINKKAL AFFIDAVIT IN TUF USUAL
FORM ALSO INTRODrCKl) IN LVI DFNCF.)
Tlu'rcupnn Plaint iff rested.

DKFFNDANT'S TESTIMONY-

h'rank I). Coopci-, Ix'iiii; duly sworn, and interro-

gated by j\lr. Walsh, testified as follows:

"]\Iy name is Frank D. Cooper. I am the defend-

ant in this suit. I have lived in Montana since the

Fall of 1872. My business is st(»ck business princi-

pally. I was in the legislature in territorial days,

and I served on the Board of Commissioners two

terms, for Cascade County. 1 know in a general

way the land called the Freeman Homestead. I was

not on that land until after I had purchased it. I

have been around there, of course, I have been in

sight of it, around there where I could see it. I

purchased the land from Mr. Freeman and paid him

a money consideration for it. I purchased it in good

faith. At the time I purchased it I had no knowl-

edge that it w^as claimed that he had not complied

with the law with reference to residence and the law

with reference to the im})roveinents that must be

put on the land. 1 know Mr. Helgai'dc, and 1 hcaid

his testimony with reference to his homestead entry.

I had nothing to do with his making that entry, and

it was not made under any arrangements with nic

I know Thomas Short. I heard his testimony. I

did not make any arrangements with him for mak-

ing his entry, and I did not make any ai'rangements
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with him with reference to a homestead for his

daughter; I never saw his daughter that I remem-

ber of. I think he made inquiry of me about the

land. Lots of people up there did that. I kept

maps of that country and people often asked me
about different pieces of land. Probably Belgarde

did. I can't say positively. He may have asked me
if ther^ was any government land over there in that

country. I don't remember any conversation that

I had with him, but there has been a good many
inquiries about government land, and there is at

the present time about government land up there.

I have sold the land which I purchased from Free-

man.

BY MR. SKINNER : I want to see the contract.

I assume this land is described, Mr. Walsh, in this

contract ?

BY MR. WALSH: Yes. There is a long de-

scription, and I had to check it over to see that it

was correctly described.

BY MR. SKINNER : If your Honor please, all

this testimony with reference to the sale of lands is

objected to on the ground that the agreement is

dated, Dece,ber 13, 1909; that the records of the

clerk of the United States Circuit Court for the Dis-

trict of Montana show that the bill of complaint was

filed in the Clerk's office on the 7th day of Decem-

ber, 1909 ; I think the contract should be introduced

in evidence. It may be made a part of the record as

an exhibit.

Contract offered and received in evidence is as
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follows:

a(jri:kmknt.

THIS AdlJKKMKNT, made and ciitcml into

this i:ith day of Dccciiibcr, A. 1)., IDOJJ, h\ and lu-

twccii Frank D. Cooper, and Alice G. Cooix'r, liis

wife, both of Cascade, County of Cascade, Mon-

tana. ])artios of the first ]iart, and (Jeo Heaton of

Pci-ry, Dallas County, Iowa, party of the second

part

;

WITNESSETH:
That the said parties of the first part lia\'e this

day sold to the i>arty of the second part, subject t<»

the terms of this agreement, twenty-one thousand

eight hundred and forty (21,84())acres of land, nioi'c

or less according to the (Jovernment survey, situate

in Cascade and Lewis and Clark Counties, Montana,

and more i)articularly described in I*'xhibits, A, n,

C, 1), and E, hereto attached and made a ])ai*t here-

of.

The party of the second part agrees to i)ay foi"

said lands at the rate of Five and 70/100 D()llars

($5.70) })er acre in the following manner, to-wit:

Twenty Thousand ($20,000.00) D<»llars on or be-

fore thirty days after receipt at the office of the

second part at 219 (lilfillan Block, St. Paul, Minne-

sota, of an abstracte compiled by a reliable ab-

stractor, showing a right to such title, to all the

property herein sold except two thousand (2000)

acres in the parties of the first part, as will enable

the first i)ai'ties to convey the said ])ro])erty accord-
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ing to this agreement, and the parties of the first

part agree to obtain title to the said two thousand

acres excepted and furnish perfect abstract with

reasonable diligence

;

Twenty-five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00) at the

signing hereof, receipt whereof is hereby acknowl-

edged. Said amount is to be paid by drawing on the

second party through a bank designated by Frank

D. Cooper, and this agreement to be mailed by said

bank to the second party for his signature upon the

return of such draft paid;

Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) on July, 1,

1910.

Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000.00) on October

1, 1910.

It is agreed that the second party may have an

extension of the time in which to make the last men-

tioned payment up to January 1, 1911, if he so de-

sires, and in case of the exercise of this right of ex-

tension said payment shall draw interest at the rate

of eight per cent per annum during such extension;

The balance shall be paid in five annual install-

ments payable on October 1 of each year after Oc-

tober, 1910.

The deferred paj^ments shall not draw interest till

after October 1, 1910, except during such extension

of time of payment as hereinbefore mentioned.

From and after October 1, 1910, the deferred pay-

ments shall draw interest at the rate of six per cent

per annum, subject to the exceptions hereinafter

mentioned.
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Tlic sccniid ]);u-ty iii.iy lia\(' an extension <>[ not

nini'c than ninety days al'tci" the dnc date (.f cacli

jiayincnt alter Octolx-r 1, 1<)1(), in wliidi t(. make
said i)ayin('nt, and in case of tlw cxcicisc id" this

i"iii:ht (d* extension, <ii- any pai1 tlicrco, the second

])arty shall pay interest on snch payment at the rate

of eiji^ht per cent ])er aninnn dni'int;' the ]»eriod (d'

sueh extension.

The first party is to i\inain in possession (d' said

})remisos till August 1, 1910, at whieh time i)osses-

sion is to ])e surrendered to the second i)arty or to

his agents, pi'ovided the second party has fulfilled

the portions of the contract to be i)erfoi'med hy him

prior to said date.

The second party is to have the right to enter

upon said premises at any time hereafter for tin-

purpose of surveying and carrying on such engin-

eei'ing work as he may di&ii'e.

The second party is to have the right to ei-op any

portion of said premises during the year 11)10,

which has heretofore been cultivated.

The first party agrees to irrigate the wild and

tame hay, if possible, during the year 1!)10, up to

August 1 of said year.

Upon the fulfillment of the terms (d* this agree-

ment by the second })arty, the first party agrees t«>

convey to the second party, all lands set out in Ex-

hibit "A" hereto attached, and all lands set out in

Exhibit "B" hereto attached to which said fii'st par-

ty has obtained or can obtain, deed j'i'om the

Northern Pacific Railway romi)any, and all lauds



74 Frank D. Cooper

set out in Exhibit "D" hereto attached, subject to

the terms of this agreement.

All lands conveyed to the second party under this

agreement shall be conveyed in fee simple by War-
ranty deed free from reservations and incumbranc-

es.

The first parties warrant that the lands set out in

Exhibit "B" hereto attached, are under contract

between Frank D. Cooper and the Northern Pacific

Railway Company bearing date of Januar}^ 18,

1909. The first parties agree to fulfill the obliga-

tions of Frank D. Cooper to the Northern Pacific

Railway Company as set out in said contract date

January 18, 1909. The first parties agree to use

their best efforts to obtain deeds from the Northern

Pacific Railway Company to the property set out in

Exhibit ''B."

It is agreed that the first parties will convej^ to

the second party, by similar warranty deed as here-

inbefore mentioned, all property set out in Exhibit

"B " to which they obtain deeds, or can obtain deeds,

from the Northern Pacific Railway Company under

said contract of January 18, 1909. It is agreed

that should the first parties be unable to obtain

deeds from the Northern Pacific Railway Company
to some of the property set out in Exhibit "B",

after the fulfillment of the obligations of Frank

D. Cooper under said contract of January 18, 1909,

then and in that case said first parties are not re-

quired to convey to the second party such property

set out in Exhibit ''B" as they are unable to obtain
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deeds to fnun said Xoitlicni Paciiic Railway C'mn-

paiiy, and tlie sccdiid j)arty is iit»t iccjiiiivd tn pa\'

I'or such i)r()i)erty not conveyed.

It is agreed tliat tlie first pai-ties will not j)eriiiit

any oi' the wikl or tame hay to l)e grazed upon l)e-

tween May 15 and up to August 1, 1910. and that the

second party shall have such hay crop with the right

to cut and put up the same when desired.

The first parties agree to use their best efforts to

speedily obtain clear title to the property set out in

Exhibit "D", and to convey the same to the second

part}" under this agreement when title is obtained.

If title canoyt be obtained, then said first parties

are not required to convey the same to the second

party.

The first parties agree to deliver possession of

said premises to the second party on August 1, 1910,

in their present condition of repair, usual wear and

tear and action of the elements excepted.

The first parties agree to assign to the second

party, or persons designated by him, at th(> time of

the delivery of possession of said premises, all State

leases on the property set out in Kxhibit "0" hereto

attached.

The first parties agree to make all payments ac-

cruing on State leases on the property set out in Ex-

hibit ''C" prior to the delivery of })ossession of said

premises.

The first parties agree to ])ay tlie taxes on the

premises for the time they remain in possession

of the same.
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The first parties agree to pay the second party in-

terest on all money paid prior to the delivery of pos-

session of the premises at the rate of six per cent

per annum, said interest to be deducted by the

second party from the next payment due to the first

parties from the second party after possession is

delivered.

The first parties are to furnish the second party

an abstract of title to all water rights conveyed un-

der this agreement, which water rights are as per

Exhibit ''E" hereto attached. Said abstract of said

water rights is to be furnished at the same time

that the abstract to the other property is furnished,

and shall show title to said water rights in the first

parties as set out in Exhibit "E" hereto attached,

and said first parties agree to convey said water

rights when said land is conveyed.

It is agreed that time is the essence of this con-

tract and that upon the failure of the second party

to make any of the payments of principal or interest

at the time and in the manner as herein set out, then

and in that case the first parties at their option,

may, upon sixty days' notice to the second party, de-

clare this contract forfeited and the}^ may return

into possession of said premises, and that all pay-

ments made under this contract shall be forfeited to

the parties of the first part, and this contract shall

become void and of no effect.

All payments to be made under this contract are

to be made to the Great Falls National Bank, Great

Falls, Montana, to the credit of Frank D. Cooper,
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and i».iyin('iit hy clicck sliall (•(Histitiitc a |)ayiii('iit

])rt>\i(l('(l the said clicck is lioiiorcd in the usual

course of business.

Interest wliich is to ])e paid under tliis contract is

to be i)aid on each j)aynient at tlie time tliat i>ay-

ment is made.

Tliis agreement is made in tri})licate and executed

in duplicate, oue original with Frank D. Toopei" and

(!('(». Ileaton, and on C(>py with John Marshall.

(Signed) FRANK 1). COOPKR.
ALICE G. COOPKR.
GEO. IIEATON.

Witness for their Signature:

JOHN MARSHALL,
Twodot, Mont.

Witness for first two signatures:

MELVIN ROWE.
Witness as to Geo. Heaton.

JAMES DENEGRE.
(Duly Acknowledged.)

Exhibit A. Mentioned containes a descri])tion,

with other lands, of the SE 4 SW 4 Sec. 8, E 2 NW
4, SW 4 NW4, Sec. 17, T. 19, N., Range '^ West,

being the lands involved in this action.

Exhibit "B" contains a list of the un])atented

lands purchased from the Northern Pacific Railwa>

Company.

Exhibit "C" contains a description (f the lands

leased from the State of Montana.
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Exhibit "D " contains a description of other lands.

Exhibit "E" contains a description of water

rights.

Witness continues

:

Q. Who has got possession of these lands now?

A. Oh, it is Barth, and Ross and King.

BY MR. WALSH : I wUl ask leave to withdraw

the Exhibit and make a copy of it.

BY THE MASTER: Very well, you may submit

a copy.

Cooper: That was A. H. Barth, J. R. King and

Thomas Ross.

CROSS EXAMINATION BY MR. SKINNER.

As near as I can remember, I moved into that

township in 1876. I don't think I took up a home-

stead at that time, think, it was a little later on. I

don't know when I took it up, but it was two or three

years later I should judge. I was born in April

1851. I have lived there continuously since the time

we moved there, excepting that my family lived in

Helena for a while, and we have also lived in Great

Falls for the purpose of sending the children to

school; but my home has been there continuousl}^

In the year 1899, I don't remember whether I was

there or not. I was there probably from time to

time, but whether or not it was continuously in that

year I couldn't say. During that time I was en-

gaged principally in the sheep business, and also
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cattle, and 1 cnij^ldycd a .^icat many slicci) licrdiTs

iiiul otiicr men to look after my sliccp, uj) to the

year 190,'). Mr. Freeman wctrkcd f'ni- nic, Init I

couldn't state just exactly what time. 1 didn't kvv\)

any books of my business, l)nt 1 kept a time bonlv.

1 have not that book with me; it was Just a memo-

raudiun book of the time. I couldn't state positive-

ly whether Mr. Freeman was in my em])loy in lf)()2.

I couldn't say when I first became acquainted with

him. I think Ik* had workcnl f<tr me sevei-al times,

and 1 thiidv he worked foi' me pri(»i* to that, but I

couldn't state what dates he did work exactly.

I did not go to Great Falls with him when he made

his final proof, not that I remember. 1 do not know

who prepared the Freeman papers, and I do not

know^ who prepared the final proof. I was not pres-

ent at the time of the proof. I don't remembei* it.

I don't remember that I went to (Ireat Falls with

Mr. Freeman at the time lie went there to make the

final proof. I have not the deed here that Freeman

,u,ave me for this land. I do not remember whether

it w\is the same date that Ik* made final pi-oof that

I took the deed or not. It was about that time,

somewheres, but I don't know whether it was that

date or not. I don't remember of paying Freeman's

fees for final proof. If I owned him anything,—if

he asked for it at any time, he got it, of course. I

dcm't remember of lending him any money, ])ut I

may have lent him some; 1 lent small anK>unts lots

of times, but I couldn't remember the dates oi- any-

thing of that kind. I don't renu'inber how nuK-Ii 1
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paid him for the land. I don't remember whether

the true consideration is stated in the deed. I have

no recollection of being on the Freeman place be-

tween July 1902, and August 18, 1904. I have no

recollection of ever being on it, only that I passed in

sight of it, along the lower Carnell field. I don't

know where the lines are. I never examined any of

the lands that I purchased there. I was familiar

with all the land around there. I bought land there

from the Railroad company two years ago at two

dollars an acre, without making any examination of

it. As far as a close examination goes, I never ex-

amined any of the lands that I purchased there.

That is grazing land, land that I bought and just

kept for pastures. I can't tell whether I paid Mr.

Freeman Two hundred, four hundred, or six hun-

dred dollars for his land. When purchasing land

I don't take into very much consideration the im-

provements on it; I don't allow very much on im-

provements, and for that class of land the improve-

ments don't cut much of a figure. At the time I

bought this land I could not say whether there was

a house on it or not, or whether there was a fence,

and irrigating ditch. I don't remember about that,

at that time. I don't think I have been more than

in sight of it but once since. His house is there

now ; I saw it from off at a distance. The other im-

provements, I don't remember whether I saw them

or not. I don't remember being in Great Falls on

the day that Mr. Freeman made his final proof. I

know Richard T. Loss and William S. Kirkland.
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Tlu'V worked I'm- iiic, hut I rdiildii't state tlic time

when it was, exactly. I dnii't kimw if they w»»iked

for 1110 when Mr. Fi-eeman worked fnr mc (»r not.

In fact, pretty nearly all the hoys np in that iieij;h-

borhood ha\'e worked lor nie at some time or

another, l)iit I can't rememher the dates and times.

I know the Crown Butte Ranch. I had a winter

sheep camp there. I don't reineni])ei- that I em-

pl(»yed Mr. (iardipee to fix up the Freeman cabin.

If I paid him h)V it, it was after I purchased it. As

neai- as I can rememlxu', (Jardipee has woikcd lor

me at different time, and 1 couldn't tell only in a

general way. I don't remember that 1 knew that

tlie cabin was not completed; I don't know much

about it; I don't know whether 1 got this knowledge

before or after I purchased it. I did not kn<tw that

Freeman filed on the land, only in a genei-al way.

I d(>n't remember having any conversation with

Freeman about making an entry, excepting in a

general way. I do not remember having any conver-

sati(m in Great Falls wdth Mr. Short. Thei-e was a

C(mversation about land in a genei'al way all the

time, but I don't remembei* any conversation about

taking up any. He spoke to me something along

that line. 1 might have asked him what kind of

a claim he was looking for,—something of that kind.

I don't remember of having his papers made out for

him; I don't remember anything about who made

out his papers. I don't remember being present at

the land office when he or his daughter signed the

papers. I don't remember seeing his daughter at
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all. I don't remember talking with Short about his

daughter taking up land. I don't remember paying

for the making of the papers, or the filing fees for

Mr. Short or his daughter. I never offered Short

or anybody else one hundred dollars for his filing

rights by proving upon in fourteen months; or any

other consideration in that way. I had no conversa-

tion with Mr. Belgarde as he testified. He ma}^

have asked me a question about where was the land,

the same as a great many others do. If I pointed

out the land to him I would have been on the land.

That land there Is some distance away, some four,

or five or six miles. I don't think he knows where

the ground is today. I think so in a general way.

He was just talking to be talking. I know I didn't

pay his filing fee. If he was working for me he

might have got the money. If it was paid it was

charged up to him. He would have sense enough

to know that it was charged up to him. But I don't

know how he got the money. If he got any money

it was charged up to him. Barth, Ross and King

are not the men who bought this land. They have

leased it at present from Mr. Heaton. I sold

Heaton 21,848 acres of land, which is all the land

that that I owned in the immediate vicinity of what

I call my home ranch. I bought about 14,000 acres

from the Northern Pacific Railway Company.
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KMvDIKMOOT EXAMINATION WY Mil. WAl.SlI:

The Ikiuic ranch is alxdit scncii m nine miles fi'oin

the I^'ircmaii hiiid, tlic way we tiaNcl it. When I

was away I always had a t'oivniaii in cluirge. To tlu*

hcst of my recollection, I ncxcr paid any filing fees

for Thomas Short or his (hiughtcr.

RE-CROSS^ EXAMINATION BY MR.

SKINNER:

Wliy, I know I didn't pay their filing fees. Some-

one nii.L;ht ha.vc hnrrowcd money oi- something <»f

that kind, bnt I nevei* paid their filing fees. That

is a l(»ng while ago to remember these conversations.

I (h)n't think J wonld give anybody money to file <in

a piece of land,—a saloon keeper.

And the foregoing is all the evidence that was in-

trodnced. And thereafter the Court filed its opinion

in words and figures following, to-wit:

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES, DISTRKn^ OF MONANA.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
vs. No. 946.

FRANK D. COOPER and CEO.

II EATON.

Herein the Court finds that Freeman, entrnnan

of the land involved, did not built any house upon

said land, did not reside thereon, did not fence the

same, nor any or either of them prior to his final

proof; that his improvements did not exceed $100;

that defendant Cooper knew the foregoing facts
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when he purchased said land from Freeman; that

said defendant did not pay a valuable consideration

therefor. And therefrom the Court concludes that

the aforesaid final proof was false and fraudulent,

was believed and relied upon by complainant and

induced issuance of the patent involved; that de-

fendant Cooper is not a bona fide purchaser of said

land; that cancellation of said patent has become

impracticable since suit brought; that complainant

is entitled to the relief of damages against defendant

Cooper in the value of the land, $5.70 per acre, with

legal interest from December 13, 1909, and all costs

;

that unless paid by defendant Cooper, defendant

Heaton shall pay the amount thereof to complainant

from the unpaid purchase money owing by defend-

ant Heaton to defendant Cooper upon his contract

of purchase of said lands when made a part hereto

and appearing herein, such payment to discharge

said purchase price to the extent thereof ; that com-

plainant have a lien therefore upon the land involved

for security, and foreclosure thereof. And decree ac-

cordingly will be entered.

January 20, 1914.

BOURQUIN, J.

Now comes the defendant, Frank D. Cooper, and

presents the foregoing as his Statement on Appeal,

and moves that the same be approved by the Court.

JAMES A. WALSH,

Solicitor for the Defendant,

Frank D. Cooper.
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I, tlic uiKliTsigiUHl, Jiuli^^c of the ahnvc named
Court, do lu'i'chy certify that the foregoing State-

ment of Keeord on ApjX'al is true, complete, and

properly i)repared, and the same is tlicicfoi-e lici-e-

l)y ap])roved by the Court.

Dated this Mth (hiy ol duly, A. 1)., Xineteen

Hundred and Fourteen.

GEO. M. IJOL'HQriN,

Judge.

(Endorsed: Filed duly 15, U)14. (ieo. W. Sproule,

(^erk.)

And thereafter, the defendant, Frank 1). Cooper,

served and filed the following:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

NOTICE OF LOlKjiEiMENT OF TRANSCRIPT
ON APPEAL.

No. 946.

To the above named complainant, and Mr. 15. K.

Wheeler, United States Attorney for the District

of Montana, its solicitor, and Mr. S. C. Ford, As-

sistant United States Attorney, and to the defend-

ant, George Heaton, and Messrs. Day and Mapes,

his Solicitors:

YOU AND EACH OF YOU WILL PLEASE
TAKE NOTICE:
That the statement of record on Appeal of the

Defendant, Frank D. Cooper, in the above entitled

action has been lodged, and is now in the office of

the clerk of the above named Court.
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AND YOU WILL FURTHER TAKE NOTICE:
That at the United States Court Room in the City

of Helena, Montana, on the Twenty-second day of

June, Nineteen Hundred and Fourteen, at the open-

ing of Court, on that day, or as soon thereafter as

counsel can be heard, the undersigned will ask the

Court to approve the said Statement on Appeal, so

prepared and lodged with the Clerk as aforesaid.

Dated this 11th day of June, A. D., Nineteen

Hundred and Fourteen.

JAMES A. WALSH,
Solicitor for the Defendant,

Frank D. Cooper.

Service of the foregoing notice accepted and copy

thereof received this eleventh day of June, 1914.

B. K. WHEELER,

United States Attorney for the District of

Montana and Solicitor for the complain-

ant.

DAY & MAPES,
Solicitors for Defendant George Heaton.

And thereafter the defendant, Frank D. Cooper

served and filed the following:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

NOTICE OF SUMMONS AND SEVERANCE.
TO THE ABOVE NAMED DEFENDANT,

GEORGE HEATON, and MESSRS. DAY
AND MAPES, his Solicitors:
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YOU AND KACII OK YOU WILL PLKASK
TAKE NOTICE:

That the defendant, FRANK 1). COOJM^K*. in tlie

above entitled action, intends t<» appeal to the Un-

ited States Circuit Court of Appeals, for the Ninth

Circuit, from the jnd<inient and decree made, given

and entered by the above named court in the above

entitled cause, and filed on the 28th day of January,

Nineteen Hundred and Fourteen, and the said de-

fendant, P'rank 1). Cooper, hereby requests that you

join with him in the said appeal, and upon your

failure to so join with him in said appeal, then he

will prosecute the said appeal alone.

JAMES A. WALSH,
Solicitor for defendant,

Frank D. Cooper.

Service of the foregoing notice admitted and copy

thereof received this twenty-fifth day of June, Nine-

teen Hundred and Fourteen, and the said (Jeorge

Heaton hereby refuses to join in said appeal.

DAY & MAPES,
Solicitors for the Defendant,

George Heaton.

Copy of the foregoing received, June 2f)th. lf)l I.

P>. K. WHEELER,
LT. S. Attorney.

Endorsed: Filed June 26, 1914. Ckm.. W. Sproule,

Clerk.

And thereafter the Defendant, Frank I). Coo])cr,

served and filed the following:
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(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

NOTICE.

To the above named defendant, George Heaton, and

Messrs. Day and Mapes, his Solicitors

:

YOU, AND EACH OF YOU WILL PLEASE
TAKE NOTICE

:

That at the court room in the City of Helena,

Montana, on the Second day of July, Nineteen Hun-

dred and Fourteen, at the opening of Court on that

day, or as soon thereafter as counsel can be heard,

the undersigned will call up the motion hereto an-

nexed and herewith served upon you.

JAMES A WALSH,
Solicitor for the defendant,

Frank D. Cooper.

Service of the foregoing notice admitted and copy

thereof received, and copy of motion received this

26th day of June, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and

Fourteen.

DAY & MAPES,
Solicitors for the defendant,

George Heaton.

B. K. WHEELER,
United States Attorney for the

District of Montana.

Endorsed: Filed June 26th, 1914. Geo. W.
Sproule, Clerk.
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(TITLK OF (^OUKT, TITLK OF CAU8F.)

N(». 94G.

MOTION.

N(»w comes the (IdViidjiiit, Frank I). ('(Mipci*, and

moves tlio court i'oi' an oi-dcr pciniittiiij; liiin to

prosocute alone an ai)})eal li-oni the ji'idi;inent and

decree made, given and entered in the above entitled

action, and filed on the Twenty-eighth day of Jami-

ary, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and Fourteen, for

the reason that his co-defendant, O('org<' Hcaton.

I'efuses to join in the appeal.

JAMFS A. WALSH,
Solicitor for the Defendant,

Frank D. Coo]:)er.

Fndorsed: Filed June 2(J, 1914. (Jeo. \\\ Spi-oule,

Clerk.

And thereafter the Court made and entered the

following:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

ORDER OF SEVERANCE.

A judgment having been on the Twenty-eighth

day of January, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and

Fourteen, duly made, given and entered in the above

entitled cause against the above named defendants,

and the defendant, Frank D. Cooper, having on the

25th day of June, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and

Fourteen, served on his co-defendant, (Jeorge

Heaton, a summons, and a notice of his intention
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to appeal from the said judgment, and requesting

the said George Heaton to join with him in said ap-

peal, and notifying him that upon his failure to so

join, that he, the said defendant Frank D. Cooper,

would prosecute the said appeal alone ; and the said

defendant, George Heaton, having in writing de-

clined to join in the said appeal, and the said de-

fendant, Frank D. Cooper, having on the 26th day

of June, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and Fourteen

served upon his co-defendant, George Heaton, notice

of motion of severance and that he, the said Frank

D. Cooper be allowed to prosecute the said appeal

alone, and which said notice and motion was like-

wise, on said date, served upon the complainant;

and the said motion coming on for hearing the

Second day of July, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and

Fourteen, and the court having duly considered the

same;

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED: That the in-

terest of said defendant, Frank D. Cooper, be, and

the same is hereby severed from the defendant,

George Heaton, and the said defendant, Frank D.

Cooper be allowed to prosecute the said appeal

alone.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED : That this order

and the motion and notices above mentioned be made

a part of the record on appeal.

Dated this Second day of July, A. D., Nineteen

Hundred and Fourteen.

GEORGE M. BOURQUIN,
JUDGE of the above named Court.



rs. Tin I 'ml ((I Shihs of Anicricd. !»!

Due service of the furegoing is licichy admitted

this Second day of July, A. 1)., Ninetem ninidred

and Fourteen.

n. K. \Vlli<:KLKK,

United States Attorney for the

District of Montana.
DAY & MAPES,

Solicitors for the defendant,

George Heaton.

Endorsed: Filed July 2, 1914. ({eo. W. Si)n.ul(',

Clerk.

And tliereaftei" tlie defendant Frank D. Tooixt

served and filed the following:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

PETITION FOR APPEAL:

To the Honorable, the Judge of the above named

Court

:

The above named defendant, Frank D. Cooper,

conceiving himself to be aggrieved by the decree en-

tered herein on the Twentv-ei^hth dav of Januarv,

A. D., Nineteen Hundred and Fourteen, in the above

entitled proceeding, does hereby appeal t'r<ini said

decree to the United States Circuit Con it of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit, for the reas(ais specified

in the assignment of errors which is filed herewith,

and prays that an appeal be allowed and that a cita-

tion issue as provided by law, and that a transcrij)t

of the record and proceedings and papers upon

which said decree was based, duly authenticated.
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may be sent to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

And your petitioner further prays that the proper

order fixing the security to be required of him to

perfect his said appeal be made.

JAMES A. WALSH,
Solicitor for Defendant,

Frank D. Cooper.

Due service of the foregoing is hereby admitted

this Second day of July, A. D., Nineteen Hundred

and Fourteen.

B. K. WHEELER,
United States Attorney for the

District of Montana.

DAY & MAPES,
Solicitors for the Defendant,

George Heaton.

Endorsed : Filed July 15, 1914. Ceo. W. Sproule,

Clerk.

And at the same time the defendant Frank D.

Cooper served and filed the following:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS.

The defendant, Frank D. Cooper, in the above en-

titled action, in connection with his appeal, hereby

makes the following assignment of errors, which he

avers occurred in this cause, to-wit

:



r.s'. The ruital Shifts of Auk rim. m
I.

It was error for tlu* court to hold and find that

Jay 0. Freeman, entryman of the land iiiNohcil. did

not build any house ui)on said land, and did not re-

side thereon, and did not fence the same, nt»r any

or either of them i)rior to his final ])roof.

.11.

It was error for the Court to hold and find that

his. Freeman's, improvements die not exceed One

Hundred Dollars in value, and that the defendant

Cooper knew the said facts, or any of said facts

wheu he purchased the said land from Freeman, oi-

at any other time.

III.

It was error for the court to hold and find that

the defendant Cooper knew of the facts or any of

the facts set forth in specific paragraphs Numbered

One and Two, when he purchased the said land

from Freeman, or at any other time.

IV.

It was error for the court to hold and find that

the defendant, Frank 1). Cooper did not pay a

valuable consideration for the land embraced in the

Freeman entry.

V.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the final proof of the entryman. Freeman,

was false and fraudulent, or that the complainant

was induced to issue the patent herein involved by

relyini^- upon any false or fi*audulent statements.



94 Frank D. Cooper

VI.

itwas error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the defendant Frank D. Cooper is not or

was not a bona fide purchaser of said land.

VII.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the complainant is entitled to the relief of

damages against the defendant Frank D. Cooper in

the alleged value of the land, Five and 70/100

($5.70) Dollars per acre, as stated b}^ the court,

with legal interest from December 13th, Nineteen

Hundred and Nine, amounting in all to Twelve

Hundred and Twelve and 96/100 ($1212.96) Dollars,

and all costs.

VIII.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the value of the land was or is Five and

70/100 ($5.70) Dollars per acre, no evidence having

been introduced as to value.

IX.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that unless the said sum of Twelve Hundred

and Twelve and 96/100 ($1212.96) Dollars was paid

by the defendant Frank D. Cooper, that the defend-

ant George Heaton shall pay the amount thereof to

complainant from the unpaid purchase money owing

by the defendant Heaton to the defendant Frank D.

Cooper upon his contract of purchase of said lands

when made a party hereto and appearing herein.
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I\.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that such ])ayiiient, when made hy the said

Heaton, should l)e a discharge of said piii'chase

price to the extent thereof.

X.

It was eiTor for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the complainant has a lien for the said sum

of Twelve Hundred and Twelve and 96/100 ($1212.-

9G) Dollars upon the land involved, and was entitled

to the foreclosure thereof.

XI.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the complainant was entitled to a decree

{\ccording to the findings and conclusions of the

Court.

XII.

It was error for the court U) order, adjudge and

decree that the complainant have and reco\('r from

the defendant Frank 1). Cooper the sum of Nine

Hundred and Twelve ($912.00) Dollars, with intci--

est from the 13th day of December, A. D., Nineteen

Hundred and Nine, (1909), amounting in all to the

smu of Twelve Hundred and Twelve and 9G 100

($1212.96) Dollars, together with the costs and

taxes, for that, no issue was raised in the pleadings,

and no evidence was introduced concerning the

value of the land.
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XIII.

It was error for the court to order, adjudge and

decree that unless the said amount, Twelve Hundred

and Twelve and 96/100 ($1212.96) Dollars, and

costs, be paid by the defendant, Frank D. Cooper,

that the defendant, George Heaton, pay the same to

the complainant from the unpaid purchase money

claimed to be owing by the said George Heaton to

the defendant Frank D. Cooper upon his contract

for the purchase of the lands.

XIV.

It was error for the court to order, adjudge and

decree that upon such payment being made by the

said defendant George Heaton it shall discharge the

purchase price to the extent thereof.

XV.

It was error for the court to order, adjudge and

decree that the complainant have a lien upon the

lands and premises mentioned in the complaint, for

the sum of Twelve Hundred and Twelve and 96/100

($1212.96) Dollars, and the costs, and that it is en-

titled to the foreclosure thereof.

WHEREFORE: The said defendant, Frank D.

Cooper, prays that the said judgment of the said

District Court of the United States, for the District

of Montana, rendered in the said suit be reversed.

JAMES A. WALSH,
Solicitor of the Defendant,

Frank D. Cooper.
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Duo service of tlic t'oicnoiiiu; assi^nineiit of erroi-s

is liere])v admitted this loth (hiy (»t' July, A. I).,

Niueteeu Hundred and Fourteen.

1^. K. WTTKKT.KU,

United States Attorney tor the

District of Montaua.

DAY & MAPKS,
Solicitors f(U' the Defendant,

rieoi"u;e TIeaton.

indorsed: Filed duly IT), 1!)14. (ie(». W. Sproule,

Clerk.

And thei'eu])(»n the court made and entei-ed tlie

following':

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

ORDER ALLOWINC; APPEAL.

On this day came the defendant, Frank I). C'ooper

and presented his petition for appeal, and liis as-

signments of error accompanying the same, whieii

petition, upon consideration thereof, was allowed,

and the court allowed the appeal to the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals I'oi- the Ninth Cir-

cuit, upon filing a bond in the sum of Fifteen

Hundred Dollars, with good and sufficient security

to be approved by the Court.

And it further appearing that the defendant,

(ieorge Heaton was notified in writing to join in

the said appeal, or to decline to join in such appeal;

and it further appearing that the said (leorgc
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Heaton has declined to join in the appeal, and has

severed himself from the defense of this cause, the

said defendant Frank D. Cooper is hereby granted

his appeal as aforesaid, and his interest is severed

in said appeal from the other defendant, George

Heaton, herein.

Dated this 15th day of July, A. D., Nineteen Hun-

dred and Fourteen.

GEO. M. BOURQUIN,
JUDGE of the above named Court.

Due service of the foregoing is hereby admitted

this 15 day of July, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and

Fourteen.

B. K. WHEELER,
United States Attorney for the

District of Montana.

DAY & MAPES,
Solicitors for the defendant,

George Heaton.

Endorsed : Filed July 15, 1914. Geo. W. Sproule,

Clerk.

And thereupon, the defendant, Frank D. Cooper,

executed and filed the following:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 946.

BOND ON APPEAL.

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That I, FRANK D. COOPER, as principal, and

J. L. TRUSCOTT and E. D. COLEMAN of Glas-

gow, Montana, as sureties, are held and firmly bound
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unto the United States ol' Anieriea, in tlic sum d"

Fifteen Hundred ($ir)()().()()) Dollais, l.iwrul ni..ney

of the United States of Aniciici, I'm- tlic i»a\ inciit iA'

whieli, well and truly to be made, we du licirlty hind

ourselves, jointly and severally, and each of our

heirs, executors, adnunistrators, successors and as-

sii^iis, firmly hy these presents.

Scaled with our seals, and dated this (i day of

July, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and Foui'tecn.

WHEREAS, the above named defendant,

FRANK D. (^OOPER, has in-osccuted an ai)i.cal to

the United Circuit Coui-t of Ai)peals foi- the Ninth

Circuit, to re\'erse the decree rendei-ed in the above

entitled cause in the United States District Court

for the District of Montana, made and entei-ed on

the Twenty-eighth day of Jainiary, A. 1)., Nineteen

Hundred and Fourteen.

NOW, THEREFORE, the C()nditi(m of this obli-

*2;ati()n is such that if the above named defend.int

Frank D. Cooper, shall prosecute the said aj)i)eal

to effect and shall answer all damaj'es and costs

that may be awarded aj^ainst him if he fails to make

j^ood his appeal then the above oblii;ation is to be

void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue.

It is expressly agreed by the said J. L. Truscott

and E. D. Coleman, the sureties above named, that

in case of a breach of any condition of this bond, the

court may, upon notice of not less than ten days,

to the said J. L. Truscott and E. D. Coleman, ])ro-

ceed summarily in this actiini to ascei-tain the

amount which sucli sui-eties are bound to pay on ac-
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count of such breach, and render judgment against

them for said amount and award execution therefor.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF: We have here-

unto set our hands and seals this 6th day of July,

l/l4.

FRANK D. COOPER. (SEAL)
J. L. TRUSCOTT. (SEAL)
E. D. COLEMAN. (SEAL)

STATE OF MONTANA,
COUNTY OF VALLEY,—ss.

J. L. TRUSCOTT and E. D. COLEMAN, the

sureties Avhose names are subscribed to the above

undertaking, being severally duly sworn, each for

himself, and not for the other says : That he is a re-

sident and freeholder or householder in the said

County of Valley, State of Montana, and that he is

worth the sum in the said undertaking, specified

over and above all his just debts aijd liabilities, ex-

clusive of property exempt by law from execution.

J. L. TRUSCOTT. (SEAL)

E. D. COLEMAN. (SEAL)

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 6th day

of July, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and Fourteen.

C. D. ARNOLT,
Notary Public in and for the State of Mon-

tana ; residing at Glasgow, Montana.

(SEAL.)

My Commission expires Jan. 26, 1915.

The foregoing bond is hereby approved this 15th
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(lay of -Inly, A. I)., Nineteen Hundred and l"\»ui-

teen.

OEO. M. HOUHQUIN,
JTDCK (d* tile above Xanied (\.nrt.

Kndorsed: Filed duly \'k VJW. (ic... \V. S|)i-nulc,

(Merk.

And thereupon the eoui't a])])i'oved said bond, and

issued the followini;-:

(TITLE OF COURT, TITLE OF CAUSE.)

No. 94().

CITATION.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA:

TO THE UNITED STATES OF AMERK^A, Com-

plainant and Ai)pellee, and to 1>. K. WHEEL-
ER, United States Attorney, Solicitor for Ap-

pellee, and to (1 FORCE HEATON, defendant,

and MESSRS. DAY & ]\L\PES, his Solici-

tors, CREETING:

You are hereby cited and admonished to be and

appear before the United States Circuit Couit ot

Appeals, for the Ninth Circuit, at the City of San

Francisco, State of California, within thirty days

from the date hereof pursuant to an ai)peal filed

in the office of the Clerk of the District Court of

the United States for the District of Montana,

wherein Frank D. Coopei' is the appellant, and the

United States of America and (}eor<;e Heaton are

the Appellees, to show cause, if any there be, why

the decree in said appeal mentioned should not be
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corrected and reversed, and speedy justice should

not be done to the parties on their behalf.

WITNESS, the Honorable George M. Bourquin,

Judge of the United States District Court, for the

District of Montana, this Fifteenth day of July, A.

D., Nineteen Hundred and Fourteen.

GEO. M. BOURQUIN,
Judge of the District Court for the

District of Montana.

Due and personal service of the above citation is

hereby admitted, and copy received and acknowl-

edged this Fifteenth day of July, A. D., Nineteen

Hundred and Fourteen.

B. K. WHEELER,
United States Attorney.

DAY & MAPES,
E. C. DAY & T. D. MAPES,
Solicitors for the Defendant,

George Heaton.

Endorsed: Filed July 15, 1914. Geo. W. Sproule,

Clerk.

And thereafter the defendant Frank D. Cooper

served and filed the following:
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(TITLK OF (K)IIKT, TITLK ()K ('AUSE.)

No. i)4(j.

PHAKCIPE.

TO TllK IIONORAHIJ': W. K. Wll i:i:ij:i{, I'N-

ITEI) STATES DISTIUCT ATTORNEY
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MONTANA, So-

licitor for the complainant, and to MESSRS.
DAY Sc MAPES, Solicitors i'or the Defend-

ant, Oeorgc Heaton:

THE UNDERSIGNED, Solicitor for tlic defend-

ant and appellant, herein, Frank 1). (\»(>]>ei', lierel»y

files and serves upon you his praecipe, in conformity

with the rules of Court, hereby indicating tlie i)i»r-

tions of the record to be incorporated into the

transcript on api)eal herein, and which said por-

tions of said record you are hereby notified the said

defendant and appellant will incorporate and in-

clude in the record on appeal. Said portions are as

follows, to-wit:

A.

Judgment Roll, consisting of

:

1. Bill of Complaint.

2. The Clerk's note following the Bill of (^»m-

plaint.

3. The Subpoena.

4. The answer of the defendant, Frank 1).

Cooper, to the Bill of Complaint.

5. The Replication.

6. Order allowing Amendments to the Kill of

Complaint.
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7. The Notice, and Amendments to the Bill of

Complaint.

8. The order to serve on the defendant George

Heaton by publication. .

9. Return of the Mashall.

10. Separate Answer of the defendant, George

Heaton.

11. Replication to the Answer of the defendant,

George Heaton.

12. The Decree.

13. The Certificate of the Clerk.

B.

The evidence introduced as incorporated in the

statement of record on appeal.

C.

A memorandum of the documents introduced in

evidence.

D.

A memorandum of the opinion of the Court.

E.

Defendant's notice to settle Bill of Exceptions.

F.

Certificate of Judge.

G.

Notice of Defendant Cooper's intention to appeal,

and request to the defendant George Heaton to join

in the appeal.

H.

Acceptance of service of the notice, and refusal to

join in the appeal.
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1.

Motion of Sovorancc.

J.

Notice of Motion of Severance.

K.

Order of Severance.

L.

Petition for Appeal.

M.

Assijinmcnt of Errors.

N.

Order Allowing Appeal.

O.

Citation.

P.

Bond on Appeal.

This Praecipe.

R.

Insert the title of tlie eanse in fnll in the l>i]l of

Complaint.

S.

Omit the title of the conrt and canse in all suh-

sequent papers and pleadings, excepting the state-

ment, ''Title of Court, Title of Cause."

T.

Omit the endorsements, excepting to state,

** Filed," giving the date and the name of the clerk.
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U.

Insert the acknowledgments of service of papers

complete.

JAMES A. WALSH,
Solicitor for the defendant,

Frank D. Cooper.

TO GEORGE W. SPROULE, Clerk of the above

named Court:

You will* please prepare the record on Appeal in

t]ie foregoing entitled cause, and incorporate there-

in the papers and records set forth in the foregoing

Praecipe.

JAMES A. WALSH,
Solicitor for the Defendant,

Frank D. Cooper.

Due service of the foregoing admitted this 15th

day of July, A. D., Nineteen Hundred and Four-

teen.

B. K. WHEELER,
United States Attorney for the

District of Montana.

DAY & MAPES,
Solicitors for the defendant,

George Heaton.

Endorsed : Filed July 15, 1914. Geo. W. Sproule,

Clerk.
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(TiTu: OF conrr. titlI': oi^ catsk.)

ci.kkmk's (MOirriKi(^\TK.

UNITED STATES OF AMEKM(\\,

DISTKK^T OF MONTANA.—ss.

J, (u'ur<;v \V. Sproiik', ('U-rk ol' the Fnitcd Slates

District Court for the District of Montana, do here-

by certify aiul return to the II<»n(»rabk', the United

States Circuit Coui*t of Appeals, for the Ninth Cii- .

cuit, that the foregoing vohune, consisting of -fTTn

pages, numbered consecutively from One to ilO

inclusive, is a true and correct transcri})t of the

pleadings, processes, final decrees, orders, testimony

and all other proceedings had in said cause, and of

the whole thereof as appears from the original files

and records of said court in my custody as sueli

clerk; and I further certify and i-eturn that 1 have

annexed to said transcript, and included within

said pages, the original citation issued in said cause;

all the foregoing being included in tlie statement or

final record herein as approved by the Judge of this

court.

In Testimony Whereof: I have liereunti* set my

hand and affixed Jlie seal of this Couit, at Ilelcim.

M(mtana, this...(!^.'Sr^:::jZ,VrXr../.T>r day ..f

/ Cl^i^yC^id^^.—, A. 1). Nineteen Ilundicd

and Fonrtejt^i. V
I / X ^ /^

Clerk.
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3For tl)e Nhttl] (Hirruit.

No. 2460.

FRANK D. COOPER,

Defendant and Ap])('llant,

vs.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Complainant and A])])ellee.

GEORGE HEATON,
Defendant Not Joining in Appeal.

No. 946.

APPELLANT'S BRIEF.

This suit was prosecuted by the Complainant

to cancel a patent for One hundred sixty acres of

land, situated in the Helena, Montana, Land Dis-

trict. It is alleged that Jay C. Freeman made a



homestead entry, making the affidavit and paying

the fees required by law (Tr. 3-4). That it was

incumbent upon said Freeman to make an actual set-

tlement, cultivate and reside upon said lands for a

period of five years (Tr. 5). That the said Freeman

made final proof on the 18th day of August, 1904, cor-

roborated by two witnesses, William S. Kirkland and

Richard T. Loss. That the said Freeman and his

witnesses swore that he had resided five years upon

the land, and had placed improvements thereon of

the value of Four hmidred Dollars, (Tr. 6-7).

That a final receipt was issued on the 23rd day of

August, 1904, and on the tenth day of February,

1905, a patent was issued for said lands (Tr. 9).

That the said affidavits were false and fraudu-

lent. That the said Freeman did not establish his

residence upon said land or reside thereon or put

the improvements on said land, set forth in his af-

fidavit, and that said affidavits were false and un-

true in every particular. (Tr. 9-10-11). That the

officers of the land office believed said affidavits,

and believed them to be true, and issued to said

Freeman a final certificate, and thereafter issued

and delivered to him the patent.

That the said Freeman conveyed the lands

to the defendant Cooper and that said Cooper

occupies said lands and claims ownership thereof.

(Tr. 12-13). That said Cooper was not a pur-

chaser in good faith or for a valid consideration,

but purchased the same with complete knowledge

of the fraud of the said Freeman (Tr. 14-15). And
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the (\nni)lainant praxcd that tlir [latcnt sn issued

lie declared xoid and eaiieelled and the h-Ljal and

('(lliitahh' ri«;lit of lUKSSCSsioii he restoied tn the

(•()]ni)lainant (Tr. M-Ki-IT).

The defendant Coojxt answered denying all

knowledge as to the fi'and claimed t<) ))e perpetrated

l)y Freeman, admitting;- the conveyance to him and his

piKSsession; denied that it was not [)nrchase(l in ^^ond

faith, and averred that he i»nrcliased the lands in

^ood faith, paid a vahia])le consideration thei-efoi*,

and believed and now believes that the said l''i-eeinan

procured the title to said lands in l;(»(i(1 faith, and

had in all things complied with the law, and withoiii

any notice or knowledge that said h'lcenian had not

complied wath the law or that it was elaimed that

he had not so complied (Ti-. 2()-2()).

The defendant further averred that prior to th(»

commencement of the action he entered into a con-

tract with George Heaton and sold the land to him in

good faith and for a valuable consideration, and

that Heaton purchased it without any notice <»r

the claim of the complainant that said (iilbert had

not in all things complied with the law (Tr. 2')).

To this the complainant inteiposed a ^cneial

replication (Tr. 27). Thereupon testimony was

taken, and at the conclusion of the hearini^^ the

Court held that Heaton was a necessaiy paity an<l

directed that he be made a ]>arty defendant.

United States vs. Cooper, 19(> Fedei-il. ')S4.

Thereupon the Court made an order i)ermitting



the name of Heatoii to be added, and to amend the

complaint by interhneation (Tr. 28). Thereupon

the complainant served notice of amendment of the

complaint (Tr. 29-31), and the complaint was there-

upon amended by interlineation. Those parts inter-

lined are underscored in the Transcript. Process

was served on Heaton September, 1912 (Tr. 32-33).

Thereupon the defendant Heaton filed an answer

denying generally the allegations contained in the

bill of complaint (Tr. 33-39). The defendant

Heaton further averred that the matters and things

set forth in the bill of complainant did not accrue

within six years before the said bill was filed and

subpoenas served upon him, Heaton, and thereby

pleaded the statute of limitations (Tr. 38-39). To

this answer the complainant filed a general replica-

tion (Tr. 40-41). Thereupon the case came on for

further hearing and on the 15th day of January,

1914, the Court rendered its judgment wherein it

was ordered and decreed that the defendant Cooper

agreed to sell the said lands to said George Heaton

and that more than six years elapsed from the date

of the issuance of the patent to the service of the

notice upon Heaton, and the concellation of the

patent thereby became impracticable.

It was further decreed that the value of the

land was Five Dollars and seventy cents per acre,

and the complainant was entitled to recover the

value thereof, to-wit : Nine hundred Twelve Dollars,

with interest at the rate of eight per cent, per an-

num from the 13th day of December, 1909, amount-
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iiii^ in all to $ll212.})(), and the costs oi" tlic arti<»n.

(Tr. 41-4:J).

It was rnrtlicr (Iccrccd that ('.»n|t('i- pay that

amount and that if ('nopci- did not jjay it that the

detVndjint (iiM)i-j;e Hcaton pay it out nl' the pin-cliasc

j)ri('(', and such payment would he a discliargc

of the i)iii*cluisc pi'icc t<» the extent tliereof {'Vv. 41-

4:3).

The dct'ondant (\)(>pei' serxcd n<»tice upuu Ids

c< -defendant, requesting;* Idm to j(»in in an appeal

fr(nn said judj-iuent (Ti'. 87). Ileatou i-efused to

join in the ai)peal (Tr. 87). Thereupon the de-

fendant Cooper served notice of severance and

thereafter an order of severance was duly made (Tr.

88-89-90). Thereupon appellant filed a petition

for an appeal (Tr. 91 ) and had issued and served

on all the parties a citation (Ti-. 101.

ASSIGNMENT OF KRKOKS.

The defendant, Frank I), ('ooi)ei', in the ahove

entitled action, in conenction with his appeal, herehy

makes the following- assignment of err(»rs, which he

avers occurred in this cause, to-wit:

1.

It was error for the court to hold and find that

Jay C. Freeman, entr\Tnan of the land involved, did

not hnild any house upon said land, and did not re-

side there(m, and did not fence the same, nor any

or either of them prior to his final ])i*oof.



—6—

II.

It was error for the Court to hold and find that

his, Freeman's, improvements did not exceed One

Hundred Dollars in value, and that the defendant

Cooper knew the said facts, or any of said facts

when he purchased the said land from Freeman, or

at any other time.

III.

It was error for the Court to hold and find that

the defendant Cooper knew of the facts or any of

the facts set forth in specific paragraphs Numbered

One and Two, when he purchased the said land

from Freeman, or at any other time.

IV.

It was error for the Court to hold and find that

the defendant, Frank D. Cooper did not pay a

valuable consideration for the land embraced in the

Freeman entry.

V.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the final proof of the entryman. Freeman,

was false and fraudulent, or that the complainant

was induced to issue the patent herein involved by

relying on any false or fraudulent statements.

VI.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the defendant Frank D. Cooper is not or

was not a bona fide purchaser of said land.
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VII.

It was error Tor tiic ctmit tn cmhicIikIc. Iinid and

find that the coiiiplaiiiaiit is entitled tn ilu- rt'licl" nf

damages against the defendant Frank 1). Cooper in

the alleged \alue of the land, Vwv and 70 KM)

(.tr).70) Dollars per aere, as stated by the ennit,

with legal interest from Deeemher KUh, Nineteen

Hundred and Nine, amounting in all to Twelve

Hundred and Twelve andJKi 100 ($r2lL>.n(;) Dollars,

and all eosts.

VIII.

It was error for the court to e(tnelud<', hold and

find that the value (»f the land was or is Five and

70/ 100 ($5.70) Dollars per acre, no evidence having

been introduced as to value.

IX.

It was error for the court to eonelude, Ik "Id and

find that unless the said sum of Twelve Hundred

and Twelve and 96/100 ($1212.9(J) Dollars was i)aid

by the defendant Frank I). (\)oper, that the defend-

ant (ieorge Haeton shall pay the anionnt thereof to

complainant from the unpaid i)urchase money owing

by the defendant Heaton to the defendant Frank I).

Cooper upon his contract of purchase of said lands

when made a party hereto and appearing herein.

IX.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that such payment, when made by the said

Heaton, should be a discharge (»!' said pnichase

price to the extent thereof.
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X.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the complainant has a lien for the said sum

of Twelve Hundred and Twelve and 96/100 ($1212.-

96) Dollars upon the land involved, and was entitled

to the foreclosure thereof.

XI.

It was error for the court to conclude, hold and

find that the complainant was entitled to a decree

according to the findings and conclusions of the

Court.

XII.

It was error for the court to order, adjudge and

decree that the complainant have and recover from

the defendant Frank D. Cooper the sum of Nine

Hundred and Twelve ($912.00 Dollars, with inter-

est from the 13th day of December, A. D., Nineteen

Hundred and Nine, (1909), amounting in all to the

sum of Twelve Hundred and Twelve and 96/100

($1212.96) Dollars, together with the costs and

taxes, for that, no issue was raised in the pleadings,

and no evidence was introduced concerning the

value of the land.

XIII.

It was error for the court to order, adjudge and

decree that unless the said amount, Twelve Hundred

and Twelve and 96/100 (1212.96) Dollars, and

costs, be paid by the defendant, Frank D. Cooper,

that the defendant, George Heaton, pay the same to

the complainant from the unpaid purchase money
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claimed t<» Ix' owiiii; \)y the said (l(M>r«;c Ilcaton to

tlic dciViidant I'^iank I), ('oopcr ujn»ii Ids contract

for tile i»uiclias(' ol' the lands.

XIV.

it was cri-oi- Tor tlu' couit In ordci-, adjiid;;t' and

decree that upon such payment l)eing nuuh' l)y tlui

said defendant (Jeorge Heaton it shall discharge the

purchase price to the extent thereof.

XV.

It was error for the court to ordci', adjudge and

decree that the complainant have a lien ui)on tlie

lands and premises mentioned in the (•onii)laint, for

the sum of Twxdve Hundred and Twelve and 9(i KM)

($1212.9()) Dollars, and the costs, and that it is en-

titled to the foreclosure thereof.

THE QUESTIONS PRESKNTEl) I'PON THIS

APPEAL ARE:

(1.) Is the evidence sufficient to sustain the

finding that the cntryman Freeman did not comply

with the law and was guilty of fraud in making his

homestead entry and procuring title thereto (

(2.) Is the evidence sufficient to sustain the

finding that the defendant Cooi)er is not an inno-

cent purchaser without notice and for value {

(3.) Is the decree within the issues and su[)-

ported by the pleadings and evidence /
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ARGUMENT.
The first, second, third and fifths assignments

of error relate to alleged fraud of the entryman.

Freeman. In actions of this character, it is incum-

bent upon the plaintiff to produce evidence that

is clear and convincing, and a mere preponderance

of evidence should not suffice. The burden

is upon the Complainant to prove the fraud

alleged, and not upon the defendant to disprove it.

The witness Foley knew nothing of the conditions

of this claim prior to September 1906. The testi-

mon}^ of Mr. Kinsey does not disprove the testi-

mony of Freeman or his witnesses. The witness knew

nothing about this claim prior to 1904. The testi-

mony^ of the witness Frank J. Kinse.v is not suf-

ficient to overcome the testimony of the witnesses

in final proof. The witness Lavergure knows noth-

ing at all about the claim.

The witness Thomas J. Short did not testify

anything about the claim, but only about some

alleged conversations with Cooper which were

wholly inadmissable. The two witnesses Gardipee,

did not show sufficient knowledge to testify as to

the conditions of the Freeman claim or whether or

not Freeman resided there. The testimony of the

witness Belgrade does not prove or disprove any

issue in the case, and is wholly inadmissable for any

purpose.

The Complainant introduced the evidence of

the entryman and his witnesses in making final

proof, and having introduced it, it is entitled
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to sonic t-rcdciicc, and it is incunilx'nt U|m»ii tlu?

plaintiff to (vcicc.nic tliat cvidcnct.' hy i»r<M»f that is

clear and coin incin<;-. 'IMiis, I snhniit, they have

failed to do.

The testimony of Sliort and Hclj^ardc was inad-

missable for any purpose. The Coiniilainant sought

by this e^idence to show that Cooper had induced

other ])eo])le to file on land, })iit in this they failed.

In the Maxwell Land (Irant case, I'Jl [\ S. l^if),

the Court said

:

"We take the general ddctriiic tn he that

when in a court of e(jnity it is piojxjscd to set

aside, to annul or to corre<'t a written instru-

ment, for fraud or mistake in the exccntidii *>(

the instrument itself, the testimony nn which

this is done nuist he clear, unecjuivocal, and

convincing, and that it cannot be done upon a

bare preponderance of evidence, which leaves

the issue in doubt. If the i)roposition, as thus

laid dow^n in the cases cited, is sound in I'cgai'd

to the ordinary contracts of i)rivate individuals,

how much more should it be observed where the

attempt is to annul the grants, the patents, and

other solemn evidences of title emanating from

the Government of the United Stixtes niidc r its

official seal. In this class of cases, the respect

due to a patent, the presumi)tions that all the

preceding steps i-equired by the law had been

observed before its issue, the iniinense inijM»rt-

ance and necessitv (»f the stabilitx- of titles de-
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pendent upon these official instruments, de-

mand that the effort to set them aside, to annul

them, or to corect mistakes in them should only

be successful when the allegations on which this

is attempted are clearly stated and fully sus-

tained by proof. It is not to be admitted that

the titles by which so much property in this

country and so many rights are held, purport-

ing to emanate from the authoritative action

of the officers of the Government, and, as in

this case, under the seal and signature of the

President of the United States himself, shall

be dependent upon the hazard of successful re-

sistance to the whims and caprices of every per-

son who chooses to attack them in a court of

justice; but it should be well understood that

only that class of evidence which commands re-

spect and that amount of it which produces con-

viction, shall make such an attempt successful."

This language was quoted with approval in the

case of United States vs. Budd, 144 U. S. 154.

Applying this test, the complainant's testimony

falls far short of making out a clear and convincing-

case of fraud.

The evidence of the witness Short and Belgarde

was not admissable for any purpose. It was intro-

duced for the purpose of showing or attempting to

show that other parties filed on lands at the instiga-

tion of Cooper. No proof of any contract between

them and Cooper was attempted to be proven, and



—13—

it was only left t<> iiitcicncc that CnoiuT had a

fraudulent intent, 'i'liis cNiih'ncc was inadniissahlc.

In the case iA' Tnited States vs. Hudd, 144 U.

S. 154, the Court said:

"If its title was I'aii-ly ac(|niir(i. it niattei*s

Udt what wrongs lia\"e hrcii done hy citht-r de-

fendant in aequii'ini; othei- lands; sn the <|ues-

tion properly t(» he eonsidered is, was this land

wrongfull}- and I'raudulently ohtained l"inni the

(Jevernment ?"

and in that case the Court further said:

"Because a party lias done wi-oni; at one time

and in one transaction, it davs not uecesasrily

follow that he has done like wroni^ at other

times and in other transactions."

It is contended that the l)urden is on the de-

fendant Cooper to prove that he was a hona fide

j)urchaser, without notice and for a valuahh' mn-

sideration.

It is only when the complinant has made out

a case supported by strong, clear and convineing

testimony that the burden is cast ui)on the defend-

ant. Complainant has failed to make out such a

case.

The complainant, appellee, failed to in any way

connect the defendant, appellant, Cooper with the al-

leged fraud, or to bring home to him notice that the

entryman had failed to comply with the law and had

practiced a fraud upon the (n.vernment and failed
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to prove any facts that would lead to such knowledge

on the part of the appellant, Cooper.

I respectfully submit that the evidence falls far

short of being of that satisfactory and convincing

character required in such cases, and further, that

the defendant Cooper has established that he was a

purchaser in good faith, without notice, and for

value.

DEFENDANT COOPER IS AN INNOCENT
PURCHASER.

The defendant Cooper pleaded that he was an

innocent purchaser for value and without notice.

He testified that he purchased the land and paid a

valuable consideration for it. He knew nothing of

the claim of the complainant that the entryman had

not complied with the law. Cooper is a man of

large affairs, owned large quantities of land and

did not critically examine every tract of land which

he purchased, and he did not critically examine the

land in question. Final proof had been made to the

satisfaction of the Government officials, and he was

entitled to rest upon the presumption that the entry-

man had complied with the law.

He purchased directly from the entryman after

the entryman had made proof and his proof was

passed upon and accepted by the Government of-

ficials.

There is a distinction between purchasing land

direct from the entrvman and from another. In



case ot" a purehasr t'i-<>iii an cut lymaii arirr the ac-

ceptance of his final pionl", tlicrc is a |H'esnniptinn

that he lias complied with all the piovisiinis nl' the

law and has a i;n(>d t itle.

In L'nited States vs. Stinson, 1!)7 I'. S. Ji)(), the

(^)Urt said:

"While the government, like an indi\idnal.

may maintain any aj)i)ropi'iate action tn set

aside its grants and rccovei* ]»r(tpei-ty of which

it has been defranded, and while laches or limi-

tation do not of themselves constitnte a distinct

defense as against it, yet certain ])ro])ositions in

respect to sncli an action have heeii I'ully es-

tablished. First, the respect dne to a ])atent,

—

the presumption that all the picceding ste])s re-

quired by law have been ol)ser\('d before its is-

sue. The immense importance and necessity of

the stability of titles depending njKin tliese of-

ficial instruments demand that suits to set aside

and annul them should be sustained only when

the allegations on which this is attempted are

clearly stated and fully sustained l)y i)roof."

"Second. The government is subjected to

the same rules respecting the burden of jnoof,

the quantity and character of evidence, the pi-e-

sumptions of law and fact, that attend the

prosecution of a like acti(»n by an individnal.

'It should be well understood that only that

class of evidence which commands respect, and

that amount of it which prodnces convicti.»n.
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shall make such an attempt successful.'
"

•X- * *

Further

:

"But it is not such a fraud as prevents the

passing of the legal title by the patents. It

follows that, to a bill in equity to cancel the

patents upon these grounds alone, the defense

of a bona fide purchaser for value, without

notice, is perfect."

These quotations are supported by numerous

decisions of United States Supreme Court cited in

the original opinion, which we think unnecessary to

cite here.

In the Maxwell Land Grant case, 121 U. S. 325,

the Court said:

"The deliberate action of the tribunals to

which the law commits the determination of all

preliminary questions, and the control of the

processes by which this evidence of title is is-

sued to the grantee, demands that, to annul such

an instrument, and destroy the title claimed

under it, the facts on which this action is asked

for must be clearly established by evidence en-

tirely satisfactory to the court, and that the

case itself must be entirely within the class of

causes for which such an instrument may be

avoided."

See also Colorado Coal & Iron Company vs.

United States, 123 U. S. 307.

The complainant, appellee, failed to in any way
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cnnncc't the dotVndant, appellant, Coojicr with the

allegod fraud, »>r to hriiiL; hniiic tn liiin in.ticc that

the cntryinan had Tailed to comply with the law and

had practised a Iraiid upon the ( io\'ei-n?nent and

failed to prove any facts that would lead t(» such

knowledge on the part ot the ai)pellant. Cooper.

1 resi)ectfully sul)niit that the evidence falls far

short of being of that satisfactoi'y and convincing

character required in such cases, and further, that

the defendant Cooper has established that he was an

innocent purchaser in good faith and without notice.

THE DECREE IS NOT WITHIN THE ISSUES
AND IS NOT SUPPORTED ]A" PLEAD-

INGS OR EVIDENCE.

The character of the decree entered renders it

unnecessary to discuss at length the question of the

alleged fraud of the entrynian or Coojx'r's alleged

knowledge of the fraud or the consideration paid

by him for the land. The decree is outside of any

issue raised by the pleadings and outside of any evi-

dence introduced at the trial.

The suit was brought for the express purpose

of cancelling the patent. The bill of Complaint

was framed for that and no other purpose. If the

pleadings and evidence do not entitle comi)lainant

to a decree cancelling patent, complainant is iK.t

entitled to any other relief.

The defendant Co(>})ei- alleged in his answer

that he had sold tlie land to (leoi"<!-e Ilcaton. The
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complainant took issue on that subject and filed a

general replication.

After the testimony was taken the Court held

that Heaton was a necessary party.

United States vs. Cooper, 196 Fed. 584.

The Court permitted the Complainant to amend

its bill of complaint by interlineation, and an

order was made to that effect (Tr. 28). The

bill was amended accordingly (Tr. 29-30-31). The

parts interlined are underscored in the bill of

Complaint so that they may be identified by the

Court.

More than six years elapsed from the date

patent was issued and the order making Heaton a

party and the service of process upon him. He
pleaded the statute of limitations (Tr. 38-39).

The Court by its decree, adjudged and decreed

that on account of the expiration of six years from

the date of the issuance of the patent it could not be

cancelled, and decreed that the value of the land was

$5.70 per acre or $912., and decreed that the defend-

ant Cooper pay that amount with interest, amount-

ing in all to $1212.96. And unless that amount was

paid by Cooper that the defendant Heaton pay it

out of the monej" due Cooper, and such pay-

ment would discharge Heaton to the extent of such

payment from the money due Cooper under the

Contract.

I respectfully submit that this decree is wholly

outside of the issues raised by the pleadings and
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wliolly outside of the evidence. Tliere is imt a

single alloj^ation in any ol' tlie pleadings <»r any allc-

i^atinn that in any way at't'ects the vahie id' this

land, and no evidence of vahie was (d'feird (H- ad-

mitted.

Ileatou avers that he ptirehased this land and

other lands from Cooper at $5.70 per acre, Imt there

is no alleviation that that is the value of the land.

The contraet bet\V(H'n Cooper and Heaton shows

that he pui'chased 21,840 acres at the rate of jj^').?!)

per aei'e. Hut the Court cannot jiresuuie tluit all

that land was of equal value, ludeed, the Court

should take judicial notice of the fact that in such a

large tract of laud in this mountainous country with

its mountains and valleys there is a great diversity

in the character and value of the laiid. One tract

may be smooth tillable land and the adjoining tract

rough and stony. One tract may l)e valuable for

agricultural purposes and the adjoining tract worth-

less for any purpose other than pasture, and <>t' little

value for that. But the subject was not an issue in

the case. It was not raised by the pleadings, Cndei*

the pleadings no evidence could have been intro-

duced as to value. None was introduced. If it was

an issue in the pleadings, and evidence had been ad-

nnssable to prove value, the value of this ])articular

ti'act would have to be established, not the price at

which over 21,000 acres was sold. The (piestion of

value not being an issue, the Court could not, undei-

a prayer for general relief determine the value of

the land and declare that Cooper shall \y,\y the



—20—

amount, and that if he does not pay that Heaton

shall pay it and he shall thereupon be discharged

for that amount due Cooper under the contract.

Heaton has sold the land. Can an execution is-

sue against Heaton ? Can an execution issue against

Cooper? Can the government order a sale of the

land and compel Cooper to pay any deficiency?

To support a judgment of that kind there must be

proper allegations. It is elementary that a decree

must be supported by the pleadings and the evi-

dence. The decree in this case is not supported by

the pleadings and the evidence is wholly outside of

both.

In Windsor vs. McVeigh, 93 U. S. 274, the

Court said:

"Though the Court may possess jurisdiction

of a cause, of the subject matter and of the

parties, it is still limited in its modes of pro-

cedure, and in the extent and character of its

judgments. It must act judicially in all things,

and canont then transcend the power conferred

by the law. If, for instance, the action be upon

a money demand, the court, notwithstanding its

complete jurisdiction over the subject and par-

ties, has no power to pass judgment of impris-

onment in the penitentiary upon the defendant.

If the action be for libel or personal tort, the

court cannot order in the case a specific per-

formance of a contract. If the action be for

the possession of real propert}^ the court is



01—t^X—

powerless to admit in tlie ease tlie j»rol)ate ol' a

will. liistaiiees of this kind sJKtw that the

general doetrine stated \)y eouiisel is siil)ject to

many (jnalifications. The judgments men-

tioned, given in the cases sni)posed, would n<»t

be merely erroneous; they would he absolutely

void; because the eouit in rendering them

Would transcend the limits of its authority in

tliose cases."

In Washing-ton, Alexandria 6l (leorgetown Hail-

road Company vs. Mayor and Board of Aldermen

of Washingttm, 77 U. S. 299, 19 Lawyer's Kdition,

894, the Court said

:

"It is hardly necessar\' to I'epeat the axioms

in the equity law of procedure, that the allega-

tions and proofs nnist agree, that the court can

consider only which is put in issue by the plead-

ings, that averments without proofs and proofs

without averments are alike miavailing, and that

the decree must conform to the scope and object

of the prayer, and cannot go beyond them. Cer-

tainly without the aid of a cross-bill the ctturt

was not authorized to decree against the (-((in-

plainants the opposite of the i<'li('f which they

sought by their bills. That is what was done

by the decree under consideration."

In Crocket vs. Lee, 7 Wheaton 52)), Chief Jus-

tice Marshall said:

"The rule that the decree nuist conform to
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the allegations as well as to the proofs of the

parties, is not only one which justice requires,

but one which necessity imposes on courts. We
cannot dispense with it in this case."

In English vs. Foxall, 2 Peters 595, the Court

said

:

''There is no doubt but that, under the gen-

eral prayer, other relief may be granted than

that which is particularly prayed for. But

such relief must be agreeable to the case made

by the bill ; and there is nothing in the first bill

to sustain the particular relief granted as to the

deficiency."

In Hayward vs. Bank, 96 U. S. 611, the Court

said

:

'

' But such liability is not charged, nor is such

relief asked in the bill. The specific relief

sought is a decree requiring the Bank to trans-

fer the stock to him—a thing now beyond its

power to do. It is true that the bill contains a

general prayer for such relief as may be con-

sistent with equity and good conscience; but

we incline to the opinion that its whole frame

and structure are inconsistent with a right in

this action to a decree for the value of the

stock, even if the facts justified any such re-

lief."

And so in the case at bar. The Court acknowl-
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do tliat wliifli the CoiMplainant dcniandcd in its

player Wtv I'dicl* and as set fortli in its plcadinj^s,

and such rclicl' hcini;' Ix'Vond tlic power of the

Court, it ga\-e a jii(l,i;inent and deci-ee and relief to

the (onii)hiinant wh(»ily outsich* of the issues and

wliolly unsupported by evidence.

In tlie case of New Orleans \s. Citizens I>ank,

107 r. 8. :ni, the rnnrt said:

"We are at a loss to understand hy what

process of reasoning the decree was made to

cover the question of the nonliahility of the

bank foi- license. It was not presented by the

pleadings, and was entirely dehors the issues in

th(^ case."

The same rule prevails in all courts.

In Alywin vs. .Morley, 41 Mont. 191, 108 Pac.

778, the Supreme Court said:

"It will, however, be conceded that the judg-

ment in her favor must rest upon some proper

I^leading, eithej- her own oi- that of the plain-

tiff. A judgment without a j^leading to su])-

port it cannot stand; and this is the reason why

the question whether a complaint states facts

sufficient to constitute a cause of action is

never waived and can be raised in this court

for the first time."

The judgment entered in this case, lacing out-

side of and not suppoi'ted by the pleadings or evi-
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dence must be reversed. The court, having ad-

judged and decreed that the patent cannot be can-

celled, thereby affirmed the patent and the com-

plainant not having appealed from that judgment,

it became final. The complainant is not entitled

to any relief whatever under the issues raised in the

pleadings and the judgment should be reversed and

the action dismissed.

Respectfully submitted,

JAMES A. WALSH,
Solicitor for Appellant.
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FRANK T). rOOPER,

VS.

UNITED STATES OF AMERK^A,
A j)pellre.

(JEOROE HEATON,
Defendant not }oinin<i in appcdt.

APPELLEE'S BRIEF.

This ciiso, as briefly stated in appellant's brief,

ill his statement of the case, is one that was l)ron«,Mit

for the cancellation of the patent to certain lands

comprising the homestead enti'v of day (
'. l-'iccinnn.

The allegations of fraud and other matters set forth

in the pleadings can only Ix' fully understand l>y a

reading thereof, so no attemi)t will Ix' licrr made tn

elaborate (m the statement of the <'as(' as a|>i>('llaiit

has stated it and we content ourselves with ic plying

to the argument of conns*'! f<>i- ai>pellant as set

forth in his brief.



ARGUMENT.
Appellant, in the same manner as he did in the

companion case No, 2461, after a few general com-

ments on the evidence in the case proceeds to state

that there is no evidence to sustain the findings of

the court of the decree appealed from and cites a

few cases to show that his contention is correct. It

seems that when one makes such a sweeping charge

he at least should attempt to summarize the evi-

dence in the record and so there may, apparently at

least, be something to sustain his contention before

the court. We earnestly contend that there is more

than ample evidence in the case at bar to sustain

the decree and that it is most convincing, indeed, not

only greatly preponderates, but, is only met with

the defendant Cooper's half hearted denials and

usual inability to recollect anything.

The witness Foley testified: that he was a

special agent in the General Land Office; that he

examined the Freeman entry about the 16th day of

September, 1906; he had had occasion to examine

almost all the land in the same township ; had iden-

tified many corner stones and knows particularly

the tract under consideration, which was within an

enclosure including other lands; that he found the

following improvements when he examined the

land : a 12 x 16 frame cabin with a shingle roof

;

the cabin had no window in it; no stove pipe hole

or chimney; it had a door frame or opening where

a door could go but door in it; he found that the

door frame was absolutel}^ untouched and unmarred



l)y scrows, nails <>r liini^os, nr aiiytliini: <»<' tliat sort;

tlic r'.\\)\u had iic\ci- liccii usal ; that Mi". Cdoprr

(»\vii('(l the ciichisurc witliiii which tliis hin<l was and

resided in the next townsliip cast uf the mir this

entry was in. 'riicrc was n<» IVncc (ui the entry

pr()i)er, exeei)t that it was intersected hy a piece nl*

fence; tliere was no fence snrnanidin^ tlie entry on

its onter lines; he was ovei- the land a mnnhci- it\'

times; the cahin was (»ii the onter edi^c ni' the ('(»nj)ci-

enelosnre; there was no ])lowed u;ronnd on the land:

there had been no cnltivation on the entry; CVv. pp.

45-48).

William L. Kinsoy, testified: that he had lived

in Township 19 N., K. :\ \V., since April U)()4, which

is the one the entry is in; knew Cnoper twenty-fonr

years; Freeman worked for Coopei- duiinu the yea)-

1904; knew Freeman's enti-y, j'ii-st saw it in Fehin-

aiy or March 1904, had ])een over the entry five or

six times before the makin<»- of final })root' by Free-

man; prior to final ])i-oof the erection «d' a cabin

had been started on the claim, the east and west

sides of the cabin had been i>ut \\\), one oi- two

boards and a pair of raftei's on each end; there

WHS no floor or I'oof on the cabin at that time; that

a Mr. (Jardipee finished ii)* the honse in .Inne of

that year by pntting- on the i<»oi' and the ends. The

witness w^as with Mr. Foley when he insix'cted th<'

claim and then the ca])in was as F<dey stated it was;

he never saw any land broken np on the claim and

it w^as nevei- fenced at the time final )ii-nnf was

made; (Ti-. pp. 48-r)0).



Edwin R. Jones testified : that he was acquaint-

ed with the Freeman entry; first saw it in the

early spring of 1905 ; saw the cabin on it ; the cabin

had no door or window; there was no fence on the

land; Ereeman was a sheep herded or camp tender

for Mr. Cooper; when he first saw the house it

looked as though it had just been built and had

never been inhabited; that it might have been built

a year but no longer ; he first met Freeman in 1904,

(Tr. pp. 50-51).

Frank J. Kinsey, testified: that he had lived

around the country there for 24 years; that he first

saw the Freeman entry in 1902 while riding after

horses; that he moved on a claim of his own in

section 21, same township, in April 1904; he knows

the Freeman entry and there wasn't anything on it

when he first saw it in 1902; the next time he saw

it was in February or March 1904 and there was a

house on it at that time, but the house had no roof

on it, or ends in it, just sides; there was no furni-

ture, floor or cooking utensils in it ; there was some

more work done on it—a shingle roof, floor and

ends put on and hole cut for door but no hole for a

window or stovepipe hole or chimney; never saw

anyone living on the claim ; there were no other im-

provements on the claim ; Freeman was working for

Cooper in June or first of July, 1904; witness saw

Cooper in and around Freeman's claim a great

many times; from the time he was up in that

country from April 1904 Cooper was up in that

part of the country a great many times. (Tr. pp.
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r)2-r);?).

John l.avcimn-c test ilicd : tli;it lie was a ranch

hand and knew Cooper in IDO} or liM),"); knew Vvvv-

nian hcl'oi'c that time; l^'iccman worked l"oi- Cmoimt

at sanu' time witness did; that lie knew the Krep-

nian ehiini; tliat lie liad heen on it Itnt never saw-

any one living;- on it ; wiieii witness worked Wn-

Cooper tile cabin on <'laini had no donr in it;

Freeman work<'(l ninnini;- slieep t't»r ('«»oper in a

lambing- camp. (Tr. p. 54).

John (iardipee, Sr., testified: that he Iiad

known (\)()])er for ten years; tliat in ]U(Y.\ lie nmved

out to ehiim one mile from the Freeman entry and

was acquainted with the Freeman entry; that when

ho first saw the house on the Freeman entry, there

wore tw^o sides on it and the raltcrs hnt no i-oot' or

flooi-. Witness further testified that he was the

man referi'cd to by other witnesses as the one who

c(>mplete(l the house; that he put the ends and ro<.l"

on the house about Auj;ust, 1{)()4, and settled with

Mr. Coo})er foi- the work aftei- it was done; that

there were no other buildin.i;s on the entry when he

first saw it. He first talked with C(topei- about do-

\uix the work. (Tr. pj). ^IfJ-f)? ).

John B. (Jardijx'e, testified: that in the years

1902, 1903 and 1904 he was out neai- the Freeman

entr}' working;- nearly all the time and noticed

Cooper travelling' throuuh there off and on. That

before John ( iardijx'c. Si-., had done the woj-k. In-

testified to on the h(»use, it had only two sides on

it, no roof, floor in it and thei'e was no fence on the
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land. Freeman worked for Cooper all of 1902 and

1903 and a part of 1904. (Tr. p. 58).

William M. Belgrade testified: that when he

saw the cabin in 1905 there was no door in it. (Tr.

p. 59).

The testimony given by Richard T. Loss and

William S. Kirkland, as witnesses for Freeman

upon submitting final proof of compliance with law

for his homestead, was introduced in evidence and

both of said witnesses testified as follows:

I am well acquainted with the claimant (Freeman)

and the land embraced within his claim; it is graz-

ing land only, cannot be cultivated; Claimant set-

tled upon the homestead July 2nd, 1902, built a house

and established residence; claimant is unmarried

and has been upon the homestead most of the time

since first establishing residence on it ; claimant has

worked out some, and as to absences from the land

the total does not exceed three months in any one

year since entering the land; none of the land has

been broken up as it is most valuable for grazing in

its natural condition ; the land is too rocky to admit

of being broken up and cultivated and has been used

only as grazing land, about 50 head of stock have

been grazed there; the improvements on the land

are a 16 x 18 house with shingle roof, all fenced,

post and three wires, irrigation ditch through it,

value of improvements $400. ; not interested in

entry and think claimant has acted in good faith,

(Tr. pp. 61-63).

The testimon}^ given by Freeman upon making
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his final pi-ocd" hci'oic the land <»ffif(' I'oi- liis

cnti)' was introdnccd in cNidcncc and is as t<»llM\vs:

I am tile identical pcrsdn who niach- hmncstcad

entry for SK 14 SW 1/4 Sec. 8, K 1/0 NW Vi, and

SWy4 NW 1/4 Sec. 17, Tp. 19 N. R.":5 \V. .m .Inly

2, 1902, and claim the same; I first hnilt my hnu.se

on the land in Jnly 1902 and settled and estahlished

residence; house is fi-anie. KixlS feet, shin;;h*

roof, all land fenced with '.\ wii-es and pnsts tA' cedar

one rod apart; ten acres nf land in iz^rass seed and

irrigated; value of iin])rovenients $4()().(H): 1 am un-

married; have heen away from land wm-kinu: t"<»i"

wages; my total absence will not exceed moi-e than

three months in any one year since enti-\'. The land

is not fit for cultivation and is used I'oi- i;i-a/.inu .'»()

head of stock each yeai-; none of it is cultivated: it

is grazing land only and cannot he used advantage-

ously fo]- any other pnrp«>se. I ha\'e no othei- j)er-

sonal property except on claim. (Tr. pp. (I.'i-f)?).

The final affidavit of said Freeman final in

the land office at the time of applying to make final

proof contained the following statement: "That I

have made actual settlement on and cultivated and

resided ui)on said land since the 2n<l day nf .July,

1902, to the present time." (Tr. p. (iS).

In addition to the foregoing the ajjpellee, him-

self, testified that he moved intn the township where

Freeman's claim was, in 187(>, and two or three

years later took u]) a homestead: that P'reeman had

worked for him hut he didn't rememhei- when it

was. The rest of appellee's testimniiy was alninst



entirely a statement that he did not recollect this or

that. Indeed, it is remarkable that a man of "large

affairs," such as it is contended that Cooper is

should have purchased land so recklessly without

regard even to its quality, improvements or any-

thing except that a deed was delivered upon the

payment of the purchase price.

The rest of appellant's testimony was merely

that he did not remember ; he kept no books to show

when Freeman worked for him; he did not remem-

ber of Freeman having filed upon the land, or

whether he accompanied Freeman to the land office

when any papers were made out either to file or in

and about the final proof; he did not remember

whether the deed was made at the time of final

proof or later, but it was about at that time he said

(Tr. p. 79). He did not remember whether Gardi-

pee had ever fixed the cabin, but said, if Gardipee

had, it was done after Freeman had sold it to him.

In fact his entire testimony was composed entirely

of either denials of the positive testimony given by

appellee's witnesses or statements that he had no

recollection about the matter.

It seems incredible that a man of Cooper's busi-

ness ability should have so conducted himself in

and about the purchase of land that he would pur-

chase even a hundred and sixty acres of grazing

land without at least remembering whether he had

ever seen it prior to such purchase. He testified

that he lived in the neighborhood from 1876 to

1910 and in all but three years of such time had had
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a iKunostoad in said township with the chiiin umhT
consideration. His owncrsliip of i^l.iMio acres of

hind in the vicinity of this chiini (h»cs not bespeak

Well lor the trutlifuhiess of his statements that he

knew notliing about the Ki-ccnian cntiy h« I'nrc he

j)Ui'chased it. Is it ])ossil)h* that a man, whr. pur-

cliased such a vast tract of land as is shown |)y

tile r(H'ord ('ooi)ei- did, wouhl pay two, four or six

hundred (hdhirs oi* more witliout havinj< examined

4ny portion of it prior to i)ayini; the consi(h'ration

therefor. Cooper admits that Freeman had woi-ked

for him, but cannot remember whetliei- it was in

1901, 1902, 19013, 1904, 1905 (,r 190(J, or any specific

year.

The testimony of the witnesses Sliort and Hel-

ji,arde (Tr. pp. 55-57; 58, 59), was certainly admiss-

ible to show the usual method employed by ajjjx'llant

in obtaining title to land fi'oni the Tiiited States.

Short testified that he was to receive something like

$100.00 for using his filing right for Mr. ('oo])er

(Tr. p. 55); Short never saw the land: the descrii>-

tion and papers were furnished by Coojier and

Cooper paid the filing fees (Tr. p. iyi)). Helgai-de

also filed ou a piece of land at Coo])ei''s suggesti<»n,

and Cooper must have paid for making out the

papers and the filing fees; he (Belgarde) never

did; (Tr. pp. 58 and 59).

In cases of this kind it is seldom, if evei-. poss-

ible to secure direct proof (»f the fraudulent acts of

a party, for, from the vei-y nature of things, ])er-

S(ms, who are engaged in the l)nsiness of acfpiiring
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land from the United States and building up a vast

domain such as Cooper had, do not work openly.

On the contrary, such persons are careful that no

written evidence of their scheme to obtain the land

is valuable and no one except the entr^^man who is

duped into taking up the land for a few paltry

dollars is present. Indeed, it is remarkable that a

man of apparently good standing in the community

will go into the business of acquiring land, as Cooper

did in the present instance, and, when the United

States objects to its land laws being abused, protest

that they have always been acting in good faith and

are purchasers for a valuable consideration, when

in truth and in fact the}^ have watched men like

Freeman file upon claims and seen the land laws

more honored in their breach than observance. The

most unobserving persons in Cooper's position

would have been compelled to notice that Free-

man's entry was sham and a fraud and unless like

Cooper were desirous of acquiring it would have

denounced it for what it was a palpable attempt to

defraud the government.

In the case of U. S. v. Stimson, 197 U. S. 200-

207, cited by appellant on page 14 of his brief, the

decision of the court was based upon the fact that

forty years had elapsed since the commission of the

alleged fraud and the institution of the suit and the

purchaser from the patentees had held the lands

and obtained large credits on the strength of being

such owner, and the creditors were equitably en-

titled to protection. This together with the weak-
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lU'ss (»!" llic ('\ idciicc was the rcasnii \'ny said dr-

cisidii, 1)111 the |»(iui' (|uali1\ <.r the <'vid('iir<» was not

alniic tile l>asis \>\' the decision.

Ill the case at hai' we liaxc no siirli considera-

tions as tlu'i't' Were in tlic Stinistui case, sHfuui; Iumt

(\)oi)('r liad retained the lands, and only a few years

liad elapsed and no rii'lits of ei-editors are invoiveci.

A|)])ellant seems to arnne that heeanse he j>nr-

ehased this land from Freeman withont any knowl-

edge that the United States claimed Freeman had

not complied with the law, that he is an innocent

piii'ehaser for \ahie. lint a man cannot sit idly

hy and li\'e in the neiu,hhorho(»d of a ))iece (d' lainl

and the land honiiht hy him, and say that he was

innocent of what Freeman had done. A man cannot

close his eyes, as Cooper desires this cdurt to he-

lieve, and then [irofit hy his endeavors to notice

nothing. He nnist have known on Angnst IH, 1904,

when he ])nrchase(l the land, that l^'reeman had

Worked f(.r him herding sheep for several years

prior thereto, and knowing that Freeman was so

in his employ, he, an expei-ienced slice] >man. knew

that F'reeman did not herd sheep at some i-emote

l)oi'tion (d' Cooper's 21,()()(» acres and i'eturii tn the

claim evei-y night, oi' e\('ii maintain a '•continnoiis

residence" as the law recpiired a homesteader to do.

It was not incnmheiit upnn the Fnited States to

iKttify Coo])er, or anyone else, that it wonld insist

(-11 a cancellation of the patent within the statntory

period, if it discovei'cd that Fi-ceman had practiced

a frand in making his final jm-ooI'. Indr.d. ('(io])er
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was so anxious to secure this land that he could not

even wait until a final receipt or certificate had

issued for it, but purchased it on August 18, 1904,

the same day final proof was made and five days

before the final receipt or certificate issued, and

about six months before patent issued (Tr. pp. 6-9;

14; 23; 24), It is absurd to say that a man who

owns a large tract of land, ''a man of large af-

fairs," is by reason of that fact not expected to

know what is being done with a piece of land near

which he had lived, on which he grazed sheep, in

whose service the entryman had been engaged for

several ,years prior to the final proof and purchase.

We most respectfully submit that the evidence

in this case shows most conclusively: That Free-

man never complied with the law so as to entitle

him to a patent; that both Freeman and his wit-

nesses on the final proof hearing are shown to

have been most reckless with the use of the truth;

that the statements contained in the testimony given

on the final proof hearing were absolutely false and

were made for the sole purpose of deceiving the of-

ficials of the United States Land Office; that

Cooper was aware of all that transpired in and

about the homestead of Freeman and particularly

as to the improvements never existing as the final

proof witnesses said they did and that no residence

was ever established or maintained as was claimed.

Cooper does not deny that the testimony given at

the final proof hearing was false but contents him-

self with asserting that he knew nothing about it.
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lie bases his lidnd faith iiix.n wliat was nuitaiiu-d

in the final proof .md its acrcptancc hy the officials

of the land office, l»nt his knowdcdi^c of the cnuiitry

and the (loinL;s tlici-cin accpiiicd hy nearly thirty

years residence and the l.u-t that Freeman had hei-n

in liis enii)l()y for several years innnediat<'ly prioi-

to the niakin*;- ^)f the final p!'(K»f nnist have advised

him that a fi-and was heiiiL; ])eri)etrated and In*

cannot claim he was withont fanlt. The mere fact

that the title he bought was iKtthin^- hut one based

on a final recei])t, issued five days after the pur-

cliase, was a tiling- that should ha\"e put him upon

iuquii'v and if he ne^'lecterl to in(pni-<' into the Ixuia

fides of the enti-y and his ncLiiect is no pi-otection

to him. His "laru;e affairs" and enormous land

holdings alone show that he was a man well xcrsed

in th(> ways of the woi'ld and particularly with all

the details of acquiring*' the public domain, ('ooi)er's

pretended i<>-n()ranee of what Freeman had d(»iie on

the claim and lack of knowleduc as to what resi-

dence a man had in such close pi-oximity i'or a

period of over five years is a ciiTumstance in itself

that brands Cooper with a i;uilty knowledj4:e of th<'

fraud. Indeed, his statement tiiat he knew nothing:

of tlie final ])i'oof proceedings is sh(>wn to be false

as the deed was dated on the sam<' day and un(h»ubt-

edly was f(U" the purpose of securing t(» Cooper the

fees and ])rice paid the Uinted States at the final

proof hearing otherwise why such haste to take a

deed for land for which no land office cei-tificate

liad \'et issued.
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THE DECREE.

It is contended by the appellant, that this ac-

tion having been brought for the purpose of having

cancelled a patent issued to the entryman of the

land in question, the court could not make or enter

any decree except a decree cancelling the patent

or a decree dismissing the bill of complaint, and

that more than six years having elapsed between the

date the patent was issued and the date when the

defendant Heaton was made a party to the action,

the defendant Heaton in. his answer having pleaded

an interest in the lands and the statute of limita-

tions, the court could not enter a decree cancelling

the patent and could only enter a decree dismissing

the bill of complaint.

In order to arrive at a proper understanding

of the contention of the appellant it is necessary to

review briefly the pleadings in this action and a

portion of the evidence taken by the Examiner in

Chancery.

In the original bill of complaint the appellant

Cooper was named as the sole defendant. After

alleging certain acts which constituted fraud on the

part of the entryman, the bill of complaint alleged

that the appellant Cooper knew, at the time he

purchased the lands, of the fraud perpetrated by

the entryman and purchased the land with full

knowledge thereof. The bill of complaint was filed

on December 7th, 1909. The appellant appeared

and filed his answer to the bill of complaint on



Marcli 2!), 1J)1(). In liis aiiswn- the apiM-llant, aftrr

certain inakiii;;- certain admissions and denials, al-

ieH'CS tliat Ix'l'ol'e tile eninnielicenient (•!' tile snit he

liad entered into a contract witii one (ieorgc Heatnii,

whereby lie iiad agreed to sell said land to said

(Je()rj;e Heaton lor a valnalile consideration, and

that the said Ileaton, withont any knowledge of

any I'rand on the pai't of the entryman, had pur-

chased said land I'roni the aj)j)ellant ('oo])er, (Tr.

|). 26). Tjxtn the filing- of the a|)])ellant's answer

in which the ))nrchase of the land hy Ileaton was

allei;'ed, the a[)iu'llee obtained an ordei- directinj^

that (Jcorgo Heaton be made a |)arty derendant, and

permitting the a])i)ellee to amend its bill nf c(.m-

plaiiit so as to state the case as to him, {'Vv. p. 28).

After obtainin<;' this order the appellee anu'nded

its complaint by making- certain interlineations in

the original bill of complaint, by adding- thei-eto an

additional paragraph nnmbei-ed "blleventh" and

by adding to the ])i-ayer a pro\ision asking U>v the

cancellation of the contract for the sale of said

land referred to in the appellant's answer. (Tv. pp.

29-ol). All of these amendments are indicated in

the transcript by underscoring, so that it may be

readily seen from the transcript the diference Im-

tween the (U'iginal bill <d' complaint as filed and as

the same stood after these amendments were made.

(Tr. pp. 2-18). After the making of this (»rder and

the amending of the bill <d' complaint, the defendant

Heat(m filed his answer on December 2nd, 11)12,

(Tr. pp. 33-40), in which, after making cei-tain ad-
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missions and denials, he alleged that on December

13th, 1909, the appellant and defendant entered into

a contract for the sale of said land, together with

other lands, by appellant to defendant, at $5.70 an

acre, and that on the 22nd day of April, 1911, the

defendant Heaton had assigned, sold and trans-

ferred all of his interest in said contract to the

Great Falls Farm Land Company, (Tr. pp. 37-39).

To each of the answers of the appellant and defend-

ant the appellee filed its replications, (Tr. pp. 27

and 40).

It will be seen from this review of the plead-

ings, that the action was originally commenced

against the appellant Cooper for the purpose of

cancelling a patent to certain lands, that after the

appellant filed his answer alleging that he had

parted with his title to said lands under a contract

for the sale thereof to the defendant- Heaton, the

bill of complaint was amended so as to make Heaton

a party defendant and so as to state a case as to him,

and that thereupon the defendant Heaton filed his

answer alleging that he had acquired an interest

in said lands by virtue of having entered into a con-

tract for the purchase thereof with the appellant

Cooper, but that this defendant had thereafter

parted with his interest in said lands by assigning

and transfering said contract to the Great Falls

Farm Land Company.

After the appellee had introduced its evidence

in support of the allegations contained in its bill

of complaint as amended, the appellant and defend-
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aiit iiitruduccd cNidciicc in r('l)uttal tlicroof and als«»

ill supjxnt ol' tile all('j4:ati(»Hs in said ans\V('i*s tliat

the appellant ('odpci- had ciitci-cd into siiid contract

to sell said land, t<n»:('tli('r with other lands, to the

defendant lleaton.

The appellant ('oo})er, testifying; m Ins own

])ehalf and that (d' th<' defendant lleat(»n, stated

that he had sold said lands which he had pni'chased

from the cntrynian, (Tr. p. 7(1). There was there-

npon introdnced in evidence a contract between the

apixdlant Cooper and the defendant lleaton for

the sale of said lands, t<>i;('ther with other lands, by

appellant to the defendant, (Tr. pp. 71 to 7S). 'IMiis

was all of the evidence introdnced to prctve these

allegations as to the contract and sale by the ap-

pellant to defendant.

From an examination of this contract, intn>-

dneed in evidence, we find that on December i:Uh,

1909, fonr days after the filin*;- of the bill cd" com-

plaint against the apixdlant, the appellant and de-

fendant Heaton entei'ed into said contract; that

this eonti'act provides f(n- the sale of 21,840 acres

of land, inchiding- the land inv(»lved in the action,

at the rate of $5.70 an acre, i)ayments to be extended

over a period of years, the last payment be(M»min.i;

due October 1, 1914, and no deeds to be deliv.M'cd

until final payment made.

It will be observed that while the d.-fendant

Heaton in his answer alleged that he had parted

with all of his interest in said contract by assigning

and transferrinu" the same t(» the (li-eat Falls I-'arm
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Laud Company, no evidence whatever was intro-

duced to show an assignment, so that as the evidence

now stands we find that a contract was entered into

between the appellant and defendant Heaton, and

that Heaton still holds and retains said contract.

The court, in its decree, found that all of the

allegations of the bill of complaint as to the fraud

of the entryman w^ere fully sustained by the proof;

that the allegations of said bill of complaint that

the appellant had full knowledge of such fraud at

the time he purchased said land was fully sustained

by the proof; that a contract for the sale of said

land was entered into between the appellant Cooper

and the defendant Heaton ; that more than six years

had elapsed between the date of issuance of patent

and the date of the order directing the making of

Heaton a party defendant to said action and that

it was therefore impracticable to cancel said patent

;

that the value of said lands was $5.70 an acre;

(Tr. pp. 4-1-43).

All of these findings of the court are fully sus-

tained by the proof. We have heretofore consid-

ered the evidence introduced to prove the fraud on

the part of the entryman and the knowledge there-

of by the appellant Cooper so that it is not neces-

sary to examine this evidence here. The contract

introduced in evidence supports the finding of the

court as to the existence of the contract, while the

date of the issuance of patent, as alleged in tlie

bill of complaint, and the date of the order direct-

ing that Heaton be made a party defendant show
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that iiioic lliaii six years ('laj)S('(l Ix'twccn thcs**

dates and sustain this fiiHlini;. Appellant cniitciMlH,

however, that theic is no evidence as Ut tlie vahie of

the land. We take it, that it is a principle nl' law

that cannot be contradicted that all <>f the evich'iice

must be taken and considered together, and tliat evi-

dence introduced on the i)art of a defendant wliieh

tends to prove tlie phiintiffV case will be consich-red

in connection with the i)laintiff's case in exactly

the same manner as though such evicU'nce was intr(>-

duced by the plaintiff. This being true we have in

evidence the contract between the apjiellant and tiie

defendant Heaton in which it is stated that this

land, together with other lands, is to he jwiid for at

the rate of $5.70 an acre. Here then is dii-ect

proof introduced by the defendant showing the

vahie of the lands, the value which the aj)pellant

was willing to accept and the defendant Ileatnu

willing to pay. This evidence is sufficient U>

sustain the finding of tlu* court as to the value of

the lands.

But whatever the findings of the court may

have been, the appellant strenuously contends tiiat

the action having been brought to cancel a pat<'nt

the court could not enter a decree refusing to cancel

the patent, but decreeing that the value of the land,

with interest thereon, should he i)aid by appellant

to the appellee, or if the appellee failed to pay tlie

same that the defendant Heaton should pay the

amount and withhold the same out of the jiurchase

price under said contract remaining unpaid, ami



—20—

that the appellee should have a lien on said land

for such amount and foreclosure of such lien, and

that such decree as entered is not sustained by the

pleadings in the case.

In support of this contention the appellant

cites a number of authorities. Upon an examina-

tion of these authorities we believe that the only

authority cited which is at all in point is that of

Crocket vs. Lee, 7 Wheat. 523, and appellant cer-

tainly must possess a most optimistic mind if he can

obtain any satisfaction out of that particular de-

cision, None of the other cases cited by appellant,

when the subject matter of each particular case is

considered, have any application to the case at bar.

At this time it is well to remind appellant that

he alone is appealing from the decree entered in

the lower court. The defendant Heaton seems to

be well satisfied with the decree entered as he re-

fused to join in this appeal and an order of sever-

ance was made (Tr. pp. 89-90), permitting the ap-

pellant to appeal.

We are free to confess that if evidence had been

introduced by appellant and defendant showing

that the defendant Heaton had transferred his in-

terest in said contract to the Great Falls Farm Land

Company, as he alleged in his answer, no decree could

have been entered which would have been binding on

either the defendant Heaton or on the Great Falls

Land Company, but in the absence of such evidence

does the appellant mean to contend that the court

could not enter a decree which would be binding
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(HI Ilcatoii, ]»arti(Mil.nly where, as in this case, ho

will sntTer ii(» injiiiy whatevei* hy i-casnii then<>ff

The court found that tiaud was committed by tlie

eutryniau and that tiie apjx'Jlant jMiiciiased the hind

witli full kiiowlcduc (»r such fiaiid hut that the (h*-

fenchint Ileatou had no such knowledge. The <h'-

cree is to t\w effect that the a])pellaut Cooper, wlio

l)eeanie the owner of said land with knowled^^e of

the fraud of the eutryniau, is the one who is to

suffer. Heatou suffers no injury, he is simply

directed to pay out of the amount he still owes the

a})pellaut Cooper the value of the lands with in-

terest. It could make no difference tn the defend-

ant Heaton whether, in the ahsenee of the decree,

he should j)ay the balance of liis purchase price tn

the ap[)enant, or whether, the decree beiui;- entered,

he pays the value of the laud with interest t«> the

appellee, retaining such amount out of the balance

due the a])pellant under tlu^ contract. In eithei-

case he will pay the full purchase jnicc I'oi- all of

the lands covered by the contract, \u> nioi-e and no

less. This being true the ai)])ellaut then comes into

this court on this appeal, with the findings <d' tin-

court sustaining the allegations of the hill of com-

plaint as to fraud on the part of the entiynian and

knowledge of such fraud by the appellant at the

time he purchased the lands, and says, that because

the action was an action to cancel the i)atent and the

court found it impracticable so to do, he ought not

to be required to make restitution, and that not-

withstanding his ])artici])ntion in the fr.-nid or the
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fact that he has been benefitted thereby when he

had knowledge thereof, he should be permitted to

go hence without being compelled to suffer in any

way for his own wrongful and unlawful acts. He
comes into court with unclean hands and contends

that even if he did have knowledge of the fraud of

another whereby the appellee was injured and he

was benefitted by that fraud he should be permitted

to continue to enjoy such benefits and the appellee

should have no recourse against him for such in-

jury. The rules of equity which require that one

who seeks equity must do equity and that one can-

not come into a court of equity with unclean hands

and ask for equity apply with all their force to this

particular case. While the bill of complaint asks

for the cancellation of the patent, yet, the decree

as entered, while refusing to cancel the patent, re-

quires nothing more than that equity and justice

be done between the parties benefitted and injured

by the fraud practiced by the entrj^man.

The prayer of the bill of complaint, as amended,

asks for specific relief, the cancellation of the

patent, the deed from the entryman to the appellant

and the contract between appellant and defendant,

and also asks for "such other and further relief in

the premises as the circumstances of this cause

may require, and as to this Honorable Court may
seem meet and proper, and as shall be agreeable to

equity and good conscience," (Tr. p. 17).

Under a prayer for general relief a court of

equity will extend relief beyond the specific prayer
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and lint exactly in accoidaiicc with it and anv re-

lid' that is aj!:i-(H'ahl(> to the caso inach' l>y the j»h'a<l-

inu's can he ^I'aiited nn(h'i' such a lu'ayei*, a cnurt nj"

('(piity ha\inL; power to achipt its remedies to the

eireunistances ol' each paiticular case as deveh»pe<l

l)y tlie pleadings and evi(h'nce, and in this case it

was the duty of tlie court, after finding; it was iiii-

})i'actica))h' to cancel the ])atent, as ])rayc(l for in

the specific pra>"er of the hill df c((inplaint, hy its

decree to adopt and prescrihi' sucli remedies as

would require justice to be done between the pai-

tics.

In the case of Waldeii vs. l>odley, 11 Peters

156, Justice McLean, in deliverinj; the opinion of

the court, said:

*'But the court have, by the hill, answei- and

evidence, the equities of the )»arties before

them; and having jurisdiction (•!' the main

points, they may settle the whole mattei*. A

court of equity cannot act u])on a case which is

not fairly made by tlu' bill and answer. I hit

it is not necessary that these should point out,

in detail, the means which the court should

adopt in giving relief. Under the general

prayer for relief, the court will often extend

relief beyond the specific piayei", and not ex-

actly in accordance with it."

And in this case the court, having found it im-

practicable to cancel the patent, but having a case

fairly made by the bill and answers, it was within

its power to, by its decree, adopt such remedies as

would do justice between the parties.
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In Lockhart vs. Leeds, 195 U. S. 427, Justice

Peckham, who delivered the opinion, said

:

"Again it is alleged that the bill prays that

the location of what is called the Washington
Lode by the defendants be declared void, and
that the plaintiff may have the possession of

the claim, while the plaintiff now asks to have

the defendants treated as constructive trustees,

etc., which is inconsistent, as alleged, with the

former prayer for relief. The bill contains a

prayer for general relief in addition to the

prayer for special relief, and under such prayer

this relief may be given. It is objected that

under the prayer for general relief no relief of

that nature can be granted, inasmuch as it is

opposed to the special relief asked for by the

bill, and also because the general allegations of

the bill do not justify such relief. All of the

facts upon which the plaintiff seeks relief from
a court of equity are clearly stated in the bill.

The facts constituting the fraud are set forth,

and it is alleged that the parties doing the acts

mentioned concealed them from the plaintiff

for the purpose of defrauding plaintiff out of

his interest and ownership in the mine. Having
set out all the facts upon which the right to

relief is based, the plaintiff asks specially for

the possession and also for the proceeds of the

mine, because by reason of the facts, the loca-

tion made by the defendants was a void loca-

tion. Whether it was a void location or not,

was a matter of law arising from the facts ap-

pearing in the bill. Those facts were not

changed in the slightest degree, nor were any
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inconsistont facts set iiji tlicrcaftrr. The plain-

tiff now under liis jjiayci' Wtv ijjcncral relief

rontonds that, altlmu.uli the l«»cati(»n of tlw

Washington Uh\v hy the dctVndants may havtj

been so far valid as to create a tith- in tlie de-

fendants, yet tliat hy I'eason of tlie fraud al-

ready distinctly set I'nrtli in the hill the plain-

tiff was entith'd to avail hiuisell" (»f that title,

and to hold them as trustees ex malet'iein, fm-

his benefit."

"Tliere is nothini;' in the intricacy of ecpnty

pleading that i)revents the [)laintirr Irnm nh-

taining the relief, under the general prayer, to

which he may ])e entitled up(»n the facts ])Iaiidy

stated in the bill. There is no reason for deny-

ing his right to relief, if the i)laintiff is ()tluM--

wise entitled to it, simply because it is asked

under the prayer for general relief and upon

a somewhat different theory from that which

is advanced under one (d' the special prayei-s.

The cases of English vs. F(»xhall, 2 Pet. .la');

Boone vs. Chiles, 10 Pet. 177; Ilobson vs. .Mc-

Arthur, 16 Pet. 182; Hayward vs. National

Bank, 96 U. S. (HI: (Jeorgia vs. Stant«ni, 6

Wall. 50, are n()t opi)ose(l tn the views just

stated."

See also:

Watts vs. Waddle, 6 Pet. :M);

Ridings vs. Johnson, 12S P. S. 21 ;

Tayloe vs. Merchants, J) IIow. 2.90;

Stevens vs. (iladding, 17 I low. 447:
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English vs. Foxhall, 2 Pet. 595;

Sage vs. Central Ey. Co., 99 U. S. 334;

Hepburn vs. Dunlop, 1 Wheat. 179;

Wiggins Ferry Co. vs. O. & M. Ry. Co., 142

U. S. 396.

In Tyler vs. Savage, 143 U. S. 79, the court,

speaking through Justice Peckham, said:

"The relief against Tyler was properly

granted under the prayer of the bill for general

relief. It was consanant with the facts set out

in the bill as a ground of relief against Tyler

personally and it was relief agreeable to the

case made by the bill."

The rule, that when a party shows by a bill

of complaint facts which entitle such party to equit-

able relief such relief, as may be agreeable to the

case made and the evidence in support thereof, may

be granted under the prayer for general relief, is

followed in the Federal courts and in most, if not

all of the state courts.

''The special relief prayed in this bill is to

quiet title or remove a cloud, but there is also

a prayer for general relief. Upon the state of

facts set forth by the bill I am of the opinion

that plaintiff cannot have the special relief he

prays, but rather would be entitled to a decree

declaring him to be entitled to the legal estate

and that the defendants hold the same in trust

for his use and benefit, and for a conveyance
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of the same t<> liiiii, etc Hut nusai)pr('lu'iision

by the i)laiiitit'l* as to tlic special relief he is

entitled to is no givunid for demurrer where

there is a pi'ayer for j^eiicial relief, for in such

a ease, if the bill sets out facts showin;; a riijlit

to relief the court will j^rant the projier relief

under the «»enera] pinycr."

Patrick vs. Iseuhart, :2() Vvd. XV.);

Adams vs. Kehlor :\lill. Co., iKi l-'.-d. IMJ.

"Under oui* statutes and tlie practice which

must i)revail in courts whose law and e(piity

powers are blended like ours, it W(»uld cleai-ly

appear that, in a case like the })reseut, where

plaintiffs have br()ut»ht a civil action for the en-

forcement and protection of their ri.i;hts, (»r the

redress and preventicm of their wroni^s, it is the

dut}^ of the court to grant such relief as the

complaint and,the proof made thereunder, show

them entitled to receive, without any distinction

between la^y and equity. If they have a reiurdy

at law let it be enforced; and if the remedy is

an equitable (Hie let it ))(• ajtplied in like

manner.'*

Leopold vs. Silverniini, 7 Mont. 2n().

"If the prayer of a bill in e(juity is foi* iren-

eral as well as special i-elief tlie «'ouit has pown-

to mold the decree to meet the case mad*' on the

record."

Spevey vs. Frazei", 7 Ind. (>()! ;

Pensacola c'c (J. R. Kv. vs. Sprntt. ll' Fla. 2(>.
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"When the relief granted is not repugnant

to the facts alleged and proved it is properly

granted, altho not specifically prayed for,

under the prayer for general relief."

Penn vs. Folger (111.) 55 N. E. 192.

"A court of equity, having jurisdiction of the

parties and the subject matter, will make its

jurisdiction for complete relief."

Ober vs. Gallagher, 93 U. S. 199.

"Equity, having obtained jurisdiction of the

principal question, will proceed to give such

complete relief as the justice and equity of

the case may require."

Hopburn vs. Dunlop, 1 Wheat. 179.

"A general prayer for such relief as may be

just and equitable warrants the court in grant-

ing to the plaintiff such relief as the facts upon
the trial justify."

Finlayson vs. Peterson, (N. Dak.) 57 Am. St.

Rep. 584.

See also:

Vol. 39 Cent. Dig. Plead. 143-144.

In this case the decree granted relief which

was not inconsistent with the allegations of the bill

of complaint. It is true that the decree did not

order the patent cancelled, but it granted the ap-

pellee relief from the fraud practiced by the entry-

man by taking from the appellant, who knew of the
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fraud, tilt' hciicfits lie derived tlicrefnun, and ^jivin^

siK'li benefits tn tlie appellee who was defrauded.

That, to which the apju'lhint was not «'ntith'd, was

l)y the decree taken from him, and j;iven to tlu»

api>ellee to reinil)Ui-se it for the land tint of which

it had heeii (lefrau(h'd. 'I'he relief i^ranted by tlio

decree was consistent with the case made by the

pleadini»;s, not tlie ])ill of complaint alone, but all

of the pleadinL;s in the case, and adjusted th<'

equities between the parties. If the findini^s of

tbe coure are correct and the a])pellant knew of tlie

fraud practiced upon the a])pellee then in e<piity

and i^ood conscience he ouuht not to he permitted

to rea}) the benefits of such t'laud, and all that the

decree does is to take from him these benefits and

^ive them to the party who was (h'frauded. The

decree was pr(>perly entered and should be sus-

tained.

In the event, however, that this court should

find that th(^ allei;ati(ms set forth in the bill (»f <'om-

])laint are not sufficient to sustain the decree, we

submit, that in view of the evidence taken in the

case and which does fully sustain the deci-ee, this

(;ourt should remand this case to the lower court

with directions to so amend said bill of complaint

that the same will coufoi-m to the evidence and

sustain the decree.

''When the facts of the case show the plain-

tiff to have an (Mpiitable title to relief, this

court, while it may be miable t(» afford such

relief u]ion the case made by the bill, may re-
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mand the case to the court below for an amend-
ment of the pleadings and such further pro-

ceedings as may be just."

Wiggins Ferry Co. vs. O. & M. Ry. Co., 142

U. S. 396;

Crocket vs. Lee, 7 Peters 522;

Watts vs. Waddle, 6 Pet. 389

;

Walden vs. Bodley, 14 Pet. 156

;

Neale vs. Neale, 9 Wall. 1;

Harden vs. Boyd, 113 U. S. 756;

Adams vs. Kehler Mill Co., 36 Fed. 212

;

Jones vs. Meehan, 175 U. S. 1;

Liverpool etc. vs. Phenix Ins. Co., 129 U. S.

39.

Respectfully submitted,

BURTON K. WHEELER,
United States Attorney, District of Montana.

HOMER G. MURPHY,
FRANK WOODY,

Assistant U. S. Attorneys, District of Montana.
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appp:llant's reply i:imi:i«.

I have received tlie l)i'iet* of the leai'ned eoiinsel

for the Appellee. I will not aL;aiii diseuss the facts

in the case, but beg leave to l)ii('riy i-efci- tn tin- posi-

tion taken l)y counsel with refei-ence to the .Indij:-

ment, as most of the brief is devoted to that subject.

It is unnecessary to cite further authorities

upon the point that a decree must l»c within the is-

sues presented by the pleadiii.us and suppni-tr-d by



the evidence. A prayer for general relief does not

give the Court authority to render a decree, not

within the issues and the evidence. This proposi-

tion is supported by the authorities cited by the

Appellee.

I beg leave to continue Counsel's quotation

from Lockhart vs. Leeds.

"We agree that the relief granted under

the prayer for general relief must be agreeable

to the case made by the bill, and that, in sub-

stance, is what is held in the above cases."

And his quotation from Tyler vs. Savage says

that the relief granted "Was consonant with the

facts set out in the bill and agreeable to the case

made by the bill."

It is unnecessary to further discuss this feature

of the case. The learned counsel for the appellee

realizes the force of these authorities and enters a

plea of confession and avoidance by contending that

the Court may remand the case to the lower Court

to amend the pleadings, and for such other proceed-

ings as may be just. This is not a case in which

that may be done.

It is true that in some equity cases a bill may
be so framed that alternative relief may be granted.

The relief granted must be within the rules and

principles of equity. A bill cannot be framed to

demand equitable relief, and as an alternative to

demand legal relief or relief that could be obtained

in an action at law.



When the Govermneiit is dealing witli its

ritizens or others under contracts, nn<l in litij^alimi

affecting pinpci-ty rii;lits, it is Ik.uikI hy tin* mmir

rules as an indix idiial. It li;is im "greater i-i^lits.

It is not actin<; in its sovereign rapacity, hut a<-tiu^

in the same ri^ht as an indivi(hial would.

Bostwick vs. U. S., 94 U. S. 53;

In re Smoots case, 1") Wallace, 1^6;

Amoskeag Mf^". (N>., 17 Wallace. 592.

Jn matters I'elatinu,* to land, the (lovenunent

has no greater rights than any other land ))rnprie-

toi*, and in all suits affecting the same is hound hy

tile same rules. It is elementary that if a paity

claims that he was induced to enter into a contract,

or to part with i)roperty hy Iraud oi- through

fraudulent representations, he has his ehoiee of

remedies, to rescind the contract, or affirm tlie con-

tract and sue for the value of the property ohtained.

One is a suit in equity, the other is an action at law.

He must elect whether he will rescind the contract,

or affirm it and sue for the value «d" the property

ohtained, but he cannot (U> both. The (iovernment,

therefore, must elect to bring a suit to eanerl the

patent, or to affirm the patent, and sue for the

value of the land. It cannot, in the same acti<»n, ask

to rescind the contract, that is t«» cancel the patent,

and ask to recover the value of the land in case the

contract cannot be rescinded; or, in other w.»rds.

that the patent cannot be cancelled. This is t'le-

mentary. Having elected to bring an action to



cancel the patent, it is bound by its election, and

cannot then ask to recover the value of the land be-

cause the patent cannot be cancelled.

Peters vs. Bain, 133 U. S. 670;

Rob vs. Vos, 155 U. S. 13;

Wesley vs. Diamond, 109 Pac. 524

;

Wilson vs. Cattle Co., 73 Fed. 994; 20 C. C.

A. 241

;

Wheeler vs. Dun, 22. Pac. 827

;

Bank vs. Board of Commissioners, 60 Pac.
1062;

Gaffney vs. Megrath, 63 Pac. 520.

An amendment cannot be allowed that will

change the nature of the cause of action from a

suit in equity to an action at law, or from an action

at law to a suit in equity.

A suit to cancel a patent is a suit in equity. An
action to recover the value of the land would be an

action at law, and a Court of equity would not have

jurisdiction.

U. S. vs. Bitter Root Development Co., 200
U. S. 451.

I respectfully submit that the judgment should

be reversed and the action dismissed, and that the

pleadings' cannot be amended as suggested by Coun-

sel for the Appellee.

Respectfully submitted,

JAMES A. WALSH,
Solicitor for Appellant.














